
  

 
Meeting of the  

 

TOWER HAMLETS 
COUNCIL 

__________________________________ 
 

Wednesday, 25 June 2008 at 7.30 p.m. 
_______________________________________ 

 
A G E N D A 

______________________________________ 
 

VENUE 
Council Chamber, 1st Floor, 
Town Hall, Mulberry Place, 

5 Clove Crescent, 
London E14 2BG 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
If you require any further information relating to this meeting, would like to request a large 
print, Braille or audio version of this document, or would like to discuss access arrangements 
or any other special requirements, please contact: 
 
John S Williams, Service Head, Democratic Services 
Tel: 020 7364 4204, E-mail:johns.williams@towerhamlets.gov.uk 
 

 



 
Chief Executive’s 
Directorate 
 
Democratic Services 
Tower Hamlets Town Hall 
Mulberry Place 
5 Clove Crescent 
London E14 2BG 
 
Tel 020 7364 4204 
Fax 020 7364 3232 
 
www.towerhamlets.gov.uk 

 
TO THE MAYOR AND COUNCILLORS OF THE LONDON BOROUGH OF TOWER 
HAMLETS 
 
You are summoned to attend a meeting of the Council of the London Borough of Tower 
Hamlets to be held in THE COUNCIL CHAMBER, 1ST FLOOR, TOWN HALL, 
MULBERRY PLACE, 5 CLOVE CRESCENT, LONDON, E14 2BG at 7.30 p.m. on 
WEDNESDAY, 25 JUNE 2008  
 
 
 
 
 
 
Martin Smith 
Chief Executive 
 

 



 

LONDON BOROUGH OF TOWER HAMLETS 
 

COUNCIL  
 

WEDNESDAY, 25 JUNE 2008 
 

7.30 p.m. 
 

1. APOLOGIES FOR ABSENCE   
 
 To receive any apologies for absence. 

 
2. DECLARATIONS OF INTEREST   
 
 To note any declarations of interest made by Members, including those restricting Members from 

voting on the questions detailed in Section 106 of the Local Government Finance Act, 1992.  See 
attached note from the Chief Executive. 
 
 

 PAGE 
NUMBER 

3. MINUTES  
 

3 - 36 

 To confirm as a correct record of the proceedings the unrestricted 
minutes of the Annual Meeting of the Council held on 21st May 2008. 
 

 

4. TO RECEIVE ANNOUNCEMENTS FROM THE MAYOR, 
LEADER OF THE COUNCIL, MEMBERS OF THE CABINET 
OR THE CHIEF EXECUTIVE  

 

 

5. TO RECEIVE ANY DEPUTATIONS OR PETITIONS  
 

37 - 44 

 The deputations and petitions that have been received for presentation 
to the Council Meeting are set out in the attached agenda item 5. 
 

 

6. TO RECEIVE WRITTEN QUESTIONS FROM MEMBERS OF 
THE PUBLIC  

 

45 - 46 

 (Maximum of 30 minutes allowed) 
 
The questions which have been received are set out in agenda item 6. 
 

 

7. TO RECEIVE QUESTIONS FROM MEMBERS OF THE 
COUNCIL  

 

47 - 54 

 (Maximum of 30 minutes allowed) 
 
The questions which have been received are set out in agenda item 7. 
 

 



 
 

8. REPORTS FROM THE EXECUTIVE AND THE COUNCIL'S 
COMMITTEES  

 

 

8 .1 Annual Report of the Overview and Scrutiny Committee 2007/08   
 

55 - 76 
8 .2 Report of the Cabinet Meeting of 7th May 2008   
 

77 - 86 
 1. Mail Forwarding Businesses Registration 

 
 

8 .3 Report of the Cabinet Meeting of 11th June 2008   
 

87 - 298 
 1. Tower Hamlets Community Plan 2020 and Local Area Agreement 

 
2. Strategic Plan, Annual Report and Best Value Performance Plan 
 

 

9. TO RECEIVE REPORTS AND QUESTIONS ON JOINT 
ARRANGEMENTS AND EXTERNAL ORGANISATIONS  

 

 

9 .1 Joint Arrangements   
 

 
 No business under this heading to be considered. 

 
 

9 .2 External Organisations   
 

 
 No business under this heading to be considered. 

 
 

10. OTHER BUSINESS  
 

 

10 .1 Proposed amendments to the Council's Constitution:  Development 
Procedure Rules/Planning Code of Conduct   

 
 

 Report to follow, to incorporate the comments of the Standards 
Committee (17th June 2008) on proposed changes to the Planning Code 
of Conduct 
 

 

11. TO CONSIDER MOTIONS SUBMITTED BY MEMBERS OF 
THE COUNCIL  

 
 

 

11 .1 Motion submitted by Councillor Mamun Rashid regarding 
Community Centre for Tarling Estate   

 
 

 Proposed: Councillor Mamun Rashid 
Seconded: Councillor Harun Miah 
 
This council believes that all avenues must be explored to meet the 
funding gap of £400,000 required to allow development of the promised 
full-scale community centre to meet the urgent local needs. 
 
 

 



 
 

11 .2 Motion submitted by Councillor Stephanie Eaton regarding ID 
Cards   

 
 

 Proposed:  Councillor Stephanie Eaton 
Seconded: Councillor Azizur Rahman Khan 
  
This Council notes: 
  
1. That Parliament has created identity card legislation.  
 
2. This legislation will have an impact on all residents within Tower 
Hamlets. 
  
This Council believes: 
  
1. That the proposed scheme will impose substantial and 
disproportionate costs on the Council. 
 
2. That the cost of ID cards would be better spent on employing crime 
prevention measures such as more police officers, and target hardening. 
 
3. ID cards have the potential to have a negative impact on social 
cohesion and notes the concerns of the Metropolitan Police Service to 
that effect: 
‘The scheme could become compulsory prematurely for those 
disadvantaged members of society, because they would have to have an 
ID Card in order to access Social Security Benefits, etc.  It should also 
be noted that many of the visible ethnic minorities are over-represented 
in this socio-economically deprived group.  We have severe reservations 
that the scheme could add to tensions at a time when the police service 
is investing greatly in gaining confidence across all communities’. 
  
This Council will: 
  
1. Make it a policy of the Council to ensure that national identity cards 

would not be required to access council services or benefits unless 
specifically required to do so by Act of Parliament. 

 
2. Take no part in any pilot scheme or feasibility work in relation to the 

introduction of the national identity cards.  
 
3. Only co-operate with the national identity card scheme where to do 

otherwise would be unlawful.  
 
4. Affiliate to the NO2ID campaign whose supporters already include 

MPs and Peers of all parties, Borough, County and District Councils, 
and unions (including UNISON, the largest union in the UK with 1.3 
million members).  

 
 
 
 

 



 
 

11 .3 Motion submitted by Councillor Timothy Archer regarding 
Leaseholder Services   

 
 

 Proposed: Councillor Timothy Archer 
Seconded:  Councillor Peter Golds 
 
Council notes the continuing dissatisfaction of leaseholders with the 
overall service they receive from Tower Hamlets Council, particularly in 
respect of: 
 

• information and consultation on both major works and annual 
service charges 

• the overall level of both major works and annual charges, 
particularly the administration and management element. 

• the value for money that these charges represent and the quality 
of the services that leaseholders are asked to pay for 

  
Furthermore this council notes the following recent developments: 
 

• the £50 refund being made to leaseholders by this council in 
recognition of leaseholder grievances and excessive charges to 
date 

• the recent Lister House Leasehold Valuation Tribunal case that 
the Council lost. 

  
This council therefore resolves to call on the executive to: 
 

• provide leaseholders with an appropriate level of reassurance on 
the process and resulting charges levied by the Council, by way 
of an independent audit of leaseholder services to establish that 
Leaseholder service charges are fair and appropriately 
calculated.  This review should be carried out by an recognised 
independent firm of auditors. 

 
 
 

 

11 .4 Motion submitted by Councillor Alex Heslop regarding support for 
the Co-operative and Social Enterprise Sector   

 
 

 Proposed: Councillor Alex Heslop 
Seconded: Councillor Denise Jones 
 
This Council recognises that there is a diverse and healthy co-operative 
sector in Tower Hamlets with a combined turnover of approximately £50 
million and also appreciates the important role that co-operatives and 
other social enterprises can play in community and economic 
regeneration initiatives.  Although there are many successful co-
operative enterprises operating in Tower Hamlets such as Tower 
Hamlets Community Credit Union, Tower Hamlets CDA and Greenwich 
Leisure (effectively a workers co-op), as well as several food co-ops and 
housing co-operatives, there is not a single council officer with a specific 
remit or indeed expertise for working with the co-operative & social 
enterprise sectors. 
 

 



 
 

This Council resolves to do the following: 
 

• Allocate responsibility for supporting the co-operative & social 
enterprise sectors to the Lead Member for Regeneration as well 
as a designated council officer who will promote and support new 
mutual models for the provision of community services, including 
housing, pre-school childcare, residential and home care, 
recycling and leisure.  Made possible through service reviews, 
externalising, or re-contracting services and procurement 
procedures. 

 
• Organise an annual event to celebrate International Co-operatives 

Day in partnership with the local Co-operative Movement; this 
could also involve the Tower Hamlets Partnership and its Creating 
and Sharing Prosperity Community Plan Action Group. 

 
• Develop procurement strategies that make a direct link between 

the Community Plan and other strategic objectives and contract 
specifications ensuring that community benefits can be fully 
integrated into the procurement process. 

 
• Work with the Co-operative Sector and London Development 

Agency to improve access to finance and support for socially and 
mutually owned businesses. 

 
• Work with staff and unions on a partnership basis in the creation 

of new cooperative services. 
 
 

11 .5 Motion submitted by Councillor Oliur Rahman regarding security 
for visitors to Bangladesh   

 
 

 Proposed:    Councillor Oliur Rahman 
Seconded:    t.b.c. 
 
The Council notes with concern a number of incidents that have 
occurred in recent years when visitors to Bangladesh have experienced 
violence or intimidation.  These include Rizwan Hossain, the British 
Bangladeshi barrister who was mistreated at Zia International airport in 
April 2008, and a Member of our own Council who experienced a 
distressing shooting incident at her property in Bangladesh in January 
2007. 
 
The Council notes that this issue has been raised with the British High 
Commission in Bangladesh, the Bangladesh High Commission in the 
UK, the Bangladesh Home Secretary and Metropolitan Police, Advisor 
and Foreign advisor in the Bangladesh government and others but so far 
no reply has been received except from one MP, and no incident 
investigation has been resolved. 
 
The Council believes that action should be taken to ensure the safety 
and security of British Bangladeshi and other people when they 
visit Bangladesh on holiday or for other reasons, whether at the airport, 
in their home or in a public place.   

 



 
 

  
The Council calls on the British and Bangladeshi governments to act to 
prevent further incidents of this nature and to compensate victims 
of such events.   
 
 

11 .6 Motion submitted by Councillor Shahed Ali regarding 
webcasting/pro-active access to Council Committee meetings   

 
 

 Proposed: Councillor Shahed Ali 
Seconded:  Councillor Dulal Uddin 
 
This Council Believes: 
 
It has a duty to involve all members of the public to access council and 
the various committee meetings we hold in the Town Hall.   The council 
understands that it is difficult for persons to attend these meetings, 
particularly to persons with physical disabilities due to the location of the 
Town Hall.  With a growing population of 200,000+, accommodation 
facilities are restricted to 30 persons in the public gallery.  Therefore 
further accommodation is provided by means of large-screen broadcast 
in adjoining room.   
 
Every individual has the fundamental right to play an equal role in 
society, and this council seeks to pro-actively address identified needs to 
ensure all persons have equal access to engage with the work of the 
council. 
   
This Council further believes: 
 
Web casting plays a major role in the government’s agenda under the e-
democracy and e-government banner.  Web casting council meetings 
will provide access to the hard to reach members of our communities 
and would increase the level of local involvement in the decision making 
process of the council.  
 
Web casting will further enrich the debate within the council chamber, 
improve decorum and add value to the council’s meetings and other 
democratic processes.  It will enable young people in particular to grow 
interest in council business, empowering them to get more involved with 
their community, and more prepared as potential future councillors.  Web 
casting will give further credence to and enhance the council’s Beacons 
status award of ‘Getting Closer to Communities’. 
 
This Council resolves to: 
 
Agree to web cast the various council meetings subject to a cost 
evaluation. 
 
This Council instructs: 
 
(a) Officers to immediately set up a working group in order to proceed 

to investigate the mechanics of providing web casts of the various 
council meetings. 

 



 
 

 
(b) The working group is to provide a report together with a costing 

forecast for this provision to be completed and submitted for 
discussion to the Overview and Scrutiny Committee meeting 
scheduled for 29 May 2008, with a view to submitting 
recommendations to Cabinet scheduled for 7 May 2008 for possible 
adoption at full council scheduled for 21 May 2008.  

 
(c) Democratic Services and Chief Executives Communications budget 

to determine and to set-aside £20,000 within their budget/s for the 
Municipal year 2008/9 to realise the above. 

 
 

11 .7 Motion submitted by Councillor Philip Briscoe regarding Special 
Constables   

 
 

 Proposed:  Councillor Philip Briscoe 
Seconded:  Councillor Peter Golds 
 
This Council Notes: 
 

1. That Special Constables provide invaluable support to local Police 
forces across the country. 

 
2. That Special Constables have the same powers as regular 

officers when they complete their training, including the power of 
arrest, 

 
3. That Special Constables have been shown to produce results 

from local reassurance policing and from schemes such as 
“Shopwatch”. 

 
4. That the recruitment and retention of Special Constables is 

difficult and results are based on local actions, such as 
advertising, management and high profile local championing of 
the role of Specials. 

 
5. That employers can discover significant returns in staff 

development, training and morale, by providing support for those 
who wish to serve as Special Constables. 

 
This Council Resolves: 
 

1. To work with the Tower Hamlets Borough Constabulary to 
prioritise the recruitment and retention of Special Constables. 

 
2. To provide assistance to any recruitment and information 

campaigns, including the use of East End Life as an advertising 
channel. 

 
3. To provide information to local businesses and employers, so that 

they can foster more Special Constable volunteers as a way of 
Employer Supported Volunteering (ESV). 

 

 



 
 

4. To offer full support, via ESV, to employees of the London 
Borough of Tower Hamlets who wish to apply to become Special 
Constables. 

 
5. To apply the full Council Tax discount that is available to Special 

Constables – that anyone who is a Special Constable and a 
council tax payer in the London Borough of Tower Hamlets will be 
able to claim a 50% discount in their annual bills. 

 
 

11 .8 Motion submitted by Councillor Harun Miah regarding the Arms 
Trade   

 
 

 Proposed: Councillor Harun Miah  
Seconded: Councillor Abjol Miah 
 
This Council is committed to promoting peace and cohesion, and 
maintaining security and safety. 
 
We oppose the spread of weapons of mass destruction, and join with 
Mayor of London Ken Livingstone and others in opposing the biennial 
arms fair, Defence Systems and Equipment International (DSEi), held in 
East London.  
 
We believe it is the responsibility of Councils to offer leadership in 
actively promoting peace and conciliation. On behalf of the people of 
Tower Hamlets we call on our government to do likewise and we reaffirm 
our opposition to any moves to draw British troops into US plans for 
fresh aggressions against Iran.   
 
We will communicate these decisions and encourage debate around 
them through our website, through East End Life and other appropriate 
means. 
 

 

11 .9 Motion submitted by Councillor Ahmed Hussain regarding the 
future of the GP surgeries in Tower Hamlets   

 
 

 Proposed: Councillor Ahmed Hussain 
Seconded: Councillor Peter Golds 
 
Last year the Tower Hamlets PCT had honoured the contract of St Pauls 
Way surgery to a private company called Atos Origin.  Despite the fact 
the company does not have any background experience on health; they 
were still given the contract.  The people of Tower Hamlets specially the 
10,000 residents that use the surgery have opposed this.  But the 
residents were not at all heard. 
 
The Council notes: 
 

• That the residents of Tower Hamlets should be heard. 
• That all the elected members have the duty to uphold the voice 

their electorate. 
• Those 10,000 residents equate to 5% of the Borough’s population 

which should be heard.  

 



 
 

 
This Council believes: 
 

• That it promotes the vision of the residents of Tower Hamlets 
• That it wants its residents to be heard 
• That it promotes its residents and would intervene as and when 

necessary if the people of the borough do not feel the service 
provided is adequate. 

 
This Council calls on those responsible to ensure: 
 

• That a fair and transparent investigation will be taken place as 
soon as possible 

• Those surgeries that are due to be contracted out should be on 
hold until a review has taken place. 

• That the council and councillors should be involved in the 
tendering and interview process. 

• That the lead member of Health and Wellbeing will take 
necessary steps to ensure that these surgeries are not given 
away to private incompetent companies in future. 

 
11 .10 Motion submitted by Councillor Abjol Miah regarding PCT and GP 

practice contracting   
 

 

 Proposed: Councillor Abjol Miah 
Seconded: Councillor Shahed Ali 
 
Council notes 
 

- Tower Hamlets Primary Care Trust has awarded a 10-year  
contract for providing general practice services to Atos Healthcare 

- This company took over running services at the St Paul’s Way 
Medical Centre on 1st February 2008 

- The anger of patients and general practice staff that this contract 
has been awarded to a private, for-profit organisation 

- An 80-strong general practice forum vote (with one against) of no 
confidence in the PCT following this decision 

- Atos Healthcare is part of Atos Origin, the company awarded the 
IT contract for the Olympics, with company profits of £235 million 
in 2006.  

- Atos Healthcare has no experience of running general practice 
services in this country.  

- The walk-in health centre at Canary Wharf which Atos currently 
run for the PCT has been the subject of complaints from those 
working there, and has been operating well under capacity. 

- The PCT manages six other GP health practises in Tower 
Hamlets which also face being tendered and awarded to private 
companies in the same way 

 
Council resolves 
 
To support local GP-led or not-for profit provision of health care services  
To conduct a full consultation with residents before any future PCT 
decision on GP health practice contracts are tendered. 

 



 
 

 
11 .11 Motion submitted by Councillor Md. Abdul Munim regarding 

Financial Rescue Schemes   
 

 

 Proposed: Councillor Md. Abdul Munim 
Seconded: Councillor Abjol Miah 
 
In light of warnings from housing charity Shelter against the dangers of 
so called ‘mortgage rescue schemes’, which can lead to financial loss or 
even homelessness, Council notes 
 
1. That such schemes target homeowners struggling with debt and 
mortgage arrears, offering ‘rescue packages’ to buy their homes and 
rent them back to former owners. In reality people receive a fraction of 
the market value of their property and are only offered short-term 
tenancy agreements, which leave them vulnerable to eviction after only a 
few months. 
 
2. Shelter’s call for Government to bring these companies under the 
regulation of the Financial Services Authority and an urgent investigation 
into their advertising practices 
 
Council resolves to: 
 
1. Warn residents of the possible dangers involved in such schemes 
 
2. Recommend residents to seek independent financial advice before 
selling their home through a mortgage rescue scheme 
 
3. Suspend advertising by any such companies through East End Life 
and any other Council media, pending a review of the service offered. 
 
 

 

11 .12 Motion submitted by Councillor Dulal Uddin regarding the East 
London Line   

 
 

 Proposed: Councillor Dulal Uddin 
Seconded:  Councillor Abjol Miah 
 
Council notes that the London Underground’s East London Line (ELL) is 
due to close in December 2007 and welcomes the extension of the ELL 
and improved access to and from East London. 
 
We further note that the East London line is currently operated by 
London Underground and that the Mayor of London has announced 
plans to transfer the ownership and management of the ELL from 
London Underground to the private sector in 2010.   
 
The Public Private Partnership on London Underground has already 
created a fragmented network with frequent service disruptions.  
Privatisation of the East London Line will exacerbate that fragmentation 
and could be the thing end of the wedge with other lines and services 
transferred to other companies in the future. 
 

 



 
 

This Council strongly urges the Mayor of London and Transport for 
London to retain operation and ownership of the East London Line in the 
public sector. 
 
This Council strongly urges the Mayor of London and Transport for 
London’s Chief Operating Officer for London Rail, Howard Smith, to 
carry out full and active consultation prior to any decision being made, in 
the areas served by the ELL. 
 
 
 



This page is intentionally left blank



1 
 
D:\moderngov\Data\AgendaItemDocs\0\8\3\AI00015380\Notefromchiefexecutiveredeclarationofinterests07010850.doc 
    

DECLARATIONS OF INTERESTS - NOTE FROM THE CHIEF EXECUTIVE 
 
 
This note is guidance only.  Members should consult the Council’s Code of Conduct for further 
details.  Note: Only Members can decide if they have an interest therefore they must make their 
own decision.  If in doubt as to the nature of an interest it is advisable to seek advice prior to 
attending at a meeting.   
 
Declaration of interests for Members 
 
Where Members have a personal interest in any business of the authority as described in 
paragraph 4 of the Council’s Code of Conduct (contained in part 5 of the Council’s Constitution) 
then s/he must disclose this personal interest as in accordance with paragraph 5 of the Code.  
Members must disclose the existence and nature of the interest at the start of the meeting and 
certainly no later than the commencement of the item or where the interest becomes apparent.   
 
You have a personal interest in any business of your authority where it relates to or is likely to 
affect: 
 

(a) An interest that you must register 
 
(b) An interest that is not on the register, but where the well-being or financial position of you, 

members of your family, or people with whom you have a close association, is likely to be 
affected by the business of your authority more than it would affect the majority of 
inhabitants of the ward affected by the decision. 

 
Where a personal interest is declared a Member may stay and take part in the debate and 
decision on that item.   
 
What constitutes a prejudicial interest? - Please refer to paragraph 6 of the adopted Code of 
Conduct. 
 
Your personal interest will also be a prejudicial interest in a matter if (a), (b) and either (c) 
or (d) below apply:- 
 

(a) A member of the public, who knows the relevant facts, would reasonably think that your 
personal interests are so significant that it is likely to prejudice your judgment of the 
public interests; AND 

(b) The matter does not fall within one of the exempt categories of decision listed in 
paragraph 6.2 of the Code; AND EITHER   

(c) The matter affects your financial position or the financial interest of a body with which 
you are associated; or 

(d) The matter relates to the determination of a licensing or regulatory application 
 

The key points to remember if you have a prejudicial interest in a matter being discussed at a 
meeting:- 
 

i. You must declare that you have a prejudicial interest, and the nature of that interest, as 
soon as that interest becomes apparent to you; and  

 
ii. You must leave the room for the duration of consideration and decision on the item and 

not seek to influence the debate or decision unless (iv) below applies; and  

Agenda Item 2

Page 1



2 
 
D:\moderngov\Data\AgendaItemDocs\0\8\3\AI00015380\Notefromchiefexecutiveredeclarationofinterests07010850.doc 
    

 
iii. You must not seek to improperly influence a decision in which you have a prejudicial 

interest.   
 

iv. If Members of the public are allowed to speak or make representations at the meeting, 
give evidence or answer questions about the matter, by statutory right or otherwise (e.g. 
planning or licensing committees), you can declare your prejudicial interest but make 
representations.  However, you must immediately leave the room once you have 
finished your representations and answered questions (if any).  You cannot remain in 
the meeting or in the public gallery during the debate or decision on the matter. 

 
 
 
 
 

Page 2



COUNCIL, 21/05/2008 SECTION ONE (UNRESTRICTED) 
 

1 

LONDON BOROUGH OF TOWER HAMLETS 
 

MINUTES OF THE COUNCIL 
 

HELD AT 7.30 P.M. ON WEDNESDAY, 21 MAY 2008 
 

THE COUNCIL CHAMBER, 1ST FLOOR, TOWN HALL, MULBERRY PLACE, 5 
CLOVE CRESCENT, LONDON, E14 2BG 

 
Members Present: 
  
Councillor Helal Abbas 
Councillor Ohid Ahmed 
Councillor Rajib Ahmed 
Councillor Rofique U Ahmed 
Councillor Anwara Ali 
Councillor Shahed Ali 
Councillor M. Shahid Ali 
Councillor Tim Archer 
Councillor Abdul Asad 
Councillor Rupert Bawden 
Councillor Lutfa Begum 
Councillor Philip Briscoe 
Councillor Alibor Choudhury 
Councillor Stephanie Eaton 
Councillor Rupert Eckhardt 
Councillor Marc Francis 
Councillor Peter Golds 
Councillor Fazlul Haque 
Councillor Shafiqul Haque 
Councillor Carli Harper-Penman 
Councillor Clair Hawkins 
Councillor Alexander Heslop 
Councillor Shirley Houghton 
Councillor Ahmed Hussain 
Councillor Sirajul Islam 
Councillor Waiseul Islam 
 

Councillor Ann Jackson 
Councillor Denise Jones 
Councillor Dr. Emma Jones 
Councillor Azizur Rahman Khan 
Councillor Rania Khan 
Councillor Shiria Khatun 
Councillor Abdul Matin 
Councillor Harun Miah 
Councillor Abjol Miah 
Councillor Fozol Miah 
Councillor Abdul Munim 
Councillor Tim O'Flaherty 
Councillor Ahmed Adam Omer 
Councillor Joshua Peck 
Councillor Lutfur Rahman 
Councillor Oliur Rahman 
Councillor M. Mamun Rashid 
Councillor Mohammed Abdus Salique 
Councillor A A Sardar 
Councillor David Snowdon 
Councillor Bill Turner 
Councillor Dulal Uddin 
Councillor Abdal Ullah 
Councillor Salim Ullah 
Councillor Motin Uz-Zaman 
 

The Mayor, Councillor Ann Jackson in the Chair 
 
 
OPENING OF MEETING 
 
The Mayor welcomed Councillors, members of the public and other attendees 
to the meeting.  Before the start of the listed business, the Mayor invited all 
present to observe a minute’s silence in memory of John Riley, a former 
Councillor of twenty six years service and previous Leader of the Council, and 
Nasabet Miah, anti-racism campaigner, both of whom had died recently; and 
also for those who had lost their lives in the recent earthquake in China and 
the cyclone in Burma.     
 

Agenda Item 3

Page 3



COUNCIL, 21/05/2008 SECTION ONE (UNRESTRICTED) 
 

2 

 
1. TO ELECT A MAYOR OF THE BOROUGH TO HOLD OFFICE UNTIL THE 

ANNUAL MEETING OF THE COUNCIL IN 2009  
 
Councillor Ann Jackson addressed the meeting about her year of office.  She 
expressed her pride and gratitude at having the opportunity to represent the 
borough and people of Tower Hamlets and thanked Members and officers for 
their support.  During Councillor Jackson’s year of office she had raised 
£35,000 for each of her two charities, the Tower Project and The Bethnal 
Green Tube Disaster Memorial Fund. 
 
Councillor Denise Jones paid tribute to Councillor Jackson on behalf of the 
Council, and Councillors Stephanie Eaton, Peter Golds, Oliur Rahman and 
Shahed Ali also addressed the meeting about her year in office and echoed 
Councillors Jones’ comments. 
 
Moved by Councillor Denise Jones, Seconded by Councillor Sirajul Islam 
and  
 
RESOLVED that Councillor Mohammed Abdus Salique be elected as Mayor 
until the Annual Meeting of the Council in 2009. 
 

The Mayor, Councillor Mohammed Abdus Salique in the Chair. 
 

The incoming Mayor then addressed the meeting.  He paid tribute to 
Councillor Jackson and thanked Members of the Council for their support.  
The Mayor then set out his proposed programme for the year, together with 
details of the charities he would be supporting during his mayoralty, the Asian 
Parents Association for Special Educational Needs in Tower Hamlets 
(APASENTH) and the Child Concern Consortium (CCC). 
 

2. TO ELECT A DEPUTY MAYOR OF THE BOROUGH TO HOLD OFFICE 
UNTIL THE ANNUAL MEETING OF THE COUNCIL IN 2009  
 
Moved by Councillor Denise Jones, Seconded by Councillor Sirajul Islam 
and RESOLVED  
 
That Councillor Ahmed Omer be elected as Deputy Mayor until the Annual 
Meeting of the Council in 2009.  
 

3. APOLOGIES FOR ABSENCE  
 
No apologies for absence were received. 
 
Apologies for lateness were received from Councillor Rupert Bawden. 
 

4. DECLARATIONS OF INTEREST  
 
No declarations of interest were made. 
 
 

Page 4



COUNCIL, 21/05/2008 SECTION ONE (UNRESTRICTED) 
 

3 

5. MINUTES  
 
RESOLVED 
 
That the minutes of the Council meeting held on Wednesday 23 April 2008 be 
confirmed as a correct record of the proceedings and the Mayor be authorised 
to sign them accordingly. 
 

6. TO RECEIVE ANNOUNCEMENTS FROM THE MAYOR OR THE CHIEF 
EXECUTIVE  
 
Election of new Councillors 
 
On behalf of Members the Mayor welcomed to the meeting new Councillors 
Fazlul Haque and David Snowdon who had been elected at the by-elections 
on 1 May to represent Weavers and Millwall Wards respectively. 
 
Young Mayor/Deputy Young Mayors 
 
The Mayor also congratulated the new Young Mayor of Tower Hamlets, 
Akram Hussain on his appointment and welcomed his two deputies Alex Kuye 
and Faiza Mukeith to the meeting. All had been elected by young people of 
the Borough in the recent elections.   
 
Burma cyclone 
 
The Mayor asked that the Council join him in expressing sympathy for the 
dreadful suffering experienced by the people of Burma following the recent 
cyclone which had left an estimated 32,000 people dead and hundreds of 
thousands homeless. Tower Hamlets Muslim Staff Forum had organised a 
fundraising effort and volunteers would be collecting during the evening. 
 

7. TO ELECT THE LEADER AND DEPUTY LEADER OF THE COUNCIL  
 
(a) Election of Leader 
 
Councillor Denise Jones addressed the meeting and referred to some of the 
successes and achievements of the borough and of the Council and the 
Tower Hamlets Partnership during her two years as Leader of the Council.  
Councillor Jones expressed her pride at having the opportunity to serve the 
people of Tower Hamlets in that capacity and thanked Members and officers 
for their support.   
 
Moved by Councillor Denise Jones and Seconded by Councillor Carli 
Harper-Penman that Councillor Lutfur Rahman be nominated to serve as 
Leader of the Council. 
 
Moved as an amendment by Councillor Peter Golds and Seconded by 
Councillor Shirley Houghton that, in accordance with Procedure Rules 14.1.14 
and 27, the Council Procedure Rules be suspended to enable a secret ballot 
to be held for the appointment of the Leader of the Council. 

Page 5



COUNCIL, 21/05/2008 SECTION ONE (UNRESTRICTED) 
 

4 

 
The Service Head, Democratic Services advised that Council Procedure Rule 
17.3, which required the Mayor to take the vote by a show of hands or 
recorded vote, was not one of the Procedure Rules that could be suspended 
under Rule 27 and the amendment proposed could therefore not stand.  
 
Moved by Councillor Shirley Houghton and Seconded by Councillor Peter 
Golds that Councillor Denise Jones be nominated to serve as Leader of the 
Council. 
 
Councillor Denise Jones declined to stand for election. 
 
The Mayor then put the remaining nomination to the vote and it was 
 
RESOLVED that Councillor Lutfur Rahman be elected as Leader of the 
Council until the Annual Meeting of the Council in 2009. 
 
Councillor Lutfur Rahman thanked the Members of the Council.  He stated 
that he was honoured to be elected as Leader of the Authority and looked 
forward to carrying out his duties and responsibilities on behalf of the people 
of Tower Hamlets, working with Councillors and officers of the Authority to the 
benefit of the borough.     
  
Councillor Rahman thanked the outgoing Mayor for her tireless work on behalf 
of the borough over the past year and congratulated Councillor Salique and 
Councillor Omer on their election as Mayor and Deputy Mayor respectively for 
2008/09. 
  
Finally Councillor Rahman thanked Councillor Denise Jones for her 
nomination and for her work over the past two years as Leader of the Council.  
Councillor Rahman was pleased to inform Members that Councillor Jones had 
accepted his invitation to assist him as required as a Champion for the 
Olympics in the borough in the lead up to 2012. 
 
(b) Election of Deputy Leader 
 
Moved by Councillor Lutfur Rahman and Seconded by Councillor Carli 
Harper-Penman that Councillor Sirajul Islam be nominated to serve as Deputy 
Leader of the Council. 
 
Moved by Councillor Peter Golds and Seconded by Councillor Shirley 
Houghton that Councillor Helal Abbas be nominated to serve as Deputy 
Leader of the Council. 
 
Councillor Helal Abbas declined to stand for election. 
 
The Mayor then put the remaining nomination to the vote and it was 
 
RESOLVED that Councillor Sirajul Islam be elected as Deputy Leader of the 
Council until the Annual Meeting of the Council in 2009. 
 

Page 6



COUNCIL, 21/05/2008 SECTION ONE (UNRESTRICTED) 
 

5 

8. TO APPOINT MEMBERS TO THE CABINET  
 
The Chief Executive tabled a report which informed the Council of the 
proposed appointment of Cabinet Members for the municipal year 2008/2009 
together with allocated portfolios. 
 
Moved by Councillor Lutfur Rahman, Seconded by Councillor Sirajul Islam 
and  
 
RESOLVED that the Cabinet comprise 10 Members and those Members with 
the allocated portfolios, as set out below be appointed thereto. 
 
Councillor Lutfur Rahman - Leader of the Council 
Councillor Sirajul Islam - Deputy Leader of the Council 
Councillor Clair Hawkins - Lead Member, Children’s Services 
Councillor Abdal Ullah - Lead Member, Cleaner, Safer, Greener 
Councillor Rofique U Ahmed - Lead Member, Culture and Leisure 
Councillor Marc Francis - Lead Member, Housing and Development 
Councillor Alibor Choudhury - Lead Member, Employment and Skills 
Councillor Anwara Ali - Lead Member, Health and Wellbeing 
Councillor Ohid Ahmed - Lead Member, Regeneration, Localisation and 

Community Partnerships  
Councillor Joshua Peck - Lead Member, Resources and Performance 
 

9. REVIEW OF THE CONSTITUTION  
 
The Council considered the report setting out the recommendations of the 
Constitution Working Party for amendments to the Constitution.  The Deputy 
Leader, Councillor Sirajul Islam, thanked the Leaders of the opposition groups 
and other Councillors for their contribution to the work of the Working Party.    
 
Moved by Councillor Sirajul Islam, Seconded by Councillor Lutfur Rahman 
and  
 
RESOLVED 
 
1) That the proposed revisions to the Constitution as set out in the 

schedules attached (Appendix A and Appendix B) be agreed; and 
 
2) That the London Borough of Tower Hamlets Members’ Allowances 

Scheme be amended with effect from 21st May 2008 as follows: 
 

(i) Delete existing ‘Leader of the Opposition’ and ‘Deputy Leader of 
the Opposition’ Special Responsibility Allowances (SRAs) and 
introduce a new banded SRA payable to the Leader of each minority 
group which has at least 10% of the Council Members as follows: 
 

- Leader of group with over 6 Councillors:  £7320 pa; 
- Leader of group with up to 6 Councillors: £3960 pa 

 

Page 7



COUNCIL, 21/05/2008 SECTION ONE (UNRESTRICTED) 
 

6 

(ii) Increase Mayor’s Allowance to £8,069 (equivalent to a non-
executive Committee Chair). 

 
(iii) Increase maximum hourly rate payable under Child/Dependent 
Care Allowances from Minimum Wage (currently £5.35 per hour) to 
£7.00 per hour; and that this figure then be reviewed annually in line 
with the Local Government Staff Pay Settlement.   

 
10. REVIEW OF PROPORTIONALITY AND ESTABLISHMENT OF 

COMMITTEES/PANELS OF THE COUNCIL  
 
The Chief Executive tabled an addendum report which reviewed 
proportionality as required by sections 15-17 of the Local Government and 
Housing Act 1989 and which also set out the Committees and Panels to be 
established for the Municipal Year 2008/09. 
 
Moved by Councillor Lutfur Rahman and Seconded by Councillor Sirajul 
Islam and 
 
RESOLVED 
 
1) That the review of proportionality be noted;and 

 
2) That the Committees and Panels be established for the Municipal Year 

2008/09, and the proposed allocation of places be agreed as set out 
below. 

 
(a) Committees/panels covered by the requirement for proportionality: 
   

Committee 
 

Total Labour Conserv
-ative 

Respect Liberal 
Democrat 

Respect 
(Unity 

Coalit’n) 
Development 9 5 1 1 1 1 
Strategic Development 9 5 1 1 1 1 
General Purposes 7 4 1 1 1 - 
Human Resources 7 4 1 1 - 1 
Appeals 9 5 1 1 1 1 
Pensions  7 5 1 1 - - 
Audit  7 4 1 1 1 - 
Overview & Scrutiny 
(plus 5 co-optees)  

11 6 2 1 1 1 
Health Scrutiny Panel 7 4 1 1 1 - 
Licensing 15 8 3 2 1 1 

 
(b) Committee not covered by the requirement for proportionality: 
 

Committee 
 

Total Labour Conserv
-ative 

Respect Liberal 
Democrat 

Respect 
(Unity 

Coalit’n) 
Standards 
(plus 9 independent 
members) 

6 2 1 1 1 1 

Page 8



COUNCIL, 21/05/2008 SECTION ONE (UNRESTRICTED) 
 

7 

 
 

[Note: The Council did not make a direction as to any change to the 
arrangements for the provision of Political Advisor Posts.] 

 
11. APPOINTMENT TO COMMITTEES/PANELS OF THE COUNCIL  

 
The Chief Executive tabled a report which informed the Council of the 
nominations received from the political groups on the Council for membership 
of Committees/Panels of the Authority for the municipal year 2008/2009. 
 
Councillor Lutfur Rahman notified the meeting of an amendment to the 
nominations tabled – Councillor Fazlul Haque replacing Cllr Mohammed 
Shahid Ali as a Labour Group nomination to the Development Committee. 
 
Moved by Councillor Lutfur Rahman, Seconded by Councillor Sirajul Islam 
and 
 
RESOLVED  
 
1) That those Members and Deputies be appointed to the various bodies 

as set out in the attached amended schedule (Appendix C) for the 
Municipal Year 2008/2009;  

 
2) That the following Independent Members be re-appointed to the 

Standards Committee for the municipal year 2008/09: 
 
 Mr Satnam Bains; 
 Ms Suzette Barry; 
 Mr Patrick O’Connor (Chair); 
 Sister Christine Frost; and 
 Mr Muhammad Habibur Rahman 
 
3) That the following persons be appointed as new Independent Members 

of the Standards Committee, to serve until 20th May 2011 subject to 
confirmation on a yearly basis at the Annual Council Meeting: 

 
Mr Ibrahim Ali; and 
Mr Eric Pemberton 

 
12. APPOINTMENT OF REPRESENTATIVES TO LONDON COUNCILS 

FORUMS AND OTHER BODIES  
 
The meeting considered a report which requested the Council to make 
nominations nominations to a number of London Councils Member bodies.  
London Councils had requested the Council to submit its nominations by 1 
June 2008 which precluded consideration by the General Purposes 
Committee. 
 
The Chief Executive tabled an addendum report setting out the nominations 
received.  

Page 9



COUNCIL, 21/05/2008 SECTION ONE (UNRESTRICTED) 
 

8 

 
Moved by Councillor Lutfur Rahman and Seconded by Councillor Sirajul 
Islam:- 
 
That the Members and Deputies be nominated to the various bodies of 
London Councils as per the attached schedule (Appendix D).   
 
Moved as an amendment by Councillor Peter Golds and Seconded by 
Councillor Tim Archer:- 
 
That Councillors be nominated as follows to the bodies listed: 
 
Councillor Philip Briscoe to the Crime and Public Protection Forum; 
Councillor Oliur Rahman to the Greater London Employment Forum; 
Councillor Ahmed Hussain to the Black and Minority Ethnic Councillors’ 
Network; 
Councillor Dr Emma Jones to the Women Councillors’ Network; and 
Councillor Shirley Houghton to the London Irish Councillors’ Network. 
 
Councillor Oliur Rahman declined to stand for election to the Greater London 
Employment Forum. 
 
In relation to the Black and Minority Ethnic Councillors’ Network, the Women 
Councillors’ Network and the London Irish Councillors’ Network, the Service 
Head, Democratic Services advised that no vote was required as the 
networks in question were open to all Councillors who wished to participate 
and the names of the Councillors nominated would be submitted as 
requested.  
  
In relation to the Crime and Public Protection Forum the Mayor informed 
Members that as there were two competing nominations – Councillor Abdal 
Ullah and Councillor Philip Briscoe – in accordance with the Procedure Rules 
the Council would vote on each nomination in turn, in the order that they were 
made, until the position was filled. 
 
The nomination of Councillor Abdal Ullah was first put to the vote and was 
AGREED 
 
The Mayor then put the substantive motion to the vote and it was RESOLVED 
that the Members and Deputies be nominated to the various bodies of London 
Councils as per the attached schedule (Appendix D). 
 

 
 

The meeting ended at 8.53 p.m.  
 
 

Chair,  
Council 

 

Page 10



 

 

AP
PE

ND
IX 

A 
 SC

HE
DU

LE
 O

F P
RO

PO
SE

D 
AM

EN
DM

EN
TS

 TO
 TH

E C
ON

ST
ITU

TIO
N 

(i):
  S

UB
ST

AN
TIV

E I
SS

UE
S 

 Su
bje

ct 
 

Co
ns

titu
tio

n 
pa

rt/
pa

ge
 

 
Pr
op

os
ed

 ch
an

ge
 

Ra
tio

na
le/

co
mm

en
ts 

 
St
an

da
rd
s 

Co
mm

itte
e 

Ar
tic

le 
9, 

pa
ge

 24
 

an
d P

art
 3.

3.3
, 

pa
ge

 74
 

(i) 
Int

rod
uc

e f
ini
te 

ter
m 

of 
off

ice
 fo

r 
Ind

ep
en

de
nt 

Me
mb

ers
 of

 3 
ye

ars
.  

Me
mb

ers
 to

 re
tire

 on
 a 

rol
lin

g b
as

is 
an

d m
ay

 ap
ply

 fo
r fu

rth
er 

ter
m(

s) 
 

  
(ii)

 
Inc

rea
se

 in
 m

em
be

rsh
ip 

of 
Sta

nd
ard

s 
Co

mm
itte

e t
o 1

5 m
em

be
rs 

(as
 ag

ree
d 

by
 C

ou
nc

il o
n 2

8th
 N

ov
em

be
r 2

00
7) 

to 
co

mp
ris

e o
f 6

 C
ou

nc
illo

rs 
(2 

Ma
jor

ity
 

Gr
ou

p, 
1 f

rom
 ea

ch
 of

 th
e o

the
r 

po
litic

al 
gro

up
s o

n t
he

 C
ou

nc
il) 

an
d 9

 
Ind

ep
en

de
nt 

Me
mb

ers
.   

 (iii
) 

Ad
d t

erm
s o

f re
fer

en
ce

, m
em

be
rsh

ip 
an

d s
ub

sti
tut

ion
 de

tai
ls 

for
 ne

w 
Re

fer
ral

s a
nd

 Ap
pe

als
 Su

b-
Co

mm
itte

es
; a

nd
 up

da
te 

tho
se

 fo
r 

He
ari

ng
s S

ub
-C

om
mi

tte
e 

(es
tab

lish
ed

 Ju
ly 

20
06

).  
 U

pd
ate

 
arr

an
ge

me
nts

 fo
r c

o-o
pte

es
 

all
ow

an
ce

s t
o a

pp
ly 

to 
su

b-
co

mm
itte

es
. 

 (iv
) 

9.0
3 –

 Am
en

d ‘
to 

rec
eiv

e r
ep

ort
s o

n 
au

dit
 in

ve
sti

ga
tio

ns
’ to

 re
ad

 ‘to
 

rec
eiv

e r
ep

ort
s o

n a
ny

 et
hic

al 
iss

ue
s 

ari
sin

g f
rom

 au
dit

 in
ve

sti
ga

tio
ns

’.  
 

   

(i) 
To

 re
fle

ct 
be

st 
pra

cti
ce

, e
ns

ure
 tu

rno
ve

r 
an

d t
o e

na
ble

 ne
w 

me
mb

ers
 to

 jo
in 

the
 

co
mm

itte
e (

ter
m 

of 
off

ice
 is

 cu
rre

ntl
y 

ind
efi

nit
e, 

su
bje

ct 
to 

for
ma

l a
pp

oin
tm

en
t a

t 
An

nu
al 

Co
un

cil)
. 

 
(ii)

 
To

 fa
cili

tat
e n

ew
 ar

ran
ge

me
nts

 fo
r lo

ca
l 

ref
err

al 
of 

co
mp

lai
nts

, in
clu

din
g 

es
tab

lish
me

nt 
of 

ne
ce

ss
ary

 su
b-

co
mm

itte
es

. 
    (iii

) 
To

 fa
cili

tat
e n

ew
 ar

ran
ge

me
nts

 fo
r lo

ca
l 

ref
err

al 
an

d c
on

sid
era

tio
n o

f c
om

pla
int

s r
e: 

Co
un

cill
or 

co
nd

uc
t. 

       (iv
) 

Ne
w 

Au
dit

 C
om

mi
tte

e i
s n

ow
 th

e m
ain

 
rep

ort
ing

 ro
ute

 fo
r a

ud
it r

ep
ort

s, 
bu

t 
Sta

nd
ard

s C
om

mi
tte

e r
eta

ins
 ov

ers
igh

t o
f 

eth
ica

l is
su

es
.   

Page 11



 

 

Su
bje

ct 
 

Co
ns

titu
tio

n 
pa

rt/
pa

ge
 

 
Pr
op

os
ed

 ch
an

ge
 

Ra
tio

na
le/

co
mm

en
ts 

 
De

leg
ati

on
 of

 
Fu

nc
tio

ns
 

Pa
rt 3

.1.
1 (

Co
un

cil 
fun

cti
on

s),
 pa

ge
s 

54
/55

 
De

leg
ati

on
 to

 th
e C

hie
f E

xe
cu

tiv
e o

f c
ert

ain
 

ne
w 

an
d a

me
nd

ed
 fu

nc
tio

ns
 ar

isin
g f

rom
 th

e 
Lo

ca
l G

ov
ern

me
nt 

an
d P

ub
lic 

Inv
olv

em
en

t in
 

He
alt

h A
ct 

20
07

:   
 (i) 

Fu
nc

tio
ns

 re
lat

ing
 to

 el
ec

tor
al 

arr
an

ge
me

nts
 an

d t
he

 na
me

 of
 

ele
cto

ral
 ar

ea
s (

Pa
rt 3

.1.
1.4

); 
 (ii)

 
Fu

nc
tio

ns
 re

lat
ing

 to
 ch

an
gin

g 
go

ve
rna

nc
e/e

xe
cu

tiv
e a

rra
ng

em
en

ts 
(ne

w 
Pa

rt 3
.1.

1.6
);  

 (iii
) 

Fu
nc

tio
ns

 re
lat

ing
 to

 co
mm

un
ity

 
go

ve
rna

nc
e/e

sta
bli

sh
me

nt 
of 

pa
ris

he
s 

(ne
w 

Pa
rt 3

.1.
1.7

) 
   

Im
ple

me
nta

tio
n o

f n
ew

 st
atu

tor
y p

rov
isio

ns
 an

d f
or 

the
 ef

fic
ien

t c
on

du
ct 

of 
bu

sin
es

s. 

Fil
lin

g o
f c

as
ua

l 
va
ca

nc
ies

 on
 

Ca
bin

et,
 

co
mm

itte
es
, 

ou
tsi

de
 bo

die
s 

etc
 

 

Pa
rt 3

.3.
6 (

Ge
ne

ral
 

Pu
rpo

se
s 

Co
mm

itte
e),

 pa
ge

 
78

 

(i) 
Ap

po
int

me
nt 

of 
Ca

bin
et 

Me
mb

er 
in 

the
 ca

se
 of

 a 
ca

su
al 

va
ca

nc
y -

 to
 

pro
vid

e f
or 

int
eri

m 
ap

po
int

me
nt 

by
 th

e 
Le

ad
er.

 
 (ii)

 
De

leg
ati

on
 to

 As
sis

tan
t C

hie
f 

Ex
ec

uti
ve

 (o
n n

om
ina

tio
n f

rom
 a 

Gr
ou

p) 
to 

ap
po

int
 to

 a 
ca

su
al 

va
ca

nc
y 

on
 a 

co
mm

itte
e o

r o
uts

ide
 bo

dy
 

wh
ere

 th
e p

os
itio

n h
as

 pr
ev

iou
sly

 
be

en
 al

loc
ate

d b
y t

he
 C

ou
nc

il t
o t

ha
t 

Gr
ou

p. 
  

(i) 
To

 im
pro

ve
 ef

fic
ien

cy
 an

d a
vo

id 
Ex

tra
ord

ina
ry 

Co
un

cil 
or 

Ge
ne

ral
 Pu

rpo
se

s 
Co

mm
itte

e m
ee

tin
gs

. 
  (ii)

 
As

 ab
ov

e 
 

Bu
dg

et 
Co

un
cil

 
Me

eti
ng

 
  

Pa
rt 4

.1 
(C

ou
nc

il 
Pr

oc
ed

ure
 R

ule
s):

  
pro

po
se

d n
ew

 R
ule

 
2A

, p
ag

e 1
07

 

Ne
w 

pro
ce

du
re 

rul
es

 fo
r d

ed
ica

ted
 Bu

dg
et 

Co
un

cil 
Me

eti
ng

.   
Ag

ree
d b

y t
he

 C
ou

nc
il o

n 1
1th

 Fe
bru

ary
 20

08
 – 

pro
ce

du
re 

rul
es

 fo
r a

dd
itio

na
l d

ed
ica

ted
 Bu

dg
et 

Me
eti

ng
 in

 la
te 

Fe
bru

ary
/ea

rly
 M

arc
h e

ac
h y

ea
r. 

Page 12



 

 

Su
bje

ct 
 

Co
ns

titu
tio

n 
pa

rt/
pa

ge
 

 
Pr
op

os
ed

 ch
an

ge
 

Ra
tio

na
le/

co
mm

en
ts 

 
Co

un
cil

 
Me

eti
ng

 – 
Pu

bli
c 

Qu
es

tio
ns

 

Pa
rt 4

.1 
(C

ou
nc

il 
Pr

oc
ed

ure
 R

ule
s):

  
Ru

le 
11

, p
ag

e 1
11

 
(i) 

Int
rod

uc
e m

ax
im

um
 le

ng
th 

for
 w

ritt
en

 
pu

bli
c q

ue
sti

on
s o

f 1
50

 w
ord

s. 
   (ii)

 
Int

rod
uc

e t
im

e l
im

it o
f 3

 m
inu

tes
 fo

r 
the

 or
al 

pre
se

nta
tio

n o
f e

ac
h p

ub
lic 

qu
es

tio
n. 

 

(i) 
Fo

r c
lar

ity
 an

d t
he

 ef
fic

ien
t c

on
du

ct 
of 

bu
sin

es
s. 

 O
ffic

ers
 w

ill p
rov

ide
 as

sis
tan

ce
 

to 
qu

es
tio

ne
rs 

as
 ne

ce
ss

ary
. 

 (ii)
 

As
 ab

ov
e. 

 

Pu
bli

c 
rep

res
en

tat
ion

s 
to 

Co
un

cil
/ 

Co
mm

itte
e  

Pa
rt 4

.1 
(C

ou
nc

il 
Pr

oc
ed

ure
 R

ule
s):

  
Ru

les
 11

.7 
(pa

ge
 

11
2),

 19
.4 

(pa
ge

 
12

3) 
an

d 2
0.5

 
(pa

ge
 12

4) 
 Pa

rt 4
.8 

(D
ev

elo
pm

en
t 

Pr
oc

ed
ure

 R
ule

s),
 

pa
ge

 17
5 

 

Tim
e l

im
its

 fo
r p

ub
lic 

rep
res

en
tat

ion
s t

o a
llo

w 
for

 ad
dit

ion
al 

tim
e i

f a
n i

nte
rpr

ete
r is

 us
ed

 
(in

ter
pre

ter
 to

 be
 m

ad
e a

wa
re 

tha
t th

ey
 m

us
t 

no
t u

se
 th

e a
dd

itio
na

l ti
me

 to
 in

tro
du

ce
 ne

w 
inf

orm
ati

on
). 

To
 en

su
re 

fai
rne

ss
.   

 

Ex
tra

or
din

ary
 

Co
un

cil
 

Me
eti

ng
s  

Pa
rt 4

.1 
(C

ou
nc

il 
Pr

oc
ed

ure
 R

ule
s),

 
pa

ge
s 1

13
 an

d 1
23

 
(i) 

Ru
le 

12
.2 

– Q
ue

sti
on

s a
t 

Ex
tra

ord
ina

ry 
Co

un
cil 

Me
eti

ng
 m

us
t 

rel
ate

 to
 a 

ma
tte

r o
n t

ha
t a

ge
nd

a 
 (ii)

 
Ru

le 
12

.3 
– a

dd
 (c

) ‘a
t a

n 
Ex

tra
ord

ina
ry 

Co
un

cil 
Me

eti
ng

 no
tic

e 
in 

wr
itin

g h
as

 be
en

 gi
ve

n b
y 1

2 n
oo

n 
at 

lea
st 

2 c
lea

r d
ay

s b
efo

re 
the

 
me

eti
ng

 to
 th

e A
ss

ist
an

t C
hie

f 
Ex

ec
uti

ve
’ 

 (iii
) 

Ru
le 

20
.1 

– i
ns

ert
 ‘o

rdi
na

ry’
 be

tw
ee

n 
‘an

y’ 
an

d ‘
me

eti
ng

’ in
 lin

e 1
 

  

(i) 
– (

iii)
 To

 cl
ari

fy 
wh

at 
ma

y b
e c

on
sid

ere
d a

t a
n 

Ex
tra

ord
ina

ry 
Co

un
cil 

Me
eti

ng
 an

d t
o e

na
ble

 a 
lat

er 
de

ad
lin

e f
or 

qu
es

tio
ns

 in
 th

e e
ve

nt 
tha

t a
 m

ee
tin

g 
is 

req
uir

ed
 at

 sh
ort

 no
tic

e. 
 

Page 13



 

 

Su
bje

ct 
 

Co
ns

titu
tio

n 
pa

rt/
pa

ge
 

 
Pr
op

os
ed

 ch
an

ge
 

Ra
tio

na
le/

co
mm

en
ts 

 
Co

un
cil

 
Me

eti
ng

 – 
Mo

tio
ns

 
 

Pa
rt 4

.1 
(C

ou
nc

il 
Pr

oc
ed

ure
 R

ule
s):

  
Ru

le 
13

.2,
 pa

ge
 

11
5 

De
let

e t
he

 re
qu

ire
me

nt 
tha

t M
oti

on
s a

re 
inc

lud
ed

 on
 th

e C
ou

nc
il a

ge
nd

a i
n t

he
 or

de
r 

in 
wh

ich
 no

tic
e i

s g
ive

n. 
  

 Co
ns

titu
tio

n t
o b

e s
ile

nt 
on

 th
e o

rde
r o

f 
mo

tio
ns

 an
d a

 ne
w 

pro
toc

ol 
to 

pro
vid

e t
ha

t 
mo

tio
ns

 w
ill b

e l
ist

ed
 by

 tu
rns

 on
e f

rom
 ea

ch
 

gro
up

, c
on

tin
uin

g u
nti

l a
ll m

oti
on

s a
re 

inc
lud

ed
.  T

he
 ro

tat
ion

 to
 st

art
 w

ith
 an

y 
gro

up
(s)

 no
t re

ac
he

d a
t th

e p
rev

iou
s 

me
eti

ng
. 

 

To
 en

su
re 

fai
rne

ss
, p

rom
ote

 pr
ior

itis
ati

on
 an

d t
o 

av
oid

 th
e r

us
h t

o s
ub

mi
t m

oti
on

s f
ar 

in 
ad

va
nc

e. 

Co
un

cil
 

Me
eti

ng
 – 

Ru
les

 
of 

de
ba

te 
 

Pa
rt 4

.1 
(C

ou
nc

il 
Pr

oc
ed

ure
 R

ule
s),

 
pa

ge
 11

7 
  

Ru
le 

15
.4 

– D
ele

te 
‘op

po
se

r’ i
n l

ine
 4.

 
Th

e p
roc

ed
ure

 ru
le 

pro
vid

es
 th

at 
the

 op
po

se
r o

f a
 

mo
tio

n m
ay

 sp
ea

k f
or 

up
 to

 4 
mi

nu
tes

.  H
ow

ev
er,

 
the

 de
fin

itio
n o

f ‘o
pp

os
er’

 is
 no

t c
lea

r. 

Pe
titi

on
s &

 
De

pu
tat

ion
s 

 
Pa

rt 4
.1 

(C
ou

nc
il 

Pr
oc

ed
ure

 R
ule

s),
 

Ru
le 

19
.1,

 pa
ge

 
12

2 
  Ru

le 
19

.3,
 pa

ge
 

12
2 a

nd
 R

ule
 20

.2,
 

pa
ge

 12
3  

(i) 
Re

qu
ire

 pe
titi

on
er 

to 
be

 on
 th

e 
ele

cto
ral

 re
gis

ter
 (a

s c
urr

en
tly

) b
ut 

ad
d ‘

un
les

s e
xc

lud
ed

 fro
m 

the
 

reg
ist

er 
by

 re
as

on
 of

 ag
e o

r o
the

r 
va

lid
 re

as
on

’ 
 (ii)

 
Pe

titi
on

/D
ep

uta
tio

n t
o b

e d
isa

llo
we

d 
wh

ere
 th

ere
 ha

s b
ee

n e
ith

er 
a p

eti
tio

n 
or 

a d
ep

uta
tio

n s
ub

sta
nti

all
y t

he
 sa

me
 

in 
the

 pr
ev

iou
s 6

 m
on

ths
.  

  

(i) 
To

 av
oid

 un
ne

ce
ss

ary
 ex

clu
sio

n o
f 

pe
titi

on
ers

 an
d i

n p
art

icu
lar

 to
 en

ab
le 

yo
un

g 
pe

rso
ns

’ p
eti

tio
n 

   (ii)
 

To
 av

oid
 re

pe
ate

d p
eti

tio
ns

/de
pu

tat
ion

s o
n 

the
 sa

me
 m

att
er 

an
d t

o o
pe

n u
p a

cc
es

s f
or 

oth
er 

pe
rso

ns
 an

d i
ss

ue
s. 

 

Ov
erv

iew
 an

d 
Sc

ru
tin

y 
Pa

rt 4
.5 

(O
ve

rvi
ew

 
& S

cru
tin

y 
Pr

oc
ed

ure
 R

ule
s),

 
pa

ge
 15

6. 
 R

ule
 

1.4
, p

ag
e 1

57
 (&

 
Ar

tic
le 

6.0
4) 

Cla
rify

 th
at 

de
pu

tat
ion

s t
o O

&S
 C

om
mi

tte
e 

mu
st 

rel
ate

 to
 an

 ite
m 

for
 de

cis
ion

 at
 th

e 
me

eti
ng

 – 
i.e

. n
ot 

a C
ab

ine
t a

ge
nd

a i
tem

 
wh

ich
 is

 lis
ted

 fo
r ‘C

ab
ine

t a
ge

nd
a p

re-
de

cis
ion

 sc
rut

iny
’ b

ut 
is 

no
t o

the
rw

ise
 

inc
lud

ed
 on

 th
e O

&S
 C

om
mi

tte
e a

ge
nd

a. 
  

Fo
r th

e a
vo

ida
nc

e o
f d

ou
bt.

 
    

Page 14



 

 

Su
bje

ct 
 

Co
ns

titu
tio

n 
pa

rt/
pa

ge
 

 
Pr
op

os
ed

 ch
an

ge
 

Ra
tio

na
le/

co
mm

en
ts 

 
Me

mb
ers

’ 
Al
low

an
ce

s 
Pa

rt 6
 (M

em
be

rs’
 

All
ow

an
ce

s 
Sc

he
me

), p
ag

e 2
62

 
(i) 

De
let

e e
xis

tin
g ‘

Le
ad

er 
of 

the
 

Op
po

sit
ion

’ a
nd

 ‘D
ep

uty
 Le

ad
er 

of 
the

 
Op

po
sit

ion
’ S

pe
cia

l R
es

po
ns

ibi
lity

 
All

ow
an

ce
s (

SR
As

) a
nd

 in
tro

du
ce

 a 
ne

w 
ba

nd
ed

 SR
A p

ay
ab

le 
to 

the
 

Le
ad

er 
of 

ea
ch

 m
ino

rity
 gr

ou
p w

hic
h 

ha
s a

t le
as

t 1
0%

 of
 th

e C
ou

nc
il 

Me
mb

ers
 as

 fo
llo

ws
: 

 
- 

Le
ad

er 
of 

gro
up

 w
ith

 ov
er 

6 C
llrs

:  £
73

20
 pa

; 
- 

Le
ad

er 
of 

gro
up

 w
ith

 up
 to

 
6 C

llrs
: £

39
60

 pa
 

 (ii)
 

Inc
rea

se
 M

ay
or’

s A
llo

wa
nc

e t
o 

£8
,06

9 (
eq

uiv
ale

nt 
to 

a n
on

-ex
ec

uti
ve

 
Co

mm
itte

e C
ha

ir).
 

 (iii
) 

Inc
rea

se
 m

ax
im

um
 ho

url
y r

ate
 

pa
ya

ble
 un

de
r C

hil
d/D

ep
en

de
nt 

Ca
re 

All
ow

an
ce

s f
rom

 M
ini

mu
m 

W
ag

e 
(cu

rre
ntl

y £
5.3

5 p
er 

ho
ur)

 to
 £7

.00
 

pe
r h

ou
r; a

nd
 th

at 
thi

s f
igu

re 
the

n b
e 

rev
iew

ed
 an

nu
all

y i
n l

ine
 w

ith
 th

e 
Lo

ca
l G

ov
ern

me
nt 

Sta
ff P

ay
 

Se
ttle

me
nt.

   
 

(i) 
To

 re
fle

ct 
the

 ch
an

ge
 to

 a 
mu

lti-
pa

rty
 

en
vir

on
me

nt 
an

d t
he

 de
ma

nd
s o

f th
e p

os
t 

of 
gro

up
 le

ad
er.

 
           (ii)

 
To

 re
fle

ct 
mo

re 
ful

ly 
the

 de
ma

nd
s o

f th
e 

po
st.

 
  (iii

) 
To

 re
fle

ct 
mo

re 
ad

eq
ua

tel
y t

he
 tru

e c
os

t o
f 

ca
re,

 in
 lin

e w
ith

 ty
pic

al 
ma

xim
um

 
ch

ild
mi

nd
er 

rat
es

 fo
r s

ho
rt-t

erm
 ca

re 
as

 
rep

ort
ed

 in
 th

e C
hil

dre
n’s

 In
for

ma
tio

n 
Se

rvi
ce

 Q
ua

rte
rly

 R
ep

ort
 Ja

nu
ary

 – 
Ma

rch
 

20
08

.   
 

  

 

Page 15



 

 

AP
PE

ND
IX 

B 
 SC

HE
DU

LE
 O

F P
RO

PO
SE

D 
AM

EN
DM

EN
TS

 TO
 TH

E C
ON

ST
ITU

TIO
N 

(ii)
:  M

IN
OR

 C
HA

NG
ES

/U
PD

AT
ES

/C
OR

RE
CT

IO
NS

 
 Su

bje
ct 

 
Co

ns
titu

tio
n 

pa
rt/
pa

ge
 

 
Pr
op

os
ed

 ch
an

ge
 

Ra
tio

na
le/

co
mm

en
t 

 
Ge

ne
ral

 
Th

rou
gh

ou
t 

Up
da

te 
Ca

bin
et 

Po
rtfo

lio
s (

inc
 Ar

tic
le 

7.0
5),

 
Co

mm
itte

e, 
de

pa
rtm

en
tal

 (in
c P

art
 7)

 an
d 

po
st 

titl
es

 (in
c A

rtic
le 

12
) 

 

To
 re

fle
ct 

cu
rre

nt 
po

rtfo
lio

s a
nd

 ne
w 

str
uc

tur
e 

 

De
ad

lin
es

/ ti
me

 
lim

its
 

 
Th

rou
gh

ou
t 

All
 en

trie
s r

e: 
de

ad
lin

es
 (in

c. 
Co

un
cil 

Qu
es

tio
ns

, M
oti

on
s, 

Pe
titi

on
s/D

ep
uta

tio
ns

, 
pu

bli
ca

tio
n o

f a
ge

nd
a e

tc)
 to

 m
ak

e c
lea

r 
the

se
 ar

e c
alc

ula
ted

 by
 re

fer
en

ce
 to

 cl
ea

r 
wo

rki
ng

 da
ys

, n
ot 

inc
lud

ing
 th

e d
ay

 of
 

de
sp

atc
h/r

ec
eip

t o
r d

ay
 of

 th
e m

ee
tin

g. 
 

Fo
r th

e a
vo

ida
nc

e o
f d

ou
bt 

 

Bu
dg

et 
& 
Po

lic
y 

Fr
am

ew
or
k 

Ar
tic

le 
4, 

Pa
ra 

4.0
1 

(pa
ge

 14
) 

(i) 
Up

da
te 

list
 of

 pl
an

s a
nd

 st
rat

eg
ies

 to
 

ref
lec

t re
gu

lat
ion

s: 
  

 
- 

De
let

e C
om

mu
nit

y S
tra

teg
y a

nd
 

Lo
ca

l D
ev

elo
pm

en
t S

ch
em

e; 
 

 - 
Ad

d S
us

tai
na

ble
 C

om
mu

nit
y 

Str
ate

gy
, L

oc
al 

Ar
ea

 Ag
ree

me
nt,

 
De

ve
lop

me
nt 

Pla
n D

oc
um

en
ts,

 
De

ve
lop

me
nt 

Pla
n S

ec
tio

n 2
7 

T&
CP

A 1
99

0 a
nd

 An
nu

al 
Lib

rar
y 

Pla
n. 

 
 (ii)

 
Ad

d L
ice

ns
ing

 Po
licy

 to
 lis

t o
f p

lan
s &

 
str

ate
gie

s t
ha

t C
ou

nc
il m

us
t a

do
pt 

 

(i) 
Up

da
te 

            (ii)
 

Co
rre

cti
on

 of
 ty

po
gra

ph
ica

l e
rro

r 
  

Ov
erv

iew
 &
 

Sc
ru
tin

y 
Co

mm
itte

e 
Ar

tic
le 

6.0
1 (

pa
ge

 
18

) a
nd

 Pa
rt 3

.3.
2 

(pa
ge

 74
) 

 

Ad
d t

o t
erm

s o
f re

fer
en

ce
 ‘T

o d
isc

ha
rge

 th
e 

fun
cti

on
s c

on
fer

red
 by

 th
e P

oli
ce

 an
d J

us
tic

e 
Ac

t 2
00

6 a
s t

he
 C

ou
nc

il’s
 C

rim
e &

 D
iso

rde
r 

Co
mm

itte
e’ 

Cla
rifi

ca
tio

n 
   

Page 16



 

 

Su
bje

ct 
 

Co
ns

titu
tio

n 
pa

rt/
pa

ge
 

 
Pr
op

os
ed

 ch
an

ge
 

Ra
tio

na
le/

co
mm

en
t 

 
 Pa

rt 3
.3.

2 (
pa

ge
 

74
) a

nd
 Pa

rt 4
.5,

 
Ru

le 
1.3

 (p
ag

e 
15

7) 
 

 Ov
erv

iew
 an

d S
cru

tin
y C

om
mi

tte
e t

o 
co

mp
ris

e o
f 1

1 C
ou

nc
illo

rs 
an

d 5
 co

-op
ted

 
me

mb
ers

  

 Up
da

te 
 

St
an

da
rd
s 

Co
mm

itte
e  

Ar
tic

le 
9 (

pa
ge

 24
) 

an
d P

art
 3.

3.3
 

(pa
ge

 74
) 

(i) 
9.0

2 -
 Am

en
d ‘

tw
o C

ou
nc

illo
rs 

to 
rea

d 
‘six

 co
un

cill
ors

’ a
nd

 ‘fi
ve

 su
ita

ble
 

pe
rso

ns
’ to

 re
ad

 ‘n
ine

 su
ita

ble
 

pe
rso

ns
’ 

 (ii)
 

9.0
3 –

 Ad
d ‘

to 
rec

eiv
e r

ep
ort

s o
n 

co
mp

lai
nts

’ to
 te

rm
s o

f re
fer

en
ce

 
 (iii

) 
Ins

ert
 re

qu
ire

me
nt 

for
 Vi

ce
-C

ha
ir t

o 
be

 in
de

pe
nd

en
t m

em
be

r 
 

(i) 
Co

rre
cti

on
/up

da
te 

to 
ref

lec
t e

nla
rge

d 
co

mm
itte

e. 
   

   (ii)
 

Up
da

te 
(am

en
dm

en
t a

gre
ed

 M
arc

h 2
00

7) 
  (iii

) 
To

 co
dif

y c
urr

en
t p

rac
tic

e  
 

Ge
ne

ral
 

Pu
rp
os

es
 

Co
mm

itte
e 

Ar
tic

le 
15

 (p
ag

e 3
6) 

an
d P

art
 3.

3.6
 

(pa
ge

 78
) 

Am
en

d T
erm

s o
f re

fer
en

ce
: 

 (i) 
Ar

tic
le 

15
.01

 pa
ra 

(b)
 (5

) (P
ow

er 
for

 
Mo

nit
ori

ng
 O

ffic
er 

to 
rev

ise
 

Co
ns

titu
tio

n t
o r

efl
ec

t C
ou

nc
il 

de
cis

ion
, m

att
ers

 of
 fa

ct 
or 

leg
isla

tio
n) 

to 
be

co
me

 ne
w 

pa
ra 

(c)
  

 
(ii)

 
Ap

po
int

me
nt 

of 
LA

 Sc
ho

ol 
Go

ve
rno

rs 
– i

ns
ert

 ‘in
 ca

se
 of

 co
mp

eti
ng

 
no

mi
na

tio
ns

 or
 w

he
re 

off
ice

r 
de

leg
ati

on
s c

an
no

t b
e e

xe
rci

se
d’ 

  

  (i) 
Ty

po
gra

ph
ica

l c
orr

ec
tio

n 
     (ii)

 
Cla

rifi
ca

tio
n f

oll
ow

ing
 M

arc
h 2

00
7 

de
leg

ati
on

 to
 of

fic
ers

 of
 un

co
nte

ste
d 

ap
po

int
me

nts
. 

Su
sp

en
sio

n o
f 

Pr
oc

ed
ur
e 

Ru
les

 
 

Ar
tic

le 
16

.01
 (p

ag
e 

37
) a

nd
 Pa

rt 4
.1,

 
Ru

le 
27

.1.
2 (

pa
ge

 
12

5) 
 

Su
sp

en
sio

n n
ot 

to 
be

 m
ov

ed
 w

ith
ou

t n
oti

ce
 

un
les

s a
t le

as
t o

ne
 ha

lf o
f th

e v
oti

ng
 

me
mb

ers
 of

 th
e m

ee
tin

g i
n q

ue
sti

on
 ar

e 
pre

se
nt.

 
 

Cla
rifi

ca
tio

n t
ha

t re
qu

ire
me

nt 
for

 50
% 

att
en

da
nc

e 
ap

pli
es

 to
 al

l v
oti

ng
 m

em
be

rs,
 no

t ju
st 

Co
un

cill
ors

.   
 

Page 17



 

 

Su
bje

ct 
 

Co
ns

titu
tio

n 
pa

rt/
pa

ge
 

 
Pr
op

os
ed

 ch
an

ge
 

Ra
tio

na
le/

co
mm

en
t 

 
Co

un
cil

 
Fu

nc
tio

ns
 

Pa
rt 3

.1 
(pa

ge
 39

) 
Am

en
d a

s a
gre

ed
 at

 G
P C

om
mi

tte
e i

n J
un

e 
20

07
 (d

ele
ga

tio
n o

f p
ow

ers
 pu

rsu
an

t to
 

am
en

dm
en

ts 
to 

fun
cti

on
s r

eg
ula

tio
ns

 – 
 

en
for

ce
me

nt 
un

de
r th

e G
am

bli
ng

 Ac
t 2

00
5; 

de
ter

mi
na

tio
n o

f fe
es

 fo
r p

rem
ise

s l
ice

ns
es

; 
an

d e
nfo

rce
me

nt 
of 

the
 pr

oh
ibi

tio
n o

f 
sm

ok
ing

 in
 pu

bli
c p

lac
es

) a
nd

 O
cto

be
r 2

00
7 

(G
am

bli
ng

 Ac
t 2

00
5; 

list
ed

 bu
ild

ing
s a

nd
 

co
ns

erv
ati

on
 ar

ea
s; 

ele
cti

on
s; 

an
d s

mo
ke

-
fre

e p
rem

ise
s) 

 

Up
da

te 
 

Lo
ca

l C
ho

ice
 

Fu
nc

tio
ns

 
Pa

rt 3
.2.

2 (
pa

ge
 

71
) 

Am
en

dm
en

ts 
to 

ref
lec

t th
e r

eq
uir

em
en

ts 
of 

the
 Lo

ca
l G

ov
ern

me
nt 

an
d P

ub
lic 

Inv
olv

em
en

t in
 H

ea
lth

 Ac
t 2

00
7 (

‘th
e 2

00
7 

Ac
t) –

 de
let

e ‘
co

nd
uc

tin
g b

es
t v

alu
e r

ev
iew

s’ 
fro

m 
list

 of
 lo

ca
l c

ho
ice

 fu
nc

tio
ns

; a
dd

 ’2
2 

fun
cti

on
s u

nd
er 

se
cti

on
s 1

06
, 1

10
, 1

11
 an

d 
11

3 o
f th

e 2
00

7 A
ct 

rel
ati

ng
 to

 lo
ca

l a
rea

 
ag

ree
me

nts
’. 

   

Sta
tut

ory
 re

qu
ire

me
nt 

Au
dit

 
Co

mm
itte

e 
Ne

w 
se

cti
on

 w
ith

in 
Pa

rt 3
.3 

(pa
ge

 73
)  

Ad
d t

erm
s o

f re
fer

en
ce

 an
d d

eta
ils 

of 
ne

w 
 

Au
dit

 C
om

mi
tte

e e
sta

bli
sh

ed
 by

 th
e C

ou
nc

il 
on

 11
th
 Fe

bru
ary

 20
08

) 
 

Up
da

te 
 

Co
mm

itte
es
/ 

Su
b-

Co
mm

itte
es

 
Pa

rt 3
.3.

17
 (p

ag
e 

84
) 

 Ne
w 

se
cti

on
 w

ith
in 

Pa
rt 3

.3 
(pa

ge
 73

) 
 Pa

rt 3
.3 

(pa
ge

 73
) 

an
d t

hro
ug

ho
ut 

 

(i) 
De

let
e r

efe
ren

ce
 to

 Sc
ho

ol 
Or

ga
nis

ati
on

 C
om

mi
tte

e 
 (ii)

 
En

su
re 

inf
orm

ati
on

 on
 qu

oru
ms

 is
 

co
rre

ct 
& c

on
sis

ten
t.  

Su
bje

ct 
to 

an
y 

sta
tut

ory
 re

qu
ire

me
nt 

or 
sp

ec
ific

 
pro

vis
ion

 re
lat

ing
 to

 a 
pa

rtic
ula

r b
od

y, 
the

 qu
oru

m 
is 

on
e q

ua
rte

r o
f th

e 
wh

ole
 m

em
be

rsh
ip 

or 
thr

ee
 vo

tin
g 

me
mb

ers
, w

hic
he

ve
r is

 gr
ea

ter
.   

 

(i) 
Co

mm
itte

e n
ow

 ab
oli

sh
ed

 
  (ii)

 
Co

rre
cti

on
/co

ns
ist

en
cy

 

Page 18



 

 

Su
bje

ct 
 

Co
ns

titu
tio

n 
pa

rt/
pa

ge
 

 
Pr
op

os
ed

 ch
an

ge
 

Ra
tio

na
le/

co
mm

en
t 

 
Lic

en
sin

g 
Co

mm
itte

e 
 

Pa
rt 3

.3.
7 (

pa
ge

 
79

) 
De

let
e r

efe
ren

ce
 to

 Su
bs

titu
tes

 in
 he

ad
ing

 
Su

bs
titu

tes
 ar

e n
ot 

pe
rm

itte
d o

n L
ice

ns
ing

 
Co

mm
itte

e  
Pe

ns
ion

s 
Co

mm
itte

e 
Pa

rt 3
.3.

10
 (p

ag
e 

81
) 

Am
en

d t
itle

 an
d t

erm
s o

f re
fer

en
ce

 fo
llo

win
g 

es
tab

lish
me

nt 
of 

se
pa

rat
e A

ud
it C

om
mi

tte
e, 

as
 ag

ree
d b

y C
ou

nc
il o

n 1
1th

 Fe
bru

ary
 20

08
. 

 

Up
da

te 
 

Pr
og

ram
me

 of
 

Me
eti

ng
s  

Pa
rt 4

.1,
 R

ule
 2.

1 
(pa

ge
 10

6) 
 

Am
en

d 1
st
 se

nte
nc

e t
o r

ea
d ‘

Or
din

ary
 

me
eti

ng
s o

f th
e C

ou
nc

il w
ill t

ak
e p

lac
e i

n 
ac

co
rda

nc
e w

ith
 a 

pro
gra

mm
e d

ec
ide

d b
y 

the
 C

ou
nc

il a
t o

r b
efo

re 
the

 An
nu

al 
Me

eti
ng

’ 
 

To
 en

ab
le 

the
 pr

og
ram

me
 of

 m
ee

tin
gs

 to
 be

 
ag

ree
d i

n a
dv

an
ce

 of
 th

e A
nn

ua
l M

ee
tin

g t
o 

fac
ilita

te 
ad

va
nc

e p
lan

nin
g. 

Su
bs

titu
tes

 
Pa

rt 4
.1,

 R
ule

 4.
2 

(pa
ge

 10
8) 

Cla
rify

 w
ord

ing
 – 

up
 to

 th
ree

 su
bs

titu
te 

me
mb

ers
 m

ay
 be

 no
mi

na
ted

 by
 th

e r
ele

va
nt 

po
litic

al 
gro

up
 fo

r e
ac

h a
pp

oin
ted

 m
em

be
r o

f 
a C

om
mi

tte
e, 

Su
b-C

om
mi

tte
e o

r P
an

el.
 

 

Fo
r th

e a
vo

ida
nc

e o
f d

ou
bt 

 

Lic
en

sin
g s

ub
-

co
mm

itte
e 

Pa
rt 4

.1,
 R

ule
 8.

2 
(pa

ge
 11

0) 
Ins

ert
 ‘a

n a
dd

itio
na

l’ b
efo

re 
’30

 m
inu

tes
’ in

 
fin

al 
lin

e. 
 Al

so
 ad

d ‘
su

b-‘
 be

for
e ‘

co
mm

itte
e’ 

in 
se

co
nd

 lin
e. 

 

Fo
r th

e a
vo

ida
nc

e o
f d

ou
bt.

 W
he

re 
ne

ce
ss

ary
 to

 
ac

hie
ve

 a 
qu

oru
m,

 an
d s

ub
jec

t to
 ag

ree
me

nt 
of 

the
 

leg
al 

ad
vis

er,
 th

e L
ice

ns
ing

 Su
b-C

om
mi

tte
e m

ay
 

co
mm

en
ce

 up
 to

 45
 m

inu
tes

 af
ter

 th
e a

pp
oin

ted
 

sta
rt t

im
e. 

 
 

Mo
tio

ns
 &
 

Am
en

dm
en

ts 
wi
tho

ut 
no

tic
e 

Pa
rt 4

.1,
 R

ule
 14

.1 
(pa

ge
 11

5) 
Ins

ert
 pr

ov
isio

n t
ha

t th
es

e p
roc

ed
ura

l 
mo

tio
ns

 sh
all

 be
 vo

ted
 on

 w
ith

ou
t d

eb
ate

. 
 

Cla
rifi

ca
tio

n 
 

Ru
les

 of
 de

ba
te 

Pa
rt 4

.1,
 R

ule
 15

.9 
(pa

ge
 11

9) 
Ad

d t
o 1

5.9
.3 

pro
vis

ion
 th

at 
the

 m
ov

er 
of 

a 
su

cc
es

sfu
l a

me
nd

me
nt 

tak
es

 ov
er 

the
 R

igh
t 

to 
Re

ply
 im

me
dia

tel
y b

efo
re 

the
 su

bs
tan

tiv
e 

mo
tio

n, 
as

 am
en

de
d, 

is 
pu

t to
 th

e v
ote

.  

Cla
rifi

ca
tio

n 
 

No
mi

na
tio

ns
 fo

r 
ap

po
int

me
nt 

Pa
rt 4

.1,
 R

ule
 17

.6 
(pa

ge
 12

1) 
(i) 

Am
en

d p
roc

es
s f

or 
vo

tin
g o

n 
ap

po
int

me
nts

 as
 fo

llo
ws

:  I
f m

ore
 

no
mi

na
tio

ns
 ar

e m
ad

e t
ha

n t
he

re 
are

 
po

sit
ion

s a
va

ila
ble

, th
e m

ee
tin

g w
ill 

vo
te 

in 
tur

n o
n e

ac
h n

om
ine

e 

(i) 
To

 co
dif

y c
urr

en
t p

rac
tic

e 
    

Page 19



 

 

Su
bje

ct 
 

Co
ns

titu
tio

n 
pa

rt/
pa

ge
 

 
Pr
op

os
ed

 ch
an

ge
 

Ra
tio

na
le/

co
mm

en
t 

 
se

pa
rat

ely
, in

 th
e o

rde
r in

 w
hic

h t
he

y 
we

re 
no

mi
na

ted
, u

nti
l th

e v
ac

an
t 

po
sit

ion
(s)

 ar
e f

ille
d. 

 
 (ii)

 
To

 in
se

rt ‘
Be

for
e a

ny
 vo

te 
is 

tak
en

, 
the

 M
ay

or 
or 

pe
rso

n p
res

idi
ng

 sh
all

 
es

tab
lish

 th
at 

ea
ch

 ca
nd

ida
te 

no
mi

na
ted

, if
 pr

es
en

t, i
s w

illin
g t

o 
sta

nd
’.  

 

    (ii)
 

Fo
r th

e a
vo

ida
nc

e o
f d

ou
bt 

 

Pe
titi

on
s 

Pa
rt 4

.1,
 R

ule
 19

.1 
(pa

ge
 12

2) 
Am

en
d ‘

Pla
nn

ing
 C

om
mi

tte
e’ 

to 
rea

d 
‘De

ve
lop

me
nt 

Co
mm

itte
e’ 

in 
9th

 lin
e. 

 
Co

rre
cti

on
 

 
De

pu
tat

ion
s 

Pa
rt 4

.1,
 R

ule
 20

.1 
an

d 2
0.2

 (p
ag

e 
12

3) 
Am

en
d 2

0.1
, s

ec
on

d s
en

ten
ce

 to
 re

ad
 ‘T

he
y 

mu
st 

rel
ate

 to
 an

 ite
m 

of 
bu

sin
es

s f
or 

de
cis

ion
 at

 th
e C

ou
nc

il M
ee

tin
g t

o w
hic

h t
he

y 
are

 ad
dre

ss
ed

’ a
nd

 si
mi

lar
 w

ord
ing

 in
 

pe
nu

ltim
ate

 se
nte

nc
e o

f 2
0.2

 re
: d

ep
uta

tio
ns

 
to 

Ca
bin

et,
 C

om
mi

tte
es

 et
c. 

 

Fo
r th

e a
vo

ida
nc

e o
f d

ou
bt.

 
 

Ov
erv

iew
 &
 

Sc
ru
tin

y 
 

Pa
rt 4

.5,
 R

ule
 9.

2 
(pa

ge
 16

0) 
Fin

al 
se

nte
nc

e –
 de

let
e a

ll a
fte

r ‘…
 w

ill 
co

ns
ide

r th
e r

ep
ort

 at
 th

eir
 ne

xt 
me

eti
ng

’. 
 

Ty
po

gra
ph

ica
l c

orr
ec

tio
n 

Of
fic

er 
Em

plo
ym

en
t 

Pr
oc

ed
ur
e 

Ru
les

 

Pa
rt 4

.9,
 Pa

ra 
9.3

 
(pa

ge
 18

8) 
Ad

d n
ew

 9.
4 t

o c
lar

ify
 th

e p
roc

ed
ure

 if 
a v

ali
d 

ob
jec

tio
n i

s m
ad

e t
o a

 pr
op

os
ed

 di
sm

iss
al 

(S
ub

-C
om

mi
tte

e t
o r

e-c
on

ve
ne

 to
 co

ns
ide

r 
the

 ob
jec

tio
n –

 cf
. p

ara
 6.

2.6
 in

 re
sp

ec
t o

f 
ap

po
int

me
nts

). 
  

Cla
rifi

ca
tio

n 
 

Me
mb

ers
’ 

Al
low

an
ce

s 
Pa

rt 6
, P

ara
 15

 
(pa

ge
 26

3) 
Am

en
d ‘

Le
arn

ing
, A

ch
iev

em
en

t a
nd

 Le
isu

re 
Sc

rut
iny

 Pa
ne

l’ t
o r

ea
d ‘

He
alt

h S
cru

tin
y 

Pa
ne

l’ 
 

Co
rre

cti
on

 (to
 re

fle
ct 

ne
w 

str
uc

tur
e) 

 

 

Page 20



 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

1 

AP
PE

ND
IX 

C 
LO

ND
ON

 B
OR

OU
GH

 O
F T

OW
ER

 H
AM

LE
TS

 
 

CO
MM

ITT
EE

 M
EM

BE
RS

HI
P 

20
08

-20
09

 
 

AS
 A

GR
EE

D 
AT

 A
NN

UA
L C

OU
NC

IL 
ME

ET
IN

G 
– 2

1st
 M

AY
 20

08
 

  
ST

AN
DA

RD
S 

CO
MM

ITT
EE

 
(S

ix 
Me

mb
ers

 of
 th

e C
ou

nc
il –

 tw
o L

ab
ou

r, o
ne

 C
on

se
rva

tiv
e, 

on
e R

es
pe

ct,
 on

e L
ibe

ral
 D

em
oc

rat
 an

d o
ne

 R
es

pe
ct,

 th
e 

Un
ity

 C
oa

liti
on

 G
ro

up
 M

em
be

rs 
– p

lus
 ni

ne
 In

de
pe

nd
en

t M
em

be
rs)

 
 La
bo
ur
 G
ro
up
 

No
mi
na
tio
ns
 

(an
d d
ep
uti
es
)  

Co
ns
erv
ati
ve
 

Gr
ou
p N
om
ina
tio
n 

(an
d d
ep
uti
es
) 

Re
sp
ec
t G
ro
up
 

No
mi
na
tio
n (
an
d 

de
pu
tie
s) 

Lib
era
l D
em
oc
rat
 

Gr
ou
p 

No
mi
na
tio
n (
an
d 

de
pu
tie
s) 

Re
sp
ec
t –
 Th
e 

Un
ity
 C
oa
liti
on
 

Gr
ou
p 

No
mi
na
tio
n (
an
d 

de
pu
tie
s) 

Ind
ep
en
de
nt 
Me
mb
ers
 

  

Cll
r A

lex
 H

es
lop

 
Cll

r A
nn

 Ja
ck

so
n 

  
 Cll

r A
bjo

l M
iah

 
 Co

un
cill

or 
Ste

ph
an

ie 
Ea

ton
 

 (D
ep

uti
es

 – 
Co

un
cill

or 
Tim

 
O’

Fla
he

rty
, 

Co
un

cill
or 

 Az
izu

r 
Ra

hm
an

 Kh
an

, 
Co

un
cill

or 
Ab

du
l 

Ma
tin

) 

 Co
un

cill
or 

Lu
tfa

 
Be

gu
m 

 (D
ep

uti
es

 – 
 

Cll
r O

liu
r R

ah
ma

n, 
Cll

r R
an

ia 
Kh

an
) 

 Co
nti

nu
ing

 M
em

be
rs:

 
Mr

 S.
 B

ain
s 

Ms
. S

. B
arr

y 
Sis

ter
 C

. F
ro

st 
Mr

 P.
 O

’C
on

no
r (

Ch
air

) 
Mr

 M
. H

. R
ah

ma
n 

 Ne
w 

Me
mb

ers
 

rec
om

me
nd

ed
 fo

r 
ap

po
int

me
nt 

un
til 

20
th

 M
ay

 
20

11
: 

Mr
. I.

 A
li 

Mr
. E

. P
em

be
rto

n 
 

Page 21



 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

2 

 
DE

VE
LO

PM
EN

T C
OM

MI
TT

EE
 

(N
ine

 m
em

be
rs 

of 
the

 C
ou

nc
il) 

 La
bo
ur
 G
ro
up
 

No
mi
na
tio
ns
 (a
nd
 

de
pu
tie
s) 

Co
ns
erv
ati
ve
 G
ro
up
 

No
mi
na
tio
ns
 (a
nd
 

de
pu
tie
s) 

 

Re
sp
ec
t G
ro
up
 

No
mi
na
tio
ns
 (a
nd
 

de
pu
tie
s) 

Lib
era
l D
em
oc
rat
 

Gr
ou
p N
om
ina
tio
ns
 

(an
d d
ep
uti
es
) 

  

Re
sp
ec
t –
 Th
e U
nit
y 

Co
ali
tio
n G

ro
up
 

No
mi
na
tio
ns
 (a
nd
 

de
pu
tie
s) 

 Cll
r S

ha
fiq

ul 
Ha

qu
e  

(C
ha

ir) 
Cll

r F
az

lul
 H

aq
ue

 
Cll

r A
lex

 H
es

lop
 

Cll
r D

en
ise

 Jo
ne

s 
Cll

r A
hm

ed
 O

me
r 

 (D
ep

uti
es

 – 
 

Cll
r S

ali
m 

Ull
ah

 
Cll

r H
ela

l A
bb

as
 

Cll
r W

ais
eu

l Is
lam

) 
           

  
 Cll

r S
ha

he
d A

li 
 (D

ep
uti

es
 – 

Cll
r A

bjo
l M

iah
 

Cll
r H

aru
n M

iah
 

Cll
r M

. A
. M

un
im

) 

 Cll
r T

im
 O

’Fl
ah

ert
y 

 (D
ep

uti
es

 – 
 

Cll
r S

tep
ha

nie
 Ea

ton
 

Cll
r A

ziz
ur 

Ra
hm

an
 Kh

an
 

Cll
r A

bd
ul 

Ma
tin

) 

 Cll
r L

utf
a B

eg
um

 
 (D

ep
uti

es
 – 

 
Cll

r O
liu

r R
ah

ma
n 

Cll
r R

an
ia 

Kh
an

) 

Page 22



 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

3 

 
OV

ER
VI

EW
 A

ND
 S

CR
UT

IN
Y 

CO
MM

ITT
EE

 
(E

lev
en

 m
em

be
rs 

of 
the

 C
ou

nc
il) 

 La
bo
ur
 G
ro
up
 

No
mi
na
tio
ns
  

(an
d d
ep
uti
es
) 

Co
ns
erv
ati
ve
 

Gr
ou
p 

No
mi
na
tio
ns
 

(an
d d
ep
uti
es
) 

Re
sp
ec
t G
ro
up
 

No
mi
na
tio
ns
 

(an
d d
ep
uti
es
) 

Lib
era
l D
em
oc
rat
 

Gr
ou
p 

No
mi
na
tio
ns
 

(an
d d
ep
uti
es
) 

Re
sp
ec
t –
 Th
e 

Un
ity
 C
oa
liti
on
 

Gr
ou
p 

No
mi
na
tio
ns
 

(an
d d
ep
uti
es
) 

No
mi
na
ted
/C
o-

op
ted
 M
em
be
rs 

Cll
r A

bd
ul 

As
ad

  
(C

ha
ir) 

Cll
r W

ais
eu

l Is
lam

 
Cll

r A
nn

 Ja
ck

so
n 

Cll
r S

hir
ia 

Kh
atu

n 
Cll

r A
. A

. S
ard

ar 
Cll

r B
ill T

urn
er 

  
 Cll

r S
ha

he
d A

li 
 (D

ep
uti

es
 – 

 
Cll

r A
bjo

l M
iah

 
Cll

r F
oz

ol 
Mi

ah
 

Cll
r M

d. 
Ma

mu
n 

Ra
sh

id)
 

 Cll
r S

tep
ha

nie
 Ea

ton
 

 (D
ep

uti
es

 – 
Cll

r T
im

 O
’Fl

ah
ert

y 
Cll

r A
ziz

ur 
Ra

hm
an

 
Kh

an
 

Cll
r A

bd
ul 

Ma
tin

) 

 Cll
r O

liu
r R

ah
ma

n 
 (D

ep
uti

es
 – 

Cll
r R

an
ia 

Kh
an

 
Cll

r L
utf

a B
eg

um
) 

Mr
 H

as
sa

n 
Mu

ee
nu

dd
in 

– M
us

lim
 

Co
mm

un
ity

 
rep

res
en

tat
ive

 
 Mr

 D
an

ny
 M

cL
au

gh
lin

 
–R

om
an

 C
ath

oli
c 

Dio
ce

se
 of

 
W

es
tm

ins
ter

 
rep

res
en

tat
ive

 
 Mr

. A
za

d A
li -

 Pa
ren

t 
Go

ve
rno

r 
rep

res
en

tat
ive

 
 Mr

. T
err

y B
en

ne
tt -

 
Ch

urc
h o

f E
ng

lan
d 

Dio
ce

se
 

rep
res

en
tat

ive
 

 Pa
ren

t G
ov

ern
or 

no
mi

na
tio

n –
 

cu
rre

ntl
y a

wa
ite

d 

Page 23



 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

4 

 
ST

RA
TE

GI
C 

DE
VE

LO
PM

EN
T C

OM
MI

TT
EE

 
(N

ine
 m

em
be

rs 
of 

the
 C

ou
nc

il t
o i

nc
lud

e 3
 m

em
be

rs 
of 

De
ve

lop
me

nt 
Co

mm
itte

e a
nd

 2 
me

mb
ers

 of
 th

e C
ab

ine
t) 

 La
bo
ur
 G
ro
up
 

No
mi
na
tio
ns
 (a
nd
 

de
pu
tie
s) 

Co
ns
erv
ati
ve
 G
ro
up
 

No
mi
na
tio
ns
 (a
nd
 

de
pu
tie
s) 

 

Re
sp
ec
t G
ro
up
 

No
mi
na
tio
ns
 (a
nd
 

de
pu
tie
s) 

Lib
era
l D
em
oc
rat
 

Gr
ou
p N
om
ina
tio
ns
 

(an
d d
ep
uti
es
) 

  

Re
sp
ec
t –
 Th
e U
nit
y 

Co
ali
tio
n G

ro
up
 

No
mi
na
tio
ns
 (a
nd
 

de
pu
tie
s) 

 Cll
r S

ha
fiq

ul 
Ha

qu
e  

(C
ha

ir) 
Cll

r M
d. 

Sh
ah

id 
Ali

 
Cll

r A
lib

or 
Ch

ou
dh

ury
 

Cll
r A

hm
ed

 O
me

r 
Cll

r J
os

hu
a P

ec
k 

 (D
ep

uti
es

 – 
 

Cll
r F

az
lul

 H
aq

ue
 

Cll
r M

arc
 Fr

an
cis

) 
          

  
 Cll

r S
ha

he
d A

li 
 (D

ep
uti

es
 – 

 
Cll

r A
bjo

l M
iah

 
Cll

r H
aru

n M
iah

 
Cll

r M
d. 

Ab
du

l M
un

im
) 

 Co
un

cill
or 

Ste
ph

an
ie 

Ea
ton

 
 (D

ep
uti

es
 – 

Cll
r T

im
 O

’Fl
ah

ert
y 

Cll
r A

bd
ul 

Ma
tin

 
Cll

r A
ziz

ur 
Ra

hm
an

 
Kh

an
) 

 Cll
r L

utf
a B

eg
um

 
 (D

ep
uti

es
 – 

 
Cll

r O
liu

r R
ah

ma
n 

Cll
r R

an
ia 

Kh
an

) 
  

Page 24



 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

5 

GE
NE

RA
L P

UR
PO

SE
S 

CO
MM

ITT
EE

 
(S

ev
en

 m
em

be
rs 

of 
the

 C
ou

nc
il) 

 La
bo
ur
 G
ro
up
 

No
mi
na
tio
ns
 (a
nd
 

de
pu
tie
s) 

Co
ns
erv
ati
ve
 G
ro
up
 

No
mi
na
tio
ns
 (a
nd
 

de
pu
tie
s) 

 

Re
sp
ec
t G
ro
up
 

No
mi
na
tio
ns
 (a
nd
 

de
pu
tie
s) 

Lib
era
l D
em
oc
rat
 

Gr
ou
p N
om
ina
tio
ns
 

(an
d d
ep
uti
es
) 

  

Re
sp
ec
t –
 Th
e U
nit
y 

Co
ali
tio
n G

ro
up
 

No
mi
na
tio
ns
 (a
nd
 

de
pu
tie
s) 

 Cll
r M

d. 
Sh

ah
id 

Ali
  

(C
ha

ir) 
Cll

r C
arl

i H
arp

er-
Pe

nm
an

 
Cll

r A
. A

. S
ard

ar 
Cll

r S
ali

m 
Ull

ah
 

                 

 
 Cll

r M
. M

am
un

 R
as

hid
 

 (D
ep

uti
es

 – 
Cll

r A
bjo

l M
iah

 
Cll

r F
oz

ol 
Mi

ah
 

Cll
r M

d. 
Ab

du
l M

un
im

) 
  

 Co
un

cill
or 

Tim
 

O’
Fla

he
rty

 
 (D

ep
uti

es
 – 

Cll
r S

tep
ha

nie
 Ea

ton
 

Cll
r A

ziz
ur 

Ra
hm

an
 Kh

an
 

Cll
r A

bd
ul 

Ma
tin

) 

 No
 M

em
be

r 
  

Page 25



 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

6 

 
LIC

EN
SI

NG
 C

OM
MI

TT
EE

 
(Fi

fte
en

 m
em

be
rs 

of 
the

 C
ou

nc
il) 

 La
bo
ur
 G
ro
up
 

No
mi
na
tio
ns
  

Co
ns
erv
ati
ve
 G
ro
up
 

No
mi
na
tio
ns
  

 
Re
sp
ec
t G
ro
up
 

No
mi
na
tio
ns
  

Lib
era
l D
em
oc
rat
 

Gr
ou
p N
om
ina
tio
ns
  

 
Re
sp
ec
t –
 Th
e U
nit
y 

Co
ali
tio
n G

ro
up
 

No
mi
na
tio
ns
  

 Cll
r C

arl
i H

arp
er-

Pe
nm

an
 

(C
ha

ir) 
Cll

r R
aji

b A
hm

ed
 

Cll
r R

up
ert

 Ba
wd

en
 

Cll
r F

az
lul

 H
aq

ue
 

Cll
r A

lex
 H

es
lop

 
Cll

r W
ais

eu
l Is

lam
 

Cll
r B

ill T
urn

er 
Cll

r M
oti

n U
z-Z

am
an

 
             

  
 Cll

r F
oz

ol 
Mi

ah
 

Cll
r M

. M
am

un
 R

as
hid

 
 Co

un
cill

or 
Az

izu
r 

Ra
hm

an
 Kh

an
 

 Cll
r O

liu
r R

ah
ma

n 
  

Page 26



 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

7 

 
PE

NS
IO

NS
 C

OM
MI

TT
EE

 
(S

ev
en

 m
em

be
rs 

of 
the

 C
ou

nc
il) 

 La
bo
ur
  G
ro
up
 

No
mi
na
tio
ns
 (a
nd
 

de
pu
tie
s) 

 

Co
ns
erv
ati
ve
 G
ro
up
 

No
mi
na
tio
ns
 (a
nd
 

de
pu
tie
s) 

Re
sp
ec
t G
ro
up
 

No
mi
na
tio
ns
 (a
nd
 

de
pu
tie
s) 

Lib
era
l D
em
oc
rat
 

Gr
ou
p N
om
ina
tio
ns
 

(an
d d
ep
uti
es
) 

Re
sp
ec
t –
 Th
e U
nit
y 

Co
ali
tio
n G

ro
up
 

No
mi
na
tio
ns
 (a
nd
 

de
pu
tie
s) 

 Cll
r H

ela
l A

bb
as

 
Cll

r M
arc

 Fr
an

cis
 

Cll
r D

en
ise

 Jo
ne

s 
Cll

r S
hir

ia 
Kh

atu
hn

 
Cll

r J
os

hu
a P

ec
k 

                 

  
 Cll

r F
oz

ol 
Mi

ah
 

 (D
ep

uti
es

 – 
Cll

r S
ha

he
d A

li 
Cll

r H
aru

n M
iah

 
Cll

r M
am

un
 R

as
hid

) 
 

 No
 M

em
be

r 
 No

 M
em

be
r 

 

Page 27



 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

8 

     
AU

DI
T C

OM
MI

TT
EE

 
(S

ev
en

 m
em

be
rs 

of 
the

 C
ou

nc
il) 

 La
bo
ur
  G
ro
up
 

No
mi
na
tio
ns
 (a
nd
 

de
pu
tie
s) 

 

Co
ns
erv
ati
ve
 G
ro
up
 

No
mi
na
tio
ns
 (a
nd
 

de
pu
tie
s) 

Re
sp
ec
t G
ro
up
 

No
mi
na
tio
ns
 (a
nd
 

de
pu
tie
s) 

Lib
era
l D
em
oc
rat
 

Gr
ou
p N
om
ina
tio
ns
 

(an
d d
ep
uti
es
) 

Re
sp
ec
t –
 Th
e U
nit
y 

Co
ali
tio
n G

ro
up
 

No
mi
na
tio
ns
 (a
nd
 

de
pu
tie
s) 

 Cll
r H

ela
l A

bb
as

 
Cll

r D
en

ise
 Jo

ne
s 

Cll
r J

os
hu

a P
ec

k 
Cll

r M
d. 

Ab
du

s S
ali

qu
e 

               

  
 Cll

r A
bjo

l M
iah

 
 (D

ep
uti

es
- 

Cll
r S

ha
he

d A
li 

Cll
r H

aru
n M

iah
) 

 Co
un

cill
or 

Ste
ph

an
ie 

Ea
ton

 
 (D

ep
uti

es
 – 

Cll
r T

im
 O

’Fl
ah

ert
y 

Cll
r A

ziz
ur 

Ra
hm

an
 

Kh
an

 
Cll

r A
bd

ul 
Ma

tin
) 

 No
 M

em
be

r 

 

Page 28



 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

9 

 
HU

MA
N 

RE
SO

UR
CE

S 
CO

MM
ITT

EE
 

(S
ev

en
 m

em
be

rs 
of 

the
 C

ou
nc

il) 
 La
bo
ur
 G
ro
up
  

No
mi
na
tio
ns
  

(an
d d
ep
uti
es
) 

 

Co
ns
erv
ati
ve
 G
ro
up
  

No
mi
na
tio
ns
  

(an
d d
ep
uti
es
) 

Re
sp
ec
t G
ro
up
 

No
mi
na
tio
ns
 (a
nd
  

de
pu
tie
s) 

Lib
era
l D
em
oc
rat
 

Gr
ou
p N
om
ina
tio
ns
 

(an
d d
ep
uti
es
) 

Re
sp
ec
t –
 Th
e U
nit
y 

Co
ali
tio
n G

ro
up
 

No
mi
na
tio
ns
 (a
nd
 

de
pu
tie
s) 

 Cll
r W

ais
eu

l Is
lam

  (C
ha

ir) 
Cll

r A
lib

or 
Ch

ou
dh

ury
 

Cll
r F

az
lul

 H
aq

ue
 

Cll
r J

os
hu

a P
ec

k 
               

  
 Cll

r M
. A

bd
ul 

Mu
nim

 
 (D

ep
uti

es
 – 

Cll
r F

oz
ol 

Mi
ah

 
Cll

r H
aru

n M
iah

 
Cll

r S
ha

he
d A

li) 

 No
 M

em
be

r 
 Cll

r R
an

ia 
Kh

an
 

 (D
ep

uti
es

 – 
 

Cll
r O

liu
r R

ah
ma

n 
Cll

r L
utf

a B
eg

um
) 

Page 29



 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

10
 

 
AP

PE
AL

S 
CO

MM
ITT

EE
 

(N
ine

 m
em

be
rs 

of 
the

 C
ou

nc
il) 

 La
bo
ur
 G
ro
up
 

No
mi
na
tio
ns
 

 (a
nd
 de
pu
tie
s) 

 

Co
ns
erv
ati
ve
 G
ro
up
 

No
mi
na
tio
ns
 

 (a
nd
 de
pu
tie
s) 

Re
sp
ec
t G
ro
up
  

No
mi
na
tio
ns
  

(an
d d
ep
uti
es
) 

Lib
era
l D
em
oc
rat
 

Gr
ou
p N
om
ina
tio
ns
 

(an
d d
ep
uti
es
) 

Re
sp
ec
t –
 Th
e U
nit
y 

Co
ali
tio
n G

ro
up
 

No
mi
na
tio
ns
 (a
nd
 

de
pu
tie
s) 

 Cll
r S

ali
m 

Ull
ah

  (C
ha

ir) 
Cll

r D
en

ise
 Jo

ne
s 

Cll
r A

hm
ed

 O
me

r 
Cll

r B
ill T

urn
er 

Cll
r M

oti
n U

z-Z
am

an
 

     

                  

 Cll
r H

aru
n M

iah
 

 (D
ep

uti
es

 – 
Cll

r A
bjo

l M
iah

 
Cll

r S
ha

he
d A

li  
Cll

r D
ula

l U
dd

in)
 

 

 Co
un

cill
or 

Ab
du

l M
ati

n 
 (D

ep
uti

es
 – 

Cll
r S

tep
ha

nie
 Ea

ton
 

Cll
r T

im
 O

’Fl
ah

ert
y 

Cll
r A

ziz
ur 

Ra
hm

an
 

Kh
an

) 

 Cll
r R

an
ia 

Kh
an

 
 (D

ep
uti

es
 – 

 
Cll

r O
liu

r R
ah

ma
n 

Cll
r L

utf
a B

eg
um

) 

Page 30



 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

11
 

 
HE

AL
TH

 S
CR

UT
IN

Y 
PA

NE
L 

(S
ev

en
 m

em
be

rs 
of 

the
 C

ou
nc

il) 
 La
bo
ur
  G
ro
up
  

No
mi
na
tio
ns
  

(an
d d
ep
uti
es
) 

 

Co
ns
erv
ati
ve
 G
ro
up
  

No
mi
na
tio
ns
 (a
nd
 

de
pu
tie
s) 

Re
sp
ec
t G
ro
up
  

No
mi
na
tio
ns
 

(an
d d
ep
uti
es
) 

Lib
era
l D
em
oc
rat
  

Gr
ou
p 

 N
om
ina
tio
ns
  

(an
d d
ep
uti
es
) 

Re
sp
ec
t –
 Th
e U
nit
y 

Co
ali
tio
n G

ro
up
 

No
mi
na
tio
ns
 (a
nd
 

de
pu
tie
s) 

 Cll
r A

nn
 Ja

ck
so

n 
Cll

r B
ill T

urn
er 

Cll
r M

d. 
Ab

du
s S

ali
qu

e 
Cll

r M
oti

n U
z-Z

am
an

 
               

  
 Cll

r A
bjo

l M
iah

 
 (D

ep
uti

es
 – 

Cll
r M

d. 
Ab

du
l M

un
im

 
Cll

r M
am

un
 R

as
hid

 
Cll

r D
ula

l U
dd

in)
 

 

  C
llr 

Ste
ph

an
ie 

Ea
ton

 
 (D

ep
uti

es
 – 

 
Cll

r A
ziz

ur 
Ra

hm
an

 
Kh

an
 

Cll
r T

im
 O

’Fl
ah

ert
y 

Cll
r A

bd
ul 

Ma
tin

) 

    
    

    
    

 
No

 M
em

be
r  

 

Page 31



 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

12
 

 
PE

RM
AN

EN
T P

LA
CE

ME
NT

S 
PA

NE
L 

(To
 co

mp
ris

e t
wo

 So
cia

l W
or

ke
rs,

 on
e M

em
be

r o
f th

e C
ab

ine
t, t

hr
ee

 
Ind

ep
en

de
nt 

Pe
rso

ns
 an

d t
o i

nc
lud

e o
ne

 m
an

 an
d o

ne
 w

om
an

, u
p t

o a
 

ma
xim

um
 of

 te
n p

ers
on

s) 
 La
bo
ur
  G
ro
up
  

No
mi
na
tio
ns
  

(an
d d
ep
uti
es
) 

 

Co
ns
erv
ati
ve
 G
ro
up
  

No
mi
na
tio
ns
 

(an
d d
ep
uti
es
) 

Re
sp
ec
t G
ro
up
  

No
mi
na
tio
ns
  

(an
d d
ep
uti
es
) 

Lib
era
l D
em
oc
rat
 

Gr
ou
p  

No
mi
na
tio
ns
  

(an
d d
ep
uti
es
) 

Re
sp
ec
t –
 Th
e U
nit
y  

Co
ali
tio
n G

ro
up
  

No
mi
na
tio
ns
  

(an
d d
ep
uti
es
) 

 Cll
r B

ill T
urn

er 
 No

t a
pp

lica
ble

 
  

 No
t a

pp
lica

ble
 

 No
t a

pp
lica

ble
 

 No
t a

pp
lica

ble
 

   
FO

ST
ER

IN
G 

PA
NE

L 
(To

 co
mp

ris
e t

wo
 So

cia
l W

or
ke

rs,
 on

e e
lec

ted
 M

em
be

r a
nd

 fo
ur

 In
de

pe
nd

en
t 

Pe
rso

ns
, u

p t
o a

 m
ax

im
um

 of
 te

n p
ers

on
s) 

 La
bo
ur
  G
ro
up
  

No
mi
na
tio
ns
  

(an
d d
ep
uti
es
) 

 

Co
ns
erv
ati
ve
 G
ro
up
 

No
mi
na
tio
ns
  

(an
d d
ep
uti
es
) 

Re
sp
ec
t G
ro
up
 

No
mi
na
tio
ns
  

(an
d d
ep
uti
es
) 

Lib
era
l D
em
oc
rat
  

Gr
ou
p N
om
ina
tio
ns
  

(an
d d
ep
uti
es
) 

Re
sp
ec
t –
 Th
e U
nit
y  

Co
ali
tio
n G

ro
up
  

No
mi
na
tio
ns
  

(an
d d
ep
uti
es
) 

 Cll
r A

nn
 Ja

ck
so

n 
 

 No
t a

pp
lica

ble
 

 No
t a

pp
lica

ble
 

 

 No
t a

pp
lica

ble
 

 No
t a

pp
lica

ble
 

  

Page 32



 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

13
 

 
CH

ILD
RE

N/
AD

UL
TS

 (A
CC

ES
S 

TO
 FI

LE
S)

 P
AN

EL
 

(To
 co

mp
ris

e t
hr

ee
 M

em
be

rs 
of 

the
 C

ou
nc

il; 
on

ly 
on

e o
f w

ho
m 

ma
y a

lso
 be

 a 
Ca

bin
et 

me
mb

er)
 

 La
bo
ur
  G
ro
up
  

No
mi
na
tio
ns
  

(an
d d
ep
uti
es
) 

 

Co
ns
erv
ati
ve
 G
ro
up
 

No
mi
na
tio
ns
  

(an
d d
ep
uti
es
) 

Re
sp
ec
t G
ro
up
  

No
mi
na
tio
ns
  

(an
d d
ep
uti
es
) 

Lib
era
l D
em
oc
rat
  

Gr
ou
p N
om
ina
tio
ns
  

(an
d d
ep
uti
es
) 

Re
sp
ec
t –
 Th
e U
nit
y  

Co
ali
tio
n G

ro
up
  

No
mi
na
tio
ns
  

(an
d d
ep
uti
es
) 

 Cll
r C

lai
r H

aw
kin

s 
Cll

r D
en

ise
 Jo

ne
s 

  

  
 No

t a
pp

lica
ble

 
 

 No
t a

pp
lica

ble
 

 No
t a

pp
lica

ble
 

     
ST

AN
DI

NG
 A

DV
IS

OR
Y 

CO
UN

CI
L O

N 
RE

LIG
IO

US
 E

DU
CA

TIO
N 

(S
AC

RE
) 

(To
 co

mp
ris

e m
em

be
rs 

ap
po

int
ed

 by
 th

e L
EA

) 
 La
bo
ur
  G
ro
up
  

No
mi
na
tio
ns
  

(an
d d
ep
uti
es
) 

 

Co
ns
erv
ati
ve
 G
ro
up
 

No
mi
na
tio
ns
  

(an
d d
ep
uti
es
) 

Re
sp
ec
t G
ro
up
  

No
mi
na
tio
ns
  

(an
d d
ep
uti
es
) 

Lib
era
l D
em
oc
rat
  

Gr
ou
p N
om
ina
tio
ns
  

(an
d d
ep
uti
es
) 

Re
sp
ec
t –
 Th
e U
nit
y  

Co
ali
tio
n G

ro
up
  

No
mi
na
tio
ns
  

(an
d d
ep
uti
es
) 

 Cll
r A

. A
. S

ard
ar 

 

  
 No

t a
pp

lica
ble

 
 No

t a
pp

lica
ble

 
 No

t a
pp

lica
ble

 
     

Page 33



 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

14
 

TO
 N

OT
E O

PP
OS

ITI
ON

 G
RO

UP
 A

PP
OI

NT
ME

NT
S 

  Co
ns

erv
ati

ve
 G

rou
p  

 
- 

Le
ad

er 
of 

the
 C

on
se

rva
tiv

e G
rou

p 
 

 
- 

Co
un

cill
or 

Pe
ter

 G
old

s 
 

 
 

 
 

 
De

pu
ty 

Le
ad

er 
of 

the
 C

on
se

rva
tiv

e G
rou

p  
 

- 
Co

un
cill

or 
Tim

oth
y A

rch
er 

 Re
sp

ec
t G

rou
p 

 
 

- 
Le

ad
er 

of 
the

 R
es

pe
ct 

Gr
ou

p 
 

 
 

- 
Co

un
cill

or 
Ab

jol
 M

iah
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

De
pu

ty 
Le

ad
er 

of 
the

 R
es

pe
ct 

Gr
ou

p 
 

 
- 

Co
un

cill
or 

Sh
ah

ed
 Al

i 
 

 
Lib

era
l D

em
oc

rat
 G

rou
p 

 
- 

Le
ad

er 
of 

the
 Li

be
ral

 D
em

oc
rat

 G
rou

p 
 

 
- 

Co
un

cill
or 

Ste
ph

an
ie 

Ea
ton

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 Re
sp

ec
t (T

he
 U

nit
y C

oa
litio

n) 
- 

Le
ad

er 
of 

the
 R

es
pe

ct 
(Th

e U
nit

y C
oa

litio
n) 

Gr
ou

p 
- 

Co
un

cill
or 

Ol
iur

 R
ah

ma
n 

 
 

 
 

 
 

De
pu

ty 
Le

ad
er 

of 
the

 R
es

pe
ct 

(Th
e U

nit
y  

 
 

 
 

 
 

Co
ali

tio
n) 

Gr
ou

p 
 

 
 

 
 

- 
Co

un
cill

or 
Ra

nia
 Kh

an
 

 

Page 34



  1 

APPENDIX D 
 

LONDON BOROUGH OF TOWER HAMLETS 
 

NOMINATIONS TO LONDON COUNCILS COMMITTEES/FORUMS 2008/09  
 

 
Leaders Committee (s101 Joint Committee) Councillor Lutfur Rahman 

Deputy – Councillor Sirajul Islam 
 

Transport and Environment Committee 
(Associated Joint Committee) 

Councillor Abdal Ullah 
Deputies – None 
 

Grants Committee  
(Associated Joint Committee) 

Councillor Abdal Ullah 
Deputies – None 
 

Greater London Provincial Council 
 

(GLPC Employers’ Side now 
comprises 15 members nominated 
from the combined membership of 
the Leaders’ Committee and the 
Greater London Employment Forum) 
 

Forums 
 

 

Health and Adult Services Forum Councillor Anwara Ali 
Deputy – Councillor Ahmed Omer 
 

Housing Forum  Councillor Marc Francis 
Deputy – Councillor Shiria Khatun 
 

Culture, Tourism and 2012 Forum  Councillor Rofique U. Ahmed 
Deputy – Councillor Fazlul Haque 
 

Crime and Public Protection Forum  Councillor Abdal Ullah 
Deputy - None 
 

Economic Development Forum Councillor Ohid Ahmed 
Deputy - None 
 

Children and Young People Forum  Councillor Clair Hawkins 
Deputy – Councillor Bill Turner 
 

Greater London Employment Forum  Councillor Alibor Choudhury 
Deputy - None 
 

London Caribbean Partnership Group Cllr Ahmed Omer 
 

BAME Councillors’ Network A forum to enable London’s Black, 
Asian & minority ethnic councillors to 
discuss issues of common concern.  
Open to all BM&E councillors. 
 
 
 

Page 35



  2 

Women Councillors’ Network A network for London’s women 
councillors to discuss issues of 
common concern.  Open to all 
women councillors. 
 

London Irish Councillors’ Network A forum for all London councillors of 
Irish origin or background. 
 

Lead Members Lead Members for Equalities, 
Improvement and Sustainability are 
appointed by the Leaders’ 
Committee.  These are not 
nominated directly by boroughs but 
appointed at the AGM from 
candidates put forward by the party 
groups. 
 

 

Page 36



 1 

  
 
 
  

 
COUNCIL MEETING 

 
WEDNESDAY 25TH JUNE 2008 

 
DEPUTATIONS AND PETITIONS 

 
AGENDA ITEM NO. 5 

 
REPORT OF THE SERVICE HEAD,  

DEMOCRATIC SERVICES 
 

 

 
 
 
SUMMARY 
 
1. The Council’s constitution provides that a maximum of three deputations and 

three petitions are received at any meeting.  These are taken in the order 
notice is received.   

 
2. This report sets out the deputations and petitions submitted by members of 

the public for presentation at Council on 25th June 2008.     
 
3. In each case the members of the deputation/petitioners may address the 

meeting for no more than five minutes.  Members may then question the 
deputation/petitioners for a further five minutes.  The relevant Lead Member 
or Chair of Committee may then respond to the deputation or petition for up to 
three minutes. 

 
4. Any outstanding issues will be referred to the relevant Corporate Director for 

attention who will respond to those outstanding issues in writing within 28 
days. 

 
5. Members should confine their contributions to questions and answers and not 

make statements or attempt to debate. 
 
 
 

Agenda Item 5

Page 37



 2 

DEPUTATIONS 
 
Three deputations have been received as set out below. 
 
1. Deputation from Mr. Roberto Foth, the Save Bethnal Green Centre 

Campaign and others about the threatened future of the Bethnal Green 
Centre 

 
“Adult learners at Bethnal Green Centre face major disruption, not least the closure 
of all day classes, if Tower Hamlets Council use it to temporarily accommodate local 
Year 10 and 11 Bethnal Green Technology College pupils. What is more, statements 
on the record by the Corporate Director, Children’s Services, indicate that the 
Council plans to sell Bethnal Green Centre after the 2-year refurbishment period. 
  
[See East London Advertiser of 5 April.  It reports that, in a letter to George Galloway 
MP, the Corporate Director wrote:  "Yes, there are plans for the future use of the 
Bethnal Green Centre and for eventual disposal of the building."] 
  
The Save Bethnal Green Centre campaign wants: 
 

• the Council to devise an alternative re-housing scheme, one that does not 
include using the Bethnal Green Centre  

• the Bethnal Green Centre to remain open and for ALL adult classes, incl. day 
classes, currently running to continue to do so WITHIN the Centre  

• guarantees from the Council that the Centre will continue to be an adult 
education centre, now and beyond the 2-year interim period. 

• representation on decision-making bodies re: the future of Bethnal Green 
Centre 

  
Questions to be put to the Council: 
 

• Why has Bethnal Green Centre been chosen over other alternatives (e.g. 
Rich Mix) to temporarily re-house local pupils whilst refurbishment work is 
being carried out?  Would it not be better to find an alternative venue that 
does not displace an existing group of learners and that requires less 
structural modifications (and capital expenditure)?  

• Even if the pupils cannot be temporarily re-housed elsewhere, something we 
dispute, we want the Council to give guarantees that adult day classes will 
continue at Bethnal Green Centre.  Can arrangements be made and 
guarantees undertaken?  

• Will the Council publicly deny that it plans to, in the Corporate Director’s 
words, “dispose of” Bethnal Green Centre once the refurbishment work at the 
local school is finished?  And can the Council give the local community cast-
iron guarantees that the centre will continue to function as an adult learning 
centre beyond 2011? 

 
 
 
 

Page 38



 3 

2. Deputation from Ms Runa Begum, M. Shahin and others asking the 
Council to recognise and establish a policy on Faith and Religion 

 
The full text of this deputation request is attached at Appendix ‘A’.  The deputation 
calls upon the Council:- 
“To acknowledge and accept this deputation from the residents of Tower Hamlets.  
To commission relevant officers to create a clear policy on religious activities and 
facilities with the following in mind:  

• That the policy will help the community to have some flexibility to create 
religious facilities as and when needed 

• That it will help identify the need of religious facilities through the various 
Tower Hamlets future improvement plans, i.e. master plans and stock 
transfers” 

 
3. Deputation from Lynda Keen and others of the Four Estates Steering 

Group about Island Homes 
 
“We the residents of Island Homes, call on the London Borough of Tower Hamlets to 
fulfil its role as an overseer by: 
 

a) Investigating the actions and failings of both the Managing Director of Island 
Homes and of the ‘Parent’ One Housing Group. 

 
b) Instigating a process of mediation between One Housing Group/Island 

Homes and the residents’ groups mentioned in the Offer Document (estate 
management organisations) 

 
c) Suspending partnership activities with One Housing Group pending a 

successful outcome of mediation.”  
 
 
PETITIONS 
 
Three petitions have been received as set out below. 
 
1. Petition from Mr Iqbal Hossain and others about traffic calming and 

safety measures on Abbott Road, E14 
 
“We the undersigned, residents from Abbott Road area fully endorse the following 
statements and demand that urgent action be taken. 
 

• That we welcome the restriction imposed on heavy vehicles through Abbott 
Road.  However, we deem the measure is too little compared to the intensity 
of the problem; 

Page 39



 4 

• That the scale of traffic is simply far too great on Abbott Road, a local 
residential road, where hundreds of vehicles produce exhaust/fumes that 
residents inhale almost round the day (especially during 6am to 10pm); 

• That still some heavy vehicles (apart from those that require access) ignore 
the ‘no entry’ restriction sign; 

• That the speed ramps on the road are apparently ineffective in slowing down 
the traffic, therefore the traffic from both directions approach the zebra 
crossing (by the dead end of Aberfeldy Road) in a frightening speed; 

• That almost 4 out of five (80%) vehicles ignore pedestrians readily waiting to 
cross the road at the zebra crossing; 

• That particularly the westbound traffic may misjudge the position or, fail to get 
proper view of the pedestrians readily waiting to cross the road as the 
crossing is positioned at the bend; 

• That a couple of hundred of pedestrians, mostly young school children, use 
the above zebra crossing in constant fear of life threatening risk on a daily 
basis; 

•  On 28 February 2007, a traffic survey from TfL, witnessing the level of danger 
the pedestrians face, shared his deep concern with some of the residents 
over the safety issue of pedestrians that use the zebra crossing by the dead 
end of Aberfeldy Road; 

• The constant tremors due to heavy vehicle movement are causing cracks, 
weakening the structure of houses on Abbott Road; and  

• That in the last 15 years, one child has died and another has been seriously 
injured in two separate fatal road accidents on Abbott Road (the recent 
accident happened on Wednesday 2nd August 2006).  In both cases, the 
paramedics rushed to the spot by helicopter.”  

 
 
2. Petition from Mr Noor Uddin Ullah and others about the management of 

community projects in Stepney 
 
“We residents of Stepney, wish to speak to Councillors regarding our serious 
concerns about the management and regulation of community projects and premises 
in Stepney.” 
 
 
3. Petition from Mr Khales Uddin Ahmed and other residents regarding 

parking on the Crossways Estate 
“It has recently been brought to our attention that Swan Housing Association has 
sold some parking spaces to shareholders on Stephenson Close.  On the 23rd May 
2008 we received notification that as of Monday 2nd June 2008 bays ‘1-15 
Stephenson Close will have parking enforcement in place’.  However, if one walks 
around the estate it becomes clear that not all of the aforementioned parking slots 
are actually on Stephenson Close.  In fact the bays have been marked out on 
Rainhill Way.  This is creating confusion amongst the residents of Rainhill Way who 
have been promised in the past assurances that the parking on Rainhill Way will be 
allocated to the residents of Rainhill Way. 

Page 40



 5 

Swan have stated that they were going to provide the existing residents of Crossway 
Estate with parking bays.  However, this has not happened as of yet.  Instead Swan 
have gone ahead and illegally sold parking bays to new residents who were not 
previously Crossways residents (leaseholder and tenants), completely ignoring the 
existing residents.  This is not the first time that Swan have acted in an inappropriate 
manner.  They had built an illegal building which they had to demolish. 
We have complained to Swan, Tower Hamlets Council and our local councillors.  
Consequently Swan’s proposals to being parking restrictions have been postponed 
until residents are consulted properly.  However this is a temporary solution.  We are 
looking for your intervention so that we can come to a satisfactory permanent 
solution to this issue. 
The residents of Crossways Estate also would like to bring forth other grievances 
and queries. 
1.  There was no consultation with existing residents before giving parking spaces to 
1-15 Stephenson Drive. 
2.  We al need parking bays.  How do Swan plan to provide this?  If they cannot 
provide this to existing residents, then this should not be provided to a select few 
new residents. 
3.  The exact number of disabled and visitors bay needs to be thoroughly 
investigated. 
4.  We wish a sub-committee to be created to look into this matter and consult the 
estate.  I have attached with this petition with the names of residents of the Estate in 
protest against Swan’s actions.  Please ensure that this matter is looked in to.” 
 
 
 

Page 41



 6 

APPENDIX A   
 
Full Text of Deputation (2) – from Ms Runa Begum, M. Shahin and others, 
asking the Council to recognise and establish a policy on Faith and Religion   
  
Introduction: 
  
This document describes the importance of a policy that caters all faith groups, 
particularly religion. The policy will have a holistic approach to all communities with 
religious belief. By adopting such policy the residents and faith community groups 
will benefit in various ways. 
  
This policy will have an unequal impact on particular group and community that are 
currently excluded in developing themselves, its function will be to establish and 
promote religious facilities and activities as and where needed.  
 
Current situation:  
 
The council currently does not have a policy to promote any religious activities or to 
cater towards facilities that are desperately needed in the community. Most of the 
religious activities are carried out at neighbourhood or community centres under the 
banner of so called community programmes and activities, which are subject to the 
premises managers’ discretion and will.   
 
The managers (or facilitators) are most of the time reluctant to provide 
accommodation for these particular groups as they fear from being biased or singled 
out from the council and mainstream government, their funding and so-forth.   
Most of the facilities are out of reach and those that are operating in the community 
centres may not able to continue in future as there isn’t any strong commitment from 
these centres, councils or the government.  
  
Currently if a community wants to establish a religious facility through the council 
planning procedure it would be classified as D1 and most of the times these 
application would are turned down as they may be in a residential area or seen to be 
changed from there current type of use. But the reality is that this facilities need to be 
in a residential area. Not only on the council level but also on an individual merit 
applications are turned down as they provide religious activities. 
   
Currently the council recognise some activities of religion under its “culture” strategy; 
however religion and going to mosque, synagogue or church cannot be part of 
culture. 
   
Currently there is only one such facility namely the East London Mosque (Which is 
actually registered as London Muslim Centre); this facility provides religious activities 
which no other organisation can match. The local community has hugely benefited 
from this. But there is no other such facility in the borough, thus people have to come 
from far of distance to take its service’s. This facility has become a hub for the 
community with a particular religious belief. 
  

Page 42



 7 

No other religion facilities are recognised as they should be (i.e. Mosque or temple) 
rather than the Christian and Jewish religious facilities which is registered and known 
as “Church” and “Synagogue”. 
  
The charity commission recognise the importance of these groups and do allow 
registration to them, but due to the lack of council initiative and policy these groups 
cannot pursue their activities at a full extent. 
 
None of the “Church’s” in Tower Hamlets are registered with the Charity Commission 
or Companies House; but any other religious facility or group are expected and 
asked to be registered with the mentioned bodies. This clearly identifies a 
bureaucratic discrimination among one religion and another. 
    
Summary of benefits:   
 
A policy on religious activities and facilities will help these communities to engage 
and practice with their religious belief. It will help identify the need of facility in the 
area depending on the demography of that particular area. The policy will encourage 
all faiths to establish their own unique facilities and promote harmony between 
communities. 
  
It will truly identify the aspect of religious activities rather than cultural activities  
(Going to church and playing football is not the same). 
   
The policy will enable to identify the need to deliver the appropriate facility for that 
area depending on the ratio of the population in terms of religious belief. It will be 
implemented on master plans, the LDF and other small area based developments 
i.e. stock transfer.   
 
It will promote community cohesion in the borough and promote tolerance among 
different faith groups. 
   
Such policy will recognise the cultural barriers and will able to promote social 
inclusion. 
   
Such policy will encourage creating more social and community hub’s locally at a 
smaller scale. 
   
Such policy will encourage isolated women in the society in their perspective area to 
engage with larger community without fear of prejudice and discrimination. 
    
Such policy will help create activities in the facilities, catered towards hard to reach 
young people especially for women that want to engage with women only activities. 
   
Such facilities will engage older people locally and promote health and wellbeing. 
    
This policy will recognise the religious needs of the various communities in the 
borough and will foster greater understanding and tolerance of interfaith relations. 
    

Page 43



 8 

That the borough can be the champion and could be recognised as a beacon by 
creating such policy. 
   
Religion is part of life which will be recognised by this policy and up hold the values 
of all faith in terms of individual religion. 
   
The policy will allow flexibility of creating religious facilities and activities in the 
borough. 
   
Sustainable community:  
 
As all religion are based on common platform of social inclusion, compassion, 
tolerance peace and respect; therefore such policy would bring forth these common 
beliefs and uphold the values across the multi faith diverse communities and lead to 
a sustainable community. 
 
It will help to diversify the social mix of a deprived local community.  It will provide 
access to new economic opportunities for local people, as well as local social and 
community facilities to help achieve a more sustainable neighbourhood. 
  
The policy will help to define the economic role of the area, and secure a 
complementary balance of economic and social functions. 
   
The council notes: 
  
That the council promotes community cohesion 
 
That it promotes healthy communities 
 
That it encourage to include, excluded communities that do not engage in any 
cultural activities under the councils definition. 
 
That the council should adopt policies that foster greater understanding and 
tolerance of interfaith relations. 
   
That there is a need to separate “Culture activities” and “Religious activities”  
  
We call upon this council:  
 
To acknowledge and accept this deputation from the residents of Tower Hamlets. 
  
To commission relevant officers to create a clear policy on religious activities and 
facilities with the following in mind:  
 

• That the policy will help the community to have some flexibility to create 
religious facilities as and when needed 

  
• That it will help identify the need of religious facilities through the various 

Tower Hamlets future improvement plans, i.e. master plans and stock 
transfers 

Page 44



  

 
  

LONDON BOROUGH OF TOWER HAMLETS 
 

COUNCIL MEETING 
 

WEDNESDAY 25TH JUNE 2008 
 

QUESTIONS SUBMITTED BY 
MEMBERS OF THE PUBLIC 

 
AGENDA ITEM NO. 6 

 
REPORT OF THE SERVICE HEAD,   

DEMOCRATIC SERVICES 
 

 

 
 
SUMMARY 
 
1. Set out overleaf are the questions submitted by members of the public, for 

response by the appropriate Lead Member at Council on 25th June 2008.   
 
2. The Council’s Constitution provides a time limit of thirty minutes for this item. 
 
3. A questioner who has put a question in person may also put one brief 

supplementary question without notice to the Member who has replied to his 
or her original question.  A supplementary question must arise directly out of 
the original or the reply. 

 
4. Any question which cannot be dealt with during the thirty minutes allocated for 

public questions, either because of lack of time or because of non-attendance 
of the Member, to whom it was put, will be dealt with by way of a written 
answer. 

 
5. Unless the Mayor decides otherwise, no discussion will take place on any 

question, but any Member of the Council may move, without discussion, that 
the matter raised by a question be referred for consideration to the Cabinet or 
the appropriate Committee or Sub-Committee. 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Agenda Item 6

Page 45



  

QUESTIONS 
 
The questions which have been submitted are set out below: 
 
1 Question from Mr. Terry McGrenera to the Lead Member for Cleaner,   
           Safer, Greener, Councillor Abdal Ullah 
 

“How many fixed penalty notices have the Environmental Services 
department issued over the past two years?” 

 
 
2 Question from Ms. Johanna Kaschke to the Lead Member for Housing  
           and Development, Councillor Marc Francis  
 

“I would like to know whether it would influence the authority in considering 
improvements to council blocks if a lot of “poor” leaseholders are unable to 
pay towards those improvements and whether the council would be likely not 
to carry out the improvements if this is the case. I call them poor leaseholders 
because some could just about afford to purchase a cut price home and now 
have no money to pay towards block/estate improvements and they would not 
always want to sell their homes. Would the council want to keep leaseholders 
happy by carrying out fewer improvements to the blocks?” 

 
 
3 Question from Mr. Alan Tucker to the Lead Member for Housing &  
           Development, Councillor Marc Francis 
 

“The consultation on the development of the Safeway site in Roman Road has 
raised an unprecedented level of objections to the plans. The building 
proposed dwarfs the surrounding properties.  The density of the build is nearly 
twice that set out in planning guidelines. The Overview and Scrutiny 
Committee voiced concerns about this build from the outset and asked that 
the terms of the lease should have appropriate controls. 
  
At the Cabinet meeting in January assurances were given that the concerns 
raised would be addressed in planning.  Cabinet was also told that the 
developer was weeks away from completing negotiations with a major food 
retailer to provide the supermarket that is badly needed to stop the decline of 
the area.    
 
Has any retailer actually signed a contract with the developers to provide a 
substantial sized supermarket and if so what size is it?” 

Page 46



 
  

LONDON BOROUGH OF TOWER HAMLETS 
 

COUNCIL MEETING 
 

WEDNESDAY 25 JUNE 2008 
 

QUESTIONS SUBMITTED BY 
MEMBERS OF THE COUNCIL 

 
AGENDA ITEM NO. 7 

 
REPORT OF THE SERVICE HEAD,  

DEMOCRATIC SERVICES 
 

 

 
SUMMARY 
 
1. Set out overleaf are the questions submitted by Members of the Council for 

response by Members of the Executive at the Council meeting on Wednesday 
25th June 2008. 

 
2. Questions are limited to one per member per meeting, plus one 

supplementary question unless the member has indicated that only a written 
reply is required and in these circumstances a supplementary question is not 
permitted. 

 
3. Oral responses are time limited to two minutes.  Supplementary questions 

and responses are also time limited to two minutes each. 
 
4. There is a time limit of thirty minutes for consideration of Members’ questions 

with no extension of time allowed and any question not dealt within this time 
will be dealt with by way of written responses.  The Mayor will decide the time 
allocated to each question. 

 
5. Members must confine their contributions to questions and answers and not 

make statements or attempt to debate. 
 
QUESTIONS 
 
Set out overleaf are the questions which have been received. 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Agenda Item 7

Page 47



1 Question from Councillor Ann Jackson to the Lead Member for Housing 
and Development, Councillor Marc Francis  

 
 How many social rented homes were built in Tower Hamlets in 2007/8? 
 
  
2 Question from Councillor Peter Golds to the Lead Member for Culture 

and Leisure, Councillor Rofique Ahmed 
 

 Despite promises to the contrary over a long period, it would appear that the 
council is planning to split up and disperse the Borough's archive which is 
acknowledged as being one of the finest collections in the country. This 
proposal has been opposed by academics, residents, all political parties and 
east enders in general. Why is the Labour Council doing this in the face of 
such opposition? 

   
 
3 Question from Councillor Abjol Miah to the Lead Member for 

Regeneration, Localisation and Community Partnerships, Councillor 
Ohid Ahmed 

 
          The Olympic Delivery Authority have protected, under The London Olympic  

Games and Paralympic Games Act 2006, the following as trademarks: 
 
        •       The Olympic symbol 
        •       The Paralympic symbol 
        •       The London 2012 Olympic and Paralympic     

                           emblems 
        •       The words ‘London 2012’ and ‘2012’ 
        •       The words ‘Olympic’, ‘Olympiad’, ‘Olympian’  
        •       The words ‘Paralympic’, ‘Paralympiad’,     

                          ‘Paralympian’ and their plurals and things very   
                           similar to them – e.g. ‘Paralympix’ 

        •       The Olympic motto: ‘Citius Altius Fortius’ 
        •       The Paralympic motto: ‘Spirit in Motion’ 
        •       The Team GB logo 
        •       The Paralympics GB logo 
        •       The British Olympic Association logo 
        •       The British Paralympic Association logo 
        •       London2012.com (and various derivatives) 
 
This will preclude almost any commercial, social, charitable venture in Tower 
Hamlets utilising the Olympics to promote activities despite it taking place in 
our borough. 

 
Can the Leader of the council explain what provisions is the council seeking 
to negotiate with the ODA for exemptions to this punitive exercise in order to 
ensure our local community is able to secure the maximum benefit of hosting 
the games? 
 

Page 48



 
4. Question from Councillor Stephanie Eaton to the Lead Member for 

Housing and Development, Councillor Marc Francis 
 

What does he plan to do to reduce the level of overcrowding in the Borough's 
residential accommodation?         
 

 
5 Question from Councillor Lutfa Begum to the Leader of the Council, 

Councillor Lutfur Rahman 
 

Can the Leader please tell me the basis on which service charges for 
leaseholders are calculated?  Is this based on geographical area, social 
housing, leaseholder etc? 
 
 Some of the residents in social housing in Tower Hamlets are paying service 
charges of £600-700 per year.  Why are Malting, Brewster, Padstow, 
Barleycon and Bethlehem paying services charges of £2000 per year?  Most 
of these residents are leaseholders and pensioners who bought flats by the 
right to buy scheme. Presently they are having serious financial burdens 
placed on them. Can you explain why there is this huge difference in service 
charges in the same borough? Can you find out if they are being mistakenly 
over charged?  If not, the service charges need to reduce to the level 
that other Tower Hamlets residents are paying. 
 

   
6 Question from Councillor Fazlul Haque to the Lead Member for 

Children’s Services, Councillor Clair Hawkins 
 
          How will the £3.8 million London Youth Offer granted to  

Tower Hamlets by the Labour Government and Ken Livingston be invested in 
improving youth services for the Borough’s young people? 

  
   
7 Question from Councillor Tim Archer to the Lead Member for Housing 

and Development, Councillor Marc Francis 
 
 Can the lead member for housing outline what the delays   have been in 

setting up Tower Hamlets Homes, why these have occurred and what he will 
do differently to ensure that the ALMO is actually successful? 
 

 
8 Question from Councillor Harun Miah to the Lead Member for Resources 

and Performance, Councillor Joshua Peck 
 
          Does the lead member confirm the Council’s intention to impose market rate 

leases/rents on Third Sector organisations using council premises; explain 
how the resulting extra income will be used, and the impact on effectiveness 
and public service of any consequent conflicts arising from being forced into  
private partnerships, or landlord role with sub tenants, and  Third Sector 

Page 49



organisations’ values, aims and strategies. Does the lead member agree that 
the tradition of charging Peppercorn rents/leases to community and Third 
Sector organisations expresses the Council’s support for the services and 
contribution provided to community participation and cohesion? 
  

   
9 Question from Councillor Tim O’Flaherty to the Lead Member for Culture 

and Leisure, Councillor Rofique Ahmed 
 

Could the Lead Member outline the Council's criteria for offering financial 
support to cultural events in the coming year? 
 

   
10 Question from Councillor Md. Shahid Ali  to the Lead Member for 

Regeneration, Localisation and Community Partnerships, Councillor 
Ohid Ahmed 

 
           What progress has been made with the Bishop Square development?  In 
           particular, can the Lead Member tell us what has been secured for the    
           community in that locality? 

 
 

11 Question from Councillor Philip Briscoe to the Lead Member for 
Resources and Performance, Councillor Joshua Peck 

 
With Tower Hamlets in the news headlines for the wrong reasons again, can 
the Lead Member provide a breakdown by department of the £33million spent 
by the council on temporary and consultancy staff in the last year, along with 
reasons for doing so and outline any proposals for reducing this bill? 
  

   
12 Question from Councillor Azizur Rahman Khan to the Lead Member for  
           Children’s Services, Councillor Clair Hawkins  
    
            Could the Lead Member advise what she plans to do to reduce the level of    
            young people entering the criminal justice system? 
 
   
13 Question from Councillor Salim Ullah to the Lead Member for Cleaner, 

Safer, Greener, Councillor Abdal Ullah 
 

Can the Lead Member update us on Police performance in 2007/08, more 
specifically could he provide us with examples of successful operations or 
initiatives which have helped to reduce the impact of drugs and violent crime 
in the borough? 
 
 
 
 

 

Page 50



14 Question from Councillor Ahmed Hussain to the Leader of the Council, 
Councillor Lutfur Rahman 

 
Can the leader confirm that national policy is to promote more women 
councillors and leaders for the future, and how is this agenda being promoted 
by Tower Hamlets administration and governing party.  

   
 
15 Question from Councillor Motin Uz-Zaman to the Lead Member for 

Housing and Development, Councillor Marc Francis 
 
 What priorities have been identified for this year’s £6 million Estate 

Improvement Programme? 
 
   
16 Question from Councillor David Snowdon to the Lead Member for 

Cleaner, Safer, Greener, Councillor Abdal Ullah 
 
          Could the lead member comment upon whether the Council has investigated 

whether CCTV in the Borough has sufficiently good lights sources to enable 
good quality images to be captured in the evenings and at night time? 

   
 
17 Question from Councillor Shiria Khatun to the Lead Member for Housing 

and Development, Councillor Marc Francis 
 

Can the Lead Member for Housing and Development issue a statement on 
the implementation of the Arms Length Management Organisation – Tower 
Hamlets Homes?   

 
   
18 Question from Councillor Dr Emma Jones to the Lead Member for 

Cleaner, Safer, Greener, Councillor Abdal Ullah 
 

Will the Council be refunding illegally collected parking fines, and if so, how  
much is this expected to cost? 
  

   
19 Question from Councillor Bill Turner to the Leader of the Council, 

Councillor Lutfur Rahman 
 
            Would the Leader please outline the importance of participation in quasi-

judicial and scrutiny committees by members from across the Council. Is he 
able to provide examples of the invaluable work undertaken by members from 
across the council in these committees, and their role in ensuring that the 
Council meets its obligations as set out by law. What are the risks which 
might be faced by local residents if members decided not to participate in 
these committees? Can he provide examples? 
 
 

Page 51



20 Question from Councillor Rupert Eckhardt  to the Lead Member for 
Safer, Greener, Cleaner, Councillor Abdal Ullah 

 
            Will the lead member for transport, having noted the extensive press 

coverage outlining the concerns of residents of the isle of dogs regarding 
buses used as DLR replacement vehicles operating through narrow 
residential roads, outline what representations have been made to Transport 
for London at alleviate these concerns?   
  

   
21 Question from Councillor Shafiqul Haque to the Lead Member for Adults 

Health and Wellbeing, Councillor Anwara Ali 
 

What is the Council doing to reduce health inequality in Tower Hamlets?  Can 
the Lead Member cite some examples of what is being done? 
  

   
22 Question from Councillor Shirley Houghton to the Leader of the Council, 

Councillor Lutfur Rahman 
 

Will the Leader of the Council set out the number of times that Tower Hamlets 
Council has granted the power of a Compulsory Purchase Order to a private 
developer since 2000, and provide details of each occasion including the 
qualification of public good that was demonstrated in each case and also 
whether the CPO power was exercised by the developer? 

   
 
23 Question from Councillor Waiseul Islam to the Lead Member for 

Employment and Skills, Councillor Alibor Choudhury   
 
           How many unemployed Bangladeshis does the Council plan to find  
           employment for in Canary Wharf this year and what was the figure last year?  
           Can the Lead Member provide us with a figure on the total number of  
           Bangladeshis who have secured employment in professional firms in Canary 
           Wharf over the last two years?   

  
   
24 Question from Councillor Denise Jones  to the Lead Member for 

Resources and Performance, Councillor Joshua Peck  
 
           Can the Lead Member update Council on progress being made with Single 
           Status? 
 
 
25 Question from Councillor Alex Heslop to the Lead Member for Housing 

and Development, Councillor Marc Francis 
  
           Will the Lead Member for Housing & Development initiate any changes 

regarding the methodology for calculating the Management & Administration 

Page 52



Charges for leaseholders, following the outcome of the Leasehold Valuation 
Tribunal? 

 
 
26 Question from Councillor Rajib Ahmed to the Lead Member for Culture 

and Leisure, Councillor Rofique Ahmed 
 

Leading up to the Olympics what will Tower Hamlets contribute to the 
nationwide Cultural Olympiad and what does this mean for local people? 

Page 53



Page 54

This page is intentionally left blank



  
LONDON BOROUGH OF TOWER HAMLETS 

 
COUNCIL MEETING 

 
WEDNESDAY 25 JUNE, 2008 

 
ANNUAL REPORT OF OVERVIEW AND SCRUTINY 

 
REPORT OF THE ACTING ASSISTANT CHIEF EXECUTIVE 

 

 

 
 

 
1. Report 
 
1.1 Under the Council’s constitution, Overview and Scrutiny Committee must 

provide Council with an annual report that documents its activities over the 
past year. 

 
1.2 Overview and Scrutiny Committee considered and approved its annual report 

at their meeting on 6 May 2008.  The annual report is enclosed with the 
agenda papers. 

 
 
2. Recommendation 
 
2.1 Council is asked to note the annual report from Overview and Scrutiny. 
 
 
3 Comments of the Chief Finance Officer 
 
3.1 The annual report details the activities of the Overview and Scrutiny 

Committee over the past year.  This report does not have any significant 
financial implications. 

 
 
4 Concurrent Report of the Assistant Chief Executive (Legal) 
 
4.1 By virtue of Section 21 Local Government Act 2000 the Council has a duty to 

deliver effective and robust overview and scrutiny of the discharge of executive 
functions through the medium of one or more Overview and Scrutiny 
Committees. 

 
4.2 Article 6 of the Constitution provides that the Overview and Scrutiny 

Committee must report annually to the Council on its work and this report fulfils 
that obligation. 

 

Agenda Item 8.1

Page 55



Page 56

This page is intentionally left blank



 

 

 
 

 
 
 

Overview and Scrutiny 
Annual Report 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Tower Hamlets Council 
May 2008 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Page 57



Overview and Scrutiny – Annual Report 
May 2008 

2 

Index 
 
 
 Page 
 
Overview and Scrutiny in Tower Hamlets 
 

 
3 

 
Overview and Scrutiny 
Cllr Marc Francis, Chair 
 

 
5 

 
Living Well  
Cllr Alex Heslop, Vice-Chair 
 

 
11 

 
Creating and Sharing Prosperity  
Cllr Alibor Choudhury 
 

 
12 

 
Excellent Public Services 
Cllr Mohammed Abdus Salique  
 

 
13 

 
Living Safely 
Cllr Salim Ullah 
 

 
15 

 
Learning Achievement and Leisure  
Cllr Ahmed Hussain  
 

 
16 

 
Health Scrutiny Panel 
Cllr Dr Stephanie Eaton 
 

 
18 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Page 58



Overview and Scrutiny – Annual Report 
May 2008 

3 

Overview and Scrutiny in Tower Hamlets 
 
 
Overview and Scrutiny looks at how the Council and its partners deliver services so that they 
meet local needs and contribute to the overall vision in the borough's Community Plan. It also 
monitors the decisions made by the Council's Cabinet to make sure that they are robust and 
provide good value for money. 
 
Overview and Scrutiny has statutory powers to review and scrutinise local health services and 
make recommendations to NHS bodies.  It also considers other issues of concern to local 
people, including services provided by other organisations, and advises the Cabinet, Council 
and sometimes other partners, on how those policies and services can be improved. 
 
Membership 
The Committee coordinates all Overview and Scrutiny work.  Reflecting the overall political 
balance of the Council during 2007/08 the Committee’s membership comprised five Labour 
councillors and one each from the Respect, Liberal Democrat, Respect (Unity Coalition) and 
Conservative parties. 
  
As well as the councillors, five other people served on the Committee.  They have specific 
responsibilities for education.  There were two representatives appointed by the Anglican and 
Roman Catholic Dioceses. There were also two parent governors. Each of these 
representatives can contribute to any matters discussed by the Committee but they can only 
vote on education issues. The final member was a non-voting representative of the Muslim 
community for education issues.  The decision to have this position was a local one in 
recognition of the large Muslim community in the borough. 
  
 
Scrutiny Chair and Leads 
The Chair of the Committee in 2007/08 was Councillor Marc Francis. The Chair oversees the 
work programme of the committee as well as taking a lead on monitoring the Council's budget. 
 
There are six 'Scrutiny Leads': one for each of the themes in the Tower Hamlets Community 
Plan, with a further lead on health issues.  The Scrutiny Leads were: 
• Cllr Alex Heslop (Labour) for “living well” focusing on improving housing and social care 

and Vice-Chair of Overview and Scrutiny Committee 
• Cllr Alibor Choudhury (Labour) for “creating and sharing prosperity” focusing on 

bringing investment into the borough and ensuring residents and businesses benefit 
from growing economic prosperity  

• Cllr Mohammed Abdus Salique (Labour) for “excellent public services” focusing on 
improving public services to make sure they represent good value for money and meet 
local needs  

• Cllr Salim Ullah (Labour) for “living safely” focusing on reducing crime, making people 
feel safer and creating a more secure and cleaner environment  

• Cllr Ahmed Hussain (Respect/Conservative) for “learning, achievement and leisure” 
focusing on raising educational aspirations, expectations and achievement, providing a 
wide range of arts and leisure, and celebrating the diversity of the community 

• Cllr Dr Stephanie Eaton (Liberal Democrats) for “health”, through the Health Scrutiny 
Panel, focusing on improving local health services and the co-ordination of different 
health service providers within the borough  

 

Page 59



Overview and Scrutiny – Annual Report 
May 2008 

4 

The Scrutiny Leads actively promote the work of Overview and Scrutiny with residents, 
partners and other stakeholders.  They also pick up any relevant issues on behalf of the 
Committee as a whole and led the working groups within their theme. 
 
There are two non-executive Members who also sit on the Committee. These were: 
 
Cllr Shahed Ali – June 07 – May 08 
Cllr Peter Golds – June 07 – February 08 
Cllr Oliur Rahman – February 08 – May 08  
 
They have contributed both to the work of the Committee and Scrutiny Review Groups. In 
particular their contribution on the call-ins, scrutiny spotlights and performance monitoring 
have been really useful in holding the Executive to account and also ensuring that our services 
meet the needs of our local residents. They have also been actively involved in a number of 
the Scrutiny Review Working Groups and have contributed to the formation of a number of 
recommendations from those groups.  
 
What does Overview and Scrutiny do? 
The Committee:  
• looks at how the Council is performing by monitoring key strategies and plans 
• looks at the Council’s budget and how it uses its resources 
• sets up time-limited working groups to look at issues in depth and make proposals for 

change.  Suggestions for topics may come from elected Members, full Council, the 
Cabinet or from local organisations and residents. 

• considers decisions made by the Cabinet that are ‘called in’.  This happens if there is 
concern about the decision or what information was considered 

• reviews briefly the reports that are going to Cabinet for decision and raises any 
concerns. 

 
As the Committee has such a broad responsibility, it focuses on a number of key priorities 
each year.  These make up an annual work programme for each of the Scrutiny Leads.  For 
each area there is usually one in-depth review, as well as other shorter pieces of work.  
 
Health Scrutiny 
The Government has given local councils specific responsibilities to scrutinise health services.  
The Health Scrutiny Panel was set up to do this and can look at any matter relating to health 
services within the borough, including hospital and GP services, health promotion and 
prevention.  This includes the way that health services are planned, how services are provided 
and how NHS organisations consult with local people.  
 
Under the Healthcare Commission's new Annual Healthcheck for all NHS trusts, the Health 
Scrutiny Panel can comment on local Trusts’ declarations against 24 Core Standards.  These 
cover seven areas: safety, clinical and cost effectiveness, governance, patient focus, 
accessible and responsive care, care environment and amenities and public health.  There is 
also a duty on local health services to consult with the Health Scrutiny Panel if they are making 
substantial changes to services. 
 
Annual Report 
This report provides a brief summary of the work of Overview and Scrutiny in 2007/08.  Each 
member of the Committee outlines the work that they have undertaken both in the reviews that 
they have led and also their work on the Committee.  
 
 

Page 60



Overview and Scrutiny – Annual Report 
May 2008 

5 

Overview and Scrutiny Committee 
Councillor Marc Francis, Chair 
 
 
This is the fourth year since we changed our arrangements for Overview and Scrutiny in 
Tower Hamlets.  These arrangements include: 
• a single co-ordinating Overview and Scrutiny Committee 
• five Scrutiny Leads scrutinising the Community Plan themes and one for Health matters 
• pre-decision scrutiny of Cabinet reports 
• performance monitoring by considering the Tower Hamlets Index, Strategic Plan, the 

Diversity and Equality Action Plan, Corporate Complaints and Members’ Enquiries 
• a robust call-in procedure 
 
We agreed a challenging and extensive work programme in July 2007 and I believe we have 
delivered on the majority of it.  Over the year, we regularly monitored our progress to make 
sure we remained on track to complete our work. 
 
This year, we have improved significantly the engagement with Lead Members at Committee.  
They have presented the majority of reports within their portfolio that the Committee 
considered, as well as responding to call-ins.  This is really important in making sure we hold 
the Executive directly to account and encouraging more discussion and debate among 
councillors.  
 
There has also been a good level of engagement with the public.  Firstly, the majority of our 
reviews sought the views and experiences of local people through visits and focus groups.  
And secondly, a number of deputations were made by members of the public at Committee, 
usually related to a call-in that was being considered. 
 
 
Performance Monitoring 
 
We monitor the Tower Hamlets Index (THI) every two months and twice a year the Council’s 
Strategic Plan and Diversity and Equality Action Plan.  We are the only formal councillor forum 
that does this and it’s important in making sure that our services are performing well.  I believe 
this worked effectively and helped Overview and Scrutiny understand and comment on the 
wider performance of services - a key part of improving the quality of life of local people. 
 
We also had monthly Scrutiny Spotlights at our Committee meetings for most of the Cabinet 
Members including the Leader and Deputy Leader of the Council.  At all the sessions Lead 
Members discussed the performance and challenges facing services in their area of 
responsibility.  This was particularly useful for us to discuss issues of concern and suggest 
ways performance could be improved.  It also helped involve Lead Members more in the 
scrutiny process and several of them commented how useful they found the opportunity to 
discuss policy and performance issues with non-executive councillors at Committee.  The 
Leader of the Council at her spotlight session commented that “Overview and Scrutiny made a 
valuable contribution to the work of the authority, both through detailed reviews and comments 
on items referred to and from Cabinet”.  
 
The Committee consistently challenged Cabinet Members on areas of underperformance, 
including library use, housing repairs and perhaps most importantly on recycling.  This last 
area was subject to a full-scale scrutiny review in 2006/07, and the committee was determined 
to ensure the implementation of those changes recommended in the final report.  
 

Page 61



Overview and Scrutiny – Annual Report 
May 2008 

6 

We also considered the Council’s annual Corporate and Social Care Complaints report and an 
update on the Members’ Enquiries system and performance.  All councillors were pleased to 
see the improved performance in responding to both complaints and Members’ enquiries. 
Councillors take up many complaints each year, and getting a quick and full response is an 
essential part of that work.  
 
 
Policy Framework 
 
Within the Council’s Policy and Budget Framework there are a number of key policy 
documents that set out how the Council will act.  The Overview and Scrutiny Committee 
consider these before Council agrees them and this year we discussed the following:  
 
• Licensing Authority Policy Statement  

The Committee welcomed and supported the Licensing Authority Policy Statement and 
recognised the extensive consultation that had occurred in its development. We agreed 
that the changes in the Statement will result in a more transparent licensing process 
and greater regulation and control of premises’ activities.  The Committee reinforced the 
importance of continuing improvement to the Licensing Policy and looks forward to the 
incorporation of the outcomes of the Scrutiny Review Panel’s investigation of the 
Licensing of Strip clubs. 

 
• Statement on Community Involvement  

The Committee examined the Statement of Community Involvement and welcomed the 
consultation process that had been undertaken.  The Committee acknowledged the 
importance of the document regarding the future of the Council and stressed the 
importance of facilitating effective community engagement in all aspects of planning.  
The Committee noted that at the Scrutiny Challenge Session on Determination of Major 
Planning Applications it was agreed that residents needed to be more involved and that 
all documents relating to this issue are made accessible to residents of the borough. 
 

• Youth Justice Plan 2008/2009 
We welcomed the Youth Justice Plan and the contribution it will make to public safety in 
Tower Hamlets.  We did raise a number of issues for Cabinet to consider which 
included quality of secure accommodation for young people, challenges faced in 
improving youth justice, sentencing trends, significant representation of Black and 
mixed raced boys in the criminal justice system, improved diversionary activities and 
that the issue of radicalisation should be explored in the Plan. The committee was 
particularly impressed with the Lead Member, Councillor Clair Hawkins, proposal for a 
Commission on Public Safety for Young People. 

 
• Disposal of Former Bishop Challoner School Site – Christian Street and Adjoining 

Playing Fields – Update Report 
Cabinet referred this report to Overview and Scrutiny Committee for their comments 
before they made their decision.  The Committee welcomed this opportunity and sought 
assurances from the Cabinet about minimising length of time when the sports field and 
community centre would be unavailable, ensuring no net loss of open space, 
negotiating with the developer to increase the percentage of affordable homes and that 
local residents should be fully consulted throughout the process.   

 
 
 
 

Page 62



Overview and Scrutiny – Annual Report 
May 2008 

7 

Scrutiny of the Budget 
 
We considered the Council’s budget at two of our meetings.   
 
In July we considered the Financial Outlook report and supported the Council's approach.  We 
recognised the Council’s strong record on financial management  but on specific elements and 
supported the inclusion of third sector grants / service level agreements in the base budgets 
for the purpose of calculating saving targets.  However, we felt the following areas needed 
further consideration:  
1. Maximising lobbying activities regarding the potential loss of ₤3m in the social care 

budget as a result of the removal of “damping” provisions; 
2. That resourcing in Democratic Services be continued at current level to ensure 

Members are able to undertake their role fully; 
3. Continuing to develop and refine our planning for the future, especially medium term 

financial planning and around reserves and contingencies 
 
In February, we considered Cabinet’s budget proposals for 2008/09.  Committee members 
challenged the Lead Member for Resources & Performance about the quality of consultation 
with residents and asked for improvements in future years.  We also looked in detail at 
concerns raised by trade unions about the efficiency savings in Adult Services and the impact 
these would have on local residents, but concluded that these savings were appropriate.  
Finally, we welcomed the significantly increased investment in frontline services and supported 
the 3.5 per cent increase in Council Tax. 
 
 
Pre-decision scrutiny 
The committee can submit questions about Cabinet reports before a decision is taken.  I feel 
we have strengthened this over the year and commented on 65 Cabinet reports (compared to 
41 last year).  Among these were: 
• Award for Contract for Taxi, Coach and Minibus Provision for Children with Special 

Educational Needs and Adults with Care Plan 
• Olympic Legacy – Securing Benefits for Tower Hamlets from the future use of venues  
• Tower Hamlets  Local Area Agreement – End of Year Review 
• Housing Investment Strategy – Establishment of Tower Hamlets Homes 
• Rich Mix Cultural Centre 
• Progressing Leaseholder Buy-backs to enable RSL Regeneration Scheme 
• Parking Plan – Results of Consultation on Hours of Parking Controls in A6 and C3 mini 

Zones 
• Hostel and Move-on Strategy 
• Options for Multi-Faith Burial Facility for Tower Hamlets  
• Annual Performance Assessment of Adult Social Care 2006/07 
 
Our questions and concerns provided further information at Cabinet and clarified some 
uncertainties thus improving the decision-making process.  The responses also inform 
councillors' decisions over call-ins.  For instance, as a result of pre-decision questions, 
Cabinet have referred the report on Integrated Commissioning of Health and Social Care 
services for adults to the Health Scrutiny Panel.  
 
 
Call-ins 
The Committee has considered sixteen call-ins this year. This is a slight decrease from last 
year when there were 19.  

Page 63



Overview and Scrutiny – Annual Report 
May 2008 

8 

Report Called-in O&S Decision 
Review of the Inclusion (SEN) Strategy Confirmed 

 
Tower Hamlets Environmental Strategy 2007 to 2010 Confirmed 
Housing Investment Strategy 2007/08 to 2011/12 Confirmed 
Transfer of the Teviot, Brownfield, Aberfeldy Estates Confirmed 
Ocean NDC Delivery Plan Confirmed 
Disposal of Former Bishop Challoner School Site Referred back to Cabinet 
Waste Disposal Contract - The Way Forward Confirmed 
Housing Investment Strategy - Establishment of Tower 
Hamlets Homes 

Confirmed 
Residential care for Older People in Tower Hamlets Confirmed 
Progressing Leaseholder Buy Backs to Enable RSL 
Regeneration Schemes 

Confirmed 
2 Gladstone Place - Granting of Development Lease Referred back to Cabinet 
Whitechapel Centre Confirmed 
Review of Street Markets Fees and Charges 2008/09 Confirmed 
Blackwall Reach Regeneration Project - Development 
Framework 

Referred back to Cabinet 
Draft Ocean New Deal for Communities Delivery Plan 
2008/9 

Confirmed 
Disposal of land at 10 Backchurch Lane E1  Referred back to Cabinet  

 
Debate of the call-ins was robust and rigorous.  We confirmed twelve decisions although on a 
number of these the Lead Members gave assurances that they would take some of the 
concerns raised on board.  For example, on the Residential care for Older People in Tower 
Hamlets the Corporate Director, Adults Health and Wellbeing, re-negotiated a better contract 
for the Council providing value for money. We asked Cabinet to reconsider the other four call-
ins.  Disappointingly, Cabinet reconfirmed its decision on the first three of these.  However, our 
alternative course of action on the disposal of 10 Backchurch Lane did help prompt Cabinet to 
adopt a more sustainable way forward in handling this disposal.   
 
It is also worth highlighting that because of the items called in, attendance by local people and 
other councillors has increased substantially at the Committee meetings.  This helps increase 
the profile of scrutiny and highlight the important role it has within the borough. 
 
Co-opted and Appointed Representatives 
 
After the difficulty in appointing all of the co-opted Members last year we have now managed 
to recruit the two parent governors and three faith representatives. We organised an Induction 
Session for co-opted members and considered how we could develop their role and help them 
be more effective.  The Muslim Community Faith representative attended the Challenge 
Session on re-visiting the Youth Service Plan Scrutiny Review and commented on how useful 
it was to see how the department had taken forward the groups recommendations. He was 
also involved in the initial review and suggested a number of ways the service could continue 
its progress.  
 
We intend to build on this further next year to enable co-opted Members to help us engage 
more local residents in the scrutiny process and ensure that more of their concerns come to 
the Committee’s attention.   
 
 

Page 64



Overview and Scrutiny – Annual Report 
May 2008 

9 

Raising the Profile 
We continue to improve how and when we communicate with Members, Officers and the 
public.  We used the weekly Members’ Bulletin regularly.  The Manager’s Briefing and the staff 
newsletter, Pulling Together, were also used to promote scrutiny work, so that council officers 
are well informed about the scrutiny work programme, upcoming reviews, review findings, and 
how they can assist.   
 
East End Life and our Scrutiny web pages are also vehicles to keep residents informed about 
the work scrutiny was undertaking.  A number of the reviews attracted significant interest from 
local people, particularly the Licensing of Strip Clubs and tackling anti-social behaviour.  More 
detail of these is included in the reports by the Scrutiny Leads. 
 
The Scrutiny review from 2003/04 - ‘Employment & Cohesion’ - was recognised as an 
example of good practice by the Centre for Public Scrutiny. They highlighted how equalities 
issues can be incorporated into the scrutiny review process to improve performance and also 
reach out to hard to reach communities.  In their publication, ‘Equal to the Task’, they 
highlighted the good practice and recommended it to other councils.  This along with the 
recent restructure of the Chief Executive’s Directorate which created the Scrutiny and 
Equalities Service Team was an opportunity to highlight the importance of combining tackling 
inequality with strengthening community leadership. Officers from the Scrutiny Team have 
presented on this both at national and regional conferences and events.  
 
Checking our own progress 
Twice a year we monitor the recommendations we have made, not just those at committee but 
also those from our reviews and other investigations.  Services are asked to provide an update 
so we can see whether progress is being made.  The latest monitoring indicates that nearly all 
of our recommendations since July 2004 are being acted on or achieved.  We also held two 
challenge sessions to revisit reviews under taken last year and in 2004/05.  This included the 
reviews on access to GP/dentistry services and the Youth Service Plan both of which are 
further described by the Scrutiny Leads within this annul report.  I feel these sessions have 
highlighted the impact scrutiny has on service delivery and helped us think about how to 
improve the scrutiny process.  
 
One key area of improvement that the committee needs to focus on in future years is the level 
of participation by back bench councillors in the Scrutiny Reviews.  We recognise that 
members have many other commitments and that the meetings were mostly packed into a 
three-month period after Christmas.  Nevertheless, these reviews were heavily dependent 
upon the involvement of a small group of committed councillors.  We hope that each of the 
Party Leaders will encourage all members of their Political Group to take an interest in at least 
one of the Scrutiny Reviews in future. 
 
Councillor Call for Action (CCfA) 
We have begun work with colleagues across the Council and our partners in developing a pilot 
for the Councillor Call for Action.  Discussions are underway and we hope to incorporate this 
into our work programme for next year, depending on when guidance from the government is 
published  
 
Licensing of Strip Clubs 
In addition to the scrutiny reviews undertaken by the Scrutiny Leads this year, I also led one 
on the Licensing of Strip Clubs.  This review arose from a Council motion with cross-party 
support, and sought to get to grips with an issue that has provoked strong feelings from many 
residents.  Throughout the course of the review, questions of morality were never far from the 

Page 65



Overview and Scrutiny – Annual Report 
May 2008 

10 

surface, but Members were careful to ascertain what could be done before deciding on what 
should be done. 
 
The Working Group held sessions with officers from the Council’s Licensing and Legal team, 
the Police, residents, and officers from several other London authorities.  We also considered 
evidence – best practice, case studies, and data – gathered from sources across the country, 
in order to come to our conclusions and recommendations. 
 
We have proposed a series of practical recommendations –notably around increased levels of 
enforcement, advertising, consultation with residents on new applications, and an exploration 
of existing policies and legislation to see if more could be done.  We also recommended 
lobbying the Government for legislation change, with the support of local and national groups 
and other authorities. 
Residents acknowledged the review as a signal of the Council taking their concerns more 
seriously, and clearly felt pleased with the level of input they were able to have into the 
process. The review served as a good example of how Scrutiny can enable the Council to 
engage with residents on important issues, and take positive action.  
 
Conclusion 
 
Overall, I believe the Overview & Scrutiny Committee has made considerable progress this 
year.  In particular, having Lead Members attend the Committee to present reports and outline 
the reasons for decisions has significantly enhanced the role and value of scrutiny.  We are 
holding the Executive to account - particularly around performance monitoring and through 
considering call-ins – and influencing Cabinet decisions.  The reviews have also made an 
important contribution to addressing local people’s concerns – for example, around tackling 
anti-social behaviour, licensing of strip clubs – and worked with partners, officers and other 
councillors to improve services.   
 
In the pipeline are Government proposals to extend the role of scrutiny around health 
consultation and working with Local Strategic Partnerships (LSP) to monitor and implement 
Local Area Agreements (LAA).  This is an exciting time to be part of Scrutiny and I believe that 
our work this year has equipped us to strengthen the impact of the committee in the future.   

Page 66



Overview and Scrutiny – Annual Report 
May 2008 

11 

Living Well  
Cllr Alex Heslop, Vice-Chair of Overview and Scrutiny Committee 
 
 
As Scrutiny Lead for Living Well, my remit covers housing, health and social care, and 
promoting healthy living.  As the Choice Based Lettings Scheme continues to generate a large 
number of Members Enquiries and much local interest, I wanted to review it to check how 
accessible the Scheme is and consider its wider impact on families and individuals. 
 
Scrutiny Review: Choice Based Lettings Scheme 
 
Alongside the high volume of Members Enquiries on Choice Based Lettings, overcrowding and 
homelessness are established challenges for the borough.  The review focused on 
accessibility of the scheme particularly for older and disabled people.  It was an extensive 
review which looked at medical assessments, homelessness, resident and stakeholder 
understanding of the Scheme and policy and transparency of decision making in allocating 
properties. 
 
I facilitated a service improvement focus group of both users and providers which proved to be 
invaluable by identifying particular issues around access and community understanding.  We 
also visited the East London Lettings Company to learn about how other service providers 
meet the challenges of improving access and community understanding.  
 
Key issues noted by the Working Group were the complexities of managing the policy and the 
varying level of community understanding of the Scheme. 
 
It has been a challenging and exciting review to work on but I believe we have come up with 
some challenging recommendations focusing on the following key themes: 
 

• Improving customer access and community cohesion 
• Improving quality and outcomes for community groups 
• Tackling overcrowding 
• Widening choice and access to social housing   

 
For example we have recommended introducing allocation of social housing based on waiting 
time on the housing register, this issue has been debated in Housing for a number of years, 
now it is time to look at how this might work in practice. There is a possibility that Housing 
services could potentially join the East London Lettings Company which is an exciting 
opportunity to look at how access can be expanded with prospects for residents to get real-
time feedback on any bids they make, addressing many local concerns.  
 
The review concluded that the service has a challenge in providing housing in the context of 
high demand, acute housing needs and insufficient supply. The Scrutiny Review provides an 
opportunity to address service improvements and supports the proposed service improvement 
agenda of the Arms Length Management Organisation. 
 
Conclusion 
 
Although the Housing Department have pioneered the Accessible Housing Register, improved 
information for disabled people and is recognised for the work on overcrowding, we cannot 
stand still in striving to improve the service given its impact on many of the most vulnerable 
members of our community. We hope our recommendations provide a starting point for the 
debate about how these improvements are achieved. 

Page 67



Overview and Scrutiny – Annual Report 
May 2008 

12 

Creating and Sharing Prosperity  
Cllr Alibor Choudhury 
 
 
 
Despite the developments around Canary Wharf and the City, Tower Hamlets remains one of 
the most deprived boroughs in the Country.  Although progress has been dramatic in many 
areas over recent years, we remain determined to accelerate improvement even further.  As 
Scrutiny Lead for Creating and Sharing Prosperity I wanted to explore the partnership 
approach we have taken to tackle deprivation locally and achieve lasting renewal.  
 
Evaluating NRF 
When deciding on my work programme I wanted to focus on the reality that in our borough 
poverty is still experienced by too many people evidenced by the high uptake of means tested 
benefits, high unemployment and worklessnes and high crime rates.  Consequently I was 
determined to focus my work on what we are doing to create better outcomes in our most 
deprived areas. 
 
I decided to undertake a review on evaluating the Neighbourhood Renewal Fund (NRF), to 
see how this funding has contributed to the improvement of our deprived areas.  Over the 
course of the review, the working group heard evidence from the Tower Hamlets Partnership 
on how it approached the allocation of NRF to improve mainstream provisions.  We also met 
with Chairs and Vice-chairs from the Local Area Partnerships (LAPs) to discuss how NRF has 
made a difference in their localities.  Furthermore we held a session with Council officers from 
the Children Looked after Central Team and Access to Employment Team both of them 
managed projects funded by NRF, to discuss if there had been a narrowing of the gap 
between the most deprived areas and the rest. 
 
I feel the review has successfully identified recommendations for allocating future regeneration 
grants in particular the new Working Neighbourhood Fund.  It has also highlighted the 
important role Members, LAP representatives and local residents need to play in identifying 
priorities and leading on the implementation of some of the projects.  
 
Major Planning Applications 
We seek to improve the quality of life of the people living, working, and visiting Tower Hamlets 
by ensuring there are opportunities for high quality development.  I was interested to know 
more about how the Council determines major planning applications and chaired a challenge 
session to increase understanding and awareness of the pre-planning application process.  
The Group made strong recommendations about consultation and involvement that I hope will 
help inform and involve residents when major planning applications are made. 
 
Conclusion 
As Scrutiny Lead for Creating and Sharing Prosperity, I believe evaluating how NRF has been 
spent and how major planning applications are determined will help to address local needs.  I 
believe the Council and our partner agencies need to continue to deliver real change in 
reviving economies, creating safer communities and offering high quality public services. 
 
 

Page 68



Overview and Scrutiny – Annual Report 
May 2008 

13 

Excellent Public Services 
Cllr Mohammed Abdus Salique 
 
.  
The Excellent Public Services Scrutiny portfolio is wide-ranging, cutting across all Council 
Directorates and services provided by our partners.  My role on Overview and Scrutiny this 
year has been to ensure we are providing value for money and are delivering services in ways 
that meet local needs.   
 
Use of Consultants 
This year’s review focused on the way we procure consultancy services within the Council.  
The review recognised that consultants are needed to lever in additional resources and skills.  
At the same time it is important to ensure that we achieve maximum value for money and that 
the Council considers using existing staff or builds in skills transfer and staff training wherever 
possible. 
 
The key aims of the review were to look at the circumstances in which Consultants are used 
by Directorates and to explore current practices in engaging and managing consultant 
contracts.  Therefore the working group reviewed expenditure on consultants from 2005/06 
onwards and looked at a number of case studies.  These included the use of consultants to 
deliver business process improvement exercises and in developing the borough’s Masterplans 
(spatial planning documents).  
 
We found that there was sometimes a lack of coherence about how consultants should be 
contracted and differences between Directorates about defining consultants which meant that 
there were different methods for recording expenditure.  The working group welcomed the 
downward trend in the proportion of spend on consultants and that the majority of consultants 
were being used to deliver short term project work or to meet statutory regulations which 
require third party involvement for example to carry out Environmental Impact Assessments.   
 
The review recommendations included the proposal for a corporate definition of consultants 
and the promotion of good practice to procure consultants in the future by the Council.  
 
Translating and Interpreting Services 
The provision of translation and interpreting services by local authorities has been a major 
area of focus following the completion of the Commission on Integration and Cohesion.  There 
have been a number of recent government briefings and guidance documents covering the 
emerging debate on the need to promote English language skills as a tool for developing 
community cohesion provided the background for reviewing our own service provision in this 
area.  The Challenge Session explored the issues in greater detail to understand the impact of 
these policy developments on local communities in the borough.  
 
The Council will be looking to compare findings of this Challenge Session with London 
Borough of Hackney in the next municipal year.  
 
Conclusion 
This has been a productive year because I think that the recommendations of the review will 
help to achieve value for money and increase the use of existing staff and encourage 
employee skills development in a much more coherent and consistent way across the Council.  
I believe this will improve the transparency of the way we work and improve services for local 
people. 
 

Page 69



Overview and Scrutiny – Annual Report 
May 2008 

14 

Living Safely 
Cllr Salim Ullah  
 
 
We expect everyone to take pleasure in living and working in Tower Hamlets, without the fear 
of violence, intimidation and attack.  But crime still remains at the top of the list of concerns for 
most residents.  As Scrutiny Lead for Living Safely I wanted to investigate the extent of Anti-
Social behaviour in Tower Hamlets and the effectiveness of the Safer Neighbourhood Teams 
in our Wards. 
 
Tackling Anti Social Behaviour (ASB) 
Anti-Social Behaviour can range from serious violence and harassment to noisy neighbours 
and dumping rubbish but any of these can be distressing to both individual and the whole 
community.  I decided to focus on a review exploring the possible future direction of the 
Council’s Anti-Social Behaviour strategy, in line with national developments and policy. 

 
Over the course of the review, the working group met officers from the Tower Hamlets 
Community Safety Service and representatives from the Local Strategic Partnership including 
officers from the Metropolitan Police Service and the Tower Hamlets Youth Service.  We also 
held a couple of focus groups with local residents and young people to hear different 
perspectives of how ASB should be tackled. 
 
I believe we have to continue to see ASB as a major area of residents’ concerns.  The working 
group have requested that officers from the Council and Registered Social Landlords (RSLs) 
provide information on how they are meeting the six strands of the Respect agenda.  This 
would include supporting families particularly the most challenging ones, improving behaviour 
and attendance in schools, activities for children and young people, strengthening 
communities through effective enforcement and community justice.  It is my belief that our 
recommendations are robust and will assist the Council’s fight to continue to reduce ASB. 
 
 
Effectiveness of Safer Neighbourhood Teams (SNTs) 
SNTs are trained to communicate with a wide range of people, communities and partners, to 
tackle and solve community problems about quality of local life, for instance ASB, criminal 
damage, abandoned vehicles and graffiti.  I chaired a one-off challenge session to evaluate 
the role of SNTs on our streets.  Key recommendations arising from this session included; 
greater advertising of the role of SNTs so that residents are aware of their work and the need 
to improve the retention rates of officers. 
 
 
Conclusion 
ASB is an important issue consistently raised as an area of concern in Annual Residents 
Survey and we need to remain focused to find solutions.  With the help of officers, guided by 
the Tower Hamlets ASB strategy statement and Partner agencies I am confident that we will 
continue to see a steady decline in ASB activity.  Furthermore I am a strong advocate of SNTs 
and hope that we can look to increase the number of teams in all our wards in the foreseeable 
future to continue their good work.  
 

Page 70



Overview and Scrutiny – Annual Report 
May 2008 

15 

Learning Achievement and Leisure  
Cllr Ahmed Hussain  
 
 
As Scrutiny Lead for Learning, Achievement and Leisure, my remit focuses on raising 
educational aspirations, expectations and achievement, providing the widest range of arts and 
leisure opportunities for all and celebrating the rich cultural diversity of our communities.  With 
the Olympics on our doorstep I wanted to focus on leisure services and access particularly for 
young disabled people.  I was keen to ensure that young people of all abilities increase their 
participation in sports leading up to 2012. I also undertook a Scrutiny Challenge Session to 
revisit a previous scrutiny review on the Youth Service Plan.  
 
Scrutiny Challenge Session: Youth Service Plan 
In the Challenge Session I set out to examine the progress of a previous scrutiny review on 
Youth Service Plan and the impact this had on service delivery.  At the same time it was an 
opportunity to reflect on the role of scrutiny.  Youth service is important in Tower Hamlets 
particularly because of the high proportion of young people and changing population and I 
wanted to make sure that more recent concerns were brought to the attention of the service 
through this challenge session.  
 
The Working Group made a number of recommendations around further involving and 
developing Member understanding, involving local voices in service planning and delivery, and 
supporting and improving access for community groups. 
 
Scrutiny Review: Young People’s participation in sports leading up to the Olympics  
Tower Hamlets is one of the host boroughs for the Olympics which is a fantastic opportunity 
for us all.  I wanted to make sure young people get an opportunity to take part in the 
momentum generated by the Olympics and be encouraged to take up more sports and 
physical activities and improve their health.  
 
Young people should strongly influence decisions we make.  I talked to young people at the 
Youth Fair, local leisure centres, through schools, youth centres, third sector organisations and 
parents and carers at the Mile End Hospital Children with Disabilities Physiotherapy 
Department. Their views were invaluable in helping us to agree the final recommendations. 
 
Having considered current initiatives and the views of local people, key recommendations to 
come out of the review focused on the themes below: 

• Supporting and improving access; 
• Experiencing the Games;  
• Partnership working and, 
• Focusing on health.  

 
For example young people said they are interested in playing and training in a range of sports 
and we have recommended that the service provides coaching and training based on the 
expressions of interest by young people, including making provisions as part of the Building 
Schools for the Future Programme. I'm excited by the potential the Olympics has to offer for 
local young people, recommendations framed around partnership working and experiencing 
the Games will open many doors to our young people in terms of their experience of 
engagement with young people in other host boroughs and giving them access to world class 
facilities that the Olympics will offer. 
 
 

Page 71



Overview and Scrutiny – Annual Report 
May 2008 

16 

A new development arising from this scrutiny review was the production of a short DVD to 
illustrate how scrutiny works, and how the community leadership role of councillors can lead to 
change and influence decisions after listening to the voices of local people.  
 
Conclusion 
I am pleased that we have such fantastic facilities in Tower Hamlets and that the opportunities 
offered by the Olympics should help us establish contact between different groups in different 
boroughs and promote community cohesion.  I am looking forward to seeing this work 
progress.   
 
 
 

Page 72



Overview and Scrutiny – Annual Report 
May 2008 

17 

Health Scrutiny Panel 
Cllr Dr Stephanie Eaton 
 
The Health Scrutiny Panel undertakes the Council’s functions under the Health and Social 
Care Act, 2001.  The Panel includes members who are co-opted from the three NHS Trust 
Patient Public Involvement (PPI) forums to represent patient views.  Next year the 
establishment of the Local Involvement Network will replace the forums and I would like to 
take the opportunity to thank Dr Amjad Rahi from the Barts and the London NHS  Forum, Mr 
Nuruz Jaman from the Tower Hamlets Primary Care Trust Forum and Mr John Lee from the 
East London NHS Foundation Trust Forum for their contributions.  I would also like to thank 
Councillor Dr Emma Jones (Vice-Chair) who kindly chaired meetings in my absence.  
 
This was the second year of the four year work programme developed by the Health Scrutiny 
Panel. We looked to build on the work undertaken last year by still retaining our focus on 
reducing health inequalities. We undertook a Challenge Session in which we were pleased to 
note the progress in implementing the recommendations from last year’s review on access to 
GP/ dentistry services.  
 
The Panel undertook two service visits this year. At the Barkantine Centre Members were 
given a tour of the facilities available at the new centre. We also visited the East London NHS 
Foundation Trust at their base in Mile End Hospital. Both these visits were useful in developing 
the panel’s relationship with the Trusts and understanding of service provision by the NHS.  
 
 
Tobacco and Smoking Cessation 
The key Health Scrutiny review this year looked at Tobacco and Smoking Cessation both from 
the perspective of Health Services and in terms of the Tobacco Control work carried out by the 
Council’s Trading Standards team.  
 
The Health Scrutiny Panel took a distinctively local approach to the problems that arise in our 
community from the use of tobacco products.  We looked at the supply of cheap (often illegal) 
tobacco products through our street markets, and researched the availability of these to young 
people.  The review also considered the high smoking prevalence among Bangladeshi men 
and the use of paan more widely in Bangladeshi homes.  
 
A key part of the review focused on the materials used to promote tobacco cessation and the 
Panel were surprised at the lack of any comprehensive evaluation of ‘what works’.  There was 
also anecdotal evidence that health care workers such as midwives, occupational therapists 
and community mental health workers struggle to include smoking cessation advice with their 
other guidance and support to patients.    
 
The recommendations cover a range of areas including the need to improve data collection, 
local engagement strategies, the evidence base, enforcement and advice to retailers.  We 
hope that these recommendations will be implemented quickly and in full.  The human and 
financial cost to our community of continued ill health and premature death demands we 
address the threat of tobacco with vigour and urgency. 
 
Shah Jalal Medical Centre 
This year the Panel held a number of additional meetings to investigate reports of problems at 
the Shah Jalal Medical Centre, both in terms of the appointments system and issues around 
the physical accessibility and treatment of patients.  We welcome the significant measures 
taken by the PCT to respond to the issues raised and the positive impact this has had for 
patients using the practice.  At the final meeting to discuss the issue the PCT reported that the 

Page 73



Overview and Scrutiny – Annual Report 
May 2008 

18 

phone system had been changed to allow more people to get through and staff were being 
trained to improve the levels of customer care and that the new measures had already started 
to improve services for patients. 
 
Pan-London Joint Overview and Scrutiny Committee 
The NHS London report, Healthcare for London: A Framework for Action has set out a radical 
vision for how healthcare services would be provided in the future.  Authorities across London 
including from neighbouring Counties convened the Joint Overview and Scrutiny Committee 
(JOSC) to prepare a response to the consultation on the proposals.   
 
Both I and Cllr Marc Francis were nominated to represent the borough on the JOSC and it has 
been a challenging experience where we have engaged with complex health issues 
considering both local needs and the need to develop a strategic-level voice on London-wide 
issues.    
 
There are wide-ranging recommendations emerging from the JOSC bringing issues such as 
transport, patient involvement, equalities and equity of service provision to the fore.  We look 
forward to the NHS London response to our findings and recommendations. 
 
The Annual Healthcheck 
The Healthcare Commission assesses all NHS Trusts in the UK against 24 Core Standards 
covering the seven areas of safety, clinical and cost effectiveness, governance, patient focus, 
accessible and responsive care, care environment and amenities and public health.  
 
The Panel reviewed the Annual Healthcheck Declarations of all three Trusts as part of the 
Annual Healthcheck process and has provided comments based on evidence gathered over 
the past year.   
 
The issues raised included the poor performance of Maternity Services at Barts and the 
London Hospital, the need for more Bangladeshi Nurses and used the findings of the tobacco 
and smoking cessation review to comment on the Trusts’ self-assessment.  I am pleased that 
all the Trusts responded positively to our comments and are taking measures to address them. 
 
Conclusion 
It has been another positive and very full year for the Health Scrutiny Panel.  We have carried 
out an ambitious review and responded flexibly to local concerns such as working to resolve 
the problems experienced at the Shah Jalal Medical Centre.  At the last meeting of the Panel 
we also considered a Draft Health Scrutiny Protocol which I hope will be reviewed and 
adopted in the coming year and help to continue to develop a closer working relationship with 
the three NHS Trusts serving the borough.   
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Page 74



Overview and Scrutiny – Annual Report 
May 2008 

19 

Scrutiny and Equalities in Tower Hamlets 
 
 
 
 
If you want to find out more about Overview and Scrutiny in Tower Hamlets, please contact the 
Scrutiny Policy Team:  
 
Please contact: 
 
Scrutiny Policy Team 
Tower Hamlets Council 
6th Floor, Mulberry Place 
5 Clove Crescent 
London 
E14 2BG 
 
Tel:  0207 364 4636 
Email:  scrutiny@towerhamlets.gov.uk 
Web:  towerhamlets.gov.uk/scrutiny 
 
 
 
 
 

Page 75



Page 76

This page is intentionally left blank



D:\moderngov\Data\AgendaItemDocs\7\0\4\AI00015407\Item82MailForwardingCouncilReport0.doc 
1 

LONDON BOROUGH OF TOWER HAMLETS 
 

REPORT OF THE CABINET 
 

07 MAY 2008 
 

To receive the report of the Cabinet at its meeting held on Wednesday 07 May 2008. 
 
 
The Members who attended our meeting were: -  
 
Councillor Denise Jones (Chair)  (Leader of the Council) 
Councillor Sirajul Islam (Vice-Chair) (Deputy Leader of the Council) 
Councillor Ohid Ahmed  (Lead Member, Regeneration, Localisation and 

Community Partnerships) 
Councillor Abdul Asad (Lead Member, Employment and Skills) 
Councillor Shafiqul Haque (Lead Member, Development) 
Councillor Claire Hawkins (Lead Member, Children's Services) 
Councillor Shiria Khatun (Lead Member, Culture) 
Councillor Joshua Peck (Lead Member, Resources and Performance) 
Councillor Abdal Ullah (Lead Member, Cleaner, Safer, Greener) 
Councillor Motin Uz Zaman (Lead Member, Health and Wellbeing) 
Other Members present: - 
 
Councillor Shahid Ali 
Councillor Stephanie Eaton (Leader Liberal Democrat Group and Scrutiny Lead 

Member: Health) 
Councillor Marc Francis (Chair, Overview and Scrutiny Committee) 
Councillor Peter Golds (Leader Conservative Group) 
Councillor Waiseul Islam 
Councillor Oliur Rahman  
Councillor David Snowdon 
 
 
1. Mail Forwarding Businesses Registration (CAB 161/078)  
 

We considered a report (attached as Appendix A to this council report) which 
informed us that The London Local Authorities Act 2007 gave London Boroughs the 
opportunity to register Mail Forwarding Businesses as a consumer protection measure 
and that the report before us explained the rationale and process for the adoption of 
this legislation by this Authority. 
 
We endorsed that the Mail Forwarding Registration functions under section 75 of the 
London Local Authorities Act 2007 come into force in the London Borough of Tower 
Hamlets on the appointed day of 25th August 2008 and agreed that Council be 
recommended to approve this. 
 
We agreed that subject to the setting of the appointed day, referred to above:  
 

Agenda Item 8.2

Page 77



D:\moderngov\Data\AgendaItemDocs\7\0\4\AI00015407\Item82MailForwardingCouncilReport0.doc 
2 

(i) That the Corporate Director Communities, Localities and Culture be authorised 
to undertake the functions set out in Section 75 of the London Local Authorities 
Act 2007, relating to mail forwarding registration, on behalf of the Authority; and 

 
(ii) That the Corporate Director Communities, Localities and Culture be authorised 

to set the fee for mail forwarding registration at £92 with the fee for new 
applications to rise annually in line with the Retail Price Index. 

 
We therefore recommend Council to: - 
 
Agree that the Mail Forwarding Registration functions under section 75 of the London 
Local Authorities Act 2007 come into force in the London Borough of Tower Hamlets 
on the appointed day of 25th August 2008.  
 
 

Councillor Denise Jones 
Chair of the Cabinet 

 
LOCAL GOVERNMENT ACT 1972 SECTION 100D (AS AMENDED) 

LIST OF "BACKGROUND PAPERS" USED IN THE PREPARATION OF THIS REPORT 
 

Brief description  Tick if copy  If not supplied, 
of “background paper” supplied name and telephone 
number of holder 
 
Cabinet Agenda – 07/05/08  Angus Taylor 
Record of decisions  020 7364 4333  
Cabinet Meeting 07/05/08. 

Page 78



D:\moderngov\Data\AgendaItemDocs\7\0\4\AI00015407\Item82MailForwardingCabinetReport0.doc 
 

1 
1 

 
1. SUMMARY 
 
1.1 The London Local Authorities Act 2007 gave London Boroughs the opportunity 

to register Mail Forwarding Businesses as a consumer protection measure. This 
report explains the rationale and process for the adoption of this legislation 

 
 
2. RECOMMENDATIONS 
 
 Cabinet is recommended to:- 
 
2.1 To agree and recommend to Council that the Mail Forwarding Registration 

functions under section 75 of the London Local Authorities Act 2007 will come 
into force in the London Borough of Tower Hamlets on the appointed day of 25th 
August 2008; 

 
2.2 Subject to the setting of the appointed day, referred to in recommendation 2.1 

above, by the Council:  
 

(i) Authorise the Corporate Director Communities, Localities and Culture to 
undertake the functions set out in Section 75 of the London Local Authorities 
Act 2007, relating to mail forwarding registration, on behalf of the Authority; and 

 
(ii) Authorise the Corporate Director Communities, Localities and Culture to set 
the fee for mail forwarding registration at £92 with the fee for new applications 
to rise annually in line with the Retail Price Index. 

______________________________________________________________________ 
Local Government Act 1972 (as amended) Section 100D 

List of “Background Papers” used in the preparation of this report 
 
Brief description of  “back ground papers”  Name and telephone number of holder  

and address where open to inspection. 
 
London Local Authorities Act 2007     Colin Perrins-  Tel 0207 364 6872

Committee: 
 
Cabinet 
 

Date: 
 
07 May 2008 

Classification: 
 
Unrestricted  
 
 

Report No: Agenda 
Item: 

Report of:  
 
Corporate Director  
Stephen Halsey – Communities, 
Localities and Culture 
 
Originating officer(s)  
Colin Perrins 
Head of Trading Standards & 
Environmental Health (Commercial) 
 

Title:  
 
Mail Forwarding Businesses Registration 
 
Wards Affected:  
 
All 
 

Page 79



D:\moderngov\Data\AgendaItemDocs\7\0\4\AI00015407\Item82MailForwardingCabinetReport0.doc 
 

2 
2 

3. BACKGROUND 
 
3.1 The London Local Authorities Act 2007 received Royal Assent on 19 July 2007. 

Amongst a number of enabling powers for London Boroughs it introduces new 
legal controls on mail forwarding businesses where none existed. The controls 
were lobbied for by the London Boroughs Trading Standards Departments. 
Under section 75 a number of offences are created and robust powers of 
enforcement provided. The new requirements for a mail forwarding business are 
to register with the Council, keep records of persons using mail forwarding and 
holding services including copies of two pieces of identification, to retain the 
records for one year after the service has expired and make them available for 
inspection by the police and authorised officers. 

 
3.2 A mail forwarding business is one where a postal address is made available to a 

person for the receipt of postal packets that are held for collection or forwarded 
on. Postal addresses made available by mail forwarding businesses in Tower 
Hamlets are often prestigious and attract users both nationwide and 
internationally. There are estimated to be close to 80 mail forwarding businesses, 
within the meaning of the Act, in Tower Hamlets and any one may have anything 
from fifty to several thousand clients. Clients are wide ranging from individuals 
through to limited companies.  

 
3.3 In the absence of existing legal requirements to keep records, most mail 

forwarding businesses do not require copies of identification of clients and many 
keep insufficient or no records at all. Some have a reputation for operating on a 
‘no questions asked basis.’ In seeking information from mail forwarding 
businesses the level of co-operation afforded to enforcement officers will vary 
and where no or insufficient records are kept, tracing clients involved in criminal 
activities will be virtually impossible. 

 
3.4 The Tower Hamlets Trading Standards service receives a significant number of 

complaints regarding traders / business clients who use the services of mail 
forwarding businesses. Often money has been sent in response to various kinds 
of scams and frauds. The services of mail forwarding business are also used by 
those involved in serious crime who take advantage of the confidentiality assured 
by the service and lack of record keeping to avoid detection. 

 
3.5 Historically mail forwarding businesses were required to register with the Police 

and keep records under the Official Secrets Act 1920 however this Act was 
repealed in 2000. In January 2006 Tower Hamlets Trading Standards service 
introduced a local voluntary scheme designed to encourage co-operation by mail 
forwarding businesses with law enforcement officers which required the keeping 
of records of clients including two pieces of identification. The scheme had limited 
success with uptake not being universal.  

 
 

Page 80



D:\moderngov\Data\AgendaItemDocs\7\0\4\AI00015407\Item82MailForwardingCabinetReport0.doc 
 

3 
3 

3.6 The London Local Authorities Act seeks to deal with mail forwarding businesses 
that make no effort to obtain identification, keep records or co-operate with 
enforcement officers. It also seeks to close a door currently open to rogue traders 
who hide behind the façade of a mail forwarding business. The legislation makes 
provision for the council to have robust and practical criminal powers (to enter 
premises and seize goods and documents) with sufficient penalties to act as a 
deterrent. The requirement to register with the council will assist in the 
identification and location of mail forwarding businesses. 

 
3.7 If the Council resolves that section 75 is to be brought into force in Tower 

Hamlets, it will not be possible to carry on a mail forwarding business in Tower 
Hamlets unless it is registered with the Council.  This will apply to existing and 
new mail forwarding businesses. Apart from having to register with the Council, a 
person carrying on a mail forwarding business will be required to keep a record 
of: 

 
a) the full name, address, and telephone number of all persons for whom 
post is received or who has requested postal packets received to be held 
or forwarded to them.  
 
b) the nature of the business carried out by that person 
 
c) any instructions as to delivery and forwarding of postal packets 
 
d) the name and address of person(s) to whom postal packets are to be 
forwarded, if different from a) above 
 
e) copies of originals of two documents approved by the Council for the 
purposes of identifying the person and verifying the address(es) required 
in a) above. 

 
3.8 The types of identification considered to be relevant are listed in Appendix 1.  The 

services of a mail forwarding business are used by all types of person and 
business the list has been compiled to reflect this. This list will be subject to 
periodic review and revision by the Head of Trading Standards and 
Environmental Health (Commercial),   
 

3.9 A mail forwarding business is required to keep records for at least a year after the 
end of an arrangement to hold or forward on postal packets and to keep them 
available for inspection by the police or any authorised officer at all reasonable 
times. 
 

3.10 The requirement to register and keep records does not apply to holders of 
licences for postal services e.g. Royal Mail. 
 

Page 81



D:\moderngov\Data\AgendaItemDocs\7\0\4\AI00015407\Item82MailForwardingCabinetReport0.doc 
 

4 
4 

3.11 It is a criminal offence to: fail to comply with the provisions of the section or; to 
furnish false information for the purposes of either registration/alteration to the 
register or to a mail forwarding business in relation to particulars they are required 
to keep; to make a false entry in records kept by a person carrying on a mail 
forwarding business. The maximum penalty is a fine not exceeding level 5 on 
summary conviction.  
 

3.12 A period of grace has been built into the 2007 Act whereby the requirement not to 
carry on a mail forwarding business without registration and the duty to keep 
records does not apply until four weeks after the appointed day. 

 
3.13  The appointed day has been set for 25th August 2008 so as to allow sufficient 

time for the publication requirements in the London Local Authorities Act 2007 to 
be met. 

 
4.         Financial Issues 
 
4.1 The Act allows a reasonable fee to be charged for registration, calculated by 

reference to the cost of dealing with applications for such registration. This fee is 
thus based on a cost recovery basis only, and therefore no additional income 
stream for the Council will be generated.   

 
4.2 The fee is a one off fee as no provision is made in the legislation for renewal or 

charging for changes to registration details. Currently the estimated number of 
potential applicants is 80, and there are no known figures regarding the rate of 
new applicants entering the market place. 

 
4.3 The cost of dealing with applications for registration has been calculated at £92, 

the detailed breakdown of which is shown in Appendix 2. 
 
4.4 As these are estimated figures it is considered that a fee of £92 per application is 

appropriate in the circumstances. 
 
4.5 As with other licences and registrations with discretionary fees it is suggested the 

fee is raised by the RPI every year, starting in April 2009. this will be in line with 
the procedure for other charges, which are annually reviewed in April each year. 

 
4.6 Given the anticipated number of registrations in, the fee income will offset 

additional administration costs of registration and enforcement. No additional 
resources are being requested to apply and enforce the Act. Therefore the 
impact is cost neutral. 

 
5. COMMENTS  OF THE CHIEF FINANCIAL OFFICER 
 
5.1 There are no specific implications for the Council from this proposal, since the 

cost of administration will be fully recovered from the fee income. 

Page 82



D:\moderngov\Data\AgendaItemDocs\7\0\4\AI00015407\Item82MailForwardingCabinetReport0.doc 
 

5 
5 

 
 
 
6 CONCURRENT REPORT OF THE ASSISTANT CHIEF EXECUTIVE (LEGAL) 
 
6.1 The regulation of Mail Forwarding Businesses is governed by Section 75 London 

Local Authorities Act 2007 which section only comes into effect in any particular 
borough when the relevant London Borough Council has set an ‘appointed day’. 

 
6.2     The Act provides a procedure for so doing which includes advance notice and 

publication prior to the date set as the appointed day.  The resolution to fix an 
appointed day must be made by the Full Council 

 
6.3     The timetable for implementation of the regulation of Mail Forwarding Businesses 

has taken account of the need for the matter to be determined by Council and for 
the statutory procedural requirements to be met which will enable the appointed 
day to be fixed as 25 August 2008. 

 
 
7. EQUAL OPPORTUNITIES IMPLICATIONS 
 
7.1 There are no equal opportunities implications. 
 
8. ANTI-POVERTY IMPLICATIONS 
 
8.1 As with other Consumer Protection areas the disadvantaged are 

disproportionately affected when they lose out to unfair trading practices 
 
9. SUSTAINABLE ACTION FOR A GREENER ENVIRONMENT 
 
9.1 There are no SAGE issues 
 
10. RISK MANAGEMENT IMPLICATIONS 

 
10.1 There is a reputational risk to the Council if the Legislation is not implemented.  

Rogue traders do use mail forwarding businesses.  Should a rogue trader, as has 
happened before, use a Tower Hamlets mail forwarding business, it would fall to 
Trading Standards to deal with the complaints from aggrieved.  If the rogue 
trader proves to be untraceable because of inadequate or non –existent identity 
checks, then the Council could suffer criticism for not implementing legislation 
within its purview requiring proper identification. 

 
 
 
 
 

Page 83



D:\moderngov\Data\AgendaItemDocs\7\0\4\AI00015407\Item82MailForwardingCabinetReport0.doc 
 

6 
6 

11. APPENDICES 
 

Appendix 1 – Identification Proposals 
Appendix 2 -  Cost Analysis 

Page 84



D:\moderngov\Data\AgendaItemDocs\7\0\4\AI00015407\Item82MailForwardingCabinetReport0.doc 
 

7 
7 

 
Appendix 1: Acceptable Identification 

 
One document from each list below is required. 
 
1. Photo identification 
 

• Passport 
• Driving Licence (with photocard) 
• National Identity Card 
• HM Forces Identity Card 
• A current student card 
• Connexions card 
• Employment identification card 
• Freedom travel pass 
• Disabled drivers blue pass 

 
2. Non photo identification provided both name and address is shown. 
 

• Gas or Electricity bill 
• Telephone bill 
• Water bill 
• Mortgage Statement 
• Council Tax bill 
• Bank / Building Society statement (includes credit card and store card bill) 
• TV licence 
• Valid insurance certificate 
• Pay slip 
• P45/P60 statement 
• Financial statement (e.g. pension, endowment) 
• Current benefit book 
• Letter from Benefits Agency 
• HM Revenue and Customs Notice of Coding 
• Student hall of residence agreement or other proof of accommodation 

 
 
   

Page 85



D:\moderngov\Data\AgendaItemDocs\7\0\4\AI00015407\Item82MailForwardingCabinetReport0.doc 
 

8 
8 

 
 
 
Appendix 2: 
 
Table showing estimated costs of Registration for Mail Forwarding Service for 
each Registration   
 
 
Staff Member Time (Hrs) Cost £ 
   
Admin Officer 1.16 23.64 
Trading 
Standards Officer 0.67 19.26 
Principal Trading 
Standards Officer 0.17 5.46 
Direct 
Disbursements-
postage, 
supplies, etc 

  5.00 

Other running 
costs, 
management, 
and directorate & 
corporate 
support costs 

  38.64 

Total   92.00 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Page 86



1 

LONDON BOROUGH OF TOWER HAMLETS 
 

REPORT OF THE CABINET 
 

11 JUNE 2008 
 

To receive the report of the Cabinet at its meeting held on Wednesday 11 June 2008. 
 
 
The Members who attended our meeting were: -  
Councillor Lutfur Rahman (Chair)  (Leader of the Council) 
(Deputy Leader of the Council) 
Councillor Ohid Ahmed  (Lead Member, Regeneration, Localisation and 

Community Partnerships) 
Councillor Rofique U. Ahmed (Lead Member, Culture and Leisure) 
Councillor Anwarra Ali (Lead Member, Health and Wellbeing) 
Councillor Alibor Choudhury (Lead Member, Employment and Skills) 
Councillor Marc Francis (Lead Member, Housing and Development) 
Councillor Claire Hawkins (Lead Member, Children's Services) 
Councillor Joshua Peck (Lead Member, Resources and Performance) 
Councillor Abdal Ullah (Lead Member, Cleaner, Safer, Greener) 
Other Members present: - 
 
Councillor Shahid Ali 
Councillor Abdul Asad (Chair Overview and Scrutiny Committee) 
Councillor Stephanie Eaton (Leader Liberal Democrat Group and Scrutiny Lead 

Member: Health) 
Councillor Ahmed Hussain (Scrutiny Lead Member: Learning, Achievement and 

Leisure) 
Councillor Denise Jones 
Councillor Abjol Miah (Leader of the Respect Group) 
Councillor Oliur Rahman (Leader of the Respect Unity Coalition Group) 
Councillor Salim Ullah (Chair Appeals Committee and Scrutiny Lead 

Member: Living Safely) 
 
 
 
1. Tower Hamlets Community Plan 2020 and Local Area Agreement (CAB 006/089)  
 

We agreed the special circumstances and reasons for urgency as follows: 
 
• The report before us was unavailable for public inspection within the standard 

timescales set out in this Authority’s Constitution, because of the continuation of 
negotiations with Government Office for London over the indicators and targets 
to be included within this Council’s Local Area Agreement which it had been 
anticipated would be completed in time for publication of the agenda before us. 

• The Local Area Agreement is the recognised delivery vehicle for the Community 
Plan and the principal target setting mechanism between central and local 
government.  It was vital that the Community Plan and Local Area Agreement 
were consistent and aligned to allow proper consideration of the report by 
members of this Authority. 

Agenda Item 8.3

Page 87



2 

 
We considered a report (attached as Appendix A to this council report) which informed 
us that: - 
Community Plan 2020 
• It presented through its appendices– the Tower Hamlets Community Plan 2020 

and Local Area Agreement (LAA) 2008-11.  
 

• These comprised elements of this Authority’s Budget and Policy Framework and 
in accordance with the requirements of the associated constitutional procedure 
the comments of the Overview and Scrutiny Committee would be tabled at our 
meeting on 11 June 2008 for Members’ consideration.  We were required by this 
Authority’s Constitution to take account of the views of our Overview and 
Scrutiny Committee, before submitting our recommendations to Council on 25 
June 2008. 

 
• The Local Government Act, 2000, places on local authorities a duty to prepare 

“community strategies” for promoting or improving the economic, social and 
environmental well-being of their areas.  Local authorities are now also required 
to produce a Local Area Agreement, which must be agreed by central 
government and should be based on the priorities identified in the Community 
Strategy.   

 
• The Community Plan 2020 is the borough’s community strategy. This Authority 

has a statutory responsibility for its preparation and plays a leading role in 
developing and agreeing the Plan through the Tower Hamlets Partnership. The 
Community Plan falls within the Budget and Policy Framework and in 
accordance with the Council’s Constitution, must be agreed by Full Council. 

 
• The existing Tower Hamlets Community Plan had served the Partnership and 

Borough well producing significant outcomes and fostering joint working across 
the borough. However the national and local context however had changed 
significantly and it was therefore timely to refresh the Community Plan and for 
the Partnership to develop a renewed vision and refreshed priorities for Tower 
Hamlets looking towards 2020. 

 
• The involvement of local residents has been central to the Community Plan 

review with consultation and engagement activities beginning in summer 2007, 
followed up with further consultation with different groups within the Community. 

 
• A cross-partnership working group was created to help develop the new 

Community Plan and LAA, as well as inform the emerging Local Development 
Framework.  As part of their work, they brought together and considered a 
strategic needs analysis of the borough. 

 
• The new Community Plan aimed to: 

o articulate the aspirations, needs and priorities in a way that is meaningful 
to everyone who lives and works in Tower Hamlets 

o strengthen the ‘story of place’ – in particular the uniqueness and local 
dimensions of Tower Hamlets 

o highlight the current and future challenges for the borough 

Page 88



3 

o outline the contributions required from all perspectives in achieving the 
vision, including everyone who lives and works in the borough  

o strengthen the key objectives and targets so they have a greater 
partnership focus 

To achieve this, the Community Plan is structured in two parts: 
o Part one set out the Tower Hamlets context highlighting some of the key 

challenges and opportunities facing the borough through to 2020.  It 
described the process of producing the Plan and outlines the vision and 
themes.  

o Part two identified the specific challenges and aspirations, key priorities 
and objectives and outlines some of the underpinning strategies and 
delivery arrangements.   

 
• The Plan included the three year Local Area Agreement targets against which 

the Partnership would measure progress.  These were awaiting final agreement 
of the Local Area Agreement.  

  
• The draft Community Plan 2020 has been consulted on across the Partnership 

in a variety of ways.  The feedback from the consultation has been positive, with 
strong support from residents, who generally felt that the plan addressed the 
main challenges facing the borough and was accessible.  The Tower Hamlets 
Partnership Management Group strongly endorsed the Community Plan 2020 at 
its meeting on 20 May 2008. 

 
Local Area Agreement 2008 - 2011 
• This Authority, like all authorities, was required to prepare a new Local Area 

Agreement (LAA) for approval by June 2008.  Local Area Agreements were 
becoming a critical part of the relationship between central and local 
government, with Government viewing them as the primary delivery vehicle for 
Community Plans. They were the only mechanism through which local 
government would set targets with central government. The LAA was required to 
comprise up to 35 indicators taken from Government’s new national indicator set 
of 198.   

 
• This Authority’s LAA had been developed alongside the Community Plan and 

was structured around its themes and priorities.  There has been considerable 
Partnership discussion around the criteria and rationale for including particular 
indicators within the Borough’s agreement.   

 
• LAAs are a negotiation between the Partnership, represented by the Council, 

and Central Government, represented by Government Office for London (GoL).  
During the negotiation process, Government may question both the inclusion 
and potential exclusion of particular priorities and indicators, as well as the 
ambition and stretch of the associated targets.  This Borough’s proposed LAA 
was attached at Appendix 3 to the report before us. In a number of cases, 
targets could not be set until 2009/10 and some indicators were still subject to 
ongoing negotiations.  

 
• The deadline for submitting the proposed LAA to GoL was 30 May 2008.  To 

allow full discussion of the LAA with this Authority’s new Leadership, Officers of 
the Authority negotiated ,with GoL, a submission date of 6 June with the final 

Page 89



4 

LAA to be submitted with Full Council approval by 27 June 2008.  This was a 
legal requirement through a direction from the Secretary of State. However the 
proposed LAA was submitted after consultation with the Leader of the Council 
(and Chair of the Tower Hamlets Partnership) and the Vice-Chair of the Tower 
Hamlets Partnership. 

 
• Once the LAA was finally agreed, the targets would be included in the 

Community Plan 2020. 
 
 
We considered and noted the advice and comments of our Overview & Scrutiny 
Committee, in respect of the report before us, detailed in a paper presented to us for 
our consideration, by our Chair of the Overview and Scrutiny Committee, Councillor 
Asad. 
 
Our Chair commented that he had attended the Overview and Scrutiny Committee the 
previous evening and had found the debate relating to both the Community Plan 2020/ 
LAA and the Strategic Plan/ BVPP very constructive. Our Chair requested that the final 
draft of these documents, to be presented to Council, reflect the advice and comments 
arising from these deliberations, as he considered this would strengthen the aspirations 
contained therein. 

 
Our Interim Service Head Strategy and Performance, Mr Steward, at the request of our 
Chair, responded to the matters raised by our Overview and Scrutiny Committee, held 
on 10th June 2008, in his introduction of the report.  Mr Steward: 
• Outlined the chronology and methodology associated with the development of 

the Community Plan 2020/ LAA, and the themes and priorities that had 
emerged.   

• Set out the next steps including strengthening these documents in the areas 
indicated by the Overview and Scrutiny Committee, and in particular with 
reference to the support of affordable housing and social for rent housing 
provision, prior to submission to Council on 25th June 2008. 

• Advised us that once the LAA had been agreed with Government, the targets 
would be included in the Community Plan with those for the first 3 years being 
explicit to facilitate accountability. 

• Assured us that although only 35 indicators had been selected for the LAA from 
the national basket of 198, on the basis of partnership response and an 
evaluation of their contribution to the theme One Tower Hamlets, the Authority’s 
performance would continue to be measures against all 198 indicators. 

• Informed us that as many of the indicators in the LAA were new a review would 
be undertaken at the end of the first year of the agreement to establish if the 
targets were sufficiently robust and stretching. 

 
Our detailed discussion of the draft Community Plan 2020/ LAA, during which we 
broadly welcomed the proposals and also extended our thanks to our Councillor Jones, 
former Leader of the Council, Our Councillor Asad, former Lead Member Employment 
and Skills, and our Partnership Management Group and the Officer team for their 
contribution to the development of the Plan and Agreement before us, focused on the 
following:  
• The need for further Member level discussion around the setting of targets 

relating to provision of social for rent housing, units of accommodation of 3 or 
Page 90



5 

more bedrooms and homelessness. Our Councillor Francis, Lead Member 
Housing and Development, commented that Government had recognised this 
Authority’s good performance in relation to the latter 2 areas, but considered 
that, in partnership with the voluntary and community sectors, performance 
could be stretched to improve outcomes still further. Our Councillor Francis 
requested that we be provided with figures for targets not included in the draft 
LAA prior to its consideration at Council. 

• The relevance of indicator NI 154 ”Net Additional Homes” to the Borough and 
instead a greater focus on indicator NI155 “Affordable Homes delivered”.  

• The inclusion of a more ambitious target relating to indicator NI 158 “Decent 
Homes” once funding from Government was secured as a result of the 
achievement of a 2 star Arms Length Management Organisation. 

• Consideration that inclusion of indicator NI 160 “Local authority tenants’ 
satisfaction with landlord services” amongst the 35 indicators of the LAA would 
have been a positive step for the Authority, but understanding the reasons why it 
had not been included, it was requested that it be used as a local indicator for 
the time being. 

• Strengthening the emphasis on provision of affordable housing and family 
housing. 

• Consideration that further work was needed to embed the Community Plan 
theme “One Tower Hamlets” across the other 4 themes. Also with reference to 
page 14 of Appendix 1 “Tower Hamlets Community Plan 2020” , to the report 
before us, consideration that the section setting out how to achieve “One Tower 
Hamlets” should be made more distinct from the previous section and required 
greater clarity as to responsibility for delivery. 

• Consideration that an even more accessible version of the Community Plan 
2020/ LAA should be made available for young people with a view to usage as a 
citizenship tool in schools. 

• Consideration that overall the sense of poverty and ill health in Tower Hamlets 
was underplayed in the draft Community Plan 2020/ LAA and the inclusion of 
further statistical and narrative detail was required in parts of the document 
relating to health and housing. 

• The need to ensure that the Community Plan theme “A Healthy Community” was 
cross referenced to and congruent with the Public Health Strategy. 

• The need to communicate the priorities and objectives relating to the Community 
Plan theme “One Tower Hamlets” to staff at all levels of this Authority, and that 
to help embed reflection upon the meaning of these to individuals  that 
consideration be given to the addition of a paragraph to all committee reports 
entitled “One Tower Hamlets Implications”. 

 
Our Interim Service Head Strategy and Performance, Mr Steward, and our Chief 
Executive Mr Smith, responded to requests for clarification/ assurance, in relation to a 
number or matters including:-  
• The furnishing of Members with the targets for inclusion in the Community Plan 

2020/LAA, to be derived from the LAA agreed with Government, as soon as 
practically possible. 

• With reference to page 30 of Appendix 1 “Tower Hamlets Community Plan 
2020”, to the report before us, the absence of detail relating to the new structure 
of the Tower Hamlets Partnership. 

• With reference to page 5 of Appendix 3 “Tower Hamlets LAA Targets”, to the 
report before us, the deferral of target setting relating to the indicator NI7 

Page 91



6 

“Environment for a thriving third sector” and the timescales envisaged for the 
setting thereof. 

 
Our Councillor Rofique Ahmed, Lead Member Culture and Leisure, considered it 
appropriate, that our Chief Executive should also consult our Lead Member 
Regeneration, Localisation and Community Partnerships, prior to making any 
amendments to the Community Plan 2020 and Local Area Agreement (LAA) 2008-11 
prior to final publication. Our Councillor Ahmed therefore proposed, for our 
consideration, that the recommendation contained in paragraph 2.2 of the report before 
us be amended accordingly. 

  
Our Councillor Peck, Lead Member Resources and Performance, considered that 
targets pertaining to the Priority “Support vibrant town centres and a cleaner, safer 
public realm” and the Indicator NI195 “Improved street and environmental cleanliness” 
detailed in Appendix 3 “Tower Hamlets LAA Targets”, to the report before us, were not 
sufficiently ambitious; and accordingly proposed an amendment to the 
recommendation set out in paragraph 2.1 of the report, for our consideration, as 
follows:- 
 

“That the Local Area Agreement 2008-2011 (Appendix 3) be endorsed subject to 
amendment of the provisional target for NI195 “Improved Street and Environmental 
Cleanliness” as follows: 
• Detritus - to 2008/09 13%, 2009/10 11% and 2010/11 10% 
• Fly Posting - to 2008/09 3%, 2009/10 2% and 2010/11 2%.” 
 

Our Chair then Moved the recommendations contained in the report before us, taking 
account of the amendments proposed by our Councillors R. U. Ahmed and J. Peck. 

 
We endorsed the Tower Hamlets Community Plan 2020, attached at Appendix 1 to the 
report (CAB 006/089), and Local Area Agreement 2008-2011, attached at Appendix 3 
to the report (CAB 006/089), the latter subject to amended targets for NI195 “Improved 
Street and Environmental Cleanliness” set out below. We further agreed that Council 
be recommended to approve the Plan and LAA, subject to any appropriate 
amendments to ensure that they are accurate and reflect the views of Members;  

 
We authorised our Chief Executive, after consultation with our Leader of the Council, 
(and Chair of the Partnership), our Lead Member Regeneration, Localisation and 
Community Partnerships, and our Vice-Chair of the Partnership, to make appropriate 
amendments to the Tower Hamlets Community Plan 2020 and LAA 2008-11 in 
advance of final publication. 
 
We agreed that the provisional target for NI195 “Improved Street and Environmental 
Cleanliness” within the Tower Hamlets LAA Targets (Appendix 3) be amended as 
follows: 
• Detritus - to 2008/09 13%, 2009/10 11% and 2010/11 10% 
• Fly Posting - to 2008/09 3%, 2009/10 2% and 2010/11 2%.”

Page 92



7 

 
We therefore recommend Council to: - 
 
1. Approve the Tower Hamlets Community Plan 2020, attached at Appendix 1 to 

the report (CAB 006/089), and Local Area Agreement 2008-2011, attached at 
Appendix 3 to the report (CAB 006/089), subject to any appropriate 
amendments to ensure that they are accurate and reflect the views of Members;  

 
2. Authorise the Chief Executive, after consultation with the Leader of the Council, 

(and Chair of the Partnership), the Lead Member Regeneration, Localisation and 
Community Partnerships, and the Vice-Chair of the Partnership, to make 
appropriate amendments to the Tower Hamlets Community Plan 2020 and Local 
Area Agreement 2008-11 in advance of final publication. 

 
 

2. Strategic Plan, Annual Report and Best Value Performance Plan (CAB 007/089)  
 

We agreed the special circumstances and reasons for urgency as follows: 
 
• The report before us was unavailable for public inspection within the standard 

timescales set out in this Authority’s Constitution, because of the continuation of 
negotiations with Government Office for London over the indicators and targets 
to be included within this Council’s Local Area Agreement which it had been 
anticipated would be completed in time for publication of the agenda before us. 

• The Local Area Agreement is the recognised delivery vehicle for the Community 
Plan and the principle target setting mechanism between central and local 
government.  The Strategic Plan sets out this Council’s contribution to delivering 
both the Community Plan and the Local Area Agreement.  It was vital that the 
Community Plan, Local Area Agreement and Strategic Plan were consistent and 
aligned to allow proper consideration of the report by members of this authority. 

 
We considered a report (attached as Appendix B to this council report) which informed 
us that: - 
• It presented Tower Hamlets Council’s Strategic Plan (2008/09) (Section 3), the 

end of year monitoring update on the full 12 months of the 2007/08 Strategic 
Plan (Section 4), the Best Value Performance Plan (BVPP) and Annual Report 
(Section 5), and information on how these relate to this Authority’s financial 
outturns (Section 6). 

 
• The Strategic Plan and BVPP comprised elements of this Authority’s Budget and 

Policy Framework and in accordance with the requirements of the associated 
constitutional procedure the comments of the Overview and Scrutiny Committee 
would be tabled at our meeting on 11 June 2008 for Members’ consideration.  
We were required by this Authority’s Constitution to take account of the views of 
our Overview and Scrutiny Committee, before submitting our recommendations 
to Council on 25 June 2008. 

 
Strategic Plan 2008/09 

• The Strategic Plan 2008/09 had been developed to ensure that it: 

Page 93



8 

o Reflects this Authority’s contribution to delivering the Community Plan for 
2008/09 

o Establishes a new set of Strategic Indicators based on the indicators within 
this Authority’s new Local Area Agreement plus other priority National 
Indicators 

o Provides a strategic focus on Key Initiatives which contribute to the 
delivery of agreed priorities; more detailed activities will be incorporated 
within Directorate and Team Plans. 

 
• The plan has been informed by discussions with Cabinet members to prioritise 

key initiatives. 
• The structural elements comprised vision, context, the Council’s role, measuring 

progress, key initiatives/ milestones, planning and monitoring framework and 
use of resources. 

• It summarised the strategic themes (One Tower Hamlets, A Great Place to Live, 
A Prosperous Community, A Safe and Supportive Community, A Healthy 
Community) and associated priorities and objectives. 

• The outturn, target and benchmarks for key measures were currently being 
collated following year end and would be included within the final draft to 
Council.  As a number of the measures and indicators were new, it might not be 
possible to provide baselines or benchmarks in all areas but Officers would 
endeavour to provide complete data where possible.   

 
Strategic Plan 2007/08Monitoring Report 

• The Council’s performance framework required Members to consider the 
Authority’s progress against Strategic Plan Activities every 6 months, and the 
monitoring report, contained within the report before us, provided an update on 
the full 12 months of the 2007/08 Strategic Plan, including the number and 
proportion of milestones achieving performance allocated a red, amber or green 
traffic lights and analysis of the milestones, in particular the reasons for 
unsuccessful implementation. Also the criteria for allocating each traffic light 
status. 

 
• It summarised progress by Community Plan Theme and Directorate. 
 

BVPP and Annual Report 
• This Council’s Annual Report and Best Value Performance Plan, including an 

Annual Report on the progress made in 2007/08 would be presented to Full 
Council on 25 June. This was the last year that the Authority was statutorily 
required to publish the Best Value Performance Plan by 30th June. 

 
• The BVPP and Annual Report, contained within the report before us, comprised 

the following key documents which were yet to be finalised: 
 
o Appendix 2 – Annual Report for 2007/08, which reported on the 

Authority’s progress against key activities and performance indicators in 
the Strategic Plan. The Annual report content was prescribed by statute 
relating to the BVPP, therefore differing from the Strategic Plan 

Page 94



9 

monitoring also set out in the report before us, and was principally aimed 
at local residents. 

o Appendix 4 - (BVPI), Local Area Agreement (LAA), Local Public Service 
Agreement (LPSA) and Strategic Plan (SP) – outcomes against targets 
for 2007/08, which provided outturn and target data for all BVPILAA, 
LPSA and SP performance indicators.  Work was ongoing to verify the 
outturn data and there may therefore be amendments to the final tables 
before submission to Council and before final publication.  The final 
columns of the table provided an at-a-glance indication of whether the 
Authority had achieved its target and whether it had improved compared 
to last year.  Performance could be summarised as follows: of 247 
indicators 52.6% were red, with 47.4% green.  60.9% improved, while 
28.2% deteriorated and  22 of the indicators remained the same, a 
number of these had already reached maximum performance. 

o Appendix 5 Tables explaining any significant variances between targets 
and outcomes – above target and below target which required our 
attention. 

o Appendix 6 Statement on Workforce Matters required by Best Value 
legislation and meeting the Authority’s requirement to confirm that it is 
adopting the Code of Practice in its approach to workforce matters and 
contracting. 

o Appendix 7 Summary of Statement of Accounts  which was not currently 
available was also required by Best Value legislation. 

 
We considered and noted the advice and comments of our Overview & Scrutiny 
Committee, in respect of the report before us, detailed in a paper presented to us for 
our consideration, by our Chair of the Overview and Scrutiny Committee, Councillor 
Asad. 

 
Our Interim Service Head Strategy and Performance, Mr Steward, at the request of our 
Chair, responded to the matters raised by our Overview and Scrutiny Committee, held 
on 10th June 2008, in his introduction of the report. 

 
During our detailed discussion of the draft Strategic Plan and Best Value Performance 
Plan (BVPP), during which we broadly welcomed the proposals, the following point was 
also made with reference to Appendix 1 “Tower Hamlets Council Strategic Plan 
2008/2009”, Section 5 “Key Initiatives Year 1: April 2008 – April 2009” – “One Tower 
Hamlets” : 
� Targets for Performance Indicator SI3 “A workforce to reflect the community: 

percentage of top 5% earners that are disabled” were not sufficiently ambitious. 
 

Our Interim Service Head Strategy and Performance, Mr Steward, responded to 
requests for clarification/ assurance, in relation to a number or matters including:-  
With reference to Appendix 1 “Tower Hamlets Council Strategic Plan 2008/2009”, 
Section 5 “Key Initiatives Year 1: April 2008 – April 2009” – “One Tower Hamlets” 
 
� The targets for the next 3 years in relation to Performance Indicator SI2 “A 

workforce to reflect the community: percentage of top 5% earners that are 
women” were less ambitious than that for the current year. 

� The absence of targets for Performance Indicator SI6 “Percentage of Stage 1 
complaints completed in time”. 

Page 95



10 

 
Our Councillor Rofique Ahmed, Lead Member Culture and Leisure, considered it 
appropriate, that our Chief Executive should also consult our appropriate Lead Member 
prior to making any amendments to the Strategic Plan 2008/09 and Best Value 
Performance Plan (BVPP) prior to final publication. Our Councillor Ahmed therefore 
proposed, for our consideration, that the recommendation contained in paragraph 2.2 
of the report before us be amended accordingly. 

 
Our Councillor Peck, Lead Member Resources and Performance, considered that 
targets pertaining to the performance Indicator SI7 “Percentage of residents agreeing 
that the Council provides value for money for the Council Tax I pay” set out in 
Appendix 1 “Tower Hamlets Council Strategic Plan 2008/2009”, Section 5 “Key 
Initiatives Year 1: April 2008 – April 2009” – “One Tower Hamlets”, in the report before 
us, were not sufficiently ambitious; and accordingly proposed an amendment to the 
recommendation set out in paragraph 2.1 of the report, for our consideration as 
follows:- 
 

“That this Council’s Strategic Plan 2008/09 (Appendix 1) be endorsed subject to 
amendment of the provisional target for Performance Indicator SI7 “Percentage of 
residents agreeing that the Council provides value for money for the Council Tax I 
pay” set out in Section 5 “Key Initiatives Year 1: April 2008 – April 2009” – “One 
Tower Hamlets” as follows: 
• 2007/08 41%, 2008/9 46% and 2009/10 51%. 

 
Our Chair then Moved the recommendations contained in the report before us, taking 
account of the amendments proposed by our Councillors R. U. Ahmed and J. Peck. 
 
We endorsed  this Council's Strategic Plan 2008/09, subject to amended targets for 
Performance Indicator SI7 “Percentage of residents agreeing that the Council provides 
value for money for the Council Tax I pay” set out below, and also endorsed the end of 
year monitoring, Best Value Performance Plan and Annual Report . We further agreed 
that Council be recommended to approve these Plans, attached at Appendix 1 and 3 to 
the report (CAB 007/089) respectively, subject to necessary and appropriate 
amendments to ensure that the plans are accurate, coherent and reflect the views of 
Members;  
 
We authorised our Chief Executive, after consultation with our Leader of the Council 
and our appropriate Lead Member, to make appropriate and necessary amendments to 
the Strategic Plan 2008/09 and BVPP (2007/2008) in advance of final publication. 
 
We agreed that the target for Performance Indicator SI7 “Percentage of Residents 
Agreeing that the Council Provides Value for Money for the Council Tax I Pay”, within 
this Council’s Strategic Plan 2008/09 (Appendix 1), Section 5 “Key Initiatives Year 1: 
April 2008 – April 2009” – “One Tower Hamlets” be amended as follows: 
• 2007/08 41%, 2008/9 46% and 2009/10 51%. 
 

Page 96



11 

 
We therefore recommend Council to: - 
 
1. That Council approve the Council's Strategic Plan 2008/09, and Best Value 

Performance Plan, attached respectively at Appendix 1 and 3 to the report (CAB 
007/089) (Attached at Appendix B to this Council report), subject to 
necessary and appropriate amendments to ensure that the plans are accurate, 
coherent and reflect the views of Members;  

 
2. That the Chief Executive, after consultation with the Leader of the Council and 

the appropriate Lead Member, be authorised to make appropriate and 
necessary amendments to the Strategic Plan 2008/09 and BVPP (2007/2008) in 
advance of final publication; and 

 
 
 
 
 

Councillor Lutfur Rahman 
Chair of the Cabinet 

 
LOCAL GOVERNMENT ACT 1972 SECTION 100D (AS AMENDED) 

LIST OF "BACKGROUND PAPERS" USED IN THE PREPARATION OF THIS REPORT 
 

Brief description  Tick if copy  If not supplied, 
of “background paper” supplied name and telephone 
number of holder 
 
Cabinet Agenda – 11/06/08  Angus Taylor 
Record of decisions  020 7364 4333  
Cabinet Meeting 11/06/08. 

Page 97



Page 98

This page is intentionally left blank



Committee: 
 
Cabinet  
 

Date: 
 
11th June 2008 

Classification: 
 
Unrestricted 

APPENDIX ‘A’ TO 
COUNCIL AGENDA 
ITEM 8.3 

Report of: Acting Chief Executive 
 
Originating officer(s) 
Alan Steward, Interim Service Head, 
Strategy and Performance 
Kevin Kewin, Strategy Policy Manager 

Title:  
Tower Hamlets Community Plan 2020 and Local 
Area Agreement 
 
Wards Affected: All 

 
 

Special Circumstances and Reasons for Urgency 
 
• The report was unavailable for public inspection within the standard timescales set out 

in the Authority’s Constitution, because of the continuation of negotiations with 
Government Office for London over the indicators and targets to be included within the 
Council’s Local Area Agreement which it had been anticipated would be completed in 
time for publication of the agenda for this meeting of the Cabinet. 

 
• The Local Area Agreement is the recognised delivery vehicle for the Community Plan 

and the principal target setting mechanism between central and local government.  It 
was vital that the Community Plan and Local Area Agreement were consistent and 
aligned to allow proper consideration of the report by Members. 

 
1 Summary  
1.1 This report presents – through its appendices – the Tower Hamlets Community Plan 

2020 and Local Area Agreement (LAA) 2008-11.  
 
1.2 This falls under the Council’s Budget and Policy Framework and the comments of the 

Overview and Scrutiny Committee will be tabled at the Cabinet meeting on 11 June 
2008 for Members’ consideration.  

 
1.3 Cabinet is required by the Council’s Constitution to take account of the views of the 

Overview and Scrutiny Committee, before submitting recommendations to Full Council 
on 25 June 2008. 

 
2 Recommendations 
2.1 That the Tower Hamlets Community Plan 2020 (appendix 1) and Local Area 

Agreement 2008-2011 (appendix 3) be endorsed and that full Council be 
recommended to approve the Plan and LAA, subject to any appropriate amendments 
to ensure that they are accurate and reflect the views of Members. 

 
2.2 That the Chief Executive, after consultation with the Leader of the Council (and Chair 

of the Partnership) and Vice-Chair of the Partnership,  be authorised to make 
appropriate amendments to the Tower Hamlets Community Plan 2020 and LAA 2008-
11 in advance of final publication. 

 
 
 
 
 

Page 99



 2 

 
Local Government Act, 1972 (as amended) Section 100D 

List of  “Background Papers” used in the preparation of this report 
 

Brief description of  “background 
papers” 

Name and telephone number of holder and address 
where open to inspection. 

Community Plan and LAA Working 
Papers 
 
 
 

Kevin Kewin          020 7364 4075 
Mulberry Place, 
5 Clove Crescent, 
London E14 2BG  
 
 

 
3 Background 
3.1 The Local Government Act, 2000, places on local authorities a duty to prepare 

“community strategies” for promoting or improving the economic, social and 
environmental well-being of their areas.  Local authorities are now also required to 
produce a Local Area Agreement, which must be agreed by central government and 
should be based on the priorities identified in the Community Strategy.   

 
3.2 The Community Plan 2020 is the borough’s community strategy. The Council has a 

statutory responsibility for its preparation and plays a leading role in developing and 
agreeing the Plan through the Tower Hamlets Partnership. The Community Plan falls 
within the Budget and Policy Framework and in accordance with the Council’s 
Constitution, must be agreed by Full Council. 

 
4 Budget and Policy Framework Procedure Rules 
4.1 The Council’s Constitution, Part 4 – Rules of Procedure, Section 4.3 - Budget and 

Policy Framework Procedure Rules, as amended, sets out the process for the 
development of the Budget and Policy Framework, as defined by Article 4 of the 
Constitution. 

 
4.2 Paragraph 2.1 of the Budget and Policy Framework Procedure Rules  

• Require notification of the Chair of the Overview and Scrutiny Committee of the 
referral of such Policy Framework proposals. 

• Provide that the Overview and Scrutiny Committee receives 10 working days to 
respond to this consultation. 

 
4.3 Paragraph 2.1.4 of these procedure rules requires the Executive (the Cabinet) to take 

account of the views of the Overview and Scrutiny Committee before submitting 
recommendations to full Council as appropriate. 

 
4.4 Paragraph 2.1.5 makes provision for full Council to consider the proposals of the 

Cabinet and to subsequently adopt them, amend them, refer them back to Cabinet for 
further consideration or to substitute its own proposals in their place. 

 

Page 100



 3 

5 Community Plan 2020 
5.1 The existing Tower Hamlets Community Plan has served the Partnership and borough 

well producing significant outcomes and fostering joint working across the borough, 
not only with other agencies and organisations but also with local communities 
through the Local Area Partnerships (LAPs).   The national and local context however 
has changed significantly including the: 
• 2012 Olympic and Paralympics Games 
• Thames Gateway development 
• Changing Government legislation including the White Paper on Strong and 

Prosperous Communities and Comprehensive Spending Review 2007 
• Increasing importance of Community Cohesion and Sustainable Communities 

 
5.2 It is therefore timely to refresh the Community Plan and for the Partnership to develop 

a renewed vision and refreshed priorities for Tower Hamlets looking towards 2020. 
 
5.3 The involvement of local residents has been central to the Community Plan review 

with consultation and engagement activities beginning in summer 2007.  Based on the 
key consultation messages from 2005 onwards, over 400 local residents took part in 
LAP-based events to provide their thoughts and experiences on the borough they 
want to live in 2020.  This was followed up with further consultation with different 
groups including sessions with the Interfaith Forum, the Disabled Access Panel, 
Lesbian Gay Bisexual and Transgendered (LGBT) Forum and additional work with 
young and older people. 

 
5.4 A cross-partnership working group was created to help develop the new Community 

Plan and LAA, as well as inform the emerging Local Development Framework.  As 
part of their work, they brought together and considered a strategic needs analysis of 
the borough.  The Partnership has also led wider engagement work with partner 
organisations and stakeholders to ensure that they are involved in the development of 
the Plan.  This has included regular items at CPAGs, a bespoke session with local 
businesses, a Partnership Away-day in September and a Partnership-wide senior 
managers conference in November.    

 
5.5 The new Community Plan is different in format to the existing plan and aims to: 

• articulate the aspirations, needs and priorities in a way that is meaningful to 
everyone who lives and works in Tower Hamlets 

• strengthen the ‘story of place’ – in particular the uniqueness and local 
dimensions of Tower Hamlets 

• highlight the current and future challenges for the borough 
• outline the contributions required from all perspectives in achieving the vision, 

including everyone who lives and works in the borough  
• strengthen the key objectives and targets so they have a greater partnership 

focus 
 
5.6 To achieve this, the Community Plan is structured in two parts.  Part one sets out the 

Tower Hamlets context highlighting some of the key challenges and opportunities 
facing the borough through to 2020.  It describes the process of producing the Plan 
and outlines the vision and themes. 

 
5.7 Part two of the Plan identifies the specific challenges and aspirations, key priorities 

and objectives and outlines some of the underpinning strategies and delivery 
arrangements.  The Plan highlights the role that everyone who lives and works in 

Page 101



 4 

Tower Hamlets has in contributing.  The Plan includes the three year Local Area 
Agreement targets against which the Partnership will measure progress.  These are 
blank in the draft awaiting final agreement of the Local Area Agreement (see section 
6).  

  
5.8 The draft Community Plan 2020 has been consulted on across the Partnership both 

through the Partnership’s website, through meetings of the Community Plan Action 
Groups and a Reader’s Panel drawn from the Residents Panel.  The feedback from 
the consultation has been positive.  In particular, there was strong support from 
residents, who generally felt that the plan addressed the main challenges facing the 
borough and was accessible.  In addition, the Readers Panel highlighted the 
importance of ensuring that the Community Plan is promoted effectively and provided 
a number of suggestions to support its launch and distribution.  The CPAG 
consultation provided partner organisations with an opportunity to confirm support for 
the Plan and provide further suggestions for improvement.  This feedback has 
informed the Plan.       

 
5.9 The Tower Hamlets Partnership Management Group (PMG) endorsed strongly the 

Community Plan 2020 at its meeting on 20 May 2008. 
 
5.10 It may be necessary to make some amendments to the detail of the Community Plan 

2020 before final publication and agreement.  Any amendments will not materially 
affect them.  Cabinet and Full Council will be asked to delegate the authority to make 
such amendments as are appropriate to the Chief Executive, after consultation with 
the Leader (and Chair of the Tower Hamlets Partnership) and Vice Chair of the Tower 
Hamlets Partnership. 

 
6 Local Area Agreement 2008 - 2011 
6.1 Tower Hamlets, like all councils, is required to prepare a new Local Area Agreement 

(LAA) for approval by June 2008.  The borough’s existing agreement – which began in 
2006 - has been a success, helping to improve partnership working and outcomes 
across a wide range of areas.  Local Area Agreements are becoming more significant 
and a critical part of the new central-local relationship.  For example, the Government 
views them as the primary delivery vehicle for Community Plans and they are the only 
mechanism through which local government will set targets with central government. 
The LAA is an agreement which must be based around up to 35 indicators taken from 
the government’s new national indicator set of 198.   

 
6.2 Our LAA has been developed alongside the Community Plan and is structured around 

its themes and priorities.  There has been considerable Partnership discussion around 
the criteria and rationale for including particular indicators within the borough’s 
agreement.  The accompanying note submitted to GoL (appendix 2) provides a more 
detailed narrative justification of the Partnership’s proposed indicators.  

 
6.3 LAAs are a negotiation between the Partnership, represented by the Council, and 

Central Government, represented by GoL.  During the negotiation process, 
government may question both the inclusion and potential exclusion of particular 
priorities and indicators, as well as the ambition and stretch of the associated targets.  
The borough’s proposed agreement is attached as appendix 3. In a number of cases, 
targets cannot be set until 2009/10 and some indicators are still subject to ongoing 
negotiations.  

 

Page 102



 5 

6.4 The deadline for submitting the proposed LAA to Government Office for London was 
30 May 2008.  To allow full discussion of the LAA with the Council’s new Leadership, 
we negotiated a submission date of 6 June with GoL, with the final LAA submitted with 
Full Council approval by 27 June 2008.  This is a legal requirement through a direction 
from the Secretary of State.  

 
6.5 The proposed LAA was submitted in consultation with the Leader of the Council (and 

Chair of the Tower Hamlets Partnership) and the Vice-Chair of the Tower Hamlets 
Partnership. 

  
6.6 Once the LAA is agreed finally, the targets will be included in the Community Plan 

2020. 
 
7 Comments of the Chief Financial Officer 
7.1 The Community Plan and Local Area Agreement set out local priorities and specific 

targets for the next three year’s for the Council and its key partners. The plan sets out 
a framework for allocating and directing financial resources both for the year ahead 
and the medium term, so that resources are aligned with priorities. 

 
8 Concurrent Report of the Assistant Chief Executive (Legal) 
8.1 Section 4(1) of the Local Government Act 2000 imposes a duty on local authorities to 

prepare a community strategy for "promoting or improving the economic, social and 
environmental well-being of their area." 

 
8.2 Under section 4(2) a local authority has the power to modify the community strategy to 

reflect changes in local needs. In preparing or modifying its community strategy, a 
local authority must consult and seek the participation "of such persons as they 
consider appropriate" and have regard to any guidance issued by the Secretary of 
State. 

 
8.3 Article 4 of the Council's Constitution provides that the Community Strategy forms part 

of the Council’s policy framework which must be approved by full Council.  The 
process for developing the framework contained in Rule 2 of the Budget and Policy 
Framework Procedure Rules provides that recommendations to Council shall be 
submitted by Cabinet which shall have taken account of the responses received to the 
consultation and the views of the Overview and Scrutiny Committee.  This report 
facilitates compliance with the procedure. 

 
8.4 The Secretary of State has directed that the approved draft Local Area Agreement 

must be submitted to GoL by 27 June 2008. 
 
9 Equal Opportunities Implications  
9.1 Equal opportunities are central to the Community Plan and Local Area Agreement and 

are articulated through the Plan’s overarching aspiration to create One Tower 
Hamlets.  The Plan has been informed by a full Equalities Impact Assessment. 

 
10 Anti-Poverty Implications 
10.1 The Community Plan and Local Area Agreement support the delivery of the inclusive 

vision of the Tower Hamlets Partnership.  There is a strong focus on poverty with the 
Plan, and the proposed LAA features a number of ambitious targets relating to the 
reduction of poverty.   

 

Page 103



 6 

11 Sustainable Action For A Greener Environment 
11.1 The Community Plan explicitly embraces priorities and objectives with a strong focus 

on environmental sustainability and a greener environment.  The LAA features an 
ambitious target relating to the reduction of CO2 emissions within the borough.   

 
12 Risk Management Implications 
12.1 The Community Plan provides a clear, public statement of the Tower Hamlets 

Partnership’s strategic priorities. The LAA sets out some of the key performance 
indicators and targets against which the performance of the public services – including 
Council services – will be assessed.  

 
12.2 Since the Community Plan is reflected in the service plans and resource allocation of 

all the service providers in the borough, financial and other services risks within the 
council are carried by individual Directorates. However, failure to achieve the 
substantive goals of the Community Plan would place the reputation of the Council at 
risk, both locally and nationally.  

 
Appendices: 
Appendix 1: Tower Hamlets Community Plan 2020 
Appendix 2: Tower Hamlets LAA Supporting Narrative 
Appendix 3: Tower Hamlets LAA Targets 
 

Page 104



Council draft 

 1 

Appendix 1 
2020 VISION 

THE TOWER HAMLETS COMMUNITY PLAN 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
CONTENTS 
 
 
Chair’s Foreword 
 
Part-One 
The Story So Far 
Living Up To People’s Aspirations 
Building One Tower Hamlets 
 
 
Part-Two 
Turning the Vision into Reality 
• A Great Place To Live 
• A Prosperous Community 
• A Safe And Supportive Community 
• A Healthy Community 
The Community Plan – Building One Tower Hamlets 
The Tower Hamlets Partnership and Getting Involved 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Page 105



Council draft 

 2 

CHAIR’S FOREWORD 
 
I am delighted to present the new Tower Hamlets Community Plan on behalf 
of the Tower Hamlets Partnership. 
 
This plan explains how we will improve the quality of life in Tower Hamlets 
over the next decade or so in a whole range of areas – from education for our 
children and young people to support and care for some of the oldest and 
most vulnerable people. 
 
The Tower Hamlets Partnership has put this Community Plan together.  The 
Partnership brings together all of the key stakeholders in the borough - 
residents, the council, the police, the health service, other public services, 
voluntary and community groups, housing associations, faith communities and 
businesses.  
 
We have been listening.  To develop the vision and priorities we’ve held public 
meetings across the borough which hundreds of people attended to give their 
views.  The Community Plan reflects the aspirations and needs of residents 
and people who work and invest in the borough. 
 
The consultation brought out many of the positive features of Tower Hamlets 
– its great diversity, the wealth of opportunities and strong communities.  
People in Tower Hamlets have much to be proud of.  However, I know that 
much more needs to be done and there are immense challenges facing us 
across a whole range of areas.   
 
Everyone should realise their full potential in Tower Hamlets.  We want to 
raise ambitions and increase opportunities, particularly in our most deprived 
areas and communities.   
 
The aspiration of ‘One Tower Hamlets’ runs throughout the Community Plan.  
One Tower Hamlets is about reducing the inequalities and poverty that we 
see around us, strengthening cohesion and making sure our communities 
continue to live well together.  Most of all, One Tower Hamlets is about 
recognising that we all have a part to play in making this a reality. 
 
The challenges ahead are significant, but so are the opportunities.  The aims 
of this Community Plan are very ambitious – and I make no apologies for that.  
The residents of Tower Hamlets deserve the very best. We will continue to 
aim high and seize opportunities.  
 
Of course, a Plan won’t change Tower Hamlets - only its delivery can.  I am 
looking forward to working with you all to make this work for Tower Hamlets. 
 
 
Councillor Lutfur Rahman 
Chair of the Tower Hamlets Partnership  
Leader of Tower Hamlets Council 

Page 106



Council draft 

 3 

THE STORY SO FAR 
Tower Hamlets is changing. It’s changing fast – and for the better!  
 
The landscape has altered vastly since the first Community Plan was 
published by the Tower Hamlets Partnership in 2001. The population has 
grown and diversified. East London is preparing to host the 2012 Olympic and 
Paralympic Games - and new local and national priorities have emerged.   
 
All this at a time when significant investment in local public services is bearing 
fruit.  
 
Crime has been cut by almost 24% over the past four years, thanks to a range 
of initiatives and campaigns targeting crime hotspots.  This represents a drop 
in all crime types including violence, burglary, motor vehicle crime and 
robbery.  Also, our success in reducing reoffending was recognised with a 
Beacon Award. 
 
Health and fitness levels show signs of improving – with leisure centre 
attendances soaring to a record 1.45 million. The number of older people 
using local facilities in particular is up by around 5% – one of the many ways 
that the major review of Older People as Citizens has helped to boost local 
services for older people. 
 
Our Children’s Centres offer health, employment, education and parenting 
support to families with children under five. Education standards in the 
borough have improved dramatically - our 11 year olds now achieve above 
the national average and we are the most improved borough in the country for 
results at GCSE.  
 
As a borough, we have invested in high quality activities and places to go for 
our young people. Around a third of all young people are in contact with our 
youth services and we are opening up our schools to local people providing 
sporting, recreational and cultural activities.  
 
Since 1998, the number of jobs has increased in the borough by 41%, and it 
is projected that another 150,000 jobs will be created by 2020 – making 
Tower Hamlets one of the top growth areas in the country. 
 
In recent years, over £450 million of much-needed investment has been 
secured for local estates – and through the setting up of Tower Hamlets 
Homes - a new way of managing Council housing – further significant 
investment could be available.  
 
As a result of all this activity, Tower Hamlets has been ranked among the 
most improved performers over the past three years – and the Council is one 
of only 10 councils reckoned to be ‘improving strongly’ for the past two years 
by the public service watchdog, the Audit Commission. 
 
Throughout all of this change and improvement, Tower Hamlets remains a 
place of contrast, where wealth and affluence sit beside poverty in many 

Page 107



Council draft 

 4 

areas. It is also a place of diversity, variety and considerable opportunity. The 
key facts below give a sense of some of these contrasts. 
 
Expensive new private riverside housing developments rub shoulders with 
social housing estates. Tower Hamlets now has one of the highest population 
densities in inner London.  It’s projected that by 2017, there will be a further 
31,500 new homes in the borough.  
 
Housing affordability is low by national standards - with an average house 
price of £305,363; that’s 60.5% higher than the average in England and 
Wales - and out of reach for most local people. 
 
The inequality is stark: whilst the average salary for those working in Tower 
Hamlets is nearly £69,000, 23% of families living on less than £15,000.  This 
all means that Tower Hamlets is the third most deprived borough in the 
country. 
 
Tower Hamlets is one of the most ethnically diverse areas in the country.  
About half of the total population are from black and minority ethnic 
communities, and around 110 different languages are spoken by our school 
pupils.   
 
There are many new communities moving into the borough which will 
contribute to a changing profile of the community over the next ten years. 
 
Our population is expected to reach 300,000 by 2020. 
 
Although things are improving, average life expectancy at birth is 77.4 years, 
ranking Tower Hamlets 349th out of 408 boroughs in Britain. 
 
The proportion of young people living in Tower Hamlets currently stands at 
28%, which is much higher than the 18% average for the rest of inner London, 
and over 78% of our young people are from minority ethnic backgrounds.   
 
When Tower Hamlets helps to host the Olympic and Paralympic Games in 
2012, we will have the world’s greatest sporting occasion on our doorstep. A 
number of events will be taking place right here in Tower Hamlets, including 
the marathon which will pass along Whitechapel Road, Mile End Road and 
Bow Road – our “High Street 2012”. 
 
An emerging priority, which wasn’t prominent in the borough’s first Community 
Plan, is climate change.  As a dense urban area with a high level of 
development, local energy use and CO2 emissions are high.  Helping to tackle 
climate change and improve air quality is therefore a new and significant 
challenge. Lifestyle changes and difficult choices will have to be made in 
future years.   
 
The new Community Plan recognises that Tower Hamlets is a ‘community of 
communities’ - so a one-size-fits-all approach to problem solving, services 
and improvements will not work.   

Page 108



Council draft 

 5 

 
Our challenge is, and will continue to be, to make sure that the many different 
and specific needs that exist in Tower Hamlets are identified, understood and 
addressed. 
 
The next section – Living Up To People’s Aspirations - explains how the 
Partnership has set about achieving these aims in preparing the new 
Community Plan to 2020. 
 

Page 109



Council draft 

 6 

LIVING UP TO PEOPLE’S ASPIRATIONS 
 
A Community Plan must represent the aspirations of the people it affects - 
recognising differences between people, as well as common issues affecting 
neighbourhoods and community groups.     
 
That’s why the Tower Hamlets 2020 Community Plan was produced only after 
comprehensive resident involvement.  It takes on the views of partners and 
takes account of recent consultation findings and the latest research on 
population, social and economic trends. 
 
The consultation process included four large community events, involving 
over 400 local residents from all eight Local Area Partnership areas.  
Residents of all ages and backgrounds came together to talk to senior 
managers and councillors about the issues that matter to them.  There has 
also been consultation with different groups in the borough including sessions 
with the Interfaith Forum, the Disabled Access Group, the Lesbian, Gay, 
Bisexual and Transgender Forum, Tower Hamlets Housing Forum and 
additional work with young and older people. 
 
In addition to consultation events with residents, the Partnership also 
consulted widely with local business groups and individuals, and 
organisations representing the diversity of our communities.    
 
In short, residents, businesses and partner agencies have worked side by 
side in developing the 2020 Community Plan - so that the final vision is 
informed by the aspirations of the community as a whole.  The Plan’s priorities 
address the consultation findings, and these have helped shape the Local 
Area Agreement – which sets out our key targets for the next 3 years. 
 
A number of common issues have emerged as significant priorities: 
 

• The need for more affordable housing - particularly for families 
• A concern about the level of crime and the fear of crime  
• The need for more opportunities for residents to get into training, 

access lifelong learning opportunities and acquire the skills for 
employment to exploit job opportunities 

• The importance of retaining the richness of Tower Hamlets’ diversity 
• The importance of place shaping and ensuring connected and 

cohesive communities through planning and design 
• Reducing health inequalities 
• The need to have, and encourage, respect among communities 
• The importance of personal responsibility 
• Making sure that the whole community benefit fully from growth 

 
These priorities have shaped and informed the 2020 Community Plan.   
 
The Partnership also looked at the hard evidence in the form of past and 
current research on performance and context – including a large-scale needs-
analysis.  

Page 110



Council draft 

 7 

 
This highlighted current issues for different service areas; how well services 
were currently performing and levels of need expected over the life of the 
Plan.  This part of the Plan’s development included looking at existing service 
plans, policies and performance reports, in addition to analysis of London-
wide and national research papers.    
 
The Community Plan provides the long-term vision for Tower Hamlets.  Many 
individuals and organisations have helped to develop it, and will help to 
deliver it.  There are already a number of key long-term plans in place, such 
as the Health and Wellbeing Strategy and Children and Young People’s Plan, 
which have helped to inform this Community Plan’s development. 
 
The new Community Plan has also been developed alongside the borough’s 
Local Development Framework (LDF) – which sets out the plan for the 
physical changes taking place in the borough – so that the new LDF reflects 
the ambitions, aspirations and priorities of the Community Plan.  
 
But the 2020 Community Plan is more than the sum of existing plans – it 
provides a new vision and framework, from which all future Partnership 
strategies will take their lead. 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Page 111



Council draft 

 8 

BUILDING ONE TOWER HAMLETS 
The aim of the 2020 Community Plan is to “improve the quality of life for 
everyone who lives and works in the borough.” 
 
To turn this vision into reality, the Plan is split into four themes – each 
designed to confront the challenges and opportunities highlighted in previous 
sections and deliver lasting improvements for local people. 
 
The four themes are  
~ A Great Place to Live 
~ A Prosperous Community 
~ A Safe and Supportive Community 
~ A Healthy Community 
 
Underpinning all these themes is a desire to build One Tower Hamlets - a 
borough where everyone has an equal stake and status; where people have 
the same opportunities as their neighbours, where people have a 
responsibility to contribute; and where families are the cornerstone of 
success. 
 
Tower Hamlets has benefited from massive inward investment over the past 
ten years, along with a changing skyline and significant service 
improvements, but this has not filtered through to enough local residents’ day 
to day lives.  Given this, tackling poverty and inequality will be a prime focus 
of the Partnership so that over the life of this Community Plan such stark 
differences no longer remain a reality.   
 
One Tower Hamlets also means bringing different parts of the community 
together, encouraging positive relationships and tackling divisions between 
communities – as well as providing strong leadership, involving people and 
giving them the tools and support to improve their lives.  People’s participation 
in the Partnership is critical.  We will only be successful if we keep listening to, 
and acting on, your feedback – so that together we can drive forward the 
improvements we all want to see.    
 
It’s also about the Partnership working together efficiently and effectively to 
achieve One Tower Hamlets.   Making sure that we join up our resources and 
services to drive the community plan priorities and provide value for money to 
local people. 
 
There’s more detailed information about the four themes, and how they 
support One Tower Hamlets, in the later section headed TURNING THE 
VISION INTO REALITY. Below is a taste of how the Partnership would like to 
see Tower Hamlets develop through the Community Plan by 2020. 
 

Page 112



Council draft 

 9 

A great place to live 
By 2020 Tower Hamlets will continue to be a place that attracts people – to 
settle and raise families, to study, to work in a thriving local economy and 
enjoy the rich cultural life.  The ambition is for everyone to have the 
opportunity to live in a decent home, which they can afford – and for all 
children to have a bedroom of their own. 
Many neighbourhoods and estates will undergo major investment to improve 
the quality of homes, and public spaces through better lighting. 
Residents will benefit from improved transport networks, linking communities 
to different areas of the borough and key services.   
Older residents will enjoy fulfilling retirements with access to first class leisure 
and support services with more activities delivered from improved community 
centres. 
Our focus on long lasting and environmentally-friendly improvements will 
benefit current and future generations.   
The huge economic growth in Canary Wharf and elsewhere in the borough 
will be used as a vital tool to secure improvements for local people. 
Our town centres will be vibrant places to shop, spend our leisure time and do 
business. 
The Olympic Park will be a distinctive, high quality new place providing world 
class sporting venues and parkland for local people.  
Schools, children’s centres and youth services will be at the heart of their 
communities. 
Our Third Sector will thrive, contributing more to Partnership efforts to improve 
the quality of life for all those who live and work in the borough. 
 
A prosperous community 
By 2020 partnership working with both large and small businesses throughout 
Tower Hamlets will help ensure that employment opportunities are available 
to all local people. 
Our children and young people will learn from the best teachers and gain 
qualifications that allow them to pursue their career goals.   
Lifelong learning opportunities will be plentiful with more people achieving 
qualifications that enable them to pursue further and higher education and get 
jobs. 
New residents will be supported to learn English, so that they can make 
friends, feel integrated and seek employment.  
Local people will have the skills and training to get employment and the range 
of issues associated with worklessness such as poor housing and debt, will 
be tackled together. 
Tower Hamlets will be known as a place where entrepreneurship and local 
enterprise is successful.   
Fewer children will be living in poverty.  
 
A safe and supportive community 
By 2020 crime and antisocial behaviour will be greatly reduced in our 
neighbourhoods so that all residents and visitors, young and old, feel safe and 
confident in their homes and on the streets. 
Tackling the root causes of crime will pay off as schemes designed to turn 
people away from crime and onto more productive paths succeed.  

Page 113



Council draft 

 10 

Everyone will have a choice of quality support services so that they can 
achieve their full potential and receive support in the way they want and need.   
Services will ensure everyone, particularly the vulnerable, is protected from 
risk of harm and enabled to live a full and independent life.  
Parents and families will get the support they need to give children the best 
possible start in life. 
Schemes which address the problems of families and individuals at an early 
stage – and offer support - will be key to improving the safety of local 
communities. 
 
A healthy community 
By 2020 local people will live longer and healthier lives. 
The wider influences on health such as poverty, housing and employment will 
have improved making it easier for people to lead healthy lives. 
Everyone in our communities will be aware of how lifestyle choices affect their 
own and their family’s health and wellbeing and there will be more 
opportunities and support to make healthy choices. 
Health inequalities will be greatly reduced as people choose to stop using 
tobacco, have safer sex, eat a balanced diet, be more active and get advice 
sooner for health concerns.  
Health care will focus more on health promotion and prevention of illness and 
schools, workplaces and all partners will promote health lifestyles. 
More children and young people will make healthy lifestyle choices, improving 
their health now and as they grow up.  
Everyone will have access to high-quality, local health and social care 
services, from primary care at GP surgeries to maternity care and mental 
health services. 
 
In the following section – TURNING THE VISION INTO REALITY - we explain 
how the 2020 Community Plan aims to achieve the goals it has set itself. It 
looks at the priorities and objectives set under each of the four themes – and 
also shows some of the results residents can expect over the next three 
years. 
 
The vital role that everyone who lives and works in Tower Hamlets has in the 
Plan’s success is also highlighted - stressing that we all have a part in 
delivering each theme’s objectives and supporting One Tower Hamlets. 
 

Page 114



Council draft 

 11 

TURNING THE VISION INTO REALITY 
 
In the Looking to the Future section, we gave a brief run through of the four 
main themes contained in the 2020 Community Plan – and looked at where 
we wanted to be by the year 2020. 
 
This section looks at each of the themes in detail, including charting the key 
objectives and priorities that have been set by the Partnership to deliver the 
2020 Community Plan. 
 
A Great Place to Live 
A Great Place to Live reflects our aspiration that Tower Hamlets should be a 
place where people enjoy living, working and studying and take active pride in 
belonging.  
 
Central to the Partnership’s vision, and its Great Place to Live aspiration, is 
ensuring that everyone has the opportunity to live in a decent home, which 
they can afford.   
  
Housing in Tower Hamlets continues to be a major issue for the people who 
live or want to live in the borough. Whether it involves getting a basic repair 
done, living in an overcrowded house or waiting to get on the first rung of the 
home ownership ladder, there are a range of housing challenges that are in 
the way of people getting on with their day-to-day lives and achieving a 
decent standard of living. 
 
The housing challenge is immense.  There is currently not enough housing 
supply in the borough to meet housing needs.  There is also mismatch in 
available affordable housing supply, with not enough homes for families.  The 
affordability of homes is a key concern for many local people – whether 
they’ve grown up in the area or recently moved in.  House prices have gone 
up significantly over the last decade – making home ownership unrealistic for 
many who live and work here.  In addition, high levels of overcrowding remain 
and much social housing, including Council homes, need improvement.   
 
Although significant progress has been made in reducing overcrowding, the 
issue continues to be a major blight on some of the most vulnerable groups in 
the community.  It is a major constraint on children and young adults who are 
learning at school and college but have little or no space at home to study.  
Ensuring supply of affordable, family housing is a key priority: the Partnership 
aspires for all children to have a bedroom of their own. 
 
The Partnership is committed to using every tool available to ensure that 
residents can live in a decent home which they can afford.  Tower Hamlets 
already delivers a comparatively large amount of affordable housing - over 
1,000 affordable homes in 2007/08 – more than any other council but even 
more progress is needed. 
 
The Partnership is keen to ensure that there is a better supply of intermediate 
housing – such as shared ownership and key worker home-buy - for families 

Page 115



Council draft 

 12 

on low to medium incomes in Tower Hamlets.  Historically, many residents 
whose housing requirements have grown have – if financially able – chosen to 
move out of the borough where prices are lower and where the typical house 
type – with a garden – is more in line with their aspirations of a family home.  
Tower Hamlets is committed to creating more housing choices for residents 
on low to medium incomes with children that wish to stay in the borough.  
   
However, much more also needs to be done to help develop more affordable 
housing for rent.  Given the significant gap between household income and 
house prices locally, intermediate ‘affordable’ homes will remain out of reach 
for many people.  Given the high proportion of children and young people in 
the borough and the comparatively large household size, there will be a 
particular focus on affordable family homes for rent in the social sector – with 
three or more bedrooms. 
 
The Partnership also has to deal with the legacy of poor quality social housing 
erected in the past, which is now in need of renovation.  To ensure all local 
social housing meets the Government’s Decent Home Standard, the Council 
has transferred many estates to Registered Social Landlords (RSLs), mostly 
housing associations, who have the money to make the necessary 
improvements.  Community Plan housing targets will also be supported by a 
new Arms Length Management Organisation, Tower Hamlets Homes, which 
is being set up to attract much-needed investment into homes retained by the 
Council.   
 
Ensuring the effective management of social housing is also of paramount 
importance.  The Partnership will work closely with the Council and RSLs to 
ensure residents are getting an excellent service both in terms of housing 
quality and activities designed to improve the quality of life of residents. 
 
Market housing – both to rent and to buy – will remain a key issue. Helping 
residents to rent homes in the private sector is an important part of this theme 
and the Partnership is committed to seeing the decent homes standard 
delivered for vulnerable tenants in the private rented sector. 
 
Decent living conditions are not defined simply by providing high-quality 
affordable housing, important though this is. They are also about the 
availability of local community facilities - like schools, parks and health 
services, and the safety of shared space.  The Partnership will work so that 
housing is not developed in isolation, and that transport, schools and other 
services are developed side by side.  Schools will be at the heart of their 
communities, opening their doors to people of all ages.  
 
Whilst the borough has seen major development and improvements in public 
services over the past ten years, there are still many areas that require 
attention and improvement.   
 
Residents want quality services in their communities - located in buildings that 
are easy to use and get to - and attractive to visit. Where these services don’t 
currently exist, the Partnership must work together to provide them.    

Page 116



Council draft 

 13 

 
As a small inner London borough, green open space is at a premium - so 
challenges lie in providing more and better quality open space for recreation 
and ensuring old and new urban environments are designed or remodelled to 
high standards of cleanliness and safety, with good lighting. 
 
A commitment to environmentally-friendly improvements is also at the heart of 
this theme.  With so many changes taking place in people’s neighbourhoods, 
partners must ensure that developments don’t harm the local environment – 
and improve it wherever possible. This means contributing to national and 
local targets for improving energy efficiency, improving air quality and tackling 
and adapting to climate change.  
 
Local people also want access to services and opportunities that bring fun 
and enjoyment into everyday life.  With this in mind, the Partnership will work 
to ensure that more leisure, sport, entertainment and cultural opportunities are 
developed and delivered in the area - building on the success of well-received 
projects like Spa London, Mile End Park and Leisure Centre, Tower Hamlets’ 
four Idea Stores and the over 80 community festivals delivered every year. 
We will also work to make the Olympic Park site (the largest urban park to be 
created in Europe in the last 150 years) and its venues accessible to local 
people.  
 
Something else local people want is vibrant communities, prosperous town 
centres and community buildings – easy-to-get-to places where they can meet 
friends and neighbours.  It is the Partnership’s vision that Tower Hamlets, and 
particularly our town centres, should offer a variety of opportunities for 
entertainment, shopping, culture and enterprise befitting both residents and 
visitors.  
 
Central London’s venues, landmarks and job opportunities are nearby - so 
decent transport links are also very important.  We have secured important 
transport improvements such as Crossrail and increased capacity on the 
Docklands Light Railway.  We will continue to work closely with partners such 
as Transport for London so that people can move around as easily as 
possible and minimise any disruption during improvement works.  We also 
want to promote the value of green transport like cycling and walking, working 
with partners to make getting around the borough easier for cyclists and 
pedestrians. 
 
There are a number of challenges in achieving the progress we aspire to - not 
least the cost of land, the scale of change and speed of local growth - but we 
have many unique opportunities that will help us ensure all residents believe 
Tower Hamlets is a great place to live.  We cannot succeed without the active 
involvement of local communities, particularly through our thriving Third 
Sector.  It is the residents and businesses that shape local improvements - by 
making positive use of better public facilities, while respecting public spaces 
and each other.   
 
 

Page 117



Council draft 

 14 

The Priorities  
Providing affordable housing and strong neighbourhoods by: 

• Increasing the overall supply of housing for local people 
including a range of affordable, family housing  

• Providing decent homes in well designed streets and 
neighbourhoods 

• Planning new neighbourhoods with supporting services like 
primary schools, healthcare facilities and local parks 

• Improving the quality of housing management and related 
services provided to tenants and leaseholders 

 
Strengthening and connecting communities by: 

• Improving public transport networks and enabling more 
residents to walk and cycle safely 

• Bringing together communities to foster mutual understanding, a 
collective sense of wellbeing and avoid people being isolated 

• Ensuring communities have good access to a full range of 
facilities - including health services, schools and leisure  

 
Supporting vibrant town centres and a cleaner, safer public realm by: 

• Providing first-class and well managed centres where people 
come together for business, shopping, leisure and recreation 

• Supporting and improving open spaces 
• Improving street lighting and reducing graffiti and litter 

 
Improving the environment and tackling climate change by: 

• Reducing energy use and using more renewable energy 
sources 

• Focusing on reusing wherever possible and recycling more 
• Adapting our built environment to cope with the changing 

climate and weather patterns 
 
We can all help to achieve this by: 
Committing to Tower Hamlets’ fight against climate change by reducing the 
amount of energy and water used in the home, cutting back on waste and 
recycling wherever possible 
 
Taking pride in, and responsibility for, community facilities such as local open 
spaces for the benefit of everyone 
 
Being considerate of others by not littering - and by reporting problems like 
antisocial behaviour and graffiti  
 
Supporting local business and enterprise initiatives by shopping locally – 
including using Tower Hamlets’ vibrant markets 
 
Recognising what new and existing communities have in common - and 
valuing the borough’s diversity 
 

Page 118



Council draft 

 15 

Getting involved in our community – perhaps by volunteering to help a local 
organisation or group 
 
For those building in the borough – by prioritising environmental sustainability 
and quality design 
 
and make One Tower Hamlets by:- 
 
~ improving access to facilities and services that exist in different parts of the 
borough 
~ thinking about how our actions affect our neighbours – and taking tough 
decisions when it comes to personal responsibility for things like not using 
cars, turning off lights and not dropping litter  
~ engaging communities in important decisions so that choices are made with 
the community, not on their behalf 
~ using culture, leisure and sport to bring together communities across all 
ages and backgrounds  
~ ensuring the built environment is designed to high quality standards so it is 
inclusive and safe for all 
~ helping people to get decent homes 
 
Over the next three years we will: 
 
Support the supply of 8997 more new homes 
 
Support the supply of 5064 affordable homes, including xxx family sized social 
rented homes, xxxx smaller social rented homes; and xxx intermediate Low 
Cost Home Ownership homes 
 
Increase the proportion of Council homes meeting the Decent Homes 
standard by 12% and RSL homes by xx% 
 
Increase residents overall satisfaction with the local area 
 
Increase the proportion of people from different backgrounds who get on well 
together in their local area  
 
Reduce the level of CO2 emissions that are produced in the borough by 10%  
 
Increase the proportion of waste that households recycle or compost to 32%  
 
Make our streets cleaner and reduce incidents of graffiti and fly tipping  
 
Reduce the number of people that are killed or seriously injured on our roads 
in road traffic accidents by 15%  
 
Support the environment for a thriving third sector with an increased 
proportion of local voluntary and community organisations recognising this 
support 
 

Page 119



Council draft 

 16 

 
Delivering success 
The Partnership’s Local Area Agreement (LAA) will set targets to drive 
progress over the first three years of the Community Plan – to help keep 
Tower Hamlets as a Great Place to Live.  The LAA includes ambitious targets 
around new affordable homes built, cutting local CO2 emissions and 
increasing the proportion of waste recycled. 
 
A number of key strategies are being put in place to deliver specific priorities 
and objectives identified in this theme - most notably the Local Development 
Framework (LDF), which is being developed alongside the 2020 Community 
Plan.  The LDF will set policies to guide investment in infrastructure for the 
next 10-15 years as well as setting criteria to support new development and 
regeneration projects.   
 
The LDF along with other local strategies will ensure that community facilities 
are in place to support the large number of new jobs and homes expected in 
particular areas – whilst also improving the quality of life for existing residents. 
For example the Council and Primary Care Trust will work together to 
implement its Health and Wellbeing Strategy, including an investment 
programme to bring local health facilities up to the highest modern standards. 
 
The Council will establish an Arms Length Management Organisation (ALMO) 
as part of a borough wide housing investment programme to make 
improvements to our social housing estates.   
 
The Council is also developing a Public Realm Strategy to improve the quality 
and safety of our neighbourhoods, particularly town centres, and link this 
extended investment programme to the borough’s open space network.  We 
will use High Street 2012 as a model project to improve the quality of our road 
corridors as places for people.   
 
The 2012 Olympics and Paralympics in East London are a real opportunity for 
the borough and our existing Legacy Strategy is helping to ensure that the 
Games really benefit local people. We will continue to work with other 
boroughs, the London Development Agency and Greater London Authority 
and the Olympic Authorities on the Legacy Master Plan to shape development 
beyond 2012.  
 
 
Changing People’s Lives 
Case studies - Millennium Quarter / St Paul’s Way  
 
 
 

Page 120



Council draft 

 17 

A Prosperous Community 
 
Much of Tower Hamlets is booming - thanks largely to the unprecedented 
growth of Canary Wharf and our closeness to the City.  
 
The average business size is the second highest in the capital, because there 
are so many major employers, and there is also a healthy enterprise culture. 
The economic activity has led to Tower Hamlets having the fastest 
employment growth in the country.   
 
Yet, despite this, unemployment levels are higher than both the London and 
national averages.  This is mainly due to comparatively low levels of basic 
skills but also because of a range of other factors which affect worklessness.  
The Partnership is aware that worklessness is a complex issue, with 
contributing factors ranging from ill-health to transport, debt to cultural barriers 
and discrimination.  
We will help people to confront these different causes of worklessness – 
whether it be barriers faced by specific groups, like disabled people and 
vulnerable adults, the existence of ageism or because some people lack 
family role models to see employment as an option.    
One thing is common:  worklessness traps families - denying them the money 
and choices to get out of poverty and improve their quality of life.   
In short, there is no shortage of jobs in the borough – but many local people 
don’t have the support, confidence or necessary skills to take advantage of 
the work on their doorstep. 
 
We know that education is the best way to break the cycle of poverty and give 
people a step-up into employment, so a key priority for the Prosperous 
Community theme is to ensure that local people have access to lifelong 
learning opportunities.  This means making high quality education available 
for residents of all ages - from those entering nursery and primary school to 
older people and pensioners wanting to learn new skills.  Opportunities for 
lifelong learning will be diverse to suit all needs, whether you’re a new 
resident trying to improve your English or just wanting to try something 
different in your spare time. 
 
Many nurseries and schools in Tower Hamlets are offering our children and 
young people an outstanding education that gives them the opportunity to 
thrive. But we know that there is more to do so that every child makes the 
progress they are capable of, especially in English and mathematics.  
 
We are putting considerable investment into our schools buildings so that 
every local child has the best possible start in life in terms of schooling.  This 
investment will pay dividends by 2020, when more young people will leave 
school with qualifications and skills that will help them into employment and 
successful careers.  We also recognise that people learn in different ways - so 
more high-quality and stretching apprenticeships and vocational courses will 

Page 121



Council draft 

 18 

be made available to young people, leading to stable jobs.  The Third Sector 
will play a significant role in developing and delivering lifelong learning 
opportunities in an environment that supports and empowers them to do so. 
The Partnership chose to include a number of employment and skills related 
targets in Tower Hamlets’ Local Area Agreement - reflecting the importance of 
this issue in making Tower Hamlets a more prosperous place.  
These targets will help drive our progress against our ambitions as we 
improve skills and the employment rate in the borough, increase the number 
of disabled residents in work and reduce the number of residents on out of 
work benefits.   
The Local Area Agreement, and the work that supports it, will bring about real 
and significant improvements for local people by 2011; progress that will be 
further built upon up to 2020. 
It will also be important for the Partnership to shape national and regional 
regeneration programmes so that they meet the needs of local people.  
Tower Hamlets is a 2012 Olympics and Paralympics host borough and the 
importance of this cannot be understated.  30,000 new jobs will be created in 
nearby Stratford and the Olympic Village in East London will create 4 million 
square feet of commercial space – providing additional opportunities for local 
residents and businesses. 
Tower Hamlets is experiencing growth in every sense - with more and more 
people moving in to live and work, new businesses and employment sectors 
relocating here and the economy growing fast.  In addition, the development 
of the Thames Gateway is set to bring even more growth for Tower Hamlets. 
But prosperity is not just about wealth.  It is about ensuring all residents have 
the support, skills and encouragement to make the best of their lives.  Jobs 
provide people with fulfilment, purpose and the means to enjoy life.   
We are committed to making this a reality for all residents by actively 
supporting more people into work, giving people access to the training they 
need to be job-ready and by encouraging enterprise and fostering new 
industries. 
The Priorities  
Supporting excellent learning opportunities for all by 

• Investing in the under 5s whose development provides the best 
possible foundation for long term success 

• Providing high quality schools, so that young people acquire the 
knowledge and skills they need to fulfil their full potential 

• Providing continuous learning opportunities, so everyone can 
learn basic and new skills at any age  

 
Reducing worklessness by 

Page 122



Council draft 

 19 

• Helping families escape poverty, by providing employment 
support and advice on debt management  

• Identifying and removing barriers to employment for target groups  
• Helping people to get and keep employment by ensuring there is 

support and training before and after they get a job 
 
Fostering enterprise by 

• Providing incentives that encourage both business and social 
entrepreneurship 

• Maximising the opportunities for local businesses to benefit from 
key growth sectors, and the Olympic and Paralympic Games. 

• Promoting Tower Hamlets businesses and encouraging growth 
and tourism, with particular emphasis on the Olympics and 
Paralympics 

 
We can all help to achieve this by: 
Taking responsibility for our own learning and development - by pursuing 
lifelong learning opportunities to gain new skills and knowledge 
 
Encouraging young people to get the most out of their education  
 
Creating more employment and training opportunities for local people, if they 
run a business 
 
and make One Tower Hamlets by: 
~ continuing to focus on improving school results and skill levels, further 
narrowing the gap between ourselves and the best performing parts of the 
country 
~ highlighting opportunities, and supporting people to seize them, including 
the employment potential offered by the 2012 Olympic and Paralympic 
Games 
~ recognising that people have individual needs when designing and 
delivering services – and ensuring that nobody is discriminated against on 
account of their race, disability, gender, age, sexuality or faith 
~ recognising the importance of the family in supporting prosperous 
communities 
 
Over the next three years we will: 
 
Increase the proportion of local people in employment by 2.5% to 55.7% - 
around 3,500 additional people into work 
 
Reduce the number of local people on out of work benefits by 2% - a 
reduction of 2876 people 
 
Increase the number of adults with learning difficulties in jobs  
 
Increase the number of adults, who are getting support from mental health 
services, in jobs  
 

Page 123



Council draft 

 20 

Ensure the proportion of 19 year olds achieving a level 2 qualification (GCSE, 
Intermediate GNVQ, BTEC First Diploma, NVQ 2), rises by 13.8% to 71.8% 
 
Ensure the proportion of 19 year olds with a level 3 (Intermediate GNVQ, 4 
GCSEs) qualification rises by 9% to 46% 
 
Increase the proportion of young people achieving 5 or more A*-C grades at 
GCSE including English and mathematics  
 
Reduce the proportion of 16-18 year olds who aren’t in education, 
employment or training from 8.2% to 6% 
 
Increase the number of young people from families with low incomes going on 
to higher education  
 
Reduce the number of children living in poverty by 4.5% - around 1078 fewer 
children 
 
Increase the number of young people participating in positive activities  
 
Increase the opportunities to learn English as a second language (ESOL) 
 
Delivering success 
In addition to the Partnership’s Local Area Agreement, a number of important 
strategies and plans will help to deliver results within this theme.   
 
Most notable are the Children and Young People’s Plan (CYPP) and the 
borough’s Regeneration Strategy.  The CYPP outlines how we will deliver 
services for children and young people, and is focused on the Partnership 
commitment to continuous improvement.  
 
It brings together, in one place, the most important actions planned to make 
sure that services work together and make a difference to the lives of all 
children and young people – particularly around skills and achievement. 
 
The borough’s Regeneration Strategy aims to bring more investment into the 
borough and ensure that all our residents and businesses are in a position to 
benefit from, and contribute to, increasing economic prosperity.   
 
This strategy sits within various sub-regional and regional economic 
development strategies, most importantly the London Economic Development 
Strategy.  At the same time, it supports other key strategies such as the 
London Plan and the London Thames Gateway Development and Investment 
Framework.  As Europe’s largest regeneration project, the scale of the 
Gateway development is breathtaking.  It will create thousands of new jobs 
and better connect London to the South East. 
 
Changing People’s Lives Case-study - To be agreed 

Page 124



Council draft 

 21 

A Safe and Supportive Community 
 
The Safe and Supportive Community theme represents a desire for Tower 
Hamlets to be a place where everyone can achieve their full potential.  
 
This means a place where crime is rare and tackled effectively, and where 
communities live in peace together.  It also means somewhere where 
everyone, young and old, has equal access to choices, chances and power.  
 
The Partnership recognises that the disadvantages faced by many local 
residents - in terms of employment, housing and health - increases the risk of 
them not feeling part of the local community. Local public services need to 
identify those who are most at risk and support them so that they can fulfil 
their potential. 
 
Reducing inequality and removing the causes of crime are strongly linked.   
Local crime has fallen by nearly a quarter over the past four years, with a 
reduction in all crime types including violence, burglary, motor vehicle crime 
and robbery.  In the past year alone, violent crime has fallen 9% and personal 
and commercial robberies by 27%.  However, crime remains significantly 
higher than the national average – and a sizeable stumbling block to 
progress.  It is recognised that the most disadvantaged people are often most 
at risk of becoming both perpetrators and victims of crime.  This knowledge 
places us in a strong position to focus resources and action over the coming 
years. 
 
Delivering a Safe and Supportive Community has two key aspects.   
 
The first is providing excellent services to everybody - including high-quality 
housing, schools and healthcare. Such services form part of every theme in 
this plan. The second involves providing excellent services for our most 
excluded groups and to those at risk of becoming excluded.  Over time, work 
on both of these areas will make a powerful impact on both disadvantage and 
crime. 
 
Alongside this long-term approach, we will continue to crack down on crime 
through effective law enforcement and crime prevention.  Violence – 
especially domestic violence and hate crimes – will not be tolerated. 
Fear of crime will be reduced, so that local people feel safe in their homes and 
in their neighbourhoods.   
 
Another challenge within this theme is to ensure our crime and antisocial 
behaviour services are transparent and accountable to local people - seeking, 
and responding to, local views.    
 
Victims of crime will be provided with timely and appropriate support and we 
will continue to encourage residents to report incidents of crime whilst 
publicising enforcement successes.  Action will be focussed on crime and anti 
social behaviour hotspots - such as Whitechapel, Bethnal Green and Brick 
Lane, along with some housing estates.   

Page 125



Council draft 

 22 

 
When looking at both the causes of this crime, and the roots of disadvantage, 
the family is the single most important factor in shaping a child’s well-being, 
achievements and prospects.  Poor parenting and early exposure to dangers 
like drug abuse, domestic violence and offending increase the likelihood of 
children not making the most of their potential.   
 
Against this background, we will make sure a family-inclusive approach is 
taken to these problems. We will focus on families who are at risk or 
experiencing serious disadvantage and make sure that in doing so we co-
ordinate the right services around them. We will also offer more support to 
those families who, with a little extra help, might avoid more complex 
problems later.  
 
Delivering improvements for all our residents means a focus on easily 
available and high quality support services for key groups - such as older 
people, ‘looked-after’ children, youngsters leaving care, disabled people, 
offenders, victims of domestic violence, those with drugs and alcohol issues, 
homeless people and new communities. Research also shows us that it is not 
enough simply to provide a strong set of services to tackle deep disadvantage 
affecting all age groups.  The most disadvantaged often fall through the net.  
What enables people to access and stay engaged with services are qualities 
such as resilience, confidence, and the ability to develop strong relationships.   
 
There is strong evidence that raising young children in a supportive and 
nurturing environment has a very significant impact on their later life chances. 
We have a range of services to work with families with children under five, 
from our 21 children’s centres that reach out to all families in the borough to 
specialist services designed to support those most at risk as they prepare to 
start a family. We were awarded Beacon status for Early Invention for 
Children at Risk for this support.  
 
Building on this approach is a priority, and essential in making Tower Hamlets 
a borough where everyone can achieve their full potential. 
 
The priorities  
Empowering older and vulnerable people and supporting families by: 

• Providing responsive and appropriate services for adults which 
promote independence, choice, security and community 

• Protecting children from harm and neglect 
• Preventing and reducing homelessness, and helping more people 

into settled homes and employment 
• Improving support for children and young people with disabilities 

and their families 
 
Tackling and preventing crime by: 

• Reducing crime and promoting successes effectively to reduce 
fear of crime 

• Reducing re-offending through holistic intervention with all who 
become involved with the criminal justice system 

Page 126



Council draft 

 23 

• Making crime prevention a key element of all service planning - 
and improving community trust and engagement in strategic 
planning and service development  

 
Focussing on early intervention by 

• Improving parental engagement and support 
• Using joined-up approaches to address links between health, 

drugs, alcohol, education, skills, employment, accommodation, 
mental health, debt and benefits across all age groups 

• Tackling the causes of crime by working with ‘at-risk’ groups, to 
nip problems in the bud 

 
We can all help to achieve this by: 
Having a zero-tolerance approach to crime and antisocial behaviour – and by 
reporting incidents 
 
Supporting family, friends and neighbours who have been victims of crime, 
encouraging them to seek professional advice and support 
 
Teaching young children the consequences of crime - and the value of taking 
responsibility for one’s own actions  
 
Recognising that we all need help sometimes - and that vulnerability may 
affect us all over our lifetime 
 
Respecting, valuing and safeguarding our older citizens 
 
Working with local service providers to improve services - by telling us what 
we want and need to live more independent, fulfilled lives 
 
Challenging prejudice and making Tower Hamlets ‘no place for hate’ 
 
and make One Tower Hamlets by: 
 
~ recognising the strong link between reducing inequality and removing the 
causes of crime  
 ~ making sure that nobody is discriminated against on account of their race, 
disability, gender, age, sexuality or faith – and that hate crime is reported and 
dealt with 
~ supporting everyone to access the services they need, and making sure 
nobody feels excluded 
~ recognising that tackling issues effectively sometimes involves a family-
inclusive approach 
 
 

Page 127



Council draft 

 24 

Over the next three years we will: 
 
Reduce the number of serious violent crimes in the borough  
 
Cut the serious acquisitive crime rate to 32.7 incidents per 1000 people 
 
Reduce the proportion of local people that think drug use or drug dealing is a 
problem by 8%  
 
Increase the number of residents who believe that the Police and council are 
dealing with local concerns about antisocial behaviour  
 
Cut reoffending by adults under probation supervision and reoffending by 
young people 
 
Build resilience to violent extremism 
 
Reduce the rate of arson from 51 incidents per 1,000 residents to 46 incidents 
 
Increase the proportion of carers who are receiving a specific carer’s service, 
or advice and information by 15% 
 
Increase the number of drug users in effective treatment by 10% 
 
Prevent xxx households becoming homeless 
 
Delivering success 
There are a number of key strategies already in place to deliver the desired 
results outlined within this theme - including the Partnership’s Crime and 
Drugs Reduction Strategy, Children and Young People’s Plan and Alcohol 
Harm Reduction Strategy.   
 
Tower Hamlets Homelessness and Supporting People strategies outline the 
approach, and support available, to people most vulnerable in terms of 
housing – helping to enable residents to remain at home and keep their 
tenancies while going through a rough patch. 
 
There are also a number of local networks that play a key role in delivering 
the Community Plan objectives identified in this theme.  The Safer 
Neighbourhood Teams provide ward-based community policing - while the 
Better Tower Hamlets teams bring together service providers at a local level 
to have a greater impact on tackling residents’ community safety concerns. 
The teams are made up of police, safer neighbourhood team officers and staff 
from cleaner, safer services. They are located together in local teams to 
support close working and deliver coordinated responses to local crime, ASB  
and environmental issues. 
 
Changing People’s Lives 
Case-study - Sonali Gardens / Reducing Reoffending 

Page 128



Council draft 

 25 

A Healthy Community 
 
Local residents want Tower Hamlets to be a place where more people lead 
healthy and longer lives, where differences within the borough are reduced 
and where everyone has access to world class primary care, community, 
mental health and hospital services. 
 
At the moment, there are some stark differences in the quality of health 
experienced by Tower Hamlets residents.  Although life expectancy is 
improving, and now stands at 73 years for men and 79 years for women, this 
compares with 82 years for men and 86 for women in Kensington and 
Chelsea.   
 
There are also substantial inequalities between groups within the borough, 
with the average life expectancy for men in Millwall more than eight years 
greater than for those in Bethnal Green North.   
 
A poor diet, smoking and physical inactivity increase the risk of serious illness, 
leading to a less enjoyable and shorter life.  This is of course true everywhere 
but Tower Hamlets currently has some of the worst health figures in the 
country.  Although improving, the borough’s cancer mortality rate is the 
highest in London and circulatory disease deaths are second highest.  These 
stark statistics are linked to Tower Hamlets having one of the highest rates of 
tobacco use in the country, with a growing number of people diagnosed with 
diabetes and other long-term conditions.   The proportion of people who are 
overweight or obese is also predicted to increase.     
 
Tower Hamlets is the third most deprived place in the country and there are 
areas of deprivation in every part of the borough.  There is strong evidence 
that areas with deprivation have worse health and greater health inequalities.  
Factors that contribute to poor health, such as smoking and low levels of 
exercise, are more common in deprived areas, as are certain associated 
health problems including heart disease, respiratory disorders and lung 
cancer. 
 
The Partnership is committed to tackling this poverty and deprivation.  It is 
important to recognise that the wider improvements across all the plan 
themes - in housing, employment and safety - will have considerable impact 
on improving people’s health and encouraging healthy lifestyles.  
 
The 2012 Olympic and Paralympic Games in East London will provide an 
excellent opportunity to promote better health through exercise and sport.  
Residents will have the chance to attend the Games and be inspired by a 
historic sporting legacy, as well as having access to world-class sporting 
facilities right on their doorsteps.   
 
Throughout a resident’s life, key objectives for the Partnership are to make 
high quality prevention and health care services available and support healthy 
lifestyles.  The starting point is providing excellent maternal care for all 

Page 129



Council draft 

 26 

expectant mothers in Tower Hamlets.  The end point should be the care given 
to older people for chronic conditions later in life.   
 
Local people increasingly want more control and choice when getting health 
care and the Partnership is committed to giving people the power to shape 
and control their own services.   
 
Residents want access to services locally within the community and for these 
services to be delivered by the most appropriate agency - whether that is the 
Primary Care Trust, a social care service or local community organisation.  
The Partnership is committed to delivering this, and co-ordinating and bringing 
together services so that they are better for those that use them. 
 
Good and timely access to services and treatment is essential.  For some 
residents this may mean home visits or an appointment with a female health 
practitioner.  For others, it may mean access to an interpreter or other support 
assistance.   
 
The Partnership will also radically improve primary and community care 
premises and provide services in or close to people’s homes, whenever 
possible, rather than in hospitals and other institutions.  
 
Improving children’s health is a particularly high priority for the Partnership.  
With such a large, young population, it is essential that children are given the 
best start in life and make lifestyle choices that will safeguard their health in 
future years.  Currently, the proportion of young people who smoke, are 
obese, do not exercise regularly, and eat poorly are higher than the national 
averages.  We have the third highest proportion of 4-5 year olds who are 
obese in the country.  The Partnership is committed to achieving major 
improvements in children and young people’s health. 
 
Sexual health is a key issue for Tower Hamlets.  The incidence of sexually 
transmitted infections, including HIV, is higher than the national average and 
cases of chlamydia and syphilis have risen in recent years. Despite real 
progress in reducing teenage pregnancy there also remain high levels of 
sexually transmitted infections among young people. This will be reversed 
through effective advice and education initiatives, readily available screening 
and treatment services and, of course, through residents taking personal 
responsibility for their sexual health.   
 
Mental health issues affect one in four people sometime during their life.  And 
people with serious mental illness have a higher risk of physical illness and 
reduced life expectancy.     Raising the profile of mental health services, and 
improving access to them, will be an important focus over the coming years.   
 

Page 130



Council draft 

 27 

The Priorities  
Improving health and reducing differences in people’s health by promoting 
healthy lifestyles to: 

• Reduce the use of tobacco 
• Reduce rates of diabetes, high blood pressure and high 

cholesterol 
• Slow down the increase in obesity 
• Improve sexual health  

 
Supporting mental health services to improve mental health by  

• Providing high-quality accessible services  
• Combating discrimination against individuals and groups with 

mental health problems 
• Ensuring integrated planning and treatment for patients with 

multiple health needs 
 
Improving access to, and experience of, local health services by 

• Improving access to GPs, developing out-of-hospital services and 
improving access to high quality maternity care 

• Reducing waiting times 
• Promoting self-care and improving management of long term 

conditions 
 
We can all help to achieve this by: 
Making responsible lifestyle choices which promote good health - such as 
exercising, adopting a healthy diet and practising safe sex 
 
Understanding the dangers of tobacco, drug taking, and binge drinking - and 
seeking support when facing addiction 
 
Having regular health checkups and attending screening and immunisation 
appointments 
 
Taking an active interest in the health of family, friends and neighbours - 
ensuring that the most vulnerable are getting the health care services they 
need 
 
Taking part in consultation that seeks to improve local services 
and make One Tower Hamlets by: 
~ focusing on reducing the health inequalities that exist within the borough 
and narrowing the gap between Tower Hamlets and the healthiest parts of the 
country 
~ supporting people to lead healthier lifestyles 
~ making sure that health services are accessible – including at a time and 
place that suits them 
~ recognising the strong links between health and other areas such as 
employment, housing and the environment  

Page 131



Council draft 

 28 

Over the next three years we will: 
 
Further reduce the proportion of under 18s getting pregnant – to achieve a 
55% reduction from the 1998 rate 
 
Slow down the increase in childhood obesity – to ensure that less than 24% of 
primary age children are obese 
 
Support at least one thousand residents to quit smoking per 100,000 
population, every year 
 
Increase life expectancy  
 
Delivering success  
Strong links and a co-ordinated approach are already in place between the 
Council, Primary Care Trust and health care providers in Tower Hamlets.    
 
In 2006, the Partnership published the first Tower Hamlets Health and Well-
being Strategy, developed by the Council and the Primary Care Trust.  This 
strategy outlines the vision for primary and community services until 2016.  
The Joint Strategic Health Needs Assessment will further inform the delivery 
of the strategy.  
 
More recently, the Partnership has agreed with government an ambitious 
three-year Local Area Agreement, featuring targets that will help drive 
partnership action in a number of key areas - including tobacco, obesity and 
participation in sport.  The Partnership’s “Time for Health” campaign will also 
target health inequalities around heart disease, diabetes, cancer and stroke. 
  
There are also a number of major building projects in place that will support 
efforts to achieve objectives within this theme.  One example is a new hospital 
at Whitechapel, which will blend world class specialist and teaching resources 
with excellent local hospital services.  
 
Another is new mental health inpatient services on the Mile End Hospital site 
– which will see the transformation of Victorian facilities at St Clement’s into 
new modern buildings better equipped to respond to the needs of 21st century 
patients. 
 
 
Changing People’s Lives 
Case-study - Barkantine Centre 
 
 
 
 
 

Page 132



Council draft 

 29 

The Community Plan:  Building One Tower Hamlets 
 
This booklet has highlighted the main issues facing the borough and what the 
Partnership will to do to tackle them over the next decade.  At the heart of this 
Community Plan is the idea of One Tower Hamlets:  reducing poverty and 
inequality, bringing local communities closer together, strong local leadership 
and personal responsibility.   
 
Tower Hamlets’ diversity is a major strength - and this Community Plan 
recognises the richness, vibrancy and energy that our communities provide.   
But with diversity also comes challenge, and the Partnership is firmly 
committed to making sure people are treated with respect and fairness 
regardless of their differences. Everyone living, working or visiting Tower 
Hamlets has the right to live free from discrimination and prejudice.  And 
everyone in the borough has a responsibility to stop other people from being 
treated in these ways. 
 
The Partnership is committed to improving the quality of life of everyone who 
lives and works in Tower Hamlets.  Together, we can address the inequalities 
that can arise from people’s income, race, age, disability, gender, faith or 
sexual orientation or from living in different areas.  The Community Plan is 
about narrowing these gaps – reducing inequalities and making the borough a 
fairer place.   
 
Reducing inequality and fostering cohesion is not easy. It requires strong local 
leadership and active community participation.  Councillors are a key part of 
this: providing leadership, transparent decision making and working with 
communities to make sure that their views shape and influence the solutions 
to the challenges that face the borough. 
 
But in the consultation events, residents also highlighted strongly the personal 
responsibility that we all have to make the borough better - recognising that 
everyone that lives, works or visits Tower Hamlets can by their own actions 
improve not only the borough but their own lives.  We’ve highlighted some of 
these throughout the Plan.  
 
The 2020 Community Plan is a plan for, and by, the community.  Produced in 
consultation with local residents, we all have a stake in its delivery.  The 
participation of those who live, work and study in Tower Hamlets is essential 
in supporting One Tower Hamlets and delivering the Community Plan vision. 

Page 133



Council draft 

 30 

 
The Tower Hamlets Partnership 
 
The Tower Hamlets Partnership’s governance arrangements are being 
refreshed to make sure that they support the delivery of the new Community 
Plan.  It is important the structure is effective and helps to involve everyone in 
the borough so that they can make a contribution to the design and delivery of 
local priorities.  The new Partnership arrangements will be launched in 
autumn 2008 and will play a key role in helping to delivery the Community 
Plan’s vision and priorities. 
 
Getting Involved 
 
The Tower Hamlets Partnership wants everyone to be involved – you can 
attend a nearby Partnership fun day, participate in your local LAP meeting - a 
platform for everyone to have their say on the improvements in their area – or 
simply see what’s happening. 
 
To find out more contact: 
The Tower Hamlets Partnership 
Email: towerhamletspartnership@towerhamlets.gov.uk 
Web: www.towerhamlets.gov.uk/partnership 
Tel: 020 7364 4058 
 

Page 134



 1 

Appendix 2 
Tower Hamlets Local Area Agreement 2008-2011  

 
1. Introduction 
 
The Tower Hamlets Partnership welcomes the opportunity to negotiate a new Local Area 
Agreement for 2008/09-2010/11.  Performance against the current LAA has been strong and the 
existing agreement has supported the delivery of key local priorities through strong local 
leadership, enhanced partnership working and improved mechanisms for service planning and 
delivery.   
 
The new agreement will set out some of Tower Hamlets’ key priority areas for the next 3 years.  
The Partnership’s proposed priorities have been identified following extensive consultation and 
are based on hard evidence.  The Partnership’s proposals strike a good balance between 
national and local priorities, and reflect the impact of major regional developments including the 
Olympics and Thames Gateway.   
 
The delay in providing some aspects of the national Local Area Agreement framework, including 
the recently released national indicator set and operational guidance, has not impeded the 
development of the agreement in Tower Hamlets; significant work has taken place over the past 
year to ensure that we are well placed to negotiate a new three-year LAA. 
 
2. Development Process, LAA Structure and Shape 
 
It is a government expectation that local priorities from the Sustainable Community Strategy will 
form the core of the negotiated improvement targets within the LAA.  During the course of 
2007/08, the Tower Hamlets Partnership has undertaken a full review of its SCS - known locally 
as the Community Plan - and this renewed strategy, providing a vision and priorities for Tower 
Hamlets to 2020, will be launched alongside the new LAA over the summer of 2008. 
 
The LAA will help deliver the refreshed Community Plan vision and they have been developed 
together.  The emerging agreement is the result of consultation with local residents and detailed 
discussions with local partners.  A strong local evidence base has been prepared to help inform 
its development, including a detailed borough profile and needs analysis.  A cross-partnership 
working group has been created to help develop the new Community Plan and LAA, and this 
group will continue to operate in 2008 as it develops further the priorities and actions, and the 
framework to deliver them. 
 
Tower Hamlets Community Plan to 2020, and the new LAA, will be structured around four 
themes: 
 

• A Great Place to Live - including housing, planning, transport and waste 
• A Prosperous Community – covering learning, worklessness and enterprise 
• A Safe and Supportive Community – bringing together support for the most vulnerable 

residents with community safety issues 
• A Healthy Community – including public health, access to primary care and mental health 

 
Underpinning these four themes is the idea of One Tower Hamlets - reducing inequalities, 
bringing local communities together, strong local leadership and personal responsibility. 
 

Page 135



 2 

 
Although the refreshed Community Plan and LAA have been developed together, there are a 
number of significant differences.  Most obviously, the Partnership’s refreshed Community Plan 
is a long term strategic document based on a vision of the borough to 2020, whereas the LAA is 
a three-year agreement.  The requirement for the LAA’s designated 35 targets to be taken from 
the national indicator set also restricts the Partnership:  many of its priorities are not captured 
adequately within the 198 indictors, and where this is the case local targets will also be used.   
 
There has been significant discussion within the Partnership about the shape of the LAA.  The 
national guidance makes clear that the agreement should not be a collection of unrelated 
performance indicators but seen as a package. The Partnership’s focus in developing the LAA, 
and identifying the designated 35 targets, has been on ensuring that it is cohesive, reflects 
resident and elected Member priorities, is based on sound evidence and will have an impact 
over the three year timescale.  Prioritised inclusion criteria were agreed to support the inter-
Partnership negotiation process and ensure a consistent approach.  In particular, two criteria 
were given a significant weighting in the development process: 
 

• LAA priorities should have a strong partnership focus and not relate solely to one 
Partnership organisation as a service provider  

• One Tower Hamlets should be the primary focus within the agreement – reducing 
inequality and supporting cohesion  

 
3. Priorities and Indicators 
 
The development process and guiding principles which have supported the agreement’s 
development are set out above.  The proposed improvement priorities and designated indicators 
for the LAA are attached.  Below is a textual summary of the LAA, providing an outline of the 
reasoning behind the selection of some of the key priorities and accompanying indicators. 
 
A Great Place to Live 
The central focus of One Tower Hamlets – fostering cohesion and tackling inequality – is strong 
throughout the agreement.  Meeting housing need, raising educational attainment and 
addressing the skills gap to improve employment opportunities are all vital in addressing the 
underlying inequalities that undermine cohesion.  In addition, it was felt important that improving 
resident perceptions of cohesion should be represented within the LAA’s designated targets 
through the indicator from the new Place Survey which measures the proportion of people who 
believe people from different backgrounds get on well together.   
 
Improved outcomes for residents are at the heart of the borough’s vision and the Partnership 
recognises its role in helping to improve the quality of place.  The indicator relating to general 
satisfaction of local people with their area has been included within the borough’s designated 
targets, acknowledging the importance of the Partnership, and partnership-working, in helping to 
drive resident satisfaction. 
 
Sustainable development is central to the Partnership’s approach and the integration, and 
balance, of economic, social and environmental needs is a key consideration in the new 
Community Plan.  Tackling climate change is an increasingly important priority for the area and 
was a strong theme from this year’s resident consultation.  The Partnership’s emphasis on 
issues with a strong partnership focus within the LAA means that the potentially more 
challenging indicator – the reduction of C02 emissions in the area, rather than from local 

Page 136



 3 

authority operations – has been identified for inclusion within the borough’s designated 35 
targets.   
 
It is acknowledged that recycling rates are low in comparison to both the London and national 
averages and that there is a need for continuing performance improvement over the next three 
years.  Recycling will feature in the borough’s LAA and the Partnership will maintain its strategic 
approach on moving management of waste up the agenda, in line with both the national and 
regional strategies. 
 
Environmental cleanliness remains a key concern of residents, and issues such as graffiti and 
litter play a significant role in driving local perceptions.  Effective partnership working is essential 
in this area and the indicator has been identified for inclusion within the LAA to support the 
improvement focus.  
 
There is insufficient housing in the borough to accommodate the level of need and availability of 
affordable housing is a growing concern of local people.  Nearly a quarter of the borough’s 
residents included affordable housing as one of their top three concerns in the last borough-
wide perception survey, which is significantly more than both the London average and opinion 
within Tower Hamlets in the previous year.  Increasing long term housing supply and 
affordability is a key Partnership priority that will be reflected within the borough’s agreement.  It 
is proposed that the indicators relating to net additional homes provided and the number of 
affordable homes delivered will be included within the LAA’s designated targets.  It is felt that a 
particular area of focus within this needs to be on family homes.   
 
The Partnership is committed to improving housing across all providers in the borough and was 
disappointed to note that the indicator from the national set relating to Decent Homes includes 
only Council stock.  In addition to the inclusion of the Decent Homes NI, the Partnership intends 
to capture its priority relating to housing standards and tenant satisfaction across all social 
landlords with local indicators, which cannot form part of the LAA 35.  
 
Reducing road casualties is an LAA priority for the borough.  There has been an increase in the 
number of people killed or seriously injured on roads within the borough in the past year and 
partnership working is essential in this area, particularly to improve performance on Transport 
for London’s road network. 
 
The Partnership recognises that a thriving Third Sector is a key part of creating a strong and 
cohesive community and an essential partner in delivering the Local Area Agreement and the 
wider aspirations of the Community Plan.  
 
A Prosperous Community 
Tower Hamlets has the highest economic growth rate in the country with high levels of 
productivity and business enterprise.  The working population of Canary Wharf alone is now in 
excess of 90,000 people and Tower Hamlets is expected to accommodate some 150,000 
additional jobs by 2016, through the expansion of Canary Wharf and the development of the 
Thames Gateway.  Up to 40,000 of these jobs will be generated by the Olympics and Olympic 
legacy development.  However, Tower Hamlets still has a relatively weak labour market with a 
low level of skills; many residents are unable to take advantage of the employment opportunities 
that are available in the borough.  Unemployment is over double the national rate and over a 
quarter of these residents are long-term unemployed.  Tackling worklessness is a key 
partnership priority and is essential to delivering the Community Plan’s vision.  Tower Hamlets 

Page 137



 4 

has already signed up to a 3% improvement in the employment rate across the 5 Olympic 
boroughs by 2012 through the City Strategy.  It is proposed that the indicators from the national 
set relating to the employment rate and working age people on out of work benefits are included 
within the LAA’s designated targets.   
 
The proportion of people living in Tower Hamlets aged under 19 stands a 28%, which is 
significantly above the inner-London average of 18%.  Ensuring that these young people have 
the skills for employment is major challenge.  Although the proportion of Tower Hamlets pupils 
achieving grades A*-C has increased to 56.7%, up from 26% in 1996, this is still below the 
national average.  Five indicators from the national set relating to positive activities, skills and 
employment for young people have been included within the provisional 35, in addition to the 
statutory 16 DCSF indicators, reflecting their importance in the borough. 
 
Child poverty is strongly associated with families experiencing worklessness and the effects of 
poverty in terms of education, health, crime and future life prospects are well documented.  
Although there are concerns with the specific indicator in the national set, reducing the 
incidence and effects of child poverty has been identified as a designated improvement priority. 
 

The Tower Hamlets Partnership has designated a basket of four of its LAA indicators for 
Working Neighbourhoods Fund reward grant: working age population claiming out of work 
benefits in the worst performing neighbourhoods (NI 153), achievement of level 2 and level 3 
qualifications by 19 (NIs 79 and 80) and the proportion of 16-18 year olds who are not in 
education, employment or training (NI 117).  These indicators reflect the Partnership’s approach 
to targeting worklessness, including both a commitment to impacting on the employment and 
benefit rate in the short term and a long-term, early intervention and preventative approach. 
 
A Safe and Supportive Community 
Crime remains the main concern of residents in Tower Hamlets as evidenced in perception 
surveys and other consultation, despite year on year reductions in overall crime levels within the 
borough.  Both the violent crime and serious acquisitive crime rates remain higher than the 
London average and have been identified for inclusion within the borough’s 35 designated 
targets.  There is a very strong partnership dimension to tackling these issues through 
preventative work, communications and enforcement.  This includes not just the Council and the 
Police but others including RSLs, the third sector and, of course, residents.   
 
Tower Hamlets also has the second highest perception level of ASB in London and tackling this 
is a local priority; the indicator from the national set relating to dealing with local concerns about 
anti-social behaviour and crime by the local Council and Police has also been identified for 
inclusion.  In addition, the indicator relating to arson incidents features within the designated 35.  
Deliberate fires are a key component of anti-social behaviour and Tower Hamlets has a higher 
number of arson incidents relative to population than any other London Borough. 
 
Half of all crime is committed by those who have come into contact with the criminal justice 
system previously; it is estimated that reoffending in Tower Hamlets costs the borough in excess 
of £45 million every year.  Reducing reoffending will remain a Partnership priority and it is 
proposed that the indicators relating to the reoffending of young offenders and offenders under 
probation supervision will be included within the designated LAA targets.   
 
Drug treatment will also feature within the borough’s LAA.  Drug misuse is a major component of 
anti-social behaviour and custody drug treatment shows high levels of usage amongst those 

Page 138



 5 

responsible for acquisitive crime.  The importance of reducing drug supply and use, and 
addressing residents concerns, is also reflected within the agreement with the inclusion of the 
indictor relating to perceptions of drug use or drug dealing as a problem. 
 
The Partnership supports the preventing violent extremism agenda and acknowledges its 
central importance to community cohesion.  The Partnership also understands the importance of 
a locally developed partnership approach and, as a Preventing Violent Extremism Pathfinder, 
has led innovative work in this area.  The indicator relating to building resilience to violent 
extremism has been selected for inclusion within the borough’s designated LAA targets.   
 
Support for older people and vulnerable adults is an important priority for Tower Hamlets and 
plays a significant role in delivering the One Tower Hamlets vision.  This priority is captured 
throughout the agreement, for example, through the inclusion of targets relating to people with 
learning disabilities and mental ill health in employment.  The Partnership recognises the 
significance of support to carers, and its strong partnership dimension, within the agreement.  
This is important both in terms of support to vulnerable people and in enabling carers to 
continue with their lives, families, work and contribution to the community.  
 
A Healthy Community 
It is acknowledged that health, as a local priority, must be reflected significantly within the LAA.  
Tower Hamlets has poor health compared to the London and UK benchmarks: the borough 
records an average life expectancy of 77.4 years, ranking 349th out of 408 local authority 
districts in Britain.  Mortality rates from both the ‘big killers’ (cancer and circulatory disease) are 
high; the borough’s cancer mortality rate is the highest in London, and the circulatory disease 
mortality rate is second highest.  Poor health has a wider socioeconomic impact and Tower 
Hamlets has a high rate of incapacity benefit claimants relative to London as a whole.  It is felt 
that the health indicators in the national set do not capture well local priorities.  However, a 
number of indicators have been identified for improvement targets within the LAA which will 
have a significant impact in improving health outcomes for local people within the three year-
timescale.   
 
Recent data shows that obesity levels in Tower Hamlets children are above the London average 
and rising in line with the national trend.  A strong partnership approach to tackling childhood 
obesity is essential, encouraging lifestyle change and addressing environmental barriers.  The 
indicator relating to obesity among children in year 6 has been identified for inclusion within the 
LAA designated improvement targets.  Teenage pregnancy remains a concern and will also 
feature within the LAA.  Although the under 18 conception rate has been declining, there is 
evidence that this improvement is slowing and Tower Hamlets’ rate remains higher than the 
national average.   
 
Mortality rates for cancer are high in Tower Hamlets and this is linked to high smoking rates, 
particularly for Bangladeshi men.  The adult smoking indicator will provide a strong focus for 
improvement within the LAA.  In addition, the indicator relating to all-age all cause mortality is 
included within the LAA, providing a good proxy for life expectancy. 

Page 139



Page 140

This page is intentionally left blank



 
1  

Ap
pe
nd
ix 
3 

Lo
ca
l A
rea

 A
gr
ee
me

nt 
20
08
/09
: p
rio
rit
ies
 an

d n
ati
on
al 
se
t in

dic
ato

rs 
 

Pr
ior
ity
 

Ind
ica
tor
 

Pr
ov
isi
on
al 
Ta
rg
ets

 
A 
Gr
ea
t P
lac
e t
o L

ive
 

Ba
se
lin
e  

20
08
/09
 

20
09
/10
 

20
10
/11
 

De
liv

er
y P

art
ne

rs 
Su

pp
ort

 vi
bra

nt 
tow

n c
en

tre
s 

an
d a

 cl
ea

ne
r, 

sa
fer

 pu
bli

c 
rea

lm
 

NI
18
6: 

Pe
r c

ap
ita

 
red

uc
tio

n i
n C

02
 

em
iss

ion
s i

n t
he

 
LA

 ar
ea
 

2,0
15

,00
0t 

- 9
.5 

ton
ne

s 
CO

2/c
ap

 (2
00

5) 
 

2%
 

6%
 

10
% 

Co
un

cil,
 Pr

im
ary

 C
are

 Tr
us

t, 
Tra

ns
po

rt f
or 

Lo
nd

on
, R

SL
s, 

Pr
iva

te 
De

ve
lop

ers
 

Su
pp

ort
 vi

bra
nt 

tow
n c

en
tre

s 
an

d a
 cl

ea
ne

r, 
sa

fer
 pu

bli
c 

rea
lm

 

NI
19
2: 

Ho
us

eh
old

 
wa

ste
 re

cy
cle

d 
an

d c
om

po
ste

d 
11

.76
% 

(W
as

te 
Da

ta 
Flo

w)
 

(20
06

/07
) 

19
% 

26
% 

32
% 

Co
un

cil,
 Th

ird
 Se

cto
r 

Su
pp

ort
 vi

bra
nt 

tow
n c

en
tre

s 
an

d a
 cl

ea
ne

r, 
sa

fer
 pu

bli
c 

rea
lm

 

NI
19
5: 

Im
pro

ve
d 

str
ee

t a
nd

 
en

vir
on

me
nta

l 
cle

an
lin

es
s 

Lit
ter

 14
 (2

1.4
)  

De
trit

us
 15

 (2
3.5

) 
Gr

aff
iti 

9 (
13

.4)
 

Fly
 po

sti
ng

 4 
(5.

9) 
(20

06
/07

) 

12
% 

13
% 

 8%
 

3%
  

10
% 

11
% 7%
 

2%
  

8%
 

10
% 6%
 

2%
  

Co
un

cil,
 To

we
r H

am
let

s 
Pa

rtn
ers

hip
, T

ran
sp

ort
 fo

r L
on

do
n, 

RS
Ls

 
 

Pr
ov

ide
 

aff
ord

ab
le 

ho
us

ing
 an

d 
str

on
g 

ne
igh

bo
urh

oo
ds

 

NI
15
4: 

Ne
t 

ad
dit

ion
al 

ho
me

s  
23

70
 (2

00
6/0

7) 
29

99
 (a

v) 
29

99
 

(av
) 

29
99

 
(av

) 
Co

un
cil,

 R
SL

s, 
Pr

iva
te 

De
ve

lop
ers

 

Pr
ov

ide
 

aff
ord

ab
le 

ho
us

ing
 an

d 
str

on
g 

ne
igh

bo
urh

oo
ds

 

NI
15
5: 

Aff
ord

ab
le 

ho
me

s d
eli

ve
red

  
10

47
(20

06
/07

) 
 

16
88

 
 (a

v) 
16

88
 

 (a
v) 

16
88

 
(av

) 
Co

un
cil,

 R
SL

s, 
Pr

iva
te 

De
ve

lop
ers

 

Pr
ov

ide
 

aff
ord

ab
le 

ho
us

ing
 an

d 
str

on
g 

ne
igh

bo
urh

oo
ds

 

NI
15
8: 

De
ce

nt 
Ho

me
s 

59
% 

(20
06

/07
) 

51
% 

49
% 

47
% 

Co
un

cil,
 To

we
r H

am
let

s H
om

es
 

Str
en

gth
en

 an
d 

co
nn

ec
t 

co
mm

un
itie

s 
NI
47

: P
eo

ple
 ki

lle
d 

or 
se

rio
us

ly 
inj

ure
d 

in 
roa

d t
raf

fic
 

ac
cid

en
ts 

12
4 (

20
06

/07
) 

11
7 

11
1 

10
5 

Co
un

cil,
 Tr

an
sp

ort
 fo

r L
on

do
n, 

Po
lice

, S
ch

oo
ls 

Page 141



 
2  

  

Pr
ior
ity
 

Ind
ica
tor
 

Pr
ov
isi
on
al 
Ta
rg
ets

 
A 
Pr
os
pe
ro
us
 C
om

mu
nit
y 

Ba
se
lin
e  

20
08
/09
 
20
09
/10
 
20
10
/11
 
De
liv
ery

 Pa
rtn
ers

 
Re

du
ce

 
wo

rkl
es

sn
es

s 
 

NI
15
1: 

Em
plo

ym
en

t ra
te 

 
53

.2 
(Ju

ne
 20

07
) 

54
% 

54
.9%

 
55

.7%
 

Co
un

cil,
 Jo

bc
en

tre
 Pl

us
, L

ea
rni

ng
 

an
d S

kill
s C

ou
nc

il 

Re
du

ce
 

wo
rkl

es
sn

es
s 

 
NI
15
3: 

W
ork

ing
 

ag
e p

eo
ple

 
cla

im
ing

 ou
t o

f 
wo

rk 
be

ne
fits

 in
 th

e 
wo

rst
 pe

rfo
rm

ing
 

ne
igh

bo
urh

oo
ds

** 

29
.8%

 
(M

ay
 20

07
) 

29
% 

28
% 

26
.8%

 
 

Co
un

cil,
 Jo

bc
en

tre
 Pl

us
, L

ea
rni

ng
 

an
d S

kill
s C

ou
nc

il 

Re
du

ce
 

wo
rkl

es
sn

es
s 

 
NI
 15
2: 
 W

ork
ing

 
ag

e p
eo

ple
 on

 ou
t 

of 
wo

rk 
be

ne
fits

 
18

.3 
(M

ay
 20

07
) 

17
.9%

 
17

.2%
 

16
.3%

 
Co

un
cil,

 Jo
bc

en
tre

 Pl
us

, L
ea

rni
ng

 
an

d S
kill

s C
ou

nc
il 

Re
du

ce
 

wo
rkl

es
sn

es
s 

 
NI
 11
6 P

rop
ort

ion
 

of 
ch

ild
ren

 in
 ch

ild
 

po
ve

rty
 

46
.4%

 
(A

pri
l 2

00
6/0

7) 
45

%  
43

.5%
 

 
41

.9%
 

 
Co

un
cil,

 Jo
bc

en
tre

 Pl
us

, L
ea

rni
ng

 
an

d S
kill

s C
ou

nc
il 

Su
pp

ort
 lif

elo
ng

 
lea

rni
ng

 
op

po
rtu

nit
ies

 
for

 al
l 

NI
79

: A
ch

iev
em

en
t 

of 
a l

ev
el 

2 
qu

ali
fic

ati
on

 by
 ag

e 
19

** 

58
% 

(20
06

/07
) 

 
67

% 
69

.5%
 

71
.8%

 
Co

un
cil,

 To
we

r H
am

let
s H

UB
: 

Sc
ho

ols
, T

ow
er 

Ha
ml

ets
 C

oll
eg

e, 
Qu

ee
n M

ary
 U

niv
ers

ity
 an

d t
he

 
Un

ive
rsi

ty 
of 

Ea
st 

Lo
nd

on
, T

ow
er 

Ha
ml

ets
 Ed

uc
ati

on
 Bu

sin
es

s 
Pa

rtn
ers

hip
, C

on
ne

xio
ns

 an
d 

Le
arn

ing
 an

d S
kill

s C
ou

nc
il  

Su
pp

ort
 lif

elo
ng

 
lea

rni
ng

 
op

po
rtu

nit
ies

 
for

 al
l 

NI
80

: A
ch

iev
em

en
t 

of 
a l

ev
el 

3 
qu

ali
fic

ati
on

 by
 ag

e 
19

** 

37
% 

(20
06

/07
) 

40
% 

43
% 

46
% 

Co
un

cil,
 To

we
r H

am
let

s H
UB

: 
Sc

ho
ols

, T
ow

er 
Ha

ml
ets

 C
oll

eg
e, 

Qu
ee

n M
ary

 U
niv

ers
ity

 an
d t

he
 

Un
ive

rsi
ty 

of 
Ea

st 
Lo

nd
on

, T
ow

er 
Ha

ml
ets

 Ed
uc

ati
on

 Bu
sin

es
s 

Pa
rtn

ers
hip

, C
on

ne
xio

ns
 an

d 
Le

arn
ing

 an
d S

kill
s C

ou
nc

il  
Re

du
ce

 
wo

rkl
es

sn
es

s 
NI
11
7: 

16
-18

 ye
ar 

old
s w

ho
 ar

e 
NE

ET
** 

 
8.2

% 
(N

ov
 07

-Ja
n 0

8) 
7%

 
6.2

5%
 

6%
 

Co
un

cil,
 To

we
r H

am
let

s H
UB

: 
Sc

ho
ols

, T
ow

er 
Ha

ml
ets

 C
oll

eg
e, 

Qu
ee

n M
ary

 U
niv

ers
ity

 an
d t

he
 

Un
ive

rsi
ty 

of 
Ea

st 
Lo

nd
on

, T
ow

er 
Ha

ml
ets

 Ed
uc

ati
on

 Bu
sin

es
s 

Pa
rtn

ers
hip

, C
on

ne
xio

ns
 an

d 
Le

arn
ing

 an
d S

kill
s C

ou
nc

il  

Page 142



 
3  

  

Pr
ior
ity
 

Ind
ica
tor
 

Pr
ov
isi
on
al 
Ta
rg
ets

 
A 
Sa
fe 
an
d S

up
po
rti
ve
 

Co
mm

un
ity

 
Ba
se
lin
e  

20
08
/09
 
20
09
/10
 
20
10
/11
 
De
liv
ery

 Pa
rtn
ers

 
Fo

cu
s o

n 
ea

rly
 

int
erv

en
tio

n 
NI
35

: B
uil

din
g 

res
ilie

nc
e t

o v
iol

en
t 

ex
tre

mi
sm

  
3 (

20
07

/08
) 

4 
4.5

 
5 

Co
un

cil,
 Po

lice
, T

hir
d S

ec
tor

 
(in

ter
fai

th)
 

Ta
ck

le 
an

d 
pre

ve
nt 

cri
me

 
NI
16

: S
eri

ou
s 

ac
qu

isit
ive

 cr
im

e r
ate

 
35

.5 
inc

ide
nts

 pe
r 1

,00
0 

po
pu

lat
ion

 (2
00

5/0
6) 

 
34

 
33

.3 
32

.7 
Co

un
cil,

 Po
lice

, R
SL

s, 
Th

ird
 

Se
cto

r 

Ta
ck

le 
an

d 
pre

ve
nt 

cri
me

 
NI
33

: A
rso

n I
nc

ide
nts

 
51

 in
cid

en
ts 

pe
r 1

0,0
00

 
po

pu
lat

ion
 (2

00
7/0

8) 
 Pr

im
ary

 12
.6 

 Se
c. 

38
.0 

49
 

Pr
im

ary
 

12
.2 

Se
c. 

36
.9 

48
 

Pr
im

ary
 

11
.9 

Se
c. 

35
.8 

46
 

Pr
im

ary
 

11
.5 

Se
c. 

34
.7 

Fir
e S

erv
ice

, C
ou

nc
il, 

Po
lice

 

Em
po

we
r 

old
er 

an
d 

vu
lne

rab
le 

pe
op

le 
an

d 
su

pp
ort

 
fam

ilie
s 

NI
13
5: 

Ca
rer

s 
rec

eiv
ing

 ne
ed

s 
as

se
ss

me
nt 

or 
rev

iew
 

an
d a

 sp
ec

ific
 ca

rer
’s 

se
rvi

ce
, o

r a
dv

ice
 an

d 
inf

orm
ati

on
 

15
.9%

 
 

20
.9%

 
 

25
.9 

30
.9%

 
Co

un
cil,

 Th
ird

 Se
cto

r: T
ow

er 
Ha

ml
ets

 C
are

r’s
 C

en
tre

 

Fo
cu

s o
n 

ea
rly

 
int

erv
en

tio
n 

NI
40

: D
rug

 us
ers

 in
 

eff
ec

tiv
e t

rea
tm

en
t 

11
69

 
12

63
 

12
76

 
12

89
 

Co
un

cil,
 Po

lice
, P

CT
, T

hir
d S

ec
tor

 

Ta
ck

le 
an

d 
pre

ve
nt 

cri
me

 
NI
42

: P
erc

ep
tio

ns
 of

 
dru

g u
se

 or
 dr

ug
 

de
ali

ng
 as

 a 
pro

ble
m 

68
% 

20
06

/07
 (L

GU
SS

) 
65

% 
62

% 
60

% 
Co

un
cil,

 Po
lice

, P
CT

, T
hir

d S
ec

tor
 

 

Page 143



 
4  

 

Pr
ior
ity
 

Ind
ica
tor
 

Pr
ov
isi
on
al 
Ta
rg
ets

 
A 
He
alt
hy
 C
om

mu
nit
y 

Ba
se
lin
e  

20
08
/09
 
20
09
/10
 
20
10
/11
 
De
liv
ery

 Pa
rtn
ers

 
Re

du
ce

 
dif

fer
en

ce
s i

n 
pe

op
le’

s 
he

alt
h a

nd
 

pro
mo

te 
he

alt
h 

life
sty

les
 

NI
56

: O
be

sit
y 

am
on

g p
rim

ary
 

sc
ho

ol 
ag

e c
hil

dre
n 

in 
ye

ar 
6 

23
.0%

 (2
00

7/0
8) 

22
.9%

 
23

.6%
 

23
.7%

 
Co

un
cil,

 Sc
ho

ols
, P

CT
 

Re
du

ce
 

dif
fer

en
ce

s i
n 

pe
op

le’
s 

he
alt

h a
nd

 
pro

mo
te 

he
alt

h 
life

sty
les

 

NI
11
2: 

Un
de

r 1
8 

co
nc

ep
tio

n r
ate

 
-24

.2%
 (2

00
6/0

7) 
    

-47
%       

-48
.7    

-55
%    

Co
un

cil,
 Sc

ho
ols

, P
CT

 

Re
du

ce
 

dif
fer

en
ce

s i
n 

pe
op

le’
s 

he
alt

h a
nd

 
pro

mo
te 

he
alt

h 
life

sty
les

 

NI
12
3: 

Sto
pp

ed
 

sm
ok

ing
 

12
76

 (2
00

6/0
7) 

1,0
25

 
1,0

43
 

1,0
61

 
Co

un
cil,

 PC
T 

Re
du

ce
 

dif
fer

en
ce

s i
n 

pe
op

le’
s 

he
alt

h a
nd

 
pro

mo
te 

he
alt

h 
life

sty
les

 

NI
12
0: 

All
-ag

e a
ll-

ca
us

e m
ort

ali
ty 

rat
e 

85
6 (

ma
le)

 (2
00

6) 
57

8 (
fem

ale
) (2

00
6) 

82
1 (

m)
 

56
3 (

f) 
80

4 (
m)

 
55

5 (
f) 

78
7 (

m)
 

54
7 (

f) 
Co

un
cil,

 PC
T 

 

Page 144



 
5  

Ind
ica
tor
s w

he
re 
tar
ge
t s
ett
ing

 is
 de

fer
red

 
 A G

rea
t P

lac
e t

o L
ive

 
NI
1: 

% 
of 

pe
op

le 
wh

o b
eli

ev
e p

eo
ple

 fro
m 

dif
fer

en
t b

ac
kg

rou
nd

s g
et 

on
 w

ell
 to

ge
the

r in
 th

eir
 lo

ca
l a

rea
 - a

 st
ati

sti
ca

lly 
sig

nif
ica

nt 
po

sit
ive

 ch
an

ge
, w

ith
 va

lue
 of

 st
ati

sti
ca

l s
ign

ific
an

ce
 to

 be
 es

tab
lish

ed
 by

 th
e p

op
ula

tio
n s

am
ple

 of
 th

e s
urv

ey
, to

 be
 ag

ree
d 

NI
5: 

Ov
era

ll /
 ge

ne
ral

 sa
tis

fac
tio

n w
ith

 th
e l

oc
al 

are
a  

NI
 7:
 En

vir
on

me
nt 

for
 a 

thr
ivin

g t
hir

d s
ec

tor
 - a

 st
ati

sti
ca

lly 
sig

nif
ica

nt 
po

sit
ive

 ch
an

ge
, w

ith
 va

lue
 of

 st
ati

sti
ca

l s
ign

ific
an

ce
 to

 be
 

es
tab

lish
ed

 by
 th

e p
op

ula
tio

n s
am

ple
 of

 th
e s

urv
ey

, to
 be

 ag
ree

d 
 A P

ros
pe

rou
s C

om
mu

nit
y 

NI
10
6: 

Yo
un

g p
eo

ple
 fro

m 
low

 in
co

me
 ba

ck
gro

un
ds

 pr
og

res
sin

g t
o h

igh
er 

ed
uc

ati
on

  
NI
11
0: 

Yo
un

g p
eo

ple
’s 

pa
rtic

ipa
tio

n i
n p

os
itiv

e a
cti

vit
ies

 
NI
14
6: 

Ad
ult

s w
ith

 le
arn

ing
 di

sa
bil

itie
s i

n e
mp

loy
me

nt 
NI
15
0: 

Ad
ult

s i
n c

on
tac

t w
ith

 se
co

nd
ary

 m
en

tal
 he

alt
h s

erv
ice

s i
n e

mp
loy

me
nt 

 A S
afe

 an
d S

up
po

rtiv
e C

om
mu

nit
y 

NI
15

: S
eri

ou
s v

iol
en

t c
rim

e r
ate

  
NI
18

: A
du

lt r
e-o

ffe
nd

ing
 ra

tes
 fo

r th
os

e u
nd

er 
pro

ba
tio

n s
up

erv
isio

n 
NI
19

: R
ate

 of
 pr

ov
en

 re
off

en
din

g b
y y

ou
ng

 of
fen

de
rs 

NI
21

: D
ea

lin
g w

ith
 lo

ca
l c

on
ce

rns
 ab

ou
t a

nti
-so

cia
l b

eh
av

iou
r a

nd
 cr

im
e b

y t
he

 lo
ca

l C
ou

nc
il a

nd
 Po

lice
 

 All
 in

dic
ato

rs 
to 

be
 de

sig
na

ted
 

**i
nd

ica
tes

 in
dic

ato
r d

es
ign

ate
d f

or 
W

NF
 re

wa
rd 

  

Page 145



 
6  

Th
e f

oll
ow

ing
 St

atu
tor

y 1
6 E

du
ca

tio
n I

nd
ica

tor
 ta

rge
ts 

we
re 

su
bm

itte
d t

o D
CS

F i
n J

an
ua

ry 
20

08
: 

 Co
mm

un
ity
 Pl
an
 Pr
ior
ity
 

Na
tio
na
l In

dic
ato

r 
Ta
rg
et 
 

20
08
/09
 

ac
ad
em
ic 

ye
ar 

NI
. 7

2: 
Ac

hie
ve

me
nt 

of 
at 

lea
st 

78
 po

int
s a

cro
ss

 th
e E

arl
y Y

ea
rs 

Fo
un

da
tio

n S
tag

e w
ith

 at
 le

as
t 6

 in
 ea

ch
 of

 th
e s

ca
les

 in
 Pe

rso
na

l 
So

cia
l a

nd
 Em

oti
on

al 
De

ve
lop

me
nt 

an
d C

om
mu

nic
ati

on
, L

an
gu

ag
e 

an
d L

ite
rac

y 

45
.3%

 

NI
. 7

6: 
Ac

hie
ve

me
nt 

at 
lev

el 
4 o

r a
bo

ve
 in

 bo
th 

En
gli

sh
 an

d M
ath

s a
t 

KS
2 (

Flo
or)

 
79

% 
NI

. 7
7: 

Ac
hie

ve
me

nt 
at 

lev
el 

5 o
r a

bo
ve

 in
 bo

th 
En

gli
sh

 an
d M

ath
s a

t 
KS

3 (
Flo

or)
 

71
% 

NI
. 7

8: 
Ac

hie
ve

me
nt 

of 
5 o

r m
ore

 A*
-C

 gr
ad

es
 at

 G
CS

E a
nd

 
eq

uiv
ale

nt 
inc

lud
ing

 G
CS

Es
 in

 En
gli

sh
 an

d M
ath

s (
Flo

or)
 

50
% 

NI
. 8

3: 
Ac

hie
ve

me
nt 

at 
lev

el 
5 o

r a
bo

ve
 in

 Sc
ien

ce
 at

 Ke
y S

tag
e 3

 
71

% 
NI

. 8
7: 

Se
co

nd
ary

 sc
ho

ol 
pe

rsi
ste

nt 
ab

se
nc

e r
ate

 
5.9

4%
 

NI
. 9

2: 
Na

rro
win

g t
he

 ga
p b

etw
ee

n t
he

 lo
we

st 
ac

hie
vin

g 2
0%

 in
 th

e 
Ea

rly
 

Ye
ars

 Fo
un

da
tio

n S
tag

e P
rof

ile
 an

d t
he

 re
st 

31
.8%

 

NI
. 9

3: 
Pr

og
res

sio
n b

y 2
 le

ve
ls 

in 
En

gli
sh

 be
tw

ee
n K

ey
 St

ag
e 1

 an
d 

Ke
y S

tag
e 2

 
92

% 
NI

. 9
4: 

Pr
og

res
sio

n b
y 2

 le
ve

ls 
in 

Ma
ths

 be
tw

ee
n K

ey
 St

ag
e 1

 an
d 

Ke
y S

tag
e 2

 
85

% 
NI

. 9
5: 

Pr
og

res
sio

n b
y 2

 le
ve

ls 
in 

En
gli

sh
 be

tw
ee

n K
ey

 St
ag

e 2
 an

d 
Ke

y S
tag

e 3
 

39
% 

NI
. 9

6: 
Pr

og
res

sio
n b

y 2
 le

ve
ls 

in 
Ma

ths
 be

tw
ee

n K
ey

 St
ag

e 2
 an

d 
Ke

y S
tag

e 3
 

62
% 

NI
. 9

7: 
Pr

og
res

sio
n b

y 2
 le

ve
ls 

in 
En

gli
sh

 be
tw

ee
n K

ey
 St

ag
e 3

 an
d 

Ke
y S

tag
e 4

 
62

% 
NI

. 9
8: 

Pr
og

res
sio

n b
y 2

 le
ve

ls 
in 

Ma
ths

 be
tw

ee
n K

ey
 St

ag
e 3

 an
d 

Ke
y S

tag
e 4

 
46

% 
NI

. 9
9: 

Ch
ild

ren
 in

 ca
re 

rea
ch

ing
 le

ve
l 4

 in
 En

gli
sh

 at
 Ke

y S
tag

e 2
 

PS
A 1

1 
53

% 
NI

. 1
00

: C
hil

dre
n i

n c
are

 re
ac

hin
g l

ev
el 

4 i
n M

ath
s a

t K
ey

 St
ag

e 2
 

53
% 

Pr
os

pe
rou

s C
om

mu
nit

ies
: S

up
po

rt L
ife

lon
g 

Le
arn

ing
 O

pp
ort

un
itie

s f
or 

all
 

NI
. 1

01
: C

hil
dre

n i
n c

are
 ac

hie
vin

g 5
 A*

-C
 G

CS
Es

 (o
r e

qu
iva

len
t) a

t 
Ke

y S
tag

e 4
 (in

clu
din

g E
ng

lish
 an

d M
ath

s) 
23

% 

  

Page 146



Committee: 
 
Cabinet 
 

Date: 
 
11 June 2008 

Classification: 
 
Unrestricted 
 
 

APPENDIX ‘B’ TO 
COUNCIL AGENDA 
ITEM 8.3  

Report of:  
Chief Executive  
 
Originating officer(s)  
Louise Russell, Head of Performance 
Improvement 
Lucy Sutton, Performance Manager 

Title:  
Strategic Plan, Annual Report and Best Value 
Performance Plan  
 
Wards Affected: All 

 
 

Special Circumstances and Reasons for Urgency 
 
• The report was unavailable for public inspection within the standard timescales set out 

in the Authority’s Constitution, because of the continuation of negotiations with 
Government Office for London over the indicators and targets to be included within the 
Council’s Local Area Agreement which it had been anticipated would be completed in 
time for publication of the agenda for this meeting of the Cabinet. 

 
• The Local Area Agreement is the recognised delivery vehicle for the Community Plan 

and the principle target setting mechanism between central and local government.  
The Strategic Plan sets out the Council’s contribution to delivering both the 
Community Plan and the Local Area Agreement.  It was vital that the Community Plan, 
Local Area Agreement and Strategic Plan were consistent and aligned to allow proper 
consideration of the report by Members. 

 
1. Summary 
  
1.1 This report presents Tower Hamlets Council’s Strategic Plan (2008/09) (Section 3), 

the end of year monitoring update on the full 12 months of the 2007/08 Strategic Plan 
(Section 4), the Best Value Performance Plan and Annual Report (Section 5), and 
information on how these relate to our financial outturns (Section 6). 

 
The advice and comments of the Overview and Scrutiny Committee will be tabled at 
the Cabinet meeting for Members’ consideration. 

 
The final, integrated document will go to Full Council on 25th June 2008. 

 
2. Recommendations  
  
2.1 That the Council's Strategic Plan 2008/09, end of year monitoring, Best Value 

Performance Plan and Annual Report be endorsed and that full Council be 
recommended to approve these Plans, attached at Appendix 1 and 3 to this report, 
subject to necessary and appropriate amendments to ensure that the plans are 
accurate, coherent and reflect the views of Members. 

  
2.2 That the Chief Executive, after consultation with the Leader of the Council, be 

authorised to make appropriate and necessary amendments to the Strategic Plan 
2008/09 and BVPP (2007/2008) in advance of final publication. 

  
 

Page 147



 2 

 
 

Local Government Act, 1972 Section 100d (As Amended) 
List Of Background Papers Used In Preparation Of This Report 

 
Brief description of  “background 
papers” 

Name and telephone number of holder  
and address where open to inspection. 

Strategic Plan 2008 - 2011  
 

Lucy Sutton       020 7364 4361 
Mulberry Place, 
5 Clove Crescent, 
London E14 2BG  

 
 
3. Strategic Plan 2008/09 
 

The Strategic Plan 2008/09 has been developed to ensure that it: 
• reflects the Council’s contribution to delivering the Community Plan for 2008/09;  
• establishes a new set of Strategic Indicators based on the indicators within our new Local 
Area Agreement plus other priority National Indicators; and  

• provides a strategic focus on Key Initiatives which contribute to the delivery of agreed 
priorities; more detailed activities will be incorporated within Directorate and Team Plans. 

 
The plan has been informed by discussions with Cabinet members to prioritise key initiatives. 
As the Strategic Plan falls under the Budget and Policy Framework, following this Cabinet 
meeting the reports will be considered by Full Council on 25 June. 
 

3.1 Structure and Content of Strategic Plan 2008/09 
 
The structure and content of the current draft is as follows: 
1. Vision  – drawn from the vision developed for the new Community Plan  
2. Context – summarised from the new Community Plan 
3. The Strategic Plan and the Council’s role 
4. Measuring our Progress  
5. Key Initiatives and Milestones 
6. Planning and Monitoring Framework  
7. Use of Resources 
 
3.2 Summary of Strategic Themes and Priorities 
One Tower Hamlets 
Priority: 1.1 To reduce inequalities, foster strong community cohesion and provide strong 
leadership and inclusive services 
Objectives;     
1.1.1 To reduce inequalities 
1.1.2  Foster strong community cohesion 
1.1.3 Provide strong community leadership and inclusive services 
 
Priority:  1.2 Working efficiently and effectively as One Council 
Objectives; 
1.2.1 Ensuring value for money across the Council 
1.2.2 Recruiting, supporting and developing an effective workforce 
1.2.3 Providing effective and joined up corporate services to ensure the delivery of Council 
priorities   

Page 148



 3 

 
A Great Place to Live 
Priority: 2.1 Provide affordable housing and strong neighbourhoods 
Objectives;  
2.1.1 Increasing the overall supply of housing for local people including a range of 

affordable, family housing  
2.1.2 Provide decent homes in well designed streets and neighbourhoods 
2.1.3 Planning new neighbourhoods with supportive services like primary schools, 

healthcare facilities and local parks. 
2.1.4 Improving the quality of housing management and related services provided to 

tenants and leaseholders 
 
Priority; 2.2 Strengthen and Connect Communities 
Objectives;  
2.2.1 Improving public transport networks and enabling more residents to walk and cycle 

safely  
2.2.2 Bringing together communities to foster mutual understanding, a collective sense of 

wellbeing and avoid people being isolated 
2.2.3 Ensuring communities have good access to a full range of facilities - including health 

services, schools and leisure 
 
Priority; 2.3 Support vibrant town centres, and a cleaner, safer public realm 
Objectives;  
2.3.1 Providing first-class and well managed centres where people come together for 

business, shopping, leisure and recreation 
2.3.2 Supporting and improving open spaces 
2.3.3 Improving street lighting and reducing graffiti and litter 
 
Priority: 2.4 Improve the environment and tackle climate change 
Objectives;  
2.4.1 Reducing energy use and using more renewable energy sources 
2.4.2 Focusing on reusing wherever possible and recycling more 
2.4.3 Adapting our built environment to cope with the changing climate and weather 

patterns 
 
A Prosperous Community  
Priority: 3.1 Support lifelong learning opportunities for all 
Objectives;  
3.1.1 Investing in the under 5s whose development provides the best possible foundation 

for long term success 
3.1.2 Providing high quality schools, so that young people acquire the knowledge and skills 

they need to fulfil their full potential 
3.1.3 Providing continuous learning opportunities, so everyone can learn basic and new 

skills at any age 
 
Priority: 3.2 Reduce worklessness 
Objectives;  
3.2.1 Helping families escape poverty, by providing employment support and advice on debt 

management  
3.2.2 Identifying and removing barriers to employment for target groups  

Page 149



 4 

3.2.3 Helping people to get employment by ensuring there is support and training before 
and after they get a job 

 
Priority: 3.3 Foster enterprise 
Objectives;  
3.3.1 Providing incentives that encourage both business and social entrepreneurship 
3.3.2 Maximising the opportunities for local businesses to benefit from key growth sectors, 

and the Olympic and Paralympic Games. 
3.3.3 Promoting Tower Hamlets businesses and encouraging growth and tourism, with 

particular emphasis on the Olympics and Paralympics 
 
A Safe and Supportive Community 
Priority; 4.1 Empower vulnerable people and support families   
Objectives;  
4.1.1 Providing responsive and appropriate services for adults which promote 

independence, choice, security and community 
4.1.2 Protecting children from harm and neglect 
4.1.3 Preventing and reducing homelessness, and helping more people into    settled 

homes and employment 
4.1.4 Improving support for children and young people with disabilities and their families 
 
Priority; 4.2 Tackle and Prevent Crime 
Objectives;  
4.2.1 Reducing crime and promoting successes effectively to reduce fear of crime 
4.2.2 Reducing re-offending through holistic intervention with all who become involved with 

the criminal justice system 
4.2.3 Making crime prevention a key element of all service planning - and improving 

community trust and engagement in strategic planning and service development 
 
Priority; 4.3 Focus on Early Intervention 
Objectives;  
4.3.1 Improving parental engagement and support 
4.3.2 Using joined-up approaches to address links between health, drugs, alcohol, 

education, skills, employment, accommodation, mental health, debt and benefits 
across all age groups 

4.3.3 Tackling the causes of crime by working with ‘at-risk’ groups, to nip problems in the 
bud  

 
A Healthy Community  
Priority; 5.1 Improving health and reducing differences in people’s health by promoting 
healthy lifestyles 
Objectives;  
5.1.1 Reduce the use of tobacco 
5.1.2 Reducing rates of diabetes, high blood pressure and cholesterol 
5.1.3 Slow down the increase in obesity 
5.1.4 Improving sexual health 
 
Priority; 5.2 Support mental health services to improve mental health 
Objectives;  
5.2.1 Providing high-quality accessible services  
5.2.2 Combating discrimination against individuals and groups with mental health problems 

Page 150



 5 

5.2.3 Ensuring integrated planning and treatment with patients with multiple health needs 
 
 
Priority; 5.3 Improve access to, and experience of, health services 
Objectives;  
5.3.1 Improving access to GPs, developing out-of-hospital services and improving access to 

high quality maternity care 
5.3.2 Reducing waiting times 
5.3.3 Promoting self-care and improving management of long term conditions 
 
3.3 Outturns, targets and benchmarks 
At this stage the outturn, target and benchmarks for key measures are not completed or 
finalised.  This information is currently being collated following year end and will be included 
within the final draft to Full Council.  As a number of the measures and indicators are new, it 
may not be possible to provide baselines or benchmarks in all areas but efforts will be made 
to provide complete data where possible.   
 
4. Strategic Plan 2007/08 Monitoring Report 
 
The Council’s performance framework requires CMT and Members to consider our progress 
against Strategic Plan Activities every 6 months. This monitoring report provides an update 
on the full 12 months of the 2007/08 Strategic Plan, including the number and proportion of 
milestones achieving red, amber or green traffic lights and analysis of the milestones, in 
particular the reasons for unsuccessful implementation.  
 
• Appendix 3a lists all the activities with green status – those which have been completed.  
• Appendix 3b lists those activities that have red status – those which have not been 

completed. It provides detail on the status of milestones and a comment to explain 
performance.  

 
The 2007/08 Strategic Plan set out our 12 strategic priorities and targets for the four-year 
period 2006-2010. It includes the objectives and targets for the year, the activities to be 
carried out to achieve those objectives, and milestones by which progress is monitored.  
 
There are 363 activities, and 766 milestones in the 2007/08 Strategic Plan that were due for 
completion by 31 March 2008.  
 
Strategic Plan performance is measured against the progress milestones for each key 
activity. Depending on progress against milestones, the activity is allocated one of three 
performance levels:  
 
• RED = Activity Overdue; deadline has expired 
• AMBER = Activity not yet achieved; deadline not yet reached  
• GREEN = Activity Completed; outcomes achieved.  
 
4.1 Progress Update 
 
Tables 1 and 2 provide a progress update by Community Plan Theme and directorate 
respectively for activities and milestones due by the end of 2007/08. The percentage figure 
for green and red activities is as a percentage of all activities and milestones due for 
completion by the 31 March 2008.  

Page 151



 6 

 
Table 1: Total activities and milestones by Theme: 
 Total Total Completed (Green) Total Overdue (Red 
 Activities Milestones Activities Milestones Activities Milestones 
Living Safely 72  184 59 (81.9%) 162 (88%) 13 (18.1%) 22 (12%) 
Living Well 61  123  46 (75.4%) 102 (82.9%) 15 (25.6%) 21 (17.1%) 
Creating and Sharing 
Prosperity 

40 80  36 (90%) 75 (93.75%) 4 (10%) 5 (6.25%) 
Learning, Achievement 
and Leisure 

55  131  45 (81.8%) 120 (91.6%) 10 (18.2%) 11 (8.4%) 
Excellent Public 
Services 

135  248  91 (67.4%) 190 (76.6%) 44 (32.6%) 58 (23.4%) 
Total 363 766 277 (76.3%) 647 (84.7%) 86 (23.7%) 117 (15.3%) 
 
Table 2: Total activities and milestones by Directorate: 
 Total Total Completed (Green) Total Overdue (Red) 
 Activities Milestones Activities Milestones Activities Milestones 
Adults Health & Well 
Being 

17  32  13 (76.5%) 25 (78.1%) 4 (23.5%) 7 (21.9%) 
Chief Executives  41  78 32 (78%) 66 (84.6%) 9 (22%) 12 (15.4%) 
Children’s Services 77 173 59 (76.6%) 150 (86.7%) 18 (23.4%) 23 (13.3%) 
Communities & 
Localities 

106  258  85 (80.2%) 227(88%) 21 (19.8%) 31(12%) 
Development & 
Renewal  

41 83  34 (82.9%) 72 (86.7%) 7 (17.1%) 11 (13.3%) 
Housing  15  32  12 (80%) 29 (90.6%) 3 (20%) 3 (9.4%) 
Resources 66  110  42 (63.6%) 80 (72.7%) 24 (36.4%) 30 (27.3%) 
Total  363 766 277 (76.3%) 647 (84.7%) 86 (23.7%) 117 (15.3%) 
 
4.2 Outstanding activities 
 
There are 86 Activities that are currently overdue and Appendix 3b includes comments to 
explain why the deadlines were not met for these activities. 

 
5. BVPP and Annual Report 
 
The Council’s Annual Report and Best Value Performance Plan, including an Annual Report 
on the progress made in 2007/08 will be presented to Full Council on 25 June. This is the 
last year that we are statutorily required to publish the Best Value Performance Plan by 30th 
June. 
 
This report comprises the following key documents which, once finalised and approved, will 
make up the final report: 
 
• Appendix 2 Draft Annual Report for 2007-08, compiled from Strategic Plan monitoring 

information;  
• Appendix 4 BVPI, LAA, LPSA and SP – outcomes against targets for 2007/08; and 
• Appendix 5 Tables explaining any significant variances between targets and outcomes – 

above target and below target. 
• Appendix 6 Statement on Workforce Matters 
• Appendix 7 Summary of Statement of Accounts – to follow. 
 
The final accounts are still being prepared; the Summary of Statement of Accounts will follow 
by separate cover. 

Page 152



 7 

 
A brief commentary on each document is provided below: 
 
5.1 Annual Report (Appendix 2) 
 
Cabinet is asked to review the Annual Report (Appendix 2) which reports on our progress 
against key activities and performance indicators in the Strategic Plan. The Annual Report 
differs from the Strategic Plan monitoring in Section 3 and Appendix 3, as the content of the 
Annual Report is prescribed by the statutory requirements relating to the Best Value 
Performance Plan, and the report is aimed principally at local residents. The Annual Report 
is published on our website alongside the BVPP. The report has been compiled from 
Directorate monitoring returns.  
 
5.2 Key Performance Indicators (Appendix 4) 
 
The tables at Appendix 4 provide outturn and target data for all Best Value Performance 
Indicator (BVPI), Local Area Agreement (LAA), Local Public Service Agreement (LPSA) and 
Strategic Plan (SP) performance indicators.  Whilst every effort has been made to provide 
comprehensive and accurate outturn data for this report, work is still ongoing to verify the 
outturn data and there may therefore be amendments to the final tables before submission to 
Full Council and before final publication.  
 
The final columns of the table provide an at-a-glance indication of whether we have achieved 
our target and whether we have improved as compared to last year.  Green or red (both in 
colour and text) is used to indicate whether we have hit targets or not; in addition, up or down 
arrows are used to indicate direction of travel from last year.  In summary, from data so far 
available: 
 
Of 263 indicators where data is available currently, 137 indicators (52.09%) are red; 126 
indicators (47.91%) are green [with 37 outstanding].  We have improved in 144 indicators 
(61.8%) with 68 (29.6%) deteriorating.  21 indicators remain the same – a number of these 
are ones where we have already achieved the maximum. 53 indicators have no previous 
year data for comparison; these are mainly LAA, LAAP and LAAS indicators.   
 
The percentages are similar to the final figures for 2006/07.  Of 247 indicators 52.6% were 
red, with 47.4% green.  We improved on 60.9%, while 28.2% deteriorated.  22 of the 
indicators remained the same. 

 
5.3 Tables explaining variances (Appendix 5) 
 
In addition, we have provided explanations of any variances of 10% or more between targets 
and actual performance, as these need particular attention by managers and Members.  We 
do this in two tables; one which highlights where performance has exceeded target 
(Appendix 5a) and one where we have failed to meet the target (Appendix 5b).  Explanations 
of reasons for the variances are included within the reports. 
 
 
 
 
 

Page 153



 8 

5.4 Statement on Workforce Matters (Appendix 6) and Summary Statement of 
Accounts (to follow as Appendix 7) 

 
These statements are required by Best Value legislation. The statement on Workforce 
Matters meets our requirement to confirm that we are adopting the Code of Practice in our 
approach to workforce matters and contracting. 
 
6. Finance 
 
6.1 It is important that performance monitoring takes account of financial performance so 

that it can be shown to have been achieved within existing resources and therefore to 
be broadly sustainable. 

 
6.2 The last corporate financial monitoring information available relates to the third quarter 

of 2007/08 to 31st December indicating an under spend for the year for 2007/08. 
 
6.3 The final outturn figures for 2007/2008 are still being prepared and will be finalised 

before the submission on 2nd July of the General Fund Service Outturn report to 
Cabinet.  However the Council is not currently expected to overspend based on 
current projections.  

 
6.4 As part of our Best Value obligations we will be publishing a Summary of Statement of 

Accounts alongside the BVPP. This document will follow under separate cover as 
Appendix 7. 

  
7. Consultation 
  
7.1 Consultation on the new Community Plan has been extensive and on-going during the 

year, through a range of mechanisms. Consultation on budget priorities, areas for 
improvement and council tax and the Annual Residents Survey have contributed to 
the development of the Strategic Plan 2008/09. Cabinet members have also been 
involved, both through the Community Plan process and Strategic Plan prioritisation 
sessions.  
 

8. Comments of Chief Financial Officer 
  
8.1 This report seeks approval to the Strategic Plan and its implementation for the year 

ahead.  The plan sets out the framework for allocating and directing financial 
resources both for the year ahead and the medium term, so that resources are aligned 
with priorities. 

 
8.2 This year’s plan was developed in tandem with the 2008/09 – 2010/11 revenue 

budgets and capital programme. The strategic planning goals are taken into account 
in setting these financial plans and the priorities outlined in this document are reflected 
within them. 

 
8.3 The plan also includes a number of activities to maintain and further improve the 

quality of the authority's financial management and use of resources. Without sound 
financial management, including achievement of value for money, the achievement of 
the authority's strategic priorities would be hampered.  

 

Page 154



 9 

8.4 Provision exists within the Chief Executive’s Directorate Budget for the costs of 
publishing the Strategic Plan. 

 
9. Concurrent Report of the Assistant Chief Executive (Legal) 
  
9.1 The Council’s Best Value Performance Plan (BVPP) which is appended to the 

Strategic Plan forms part of the Policy Framework and is required to be approved by 
Full Council. 

 
9.2 This is the last year that the Council is required to prepare a BVPP.  A summary of the 

BVPP for 2007/08 must be published by 31 March 2008 and the full plan by 30 June 
2008. We are also required to publish alongside the BVPP a Statement on Workforce 
Matters and a Summary of Statement of Accounts.  

 
10.  Equal Opportunities Implications 
  
10.1 Equalities considerations are central to the inclusive vision of the Council and its 

partners in the Tower Hamlets Partnership and their promotion and support are fully 
reflected in the Strategic Plan. It represents the Council’s service delivery 
commitments to improve the quality of life for all who live and work in Tower Hamlets 
and includes specific actions targeted at the different equalities groups. 

 
10.2 An Equalities Impact Assessment on the Plan completed in January 2005 confirmed 

the comprehensive focus on equalities issues in the strategic planning process, and 
its recommendations for monitoring a broad range of equalities indicators are reflected 
in the proposed Plan.  

  
11.  Anti-Poverty Implications 
  
11.1 The Strategic Plan is the Council’s key vehicle for delivering the inclusive vision of the 

Council and its partners and reflects the borough’s Community Plan and strategy for 
neighbourhood renewal, which is intended to make sure that minimum standards of 
quality of life are achieved for all communities in the borough. 

  
12.  Sustainable Action for a Greener Environment 
  
12.1 The Strategic Plan embodies objectives, activities and milestones that work to create 

a greener more sustainable environment within the Great Place to Live theme.  
  
13.  Risk Management Implications 
  
13.1 The Strategic Plan provides a clear, public statement of the Council’s strategic 

priorities, which fully reflect the views of the Tower Hamlets Partnership, including 
local residents.  

 
13.2 Since the Strategic Plan is reflected in the service plans and resource allocation of all 

Directorates, financial and other services risks are carried by individual Directorates. 
These are reflected in the Council-wide and Directorate risk registers. 

 
 
  

Page 155



 10

Appendices: 
• Appendix 1 –Strategic Plan 2008/09 
• Appendix 2 – Annual Report for 2007/08  
• Appendix 3a – Strategic Plan 2007/08 Monitoring: Completed Activities 
• Appendix 3b – Strategic Plan 2007/08 Monitoring: Overdue Activities 
• Appendix 4 – Outcomes against targets for BVPI, LAA, LPSA and SP indicators in 

2007/08 
• Appendix 5a – Variances between targets and outcomes: target exceeded 
• Appendix 5b – Variances between targets and outcomes: target not met 
• Appendix 6 – Statement on Workforce Matters 
• Appendix 7 – Summary of Statement of Accounts – to follow 

Page 156



 1 

To
we

r H
am

let
s C

ou
nc

il  
St

rat
eg

ic 
Pla

n 2
00

8-2
00

9 
DR

AF
T 

 
      

 
 

Ye
ar

 1
 2

00
8-

20
09

 
     Page 157



 2 

    To
we

r H
am

let
s C

ou
nc

il S
tra

teg
ic 

Pla
n 2

00
8-2

00
9 

 Ye
ar 

1 2
00
8 -
 20

09
 

 Co
nte

nts
 

 
 Se

cti
on

 1 
 

 
 

 
Ou

r V
isio

n  
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

1 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

Se
cti

on
 2 

 
 

 
To

we
r H

am
let

s C
on

tex
t –

 th
e s

tor
y s

o f
ar 

 
 

 
3 

 
 

 
Se

cti
on

 3 
 

 
 

Th
e S

tra
teg

ic 
Pla

n a
nd

 th
e C

ou
nc

il’s
 ro

le 
 

 
 

 
5 

 Se
cti

on
 4 

 
 

 
Me

as
uri

ng
 O

ur 
Pr

og
res

s  
 

 
 

 
 

 
7 

 Se
cti

on
 5 

 
 

 
Ke

y I
nit

iat
ive

s Y
ea

r 1
: A

pri
l 2

00
8 –

 Ap
ril 

20
09

 
 

 
10

 
 

On
e T

ow
er 

Ha
ml

ets
   

 
 

 
 

11
 

A G
rea

t P
lac

e t
o L

ive
   

 
 

 
 

16
 

A P
ros

pe
rou

s C
om

mu
nit

y 
 

 
 

 
23

 
A S

afe
 an

d S
up

po
rtiv

e C
om

mu
nit

y 
 

 
 

30
 

A H
ea

lth
y C

om
mu

nit
y  

 
 

    
    

    
    

    
    

36
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 Se
cti

on
 6 

 
 

 
Th

e C
ou

nc
il’s

 Pl
an

nin
g a

nd
 M

on
ito

rin
g F

ram
ew

ork
  

 
41

 
 Se

cti
on

 7 
 

 
 

Us
e o

f R
es

ou
rce

s 
 

 
 

 
 

 
43

 
  

 
 

 
 

 
Ap

pe
nd

ix 
1 

 
 

 
Lis

t o
f C

on
tac

t O
ffic

er 
 

 
 

 
 

 
50

 

Page 158



Str
ate

gic
 Pl

an
 20

08
/09

 
Ac

tio
n P

lan
  

 1 

     1. 
Ou

r V
isi
on
: T

he
 C
om

mu
nit

y P
lan

 20
20
 

 Th
e C

ou
nc

il’s
 vi

sio
n, 

de
ve

lop
ed

 in
 th

e C
om

mu
nit

y P
lan

 20
20

, a
nd

 to
 be

 ac
hie

ve
d w

ith
 ou

r p
art

ne
rs 

an
d w

ith
 th

e a
cti

ve
 pa

rtic
ipa

tio
n o

f a
ll t

ho
se

 w
ith

 a 
sta

ke
 in

 
the

 bo
rou

gh
, is

 to
 “im

pro
ve

 th
e q

ua
lity

 of
 lif

e f
or 

ev
ery

on
e w

ho
 liv

es
 an

d w
ork

s i
n t

he
 bo

rou
gh

”. 
 Th

is 
is 

ou
r h

ea
dli

ne
 vi

sio
n f

or 
To

we
r H

am
let

s i
n 2

02
0. 

 W
e h

av
e f

urt
he

r d
ev

elo
pe

d o
ur 

Vis
ion

 ar
ou

nd
 fo

ur 
the

me
s t

ha
t c

ap
tur

e t
he

 ke
y i

ss
ue

s o
f im

po
rta

nc
e t

o 
loc

al 
pe

op
le 

an
d p

art
ne

rs.
 U

nd
erp

inn
ing

 th
e V

isio
n i

s t
he

 de
sir

e t
o b

uil
d O

ne
 To

we
r H

am
let

s -
 a 

bo
rou

gh
 w

he
re 

ev
ery

on
e f

ee
ls 

the
y h

av
e a

n e
qu

al 
sta

ke
 an

d 
sta

tus
; w

he
re 

pe
op

le 
fee

l th
ey

 ha
ve

 th
e s

am
e o

pp
ort

un
itie

s a
s t

he
ir n

eig
hb

ou
rs,

 an
d r

es
po

ns
ibi

lity
 to

 co
ntr

ibu
te 

irre
sp

ec
tiv

e o
f th

eir
 ba

ck
gro

un
d o

r a
ge

; a
nd

 
wh

ere
 fa

mi
lie

s a
re 

the
 co

rne
rst

on
e o

f s
uc

ce
ss

. 
 To

we
r H

am
let

s i
s a

 pl
ac

e o
f im

me
ns

e o
pp

ort
un

itie
s f

or 
po

sit
ive

 ch
an

ge
, o

pp
ort

un
itie

s t
ha

t c
an

 be
 us

ed
 to

 br
ing

 ab
ou

t th
e m

an
y i

mp
rov

em
en

ts 
loc

al 
pe

op
le 

wa
nt 

an
d d

es
erv

e. 
 A 

foc
us

 on
 su

sta
ina

bil
ity

 is
 es

se
nti

al 
so

 th
at 

ou
r a

cti
on

s a
re 

en
vir

on
me

nta
lly 

co
ns

ide
rat

e a
nd

 lo
ng

-la
sti

ng
 fo

r fu
tur

e g
en

era
tio

ns
.  A

cc
es

s t
o 

aff
ord

ab
le 

ho
us

ing
 pr

ov
isio

n m
us

t b
e i

nc
rea

se
d a

nd
 co

mm
un

itie
s b

ett
er 

co
nn

ec
ted

 th
rou

gh
 im

pro
ve

d t
ran

sp
ort

 ne
tw

ork
s, 

an
d s

up
po

rte
d t

hro
ug

h m
ore

 an
d 

be
tte

r c
om

mu
nit

y f
ac

iliti
es

.  T
he

 sh
are

d v
isio

n i
s o

f T
ow

er 
Ha

ml
ets

 be
ing

 ‘A
 G

rea
t P

lac
e t

o L
ive

’. 
 Th

e h
ug

e e
co

no
mi

c g
row

th 
in 

Ca
na

ry 
W

ha
rf a

nd
 el

se
wh

ere
 in

 th
e b

oro
ug

h w
ill b

e a
 vi

tal
 fa

cto
r in

 se
cu

rin
g i

mp
rov

em
en

ts 
for

 lo
ca

l p
eo

ple
.  S

up
po

rt f
or 

loc
al 

en
ter

pri
se

 an
d p

art
ne

rsh
ip 

wo
rki

ng
 w

ith
 bo

th 
lar

ge
 an

d s
ma

ll b
us

ine
ss

es
 w

ill h
elp

 en
su

re 
tha

t e
mp

loy
me

nt 
op

po
rtu

nit
ies

 ar
e a

va
ila

ble
 an

d t
ha

t lo
ca

l p
eo

ple
 

ha
ve

 th
e s

kill
s a

nd
 tra

ini
ng

 th
ey

 ne
ed

 to
 ge

t th
em

.  T
ac

klin
g t

he
 pr

ob
lem

 of
 w

ork
les

sn
es

s, 
wh

ich
 is

 w
ide

sp
rea

d i
n m

an
y o

f o
ur 

co
mm

un
itie

s, 
is 

a k
ey

 pr
ior

ity
 fo

r 
To

we
r H

am
let

s. 
 O

ur 
yo

un
g p

eo
ple

 w
ill l

ea
rn 

fro
m 

the
 be

st 
tea

ch
ers

 an
d s

uc
ce

ss
ful

ly 
ga

in 
qu

ali
fic

ati
on

s t
ha

t a
llo

w 
the

m 
to 

pu
rsu

e t
he

ir c
are

er 
go

als
.  T

ak
ing

 
ad

va
nta

ge
 of

 th
e 2

01
2 O

lym
pic

 G
am

es
 an

d i
ts 

leg
ac

y, 
by

 20
20

, T
ow

er 
Ha

ml
ets

 w
ill b

e r
ec

og
nis

ed
 as

 a 
pla

ce
 w

ith
 hi

gh
ly 

sk
ille

d a
mb

itio
us

 co
mm

un
itie

s a
nd

 
wh

ere
 en

tre
pre

ne
urs

hip
 an

d l
oc

al 
en

ter
pri

se
 is

 su
cc

es
sfu

l. T
he

 sh
are

d v
isio

n i
s o

f ‘A
 Pr

os
pe

rou
s C

om
mu

nit
y’.

 
 By

 20
20

 cr
im

e a
nd

 an
tis

oc
ial

 be
ha

vio
ur 

wil
l b

e g
rea

tly
 re

du
ce

d i
n o

ur 
ne

igh
bo

urh
oo

ds
 so

 th
at 

all
 re

sid
en

ts 
an

d v
isit

ors
, y

ou
ng

 an
d o

ld,
 fe

el 
sa

fe 
an

d c
on

fid
en

t 
in 

the
ir h

om
es

 an
d o

n t
he

 st
ree

ts 
of 

To
we

r H
am

let
s. 

 Ev
ery

on
e w

ill h
av

e a
cc

es
s t

o q
ua

lity
 su

pp
ort

 se
rvi

ce
s t

ha
t e

na
ble

 th
em

 to
 ac

hie
ve

 th
eir

 po
ten

tia
l in

 lif
e. 

 
Ch

oic
e w

ill b
e i

nte
gra

l to
 th

es
e s

erv
ice

s, 
so

 in
div

idu
als

 re
ce

ive
 ca

re 
in 

the
 w

ay
 th

ey
 w

an
t a

nd
 ne

ed
.  T

he
se

 su
pp

ort
 se

rvi
ce

s w
ill e

ns
ure

 ev
ery

on
e, 

an
d 

pa
rtic

ula
rly

 th
e v

uln
era

ble
, a

re 
pro

tec
ted

 fro
m 

ris
k o

f h
arm

 an
d s

up
po

rte
d t

o l
ive

 in
de

pe
nd

en
t a

nd
 em

po
we

red
 liv

es
.  E

arl
y i

nte
rve

nti
on

 an
d w

ho
le-

fam
ily 

pa
rtn

ers
hip

 ap
pro

ac
he

s t
o i

ss
ue

s o
f c

om
mu

nit
y s

afe
ty 

an
d s

up
po

rt w
ill e

ns
ure

 th
es

e i
ss

ue
s a

re 
tac

kle
d h

oli
sti

ca
lly.

  T
he

 sh
are

d v
isio

n i
s o

f ‘A
 Sa

fe 
an

d 
Su

pp
ort

ive
 C

om
mu

nit
y’.

 
 Lo

ca
l re

sid
en

ts 
wil

l liv
e l

on
g a

nd
 fu

lfill
ed

 liv
es

, a
wa

re 
of 

ho
w 

the
ir l

ife
sty

le 
ch

oic
es

 af
fec

t th
eir

 ow
n a

nd
 th

eir
 fa

mi
ly’s

 he
alt

h a
nd

 w
ell

be
ing

.  A
ll w

ill b
e a

ble
 to

 
ac

ce
ss

 hi
gh

 qu
ali

ty 
he

alt
h a

nd
 so

cia
l c

are
 in

 th
eir

 co
mm

un
itie

s. 
 H

ea
lth

 ca
re 

wil
l fo

cu
s o

n h
ea

lth
 pr

om
oti

on
 an

d p
rev

en
tio

n a
s f

ew
er 

res
ide

nts
 w

ill n
ee

d a
cu

te 
lon

g-t
im

e c
are

 fo
r a

vo
ida

ble
 he

alt
h c

on
ce

rns
. W

e w
ill u

se
 th

e p
ow

er 
of 

the
 20

12
 G

am
es

 to
 pr

om
ote

 m
ore

 ac
tiv

e l
ife

sty
les

.   
Ou

r s
ha

red
 vi

sio
n i

s o
f ‘A

 H
ea

lth
y 

Co
mm

un
ity

’. 
    Page 159



Str
ate

gic
 Pl

an
 20

08
/09

 
Ac

tio
n P

lan
  

 2 

    Lo
ca
l A

rea
 A
gr
ee
me

nt 
 To

 tu
rn 

ou
r v

isio
n i

nto
 re

ali
ty,

 th
e C

ou
nc

il a
nd

 ou
r p

art
ne

rs 
ha

ve
 ag

ree
d a

 se
t o

f p
rio

rity
 ta

rge
ts 

wh
ich

 ou
r p

art
ne

rs 
wil

l w
ork

 to
 ac

hie
ve

 ov
er 

the
 ne

xt 
3 y

ea
rs.

 
Th

es
e a

re 
be

ing
 ne

go
tia

ted
 an

d a
gre

ed
 w

ith
 na

tio
na

l g
ov

ern
me

nt 
in 

ou
r L
oc
al 
Ar
ea
 A
gr
ee
me

nt,
 to

 be
 fin

ali
se

d i
n J

un
e 2

00
8. 

Th
e a

cti
on

 pr
ior

itie
s s

et 
ou

t in
 

the
 LA

A w
ere

 ar
riv

ed
 at

 th
rou

gh
 ex

ten
siv

e c
on

su
lta

tio
n t

hro
ug

h t
he

 Pa
rtn

ers
hip

, a
nd

 ar
e i

nte
nd

ed
 to

 de
live

r th
e a

sp
ira

tio
ns

 w
ith

in 
the

 C
om

mu
nit

y P
lan

 vi
sio

n. 
Th

es
e p

rov
ide

 th
e f

ou
nd

ati
on

 fo
r th

e C
ou

nc
il’s

 st
rat

eg
ic 

pri
ori

tie
s s

et 
ou

t in
 th

is 
do

cu
me

nt.
  A

ll L
oc

al 
Ar

ea
 Ag

ree
me

nt 
tar

ge
ts 

are
 in

clu
de

d a
s S

tra
teg

ic 
Ind

ica
tor

s w
ith

in 
the

 C
ou

nc
il’s

 St
rat

eg
ic 

Pla
n. 

 
 Th

e f
ull

 LA
A w

ill b
e a

va
ila

ble
 on

 th
e C

ou
nc

il’s
 w

eb
sit

e a
t w

ww
.to

we
rha

ml
ets

.go
v.u

k. 

Page 160



Str
ate

gic
 Pl

an
 20

08
/09

 
Ac

tio
n P

lan
  

 3 

     2. 
To
we

r H
am

let
s C

on
tex

t –
 th
e s

tor
y s

o f
ar 

 Th
e C

ou
nc

il’s
 St

rat
eg

ic 
Pla

n w
ill b

e d
eli

ve
red

 in
 th

e c
on

tex
t o

f a
 fa

st-
ch

an
gin

g B
oro

ug
h. 

Th
e l

an
ds

ca
pe

 ha
s a

lte
red

 va
stl

y o
ve

r re
ce

nt 
ye

ars
. T

he
 po

pu
lat

ion
 

ha
s g

row
n a

nd
 di

ve
rsi

fie
d. 

Ea
st 

Lo
nd

on
 is

 pr
ep

ari
ng

 to
 ho

st 
the

 20
12

 O
lym

pic
 an

d P
ara

lym
pic

 G
am

es
 - a

nd
 ne

w 
loc

al 
an

d n
ati

on
al 

pri
ori

tie
s h

av
e e

me
rge

d. 
  

 At 
the

 sa
me

 tim
e, 

sig
nif

ica
nt 

inv
es

tm
en

t in
 lo

ca
l p

ub
lic 

se
rvi

ce
s i

s b
eg

inn
ing

 to
 im

pa
ct 

on
 th

e q
ua

lity
 of

 lif
e. 

 Cr
im

e h
as

 be
en

 cu
t b

y a
lm

os
t 2

4%
 ov

er 
the

 pa
st 

fou
r y

ea
rs,

 th
an

ks
 to

 a 
ran

ge
 of

 in
itia

tiv
es

 an
d c

am
pa

ign
s t

arg
eti

ng
 cr

im
e h

ots
po

ts.
  A

lso
, o

ur 
su

cc
es

s i
n 

red
uc

ing
 re

off
en

din
g w

as
 re

co
gn

ize
d w

ith
 a 

Be
ac

on
 Aw

ard
. L

oc
al 

es
tat

es
 co

uld
 so

on
 ge

t u
p t

o £
19

0 m
illio

n o
f m

uc
h-n

ee
de

d i
nv

es
tm

en
t, t

hro
ug

h t
he

 se
ttin

g u
p 

of 
To

we
r H

am
let

s H
om

es
 - a

 ne
w 

wa
y o

f m
an

ag
ing

 lo
ca

l h
ou

sin
g. 

 
 He

alt
h a

nd
 fit

ne
ss

 le
ve

ls 
sh

ow
 si

gn
s o

f im
pro

vin
g –

 w
ith

 le
isu

re 
ce

ntr
e a

tte
nd

an
ce

s u
p t

o 1
.45

 m
illio

n. 
Th

e n
um

be
r o

f o
lde

r p
eo

ple
 us

ing
 lo

ca
l fa

cili
tie

s i
n 

pa
rtic

ula
r is

 up
 by

 ar
ou

nd
 5%

 – 
on

e o
f th

e m
an

y w
ay

s t
ha

t th
e m

ajo
r re

vie
w 

of 
Ol

de
r P

eo
ple

 as
 C

itiz
en

s h
as

 he
lpe

d t
o b

oo
st 

loc
al 

se
rvi

ce
s f

or 
old

er 
pe

op
le.

 
 As

 a 
res

ult
 of

 al
l th

is 
ac

tiv
ity

, T
ow

er 
Ha

ml
ets

 ha
s b

ee
n r

an
ke

d a
mo

ng
 th

e m
os

t im
pro

ve
d p

erf
orm

ers
 ov

er 
the

 pa
st 

thr
ee

 ye
ars

 – 
an

d t
he

 C
ou

nc
il is

 on
e o

f o
nly

 
12

 co
un

cils
 re

ck
on

ed
 to

 be
 ju

dg
ed

 as
 ‘im

pro
vin

g s
tro

ng
ly’ 

for
 th

e p
as

t tw
o y

ea
rs 

by
 th

e A
ud

it C
om

mi
ss

ion
. 

 Th
rou

gh
ou

t a
ll o

f th
is 

ch
an

ge
 an

d i
mp

rov
em

en
t, T

ow
er 

Ha
ml

ets
 re

ma
ins

 a 
pla

ce
 of

 co
ntr

as
t, w

he
re 

we
alt

h a
nd

 af
flu

en
ce

 si
t b

es
ide

 re
lat

ive
 po

ve
rty

 in
 m

an
y 

are
as

. E
xp

en
siv

e n
ew

 pr
iva

te 
riv

ers
ide

 ho
us

ing
 de

ve
lop

me
nts

 ru
b s

ho
uld

ers
 w

ith
 so

cia
l h

ou
sin

g e
sta

tes
.  T

ow
er 

Ha
ml

ets
 is

 Lo
nd

on
’s 

se
co

nd
 de

ns
es

t b
oro

ug
h 

in 
ter

ms
 of

 ho
us

ing
. T

he
 av

era
ge

 an
nu

al 
inc

om
e o

f th
os

e w
ork

ing
 lo

ca
lly 

is 
ne

arl
y £

40
,00

0; 
ye

t o
ne

 in
 fiv

e h
ou

se
ho

lds
 cu

rre
ntl

y l
ive

 on
 le

ss
 th

an
 £1

5,0
00

.  
Ho

us
ing

 af
for

da
bil

ity
 is

 lo
w 

by
 na

tio
na

l s
tan

da
rds

 - w
ith

 an
 av

era
ge

 ho
us

e p
ric

e o
f £

30
5,3

63
; th

at’
s 6

0.5
% 

hig
he

r th
an

 th
e a

ve
rag

e i
n E

ng
lan

d a
nd

 W
ale

s -
 an

d 
ou

t o
f re

ac
h f

or 
mo

st 
loc

al 
pe

op
le.

 
 Ot

he
r fa

cts
 an

d f
igu

res
 re

fle
cti

ng
 th

e a
rra

y o
f c

ha
lle

ng
es

 an
d o

pp
ort

un
itie

s i
nc

lud
e t

ha
t: 

 ~ T
ow

er 
Ha

ml
ets

 is
 on

e o
f th

e m
os

t e
thn

ica
lly 

div
ers

e a
rea

s i
n t

he
 co

un
try

.  A
bo

ut 
ha

lf o
f th

e t
ota

l p
op

ula
tio

n a
re 

fro
m 

bla
ck

 an
d m

ino
rity

 et
hn

ic 
co

mm
un

itie
s, 

an
d a

rou
nd

 11
0 d

iffe
ren

t la
ng

ua
ge

s a
re 

sp
ok

en
 by

 ou
r s

ch
oo

l p
up

ils.
   

 ~ A
lth

ou
gh

 th
ing

s a
re 

im
pro

vin
g, 

av
era

ge
 lif

e e
xp

ec
tan

cy
 is

 77
.4 

ye
ars

, ra
nk

ing
 To

we
r H

am
let

s 3
49

th
 ou

t o
f 4

08
 lo

ca
l a

uth
ori

ty 
are

as
 in

 Br
ita

in.
 

 ~ T
he

 pr
op

ort
ion

 of
 yo

un
g p

eo
ple

 liv
ing

 in
 To

we
r H

am
let

s c
urr

en
tly

 st
an

ds
 at

 28
%,

 w
hic

h i
s m

uc
h h

igh
er 

tha
n t

he
 18

% 
av

era
ge

 fo
r th

e r
es

t o
f in

ne
r L

on
do

n, 
an

d o
ve

r 7
8%

 of
 ou

r y
ou

ng
 pe

op
le 

are
 fro

m 
mi

no
rity

 et
hn

ic 
ba

ck
gro

un
ds

.   
 ~ A

s a
 de

ns
e u

rba
n a

rea
 w

ith
 a 

hig
h l

ev
el 

of 
de

ve
lop

me
nt,

 lo
ca

l e
ne

rgy
 us

e a
nd

 C
o2

 em
iss

ion
s a

re 
hig

h. 
 H

elp
ing

 to
 ta

ck
le 

clim
ate

 ch
an

ge
 is

 th
ere

for
e a

 ne
w 

an
d s

ign
ific

an
t c

ha
lle

ng
e. 

Lif
es

tyl
e c

ha
ng

es
 an

d d
iffi

cu
lt c

ho
ice

s w
ill h

av
e t

o b
e m

ad
e i

n f
utu

re 
ye

ars
.   

 Page 161



Str
ate

gic
 Pl

an
 20

08
/09

 
Ac

tio
n P

lan
  

 4 

    ~ T
ow

er 
Ha

ml
ets

 ha
s b

en
efi

ted
 fro

m 
ma

ss
ive

 in
wa

rd 
inv

es
tm

en
t o

ve
r th

e p
as

t te
n y

ea
rs,

 al
on

g w
ith

 a 
ch

an
gin

g s
ky

lin
e a

nd
 si

gn
ific

an
t s

erv
ice

 im
pro

ve
me

nts
, 

bu
t th

is 
ha

s n
ot 

filt
ere

d t
hro

ug
h t

o e
no

ug
h l

oc
al 

res
ide

nts
’ d

ay
 to

 da
y l

ive
s. 

 G
ive

n t
his

, ta
ck

lin
g i

ne
qu

ali
ty 

wil
l b

e a
 pr

im
e f

oc
us

 of
 th

e C
ou

nc
il a

nd
 th

e 
Pa

rtn
ers

hip
.   

 Th
e n

ew
 C

om
mu

nit
y P

lan
 re

co
gn

ise
s t

ha
t T

ow
er 

Ha
ml

ets
 is

 a 
‘co

mm
un

ity
 of

 co
mm

un
itie

s’ 
- s

o a
 on

e-s
ize

-fit
s-a

ll a
pp

roa
ch

 to
 pr

ob
lem

 so
lvin

g a
nd

 
im

pro
ve

me
nts

 w
ill n

ot 
wo

rk.
  T

he
 ch

all
en

ge
 is

, a
nd

 w
ill c

on
tin

ue
 to

 be
, to

 m
ak

e s
ure

 th
at 

the
 m

an
y d

iffe
ren

t a
nd

 sp
ec

ific
 ne

ed
s t

ha
t e

xis
t in

 To
we

r H
am

let
s a

re 
ide

nti
fie

d, 
un

de
rst

oo
d a

nd
 ad

dre
ss

ed
. 

 Th
e C

ou
nc

il’s
 St

rat
eg

ic 
Pla

n 2
00

8/0
9 s

ets
 ou

t th
e p

art
icu

lar
 ac

tiv
itie

s t
ha

t th
e C

ou
nc

il w
ill p

rio
riti

se
 in

 th
e y

ea
r a

he
ad

 to
 en

su
re 

tha
t w

e c
an

 re
sp

on
d t

o t
he

 
ch

all
en

ge
s o

f th
e T

ow
er 

Ha
ml

ets
 co

nte
xt 

an
d m

ak
e a

 ke
y c

on
trib

uti
on

 to
 ac

hie
vin

g o
ur 

sh
are

d p
art

ne
rsh

ip 
vis

ion
.  

Page 162



Str
ate

gic
 Pl

an
 20

08
/09

 
Ac

tio
n P

lan
  

 5 

      3. 
Th
e S

tra
teg

ic 
Pla

n a
nd
 th
e C

ou
nc
il’s

 ro
le 
 

 Th
e C

ou
nc

il h
as

 a 
ke

y r
ole

 in
 de

live
rin

g t
he

 C
om

mu
nit

y P
lan

 20
20

 vi
sio

n. 
Th

e C
ou

nc
il’s

 St
rat

eg
ic 

Pla
n 2

00
8/0

9, 
co

ve
rin

g t
he

 pe
rio

d A
pri

l 2
00

8- 
Ma

rch
 20

09
, 

se
ts 

ou
t k

ey
 ta

rge
ts 

for
 th

e C
ou

nc
il a

nd
 th

e k
ey

 in
itia

tiv
es

 pl
an

ne
d t

o d
eli

ve
r th

e i
mp

rov
ed

 ou
tco

me
s w

e a
sp

ire
 to

. M
an

y o
f th

es
e i

nit
iat

ive
s w

ill i
nv

olv
e 

wo
rki

ng
 w

ith
 pa

rtn
ers

 an
d t

he
 lo

ca
l c

om
mu

nit
y. 

 
 In 

all
 of

 ou
r w

ork
 w

e a
re 

dri
ve

n b
y t

he
 C

ou
nc

il’s
 C
or
e V

alu
es

:  
 • 

Ac
hie

vin
g r

es
ult
s  

W
e a

re 
pa

ss
ion

ate
 ab

ou
t a

ch
iev

ing
 th

e b
es

t fo
r o

ur 
co

mm
un

itie
s. 

W
e w

an
t to

 be
 th

e b
es

t in
 th

e c
ou

ntr
y a

t w
ha

t w
e d

o a
nd

 ke
ep

 ge
ttin

g b
ett

er 
an

d b
ett

er,
 

mo
vin

g b
ey

on
d e

xc
ell

en
ce

. W
e a

cti
ve

ly 
en

su
re 

we
 ac

hie
ve

 va
lue

 fo
r m

on
ey

 in
 ev

ery
thi

ng
 w

e d
o. 

 • 
Va
lui
ng
 di
ve
rsi

ty 
Eq

ua
litie

s a
nd

 di
ve

rsi
ty 

is 
at 

the
 he

art
 of

 w
ha

t w
e d

o a
nd

 ho
w 

we
 do

 it.
 It 

is 
bu

ilt 
int

o l
ea

de
rsh

ip,
 co

ns
ult

ati
on

 an
d i

nv
olv

em
en

t, s
erv

ice
s t

o o
ur 

cu
sto

me
rs 

an
d 

rec
rui

tm
en

t a
nd

 de
ve

lop
me

nt 
of 

sta
ff. 

W
e r

ec
og

nis
e t

ha
t h

av
ing

 a 
wo

rkf
orc

e t
ha

t re
fle

cts
 th

e c
om

mu
nit

y i
s e

ss
en

tia
l in

 or
de

r to
 de

live
r h

igh
 qu

ali
ty 

se
rvi

ce
s. 

 • 
En

ga
gin

g w
ith
 ot
he
rs 
 

In 
ord

er 
to 

ac
hie

ve
 re

su
lts

, w
e n

ee
d t

o e
ng

ag
e p

os
itiv

ely
 w

ith
 ot

he
rs,

 th
e c

om
mu

nit
y, 

ou
r s

taf
f a

nd
 ou

r p
art

ne
rs.

 W
e n

ee
d t

o e
ns

ure
 th

at 
we

 co
mm

un
ica

te 
eff

ec
tiv

ely
 an

d c
rea

te 
op

po
rtu

nit
ies

 fo
r in

vo
lve

me
nt 

an
d e

ng
ag

em
en

t. 
 • 

Le
arn

ing
 ef
fec

tiv
ely

 
W

e a
re 

a l
ea

rni
ng

 or
ga

nis
ati

on
. W

e t
ak

e r
es

po
ns

ibi
lity

 fo
r o

ur 
ow

n l
ea

rni
ng

 an
d s

ha
re 

ou
r le

arn
ing

 w
ith

 ot
he

rs.
 

 Ke
y P

rio
rit
ies

 
 Th

e C
ou

nc
il h

as
 id

en
tifi

ed
 a 

nu
mb

er 
of 

ke
y p

rio
riti

es
 fo

r it
s S

tra
teg

ic 
Pla

n, 
wh

ich
 di

rec
tly

 re
fle

ct 
the

 bo
rou

gh
’s 

Co
mm

un
ity

 Pl
an

 pr
ior

itie
s s

et 
ou

t o
ve

rle
af.

 
   Co

mm
un
ity
 Pl

an
 Th

em
e 

Pr
ior

ity
 O
utc

om
es
 fo
r 2
00
8 –

 20
09

 

A G
rea

t  P
lac

e t
o L

ive
  

• 
Pr

ov
ide

 Af
for

da
ble

 H
ou

sin
g a

nd
 St

ron
g N

eig
hb

ou
rho

od
s 

• 
Str

en
gth

en
 an

d c
on

ne
ct 

co
mm

un
itie

s  
• 

Su
pp

ort
 vi

bra
nt 

tow
n c

en
tre

s a
nd

 a 
cle

an
er,

 sa
fer

 pu
bli

c r
ea

lm
  

• 
Im

pro
ve

 th
e e

nv
iro

nm
en

t a
nd

 ta
ck

le 
clim

ate
 ch

an
ge

 

Page 163



Str
ate

gic
 Pl

an
 20

08
/09

 
Ac

tio
n P

lan
  

 6 

    A P
ros

pe
rou

s C
om

mu
nit

y 
• 

Su
pp

ort
 lif

elo
ng

 le
arn

ing
 op

po
rtu

nit
ies

 fo
r a

ll 
• 

Re
du

ce
 w

ork
les

sn
es

s 
• 

Fo
ste

r e
nte

rpr
ise

 

A S
afe

 an
d S

up
po

rtiv
e C

om
mu

nit
y 

• 
Em

po
we

r v
uln

era
ble

 pe
op

le 
an

d s
up

po
rt f

am
ilie

s  
• 

Ta
ck

le 
an

d p
rev

en
t c

rim
e 

• 
Fo

cu
s o

n e
arl

y i
nte

rve
nti

on
  

A H
ea

lth
y C

om
mu

nit
y  

• 
Re

du
ce

 di
ffe

ren
ce

s i
n p

eo
ple

’s 
he

alt
h a

nd
 pr

om
ote

 he
alt

hy
 lif

es
tyl

es
 

• 
Su

pp
ort

 m
en

tal
 he

alt
h s

erv
ice

s t
o i

mp
rov

e m
en

tal
 he

alt
h  

• 
Im

pro
ve

 ac
ce

ss
 to

 an
d e

xp
eri

en
ce

 of
 lo

ca
l h

ea
lth

 se
rvi

ce
s  

  Un
de

rpi
nn

ing
 th

es
e f

ou
r k

ey
 th

em
es

 is
 th

e c
om

mi
tm

en
t to

 O
ne

 To
we

r H
am

let
s. 

 In 
ad

dit
ion

 to
 its

 co
ntr

ibu
tio

n t
o t

he
 C

om
mu

nit
y P

lan
 pr

ior
itie

s, 
the

 C
ou

nc
il h

as
 id

en
tifi

ed
 a 

sp
ec

ific
 pr

ior
ity

 fo
r th

e C
ou

nc
il –

 W
ork

ing
 ef

fic
ien

tly
 an

d e
ffe

cti
ve

ly 
as

 O
ne

 C
ou

nc
il. 

Th
is 

ref
lec

ts 
ou

r c
om

mi
tm

en
t to

: 
 • 

En
su

rin
g v

alu
e f

or 
mo

ne
y a

cro
ss

 th
e C

ou
nc

il; 
 

• 
Re

cru
itin

g, 
su

pp
ort

ing
 an

d d
ev

elo
pin

g a
n e

ffe
cti

ve
 w

ork
for

ce
; a

nd
 

• 
Pr

ov
idi

ng
 ef

fec
tiv

e a
nd

 jo
ine

d u
p s

erv
ice

s t
o d

riv
e t

he
 de

live
ry 

of 
Co

un
cil 

pri
ori

tie
s. 

 Th
e S

tra
teg

ic 
Pla

n s
pe

cif
ies

 th
e k

ey
 ta

rge
ts 

the
 C

ou
nc

il e
xp

ec
ts 

to 
ac

hie
ve

 ag
ain

st 
the

se
 pr

ior
itie

s b
y A

pri
l 2

00
9. 

It a
lso

 se
ts 

ou
t th

e k
ey

 in
itia

tiv
es

 w
hic

h t
he

 
Co

un
cil 

wil
l u

nd
ert

ak
e i

n 2
00

8/0
9 t

o d
eli

ve
r o

ur 
tar

ge
ts.

 Th
es

e k
ey

 in
itia

tiv
es

 re
fle

ct 
the

 si
gn

ific
an

t c
ha

ng
e o

r im
pro

ve
me

nt 
ac

tiv
ity

 w
hic

h w
ill b

e o
ur 

foc
us

 fo
r 

the
 ye

ar 
ah

ea
d. 

W
ith

in 
the

 C
ou

nc
il e

ac
h D

ire
cto

rat
e a

nd
 ea

ch
 se

rvi
ce

, w
ill a

lso
 de

ve
lop

 m
ore

 de
tai

led
 ac

tio
n p

lan
s d

em
on

str
ati

ng
 ho

w 
the

y c
on

trib
ute

 to
 th

e 
ac

hie
ve

me
nt 

of 
the

 pr
ior

ity
 ou

tco
me

s. 
   Page 164



Str
ate

gic
 Pl

an
 20

08
/09

 
Ac

tio
n P

lan
  

 7 

    4. 
Me

as
ur
ing

 O
ur
 Pr

og
res

s  
 

In 
ord

er 
to 

me
as

ure
 th

e C
ou

nc
il’s

 pr
og

res
s t

ow
ard

s a
ch

iev
ing

 th
e p

rio
rity

 ou
tco

me
s i

n t
he

 St
rat

eg
ic 

Pla
n w

e h
av

e e
sta

bli
sh

ed
 a 

se
t o

f k
ey

 in
dic

ato
rs 

an
d 

tar
ge

ts.
 Th

es
e e

nc
om

pa
ss

 ou
r L

AA
 ta

rge
ts 

plu
s a

dd
itio

na
l C

ou
nc

il- 
sp

ec
ific

 ta
rge

ts 
in 

pri
ori

ty 
are

as
.  

 
Pr
ior

ity
  

 
Ind

ica
tor

 
Th
em

e 1
: O

ne
 To

we
r H

am
let
s  

 
SI1

 
A w

ork
for

ce
 to

 re
fle

ct 
the

 co
mm

un
ity

: p
erc

en
tag

e o
f to

p 5
% 

ea
rne

rs 
tha

t a
re 

fro
m 

mi
no

rity
 et

hn
ic 

co
mm

un
itie

s  
SI2

 
A w

ork
for

ce
 to

 re
fle

ct 
the

 co
mm

un
ity

: p
erc

en
tag

e o
f to

p 5
% 

ea
rne

rs 
tha

t a
re 

wo
me

n  
SI3

 
A w

ork
for

ce
 to

 re
fle

ct 
the

 co
mm

un
ity

: p
erc

en
tag

e o
f to

p 5
% 

ea
rne

rs 
tha

t a
re 

dis
ab

led
 

SI4
 

Nu
mb

er 
of 

wo
rki

ng
 da

ys
/sh

ifts
 lo

st 
to 

sic
kn

es
s a

bs
en

ce
 pe

r e
mp

loy
ee

 
SI5

 
Pe

rce
nta

ge
 of

 U
nd

isp
ute

d I
nv

oic
es

 Pa
id 

on
 Ti

me
 

SI6
 

Pe
rce

nta
ge

 of
 St

ag
e 1

 co
mp

lai
nts

 co
mp

let
ed

 in
 tim

e 
SI7

 
Pe

rce
nta

ge
 of

 re
sid

en
ts 

ag
ree

ing
 th

at 
the

 C
ou

nc
il “

pro
vid

es
 va

lue
 fo

r m
on

ey
 fo

r th
e C

ou
nc

il T
ax

 I p
ay

” 

W
ork

ing
 ef

fic
ien

tly
 an

d 
eff

ec
tiv

ely
 as

 O
ne

 
Co

un
cil 

   

SI8
 

a) 
% 

of 
ca

lls 
to 

Ho
tlin

es
 an

sw
ere

d 
b) 

Av
era

ge
 w

ait
ing

 tim
e f

or 
ca

lls 
to 

Ho
tlin

es
 

c) 
% 

firs
t c

on
tac

t re
so

lut
ion

 of
 ca

lls 
to 

Ho
tlin

es
 

Th
em

e 2
: A

 G
rea

t  P
lac

e t
o L

ive
 

 
SI9

 
(LA

A)
NI

 15
4: 

Ne
t a

dd
itio

na
l h

om
es

  
SI1

0 
(LA

A)
NI

 15
5: 

Aff
ord

ab
le 

ho
me

s d
eli

ve
red

  
Pr

ov
ide

 Af
for

da
ble

 
Ho

us
ing

 an
d S

tro
ng

 
Ne

igh
bo

urh
oo

ds
  

SI1
1 

(LA
A)

 N
I 1

58
: P

erc
en

tag
e o

f d
ec

en
t c

ou
nc

il h
om

es
 

SI1
2 

(LA
A)

 N
I 1

: %
 of

 pe
op

le 
wh

o b
eli

ev
e p

eo
ple

 fro
m 

dif
fer

en
t b

ac
kg

rou
nd

s g
et 

on
 w

ell
 to

ge
the

r 
SI1

3 
(LA

A)
 N

I 4
7: 

Pe
op

le 
kill

ed
 or

 se
rio

us
ly 

inj
ure

d i
n r

oa
d t

raf
fic

 ac
cid

en
ts 

SI1
4 

(LA
A)

 N
I 7

: E
nv

iro
nm

en
t fo

r a
 th

riv
ing

 th
ird

 se
cto

r 
SI1

5 
Pe

rce
nta

ge
 of

 re
sid

en
ts 

wh
o a

gre
e t

ha
t th

e C
ou

nc
il is

 do
ing

 a 
go

od
 jo

b: 
(a)

 B
oro

ug
h a

ve
rag

e  
(b)

 G
ap

 be
tw

ee
n t

he
 ov

era
ll b

oro
ug

h a
ve

rag
e a

nd
 th

e L
AP

 ar
ea

 w
ith

 th
e l

ow
es

t p
erf

orm
an

ce
 

Str
en

gth
en

 an
d c

on
ne

ct 
co

mm
un

itie
s  

SI1
6 

NI
 4 

Pe
rce

nta
ge

 of
 pe

op
le 

wh
o f

ee
l th

ey
 ca

n i
nfl

ue
nc

e d
ec

isio
ns

 in
 th

eir
 lo

ca
lity

 
SI1

7 
(LA

A)
 N

I 1
95

: Im
pro

ve
d s

tre
et 

an
d e

nv
iro

nm
en

tal
 cl

ea
nli

ne
ss

  
(a)

 g
raf

fiti
 

(b)
 lit

ter
 

(c)
 d

etr
itu

s 
(d)

 fly
 po

sti
ng

  
SI1

8 
(LA

A)
 N

I 5
: O

ve
ral

l / 
ge

ne
ral

 sa
tis

fac
tio

n w
ith

 th
e l

oc
al 

are
a 

Su
pp

ort
 vi

bra
nt 

tow
n 

ce
ntr

es
 an

d a
 cl

ea
ne

r, 
sa

fer
 pu

bli
c r

ea
lm

 

SI1
9 

Pe
rce

nta
ge

 of
 re

sid
en

ts 
wh

o v
iew

 ru
bb

ish
 an

d l
itte

r ly
ing

 ar
ou

nd
 as

 a 
se

rio
us

 pr
ob

lem
.  

Page 165



Str
ate

gic
 Pl

an
 20

08
/09

 
Ac

tio
n P

lan
  

 8 

    

Pr
ior

ity
  

 
Ind

ica
tor

 
SI2

0 
Pe

rce
nta

ge
 of

 re
sid

en
ts 

wh
o t

hin
k t

ha
t p

ark
s, 

pla
yg

rou
nd

s a
nd

 op
en

 sp
ac

es
 ar

e g
oo

d, 
ve

ry 
go

od
 or

 ex
ce

lle
nt 

SI2
1 

Pe
rce

nta
ge

 of
 re

sid
en

ts 
wh

o t
hin

k t
ha

t s
tre

et 
cle

an
ing

 is
 go

od
, v

ery
 go

od
 or

 ex
ce

lle
nt 

 
 

SI2
2 

Pe
rce

nta
ge

 of
 re

sid
en

ts 
as

ke
d w

ho
 th

ink
 th

at 
lei

su
re 

an
d s

po
rts

 fa
cili

tie
s a

re 
go

od
, v

ery
 go

od
 or

 ex
ce

lle
nt 

SI2
3 

(LA
A)

 N
I 1

86
: P

er 
ca

pit
a r

ed
uc

tio
n i

n C
02

 em
iss

ion
s i

n t
he

 LA
 ar

ea
 

Im
pro

ve
 th

e 
en

vir
on

me
nt 

an
d 

tac
klin

g c
lim

ate
 ch

an
ge

 
SI2

4 
(LA

A)
 N

I 1
92

: H
ou

se
ho

ld 
wa

ste
 re

cy
cle

d a
nd

 co
mp

os
ted

 
Th
em

e 3
: A

 Pr
os
pe
ro
us
 C
om

mu
nit
y 

 
SI2

5 
(LA

A 
sta

t) N
I72

 Ac
hie

ve
me

nt 
of 

at 
lea

st 
78

 po
int

s a
cro

ss
 th

e E
arl

y Y
ea

rs 
Fo

un
da

tio
n S

tag
e w

ith
 at

 le
as

t 6
 in

 
ea

ch
 of

 th
e s

ca
les

 in
 Pe

rso
na

l S
oc

ial
 an

d E
mo

tio
na

l 
De

ve
lop

me
nt 

an
d C

om
mu

nic
ati

on
, L

an
gu

ag
e a

nd
 Li

ter
ac

y 
SI2

6 
(LA

A 
sta

t) N
I76

: A
ch

iev
em

en
t a

t le
ve

l 4
 or

 ab
ov

e i
n b

oth
 En

gli
sh

 an
d M

ath
s a

t K
S2

 (F
loo

r) 
SI2

7 
(LA

A 
sta

t) N
I77

: A
ch

iev
em

en
t a

t le
ve

l 5
 or

 ab
ov

e i
n b

oth
 En

gli
sh

 an
d M

ath
s a

t K
S3

 (F
loo

r) 
SI2

8 
(LA

A 
sta

t) N
I 7

8: 
Ac

hie
ve

me
nt 

of 
5 o

r m
ore

 A*
-C

 gr
ad

es
 at

 G
CS

E a
nd

 eq
uiv

ale
nt 

inc
lud

ing
 G

CS
Es

 in
 En

gli
sh

 
an

d M
ath

s (
Flo

or)
 

SI2
9 

(LA
A 
sta

t) N
I 8

7: 
Se

co
nd

ary
 sc

ho
ol 

pe
rsi

ste
nt 

ab
se

nc
e r

ate
 

SI3
0 

(LA
A 
sta

t) N
I 1

01
: C

hil
dre

n  
in 

ca
re 

ac
hie

vin
g 5

 A*
-C

 G
CS

Es
 (o

r e
qu

iva
len

t) a
t K

ey
 St

ag
e 4

 (in
clu

din
g E

ng
lish

 
an

d M
ath

s) 
SI3

1 
(LA

A)
 N

I 7
9: 

Ac
hie

ve
me

nt 
of 

a l
ev

el 
2 q

ua
lific

ati
on

 by
 ag

e 1
9 

SI3
2 

(LA
A)

 N
I 8

0: 
Ac

hie
ve

me
nt 

of 
a l

ev
el 

3 q
ua

lific
ati

on
 by

 ag
e 1

9 
SI3

3 
(LA

A)
 N

I 1
06

: Y
ou

ng
 pe

op
le 

fro
m 

low
 in

co
me

 ba
ck

gro
un

ds
 pr

og
res

sin
g t

o h
igh

er 
ed

uc
ati

on
 

Su
pp

ort
 lif

elo
ng

 le
arn

ing
 

op
po

rtu
nit

ies
 fo

r a
ll 

SI3
4 

(LA
A)

 N
I 1

10
: Y

ou
ng

 pe
op

le’
s p

art
icip

ati
on

 in
 po

sit
ive

 ac
tiv

itie
s 

SI3
5 

(LA
A)

 N
I 1

51
: E

mp
loy

me
nt 

rat
e 

SI3
6 

(LA
A)

 N
I 1

52
: W

ork
ing

 ag
e p

eo
ple

 on
 ou

t o
f w

ork
 be

ne
fits

 
SI3

7 
(LA

A)
 N

I 1
53

: W
ork

ing
 ag

e p
eo

ple
 cl

aim
ing

 ou
t o

f w
ork

 be
ne

fits
 in

 th
e w

ors
t p

erf
orm

ing
 ne

igh
bo

urh
oo

ds
 

SI3
8 

(LA
A)

 N
I 1

17
: 1

6-1
8 y

ea
r o

lds
 w

ho
 ar

e N
EE

T 
SI3

9 
(LA

A)
 N

I 1
46

: A
du

lts
 w

ith
 le

arn
ing

 di
sa

bil
itie

s i
n e

mp
loy

me
nt 

SI4
0 

(LA
A)

 N
I 1

50
: A

du
lts

 in
 co

nta
ct 

wit
h s

ec
on

da
ry 

me
nta

l h
ea

lth
 se

rvi
ce

s i
n e

mp
loy

me
nt 

Re
du

ce
 w

ork
les

sn
es

s 

SI4
1 

(LA
A)

 N
I 1

16
: P

rop
ort

ion
 of

 ch
ild

ren
 in

 ch
ild

 po
ve

rty
 

Th
em

e 4
: A

 Sa
fe 
an
d S

up
po
rti
ve
 C
om

mu
nit
y 

 Em
po

we
r v

uln
era

ble
 

pe
op

le 
an

d s
up

po
rt 

fam
ilie

s 
SI4

2 
(LA

A)
 N

I 1
35

: C
are

rs 
rec

eiv
ing

 ne
ed

s a
ss

es
sm

en
t o

r re
vie

w 
an

d a
 sp

ec
ific

 ca
rer

’s 
se

rvi
ce

, o
r a

dv
ice

 an
d 

inf
orm

ati
on

 
SI4

3 
(LA

A)
 N

I 1
5: 

Se
rio

us
 vi

ole
nt 

cri
me

 ra
te 

Page 166



Str
ate

gic
 Pl

an
 20

08
/09

 
Ac

tio
n P

lan
  

 9 

    

Pr
ior

ity
  

 
Ind

ica
tor

 
SI4

3 
(LA

A)
 N

I 1
5: 

Se
rio

us
 vi

ole
nt 

cri
me

 ra
te 

SI4
4 

(LA
A)

 N
I 1

6: 
Se

rio
us

 ac
qu

isit
ive

 cr
im

e r
ate

 
SI4

5 
(LA

A)
 N

I 4
2: 

Pe
rce

pti
on

s o
f d

rug
 us

e o
r d

rug
 de

ali
ng

 as
 a 

pro
ble

m 
SI4

6 
(LA

A)
 N

I 2
1: 

De
ali

ng
 w

ith
 lo

ca
l c

on
ce

rns
 ab

ou
t a

nti
-so

cia
l b

eh
av

iou
r a

nd
 cr

im
e b

y t
he

 lo
ca

l C
ou

nc
il a

nd
 Po

lice
 

SI4
7 

(LA
A)

 N
I 1

8: 
Ad

ult
 re

-of
fen

din
g r

ate
s f

or 
tho

se
 un

de
r p

rob
ati

on
 su

pe
rvi

sio
n 

SI4
8 

(LA
A)

 N
I 1

9: 
Ra

te 
of 

pro
ve

n r
e-o

ffe
nd

ing
 by

 yo
un

g o
ffe

nd
ers

 
SI4

9 
(LA

A)
 N

I 3
3: 

Ar
so

n I
nc

ide
nts

 
SI5

0 
(LA

A)
 N

I 3
5: 

Bu
ild

ing
 re

sili
en

ce
 to

 vi
ole

nt 
ex

tre
mi

sm
 

Ta
ck

le 
an

d p
rev

en
t 

cri
me

 

SI5
1 

Pe
rce

nta
ge

 of
 re

sid
en

ts 
ide

nti
fyi

ng
 cr

im
e a

s a
n a

rea
 of

 co
nc

ern
   

Fo
cu

s o
n e

arl
y 

int
erv

en
tio

n  
SI5

2 
(LA

A)
 N

I 4
0: 

Dr
ug

 us
ers

 in
 ef

fec
tiv

e t
rea

tm
en

t 
Th
em

e 5
: A

 H
ea
lth

y C
om

mu
nit
y 

 

SI5
3 

(LA
A)

 N
I 5

6: 
Ob

es
ity

 am
on

g p
rim

ary
 sc

ho
ol 

ag
e c

hil
dre

n i
n y

ea
r 6

 
 (a

) to
tal

 nu
mb

er 
ch

ild
ren

 w
ith

 he
igh

t &
 w

eig
ht 

rec
ord

ed
 w

ho
 ar

e o
be

se
 

 (b
) n

um
be

r c
hil

dre
n w

ith
 he

igh
t &

 w
eig

ht 
rec

ord
ed

 
(c)

 to
tal

 nu
mb

er 
ye

ar 
6 c

hil
dre

n 
(d)

 %
 ch

ild
ren

 w
ith

 he
igh

t &
 w

eig
ht 

rec
ord

ed
 w

ho
 ar

e o
be

se
 

(e)
 %

 of
 ch

ild
ren

 w
ith

 he
igh

t &
 w

eig
ht 

rec
ord

ed
 

SI5
4 

(LA
A)

 N
I 1

12
: U

nd
er 

18
 co

nc
ep

tio
n r

ate
 

SI5
5 

(LA
A)

 N
I 1

23
: S

top
pin

g s
mo

kin
g 

Re
du

ce
 di

ffe
ren

ce
s i

n 
pe

op
le’

s h
ea

lth
 an

d 
pro

mo
te 

he
alt

hy
 

life
sty

les
 

SI5
6 

(LA
A)

 N
I 1

20
: A

ll-a
ge

 al
l-c

au
se

 m
ort

ali
ty 

rat
e 

   Page 167



Str
ate

gic
 Pl

an
 20

08
/09

 
Ac

tio
n P

lan
  

 10
 

    5. 
 K
ey
 In
itia

tiv
es
 Ye

ar 
1: 
Ap

ril 
20
08
 – 
Ap

ril 
20
09

 
 Th

e K
ey

 In
itia

tiv
es

 fo
r 2

00
8/0

9 t
o s

up
po

rt t
he

 de
live

ry 
of 

the
 lo

ng
er 

ter
m 

go
als

 of
 th

e C
om

mu
nit

y P
lan

 ar
e s

et 
ou

t in
 th

e f
oll

ow
ing

 pa
ge

s. 
Ea

ch
 in

itia
tiv

e 
ide

nti
fie

s s
om

e k
ey

 pr
og

res
s m

ile
sto

ne
s t

o e
na

ble
 pr

og
res

s t
o b

e e
ffe

cti
ve

ly 
mo

nit
ore

d. 
Mo

re 
de

tai
l a

bo
ut 

the
 C

ou
nc

il’s
 pe

rfo
rm

an
ce

 m
on

ito
rin

g a
rra

ng
em

en
ts 

is 
se

t o
ut 

in 
se

cti
on

 6.
 

 Page 168



Str
ate

gic
 Pl

an
 20

08
/09

 
Ac

tio
n P

lan
  

 11
 

     ON
E T

OW
ER

 H
AM

LE
TS

 
 Th

e t
he

me
 of

 O
ne

 To
we

r H
am

let
s r

un
s t

hro
ug

h a
ll o

f o
ur 

Co
mm

un
ity

 an
d S

tra
teg

ic 
Pla

n, 
ref

lec
tin

g o
ur 

de
sir

e t
o b

uil
d O

ne
 To

we
r H

am
let

s -
 a 

bo
rou

gh
 w

he
re 

ev
ery

on
e f

ee
ls 

the
y h

av
e a

n e
qu

al 
sta

ke
 an

d s
tat

us
; w

he
re 

pe
op

le 
fee

l th
ey

 ha
ve

 th
e s

am
e o

pp
ort

un
itie

s a
s t

he
ir n

eig
hb

ou
rs,

 an
d r

es
po

ns
ibi

lity
 to

 co
ntr

ibu
te 

irre
sp

ec
tiv

e o
f th

eir
 ba

ck
gro

un
d o

r a
ge

; a
nd

 w
he

re 
fam

ilie
s a

re 
the

 co
rne

rst
on

e o
f s

uc
ce

ss
. 

 On
e T

ow
er 

Ha
ml

ets
 al

so
 m

ea
ns

 br
ing

ing
 di

ffe
ren

t p
art

s o
f th

e c
om

mu
nit

y t
og

eth
er,

 en
co

ura
gin

g p
os

itiv
e r

ela
tio

ns
hip

s a
nd

 ta
ck

lin
g d

ivis
ion

s b
etw

ee
n 

co
mm

un
itie

s –
 as

 w
ell

 as
 pr

ov
idi

ng
 st

ron
g l

ea
de

rsh
ip,

 in
vo

lvin
g p

eo
ple

 an
d g

ivin
g t

he
m 

the
 to

ols
 an

d s
up

po
rt t

o i
mp

rov
e t

he
ir l

ive
s. 

W
hil

st 
the

 O
ne

 To
we

r 
Ha

ml
ets

 ap
pro

ac
h r

un
s t

hro
ug

h a
ll t

he
 ac

tiv
itie

s w
ith

in 
thi

s P
lan

, th
ere

 ar
e p

art
icu

lar
 ac

tiv
itie

s w
hic

h w
e w

ill u
nd

ert
ak

e t
o b

uil
d a

nd
 de

ve
lop

 O
ne

 To
we

r 
Ha

ml
ets

 ac
ros

s a
ll o

ur 
wo

rk.
 W

ith
in 

the
 St

rat
eg

ic 
Pla

n, 
On

e T
ow

er 
Ha

ml
ets

 al
so

 re
fle

cts
 ou

r c
om

mi
tm

en
t to

 w
ork

ing
 ef

fic
ien

tly
 an

d e
ffe

cti
ve

ly 
as

 O
ne

 C
ou

nc
il. 

 
 W

e w
ill u

se
 th

e f
oll

ow
ing

 sp
ec

ific
 m

ea
su

res
 to

 m
ea

su
re 

ou
r p

rog
res

s t
ow

ard
s a

ch
iev

ing
 O

ne
 C

ou
nc

il –
 a 

nu
mb

er 
of 

the
 ot

he
r m

ea
su

res
 w

ith
in 

oth
er 

se
cti

on
s o

f 
the

 pl
an

s w
ill c

on
trib

ute
 to

 th
e g

oa
l o

f O
ne

 To
we

r H
am

let
s. 

 

 
Pe
rfo

rm
an
ce
 In
dic

ato
rs 

 
20
06
/07

 To
p 

Qu
art

ile
s: 

-
 

Lo
nd
on
 

-
 

En
gla

nd
 

Ou
ttu

rn
 

20
06
/07

 
Ou

ttu
rn
 

20
07
/08

  
Ta
rg
et 

20
08
/09

 
Ta
rg
et 

20
09
/10

 
Ta
rg
et 

20
10
/11

 
Wo

rki
ng
 ef
fic
ien

tly
 an

d e
ffe
cti
ve
ly 
as
 O
ne
 C
ou
nc
il 

SI1
 

A w
ork

for
ce

 to
 re

fle
ct 

the
 co

mm
un

ity
: 

pe
rce

nta
ge

 of
 to

p 5
% 

ea
rne

rs 
tha

t a
re 

fro
m 

mi
no

rity
 et

hn
ic 

co
mm

un
itie

s  
 -
 

18
.53

 
-
 

4.5
3 

15
.26

 
17

.43
 

22
 

25
 

25
 

SI2
 

A w
ork

for
ce

 to
 re

fle
ct 

the
 co

mm
un

ity
: 

pe
rce

nta
ge

 of
 to

p 5
% 

ea
rne

rs 
tha

t a
re 

wo
me

n  
 -
 

48
.36

 
-
 

43
.56

 
53

.21
 

52
.71

 
50

 
50

 
50

 

SI3
 

A w
ork

for
ce

 to
 re

fle
ct 

the
 co

mm
un

ity
: 

pe
rce

nta
ge

 of
 to

p 5
% 

ea
rne

rs 
tha

t a
re 

dis
ab

led
 
 -
 

5.3
9 

-
 

5.4
9 

4.6
2 

3.5
1 

5.5
0 

6.0
0 

 

SI4
 

Nu
mb

er 
of 

wo
rki

ng
 da

ys
/sh

ifts
 lo

st 
to 

sic
kn

es
s 

ab
se

nc
e p

er 
em

plo
ye

e 
 -
 

7.5
9 

-
 

8.0
9 

7.9
2 

8.7
5 

7.5
0 

7.0
0 

 

SI5
 

Pe
rce

nta
ge

 of
 U

nd
isp

ute
d I

nv
oic

es
 Pa

id 
on

 
Tim

e 
 -
 

93
 

-
 

97
 

91
.87

 
91

 
97

 
98

 
 

SI6
 

Pe
rce

nta
ge

 of
 St

ag
e 1

 co
mp

lai
nts

 co
mp

let
ed

 
in 

tim
e 

No
t n

ati
on

al 
65

 
74

 
80

 
 

 
SI7

 
Pe

rce
nta

ge
 of

 re
sid

en
ts 

ag
ree

ing
 th

at 
the

 
 

37
 

41
 

46
 

51
 

 

Page 169



Str
ate

gic
 Pl

an
 20

08
/09

 
Ac

tio
n P

lan
  

 12
 

    

 
Pe
rfo

rm
an
ce
 In
dic

ato
rs 

 
20
06
/07

 To
p 

Qu
art

ile
s: 

-
 

Lo
nd
on
 

-
 

En
gla

nd
 

Ou
ttu

rn
 

20
06
/07

 
Ou

ttu
rn
 

20
07
/08

  
Ta
rg
et 

20
08
/09

 
Ta
rg
et 

20
09
/10

 
Ta
rg
et 

20
10
/11

 
Co

un
cil 

“pr
ov

ide
s v

alu
e f

or 
mo

ne
y f

or 
the

 
Co

un
cil 

Ta
x I

 pa
y” 

SI8
 

(a)
 %

 of
 ca

lls 
to 

Ho
tlin

es
 an

sw
ere

d 
(b)

 A
ve

rag
e w

ait
ing

 tim
e f

or 
ca

lls 
to 

Ho
tlin

es
 

(c)
 %

 fir
st 

co
nta

ct 
res

olu
tio

n o
f c

all
s t

o 
Ho

tlin
es

 

 
 

 
 

 
 

Page 170



Str
ate

gic
 Pl

an
 20

08
/09

 
Ac

tio
n P

lan
  

 13
 

     
Th
em

e 
1. 
 O
ne
 To

we
r H

am
let
s  

Pr
ior

ity
  

To
 re

du
ce
 in
eq
ua
liti
es
, fo

ste
r s
tro

ng
 co

mm
un
ity
 co

he
sio

n a
nd
 pr

ov
ide

 st
ro
ng
 le
ad
ers

hip
 an

d i
nc
lus

ive
 

se
rvi
ce
s. 
 

Ob
jec

tiv
e 

1.1
.1 

To
 re

du
ce

 in
eq

ua
litie

s 
1.1

.2 
Fo

ste
r s

tro
ng

 co
mm

un
ity

 co
he

sio
n 

1.1
.3 

Pr
ov

ide
 st

ron
g c

om
mu

nit
y l

ea
de

rsh
ip 

an
d i

nc
lus

ive
 se

rvi
ce

s  
Ke

y I
nit

iat
ive

s 
Le
ad
s  

Mi
les

ton
es
 

Le
ve

l 5
 se

lf-a
ss

es
sm

en
t re

vie
w 

co
mp

let
ed

 by
 N

ov
em

be
r 2

00
8  

En
su

re 
tha

t th
e C

ou
nc

il a
ch

iev
es

 Le
ve

l 
5 o

f th
e r

ev
ise

d E
qu

ali
ty 

Sta
nd

ard
 

 
Mi

ch
ae

l K
ea

tin
g, 

Ac
tin

g 
As

sis
tan

t C
hie

f E
xe

cu
tiv

e  
Le

ad
 M

em
be

r: C
llr 

Sir
aju

l 
Isl

am
 

As
se

ss
me

nt 
ex

ten
de

d b
y M

arc
h 2

00
9 

Pu
bli

ca
tio

n o
f 5

 Bo
rou

gh
 Fe

sti
va

l B
roc

hu
re 

Ma
y 2

00
8 

Pr
oje

ct 
sc

op
ed

 by
 Se

pte
mb

er 
20

08
 

5 B
oro

ug
h O

lym
pic

 Ar
t P

roj
ec

t c
om

mi
ss

ion
ed

 Se
pte

mb
er 

20
08

 
Th

e D
ev

elo
pm

en
t o

f th
e C

ult
ura

l 
Ol

ym
pia

d 
Pa

ul 
Ma

rtin
dil

l, H
ea

d o
f 

Cu
ltu

ral
 Se

rvi
ce

s 
Le

ad
 M

em
be

r: C
llr 

Lu
tfu

r 
Ra

hm
an
 

Dr
aft

 Fr
am

ew
ork

 co
mp

let
ed

 by
 M

arc
h 2

00
9 

De
ve

lop
 an

d i
mp

lem
en

t a
 pr

og
ram

me
 

to 
res

po
nd

 to
 th

e r
ep

ort
 of

 th
e 

Co
mm

iss
ion

 on
 C

oh
es

ion
 an

d 
Int

eg
rat

ion
 to

 in
clu

de
 br

idg
ing

 
co

mm
un

itie
s w

ork
, in

ter
 fa

ith
, 

res
po

nd
ing

 to
 ne

w 
co

mm
un

itie
s, 

etc
  

Mi
ch

ae
l K

ea
tin

g, 
Ac

tin
g 

As
sis

tan
t C

hie
f E

xe
cu

tiv
e 

Le
ad

 M
em

be
r: C

llr 
Sir

aju
l 

Isl
am

 

Ini
tia

l p
rop

os
als

 de
ve

lop
ed

 by
 Ju

ne
 20

08
 

LS
P r

ev
ise

d i
nfo

rm
ati

on
 go

ve
rna

nc
e a

rra
ng

em
en

ts 
ag

ree
d 

Se
pte

mb
er 

20
08

.  
Ne

w 
Pa

rtic
ipa

tio
n a

nd
 En

ga
ge

me
nt 

str
ate

gic
 w

ork
 re

ad
y f

or 
rol

l o
ut 

Se
pte

mb
er 

20
08

. 
Pa

rtn
ers

hip
 C

om
mu

nic
ati

on
s s

tra
teg

y d
ev

elo
pe

d. 
Se

pte
mb

er 
20

08
. 

Im
ple

me
nt 

pa
rtn

ers
hip

 st
ruc

tur
e a

nd
 

go
ve

rna
nc

e c
ha

ng
es

 to
 st

ren
gth

en
 

de
cis

ion
 m

ak
ing

 an
d a

cc
ou

nta
bil

ity
  

Sh
az

ia 
Hu

ss
ain

, D
ire

cto
r 

To
we

r H
am

let
s P

art
ne

rsh
ip 

 
Le

ad
 M

em
be

r: C
llr 

Lu
tfu

r 
Ra

hm
an

 

LA
P A

cti
on

 pl
an

s d
ev

elo
pe

d a
nd

 ag
ree

d. 
Se

pte
mb

er 
20

08
 

Im
ple

me
nt 

Co
un

cill
or 

Ca
ll f

or 
Ac

tio
n b

y O
cto

be
r 2

00
8 

Im
ple

me
nt 

‘ro
vin

g’ 
Co

un
cil 

or 
co

mm
itte

e m
ee

tin
gs

 in
 lo

ca
l v

en
ue

s  
- 

by
 O

cto
be

r 2
00

8 
Mo

de
rni

se
 th

e C
ou

nc
il’s

 de
mo

cra
tic

 
str

uc
tur

es
  

Jo
hn

 W
illia

ms
, H

ea
d o

f 
De

mo
cra

tic
 Se

rvi
ce

s  
Le

ad
 M

em
be

r: C
llr 

Sir
aju

l 
Isl

am
 

Int
rod

uc
e w

eb
-ca

sti
ng

 of
 C

ou
nc

il/C
ab

ine
t o

the
r m

ee
tin

gs
 – 

pil
ot 

pro
jec

t b
y J

an
ua

ry 
20

09
 

 Page 171



Str
ate

gic
 Pl

an
 20

08
/09

 
Ac

tio
n P

lan
  

 14
 

      
Th
em

e 
1. 

 O
ne
 To

we
r H

am
let
s  

Pr
ior

ity
:  W

or
kin

g e
ffic

ien
tly
 an

d e
ffe

cti
ve
ly 
as
 O
ne
 C
ou
nc
il 

Ob
jec

tiv
e 

1.2
.1 

    
En

su
rin

g v
alu

e f
or 

mo
ne

y a
cro

ss
 th

e C
ou

nc
il 

1.2
.2 

    
Re

cru
itin

g, 
su

pp
ort

ing
 an

d d
ev

elo
pin

g a
n e

ffe
cti

ve
 w

ork
for

ce
  

1.2
.3 

    
Pr

ov
idi

ng
 ef

fec
tiv

e a
nd

 jo
ine

d u
p c

orp
ora

te 
se

rvi
ce

s t
o e

ns
ure

 th
e d

eli
ve

ry 
of 

Co
un

cil 
pri

ori
tie

s  
 

Ke
y I
nit

iat
ive

s 
Le
ad
s 

Mi
les

ton
es
 

Co
mp

let
e c

on
su

lta
tio

n w
ith

 PC
T a

nd
 ot

he
r k

ey
 pa

rtn
ers

 by
 Ju

ne
 20

08
 

De
ve

lop
 a 

W
ork

for
ce

 St
rat

eg
y t

o 
rec

rui
t a

nd
 de

ve
lop

 a 
wo

rkf
orc

e t
o 

de
live

r lo
ca

l p
rio

riti
es

 an
d r

efl
ec

t 
the

 co
mm

un
ity

 

De
b C

lar
ke

, J
oin

t D
ire

cto
r o

f 
Hu

ma
n R

es
ou

rce
s 

Le
ad

 M
em

be
r: C

llr 
Jo

sh
ua

 Pe
ck

 
Str

ate
gy

 ap
pro

ve
d b

y C
ab

ine
t a

nd
 PC

T B
oa

rd 
Se

pte
mb

er 
20

08
 

De
ve

lop
 an

 In
for

ma
tio

n S
tra

teg
y 

to 
en

su
re 

the
 ef

fec
tiv

e u
se

 of
 

inf
orm

ati
on

 ac
ros

s t
he

 C
ou

nc
il 

an
d i

ts 
Pa

rtn
ers

  

Jim
 R

ob
ert

s, 
He

ad
 of

 IC
T 

Le
ad

 M
em

be
r: C

llr 
Jo

sh
ua

 Pe
ck

 
Str

ate
gy

 co
mp

let
ed

 by
 D

ec
em

be
r 2

00
8 

Pil
ot 

Sc
he

me
 ap

pro
ve

d b
y J

uly
 20

08
 

Cr
ea

te 
a c

om
mu

nit
y w

ide
 IT

 
Inf

ras
tru

ctu
re 

Ne
tw

ork
 th

at 
en

ab
les

 re
sid

en
ts 

to 
ha

ve
 gr

ea
ter

 
ac

ce
ss

 to
 se

rvi
ce

s 

Jim
 R

ob
ert

s, 
He

ad
 of

 IC
T 

Le
ad

 M
em

be
r: C

llr 
Jo

sh
ua

 Pe
ck

 
Pil

ot 
ev

alu
ate

d b
y M

arc
h 2

00
9 

De
ve

lop
 st

rat
eg

y b
y M

arc
h 2

00
9 

De
ve

lop
 a 

Ch
an

ne
l S

tra
teg

y t
o 

en
su

re 
ac

ce
ss

 to
 se

rvi
ce

 is
 

de
live

red
 in

 a 
ma

nn
er 

tha
t 

ma
xim

ise
s c

us
tom

er 
sa

tis
fac

tio
n 

an
d r

ed
uc

es
 th

e o
ve

ral
l c

os
t to

 
se

rve
  

Cla
ire

 Sy
mo

nd
s, 

He
ad

 of
  

Cu
sto

me
r A

cc
es

s 
Le

ad
 M

em
be

r: C
llr 

Jo
sh

ua
 Pe

ck
 

 
Ac

hie
ve

 ex
ter

na
l a

cc
red

ita
tio

n o
f C

us
tom

er 
Ac

ce
ss

 by
 D

ec
em

be
r 2

00
8 

 Us
e C

ou
nc

il’s
 un

it c
os

t in
de

x t
o i

de
nti

fy 
se

rvi
ce

s f
or 

de
tai

led
 ef

fic
ien

cy
 

rev
iew

 by
 Ju

ne
 20

08
 

De
ve

lop
 ap

pro
ac

h t
o r

es
ou

rce
 pl

an
nin

g w
hic

h l
ink

s r
es

ou
rce

 al
loc

ati
on

 
mo

re 
dir

ec
tly

 to
 st

rat
eg

ic 
pla

nn
ing

 by
 M

arc
h 2

00
9  

De
ve

lop
 pr

oje
ct 

ap
pra

isa
l fo

r a
ll c

ap
ita

l s
ch

em
es

 an
d m

ajo
r 

pro
cu

rem
en

ts 
by

 M
arc

h 2
00

9 

Fu
rth

er 
em

be
d a

 st
rat

eg
ic 

ap
pro

ac
h t

o e
ffic

ien
cy

 an
d v

alu
e 

for
 m

on
ey

 
Ala

n F
inc

h, 
He

ad
 of

 C
orp

ora
te 

Fin
an

ce
 

Le
ad

 M
em

be
r: C

llr 
Jo

sh
ua

 Pe
ck

 

En
su

re 
tha

t e
ffic

ien
cy

 is
 ap

pro
pri

ate
ly 

ref
lec

ted
 in

 al
l re

so
urc

e 
str

ate
gie

s b
y M

arc
h 2

00
9 

Co
-or

din
ate

 th
e C

ou
nc

il’s
 

Ch
arl

es
 Sk

inn
er,

 H
ea

d o
f 

Re
vie

w 
co

un
cil-

wid
e m

ark
eti

ng
 ac

tiv
ity

 an
d p

rep
are

 re
po

rt b
y J

un
e 

Page 172



Str
ate

gic
 Pl

an
 20

08
/09

 
Ac

tio
n P

lan
  

 15
 

    

Th
em

e 
1. 

 O
ne
 To

we
r H

am
let
s  

Pr
ior

ity
:  W

or
kin

g e
ffic

ien
tly
 an

d e
ffe

cti
ve
ly 
as
 O
ne
 C
ou
nc
il 

Ob
jec

tiv
e 

1.2
.1 

    
En

su
rin

g v
alu

e f
or 

mo
ne

y a
cro

ss
 th

e C
ou

nc
il 

1.2
.2 

    
Re

cru
itin

g, 
su

pp
ort

ing
 an

d d
ev

elo
pin

g a
n e

ffe
cti

ve
 w

ork
for

ce
  

1.2
.3 

    
Pr

ov
idi

ng
 ef

fec
tiv

e a
nd

 jo
ine

d u
p c

orp
ora

te 
se

rvi
ce

s t
o e

ns
ure

 th
e d

eli
ve

ry 
of 

Co
un

cil 
pri

ori
tie

s  
 

Ke
y I
nit

iat
ive

s 
Le
ad
s 

Mi
les

ton
es
 

ma
rke

tin
g a

nd
 co

mm
un

ica
tio

ns
 

ac
tiv

ity
 un

de
r th

e B
rig

hte
r 

Bo
rou

gh
 th

em
e t

o m
ax

im
ise

 
im

pa
ct 

an
d i

mp
rov

e v
alu

e f
or 

mo
ne

y 

Co
mm

un
ica

tio
ns

 
Le

ad
 M

em
be

r: C
llr 

Sir
aju

l Is
lam

 
20

08
 w

ith
 re

co
mm

en
da

tio
ns

 fo
r a

 co
rpo

rat
e p

oli
cy

. 

Up
da

te 
of 

joi
nt 

AM
P a

nd
 ca

pit
al 

str
ate

gy
 by

 D
ec

em
be

r 2
00

8 
Re

vie
w 

of 
ma

int
en

an
ce

 an
d W

LC
 st

rat
eg

ies
 by

 D
ec

em
be

r 2
00

8 
Im

pro
ve

 th
e e

ffe
cti

ve
 an

d e
ffic

ien
t 

uti
lisa

tio
n o

f o
ur 

pro
pe

rty
 po

rtfo
lio
 

Co
lin

 Br
ad

ley
, In

ter
im

 Se
rvi

ce
 

He
ad

 of
 C

orp
ora

te 
Pr

op
ert

y 
Le

ad
 M

em
be

r: C
llr 

Jo
sh

ua
 Pe

ck
 

Str
ate

gy
 fo

r a
rea

 as
se

t re
vie

ws
 ag

ree
d b

y M
arc

h 2
00

9 
 Page 173



 16
 

A 
Gr
ea
t P

lac
e t
o L

ive
 

 A G
rea

t P
lac

e t
o L

ive
 re

fle
cts

 th
e C

om
mu

nit
y P

lan
 as

pir
ati

on
 th

at 
To

we
r H

am
let

s s
ho

uld
 be

 a 
pla

ce
 w

he
re 

pe
op

le 
en

joy
 liv

ing
 an

d t
ak

e a
cti

ve
 pr

ide
 in

 
be

lon
gin

g. 
Th

e C
ou

nc
il w

ill s
up

po
rt t

his
 by

 se
ek

ing
 to

 pr
ov

ide
 go

od
 qu

ali
ty 

aff
ord

ab
le 

ho
us

ing
, w

ell
 de

sig
ne

d p
ub

lic 
sp

ac
es

 an
d b

ett
er 

tra
ns

po
rt l

ink
s. 

A 
co

mm
itm

en
t to

 en
vir

on
me

nta
l s

us
tai

na
bil

ity
 is

 al
so

 at
 th

e h
ea

rt o
f th

is 
the

me
.   

 Th
is 

ac
tio

n p
lan

 id
en

tifi
es

 ou
r a

cti
vit

ies
 ov

er 
the

 co
mi

ng
 ye

ar.
  In

 th
e t

hre
e y

ea
rs 

to 
20

11
, w

e a
lso

 pl
an

 to
: 

• 
inv

es
t in

 th
e q

ua
lity

 of
 ho

me
s a

nd
 pu

bli
c s

pa
ce

s  
• 

se
t o

ut 
a p

rog
ram

me
 of

 in
fra

str
uc

tur
e i

nv
es

tm
en

t in
 ou

r L
oc

al 
De

ve
lop

me
nt 

Fra
me

wo
rk 

• 
de

ve
lop

 a 
Pu

bli
c R

ea
lm

 st
rat

eg
y t

o i
mp

rov
e t

he
 qu

ali
ty 

an
d c

lea
nli

ne
ss

 of
 to

wn
 ce

ntr
es

 an
d o

pe
n s

pa
ce

s 
• 

inc
rea

se
 th

e a
mo

un
t o

f h
ou

sin
g i

n t
he

 bo
rou

gh
, fo

r s
ing

le 
pe

op
le,

 co
up

les
 an

d f
am

ilie
s. 

• 
Fu

rth
er 

im
pro

ve
 ou

r re
cy

clin
g s

erv
ice

s a
nd

 un
de

rta
ke

 m
ea

su
res

 to
 en

co
ura

ge
 gr

ea
ter

 pa
rtic

ipa
tio

n f
rom

 re
sid

en
ts 

an
d b

us
ine

ss
es

.   
• 

Fu
rth

er 
im

pro
ve

 th
e q

ua
lity

 of
 ou

r p
ark

s, 
gre

en
 sp

ac
es

 an
d o

pe
n p

lay
 sp

ac
es

  
• 

De
ve

lop
 an

d i
mp

lem
en

t th
e P

ub
lic 

Ar
t S

tra
teg

y  
• 

En
su

re 
the

 Bo
rou

gh
 co

nti
nu

es
 to

 be
 th

e v
en

ue
 fo

r s
om

e o
f th

e m
os

t e
xc

itin
g f

es
tiv

als
 an

d e
ve

nts
 in

 th
e U

K 
• 

Im
pro

ve
 th

e c
ap

ac
ity

 of
 ou

r p
lay

ing
 pi

tch
 in

fra
str

uc
tur

e t
hro

ug
h i

mp
lem

en
tat

ion
 of

 th
e p

lay
ing

 pi
tch

 st
rat

eg
y. 

 
 W

e w
ill u

se
 th

e f
oll

ow
ing

 sp
ec

ific
 m

ea
su

res
 to

 m
ea

su
re 

ou
r p

rog
res

s t
ow

ard
s a

ch
iev

ing
 A 

Gr
ea

t P
lac

e t
o L

ive
. 

 
Pe
rfo

rm
an
ce
 In
dic

ato
rs 

 
20
06
/07

 To
p 

Qu
art

ile
s: 

-
 

Lo
nd
on
 

-
 

En
gla

nd
 

Ou
ttu

rn
 

20
06
/07

 
Ou

ttu
rn
 

20
07
/08

  
Ta
rg
et 

20
08
/09

 
Ta
rg
et 

20
09
/10

 
Ta
rg
et 

20
10
/11

 
Pr
ov
ide

 A
ffo

rd
ab
le 
Ho

us
ing

 an
d S

tro
ng
 N
eig

hb
ou
rh
oo
ds
 

SI9
 

(LA
A)

NI
 15

4: 
Ne

t a
dd

itio
na

l h
om

es
  

Ne
w 
PI 

27
30

 
 

29
99

 
(av

) 
29

99
 

(av
) 

29
99

 
(av

) 
SI1

0 
(LA

A)
NI

 15
5: 

Aff
ord

ab
le 

ho
me

s d
eli

ve
red

  
Ne

w 
PI 

10
47

 (s
ou

rce
 

AM
R)

 20
06

/7 
 

 
16

88
 

(av
) 

16
88

 
(av

) 
11

68
 

(av
) 

SI1
1 

(LA
A)

 N
I 1

58
: P

erc
en

tag
e o

f d
ec

en
t c

ou
nc

il 
ho

me
s 

 
 

 
 

 
 

St
ren

gth
en
 an

d c
on
ne
ct 
co
mm

un
itie

s 
SI1

2 
(LA

A)
 N

I 1
: P

erc
en

tag
e o

f p
eo

ple
 w

ho
 be

lie
ve

 
pe

op
le 

fro
m 

dif
fer

en
t b

ac
kg

rou
nd

s g
et 

on
 w

ell
 

tog
eth

er 
 

67
 

 
Ta

rge
t s

ett
ing

 de
fer

red
 

SI1
3 

(LA
A)

 N
I 4

7: 
Pe

op
le 

kill
ed

 or
 se

rio
us

ly 
inj

ure
d 

in 
roa

d t
raf

fic
 ac

cid
en

ts 
-
 

85
 

-
 

77
 

11
1 

12
4 

11
4 

10
4 

94
 

SI1
4 

(LA
A)

 N
I 7

: E
nv

iro
nm

en
t fo

r a
 th

riv
ing

 th
ird

 
Ne

w 
PI 

 
 

Ta
rge

t s
ett

ing
 tb

c 

Page 174



Str
ate

gic
 Pl

an
 20

08
/09

 
Ac

tio
n P

lan
  

 17
 

    

 
Pe
rfo

rm
an
ce
 In
dic

ato
rs 

 
20
06
/07

 To
p 

Qu
art

ile
s: 

-
 

Lo
nd
on
 

-
 

En
gla

nd
 

Ou
ttu

rn
 

20
06
/07

 
Ou

ttu
rn
 

20
07
/08

  
Ta
rg
et 

20
08
/09

 
Ta
rg
et 

20
09
/10

 
Ta
rg
et 

20
10
/11

 
se

cto
r 

SI1
5 

Pe
rce

nta
ge

 of
 re

sid
en

ts 
wh

o a
gre

e t
ha

t th
e 

Co
un

cil 
is 

do
ing

 a 
go

od
 jo

b: 
 (a

) B
oro

ug
h a

ve
rag

e  
 (b

) G
ap

 be
tw

ee
n t

he
 ov

era
ll b

oro
ug

h a
ve

rag
e 

an
d t

he
 LA

P a
rea

 w
ith

 th
e l

ow
es

t p
erf

orm
an

ce
 

 
 (a

)  
 (b

)  
(a)

 68
 

(b)
 7 

 (a
) 7

6 
 (b

) 1
0 

(a)
 78

 
(b)

 10
 

(a)
  

(b)
 

SI1
6 

NI
 4 

Pe
rce

nta
ge

 of
 pe

op
le 

wh
o f

ee
l th

ey
 ca

n 
inf

lue
nc

e d
ec

isio
ns

 in
 th

eir
 lo

ca
lity

 
-
 

43
 

-
 

36
 

41
 

48
 

55
 

 
 

Su
pp
SI1

6o
rt 
vib

ran
t to

wn
 ce

ntr
es
 an

d a
 cl
ea
ne
r, s

afe
r p

ub
lic
 re
alm

 

SI1
7 

(LA
A)

 N
I 1

95
: Im

pro
ve

d s
tre

et 
an

d 
en

vir
on

me
nta

l c
lea

nli
ne

ss
  

(a)
 g

raf
fiti

 
(b)

 lit
ter

 
(c)

 d
etr

itu
s 

(d)
 fly

 po
sti

ng
 

Re
ca

lcu
lat

ed
 PI

 
(a)

 1
4%

  
(b)

 15
% 

(c)
  9

% 
(d)

  4
% 

 

 
 

(a)
 8

%
  

(b)
 12

% 
(c)

 13
% 

(d)
  3

% 

(a)
 7%

 
(b)

 10
% 

(c)
 11

% 
(d)

 2%
 

(a)
 6%

 
(b)

 8%
 

(c)
 10

% 
(d)

 2%
 

SI1
8 

(LA
A)

 N
I 5

: O
ve

ral
l / 

ge
ne

ral
 sa

tis
fac

tio
n w

ith
 

the
 lo

ca
l a

rea
 

Ne
w 
PI 

62
 

 
Ta

rge
t s

ett
ing

 de
fer

red
 

SI1
9 

Pe
rce

nta
ge

 of
 re

sid
en

ts 
wh

o v
iew

 ru
bb

ish
 an

d 
litt

er 
lyin

g a
rou

nd
 as

 a 
se

rio
us

 pr
ob

lem
.  

 
32

 
32

.9 
20

 
19

 
 

SI2
0 

Pe
rce

nta
ge

 of
 re

sid
en

ts 
wh

o t
hin

k t
ha

t p
ark

s, 
pla

yg
rou

nd
s a

nd
 op

en
 sp

ac
es

 ar
e g

oo
d, 

ve
ry 

go
od

 or
 ex

ce
lle

nt 
 

50
 

54
 

54
 

56
 

 

SI2
1 

Pe
rce

nta
ge

 of
 re

sid
en

ts 
wh

o t
hin

k t
ha

t s
tre

et 
cle

an
ing

 is
 go

od
, v

ery
 go

od
 or

 ex
ce

lle
nt 

 
 

 
51

 
 

 
 

SI2
1 

Pe
rce

nta
ge

 of
 re

sid
en

ts 
as

ke
d w

ho
 th

ink
 th

at 
lei

su
re 

an
d s

po
rts

 fa
cili

tie
s a

re 
go

od
, v

ery
 

go
od

 or
 ex

ce
lle

nt 
 

 
46

 
 

 
 

Im
pr
ov
e t
he
 en

vir
on
me

nt 
an
d t
ac
kli
ng
 cl
im
ate

 ch
an
ge
 

SI2
2 

(LA
A)

 N
I 1

86
: P

er 
ca

pit
a r

ed
uc

tio
n i

n C
02

 
em

iss
ion

s i
n t

he
 LA

 ar
ea

 
Ne

w 
PI 

2,0
15

,00
t 

(20
05

) 
 

 
-0.

4%
 

-0.
8%

 

SI2
4 

(LA
A)

 N
I 1

92
: H

ou
se

ho
ld 

wa
ste

 re
cy

cle
d a

nd
 

co
mp

os
ted

 
Re

ca
lcu

lat
ed

 PI
 

11
.76

% 
(W

as
te 

Da
ta 

Flo
w)

 
 

20
% 

32
% 

42
% 

Page 175



Str
ate

gic
 Pl

an
 20

08
/09

 
Ac

tio
n P

lan
  

 18
 

     
Th
em

e 
2. 

 A
 G
rea

t P
lac

e t
o L

ive
 

Pr
ior

ity
  

2.1
 Pr

ov
ide

 af
for

da
ble

 ho
us
ing

 an
d s

tro
ng
 ne

igh
bo
ur
ho
od
s 

Ob
jec

tiv
e 

2.1
.1 

Inc
rea

sin
g t

he
 ov

era
ll s

up
ply

 of
 ho

us
ing

 fo
r lo

ca
l p

eo
ple

 in
clu

din
g a

 ra
ng

e o
f a

ffo
rda

ble
, fa

mi
ly 

ho
us

ing
  

2.1
.2 

Pr
ov

ide
 de

ce
nt 

ho
me

s i
n w

ell
 de

sig
ne

d s
tre

ets
 an

d n
eig

hb
ou

rho
od

s 
2.1

.3 
Pla

nn
ing

 ne
w 

ne
igh

bo
urh

oo
ds

 w
ith

 su
pp

ort
ive

 se
rvi

ce
s l

ike
 pr

im
ary

 sc
ho

ols
, h

ea
lth

ca
re 

fac
iliti

es
 an

d l
oc

al 
pa

rks
 

2.1
.4 

Im
pro

vin
g t

he
 qu

ali
ty 

of 
ho

us
ing

 m
an

ag
em

en
t a

nd
 re

lat
ed

 se
rvi

ce
s p

rov
ide

d t
o t

en
an

ts 
an

d l
ea

se
ho

lde
rs 

Ke
y I
nit

iat
ive

s 
Le
ad
s 

Mi
les

ton
es
 

En
co

ura
ge

 an
d e

na
ble

 pa
rtn

er 
pro

vid
ers

 to
 cr

ea
te 

15
45

 ne
w 

aff
ord

ab
le 

ho
me

s i
n l

ine
 w

ith
 th

e L
on

do
n P

lan
 by

 M
arc

h 0
9 

Th
rou

gh
 ef

fec
tiv

e p
lac

e s
ha

pin
g p

oli
cy

 
en

su
re 

su
pp

ly 
of 

aff
ord

ab
le 

an
d l

ow
 

co
st 

ho
me

 ow
ne

rsh
ip 
 

  

Ja
ck

ie 
Od

un
oy

e, 
He

ad
 of

 
Str

ate
gy

 an
d D

ev
elo

pm
en

t  
Le

ad
 M

em
be

r: C
llr 

Ma
rc 

Fra
nc

is 
45

% 
of 

all
 ne

w 
aff

ord
ab

le 
ren

ted
 ho

us
ing

 to
 be

 fa
mi

ly 
siz

ed
 

ac
co

mm
od

ati
on

 by
 M

arc
h 0

9 
Co

mp
eti

tiv
e d

ial
og

ue
 an

d s
ele

cti
on

 of
 pr

efe
rre

d p
art

ne
r fo

r O
ce

an
 by

 
Ja

nu
ary

 20
09

 
Int

eri
m 

Bo
ard

 fo
r O

ce
an

 R
eg

en
era

tio
n T

rus
t d

ete
rm

ine
d b

y M
ay

 20
08

 
Re

so
lut

ion
 of

 la
nd

ow
ne

rs 
ag

ree
me

nt 
pro

ce
ss

 fo
r B

lac
kw

all
 R

ea
ch

 by
 

Oc
tob

er 
20

08
 

De
ve

lop
 an

d s
tar

t to
 im

ple
me

nt,
 w

ith
 

ke
y p

art
ne

rs,
 m

ajo
r e

sta
te 

ren
ew

al 
pro

gra
mm

es
 

     

Ja
ck

ie 
Od

un
oy

e, 
He

ad
 of

 
Str

ate
gy

 an
d D

ev
elo

pm
en

t  
Le

ad
 M

em
be

r: C
llr 

Ma
rc 

Fra
nc

is 

Ou
tlin

e p
lan

nin
g a

pp
lica

tio
n f

or 
Bla

ck
wa

ll R
ea

ch
 su

bm
itte

d b
y M

arc
h 

20
09

 
Ag

ree
d 5

 ye
ar 

ho
us

ing
 in

ve
stm

en
t p

rog
ram

me
 by

 Ju
ly 

20
08

 
Co

mm
iss

ion
 a 

str
ate

gic
 re

vie
w 

of 
ou

r 
ret

ain
ed

 ho
us

ing
 st

oc
k  

   

Ja
ck

ie 
Od

un
oy

e, 
He

ad
 of

 
Str

ate
gy

 an
d D

ev
elo

pm
en

t 
Le

ad
 M

em
be

r: C
llr 

Ma
rc 

Fra
nc

is 
Pr

oc
ure

me
nt 

str
ate

gy
 fo

r d
eli

ve
ry 

of 
de

ce
nt 

ho
me

s b
y J

uly
 20

08
 

Dr
aft

 co
re 

str
ate

gy
 pr

efe
rre

d o
pti

on
 by

 Ja
nu

ary
 20

09
 

Dr
aft

 M
as

ter
pla

ns
 fo

r p
ub

lic 
co

ns
ult

ati
on

 pr
ep

are
d f

or 
Fis

h I
sla

nd
, A

sp
en

 
W

ay
 an

d N
ew

s I
nte

rna
tio

na
l s

ite
 by

 N
ov

em
be

r 2
00

8 
Ma

ste
rpl

an
s a

do
pte

d b
y M

arc
h2

00
9 

De
ve

lop
 th

e L
oc

al 
De

ve
lop

me
nt 

Fra
me

wo
rk 

co
re 

str
ate

gy
 

Ja
mi

e O
un

an
, S

tra
teg

y 
Pla

nn
ing

 M
an

ag
er 

Le
ad

 M
em

be
r: C

llr 
Ma

rc 
Fra

nc
is 

Bo
rou

gh
-w

ide
 in

fra
str

uc
tur

e d
eli

ve
ry 

pla
n b

y M
arc

h 2
00

9 
Co

ns
ult

ati
on

 on
 O

lym
pic

 M
as

ter
pla

n i
n O

cto
be

r 2
00

8 
En

ga
ge

 in
 O

lym
pic

 le
ga

cy
 m

as
ter

pla
n 

pro
ce

ss
 to

 se
cu

re 
ma

xim
um

 be
ne

fits
 

for
 To

we
r H

am
let

s f
rom

 le
ga

cy
 

Nic
k S

ma
les

, H
ea

d o
f 

Ol
ym

pic
 an

d P
ara

lym
pic

 
Ga

me
s 

Le
ad

 M
em

be
r: C

llr 
Lu

tfu
r 

Ra
hm

an
 

Bo
rou

gh
 vi

ew
s i

nc
orp

ora
ted

 w
ith

 ac
ce

pta
ble

 M
as

ter
 pl

an
 by

 M
arc

h 2
00

9 

Page 176



Str
ate

gic
 Pl

an
 20

08
/09

 
Ac

tio
n P

lan
  

 19
 

    

Th
em

e 
2. 

 A
 G
rea

t P
lac

e t
o L

ive
 

Pr
ior

ity
  

2.1
 Pr

ov
ide

 af
for

da
ble

 ho
us
ing

 an
d s

tro
ng
 ne

igh
bo
ur
ho
od
s 

Ob
jec

tiv
e 

2.1
.1 

Inc
rea

sin
g t

he
 ov

era
ll s

up
ply

 of
 ho

us
ing

 fo
r lo

ca
l p

eo
ple

 in
clu

din
g a

 ra
ng

e o
f a

ffo
rda

ble
, fa

mi
ly 

ho
us

ing
  

2.1
.2 

Pr
ov

ide
 de

ce
nt 

ho
me

s i
n w

ell
 de

sig
ne

d s
tre

ets
 an

d n
eig

hb
ou

rho
od

s 
2.1

.3 
Pla

nn
ing

 ne
w 

ne
igh

bo
urh

oo
ds

 w
ith

 su
pp

ort
ive

 se
rvi

ce
s l

ike
 pr

im
ary

 sc
ho

ols
, h

ea
lth

ca
re 

fac
iliti

es
 an

d l
oc

al 
pa

rks
 

2.1
.4 

Im
pro

vin
g t

he
 qu

ali
ty 

of 
ho

us
ing

 m
an

ag
em

en
t a

nd
 re

lat
ed

 se
rvi

ce
s p

rov
ide

d t
o t

en
an

ts 
an

d l
ea

se
ho

lde
rs 

Ke
y I
nit

iat
ive

s 
Le
ad
s 

Mi
les

ton
es
 

Co
ns

ult
ati

on
 on

 ho
us

ing
 st

rat
eg

y b
y M

arc
h 0

9 
Re

fre
sh

 th
e h

ou
sin

g s
tra

teg
y 

Ja
ck

ie 
Od

un
oy

e, 
He

ad
 of

 
Str

ate
gy

 an
d D

ev
elo

pm
en

t 
Le

ad
 M

em
be

r: C
llr 

Ma
rc 

Fra
nc

is 
Ov

erc
row

din
g s

tra
teg

y a
nd

 ac
tio

n p
lan

 by
 Ja

nu
ary

 20
09

 

 Page 177



Str
ate

gic
 Pl

an
 20

08
/09

 
Ac

tio
n P

lan
  

 20
 

      
Th
em

e 
2. 

 A
 G
rea

t P
lac

e t
o L

ive
 

Pr
ior

ity
  

2.2
 St

ren
gth

en
 an

d C
on
ne
ct 
Co

mm
un
itie

s  
  

Ob
jec

tiv
e 

2.2
.1 

Im
pro

vin
g p

ub
lic 

tra
ns

po
rt n

etw
ork

s a
nd

 en
ab

lin
g m

ore
 re

sid
en

ts 
to 

wa
lk 

an
d c

yc
le 

sa
fel

y  
2.2

.2 
Br

ing
ing

 to
ge

the
r c

om
mu

nit
ies

 to
 fo

ste
r m

utu
al 

un
de

rst
an

din
g, 

a c
oll

ec
tiv

e s
en

se
 of

 w
ell

be
ing

 an
d a

vo
id 

pe
op

le 
be

ing
 is

ola
ted

 
2.2

.3 
   E

ns
uri

ng
 co

mm
un

itie
s h

av
e g

oo
d a

cc
es

s t
o a

 fu
ll r

an
ge

 of
 fa

cili
tie

s -
 in

clu
din

g h
ea

lth
 se

rvi
ce

s, 
sc

ho
ols

 an
d l

eis
ure

  
Ke

y I
nit

iat
ive

s 
Le
ad
s 

Mi
les

ton
es
 

Co
mp

let
e p

roj
ec

t im
ple

me
nta

tio
n p

lan
 

for
 co

un
cil’

s n
ew

 Su
sta

ina
ble

 Tr
an

sp
ort

 
Str

ate
gy

 – 
‘M

ak
ing

 C
on

ne
cti

on
s’ 

– 
tow

ard
s a

 cl
im

ate
-fri

en
dly

 tra
ns

po
rt 

fut
ure

 20
08

-20
33

   

Ow
en

 W
ha

lle
y, 

He
ad

 of
 M

ajo
r 

Pr
oje

ct 
De

ve
lop

me
nt 

Le
ad

 M
em

be
r: C

llr 
Ma

rc 
Fra

nc
is 

Dr
aft

 pr
oje

ct 
im

ple
me

nta
tio

n p
lan

 co
mp

let
ed

 by
 D

ec
em

be
r 2

00
8 

Ma
ins

tre
am

 gr
an

ts 
co

mm
iss

ion
ing

 pr
oc

es
s 2

00
9-1

1 f
ina

lise
d b

y 
Ma

rch
 20

09
 

Re
vie

w 
of 

as
se

ts 
to 

su
pp

ort
 th

ird
 se

cto
r a

nd
 lo

ca
l e

nte
rpr

ise
 by

 
De

ce
mb

er 
20

08
 

De
ve

lop
 a 

str
ate

gic
 co

mm
iss

ion
ing

 
ap

pro
ac

h t
o m

ain
str

ea
m 

gra
nts

 an
d 

oth
er 

3rd
 se

cto
r s

up
po

rt 
Ch

ris
 H

olm
e, 

He
ad

 of
 

Re
so

urc
es

 
Le

ad
 M

em
be

r: C
llr 

Ma
rc 

Fra
nc

is 
Up

da
te 

of 
thi

rd 
se

cto
r s

tra
teg

y b
y M

arc
h2

00
9 

Im
pro

ve
 up

tak
e o

f o
ut 

of 
sc

ho
ol 

ac
tiv

itie
s b

y y
ou

ng
 pe

op
le 

to 
en

su
re 

cro
ss

 – 
co

mm
un

ity
 en

ga
ge

me
nt 

 
Ma

ry 
Du

rki
n, 

He
ad

 of
 Yo

uth
 

an
d C

om
mu

nit
y L

ea
rni

ng
  

Le
ad

 M
em

be
r: C

llr 
Cla

ir 
Ha

wk
ins

 

Lin
k o

ut 
of 

sc
ho

ol 
ma

na
ge

me
nt 

inf
orm

ati
on

 sy
ste

ms
 w

ith
 yo

uth
 

se
rvi

ce
 to

 m
on

ito
r u

pta
ke

 by
 M

arc
h 2

00
9  

 Page 178



Str
ate

gic
 Pl

an
 20

08
/09

 
Ac

tio
n P

lan
  

 21
 

     
Th
em

e 
2. 

 A
 G
rea

t P
lac

e t
o L

ive
 

Pr
ior

ity
  

2.3
 S

up
po
rt 
vib

ran
t to

wn
 ce

ntr
es
, a
nd
 a 
cle

an
er,
 sa

fer
 pu

bli
c r
ea
lm
 

Ob
jec

tiv
e 

2.3
.1 

   P
rov

idi
ng

 fir
st-

cla
ss

 an
d w

ell
 m

an
ag

ed
 ce

ntr
es

 w
he

re 
pe

op
le 

co
me

 to
ge

the
r fo

r b
us

ine
ss

, s
ho

pp
ing

, le
isu

re 
an

d r
ec

rea
tio

n 
2.3

.2 
   S

up
po

rtin
g a

nd
 im

pro
vin

g o
pe

n s
pa

ce
s 

2.3
.3 

   I
mp

rov
ing

 st
ree

t li
gh

tin
g a

nd
 re

du
cin

g g
raf

fiti
 an

d l
itte

r 
  Ke

y I
nit

iat
ive

s 
Le
ad
s 

Ke
y M

ile
sto

ne
s  

De
ma

nd
 an

d s
up

ply
 m

ap
pin

g c
om

ple
ted

 ba
se

d o
n f

utu
re 

po
pu

lat
ion

 
gro

wt
h b

y J
un

e 2
00

8 
Un

de
rta

ke
 a 

str
ate

gic
 re

vie
w 

of 
ind

oo
r 

lei
su

re 
fac

ility
 pr

ov
isio

n t
o i

nfo
rm

 th
e 

bu
ild

ing
 sc

ho
ols

 fo
r th

e f
utu

re 
pro

gra
mm

e a
nd

 fu
tur

e d
ev

elo
pm

en
ts 

wit
hin

 th
e B

oro
ug

h 

Pa
ul 

Ma
rtin

dil
l, H

ea
d o

f 
Cu

ltu
ral

 Se
rvi

ce
s 

Le
ad

 M
em

be
r: C

llr 
Ro

fiq
ue

 
U.

 Ah
me

d 
Fe

as
ibi

lity
 st

ud
y u

nd
ert

ak
en

 to
 de

ter
mi

ne
 po

ten
tia

l fo
r s

wim
mi

ng
 po

ol 
to 

be
 lo

ca
ted

 at
 Jo

hn
 O

rw
ell

 ce
ntr

e b
y J

an
ua

ry 
20

09
 

Str
ate

gy
 ap

pro
ve

d  
for

 pu
bli

c c
on

su
lta

tio
n b

y N
ov

em
be

r 2
00

8 
De

ve
lop

 a 
Pla

yin
g P

itc
h S

tra
teg

y f
or 

the
 Bo

rou
gh

 
Pa

ul 
Ma

rtin
dil

l, H
ea

d o
f 

Cu
ltu

ral
 Se

rvi
ce

s 
Le

ad
 M

em
be

r: C
llr 

Ro
fiq

ue
 

U.
 Ah

me
d 

Str
ate

gy
 fin

ali
se

d b
y M

arc
h 2

00
9 

He
rita

ge
 Lo

tte
ry 

Fu
nd

 de
cis

ion
 on

 su
pp

ort
 fo

r p
rog

res
s t

o P
ha

se
 2 

 by
 

Se
pte

mb
er 

20
08

 
Co

mp
let

e m
as

ter
 pl

an
nin

g a
nd

 op
tio

ns
 

pri
ori

tis
ati

on
 fo

r V
ict

ori
a p

ark
 H

eri
tag

e 
Lo

tte
ry 

bid
 

Pa
ul 

Ma
rtin

dil
l, H

ea
d o

f 
Cu

ltu
ral

 Se
rvi

ce
s 

Le
ad

 M
em

be
r: C

llr 
Ro

fiq
ue

 
U.

 Ah
me

d 
De

tai
led

 sc
he

me
 de

sig
n c

om
ple

ted
 by

 O
cto

be
r 2

00
8 

Pr
oje

ct 
Sc

op
e a

gre
ed

 by
 Se

pte
mb

er 
20

08
 

Co
ns

ult
ati

on
 by

 Ja
nu

ary
 20

09
 

De
ve

lop
 a 

Pu
bli

c A
rts

 St
rat

eg
y 

Pa
ul 

Ma
rtin

dil
l, H

ea
d o

f 
Cu

ltu
ral

 Se
rvi

ce
s 

Le
ad

 M
em

be
r: C

llr 
Ro

fiq
ue

 
U.

 Ah
me

d 
Str

ate
gy

 co
mp

let
ed

 by
 M

arc
h 2

00
9  

 
Bo

rou
gh

-w
ide

 To
wn

 C
en

tre
 st

rat
eg

y a
nd

 ac
tio

n p
lan

s c
om

ple
ted

 by
 

De
ce

mb
er 

20
08

 
De

ve
lop

 Bo
rou

gh
-w

ide
 To

wn
 C

en
tre

 
str

ate
gy

 
Ow

en
 W

ha
lle

y, 
He

ad
 of

 
Ma

jor
 Pr

oje
ct 

De
ve

lop
me

nt 
Le

ad
 M

em
be

r: C
llr 

Oh
id 

Ah
me

d 
La

un
ch

 R
om

an
 R

oa
d T

ow
n C

en
tre

 Im
ple

me
nta

tio
n P

lan
 by

 Se
pte

mb
er 

20
08

 
Pr

og
res

s t
he

 H
igh

 St
ree

t 2
01

2 c
on

ce
pt 

inc
lud

ing
 pu

bli
c r

ea
lm

 im
pro

ve
me

nts
, 

im
pro

ve
d p

rov
isio

n f
or 

pe
de

str
ian

s 
red

uc
tio

ns
 in

 st
ree

t c
lut

ter
 an

d 
ac

ce
ss

ibi
lity

 im
pro

ve
me

nts
 

Nic
k S

ma
les

, H
ea

d o
f 

Ol
ym

pic
 an

d P
ara

lym
pic

 
Ga

me
s 

Le
ad

 M
em

be
r: C

llr 
Lu

tfu
r 

Ra
hm

an
 

Vis
ion

 st
ud

y c
om

ple
ted

 by
 Se

pte
mb

er 
20

08
 

Page 179



Str
ate

gic
 Pl

an
 20

08
/09

 
Ac

tio
n P

lan
  

 22
 

     
Th
em

e 
2. 

 A
 G
rea

t P
lac

e t
o L

ive
 

Pr
ior

ity
  

2.4
 I
mp

ro
ve
 th

e e
nv
iro

nm
en
t a
nd
 ta
ck
le 
cli
ma

te 
ch
an
ge
  

Ob
jec

tiv
e 

2.4
.1 

 R
ed

uc
ing

 en
erg

y u
se

 an
d u

sin
g m

ore
 re

ne
wa

ble
 en

erg
y s

ou
rce

s 
2.4

.2 
 Fo

cu
sin

g o
n r

eu
sin

g w
he

rev
er 

po
ss

ibl
e a

nd
 re

cy
clin

g m
ore

 
2.4

.3 
 Ad

ap
tin

g o
ur 

bu
ilt 

en
vir

on
me

nt 
to 

co
pe

 w
ith

 th
e c

ha
ng

ing
 cl

im
ate

 an
d w

ea
the

r p
att

ern
s 

Ke
y I
nit

iat
ive

s 
Le
ad
s 

Ke
y M

ile
sto

ne
s  

Pr
oc

ure
me

nt 
of 

int
eg

rat
ed

 re
cy

clin
g c

on
tra

ct 
Ap

ril 
20

08
 

Re
cy

clin
g I

mp
rov

em
en

t P
lan

 fo
r T

ow
er 

Ha
ml

ets
 ap

pro
ve

d O
cto

be
r 

20
08

 
De

ve
lop

 an
d i

mp
lem

en
t th

e R
ec

yc
lin

g 
Im

pro
ve

me
nt 

Pla
n  

He
ath

er 
Bo

nfi
eld

, In
ter

im
 

He
ad

 of
 Pu

bli
c R

ea
lm

 
Le

ad
 M

em
be

r: C
llr 

Ab
da

l 
Ull

ah
 

Re
vis

ed
 re

cy
clin

g s
ch

em
e a

pp
rov

ed
 O

cto
be

r 2
00

8 
De

ve
lop

 th
e M

un
icip

al 
W

as
te 

Str
ate

gy
  

He
ath

er 
Bo

nfi
eld

, In
ter

im
 

He
ad

 of
 Pu

bli
c R

ea
lm

 
Le

ad
 M

em
be

r: C
llr 

Ab
da

l 
Ull

ah
 

Mu
nic

ipa
l W

as
te 

Ma
na

ge
me

nt 
Str

ate
gy

 R
ep

ort
 ag

ree
d O

cto
be

r 2
00

8 

Pr
oje

ct 
sc

op
ed

 Se
pte

mb
er 

by
 20

08
 

Dr
aft

 M
an

ag
em

en
t P

lan
 by

 O
cto

be
r 2

00
8 

Pr
ep

are
 a 

Pu
bli

c R
ea

lm
 M

an
ag

em
en

t 
Pla

n  
to 

im
pro

ve
 th

e c
oo

rdi
na

tio
n o

f  
en

vir
on

me
nta

l s
erv

ice
s a

nd
 be

tte
r 

tar
ge

t s
ca

rce
 re

so
urc

es
 

He
ath

er 
Bo

nfi
eld

, In
ter

im
 

He
ad

 of
 Pu

bli
c R

ea
lm

 
Le

ad
 M

em
be

r: C
llr 

Ab
da

l 
Ull

ah
 

Pla
n f

ina
lise

d  
by

 Ja
nu

ary
 20

09
 

Pr
oje

ct 
Bo

ard
 in

 pl
ac

e A
pri

l 2
00

8 
Ou

tlin
e I

mp
rov

em
en

t P
lan

 by
 M

ay
 20

08
  

Pr
ep

are
 an

d i
mp

lem
en

t a
 Pu

bli
c R

ea
lm

 
Cle

an
lin

es
s I

mp
rov

em
en

t P
lan

 
He

ath
er 

Bo
nfi

eld
, In

ter
im

 
He

ad
 of

 Pu
bli

c R
ea

lm
   

Le
ad

 M
em

be
r: C

llr 
Ab

da
l 

Ull
ah

 
Fin

al 
de

tai
led

 im
pro

ve
me

nt 
pla

n c
om

ple
ted

 by
 Ju

ly 
20

08
 

 Page 180



Str
ate

gic
 Pl

an
 20

08
/09

 
Ac

tio
n P

lan
  

 23
 

     A 
Pr
os
pe
ro
us
 C
om

mu
nit

y  

W
e w

an
t to

 bu
ild

 on
 a 

str
on

g l
oc

al 
ec

on
om

y a
nd

 bu
sin

es
s g

row
th,

 to
 en

su
re 

tha
t w

e c
rea

te 
pro

sp
ero

us
 co

mm
un

itie
s a

cro
ss

 th
e b

oro
ug

h a
nd

 fo
r a

ll o
ur 

res
ide

nts
. A

 ke
y p

rio
rity

 is
 to

 en
su

re 
tha

t lo
ca

l p
eo

ple
 ha

ve
 ac

ce
ss

 to
 lif

elo
ng

 le
arn

ing
 op

po
rtu

nit
ies

 th
rou

gh
 hi

gh
 qu

ali
ty 

ed
uc

ati
on

 av
ail

ab
le 

for
 re

sid
en

ts 
of 

all
 

ag
es

.  W
e w

ill a
lso

 he
lp 

pe
op

le 
to 

co
nfr

on
t th

e m
an

y d
iffe

ren
t c

au
se

s o
f jo

ble
ss

ne
ss

 an
d i

mp
rov

e s
kill

s a
nd

 th
e e

mp
loy

me
nt 

rat
e i

n t
he

 bo
rou

gh
. In

 ad
dit

ion
 w

e 
wil

l e
nc

ou
rag

e e
nte

rpr
ise

 an
d f

os
ter

ing
 ne

w 
ind

us
trie

s 
Th

is 
ac

tio
n p

lan
 id

en
tifi

es
 ou

r a
cti

vit
ies

 ov
er 

the
 co

mi
ng

 ye
ar.

 In
 th

e t
hre

e y
ea

rs 
to 

20
11

, w
e a

lso
 pl

an
 to

: 
 

• 
Inv

es
t h

ea
vily

 in
 th

e u
nd

er 
5s

 to
 en

su
re 

the
 be

st 
sta

rt i
n l

ife
 in

 te
rm

s o
f s

ch
oo

lin
g 

• 
De

ve
lop

 yo
un

g p
eo

ple
’s 

em
plo

ya
bil

ity
 sk

ills
 th

rou
gh

 ap
pre

nti
ce

sh
ips

 an
d v

oc
ati

on
al 

stu
die

s 
• 

De
ve

lop
 a 

ne
w 

Ch
ild

ren
 an

d Y
ou

ng
 Pe

op
le’

s P
lan

 to
 re

sp
on

d t
o t

he
 ne

ed
s a

na
lys

is 
to 

be
 un

de
rta

ke
n t

his
 ye

ar 
• 

En
su

re 
loc

al 
res

ide
nts

 an
d b

us
ine

ss
es

 ca
n t

ak
e a

dv
an

tag
e o

f th
e j

ob
s a

nd
 co

mm
erc

ial
 op

po
rtu

nit
ies

 of
 th

e 2
01

2 O
lym

pic
s a

nd
 Pa

ral
ym

pic
s 

• 
Fo

cu
s o

n  
tra

ns
for

mi
ng

 th
e o

pp
ort

un
itie

s a
nd

 th
e s

up
po

rt a
va

ila
ble

 to
 pe

op
le 

wit
h d

isa
bil

itie
s a

nd
 pe

op
le 

wit
h m

en
tal

 he
alt

h d
iffi

cu
ltie

s, 
to 

en
ab

le 
the

m 
to 

tak
e t

he
ir r

igh
tfu

l p
lac

e i
n t

he
 em

plo
ym

en
t m

ark
et 

• 
De

ve
lop

 sp
ec

ific
 su

pp
ort

 an
d d

ev
elo

pm
en

t p
rog

ram
me

s f
or 

the
 cu

ltu
ral

 in
du

str
ies

 th
rou

gh
 th

e i
mp

lem
en

tat
ion

 of
 th

e c
ult

ura
l in

du
str

ies
 st

rat
eg

y 
• 

W
ork

 w
ith

 ou
r L

eis
ure

 an
d P

ub
lic 

Re
alm

 co
ntr

ac
tor

s t
o i

nc
rea

se
 op

po
rtu

nit
ies

 fo
r lo

ca
l p

eo
ple

 to
 ac

ce
ss

 tra
ini

ng
 an

d j
ob

 op
po

rtu
nit

ies
.   

  
 W

e w
ill u

se
 th

e f
oll

ow
ing

 sp
ec

ific
 m

ea
su

res
 to

 m
ea

su
re 

ou
r p

rog
res

s t
ow

ard
s a

ch
iev

ing
 a 

Pr
os

pe
rou

s C
om

mu
nit

y. 
 

 
Pe
rfo

rm
an
ce
 In
dic

ato
rs 

 
20
06
/07

 To
p 

Qu
art

ile
s: 

-
 

Lo
nd
on
 

-
 

En
gla

nd
 

Ou
ttu

rn
 

20
06
/07

 
Ou

ttu
rn
 

20
07
/08

  
Ta
rg
et 

20
08
/09

 
Ta
rg
et 

20
09
/10

 
Ta
rg
et 

20
10
/11

 
Su

pp
or
t li
fel
on
g l
ea
rn
ing

 op
po
rtu

nit
ies

 fo
r a
ll 

SI2
5 

(LA
A 
sta

t) N
I72

 Ac
hie

ve
me

nt 
of 

at 
lea

st 
78

 
po

int
s a

cro
ss

 th
e E

arl
y Y

ea
rs 

Fo
un

da
tio

n 
Sta

ge
 w

ith
 at

 le
as

t 6
 in

 ea
ch

 of
 th

e s
ca

les
 in

 
Pe

rso
na

l S
oc

ial
 an

d E
mo

tio
na

l 
De

ve
lop

me
nt 

an
d C

om
mu

nic
ati

on
, L

an
gu

ag
e 

an
d L

ite
rac

y 

 

37
.6 

39
.1 

 
 

 

SI2
6 

(LA
A 
sta

t) N
I76

: A
ch

iev
em

en
t a

t le
ve

l 4
 or

 
ab

ov
e i

n b
oth

 En
gli

sh
 an

d M
ath

s a
t K

S2
 

(Fl
oo

r) 
 

 
 

 
 

 

SI2
7 

(LA
A 
sta

t) N
I77

: A
ch

iev
em

en
t a

t le
ve

l 5
 or

 
ab

ov
e i

n b
oth

 En
gli

sh
 an

d M
ath

s a
t K

S3
 

(Fl
oo

r) 
 

 
 

 
 

 

Page 181



Str
ate

gic
 Pl

an
 20

08
/09

 
Ac

tio
n P

lan
  

 24
 

    

 
Pe
rfo

rm
an
ce
 In
dic

ato
rs 

 
20
06
/07

 To
p 

Qu
art

ile
s: 

-
 

Lo
nd
on
 

-
 

En
gla

nd
 

Ou
ttu

rn
 

20
06
/07

 
Ou

ttu
rn
 

20
07
/08

  
Ta
rg
et 

20
08
/09

 
Ta
rg
et 

20
09
/10

 
Ta
rg
et 

20
10
/11

 

SI2
8 

(LA
A 
sta

t) N
I 7

8: 
Ac

hie
ve

me
nt 

of 
5 o

r m
ore

 
A*

-C
 gr

ad
es

 at
 G

CS
E a

nd
 eq

uiv
ale

nt 
inc

lud
ing

 
GC

SE
s i

n E
ng

lish
 an

d M
ath

s (
Flo

or)
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

SI2
9 

(LA
A 
sta

t) N
I 8

7: 
Se

co
nd

ary
 sc

ho
ol 

pe
rsi

ste
nt 

ab
se

nc
e r

ate
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

SI3
0 

(LA
A 
sta

t) N
I 1

01
: C

hil
dre

n  
in 

ca
re 

ac
hie

vin
g 

5 A
*-C

 G
CS

Es
 (o

r e
qu

iva
len

t) a
t K

ey
 St

ag
e 4

 
(in

clu
din

g E
ng

lish
 an

d M
ath

s) 
Ne

w 
PI 

 
 

AW
AIT

IN
G 

DA
TA

 SE
TS

 O
W

NE
D 

BY
 D

CF
S/D

IU
S T

O 
BE

 PU
BL

ISH
ED

 
SO

 TA
RG

ET
S C

AN
 BE

 SE
T 

SI3
1 

(LA
A)

 N
I 7

9: 
Ac

hie
ve

me
nt 

of 
a l

ev
el 

2 
qu

ali
fic

ati
on

 by
 ag

e 1
9 

 
58

% 
 

67
% 

69
.50

% 
71

.80
% 

SI3
2 

(LA
A)

 N
I 8

0: 
Ac

hie
ve

me
nt 

of 
a l

ev
el 

3 
qu

ali
fic

ati
on

 by
 ag

e 1
9 

 
37

% 
 

37
.90

% 
69

.50
% 

71
.80

% 
SI3

3 
(LA

A)
 N

I 1
06

: Y
ou

ng
 pe

op
le 

fro
m 

low
 in

co
me

 
ba

ck
gro

un
ds

 pr
og

res
sin

g t
o h

igh
er 

ed
uc

ati
on

 
 

 
 

Ta
rge

t s
ett

ing
 de

fer
red

 
SI3

4 
(LA

A)
 N

I 1
10

: Y
ou

ng
 pe

op
le’

s p
art

icip
ati

on
 in

 
po

sit
ive

 ac
tiv

itie
s 

Ne
w 
PI 

 
 

Ta
rge

t s
ett

ing
 de

fer
red

 
Re

du
ce
 w
or
kle

ss
ne
ss
 

SI3
5 

(LA
A)

 N
I 1

51
: E

mp
loy

me
nt 

rat
e 

Ne
w 
PI 

 
 

 
 

 
SI3

6 
(LA

A)
 N

I 1
52

: W
ork

ing
 ag

e p
eo

ple
 on

 ou
t o

f 
wo

rk 
be

ne
fits

 
Re

ca
lcu

lat
ed

 PI
 

 
 

 
 

 

SI3
7 

(LA
A)

 N
I 1

53
: W

ork
ing

 ag
e p

eo
ple

 cl
aim

ing
 

ou
t o

f w
ork

 be
ne

fits
 in

 th
e w

ors
t p

erf
orm

ing
 

ne
igh

bo
urh

oo
ds

 
Ne

w 
PI 

 
 

 
 

 
SI3

8 
(LA

A)
 N

I 1
17

: 1
6-1

8 y
ea

r o
lds

 w
ho

 ar
e N

EE
T 

Re
ca

lcu
lat

ed
 PI

 
10

.9%
 

 
7%

 
6.2

5%
 

6%
 

SI3
9 

(LA
A)

 N
I 1

46
: A

du
lts

 w
ith

 le
arn

ing
 di

sa
bil

itie
s 

in 
em

plo
ym

en
t 

Ne
w 
PI 

46
 pa

id 
em

plo
ym

en
t /  

24
 un

pa
id 

 
Ta

rge
t s

ett
ing

 de
fer

red
 

SI4
0 

(LA
A)

 N
I 1

50
: A

du
lts

 in
 co

nta
ct 

wit
h s

ec
on

da
ry 

me
nta

l h
ea

lth
 se

rvi
ce

s i
n e

mp
loy

me
nt 

Ne
w 
PI 

Es
tim

ate
 

5.1
5%

 
 

 
Ta

rge
t s

ett
ing

 de
fer

red
 

SI4
1 

(LA
A)

 N
I 1

16
: P

rop
ort

ion
 of

 ch
ild

ren
 in

 ch
ild

 
po

ve
rty

 
Ne

w 
PI 

 
 

 
 

 

Page 182



Str
ate

gic
 Pl

an
 20

08
/09

 
Ac

tio
n P

lan
  

 25
 

     
Th
em

e 
3. 
A 
Pr
os
pe
ro
us
 C
om

mu
nit

y  
Pr
ior

ity
  

3.1
 Su

pp
or
t li
fel
on
g l
ea
rn
ing

 op
po
rtu

nit
ies

 fo
r a
ll  

Ob
jec

tiv
e 

3.1
.1 

Inv
es

tin
g i

n t
he

 un
de

r 5
s w

ho
se

 de
ve

lop
me

nt 
pro

vid
es

 th
e b

es
t p

os
sib

le 
fou

nd
ati

on
 fo

r lo
ng

 te
rm

 su
cc

es
s 

3.1
.2 

Pr
ov

idi
ng

 hi
gh

 qu
ali

ty 
sc

ho
ols

, s
o t

ha
t y

ou
ng

 pe
op

le 
ac

qu
ire

 th
e k

no
wle

dg
e a

nd
 sk

ills
 th

ey
 ne

ed
 to

 fu
lfil 

the
ir f

ull
 po

ten
tia

l 
3.1

.3 
Pr

ov
idi

ng
 co

nti
nu

ou
s l

ea
rni

ng
 op

po
rtu

nit
ies

, s
o e

ve
ryo

ne
 ca

n l
ea

rn 
ba

sic
 an

d n
ew

 sk
ills

 at
 an

y a
ge

  
Ke

y I
nit

iat
ive

s 
Le
ad
s 

Ke
y M

ile
sto

ne
s  

Ini
tia

l s
co

pin
g c

om
ple

ted
 M

ay
 20

08
 

Co
ns

ult
ati

on
 co

mp
let

ed
 Se

pte
mb

er 
20

08
 

Co
mp

let
e a

 re
fre

sh
 of

 th
e I

de
a S

tor
e 

Str
ate

gy
 

Ro
bin

 Be
att

ie,
 H

ea
d o

f 
Str

ate
gy

 an
d P

rog
ram

me
s 

Le
ad

 M
em

be
r: C

llr 
Ab

da
l 

Ull
ah
 

Re
po

rt f
ina

lise
d J

an
ua

ry 
20

08
. 

Ea
rly

 Ye
ars

 Fo
un

da
tio

n S
tag

e t
rai

nin
g p

rog
ram

me
 in

 pl
ac

e e
ac

h t
erm

 
for

 se
ttin

gs
 an

d p
rov

ide
rs 

An
nu

al 
Pr

og
ram

me
 pu

bli
sh

ed
 Ju

ly 
20

08
 

Se
ttin

gs
 Su

pp
ort

 Ev
alu

ati
on

 re
vie

we
d i

n l
ine

 w
ith

 th
e E

arl
y Y

ea
rs 

Fo
un

da
tio

n S
tag

e b
y e

nd
 Ju

ly 
20

08
 

En
su

re 
all

 ch
ild

ren
 ha

ve
 th

e 
op

po
rtu

nit
y t

o a
tte

nd
 hi

gh
 qu

ali
ty 

ea
rly

 
ed

uc
ati

on
 pr

ov
isio

n 
He

len
 Je

nn
er,

 H
ea

d o
f E

arl
y 

Ye
ars

 C
hil

dre
n &

 Le
arn

ing
 

Le
ad

 M
em

be
r: C

llr 
Cla

ir 
Ha

wk
ins

 
Mo

nit
or 

att
en

da
nc

e t
o e

ns
ure

 th
at 

all
 se

ttin
gs

 ha
ve

 re
ce

ive
d t

rai
nin

g t
o 

pre
pa

re 
the

m 
for

 th
e i

mp
lem

en
tat

ion
 of

 th
e E

arl
y Y

ea
rs 

Fo
un

da
tio

n 
Sta

ge
 by

 Se
pte

mb
er 

20
08

 
Su

pp
ort

 sc
ho

ols
 w

ith
 id

en
tifi

ca
tio

n o
f p

up
ils 

in 
Y8

 an
d Y

9 u
nli

ke
ly 

to 
ac

hie
ve

 at
tai

nm
en

t le
ve

ls 
wit

ho
ut 

ex
tra

 in
ter

ve
nti

on
 th

rou
gh

 an
aly

sis
 of

 
as

se
ss

me
nt 

da
ta,

 by
 D

ec
em

be
r 2

00
8 

Tra
ini

ng
 pr

ov
ide

d f
or 

sc
ho

ols
 in

 ap
pro

pri
ate

 in
ter

ve
nti

on
 st

rat
eg

ies
 an

d 
ma

ter
ial

s, 
inc

lud
ing

 th
e u

se
 of

 St
ud

y P
lus

 st
rat

eg
y, 

by
 M

arc
h 2

00
9 

Ta
rge

t p
up

ils 
at 

ris
k o

f n
ot 

ac
hie

vin
g 

lev
el 

5 i
n b

oth
 En

gli
sh

 an
d 

ma
the

ma
tic

s b
y a

ge
 14

, a
nd

 th
os

e a
t 

ris
k o

f n
ot 

ac
hie

vin
g A

-C
 gr

ad
e o

r 
be

tte
r in

 bo
th 

En
gli

sh
 an

d m
ath

em
ati

cs
 

by
 ag

e 1
6 b

ut 
wh

os
e p

rio
r a

tta
inm

en
t 

su
gg

es
ts 

tha
t th

ey
 sh

ou
ld 

be
 ca

pa
ble

 
of 

ac
hie

ve
me

nt 
at 

thi
s l

ev
el.

 

Ca
rm

el 
Lit

tle
ton

, H
ea

d o
f 

Yo
un

g P
eo

ple
 an

d L
ea

rni
ng

 
Le

ad
 M

em
be

r: C
llr 

Cla
ir 

Ha
wk

ins
 

Tra
ini

ng
 pr

ov
ide

d f
or 

sc
ho

ols
 w

ith
 Q

ue
sti

on
 le

ve
l A

na
lys

is 
an

d 
ap

pro
pri

ate
 in

ter
ve

nti
on

 st
rat

eg
ies

/m
ate

ria
ls 

to 
be

 us
ed

 w
ith

 id
en

tifi
ed

 
pu

pil
s, 

by
 M

arc
h 2

00
9 

Co
mp

let
e c

on
su

lta
tio

n o
n v

isio
n f

or 
pri

ma
ry 

sc
ho

ol 
inv

es
tm

en
t b

y A
pri

l 
20

08
   

La
un

ch
 pr

im
ary

 st
rat

eg
y f

or 
ch

an
ge

 (p
rim

ary
 sc

ho
ol 

ca
pit

al 
im

pro
ve

me
nt 

pro
gra

mm
e) 

by
 Ju

ne
 20

08
 

Im
ple

me
nt 

sc
ho

ol 
ca

pit
al 

im
pro

ve
me

nt 
pro

gra
mm

es
 

Iso
be

l C
att

erm
ole

, H
ea

d o
f 

Re
so

urc
es

 an
d A

nn
e 

Su
tcl

iffe
, H

ea
d o

f B
uil

din
g 

Sc
ho

ols
 fo

r th
e F

utu
re 

 
Le

ad
 M

em
be

r: C
llr 

Cla
ir 

Ha
wk

ins
 

Se
lec

t p
ref

err
ed

 bi
dd

er 
for

 Bu
ild

ing
 Sc

ho
ols

 fo
r th

e F
utu

re 
(S

ec
on

da
ry 

sc
ho

ol 
ca

pit
al 

im
pro

ve
me

nt 
pro

gra
mm

e) 
by

 Ju
ly 

20
08

 
Im

ple
me

nt 
ea

rly
 id

en
tifi

ca
tio

n o
f y

ou
ng

 pe
op

le 
at 

ris
k o

f b
ec

om
ing

 
NE

ET
 by

 N
ov

em
be

r 2
00

8 
Re

du
ce

 th
e n

um
be

r o
f y

ou
ng

 pe
op

le 
wh

o a
re 

no
t in

 em
plo

ym
en

t, e
du

ca
tio

n 
or 

tra
ini

ng
 (N

EE
T) 

an
d c

om
mi

ss
ion

 a 
ran

ge
 of

 “ta
ste

r” a
nd

 in
tro

du
cto

ry 

Ma
ry 

Du
rki

n, 
He

ad
 of

 Yo
uth

 
an

d C
om

mu
nit

y L
ea

rni
ng

 
Le

ad
 M

em
be

r: C
llr 

Cla
ir 

Ha
wk

ins
 

Co
mm

iss
ion

 a 
ran

ge
 of

 “ta
ste

r” a
nd

 in
tro

du
cto

ry 
ac

tiv
itie

s t
o e

ng
ag

e 
yo

un
g p

eo
ple

 no
t in

 em
plo

ym
en

t, e
du

ca
tio

n o
r tr

ain
ing

 (N
EE

T) 
an

d 

Page 183



Str
ate

gic
 Pl

an
 20

08
/09

 
Ac

tio
n P

lan
  

 26
 

    

Th
em

e 
3. 
A 
Pr
os
pe
ro
us
 C
om

mu
nit

y  
Pr
ior

ity
  

3.1
 Su

pp
or
t li
fel
on
g l
ea
rn
ing

 op
po
rtu

nit
ies

 fo
r a
ll  

Ob
jec

tiv
e 

3.1
.1 

Inv
es

tin
g i

n t
he

 un
de

r 5
s w

ho
se

 de
ve

lop
me

nt 
pro

vid
es

 th
e b

es
t p

os
sib

le 
fou

nd
ati

on
 fo

r lo
ng

 te
rm

 su
cc

es
s 

3.1
.2 

Pr
ov

idi
ng

 hi
gh

 qu
ali

ty 
sc

ho
ols

, s
o t

ha
t y

ou
ng

 pe
op

le 
ac

qu
ire

 th
e k

no
wle

dg
e a

nd
 sk

ills
 th

ey
 ne

ed
 to

 fu
lfil 

the
ir f

ull
 po

ten
tia

l 
3.1

.3 
Pr

ov
idi

ng
 co

nti
nu

ou
s l

ea
rni

ng
 op

po
rtu

nit
ies

, s
o e

ve
ryo

ne
 ca

n l
ea

rn 
ba

sic
 an

d n
ew

 sk
ills

 at
 an

y a
ge

  
Ke

y I
nit

iat
ive

s 
Le
ad
s 

Ke
y M

ile
sto

ne
s  

ac
tiv

itie
s t

o e
ng

ag
e y

ou
ng

 pe
op

le 
no

t 
in 

em
plo

ym
en

t, e
du

ca
tio

n o
r tr

ain
ing

 
(N

EE
T) 

an
d o

ffe
r 2

00
+ y

ou
ng

 pe
op

le 
su

pp
ort

 th
rou

gh
 N

ew
 St

art
 

pro
gra

mm
es

. 

 
off

er 
20

0+
 yo

un
g p

eo
ple

 su
pp

ort
 th

rou
gh

 N
ew

 St
art

 pr
og

ram
me

s b
y 

Ma
rch

 20
09

 

De
ve

lop
 a 

qu
ali

ty 
as

su
ran

ce
 sy

ste
m 

for
 pe

rso
na

l e
du

ca
tio

n p
lan

s b
y 

Ap
ril 

20
08

 
De

ve
lop

 a 
pro

toc
ol 

to 
en

su
re 

pri
ori

ty 
sc

ho
ol 

ad
mi

ss
ion

s f
or 

loo
ke

d 
aft

er 
ch

ild
ren

 re
sid

en
t in

 ot
he

r lo
ca

l a
uth

ori
ty 

are
as

 by
 Se

pte
mb

er 
20

08
 

Im
ple

me
nt 

ac
tio

n p
lan

 to
 im

pro
ve

 
ed

uc
ati

on
al 

ou
tco

me
s f

or 
loo

ke
d a

fte
r 

ch
ild

ren
 

Ka
mi

ni 
Ra

mb
ell

as
, H

ea
d o

f 
Ch

ild
ren

’s 
So

cia
l C

are
 

Le
ad

 M
em

be
r: C

llr 
Cla

ir 
Ha

wk
ins

 
Re

vie
w 

pro
gre

ss
 an

d p
red

ict
ion

s f
or 

ev
ery

 lo
ok

ed
 af

ter
 ch

ild
 in

 ye
ars

 2 
an

d 1
1 b

y N
ov

em
be

r 2
00

8 
De

ve
lop

 a 
co

mm
un

ica
tio

ns
 st

rat
eg

y a
nd

 fra
me

wo
rk 

Ap
ril 

20
08

  
 De

ve
lop

 a 
co

mm
un

ica
tio

n p
lan

 fo
r a

ll s
tak

eh
old

ers
 Ju

ly 
20

08
 

 

De
ve

lop
 ne

w 
wa

ys
 of

 co
mm

un
ica

tio
n 

an
d e

ng
ag

em
en

t w
ith

 ch
ild

ren
 an

d 
yo

un
g p

eo
ple

, p
are

nts
, fa

mi
lie

s a
nd

 
pa

rtn
ers

.  U
se

 th
is 

to 
pro

mo
te 

tak
e-u

p 
an

d a
cc

es
s t

o s
erv

ice
s, 

an
d i

nfo
rm

 
se

rvi
ce

 de
sig

n a
nd

 de
live

ry.
   

Na
tal

ie 
Pa

ris
h, 

He
ad

 of
 

Str
ate

gy
, P

art
ne

rsh
ips

 an
d 

Pe
rfo

rm
an

ce
 

Le
ad

 M
em

be
r: C

llr 
Cla

ir 
Ha

wk
ins

 
De

ve
lop

 a 
dra

ft e
ng

ag
em

en
t a

nd
 co

mm
iss

ion
ing

 st
rat

eg
y f

or 
ch

ild
ren

 
& y

ou
ng

 pe
op

le 
by

 N
ov

em
be

r 2
00

8 
Re

de
ve

lop
ed

 AM
P w

eb
sit

e f
or 

ch
ild

ren
 an

d y
ou

ng
 pe

op
le 

lau
nc

he
d b

y 
Ju

ne
 20

08
. 

Ov
er 

50
00

 yo
un

g p
eo

ple
 vo

te 
in 

the
 Yo

un
g M

ay
or 

ele
cti

on
s b

y 
Fe

bru
ary

 20
09

  

Inc
rea

se
 th

e p
art

icip
ati

on
 of

 ch
ild

ren
 & 

yo
un

g p
eo

ple
 in

 de
cis

ion
 m

ak
ing

 an
d 

co
mm

un
ity

 lif
e 

Ma
ry 

Du
rki

n, 
He

ad
 of

 Yo
uth

 
an

d C
om

mu
nit

y L
ea

rni
ng

 
Le

ad
 M

em
be

r: C
llr 

Cla
ir 

Ha
wk

ins
 

Ov
er 

18
0 y

ou
ng

 pe
op

le 
en

ga
ge

d i
n t

he
 To

we
r H

am
let

s Y
ou

th 
Pa

rtn
ers

hip
, th

rou
gh

 ac
tiv

itie
s h

eld
 in

 ev
ery

 LA
P a

rea
 by

 M
arc

h 2
00

9 
 Page 184



Str
ate

gic
 Pl

an
 20

08
/09

 
Ac

tio
n P

lan
  

 27
 

     
Th
em

e 
3. 
A 
Pr
os
pe
ro
us
 C
om

mu
nit

y 
Pr
ior

ity
  

3.2
 R
ed
uc
e w

or
kle

ss
ne
ss
 

Ob
jec

tiv
e 

3.2
.1 

He
lpi

ng
 fa

mi
lie

s e
sc

ap
e p

ov
ert

y, 
by

 pr
ov

idi
ng

 em
plo

ym
en

t s
up

po
rt a

nd
 ad

vic
e o

n d
eb

t m
an

ag
em

en
t  

3.2
.2 

Ide
nti

fyi
ng

 an
d r

em
ov

ing
 ba

rrie
rs 

to 
em

plo
ym

en
t fo

r ta
rge

t g
rou

ps
  

3.2
.3 

He
lpi

ng
 pe

op
le 

to 
ge

t e
mp

loy
me

nt 
by

 en
su

rin
g t

he
re 

is 
su

pp
ort

 an
d t

rai
nin

g b
efo

re 
an

d a
fte

r th
ey

 ge
t a

 jo
b 

Ke
y I
nit

iat
ive

s 
Le
ad
s 

Ke
y M

ile
sto

ne
s  

Ov
era

rch
ing

 em
plo

ym
en

t s
tra

teg
y f

or 
the

 bo
rou

gh
 fo

r v
uln

era
ble

 
ad

ult
s a

nd
 fo

r th
os

e w
ith

 di
sa

bil
itie

s d
ev

elo
pe

d b
y J

uly
 20

08
 

Inc
rea

se
d n

um
be

rs 
ca

se
 m

an
ag

ed
 by

 se
rvi

ce
s r

efe
rre

d t
o 

em
plo

ym
en

t p
roj

ec
ts 

(ov
er 

07
-08

 nu
mb

ers
) b

y 5
0%

 by
 M

arc
h 2

00
9 

Inc
rea

se
 em

plo
ym

en
t o

pp
ort

un
itie

s f
or 

vu
lne

rab
le 

pe
op

le 
De

bo
rah

 C
oh

en
 

He
ad

 of
 D

isa
bil

ity
 an

d H
ea

lth
 

Le
ad

 M
em

be
r: C

llr 
An

wa
ra 

Ali
 

 
Inc

rea
se

 pr
op

ort
ion

 of
 ad

ult
s i

n c
on

tac
t w

ith
 se

co
nd

ary
 m

en
tal

 he
alt

h 
se

rvi
ce

s i
n e

mp
loy

me
nt 

by
 7%

 by
 M

arc
h 2

00
9. 

Re
vie

w 
ex

ist
ing

 em
plo

ym
en

t p
roj

ec
ts 

op
era

tin
g i

n C
hil

dre
n’s

 C
en

tre
s 

by
 M

ay
 20

08
. 

W
ork

 th
rou

gh
 ou

r n
etw

ork
 of

 C
hil

dre
n’s

 
Ce

ntr
es

 an
d c

hil
dc

are
 pr

ov
ide

rs 
to 

su
pp

ort
 pa

ren
ts 

int
o w

ork
.  A

ud
it 

cu
rre

nt 
ch

ild
ca

re 
pro

vis
ion

 an
d f

ull
 an

d 
pa

rt-t
im

e p
lac

es
 in

 nu
rse

ry 
cla

ss
es

/ 
sc

ho
ols

 an
d w

ork
 w

ith
 th

e F
ina

nc
ial

 
Se

rvi
ce

s A
uth

ori
ty 

to 
pil

ot 
a f

ina
nc

ial
 

gu
ide

 to
 su

pp
ort

 pa
ren

ts 
wh

o w
ish

 to
 

ret
urn

 to
 w

ork
.  

He
len

 Je
nn

er,
 H

ea
d o

f E
arl

y 
Ye

ars
 C

hil
dre

n &
 Le

arn
ing

 
Le

ad
 M

em
be

r: C
llr 

Cla
ir 

Ha
wk

ins
 

De
ve

lop
 a 

str
ate

gic
 pl

an
 fo

r s
up

po
rtin

g p
are

nts
 in

to 
wo

rk 
thr

ou
gh

 
Ch

ild
ren

’s 
Ce

ntr
es

, b
rin

gin
g t

og
eth

er 
rel

ev
an

t p
art

ne
rs 

an
d f

un
din

g 
str

ea
ms

 by
 Ju

ly 
20

08
 

60
0 w

ork
les

s r
es

ide
nts

 in
to 

em
plo

ym
en

t, 1
00

 fro
m 

wo
rkl

es
s f

am
ilie

s 
by

 M
arc

h 2
00

9 
Ev

alu
ate

 th
e a

cti
vit

ies
 w

ith
in 

the
 pi

lot
 to

 de
ter

mi
ne

 fu
tur

e p
rio

riti
es

 by
 

Ma
rch

 20
09

 

Im
ple

me
nt 

an
d c

om
me

nc
e d

eli
ve

ry 
of 

Cit
y S

tra
teg

y S
ing

le 
Po

int
 of

 Ac
ce

ss
 

pil
ot 

pro
gra

mm
e i

nte
gra

tin
g C

ou
nc

il le
d 

em
plo

ym
en

t a
cti

vit
ies

 an
d a

dv
ice

 in
to 

cu
rre

nt 
Co

un
cil 

ac
tiv

itie
s s

uc
h a

s 
Ex

ten
de

d s
ch

oo
ls 

pro
vis

ion
, C

hil
dre

n’s
 

Ce
ntr

es
, C

om
mu

nit
y H

ub
s a

nd
 Id

ea
s  

Sto
res

. 

Su
e H

ind
s, 

Ac
ce

ss
 to

 
Em

plo
ym

en
t M

an
ag

er 
Le

ad
 M

em
be

r: C
llr 

Ali
bo

r 
Ch

ou
dh

ury
 

Int
eg

rat
ed

 ap
pro

ac
h t

o d
eb

t m
an

ag
em

en
t a

gre
ed

 by
 M

arc
h 2

00
9. 

Em
plo

ym
en

t s
tra

teg
y p

ap
er 

dra
fte

d f
or 

co
ns

ult
ati

on
 by

 Ju
ly 

20
08

   
Up

da
te 

ev
ide

nc
e b

as
e a

nd
 de

ve
lop

 a 
ec

on
om

ic 
de

ve
lop

me
nt 

str
ate

gy
 to

 
be

tte
r in

for
m 

ke
y p

rio
riti

es
 fo

r th
e 

bo
rou

gh
. 

Su
e H

ind
s, 

Ac
ce

ss
 to

 
Em

plo
ym

en
t M

an
ag

er 
Le

ad
 M

em
be

r: C
llr 

Ali
bo

r 
Ch

ou
dh

ury
 

W
ide

r e
co

no
mi

c d
ev

elo
pm

en
t s

tra
teg

y p
ap

er 
dra

fte
d b

y S
ep

t 2
00

8. 

Re
po

rt o
f k

ey
 in

ter
ve

nti
on

s t
o C

PA
G 

in 
Ju

ly 
20

08
 

Page 185



Str
ate

gic
 Pl

an
 20

08
/09

 
Ac

tio
n P

lan
  

 28
 

    

Th
em

e 
3. 
A 
Pr
os
pe
ro
us
 C
om

mu
nit

y 
Pr
ior

ity
  

3.2
 R
ed
uc
e w

or
kle

ss
ne
ss
 

Ob
jec

tiv
e 

3.2
.1 

He
lpi

ng
 fa

mi
lie

s e
sc

ap
e p

ov
ert

y, 
by

 pr
ov

idi
ng

 em
plo

ym
en

t s
up

po
rt a

nd
 ad

vic
e o

n d
eb

t m
an

ag
em

en
t  

3.2
.2 

Ide
nti

fyi
ng

 an
d r

em
ov

ing
 ba

rrie
rs 

to 
em

plo
ym

en
t fo

r ta
rge

t g
rou

ps
  

3.2
.3 

He
lpi

ng
 pe

op
le 

to 
ge

t e
mp

loy
me

nt 
by

 en
su

rin
g t

he
re 

is 
su

pp
ort

 an
d t

rai
nin

g b
efo

re 
an

d a
fte

r th
ey

 ge
t a

 jo
b 

Ke
y I
nit

iat
ive

s 
Le
ad
s 

Ke
y M

ile
sto

ne
s  

Re
po

rt o
f k

ey
 in

ter
ve

nti
on

s t
o C

PA
G 

in 
Ju

ly 
20

08
 

Qu
art

erl
y u

pd
ate

s p
rov

ide
d t

o r
ele

va
nt 

CP
AG

 
Str

ate
gy

 fo
r c

om
mu

nit
y h

ub
s d

ev
elo

pm
en

t a
gre

ed
 by

 O
cto

be
r 2

00
8 

De
ve

lop
 jo

int
 pa

rtn
ers

hip
 pr

og
ram

me
s 

of 
em

plo
ya

bil
ity

 in
ter

ve
nti

on
s t

o 
au

gm
en

t/im
pro

ve
 m

ain
str

ea
m 

pro
vis

ion
  

Su
e H

ind
s, 

Ac
ce

ss
 to

 
Em

plo
ym

en
t M

an
ag

er 
Le

ad
 M

em
be

r: C
llr 

Ali
bo

r 
Ch

ou
dh

ury
 

De
ve

lop
me

nt 
of 

co
ns

tru
cti

on
 re

lat
ed

 re
cru

itm
en

t a
nd

 tra
ini

ng
 ce

ntr
e 

on
 m

ajo
r d

ev
elo

pm
en

t s
ite

 ag
ree

d b
y N

ov
em

be
r 2

00
8 

 Page 186



Str
ate

gic
 Pl

an
 20

08
/09

 
Ac

tio
n P

lan
  

 29
 

     
Th
em

e 
3. 
 A
 Pr

os
pe
ro
us
 C
om

mu
nit

y  
Pr
ior

ity
  

3.3
 Fo

ste
r e

nte
rp
ris

e 
Ob

jec
tiv
e 

3.3
.1 

Pr
ov

idi
ng

 in
ce

nti
ve

s t
ha

t e
nc

ou
rag

e b
oth

 bu
sin

es
s a

nd
 so

cia
l e

ntr
ep

ren
eu

rsh
ip 

3.3
.2 

Ma
xim

isin
g t

he
 op

po
rtu

nit
ies

 fo
r lo

ca
l b

us
ine

ss
es

 to
 be

ne
fit 

fro
m 

ke
y g

row
th 

se
cto

rs,
 an

d t
he

 O
lym

pic
 an

d P
ara

lym
pic

 G
am

es
. 

3.3
.3 

Pr
om

oti
ng

 To
we

r H
am

let
s b

us
ine

ss
es

 an
d e

nc
ou

rag
ing

 gr
ow

th 
an

d t
ou

ris
m,

 w
ith

 pa
rtic

ula
r e

mp
ha

sis
 on

 th
e O

lym
pic

s a
nd

 Pa
ral

ym
pic

s 
 Ke

y I
nit

iat
ive

s 
Le
ad
s 

Ke
y M

ile
sto

ne
s  

Ac
tio

n p
lan

 fo
r e

nte
rpr

ise
 su

pp
ort

, in
clu

din
g s

oc
ial

 en
ter

pri
se

, a
gre

ed
 

by
 Se

pte
mb

er 
20

08
 

Cu
ltu

ral
 in

du
str

ies
 st

rat
eg

y a
gre

ed
 by

 Fe
bru

ary
 20

09
 

W
ork

 w
ith

 ke
y p

art
ne

rs 
to 

de
ve

lop
 a 

co
ord

ina
ted

 ap
pro

ac
h t

o f
ac

ilita
te 

bu
sin

es
s g

row
th 

for
 lo

ca
l S

ME
s 

  

Ja
ck

ie 
Od

un
oy

e, 
He

ad
 of

 
Str

ate
gy

, R
eg

en
era

tio
n a

nd
 

Su
sta

ina
bil

ity
 

Le
ad

 M
em

be
r: C

llr 
Oh

id 
Ah

me
d 

£8
m 

wo
rth

 of
 co

ntr
ac

ts 
se

cu
red

 by
 lo

ca
l S

ME
s t

hro
ug

h t
he

 Ea
st 

Lo
nd

on
 Bu

sin
es

s P
lac

e p
rog

ram
me

 by
 M

arc
h 2

00
9 

Pr
oje

ct 
Sc

op
e A

gre
ed

 by
 Ju

ly 
20

08
 

Co
ns

ult
ati

on
 by

 D
ec

em
be

r 2
00

8 
De

ve
lop

 a 
Cu

ltu
ral

 In
du

str
ies

 St
rat

eg
y 

Pa
ul 

Ma
rtin

dil
l, H

ea
d o

f 
Cu

ltu
ral

 Se
rvi

ce
s 

Le
ad

 M
em

be
r: C

llr 
Ro

fiq
ue

 
U.

 Ah
me

d 
Fin

al 
Dr

aft
 St

rat
eg

y b
y M

arc
h 2

00
8 

5 B
oro

ug
h b

us
ine

ss
 pl

an
 de

ve
lop

ed
 by

 Se
pte

mb
er 

20
08

 
De

ve
lop

 a 
5 B

oro
ug

h s
tra

teg
y t

o u
se

 
the

 O
lym

pic
 G

am
es

 as
 a 

ca
tal

ys
t fo

r 
ec

on
om

ic 
de

ve
lop

me
nt 

as
 fir

st 
ste

p t
o 

de
ve

lop
ing

 a 
su

b-r
eg

ion
al 

pa
rtn

ers
hip

 
in 

res
po

ns
e t

o n
ew

 G
ov

ern
me

nt 
gu

ida
nc

e  

Nic
k S

ma
les

, H
ea

d o
f 

Ol
ym

pic
 an

d P
ara

lym
pic

 
Ga

me
s 

Le
ad

 M
em

be
r: C

llr 
Lu

tfu
r 

Ra
hm

an
 

Int
eg

rat
e i

nto
 re

lev
an

t s
tra

teg
ies

 su
pp

ort
ing

 en
ter

pri
se

 gr
ow

th,
 ta

ck
lin

g 
wo

rkl
es

sn
es

s a
nd

 im
pro

vin
g s

kill
s –

 by
 D

ec
em

be
r 2

00
8 

 
 Page 187



Str
ate

gic
 Pl

an
 20

08
/09

 
Ac

tio
n P

lan
  

 30
 

    A 
Sa
fe 
an
d S

up
po
rti
ve
 C
om

mu
nit
y 

 Th
e S

afe
 an

d S
up

po
rtiv

e C
om

mu
nit

ies
 th

em
e r

ep
res

en
ts 

a v
isio

n f
or 

To
we

r H
am

let
s a

s a
 pl

ac
e w

he
re 

ev
ery

on
e c

an
 ac

hie
ve

 th
eir

 fu
ll p

ote
nti

al.
 Th

is 
me

an
s a

 
pla

ce
 w

he
re 

cri
me

 is
 ra

re 
an

d t
ac

kle
d e

ffe
cti

ve
ly,

 an
d w

he
re 

co
mm

un
itie

s l
ive

 in
 pe

ac
e t

og
eth

er.
  It

 al
so

 m
ea

ns
 so

me
wh

ere
 w

he
re 

ev
ery

on
e h

as
 eq

ua
l a

cc
es

s 
to 

ch
oic

es
, c

ha
nc

es
 an

d p
ow

er.
 Lo

ca
l p

ub
lic 

se
rvi

ce
s n

ee
d t

o i
de

nti
fy 

tho
se

 w
ho

 ar
e m

os
t a

t ri
sk

 an
d s

up
po

rt t
he

m 
so

 th
at 

the
y c

an
 fu

lfil 
the

ir p
ote

nti
al.

 
 W

e w
ill p

rov
ide

 un
iqu

ely
 ex

ce
lle

nt 
se

rvi
ce

s f
or 

ou
r m

os
t e

xc
lud

ed
 gr

ou
ps

, a
nd

 to
 th

os
e a

t ri
sk

 of
 be

co
mi

ng
 ex

clu
de

d. 
 O

ve
r ti

me
, w

ork
 on

 bo
th 

of 
the

se
 ar

ea
s 

wil
l m

ak
e a

 po
we

rfu
l im

pa
ct 

on
 bo

th 
dis

ad
va

nta
ge

 an
d c

rim
e. 

Alo
ng

sid
e t

his
 lo

ng
-te

rm
 ap

pro
ac

h, 
we

 w
ill c

on
tin

ue
 to

 cr
ac

k d
ow

n o
n c

rim
e t

hro
ug

h e
ffe

cti
ve

 la
w 

en
for

ce
me

nt 
an

d c
rim

e p
rev

en
tio

n. 
 Th

is 
ac

tio
n p

lan
 id

en
tifi

es
 ou

r a
cti

vit
ies

 ov
er 

the
 co

mi
ng

 ye
ar.

  In
 th

e t
hre

e y
ea

rs 
to 

20
11

, w
e a

lso
 pl

an
 to

: 
 

• 
Ex

ten
d t

he
 of

fer
 of

 se
lf d

ire
cte

d s
up

po
rt a

nd
 ca

re 
via

 an
 in

div
idu

ali
se

d b
ud

ge
t a

llo
ca

tio
n t

o a
ll o

ur 
55

00
 so

cia
l c

are
 se

rvi
ce

 us
ers

 by
 th

at 
da

te.
  

• 
Fo

cu
s o

n c
are

rs 
thr

ou
gh

 ou
r s

tra
teg

y f
or 

im
pro

vin
g h

ea
lth

 ca
re 

for
 ca

rer
s, 

ac
ce

ss
 to

 fle
xib

le 
pe

rso
na

lise
d s

up
po

rt, 
ac

ce
ss

 to
 em

plo
ym

en
t, a

nd
 ac

ce
ss

 
to 

un
ive

rsa
l s

erv
ice

s s
uc

h a
s l

eis
ure

, li
fel

on
g l

ea
rni

ng
, a

nd
 co

mm
un

ity
 en

ga
ge

me
nt.

 
• 

Re
du

ce
 th

e n
um

be
rs 

in 
tem

po
rar

y a
cc

om
mo

da
tio

n t
o 1

50
0 b

y 2
01

0 t
hro

ug
h f

oc
us

ing
 in

 pa
rtic

ula
r o

n i
mp

rov
ing

  m
ult

i a
ge

nc
y s

up
po

rt t
o v

uln
era

ble
 

fam
ilie

s, 
tra

ns
for

mi
ng

 ou
r o

ffe
r to

 vu
lne

rab
le 

sin
gle

 pe
op

le,
 im

pro
vin

g a
cc

es
s t

o p
erm

an
en

t h
ou

sin
g o

pti
on

s a
cro

ss
 al

l s
ec

tor
s, 

tac
klin

g t
he

 as
so

cia
tio

n 
be

tw
ee

n h
om

ele
ss

ne
ss

 an
d w

ork
les

sn
es

s, 
an

d i
mp

lem
en

tin
g a

 w
ork

for
ce

 de
ve

lop
me

nt 
str

ate
gy

 fo
r th

e h
om

ele
ss

ne
ss

 se
cto

r.  
• 

Fu
rth

er 
de

ve
lop

 ou
r a

wa
rd 

win
nin

g r
e-o

ffe
nd

ing
 sc

he
me

 to
 re

du
ce

 le
ve

ls 
of 

re-
off

en
din

g i
n t

he
 Bo

rou
gh

 
• 

Im
pro

ve
 ou

r c
om

mu
nit

y j
us

tic
e s

up
po

rt s
erv

ice
s t

o e
ns

ure
 re

sid
en

ts 
se

cu
re 

ex
ce

lle
nt 

su
pp

ort
 w

he
n a

t th
eir

 m
os

t v
uln

era
ble

  
• 

Int
rod

uc
e j

oin
t e

nfo
rce

me
nt 

se
rvi

ce
s t

o i
mp

rov
e e

ffic
ien

cy
 an

d b
ett

er 
joi

n u
p e

nfo
rce

me
nt 

res
po

ns
es

.  
  W

e w
ill u

se
 th

e f
oll

ow
ing

 sp
ec

ific
 m

ea
su

res
 to

 m
ea

su
re 

ou
r p

rog
res

s t
ow

ard
s a

ch
iev

ing
 a 

Sa
fe 

an
d S

up
po

rtiv
e C

om
mu

nit
y. 

 

 
Pe
rfo

rm
an
ce
 In
dic

ato
rs 

 
20
06
/07

 To
p 

Qu
art

ile
s: 

-
 

Lo
nd
on
 

-
 

En
gla

nd
 

Ou
ttu

rn
 

20
06
/07

 
Ou

ttu
rn
 

20
07
/08

  
Ta
rg
et 

20
08
/09

 
Ta
rg
et 

20
09
/10

 
Ta
rg
et 

20
10
/11

 
Em

po
we

r v
uln

era
ble

 pe
op
le 
an
d s

up
po
rt 
fam

ilie
s 

SI4
2 

(LA
A)

 N
I 1

35
: C

are
rs 

rec
eiv

ing
 ne

ed
s 

as
se

ss
me

nt 
or 

rev
iew

 an
d a

 sp
ec

ific
 ca

rer
’s 

se
rvi

ce
, o

r a
dv

ice
 an

d i
nfo

rm
ati

on
 

Re
ca

lcu
lat

ed
 PI

 
15

.9%
 

 
 

20
.9%

 
 

25
.9 

30
.9%

 
Ta
ck
le 
an
d p

rev
en
t c
rim

e 
SI4

3 
(LA

A)
 N

I 1
5: 

Se
rio

us
 vi

ole
nt 

cri
me

 ra
te 

Re
ca

lcu
lat

ed
 PI

 
39

6 i
nc

ide
nts

 
pe

r 1
00

0 
po

pu
lat

ion
 

 
Ta

rge
t s

ett
ing

 de
fer

red
 

Page 188



Str
ate

gic
 Pl

an
 20

08
/09

 
Ac

tio
n P

lan
  

 31
 

    

 
Pe
rfo

rm
an
ce
 In
dic

ato
rs 

 
20
06
/07

 To
p 

Qu
art

ile
s: 

-
 

Lo
nd
on
 

-
 

En
gla

nd
 

Ou
ttu

rn
 

20
06
/07

 
Ou

ttu
rn
 

20
07
/08

  
Ta
rg
et 

20
08
/09

 
Ta
rg
et 

20
09
/10

 
Ta
rg
et 

20
10
/11

 

SI4
4 

(LA
A)

 N
I 1

6: 
Se

rio
us

 ac
qu

isit
ive

 cr
im

e r
ate

 
Re

ca
lcu

lat
ed

 PI
 

 35
.5 

inc
ide

nts
 pe

r 
10

00
 

po
pu

lat
ion

 

 
-4.

2%
 

-1.
4%

 
-1.

4%
 

SI4
5 

(LA
A)

 N
I 4

2: 
Pe

rce
pti

on
s o

f d
rug

 us
e o

r d
rug

 
de

ali
ng

 as
 a 

pro
ble

m 
 

68
% 

 
65

% 
62

% 
60

% 

SI4
6 

(LA
A)

 N
I 2

1: 
De

ali
ng

 w
ith

 lo
ca

l c
on

ce
rns

 ab
ou

t 
an

ti-s
oc

ial
 be

ha
vio

ur 
an

d c
rim

e b
y t

he
 lo

ca
l 

Co
un

cil 
an

d P
oli

ce
 

Ne
w 
PI 

 
 

Ta
rge

t s
ett

ing
 de

fer
red

 

SI4
7 

(LA
A)

 N
I 1

8: 
Ad

ult
 re

-of
fen

din
g r

ate
s f

or 
tho

se
 

un
de

r p
rob

ati
on

 su
pe

rvi
sio

n 
Ne

w 
PI 

 
 

Ta
rge

t s
ett

ing
 de

fer
red

 
SI4

8 
(LA

A)
 N

I 1
9: 

Ra
te 

of 
pro

ve
n r

e-o
ffe

nd
ing

 by
 

yo
un

g o
ffe

nd
ers

 
Ne

w 
PI 

 
 

Ta
rge

t s
ett

ing
 de

fer
red

 
SI4

9 
(LA

A)
 N

I 3
3: 

Ar
so

n I
nc

ide
nts

 
Re

ca
lcu

lat
ed

 PI
 

10
77

 
 

10
45

 
11

4 
98

4 
SI5

0 
(LA

A)
 N

I 3
5: 

Bu
ild

ing
 re

sili
en

ce
 to

 vi
ole

nt 
ex

tre
mi

sm
 

Ne
w 
PI 

 
3 

4 
4.5

 
5 

SI5
1 

Pe
rce

nta
ge

 of
 re

sid
en

ts 
ide

nti
fyi

ng
 cr

im
e a

s a
n 

are
a o

f c
on

ce
rn 

  
 

 
55

 
 

 
 

Fo
cu
s o

n e
arl
y i
nte

rve
nti

on
 

SI5
2 

(LA
A)

 N
I 4

0: 
Dr

ug
 us

ers
 in

 ef
fec

tiv
e t

rea
tm

en
t 

Re
ca

lcu
lat

ed
 PI

 
11

69
 

 
12

63
 

12
76

 
12

89
 

 Page 189



Str
ate

gic
 Pl

an
 20

08
/09

 
Ac

tio
n P

lan
  

 32
 

     
Th
em

e 
4. 
A 
Sa
fe 
an
d S

up
po
rti
ve
 C
om

mu
nit

y 
Pr
ior

ity
  

4.1
  E
mp

ow
er 
vu
lne

rab
le 
pe
op
le 
an
d s

up
po
rt 
fam

ilie
s  

 
Ob

jec
tiv
e 

4.1
.1 

Pr
ov

idi
ng

 re
sp

on
siv

e a
nd

 ap
pro

pri
ate

 se
rvi

ce
s f

or 
ad

ult
s w

hic
h p

rom
ote

 in
de

pe
nd

en
ce

, c
ho

ice
, s

ec
uri

ty 
an

d c
om

mu
nit

y 
4.1

.2 
   P

rot
ec

tin
g c

hil
dre

n f
rom

 ha
rm

 an
d n

eg
lec

t 
4.1

.3 
   P

rev
en

tin
g a

nd
 re

du
cin

g h
om

ele
ss

ne
ss

, a
nd

 he
lpi

ng
 m

ore
 pe

op
le 

int
o s

ett
led

 ho
me

s a
nd

 em
plo

ym
en

t 
4.1

.4 
   I

mp
rov

ing
 su

pp
ort

 fo
r c

hil
dre

n a
nd

 yo
un

g p
eo

ple
 w

ith
 di

sa
bil

itie
s a

nd
 th

eir
 fa

mi
lie

s 
Ke

y I
nit

iat
ive

s 
Le
ad
s 

Ke
y M

ile
sto

ne
s  

Int
eg

rat
ed

 co
mm

iss
ion

ing
 te

am
s e

sta
bli

sh
ed

 in
 AH

W
B a

nd
 PC

T b
y 

Ju
ne

 20
08

 
Pr

op
os

als
 fo

r in
teg

rat
ed

 pr
ov

ide
r s

erv
ice

s s
tru

ctu
re 

an
d c

are
 pa

thw
ay

s 
de

ve
lop

ed
 by

 Se
pte

mb
er 

20
08

 
Int

eg
rat

ed
 se

rvi
ce

s f
or 

old
er 

pe
op

le 
an

d p
eo

ple
 w

ith
 lo

ng
 te

rm
 

co
nd

itio
ns

 in
 pl

ac
e b

y M
arc

h 2
00

9 
Jo

int
 St

rat
eg

ic 
Ne

ed
s A

ss
es

sm
en

t c
om

ple
ted

 by
 Se

pte
mb

er 
20

08
 

Pr
og

res
s I

mp
lem

en
tat

ion
 of

 ag
ree

d 
pro

gra
mm

e f
or 

int
eg

rat
ing

 
co

mm
iss

ion
ing

 an
d s

erv
ice

 
pro

vis
ion

 ac
ros

s h
ea

lth
 an

d s
oc

ial
 

ca
re 

 

He
len

 Ta
ylo

r, H
ea

d o
f 

Co
mm

iss
ion

ing
 an

d S
tra

teg
y 

Le
ad

 M
em

be
r: C

llr 
An

wa
ra 

Ali
 

 

Int
eg

rat
ed

 se
rvi

ce
s f

or 
old

er 
pe

op
le 

an
d p

eo
ple

 w
ith

 lo
ng

 te
rm

 
co

nd
itio

ns
 in

 pl
ac

e b
y M

arc
h 2

00
9 

Pr
oje

ct 
Ini

tia
tio

n D
oc

um
en

t a
nd

 ou
tlin

e p
roj

ec
t p

lan
 ag

ree
d b

y A
pri

l 
20

08
 

De
tai

led
 pl

an
s f

or 
ye

ars
 2 

an
d 3

 of
 th

e s
tra

teg
y t

o a
ch

iev
e t

ota
l 

tra
ns

for
ma

tio
n d

ev
elo

pe
d b

y D
ec

em
be

r b
y 2

00
8. 

 

De
ve

lop
 sy

ste
ms

, p
roc

es
se

s a
nd

 
cu

ltu
res

 th
at 

em
po

we
r in

div
idu

als
 to

 
de

ter
mi

ne
 ho

w 
the

ir c
are

, s
up

po
rt, 

an
d 

cit
ize

ns
hip

 ne
ed

s a
re 

me
t  

He
len

 Ta
ylo

r, H
ea

d o
f 

Co
mm

iss
ion

ing
 an

d S
tra

teg
y 

Le
ad

 M
em

be
r: C

llr 
An

wa
ra 

Ali
 

 
To

we
r H

am
let

s R
es

ou
rce

 Al
loc

ati
on

 Sy
ste

m 
(R

AS
) d

ev
elo

pe
d b

y M
arc

h 
20

09
 

Ac
tio

n p
lan

 to
 m

ee
t L

AA
 ta

rge
t a

gre
ed

 w
ith

 TH
 Pa

rtn
ers

hip
 by

 O
cto

be
r 

20
08

.   
Im

pro
ve

 su
pp

ort
 an

d i
nfo

rm
ati

on
 fo

r  
ca

rer
s  

He
len

 Ta
ylo

r, H
ea

d o
f 

Co
mm

iss
ion

ing
 an

d S
tra

teg
y 

Le
ad

 M
em

be
r: C

llr 
An

wa
ra 

Ali
 

  
Re

vis
ed

 ca
rer

s s
tra

teg
y a

gre
ed

 fo
llo

win
g c

on
su

lta
tio

n b
y O

cto
be

r 2
00

8. 

Re
vis

ed
 ho

me
les

sn
es

s s
tra

teg
y a

gre
ed

 by
 C

ab
ine

t b
y J

uly
 20

08
 

10
% 

fal
l in

 ho
me

les
s a

cc
ep

tan
ce

s i
n 2

00
8/9

 co
mp

are
d t

o 2
00

7/8
 by

 
Ma

rch
 20

08
 

Fu
rth

er 
red

uc
e t

he
 in

cid
en

ce
 of

 
ho

me
les

sn
es

s i
n t

he
 bo

rou
gh

 an
d  

Im
pro

ve
 su

pp
ort

 to
 in

div
idu

als
 an

d 
fam

ilie
s e

xp
eri

en
cin

g h
om

ele
ss

ne
ss

 

Co
lin

 C
orm

ac
k, 

He
ad

 of
 

Ho
me

les
sn

es
s a

nd
 H

ou
sin

g 
Ad

vic
e S

erv
ice

s 
Le

ad
 M

em
be

r: C
llr 

An
wa

ra 
Ali

 
Nu

mb
ers

 in
 te

mp
ora

ry 
ac

co
mm

od
ati

on
 re

du
ce

d t
o 2

10
0 b

y M
arc

h 
20

08
.  

 

Page 190



Str
ate

gic
 Pl

an
 20

08
/09

 
Ac

tio
n P

lan
  

 33
 

    

Th
em

e 
4. 
A 
Sa
fe 
an
d S

up
po
rti
ve
 C
om

mu
nit

y 
Pr
ior

ity
  

4.1
  E
mp

ow
er 
vu
lne

rab
le 
pe
op
le 
an
d s

up
po
rt 
fam

ilie
s  

 
Ob

jec
tiv
e 

4.1
.1 

Pr
ov

idi
ng

 re
sp

on
siv

e a
nd

 ap
pro

pri
ate

 se
rvi

ce
s f

or 
ad

ult
s w

hic
h p

rom
ote

 in
de

pe
nd

en
ce

, c
ho

ice
, s

ec
uri

ty 
an

d c
om

mu
nit

y 
4.1

.2 
   P

rot
ec

tin
g c

hil
dre

n f
rom

 ha
rm

 an
d n

eg
lec

t 
4.1

.3 
   P

rev
en

tin
g a

nd
 re

du
cin

g h
om

ele
ss

ne
ss

, a
nd

 he
lpi

ng
 m

ore
 pe

op
le 

int
o s

ett
led

 ho
me

s a
nd

 em
plo

ym
en

t 
4.1

.4 
   I

mp
rov

ing
 su

pp
ort

 fo
r c

hil
dre

n a
nd

 yo
un

g p
eo

ple
 w

ith
 di

sa
bil

itie
s a

nd
 th

eir
 fa

mi
lie

s 
Ke

y I
nit

iat
ive

s 
Le
ad
s 

Ke
y M

ile
sto

ne
s  

eC
AF

 pi
lot

 to
 be

 op
era

tio
na

l b
y M

ay
 20

08
. 

An
nu

al 
CA

F p
rog

res
s r

ep
ort

 to
 be

 su
bm

itte
d t

o S
afe

gu
ard

ing
 Bo

ard
 by

 
Oc

tob
er 

20
08

 

Fo
llo

win
g t

he
 im

ple
me

nta
tio

n o
f th

e 
Co

mm
on

 As
se

ss
me

nt 
Fra

me
wo

rk,
 to

 
fur

the
r d

ev
elo

p t
he

 ro
le 

of 
the

 Le
ad

  
Pr

ofe
ss

ion
al 

an
d t

he
 te

am
 ar

ou
nd

 th
e 

Ch
ild

, d
ev

elo
pin

g t
he

 po
ten

tia
l o

f o
ur 

Ch
ild

ren
’s 

Ce
ntr

es
 an

d E
xte

nd
ed

 
Sc

ho
ols

 to
 of

fer
 ea

rly
 su

pp
ort

 fo
r 

fam
ilie

s a
t ri

sk
. 

He
len

 Je
nn

er,
 H

ea
d o

f E
arl

y 
ye

ars
, c

hil
dre

n a
nd

 le
arn

ing
 

Le
ad

 M
em

be
r: C

llr 
Cla

ir 
Ha

wk
ins

 
 

Th
ink

 Fa
mi

ly 
Pr

oje
ct 

to 
be

 es
tab

lish
ed

 in
 C

hil
dre

n’s
 C

en
tre

s b
y O

cto
be

r 
20

08
 

Th
ink

 Fa
mi

ly 
Te

rm
s o

f R
efe

ren
ce

 an
d m

em
be

rsh
ip 

to 
be

 ag
ree

d b
y 

Ju
ne

 20
08

 
Au

dit
 an

d r
ev

iew
 of

 st
ay

ing
 sa

fe 
ele

me
nts

 of
 Fa

mi
ly 

Su
pp

ort
 an

d 
Pa

ren
tal

 En
ga

ge
me

nt 
Str

ate
gy

 to
 be

 co
mp

let
ed

 by
 D

ec
em

be
r 2

00
8 

  

De
ve

lop
 sy

ste
ms

 of
 m

ult
i-a

ge
nc

y 
ref

err
al,

 as
se

ss
me

nt 
an

d s
erv

ice
 

de
live

ry 
thr

ou
gh

 an
 in

ten
siv

e w
ho

le-
fam

ily 
mo

de
l o

f s
up

po
rt w

ith
 an

 
em

ph
as

is 
on

 ea
rly

 in
ter

ve
nti

on
 an

d 
pre

ve
nti

on
. T

he
 w

ork
 w

ill b
e s

tee
red

 by
 

a T
hin

k F
am

ily 
Gr

ou
p w

ith
 hi

gh
 le

ve
l 

rep
res

en
tat

ion
 fro

m 
ag

en
cie

s a
cro

ss
 

To
we

r H
am

let
 

He
len

 Je
nn

er,
 H

ea
d o

f E
arl

y 
ye

ars
, c

hil
dre

n a
nd

 le
arn

ing
 

Le
ad

 M
em

be
r: C

llr 
Cla

ir 
Ha

wk
ins

 

Ne
w 

Fa
mi

ly 
Int

en
siv

e P
roj

ec
t re

fer
ral

 st
ruc

tur
es

 an
d p

rog
ram

me
 

de
live

ry 
to 

be
 in

 pl
ac

e b
y S

ep
tem

be
r 2

00
8 

Im
ple

me
nt 

a p
os

itiv
e p

are
nti

ng
 pr

og
ram

me
 fo

r p
are

nts
 of

 ch
ild

ren
 w

ith
 

dis
ab

iliti
es

 to
 as

sis
t in

 ac
hie

vin
g s

us
tai

na
ble

 ca
re 

in 
the

 ho
me

, w
ith

 SL
A 

in 
pla

ce
 w

ith
 C

AM
HS

 an
d E

va
 Ar

ms
by

 C
en

tre
 by

 Ju
ly 

20
08

. 
De

ve
lop

 el
igi

bil
ity

 cr
ite

ria
 fo

r s
ho

rt b
rea

ks
 by

 Ju
ly 

20
08

. 
To

 pr
od

uc
e a

nd
 di

str
ibu

te 
lea

fle
ts 

to 
pro

mo
te 

dir
ec

t p
ay

me
nts

 an
d 

co
mp

let
e s

taf
f tr

ain
ing

 by
 Se

pte
mb

er 
20

08
 

Im
pro

ve
 ac

ce
ss

 to
 an

d q
ua

lity
 of

 
su

pp
ort

 to
 ch

ild
ren

 an
d y

ou
ng

 pe
op

le 
wit

h d
isa

bil
itie

s a
nd

 th
eir

 fa
mi

lie
s 

Ka
mi

ni 
Ra

mb
ell

as
, S

erv
ice

 
He

ad
- C

hil
dre

n’s
 So

cia
l 

Ca
re 

Le
ad

 M
em

be
r: C

llr 
Cla

ir 
Ha

wk
ins

 

Re
cru

it t
ran

sit
ion

 w
ork

er 
to 

de
ve

lop
 pe

rso
n c

en
tre

d p
lan

nin
g f

or 
tra

ns
itio

n t
o A

du
lts

 Se
rvi

ce
s b

y S
ep

tem
be

r 2
00

8. 

Page 191



Str
ate

gic
 Pl

an
 20

08
/09

 
Ac

tio
n P

lan
  

 34
 

     
Th
em

e 
4. 
A 
Sa
fe 
an
d S

up
po
rti
ve
 C
om

mu
nit

y  
Pr
ior

ity
  

4.2
  T
ac
kle

 an
d P

rev
en
t C

rim
e 

Ob
jec

tiv
e 

4.2
.1 

Re
du

cin
g c

rim
e a

nd
 pr

om
oti

ng
 su

cc
es

se
s e

ffe
cti

ve
ly 

to 
red

uc
e f

ea
r o

f c
rim

e 
4.2

.2 
Re

du
cin

g r
e-o

ffe
nd

ing
 th

rou
gh

 ho
list

ic 
int

erv
en

tio
n w

ith
 al

l w
ho

 be
co

me
 in

vo
lve

d w
ith

 th
e c

rim
ina

l ju
sti

ce
 sy

ste
m 

4.2
.3 

Ma
kin

g c
rim

e p
rev

en
tio

n a
 ke

y e
lem

en
t o

f a
ll s

erv
ice

 pl
an

nin
g -

 an
d i

mp
rov

ing
 co

mm
un

ity
 tru

st 
an

d e
ng

ag
em

en
t in

 st
rat

eg
ic 

pla
nn

ing
 

an
d s

erv
ice

 de
ve

lop
me

nt 
 

Ke
y I
nit

iat
ive

s 
Le
ad
s 

Ke
y M

ile
sto

ne
s  

Pr
oje

ct 
rep

ort
 to

 D
ire

cto
r b

y 1
4th

 Ju
ly 

CL
C 

Ca
ll o

ve
r b

y 2
2 J

uly
 

Int
rod

uc
e N

eig
hb

ou
rho

od
 En

for
ce

me
nt 

Of
fic

ers
 to

 pr
ov

ide
 a 

‘jo
ine

d u
p’ 

an
d 

hig
h v

isib
ility

 pr
es

en
ce

 pr
ov

idi
ng

 a 
fro

nt 
lin

e r
es

po
ns

e t
o a

nti
-so

cia
l b

eh
av

iou
r 

An
dy

 Ba
mb

er 
– H

ea
d o

f 
Co

mm
un

ity
 Se

rvi
ce

s 
Le

ad
 M

em
be

r: C
llr 

Ab
du

l U
lla

h 
LA

B 1
 by

 4t
h A

ug
us

t 
Co

mm
iss

ion
 to

 be
 se

t u
p b

y S
ep

tem
be

r 2
00

8 
Co

mm
iss

ion
 co

nc
lud

ed
 by

 D
ec

em
be

r 2
00

8 
To

  s
et 

up
 a 

co
mm

iss
ion

 in
to 

the
 Pu

bli
c 

Sa
fet

y o
f c

hil
dre

n a
nd

 yo
un

g p
eo

ple
 in

 
To

we
r H

am
let

s t
o a

dd
res

s t
he

 du
al 

iss
ue

s o
f v

iol
en

ce
 by

 gr
ou

ps
 of

 yo
un

g 
pe

op
le 

an
d t

he
 sa

fet
y o

f th
e l

oc
al 

co
mm

un
ity

, p
art

icu
lar

ly 
of 

yo
un

g 
pe

op
le 

the
ms

elv
es

 

Ma
ry 

Du
rki

n –
 H

ea
d o

f Y
ou

th 
an

d C
om

mu
nit

y L
ea

rni
ng

  
Le

ad
 M

em
be

r: C
llr 

Cla
ir 

Ha
wk

ins
 

Ac
tio

n p
lan

 ag
ree

d b
y M

arc
h 2

00
9 

 In 
ho

us
e p

rov
isio

n t
o b

e s
et 

up
 by

 Ju
ly 

20
08

 

 
To

 se
t u

p a
 R

em
an

d F
os

ter
ing

 (R
F) 

pro
vis

ion
 to

 im
pa

ct 
on

 th
e n

um
be

r o
f 

yo
un

g p
eo

ple
 re

ma
nd

ed
 in

to 
cu

sto
dy

 
by

 th
e c

ou
rts

 

Ma
ry 

Du
rki

n –
 H

ea
d o

f Y
ou

th 
an

d C
om

mu
nit

y L
ea

rni
ng

 
Le

ad
 M

em
be

r: C
llr 

Cla
ir 

Ha
wk

ins
 

 
Pr

oje
ct 

gro
up

 to
 re

ce
ive

 in
itia

l a
na

lys
is 

of 
RF

 co
ho

rt b
y M

arc
h 2

00
9 

 Page 192



Str
ate

gic
 Pl

an
 20

08
/09

 
Ac

tio
n P

lan
  

 35
 

     
Th
em

e 
4. 
A 
Sa
fe 
an
d S

up
po
rti
ve
 C
om

mu
nit

y 
Pr
ior

ity
  

4.3
 Fo

cu
s o

n E
arl
y I
nte

rve
nti

on
 

Ob
jec

tiv
e 

4.3
.1 

Im
pro

vin
g p

are
nta

l e
ng

ag
em

en
t a

nd
 su

pp
ort

 
4.3

.2 
Us

ing
 jo

ine
d-u

p a
pp

roa
ch

es
 to

 ad
dre

ss
 lin

ks
 be

tw
ee

n h
ea

lth
, d

rug
s, 

alc
oh

ol,
 ed

uc
ati

on
, s

kill
s, 

em
plo

ym
en

t, a
cc

om
mo

da
tio

n, 
me

nta
l 

he
alt

h, 
de

bt 
an

d b
en

efi
ts 

ac
ros

s a
ll a

ge
 gr

ou
ps

 
4.3

.3 
Ta

ck
lin

g t
he

 ca
us

es
 of

 cr
im

e b
y w

ork
ing

 w
ith

 ‘a
t-ri

sk
’ g

rou
ps

, to
 ni

p p
rob

lem
s i

n t
he

 bu
d  

Ke
y I
nit

iat
ive

s 
Le
ad
s 

Ke
y M

ile
sto

ne
s  

Of
fer

 jo
int

 tra
ini

ng
 fo

r s
taf

f w
ork

ing
 w

ith
 pa

ren
ts 

rel
ate

d t
o t

he
 

Na
tio

na
l O

cc
up

ati
on

al 
Sta

nd
ard

s b
y M

arc
h 2

00
9 

De
ve

lop
 a 

sh
are

d Q
ua

lity
 As

su
ran

ce
 fra

me
wo

rk 
for

 Fa
mi

ly 
Le

arn
ing

 
an

d P
are

nti
ng

 pr
og

ram
me

s, 
inc

lud
ing

 en
su

rin
g a

ll p
rog

ram
me

s a
re 

inc
lus

ive
 of

 fa
mi

lie
s l

ivin
g w

ith
 le

arn
ing

 di
ffic

ult
ies

 an
d/o

r d
isa

bil
itie

s 
by

 D
ec

em
be

r 0
8. 

Cr
ea

te 
a c

oh
ere

nt 
pa

ren
tin

g s
up

po
rt 

off
er,

 in
clu

siv
e o

f fa
mi

ly 
lea

rni
ng

 an
d 

pa
ren

tin
g p

rog
ram

me
s 

 

He
len

 Je
nn

er,
 H

ea
d o

f E
arl

y 
Ye

ars
, C

hil
dre

n a
nd

 Le
arn

ing
 

Le
ad

 M
em

be
r: C

llr 
Cla

ir 
Ha

wk
ins

 

Int
eg

rat
e p

are
nti

ng
 su

pp
ort

 pr
ov

isio
n i

nto
 lo

ca
lise

d p
lan

nin
g t

hro
ug

h 
LA

P a
nd

 ex
ten

de
d s

erv
ice

  c
lus

ter
 gr

ou
ps

 by
 Se

pte
mb

er 
20

08
 

 Page 193



Str
ate

gic
 Pl

an
 20

08
/09

 
Ac

tio
n P

lan
  

 36
 

    A 
He

alt
hy
 C
om

mu
nit

y  
Lo

ca
l re

sid
en

ts 
wa

nt 
To

we
r H

am
let

s t
o b

e a
 pl

ac
e w

he
re 

dif
fer

en
ce

s i
n t

he
 qu

ali
ty 

of 
pe

op
le’

s h
ea

lth
 an

d l
ife

 ex
pe

cta
nc

y a
re 

red
uc

ed
, w

he
re 

pe
op

le 
lea

d 
he

alt
hy

 liv
es

 an
d w

he
re 

ev
ery

on
e h

as
 ac

ce
ss

 to
 w

orl
d c

las
s p

rim
ary

 ca
re,

 co
mm

un
ity

, a
nd

 m
en

tal
 he

alt
h a

nd
 ho

sp
ita

l s
erv

ice
s. 

At 
the

 m
om

en
t, t

he
re 

are
 so

me
 

sta
rk 

dif
fer

en
ce

s i
n t

he
 qu

ali
ty 

of 
he

alt
h e

xp
eri

en
ce

d b
y T

ow
er 

Ha
ml

ets
 re

sid
en

ts.
 W

e w
an

t to
 w

ork
 w

ith
 al

l o
ur 

pa
rtn

ers
, in

clu
din

g r
es

ide
nts

 to
 lo

we
r th

os
e 

dif
fer

en
ce

s. 
 Th

is 
ac

tio
n p

lan
 id

en
tifi

es
 ou

r a
cti

vit
ies

 ov
er 

the
 co

mi
ng

 ye
ar.

  In
 th

e t
hre

e y
ea

rs 
to 

20
11

, w
e a

lso
 pl

an
 to

: 
 

• 
W

ork
 w

ith
 th

e P
CT

 to
 pr

og
res

s a
mb

itio
us

 pl
an

s f
or 

the
 de

ve
lop

me
nt 

of 
a n

etw
ork

 of
 ne

w 
he

alt
h a

nd
 so

cia
l c

are
 re

so
urc

e c
en

tre
s a

cro
ss

 th
e b

oro
ug

h. 
Th

es
e a

re 
ex

pe
cte

d t
o c

om
e o

n s
tre

am
 be

tw
ee

n 2
00

9 a
nd

 20
19

 
• 

Im
ple

me
nt 

the
 G

et 
Ac

tiv
e p

rog
ram

me
 to

 in
cre

as
ing

 pa
rtic

ipa
tio

n o
f th

e p
hy

sic
all

y i
na

cti
ve

 po
pu

lat
ion

 
• 

Im
ple

me
nt 

the
 Yo

un
g C

are
rs 

Pa
rtic

ipa
tio

n i
n S

po
rt i

nit
iat

ive
 

• 
Int

rod
uc

e a
 Yo

un
g @

 H
ea

rt i
nit

iat
ive

 – 
pro

vid
ing

 w
ee

kly
 se

ss
ion

s a
t a

ll L
eis

ure
 C

en
tre

s f
or 

pe
op

le 
ov

er 
50

’s 
to 

inc
rea

se
 th

eir
 he

alt
h a

nd
 w

ell
 be

ing
.   

 
• 

Co
nti

nu
e t

o t
arg

et 
ch

ild
ren

 an
d y

ou
ng

 pe
op

le’
s w

eig
ht 

ma
na

ge
me

nt 
thr

ou
gh

 pa
rtn

ers
hip

 w
ith

 th
e P

CT
, S

ch
oo

ls 
an

d t
he

 3rd
 Se

cto
r.  

• 
Fu

rth
er 

de
ve

lop
 ac

tio
ns

 to
 im

pro
ve

 ac
ce

ss
 to

 ex
erc

ise
 an

d s
po

rts
 fo

r M
us

lim
 W

om
en

 an
d g

irls
 w

ho
 fo

r c
ult

ura
l a

nd
 fa

ith
 ba

se
d r

ea
so

ns
 fin

d i
t h

ard
 to

 
en

ga
ge

. 
• 

Fu
rth

er 
de

ve
lop

 ou
r a

wa
rd 

win
nin

g p
rog

ram
me

s f
or 

im
pro

vin
g a

cc
es

s t
o s

po
rts

 an
d e

xe
rci

se
 fo

r p
eo

ple
 w

ith
 di

sa
bil

itie
s. 

 
 W

e w
ill u

se
 th

e f
oll

ow
ing

 sp
ec

ific
 m

ea
su

res
 to

 m
ea

su
re 

ou
r p

rog
res

s t
ow

ard
s a

ch
iev

ing
 a 

He
alt

hy
 C

om
mu

nit
y: 

 

 
Pe
rfo

rm
an
ce
 In
dic

ato
rs 

 
20
06
/07

 To
p 

Qu
art

ile
s: 

-
 

Lo
nd
on
 

-
 

En
gla

nd
 

Ou
ttu

rn
 

20
06
/07

 
Ou

ttu
rn
 

20
07
/08

  
Ta
rg
et 

20
08
/09

 
Ta
rg
et 

20
09
/10

 
Ta
rg
et 

20
10
/11

 
Re

du
ce
 di
ffe
ren

ce
s i
n p

eo
ple

’s 
he
ath

, a
nd
 pr

om
ote

 he
alt
hy
 lif
es
tyl
es
 

SI5
3 

(LA
A)

 N
I 5

6: 
Ob

es
ity

 am
on

g p
rim

ary
 sc

ho
ol 

ag
e c

hil
dre

n i
n y

ea
r 6

 
 (a

) to
tal

 nu
mb

er 
ch

ild
ren

 w
ith

 he
igh

t &
 w

eig
ht 

rec
ord

ed
 w

ho
 ar

e o
be

se
 

 (b
) n

um
be

r c
hil

dre
n w

ith
 he

igh
t &

 w
eig

ht 
rec

ord
ed

 
(c)

 to
tal

 nu
mb

er 
ye

ar 
6 c

hil
dre

n 
(d)

 %
 ch

ild
ren

 w
ith

 he
igh

t &
 w

eig
ht 

rec
ord

ed
 

wh
o a

re 
ob

es
e 

(e)
 %

 of
 ch

ild
ren

 w
ith

 he
igh

t &
 w

eig
ht 

rec
ord

ed
 

 

(a)
 

(b)
 

(c)
 

(d)
 23

.0%
 

(e)
 

  (a)
 

(b)
 

(c)
 

(d)
2 

(e)
 

  

   (a)
 

(b)
 

(c)
 

(d)
 22

.9%
 

(e)
 

   

  (a)
 

(b)
 

(c)
 

(d)
 23

.6%
 

(e)
 

  

  (a)
 

(b)
 

(c)
 

(d)
23

.7%
(e)

 
  

SI5
4 

(LA
A)

 N
I 1

12
: U

nd
er 

18
 co

nc
ep

tio
n r

ate
 

-
 

22
.18

 
-25

.3 
-24

.2 
-43

 
-47

 
-50

 

Page 194



Str
ate

gic
 Pl

an
 20

08
/09

 
Ac

tio
n P

lan
  

 37
 

    

 
Pe
rfo

rm
an
ce
 In
dic

ato
rs 

 
20
06
/07

 To
p 

Qu
art

ile
s: 

-
 

Lo
nd
on
 

-
 

En
gla

nd
 

Ou
ttu

rn
 

20
06
/07

 
Ou

ttu
rn
 

20
07
/08

  
Ta
rg
et 

20
08
/09

 
Ta
rg
et 

20
09
/10

 
Ta
rg
et 

20
10
/11

 
-
 

18
.73

 
SI5

5 
(LA

A)
 N

I 1
23

: S
top

pin
g s

mo
kin

g 
Re

ca
lcu

lat
ed

 PI
 

12
76

 
 

1,0
25

 
1,0

43
 

1,0
61

 
SI5

6 
(LA

A)
 N

I 1
20

: A
ll-a

ge
 al

l-c
au

se
 m

ort
ali

ty 
rat

e 
Re

ca
lcu

lat
ed

 PI
 

85
6 (

ma
le)

 
57

8 (
fem

ale
) 

 
82

1 (
m)

 
56

3 (
f) 

80
4 (

m)
 

55
5 (

f) 
78

7 (
m)

 
54

7 (
f) 

  
Th
em

e 
5. 
A 
He

alt
hy
 C
om

mu
nit
y  

Pr
ior

ity
  

5.1
 Im

pr
ov
ing

 he
alt
h a

nd
 re

du
cin

g d
iffe

ren
ce
s i
n p

eo
ple

’s 
he
alt
h b

y p
ro
mo

tin
g h

ea
lth
 lif
es
tyl
es
  

Ob
jec

tiv
e 

5.1
.1 

Re
du

ce
 th

e u
se

 of
 to

ba
cc

o 
5.1

.2 
Re

du
cin

g r
ate

s o
f d

iab
ete

s, 
hig

h b
loo

d p
res

su
re 

an
d c

ho
les

ter
ol 

5.1
.3 

Slo
w 

do
wn

 th
e i

nc
rea

se
 in

 ob
es

ity
 

5.1
.4 

Im
pro

vin
g s

ex
ua

l h
ea

lth
  

Ke
y I
nit

iat
ive

s 
Le
ad
s 

Ke
y M

ile
sto

ne
s  

Ide
nti

fy 
a p

ac
ka

ge
 of

 sp
ort

s c
ou

rse
s a

nd
 co

mp
eti

tio
ns

 fo
r O

lym
pic

 
bra

nd
ing

 by
 Ju

ne
 08

. 
De

ve
lop

 an
 O

lym
pic

 Sp
ort

s L
eg

ac
y 

De
ve

lop
me

nt 
Pr

og
ram

me
 

Pa
ul 

Ma
rtin

dil
l, H

ea
d o

f 
Cu

ltu
ral

 Se
rvi

ce
s 

Le
ad

 M
em

be
r: C

llr 
Ro

fiq
ue

 
U.

 Ah
me

d 
Co

mp
let

e a
 fe

as
ibi

lity
 st

ud
y t

o s
ec

ure
 le

isu
re 

wa
ter

 in
 th

e O
lym

pic
 

Aq
ua

tic
s C

en
tre

 as
 in

 pa
rtn

ers
hip

 w
ith

 Lo
nd

on
 D

ev
elo

pm
en

t A
ge

nc
y 

an
d L

on
do

n B
oro

ug
h o

f N
ew

ha
m 

by
 Se

pte
mb

er 
08

 
To

 re
vie

w 
the

 st
ruc

tur
e a

nd
 pr

og
ram

me
s o

f th
e s

po
rt a

nd
 ph

ys
ica

l 
ac

tiv
ity

 te
am

 to
 fo

cu
s o

n a
du

lts
 w

ho
 ha

ve
 lo

we
st 

lev
els

 of
 ph

ys
ica

l 
ac

tiv
ity

 by
 Se

pte
mb

er 
08

 
To

 in
tro

du
ce

 ta
rge

ted
 pr

og
ram

me
 to

 
im

pro
ve

 th
e h

ea
lth

 of
 ad

ult
s b

y 
inc

rea
sin

g t
he

 nu
mb

er 
wh

o u
nd

ert
ak

e 
reg

ula
r p

hy
sic

al 
ac

tiv
ity

 (3
X3

0 m
inu

tes
 

pe
r w

ee
k) 

Pa
ul 

Ma
rtin

dil
l, H

ea
d o

f 
Cu

ltu
ral

 Se
rvi

ce
s 

Le
ad

 M
em

be
r: C

llr 
Ro

fiq
ue

 
U.

 Ah
me

d 
To

 de
live

r a
 pr

og
ram

me
 th

at 
tar

ge
ts 

the
 ar

ea
s w

ith
in 

the
 Bo

rou
gh

 w
ith

 
the

 lo
we

st 
lev

els
 of

 ph
ys

ica
l a

cti
vit

y b
y O

cto
be

r 0
8 

Re
vie

w 
tre

atm
en

t a
nd

 di
sc

ha
rge

 pr
oto

co
ls 

to 
inc

rea
se

 th
e p

erc
en

tag
e 

of 
yo

un
g p

eo
ple

 w
ho

 le
av

e s
ub

sta
nc

e m
isu

se
 tre

atm
en

t in
 a 

pla
nn

ed
 

wa
y b

y S
ep

tem
be

r 2
00

8 
Inc

rea
se

 ac
ce

ss
 to

 ap
pro

pri
ate

 an
d h

igh
 qu

ali
ty 

su
bs

tan
ce

 m
isu

se
 

se
rvi

ce
s, 

so
 th

at 
the

 nu
mb

er 
of 

yo
un

g p
eo

ple
 un

de
r 1

8 a
cc

es
sin

g d
rug

 
tre

atm
en

t ri
se

s b
y 3

% 
ov

er 
the

 ne
xt 

ye
ar 

by
 M

arc
h 2

00
9 

Re
du

ce
 th

e t
ak

e u
p o

f s
mo

kin
g, 

dru
gs

 
an

d a
lco

ho
l a

nd
 en

su
re 

pro
mp

t a
cc

es
s 

to 
tre

atm
en

t a
nd

 su
pp

ort
 fo

r y
ou

ng
 

pe
op

le 
wh

o m
isu

se
 su

bs
tan

ce
s  

 

Na
tal

ie 
Pa

ris
h, 

He
ad

 of
 

Str
ate

gy
, P

art
ne

rsh
ips

 an
d 

Pe
rfo

rm
an

ce
  

Le
ad

 M
em

be
r: C

llr 
Cla

ir 
Ha

wk
ins

 

Ro
ll o

ut 
the

 pi
lot

 pe
er 

led
 st

op
 sm

ok
ing

 in
ter

ve
nti

on
 pr

oje
ct 

(A
SS

IST
) 

to 
rem

ain
ing

 ye
ar 

8 s
ch

oo
ls 

in 
the

 Bo
rou

gh
, b

y M
arc

h 2
00

9. 

Page 195



Str
ate

gic
 Pl

an
 20

08
/09

 
Ac

tio
n P

lan
  

 38
 

    

Th
em

e 
5. 
A 
He

alt
hy
 C
om

mu
nit
y  

Pr
ior

ity
  

5.1
 Im

pr
ov
ing

 he
alt
h a

nd
 re

du
cin

g d
iffe

ren
ce
s i
n p

eo
ple

’s 
he
alt
h b

y p
ro
mo

tin
g h

ea
lth
 lif
es
tyl
es
  

Ob
jec

tiv
e 

5.1
.1 

Re
du

ce
 th

e u
se

 of
 to

ba
cc

o 
5.1

.2 
Re

du
cin

g r
ate

s o
f d

iab
ete

s, 
hig

h b
loo

d p
res

su
re 

an
d c

ho
les

ter
ol 

5.1
.3 

Slo
w 

do
wn

 th
e i

nc
rea

se
 in

 ob
es

ity
 

5.1
.4 

Im
pro

vin
g s

ex
ua

l h
ea

lth
  

Ke
y I
nit

iat
ive

s 
Le
ad
s 

Ke
y M

ile
sto

ne
s  

Sc
ho

ol 
Nu

trit
ion

al 
Aw

ard
s a

ss
es

sm
en

ts 
by

 Ju
ly 

20
08

 
Inc

rea
se

 pe
rce

nta
ge

 of
 ch

ild
ren

 ha
vin

g 2
 or

 m
ore

 ho
urs

 of
 PE

 a 
we

ek
 

to 
85

% 
by

 Au
gu

st 
20

08
 

En
su

re 
sc

ho
ols

 en
co

ura
ge

 ch
ild

ren
 to

 
ea

t h
ea

lth
ily 

an
d e

xe
rci

se
 re

gu
lar

ly 
Ma

ry 
Du

rki
n, 

He
ad

 of
 Yo

uth
 

an
d C

om
mu

nit
y L

ea
rni

ng
  

Le
ad

 M
em

be
r: C

llr 
Cla

ir 
Ha

wk
ins

 
Inc

rea
se

 pr
op

ort
ion

 of
 sc

ho
ols

 w
ith

 a 
wh

ole
 sc

ho
ol 

foo
d p

oli
cy

 to
 50

% 
by

 M
arc

h 2
00

9 
Im

ple
me

nt 
AS

PIR
E p

ilo
t p

roj
ec

t w
ith

  
ye

ar 
9 &

 10
 to

 pr
ev

en
t u

np
lan

ne
d 

pre
gn

an
cy

, d
oin

g t
arg

ete
d w

ork
 w

ith
 

gir
ls 

at 
ris

k, 
to 

im
pro

ve
 ed

uc
ati

on
al 

ac
hie

ve
me

nt 
an

d b
oo

st 
se

lf-e
ste

em
 

Ma
ry 

Du
rki

n, 
He

ad
 of

 Yo
uth

 
an

d C
om

mu
nit

y L
ea

rni
ng

 
Le

ad
 M

em
be

r: C
llr 

Cla
ir 

Ha
wk

ins
 

W
ork

 w
ith

 30
 gi

rls
 at

 ris
k  

by
 M

arc
h 2

00
9 

   
Th
em

e 
5. 
A 
He

alt
hy
 C
om

mu
nit
y 

Pr
ior

ity
  

5.2
 Su

pp
or
t m

en
tal
 he

alt
h s

erv
ice

s t
o i
mp

ro
ve
 m
en
tal
 he

alt
h  

Ob
jec

tiv
e 

5.2
.1 

Pr
ov

idi
ng

 hi
gh

-qu
ali

ty 
ac

ce
ss

ibl
e s

erv
ice

s  
5.2

.2 
Co

mb
ati

ng
 di

sc
rim

ina
tio

n a
ga

ins
t in

div
idu

als
 an

d g
rou

ps
 w

ith
 m

en
tal

 he
alt

h p
rob

lem
s 

5.2
.3 

En
su

rin
g i

nte
gra

ted
 pl

an
nin

g a
nd

 tre
atm

en
t w

ith
 pa

tie
nts

 w
ith

 m
ult

ipl
e h

ea
lth

 ne
ed

s 
Ke

y I
nit

iat
ive

s 
Le
ad
s 

Ke
y M

ile
sto

ne
s  

SE
AL

 im
ple

me
nte

d i
n a

ll P
rim

ary
 sc

ho
ols

 by
 Ju

ly 
20

08
 

Tra
ns

itio
n w

ork
er 

su
pp

ort
 pr

og
ram

me
 ex

ten
de

d t
o s

up
po

rt 2
0%

 m
ore

 
yo

un
g p

eo
ple

 by
 Ju

ne
 20

08
 

Pr
ev

en
tio

n a
nd

 ea
rly

 in
ter

ve
nti

on
 an

d 
im

pro
ve

d a
cc

es
s t

o e
mo

tio
na

l h
ea

lth
 

se
rvi

ce
s f

or 
Ch

ild
ren

 an
d Y

P 
 

He
len

 Je
nn

er,
 H

ea
d o

f E
arl

y 
Ye

ars
, C

hil
dre

n a
nd

 
Le

arn
ing

 
Le

ad
 M

em
be

r: C
llr 

Cla
ir 

Ha
wk

ins
 

Ex
ten

d a
mo

un
t o

f e
arl

y i
nte

rve
nti

on
 m

en
tal

 he
alt

h s
up

po
rt d

eli
ve

red
 

thr
ou

gh
 sc

ho
ols

 an
d C

hil
dre

n’s
 C

en
tre

s b
y S

ep
tem

be
r 2

00
8 

20
% 

inc
rea

se
 in

 th
e n

um
be

rs 
wo

rke
d w

ith
 by

 th
e n

ew
ly 

es
tab

lish
ed

 
Re

ha
b a

nd
 R

ec
ov

ery
 Te

am
 du

rin
g 2

00
8-0

9 
Pr

om
ote

 th
e r

ec
ov

ery
 ag

en
da

 ac
ros

s 
ad

ult
 m

en
tal

 he
alt

h c
om

mu
nit

y s
erv

ice
s 

De
bo

rah
 C

oh
en

, H
ea

d o
f 

Dis
ab

iliti
es

 an
d H

ea
lth

 
Le

ad
 M

em
be

r: C
llr 

An
wa

ra 
Es

tab
lish

 a 
Co

mm
un

ity
 Se

rvi
ce

s F
oru

m 
by

 Se
pte

mb
er 

20
08

 

Page 196



Str
ate

gic
 Pl

an
 20

08
/09

 
Ac

tio
n P

lan
  

 39
 

    

Th
em

e 
5. 
A 
He

alt
hy
 C
om

mu
nit
y 

Pr
ior

ity
  

5.2
 Su

pp
or
t m

en
tal
 he

alt
h s

erv
ice

s t
o i
mp

ro
ve
 m
en
tal
 he

alt
h  

Ob
jec

tiv
e 

5.2
.1 

Pr
ov

idi
ng

 hi
gh

-qu
ali

ty 
ac

ce
ss

ibl
e s

erv
ice

s  
5.2

.2 
Co

mb
ati

ng
 di

sc
rim

ina
tio

n a
ga

ins
t in

div
idu

als
 an

d g
rou

ps
 w

ith
 m

en
tal

 he
alt

h p
rob

lem
s 

5.2
.3 

En
su

rin
g i

nte
gra

ted
 pl

an
nin

g a
nd

 tre
atm

en
t w

ith
 pa

tie
nts

 w
ith

 m
ult

ipl
e h

ea
lth

 ne
ed

s 
Ke

y I
nit

iat
ive

s 
Le
ad
s 

Ke
y M

ile
sto

ne
s  

 
Ali

 
Str

ate
gy

 fo
r C

om
mu

nit
y S

erv
ice

s i
n p

lac
e b

y M
arc

h 2
00

9 
  Page 197



Str
ate

gic
 Pl

an
 20

08
/09

 
Ac

tio
n P

lan
  

 40
 

     
Th
em

e 
5. 
A 
He

alt
hy
 C
om

mu
nit
y 

Pr
ior

ity
  

5.3
 Im

pr
ov
e a

cc
es
s t
o, 
an
d e

xp
eri

en
ce
 of
, h
ea
lth
 se

rvi
ce
s  
 

Ob
jec

tiv
e 

5.3
.1 

Im
pro

vin
g a

cc
es

s t
o G

Ps
, d

ev
elo

pin
g o

ut-
of-

ho
sp

ita
l s

erv
ice

s a
nd

 im
pro

vin
g a

cc
es

s t
o h

igh
 qu

ali
ty 

ma
ter

nit
y c

are
 

5.3
.2 

Re
du

cin
g w

ait
ing

 tim
es

 
5.3

.3 
Pr

om
oti

ng
 se

lf-c
are

 an
d i

mp
rov

ing
 m

an
ag

em
en

t o
f lo

ng
 te

rm
 co

nd
itio

ns
 

 Ke
y I
nit

iat
ive

s 
Le
ad
s 

Ke
y M

ile
sto

ne
s  

De
ve

lop
 pr

op
os

als
 to

 in
co

rpo
rat

e t
he

 LI
NK

s i
nto

 th
e w

ork
 of

 th
e 

He
alt

h S
cru

tin
y b

y S
ep

tem
be

r 2
00

8. 
En

su
re 

the
 H

ea
lth

 Sc
rut

iny
 Pa

ne
l w

ork
 

pro
gra

mm
e h

elp
s t

he
 C

ou
nc

il a
nd

 PC
T 

to 
ac

hie
ve

 th
eir

 sh
are

d o
bje

cti
ve

 to
 

red
uc

e t
he

 ga
p i

n h
ea

lth
 in

eq
ua

litie
s 

Mi
ch

ae
l K

ea
tin

g, 
Ac

tin
g 

As
sis

tan
t C

hie
f E

xe
cu

tiv
e  

Le
ad

 M
em

be
r: C

llr 
Sir

aju
l 

Isl
am

  
De

live
r y

ea
r 3

 of
 fo

ur 
ye

ar 
wo

rk 
pro

gra
mm

e b
y M

arc
h 2

00
9. 

 Page 198



Str
ate

gic
 Pl

an
 20

08
/09

 
Ac

tio
n P

lan
  

 41
 

    6. 
Th
e C

ou
nc
il’s

 Pl
an
nin

g a
nd
 M
on
ito
rin

g F
ram

ew
or
k  

 Th
e C

ou
nc

il’s
 St

rat
eg

ic 
Pla

n i
s o

ur 
co

re 
pla

nn
ing

 do
cu

me
nt.

  It
 si

ts 
wit

hin
 a 

pla
nn

ing
 an

d m
on

ito
rin

g f
ram

ew
ork

 w
ith

 ex
pli

cit
 pr

oc
es

se
s f

or 
mo

nit
ori

ng
 an

d 
ev

alu
ati

ng
 pr

og
res

s, 
so

 th
at 

all
 st

ak
eh

old
ers

 – 
bo

th 
wit

hin
 an

d o
uts

ide
 th

e C
ou

nc
il –

 ca
n u

nd
ers

tan
d e

xa
ctl

y w
ha

t g
oa

ls 
we

 ar
e w

ork
ing

 to
wa

rds
 an

d a
ss

es
s 

ou
r p

rog
res

s. 
Th

e f
ram

ew
ork

 se
ts 

ou
t th

e r
ole

 of
 al

l th
os

e w
ith

in 
the

 C
ou

nc
il, 

its
 se

rvi
ce

s a
nd

 te
am

s –
 an

d a
lso

 of
 ea

ch
 in

div
idu

al 
wit

hin
 th

os
e s

erv
ice

s a
nd

 
tea

ms
 – 

in 
ac

hie
vin

g t
ho

se
 go

als
, a

nd
 se

ts 
ou

t h
ow

 ou
r p

erf
orm

an
ce

 w
ill b

e j
ud

ge
d. 

 Th
e f

ram
ew

ork
 is

 m
ad

e u
p o

f a
 se

rie
s o

f p
lan

s l
ink

ed
 by

 a 
‘go

lde
n t

hre
ad

’ th
rou

gh
 w

hic
h h

igh
 le

ve
l o

bje
cti

ve
s c

as
ca

de
 to

 in
div

idu
al 

go
als

 an
d t

arg
ets

. T
he

 
dia

gra
m 

be
low

 illu
str

ate
s t

he
 lin

ks
 be

tw
ee

n e
ac

h o
f th

es
e p

lan
s. 

 
 

 
Mo

nit
or
ing

 an
d E

va
lua

tio
n 

 Mo
nit

ori
ng

 an
d e

va
lua

tio
n o

f p
rog

res
s t

ow
ard

s a
ch

iev
ing

 ou
r g

oa
ls 

se
t o

ut 
in 

the
 St

rat
eg

ic 
pla

n t
ak

es
 pl

ac
e a

t a
 nu

mb
er 

of 
lev

els
. A

t C
ou

nc
il le

ve
l, t

his
 pl

an
 is

 
ag

ree
d b

y m
em

be
rs 

an
d i

s s
ub

jec
t to

 m
on

ito
rin

g a
nd

 ev
alu

ati
on

 by
 th

e C
orp

ora
te 

Ma
na

ge
me

nt 
Te

am
 (C

MT
), C

ab
ine

t a
nd

 th
e O

ve
rvi

ew
 an

d S
cru

tin
y 

Co
mm

itte
e. 

 

CO
M

M
UN

IT
Y 

PL
AN
 

Th
e v
isio

n a
nd
 ob
jec
tiv
es
 fo
r T
ow
er 
Ha
ml
ets
, a
gre
ed
 by
 th
e T
ow
er 

Ha
ml
ets
 Pa

rtn
ers
hip
 w
ith
 lo
ca
l re
sid
en
ts 
an
d d
eli
ve
red
 th
rou
gh
 th
e L
AA
 

SE
RV

IC
E 

& 
RE

SO
UR

CE
 P

LA
NS
 

Th
es
e l
ink
 op
era
tio
na
l a
im
s &

 ob
jec
tiv
es
 fo
r s
erv
ice
s t
o r
es
ou
rce
 us
e 

TE
AM

 P
LA

NS
 

Th
es
e s
et 
ou
t o
pe
rat
ion
al 
ob
jec
tiv
es
 & 
wo
rk 
pro

gra
mm

es
 fo
r te
am
s 

wo
rki
ng
 w
ith
in 
the
 se
rvi
ce
s 

PE
RS

O
NA

L 
DE

VE
LO

PM
EN

T 
PL

AN
S 

Th
es
e s
et 
ou
t p
erf
orm

an
ce
 ob
jec
tiv
es
 & 
tra
ini
ng
 & 
de
ve
lop
me
nt 
pla
ns
 

for
 in
div
idu
al 
sta
ff 

ST
RA

TE
G

IC
 P

LA
N 

Th
e C

ou
nc
il’s
 co
ntr
ibu
tio
n t
o t
he
 C
om
mu
nit
y P

lan
, it
s c
orp

ora
te 
aim

s, 
ob
jec
tiv
es
 & 
ke
y a
cti
vit
ies
 to
 ac
hie
ve
 th
em
. 

Op
era

tio
na

l 

Br
oa

d 

Sp
ec

ific
 

Str
ate

gic
 

Pu
rpo

se
 

Fo
cu
s 

Page 199



Str
ate

gic
 Pl

an
 20

08
/09

 
Ac

tio
n P

lan
  

 42
 

     Pr
og

res
s a

ga
ins

t th
e S

tra
teg

ic 
pe

rfo
rm

an
ce

 ta
rge

ts 
wit

hin
 th

e P
lan

 is
 re

po
rte

d t
o C

MT
 an

d C
ab

ine
t M

em
be

rs 
at 

tw
o-m

on
thl

y i
nte

rva
ls 

in 
the

 To
we

r H
am

let
s 

Ind
ex

 re
po

rt. 
Pr

og
res

s u
pd

ate
s o

n t
he

 Pl
an

 ar
e u

nd
ert

ak
en

 at
 m

id 
an

d e
nd

 ye
ar.

 Pr
og

res
s o

n k
ey

 in
dic

ato
rs 

is 
rep

ort
ed

 to
 ou

r re
sid

en
ts 

an
nu

all
y t

hro
ug

h a
 

su
pp

lem
en

t w
hic

h g
oe

s t
o a

ll h
om

es
 in

 th
e B

oro
ug

h. 
 Mo

nit
or
ing

 an
d e

va
lua

tio
n 

Wh
o c

on
sid

ers
 th
e r
ep
or
t 

Da
tes

 fo
r r
ep
or
tin
g 

 
 

Mo
nit

ori
ng

 re
po

rts
 ba

se
d o

n p
rog

res
s a

ga
ins

t s
tra

teg
ic 

pe
rfo

rm
an

ce
 in

dic
ato

rs 
via

 th
e T

ow
er 

Ha
ml

ets
 In

de
x 

 CM
T/C

ab
ine

t / 
Ov

erv
iew

 an
d S

cru
tin

y 
Co

mm
itte

e 
  Bi-

mo
nth

ly 
 

Six
 m

on
thl

y m
on

ito
rin

g r
ep

ort
, b

as
ed

 on
: 

• 
Ac

tiv
ity

 an
aly

sis
 

• 
Da

ta 
an

aly
sis

 

  CM
T /

 C
ab

ine
t/ O

ve
rvi

ew
 an

d S
cru

tin
y 

Co
mm

itte
e 

  No
ve

mb
er 

/ D
ec

em
be

r 
an

d  
Ju

ne
 / J

uly
 

 
 An

nu
al 

Re
po

rt t
o r

es
ide

nts
 

 
Dis

trib
ute

d t
o a

ll h
om

es
 in

 th
e 

Bo
rou

gh
 

 Ju
ne

/Ju
ly 

 Th
e s

ix 
mo

nth
ly 

mi
d-y

ea
r m

on
ito

rin
g r

ep
ort

 is
 co

ns
ide

red
, to

ge
the

r w
ith

 ke
y f

ina
nc

ial
 in

for
ma

tio
n, 

an
d u

se
d t

o i
nfo

rm
 re

so
urc

e a
nd

 se
rvi

ce
 pl

an
nin

g f
or 

the
 

ye
ar 

ah
ea

d t
o e

ns
ure

 th
at 

res
ou

rce
s a

re 
pro

pe
rly

 ta
rge

ted
 at

 ke
y p

rio
riti

es
 an

d l
ink

ed
 to

 pe
rfo

rm
an

ce
 go

als
 an

d p
rog

res
s. 

 A k
ey

 as
pe

ct 
of 

eff
ec

tiv
e p

erf
orm

an
ce

 m
an

ag
em

en
t is

 en
su

rin
g t

ha
t th

e p
erf

orm
an

ce
 in

for
ma

tio
n a

ga
ins

t w
hic

h w
e m

ea
su

re 
ou

r p
rog

res
s t

ow
ard

s k
ey

 go
als

 
an

d t
arg

ets
 is

 ac
cu

rat
e, 

rel
iab

le 
an

d t
im

ely
.  W

he
the

r th
e m

on
ito

rin
g t

ak
es

 pl
ac

e a
nn

ua
lly 

or 
mo

re 
fre

qu
en

tly
, th

e q
ua

lity
 of

 ou
r in

for
ma

tio
n i

s e
ss

en
tia

l to
 

en
su

re 
we

 m
ee

t o
ur 

Str
ate

gic
 ai

ms
. In

 or
de

r to
 en

su
re 

the
 qu

ali
ty 

of 
ou

r in
for

ma
tio

n, 
all

 pe
rfo

rm
an

ce
 da

ta 
is 

co
lle

cte
d w

ith
 re

ga
rd 

to 
ou

r D
ata

 Q
ua

lity
 po

licy
, 

an
d i

n p
art

icu
lar

 ou
r o

bje
cti

ve
 to

: 
 En

su
re 

tha
t a

ll in
for

ma
tio

n w
hic

h c
on

trib
ute

s t
o t

he
 C

ou
nc

il’s
 pe

rfo
rm

an
ce

 m
an

ag
em

en
t, w

he
the

r p
rod

uc
ed

 in
ter

na
lly 

or 
ex

ter
na

lly,
 is

 ac
cu

rat
e, 

rel
iab

le 
an

d 
tim

ely
. 

To
 en

su
re 

tha
t o

ur 
da

ta 
qu

ali
ty 

is 
co

nti
nu

ou
sly

 im
pro

vin
g, 

we
 m

on
ito

r o
ur 

pro
gre

ss
 ag

ain
st 

a s
tre

tch
ing

 ac
tio

n p
lan

, w
hic

h i
s r

ev
iew

ed
 by

 th
e P

erf
orm

an
ce

 
Re

vie
w 

Gr
ou

p a
nd

 Au
dit

 C
om

mi
tte

e 

Page 200



Str
ate

gic
 Pl

an
 20

08
/09

 
Ac

tio
n P

lan
  

 43
 

     7. 
Us

e o
f R

es
ou
rce

s 
 Int

ro
du
cti
on
 an

d B
ac
kg
ro
un
d 

Du
rin

g t
he

 fin
an

cia
l y

ea
r 2

00
8-0

9, 
the

 C
ou

nc
il w

ill s
pe

nd
 ne

arl
y £

1.0
3 b

illio
n p

rov
idi

ng
 a 

wid
e r

an
ge

 of
 lo

ca
l s

erv
ice

s. 
Of

 th
is,

 £9
61

 m
illio

n i
s r

ev
en

ue
 sp

en
din

g, 
an

d £
70

 m
illio

n c
ap

ita
l. 

 Int
eg

rat
ed

 Se
rvi

ce
 an

d F
ina

nc
ial

 Pl
an

nin
g 

Th
e C

ou
nc

il’s
 fin

an
cia

l p
lan

nin
g a

nd
 bu

dg
eti

ng
 ta

ke
s p

lac
e a

lon
gs

ide
 its

 pl
an

nin
g f

or 
the

 de
live

ry 
an

d i
mp

rov
em

en
t o

f s
erv

ice
s: 

 - 
 � 

W
e h

av
e a

 m
ed

ium
 te

rm
 fin

an
cia

l p
lan

 w
hic

h e
ns

ure
s t

ha
t o

ur 
se

rvi
ce

 pl
an

s a
re 

aff
ord

ab
le.

  
� 

Th
e f

ina
nc

ial
 im

pli
ca

tio
ns

 of
 pr

op
os

als
 to

 im
pro

ve
 an

d d
ev

elo
p s

erv
ice

s a
re 

ide
nti

fie
d a

nd
 co

ns
ide

red
.  

� 
Re

so
urc

es
 ar

e d
ire

cte
d t

o m
ee

tin
g t

he
 C

ou
nc

il’s
 st

rat
eg

ic 
ob

jec
tiv

es
, a

nd
 th

e b
ud

ge
t p

roc
es

s e
ns

ure
s t

ha
t m

on
ey

 flo
ws

 to
 th

e h
igh

es
t p

rio
riti

es
.  

� 
W

e m
on

ito
r b

oth
 th

e p
erf

orm
an

ce
 of

 se
rvi

ce
s a

nd
 th

eir
 fin

an
ce

s t
o e

ns
ure

 pl
an

s a
re 

de
live

red
 w

ith
in 

bu
dg

et.
 Va

lue
 fo

r m
on

ey
, b

ud
ge

ts 
an

d h
igh

 qu
ali

ty 
se

rvi
ce

s a
re 

de
ep

ly 
em

be
dd

ed
 in

 th
e w

ay
 th

e C
ou

nc
il r

ev
iew

s i
ts 

bu
dg

et 
for

 fu
tur

e y
ea

rs.
 

 Me
diu

m 
Te
rm

 Pl
an
  

Me
diu

m 
ter

m 
fin

an
cia

l p
lan

nin
g i

s a
n i

mp
ort

an
t c

om
po

ne
nt 

of 
the

 C
ou

nc
il’s

 st
rat

eg
ic 

pla
nn

ing
. W

hil
e m

an
y k

ey
 de

cis
ion

s, 
su

ch
 as

 se
ttin

g t
he

 C
ou

nc
il T

ax
, c

an
 

on
ly 

be
 ta

ke
n a

nn
ua

lly,
 th

os
e d

ec
isio

ns
 ne

ed
 to

 be
 se

t in
 th

e c
on

tex
t o

f a
 lo

ng
er 

ter
m 

pla
n. 

 
 W

e p
rep

are
 a 

rol
lin

g t
hre

e-y
ea

r f
ina

nc
ial

 pl
an

 w
ith

 in
dic

ati
ve

 fo
rec

as
ts 

of 
sp

en
din

g, 
go

ve
rnm

en
t g

ran
t a

nd
 C

ou
nc

il T
ax

 le
ve

ls.
 T

his
 pl

an
 ta

ke
s a

cc
ou

nt 
of 

the
 

iss
ue

s s
et 

ou
t in

 th
e F

ina
nc

ial
 C

on
tex

t s
ec

tio
n b

elo
w 

as
 w

ell
 as

 de
mo

gra
ph

ic 
ch

an
ge

s, 
ch

an
ge

s i
n r

es
po

ns
ibi

litie
s, 

inf
lat

ion
, o

ng
oin

g c
os

ts 
as

so
cia

ted
 w

ith
 ou

r 
ca

pit
al 

pro
gra

mm
e, 

eff
icie

nc
y t

arg
ets

 a
nd

 th
e 

im
pa

ct 
of 

pla
nn

ed
 se

rvi
ce

 d
ev

elo
pm

en
ts 

in 
the

 S
tra

teg
ic 

an
d 

Se
rvi

ce
 P

lan
s. 

Th
e 

Me
diu

m 
Te

rm
 P

lan
 h

elp
s 

en
su

re 
tha

t th
e C

ou
nc

il’s
 fin

an
cia

l p
lan

s a
re 

su
sta

ina
ble

 an
d t

o i
de

nti
fy 

op
po

rtu
nit

ies
 fo

r m
ov

ing
 re

so
urc

es
 in

to 
str

ate
gic

 pr
ior

ity
 ar

ea
s. 

    
 Th

e t
ab

le 
be

low
 su

mm
ari

se
s t

he
 C

ou
nc

il’s
 M

ed
ium

 Te
rm

 Fi
na

nc
ial

 Pr
oje

cti
on

 fo
r th

e p
eri

od
 20

08
/09

-20
10

/11
.  F

igu
res

 fo
r 2

00
9/1

0 a
nd

 20
10

/11
 ar

e 
pro

jec
tio

ns
 an

d d
ec

isio
ns

 on
 th

es
e w

ill b
e t

ak
en

 as
 pa

rt o
f fu

tur
e b

ud
ge

t ro
un

ds
.  

   
  

  
  

ME
DI
UM

 TE
RM

 FI
NA

NC
IA
L P

RO
JE
CT

IO
N 

 
 

  
  

20
08
/09

 
20
09
/10

 
20
10
/11

 
  

£'0
00
 

£'0
00
 

£'0
00
 

  
 

 
  

Op
en
ing

 B
ud
ge
t R

eq
uir

em
en
t 

28
6,3

57
 

29
5,4

98
 

30
0,0

67
 

  
 

 
  

Inf
lat

ion
 

5,9
32

 
6,2

22
 

6,4
94

 

Page 201



Str
ate

gic
 Pl

an
 20

08
/09

 
Ac

tio
n P

lan
  

 44
 

    Co
mm

itte
d G

row
th 

 
 

 
  

    
 Ap

pro
ve

d 
7,8

64
 

2,3
78

 
2,3

98
 

    
 Pr

ov
isio

n f
or 

un
ide

nti
fie

d g
row

th 
50

4 
1,9

00
 

0 
Re

ve
nu

e P
rov

isio
n f

or 
Ca

pit
al 

1,6
97

 
-1,

46
1 

-23
6 

  
 

 
  

Sa
vin

gs
 

-6,
34

6 
-3,

97
0 

-2,
69

4 
  

 
 

  
  

29
6,0

08
 

30
0,5

67
 

30
6,0

29
 

  
 

 
  

Ch
an

ge
s i

n c
on

trib
uti

on
s t

o R
es

erv
es

 
-51

0 
-50

0 
0 

  
 

 
  

Bu
dg
et 
Re

qu
ire
me

nt 
29

5,4
98

 
30

0,0
67

 
30

6,0
29

 
  

 
 

  
Fo

rm
ula

 G
ran

t 
-22

4,9
97

 
-22

8,8
16

 
-23

2,2
04

 
Co

lle
cti

on
 Fu

nd
 Su

rpl
us

 
-1,

50
5 

0 
0 

  
 

 
  

  
68

,99
6 

71
,25

1 
73

,82
5 

  
 

 
  

Ba
nd

 D
 C

ou
nc

il T
ax

 
£8

65
.64

 
£8

87
.28

* 
£9

09
.46

* 
  

 
 

  
Ch

an
ge

 in
 C

ou
nc

il T
ax

 
3.5

0%
 

2.5
0%

* 
2.5

0%
* 

  
  

  
  

* 
Ple

as
e n

ote
, C

ou
nc

il T
ax

 fig
ure

s f
or 

20
09

/10
 an

d 2
01

0/1
1 h

av
e n

ot 
be

en
 ap

pro
ve

d b
y t

he
 C

ou
nc

il a
nd

 ar
e f

or 
illu

str
ati

on
 on

ly.
  

 Fin
an
cia

l M
an
ag
em

en
t 

Th
e C

ou
nc

il’s
 fin

an
cia

l m
an

ag
em

en
t s

ys
tem

s a
re 

the
re 

to:
 

 • 
Ma

xim
ise

 th
e r

es
ou

rce
s a

va
ila

ble
 to

 de
live

r th
e o

bje
cti

ve
s o

f th
e C

ou
nc

il a
nd

 th
e P

art
ne

rsh
ip 

 
• 

Me
as

ure
 pe

rfo
rm

an
ce

 ag
ain

st 
bu

dg
ets

 
• 

Mo
nit

or 
bo

th 
fin

an
cia

l a
nd

 no
n-f

ina
nc

ial
 in

dic
ato

rs 
in 

a c
on

sis
ten

t m
an

ne
r 

• 
Op

tim
ise

 th
e u

se
 of

 ex
ist

ing
 re

so
urc

es
 th

rou
gh

 ef
fec

tiv
e p

roc
ure

me
nt,

 de
live

rin
g v

alu
e f

or 
mo

ne
y ,

 an
d p

art
ne

rsh
ip 

wo
rki

ng
 

• 
Ba

lan
ce

  th
e n

ee
d f

or 
se

rvi
ce

 de
ve

lop
me

nt 
wit

h t
he

 de
ma

nd
s p

lac
ed

 on
 C

ou
nc

il T
ax

 pa
ye

rs.
 

• 
Ali

gn
 ou

r s
pe

nd
ing

 pl
an

s w
ith

 th
e p

rio
riti

es
 se

t o
ut 

in 
the

 C
om

mu
nit

y a
nd

 St
rat

eg
ic 

Pla
ns

 

Page 202



Str
ate

gic
 Pl

an
 20

08
/09

 
Ac

tio
n P

lan
  

 45
 

    • 
Ma

int
ain

 an
d e

nh
an

ce
 co

nfi
de

nc
e i

n t
he

 C
ou

nc
il’s

 st
ew

ard
sh

ip 
of 

pu
bli

c m
on

ey
 

• 
Co

ntr
ibu

te 
to 

the
 ov

era
ll a

rra
ng

em
en

ts 
for

 co
rpo

rat
e g

ov
ern

an
ce

 
• 

De
live

r e
ffic

ien
cy

 im
pro

ve
me

nts
 in

 ex
ce

ss
 of

 G
ov

ern
me

nt 
tar

ge
ts 

 
  Re

so
ur
ce
s f
or
 th
e Y

ea
r A

he
ad
 

Th
e t

ab
le 

be
low

 se
ts 

ou
t o

ur 
es

tim
ate

d r
ev

en
ue

 sp
en

din
g f

or 
the

 ye
ar 

20
08

/09
. R

ev
en

ue
 ex

pe
nd

itu
re 

is 
the

 da
y-t

o-d
ay

 co
sts

 of
 ru

nn
ing

 se
rvi

ce
s. 

 Re
ve

nu
e B

ud
ge

t fo
r 2

00
8/0

9 
Di
rec

tor
ate

 
Gr
os
s 

Ex
pe
nd
itu

re 
(£’
00
0) 

Inc
om

e 
(£’
00
0) 

Ne
t 

Ex
pe
nd
itu

re 
(£’
00
0) 

Ad
ult

 Se
rvi

ce
s  

14
9,6

17
 

63
,68

3 
85

,93
4 

Ch
ild

ren
’s 

Se
rvi

ce
s 

36
0,0

11
 

28
0,0

05
 

80
,00

6 
De

ve
lop

me
nt 

& R
en

ew
al 

an
d H

ou
sin

g G
en

era
l F

un
d 

21
6,6

96
 

20
0,6

88
 

16
,00

8 
Co

mm
un

itie
s &

 Lo
ca

litie
s 

10
2,2

51
 

31
,23

2 
71

,01
9 

Ch
ief

 Ex
ec

uti
ve

’s 
& O

the
r C

orp
ora

te 
18

,45
2 

7,3
81

 
11

,07
1 

Re
so

urc
es

 
11

4,5
62

 
85

,25
8 

29
,30

4 
To
tal
 

96
1,6

89
 
66
8,2

47
 

29
3,3

42
 

 Ca
pit

al 
Inv

es
tm

en
t 

Ca
pit

al 
sp

en
din

g i
s a

bo
ut 

inv
es

tin
g i

n t
he

 bu
ild

ing
s a

nd
 ot

he
r a

ss
ets

 w
e n

ee
d t

o d
eli

ve
r s

erv
ice

s. 
 O

ur 
Ca

pit
al 

Str
ate

gy
 pr

ov
ide

s t
he

 ba
sis

 fo
r e

va
lua

tin
g c

ap
ita

l 
pro

po
sa

ls 
an

d p
rio

riti
sin

g c
ap

ita
l in

ve
stm

en
t. C

ap
ita

l re
so

urc
es

 ar
e a

llo
ca

ted
 to

 in
ve

stm
en

t p
rog

ram
me

s a
nd

 pr
oje

cts
 th

at 
off

er 
the

 m
os

t c
os

t-e
ffe

cti
ve

 
co

ntr
ibu

tio
n t

o a
ch

iev
ing

 co
rpo

rat
e p

rio
riti

es
. C

los
ely

 al
ign

ed
 to

 th
e C

ap
ita

l S
tra

teg
y i

s o
ur 

As
se

t M
an

ag
em

en
t P

lan
, w

hic
h s

ets
 ou

t o
ur 

ap
pro

ac
h t

o t
he

 
ma

na
ge

me
nt 

of 
ou

r e
xis

tin
g p

rop
ert

y p
ort

fol
io 

an
d i

ts 
rol

e i
n s

up
po

rtin
g c

orp
ora

te 
an

d s
erv

ice
 ob

jec
tiv

es
. 

 Th
e t

ab
le 

be
low

 sh
ow

s h
ow

 ca
pit

al 
inv

es
tm

en
t p

rog
ram

me
d f

or 
the

 ne
xt 

thr
ee

 ye
ars

 is
 al

loc
ate

d t
o e

ac
h o

f th
e C

om
mu

nit
y P

lan
 th

em
es

.  
     Page 203



Str
ate

gic
 Pl

an
 20

08
/09

 
Ac

tio
n P

lan
  

 46
 

    

20
08

/09
20

09
/10

20
10

/11

(£’
00

0)
(£’

00
0)

(£’
00

0)
Liv

ing
 sa

fel
y

1,6
63

1,3
00

1,2
70

Liv
ing

 w
ell

48
,15

0
40

,25
0

40
,88

6
Cr

ea
tin

g &
 sh

ari
ng

 pr
os

pe
rity

0
0

0
Le

arn
ing

, a
ch

iev
em

en
t &

 le
isu

re
16

,20
4

26
,27

1
43

,95
5

Ex
ce

lle
nt 

pu
bli

c s
erv

ice
s

1,4
00

1,1
50

1,1
50

TO
TA

L
67

,41
7

68
,97

1
87

,26
1

3,7
00

22
3,6

49

CA
PI

TA
L P

RO
GR

AM
ME

 20
08

/09
- 2

01
0/1

1

4,2
33

12
9,2

86 0
86

,43
0

Co
mm

un
ity

 Pl
an

 Th
em

e
To

tal

(£’
00

0)

 
 Fin

an
cia

l C
on
tex

t 
Th

e C
ou

nc
il f

ac
es

 a 
nu

mb
er 

of 
ma

jor
 st

rat
eg

ic 
an

d s
erv

ice
 is

su
es

 ov
er 

its
 st

rat
eg

ic 
pla

nn
ing

 cy
cle

, m
an

y o
f w

hic
h h

av
e f

ina
nc

ial
 im

pli
ca

tio
ns

. In
 ad

dit
ion

, o
ur 

pla
nn

ing
 pr

oc
es

se
s a

re 
tak

ing
 pl

ac
e a

ga
ins

t th
e b

ac
kg

rou
nd

 of
 si

gn
ific

an
t c

ha
ng

es
 to

 th
e e

xte
rna

l fi
na

nc
ial

 en
vir

on
me

nt.
 To

ge
the

r th
es

e m
ea

n a
 ch

all
en

gin
g 

ag
en

da
 fo

r th
e C

ou
nc

il, 
an

d m
us

t b
e c

on
sid

ere
d a

s p
art

 of
 th

e c
on

tex
t fo

r o
ur 

str
ate

gic
 pl

an
nin

g. 
So

me
 of

 th
e k

ey
 is

su
es

 ar
e s

et 
ou

t b
elo

w.
 

 Sp
en

din
g R

ev
iew

 20
07

 an
d C

ha
ng

es
 to

 th
e L

oc
al 

Go
ve

rn
me

nt 
Fin

an
ce
 Sy

ste
m 

Th
e G

ov
ern

me
nt 

an
no

un
ce

d t
he

 re
su

lts
 of

 its
 la

tes
t p

ub
lic 

se
cto

r s
pe

nd
ing

 re
vie

w 
in 

Oc
tob

er 
20

07
 an

d r
ev

iew
ed

 th
e d

ist
rib

uti
on

 of
 gr

an
ts 

to 
loc

al 
au

tho
riti

es
 at

 
the

 sa
me

 tim
e. 

 Th
e i

mp
ac

t o
f th

e t
wo

 an
no

un
ce

me
nts

 is
 th

at 
To

we
r H

am
let

s w
ill r

ec
eiv

e i
nc

rea
se

s i
n g

ran
t fu

nd
ing

 at
 be

low
 th

e r
ate

 of
 in

fla
tio

n f
or 

the
 ne

xt 
thr

ee
 ye

ars
 an

d p
rob

ab
ly 

for
 lo

ng
er.

   T
he

 G
ov

ern
me

nt 
als

o t
oo

k t
he

 op
po

rtu
nit

y o
f th

e s
pe

nd
ing

 re
vie

w 
to 

an
no

un
ce

 a 
thr

ee
 ye

ar 
fin

an
cia

l s
ett

lem
en

t fo
r lo

ca
l 

au
tho

riti
es

 fo
r th

e f
irs

t ti
me

. T
ow

er 
Ha

ml
ets

 ha
s t

ak
en

 ad
va

nta
ge

 of
 th

e t
hre

e y
ea

r s
ett

lem
en

t a
nd

 its
 M

ed
ium

 Te
rm

 Fi
na

nc
ial

 Pl
an

 fo
r 2

00
8-2

01
1 t

ak
es

 
ac

co
un

t o
f th

e t
igh

ter
 gr

an
t p

os
itio

n a
nd

 se
ts 

ba
lan

ce
d b

ud
ge

ts 
for

 th
e n

ex
t th

ree
 ye

ars
, w

hil
e c

on
tin

uin
g t

o i
mp

rov
e p

rio
rity

 se
rvi

ce
s a

nd
 m

ain
tai

n a
 lo

w 
Co

un
cil 

Ta
x. 

 
 Ca

pit
al 

Fu
nd

ing
 

Fu
nd

ing
 fo

r th
e C

ou
nc

il’s
 ca

pit
al 

pro
gra

mm
e c

om
es

 fro
m 

a v
ari

ety
 of

 so
urc

es
: p

rev
iou

sly
 on

e o
f th

e m
os

t s
ign

ific
an

t o
f th

es
e h

as
 be

en
 ca

pit
al 

rec
eip

ts 
fro

m 
the

 
sa

le 
of 

Co
un

cil 
as

se
ts.

 Fu
nd

ing
 fro

m 
thi

s s
ou

rce
 ha

s r
ed

uc
ed

 si
gn

ific
an

tly
, p

rin
cip

all
y d

ue
 to

 ch
an

ge
s i

n l
eg

isla
tio

n g
ov

ern
ing

 th
e r

igh
t to

 bu
y C

ou
nc

il h
ou

se
s. 

Th
e a

uth
ori

ty 
ha

s t
he

ref
ore

 re
vie

we
d i

ts 
str

ate
gy

 fo
r fu

nd
ing

 af
for

da
ble

 ca
pit

al 
inv

es
tm

en
t in

 th
e l

igh
t o

f th
is,

 re
vis

itin
g i

ts 
sp

en
din

g p
rio

riti
es

 an
d i

de
nti

fyi
ng

 
alt

ern
ati

ve
 so

urc
es

 of
 fu

nd
ing

 as
 ne

ce
ss

ary
. 

 Lo
ca
l P

ub
lic
 Se

rvi
ce
 A
gr
ee
me

nt 
an
d L

oc
al 
Ar
ea
 A
gr
ee
me

nt 
Th

e C
ou

nc
il a

nd
 its

 pa
rtn

ers
 in

 th
e T

ow
er 

Ha
ml

ets
 Pa

rtn
ers

hip
 ne

go
tia

ted
 a 

se
co

nd
 Lo

ca
l P

ub
lic 

Se
rvi

ce
 Ag

ree
me

nt 
(LP

SA
) to

 ru
n f

rom
 Ap

ril 
20

05
 to

 M
ay

 
20

08
.  T

he
 fu

ll a
ch

iev
em

en
t o

f th
es

e s
tre

tch
ing

 LP
SA

 ta
rge

ts 
wo

uld
 br

ing
 ad

dit
ion

al 
rew

ard
 gr

an
t fu

nd
ing

 of
 ap

pro
xim

ate
ly 

£1
0.1

96
M.

  A
 ne

w 
Lo

ca
l A

rea
 

Ag
ree

me
nt 

wil
l b

e n
eg

oti
ate

d b
y J

un
e 2

00
8, 

pro
vid

ing
 a 

fur
the

r o
pp

ort
un

ity
 to

 ac
hie

ve
 a 

rew
ard

 gr
an

t in
 20

11
.   

 
 De

ce
nt 

Ho
me

s 

Page 204



Str
ate

gic
 Pl

an
 20

08
/09

 
Ac

tio
n P

lan
  

 47
 

    Th
e C

ou
nc

il h
as

 ad
op

ted
 a 

lon
g t

erm
 st

rat
eg

y t
o l

ev
er 

in 
as

 m
uc

h f
un

din
g a

s p
os

sib
le 

tow
ard

s t
he

 co
st 

of 
me

eti
ng

 th
e D

ec
en

t H
om

es
 St

an
da

rd.
 Th

e n
um

be
r o

f 
dw

ell
ing

s d
ire

ctl
y m

an
ag

ed
 by

 th
e C

ou
nc

il h
as

 re
du

ce
d a

s a
 re

su
lt o

f o
ng

oin
g t

ran
sfe

r o
f o

wn
ers

hip
 to

 R
eg

ist
ere

d S
oc

ial
 La

nd
lor

ds
. T

his
 ha

s s
ign

ific
an

t 
im

pli
ca

tio
ns

 fo
r th

e C
ou

nc
il a

s a
 w

ho
le,

 as
 it 

ha
s n

ee
de

d t
o r

es
ha

pe
 bo

th 
dir

ec
t s

erv
ice

s a
nd

 su
pp

ort
 se

rvi
ce

s t
o r

efl
ec

t lo
we

r le
ve

ls 
of 

ac
tiv

ity
.  F

or 
the

 
rem

ain
ing

 ho
us

ing
 st

oc
k, 

ma
na

ge
me

nt 
ha

s b
ee

n t
ran

sfe
rre

d t
o a

n A
rm

’s 
Le

ng
th 

Ma
na

ge
me

nt 
Or

ga
nis

ati
on

, T
ow

er 
Ha

ml
ets

 H
om

es
. F

or 
so

me
 es

tat
es

, n
ota

bly
 

Oc
ea

n a
nd

 Bl
ac

kw
all

 R
ea

ch
, s

pe
cif

ic 
red

ev
elo

pm
en

t p
lan

s a
re 

be
ing

 sh
ap

ed
 to

 dr
aw

 in
 th

e a
dd

itio
na

l in
ve

stm
en

t fu
nd

ing
 re

qu
ire

d. 
 

Of
fic

e A
cc

om
mo

da
tio

n S
tra

teg
y 

Th
e C

ou
nc

il h
as

 de
ve

lop
ed

 an
d i

s c
urr

en
tly

 im
ple

me
nti

ng
 a 

lon
g-t

erm
 st

rat
eg

y f
or 

the
 ra

tio
na

lisa
tio

n o
f it

s o
ffic

e a
cc

om
mo

da
tio

n. 
Th

e S
tra

teg
y h

as
 ce

ntr
ali

se
d 

ba
ck

-of
fic

e s
erv

ice
s a

t th
e E

as
t In

dia
 D

oc
k c

om
ple

x a
nd

 in
tro

du
ce

d n
ew

 w
ork

ing
 pr

ac
tic

es
, te

lep
ho

ne
 an

d I
CT

, w
ith

 th
e a

im
 of

 de
live

rin
g s

ign
ific

an
t o

ng
oin

g 
fin

an
cia

l s
av

ing
s, 

oth
er 

eff
icie

nc
y i

mp
rov

em
en

ts,
 im

pro
ve

d a
cc

es
s t

o C
ou

nc
il s

erv
ice

s a
nd

 cu
sto

me
r s

erv
ice

,, b
ett

er 
co

mm
un

ica
tio

ns
 an

d a
 m

ore
 pr

od
uc

tiv
e 

wo
rki

ng
 en

vir
on

me
nt 

for
 C

ou
nc

il s
taf

f.  
Th

e p
roj

ec
t w

ill b
e p

aid
 fo

r b
y s

ell
ing

 of
f s

urp
lus

 of
fic

e a
cc

om
mo

da
tio

n v
ac

ate
d t

hro
ug

h t
he

 St
rat

eg
y. 

  
 Ef

fic
ien

cy
 an

d V
alu

e f
or

 m
on

ey
 

Th
e C

ou
nc

il’s
 ap

pro
ac

h t
o e

ffic
ien

cy
 is

 em
be

dd
ed

 in
 th

e s
tra

teg
ic 

pla
nn

ing
 fra

me
wo

rk 
su

mm
ari

se
d i

n t
his

 do
cu

me
nt.

 Th
at 

fra
me

wo
rk 

is 
de

sig
ne

d t
o e

ns
ure

 
tha

t a
ll r

es
ou

rce
s a

va
ila

ble
 to

 th
e C

ou
nc

il a
re 

dir
ec

ted
 to

wa
rds

 m
ax

im
isin

g i
mp

ac
t in

 te
rm

s o
f im

pro
ve

d s
erv

ice
 ou

tco
me

s a
nd

 th
e a

ch
iev

em
en

t o
f s

tra
teg

ic 
ob

jec
tiv

es
.  

Th
e d

eli
ve

ry 
of 

eff
icie

nc
y i

mp
rov

em
en

ts 
ha

s a
lso

 be
en

 a 
co

ns
ist

en
t o

bje
cti

ve
 of

 th
e C

ou
nc

il’s
 fin

an
cia

l m
an

ag
em

en
t p

roc
es

se
s. 

Fin
an

cia
l p

lan
nin

g a
nd

 
bu

dg
eta

ry 
pro

ce
ss

es
 ar

e d
es

ign
ed

 to
 id

en
tify

 an
d r

ea
lise

 an
nu

al 
eff

icie
nc

y g
ain

s, 
an

d t
his

 co
nti

nu
es

 to
 co

ntr
ibu

te 
to 

To
we

r H
am

let
s’ 

Co
un

cil 
Ta

x b
ein

g o
ne

 of
 

the
 lo

we
st 

of 
all

 33
 Lo

nd
on

 C
ou

nc
ils.

  
 

Th
e C

ou
nc
il w

ill 
se
ek
 fu
rth

er 
op
po
rtu

nit
ies

 fo
r e

ffic
ien

cie
s i
n a

ll o
f it
s m

ain
 ar

ea
s o

f r
es
ou
rce

 co
ns
um

pti
on
 an

d i
nc
or
po
rat

e t
he
se
 in
to 
its
 

str
ate

gie
s f
or
 hu

ma
n r

es
ou
rce

s, 
inf

or
ma

tio
n &

 co
mm

un
ica

tio
ns
 te
ch
no
log

y, 
as
se
t m

an
ag
em

en
t, a

nd
 pr

oc
ur
em

en
t. W

e w
ill 
als

o c
on
sid

er 
ne
w 

op
po
rtu

nit
ies

 fo
r e
ffic

ien
cy
 im

pr
ov
em

en
t, i
nc
lud

ing
 th
os
e p

res
en
ted

 by
 na

tio
na
l a
nd
 re
gio

na
l in

itia
tiv
es
 e.
g. 
sh
are

d s
erv

ice
s, 
bu
sin

es
s p

ro
ce
ss
 

ree
ng
ine

eri
ng
, P
rio

rit
y O

utc
om

es
, a
nd
 th
e n

ati
on
al 
tra

ns
for

ma
tio

na
l e
-go

ve
rn
me

nt 
pr
og
ram

me
.  

 Pr
oc
ur
em

en
t S

tra
teg

y 
Th

e t
erm

 ‘p
roc

ure
me

nt’
 co

ve
rs 

the
 pr

oc
es

se
s f

or 
ac

qu
isit

ion
 of

 go
od

s, 
wo

rks
 an

d s
erv

ice
s. 

 Al
l C

ou
nc

il s
erv

ice
s a

re 
inv

olv
ed

 in
 so

me
 fo

rm
 of

 pr
oc

ure
me

nt.
  

Th
e C

ou
nc

il’s
 Pr

oc
ure

me
nt 

Str
ate

gy
 pr

ov
ide

s a
 se

rio
us

 of
 st

rat
eg

ic 
ob

jec
tiv

es
 ar

ou
nd

 th
e a

cq
uis

itio
n o

f g
oo

ds
, w

ork
s a

nd
 se

rvi
ce

s. 
 Th

e P
roc

ure
me

nt 
Str

ate
gy

 
su

pp
ort

s t
he

 C
ou

nc
il’s

 vi
sio

n a
nd

 w
ill a

ss
ist

 it 
to 

ac
hie

ve
 th

e c
orp

ora
te 

ob
jec

tiv
es

 an
d t

o d
eli

ve
r B

es
t V

alu
e. 

 Pr
oc

ure
me

nt 
is 

ba
se

d o
n t

he
 fu

nd
am

en
tal

 
pri

nc
ipl

e t
ha

t th
e p

rov
isio

n o
f a

 se
rvi

ce
 sh

ou
ld 

be
 ca

rrie
d o

ut 
by

 th
e s

up
pli

er 
be

st 
su

ite
d, 

wh
eth

er 
tha

t b
e i

n-h
ou

se
, o

the
r p

ub
lic 

pro
vid

ers
, p

riv
ate

 or
 vo

lun
tar

y 
se

cto
rs.

 Th
e S

tra
teg

y r
eq

uir
es

 th
at 

ea
ch

 pr
oc

ure
me

nt 
is 

ev
alu

ate
d o

n t
he

 ba
sis

 of
 a 

nu
mb

er 
of 

cri
ter

ia.
 Th

es
e i

nc
lud

e: 
 

• 
Str

ate
gic

 C
ha

lle
ng

e 
• 

De
live

ry/
pe

rfo
rm

an
ce

 ag
ain

st 
ne

ed
 

• 
Qu

ali
ty 

 
• 

Fu
tur

e S
erv

ice
 R

eq
uir

em
en

ts 
• 

W
ho

le 
life

 co
st 

Page 205



Str
ate

gic
 Pl

an
 20

08
/09

 
Ac

tio
n P

lan
  

 48
 

    

• 
Ma

rke
t C

on
dit

ion
s 

• 
Ris

k A
na

lys
is 

• 
Co

st/
pri

ce
 

• 
Th

e L
oc

al 
En

vir
on

me
nt 

• 
Op

era
tio

na
l n

ee
d 

 Me
ch

an
ism

s t
o m

ea
su

re 
the

 co
ntr

ibu
tio

n o
f p

roc
ure

me
nt 

wil
l b

e i
n p

lac
e i

n 2
00

8/0
9 w

ith
 a 

vie
w 

to 
en

ha
nc

ing
 pr

oc
es

se
s, 

en
su

rin
g b

ett
er 

va
lue

 fo
r m

on
ey

 an
d 

im
pro

vin
g s

erv
ice

 ou
tco

me
s. 

 Ri
sk
 M
an
ag
em

en
t  

Ris
k m

an
ag

em
en

t is
 de

fin
ed

 as
 th

e e
ffe

cti
ve

 m
an

ag
em

en
t o

f b
oth

 po
ten

tia
l o

pp
ort

un
itie

s a
nd

 th
rea

ts 
to 

the
 C

ou
nc

il a
ch

iev
ing

 its
 ob

jec
tiv

es
. 

 Th
e C

ou
nc

il f
irm

ly 
be

lie
ve

s t
ha

t e
ffe

cti
ve

 ris
k m

an
ag

em
en

t is
 an

 es
se

nti
al 

ele
me

nt 
of 

co
rpo

rat
e g

ov
ern

an
ce

 an
d h

as
 a 

str
ate

gy
 to

 m
an

ag
e r

isk
s a

ris
ing

 fro
m 

its
 

op
era

tio
ns

, in
itia

tiv
es

 an
d p

art
ne

rsh
ips

. T
he

 ai
m 

is 
to 

en
ab

le 
the

 ac
hie

ve
me

nt 
of 

str
ate

gic
 an

d s
erv

ice
 ob

jec
tiv

es
 in

 th
e m

os
t o

pti
mu

m 
wa

y, 
rec

og
nis

ing
 

op
po

rtu
nit

ies
 an

d c
on

tro
llin

g n
eg

ati
ve

 fa
cto

rs 
or 

ris
ks

 th
at 

co
uld

 im
pa

ct 
su

cc
es

s. 
 

 Th
e C

ou
nc

il s
ee

ks
 to

 m
ini

mi
se

 un
ne

ce
ss

ary
 ris

k a
nd

 m
an

ag
e r

es
idu

al 
ris

k c
om

me
ns

ura
te 

wit
h i

ts 
sta

tus
 as

 a 
pu

bli
c b

od
y. 

Ho
we

ve
r, t

he
 C

ou
nc

il w
ill p

os
itiv

ely
 

de
cid

e t
o t

ak
e r

isk
s i

n p
urs

uit
 of

 its
 am

bit
ion

s f
or 

loc
al 

pe
op

le 
wh

ere
 it 

ha
s s

uff
icie

nt 
as

su
ran

ce
 th

at 
ris

ks
:- 

• 
Ha

ve
 be

en
 pr

op
erl

y i
de

nti
fie

d a
nd

 as
se

ss
ed

 
• 

W
ill b

e a
pp

rop
ria

tel
y m

an
ag

ed
, in

clu
din

g t
ak

ing
 m

itig
ati

ng
 ac

tio
ns

, a
nd

 re
gu

lar
 re

vie
w 

of 
like

lih
oo

d a
nd

 im
pa

ct 
• 

Ar
e j

us
tifi

ed
 in

 re
lat

ion
 to

 th
e p

ote
nti

al 
be

ne
fits

 ac
cru

ing
 to

 th
e c

om
mu

nit
y  

 Th
e C

ou
nc

il h
as

 fo
rm

all
y a

do
pte

d a
 R

isk
 M

an
ag

em
en

t P
oli

cy
 an

d S
tra

teg
y t

o s
up

po
rt i

ts 
ap

pro
ac

h t
o r

isk
 m

an
ag

em
en

t. R
isk

s a
re 

ge
ne

ral
ly 

ide
nti

fie
d a

t p
roj

ec
t 

lev
el 

an
d m

an
ag

ed
 by

 th
e p

roj
ec

t m
an

ag
er.

 Ke
y l

eg
al 

an
d f

ina
nc

ial
 ris

ks
 as

so
cia

ted
 w

ith
 pa

rtic
ula

r p
roj

ec
ts 

are
 sp

ec
ific

all
y h

igh
lig

hte
d i

n r
ep

ort
s s

ee
kin

g 
de

cis
ion

s o
r a

pp
rov

al 
for

 ac
tio

n. 
Th

e r
isk

s a
ss

oc
iat

ed
 w

ith
 w

ork
ing

 in
 pa

rtn
ers

hip
 ar

e c
ap

tur
ed

 in
 a 

pa
rtn

ers
hip

 ris
k r

eg
ist

er 
an

d a
re 

mo
nit

ore
d t

hro
ug

h t
he

 ris
k-

rep
ort

ing
 fra

me
wo

rk.
 Th

e r
isk

s t
o t

he
 ac

hie
ve

me
nt 

of 
co

rpo
rat

e a
nd

 se
rvi

ce
 ob

jec
tiv

es
 ar

e a
cti

ve
ly 

co
ns

ide
red

 as
 pa

rt o
f s

erv
ice

 pl
an

nin
g a

nd
 th

e i
de

nti
fic

ati
on

 
of 

ris
ks

 is
 a 

ke
y p

art
 of

 th
e p

lan
nin

g f
ram

ew
ork

 at
 al

l le
ve

ls.
 

 Th
e A

uth
ori

ty 
ma

int
ain

s a
 C

orp
ora

te 
Ris

k R
eg

ist
er 

tha
t id

en
tifi

es
 th

e m
os

t s
ign

ific
an

t c
orp

ora
te 

an
d s

tra
teg

ic 
ris

ks
. T

he
 re

gis
ter

 co
nta

ins
 de

tai
ls 

of 
the

 pr
inc

ipa
l 

ris
ks

 to
 th

e a
ch

iev
em

en
t o

f th
e o

bje
cti

ve
s a

nd
 ta

rge
ts 

in 
thi

s p
lan

. T
he

se
 ar

e: 
• 

tho
se

 th
at 

are
 in

he
ren

t in
 th

e b
us

ine
ss

 of
 a 

loc
al 

au
tho

rity
  - 

for
 ex

am
ple

 re
sp

on
sib

iliti
es

 to
 vu

lne
rab

le 
pe

op
le,

 th
e n

ee
d t

o h
ou

se
 ho

me
les

s p
eo

ple
 an

d 
ma

int
en

an
ce

 of
 ef

fec
tiv

e f
ina

nc
ial

 an
d i

nfo
rm

ati
on

 m
an

ag
em

en
t s

ys
tem

s; 
• 

tho
se

 th
at 

ari
se

 fro
m 

str
ate

gic
 in

itia
tiv

es
 of

 th
e C

ou
nc

il  
- fo

r e
xa

mp
le 

the
 de

ve
lop

me
nt 

of 
an

 Ar
ms

 Le
ng

th 
Ma

na
ge

me
nt 

Or
ga

nis
ati

on
 an

d i
mp

rov
em

en
ts 

to 
cu

sto
me

r a
cc

es
s t

o C
ou

nc
il s

erv
ice

s; 
an

d 
• 

tho
se

 th
at 

ari
se

 fro
m 

ini
tia

tiv
es

 to
 im

pro
ve

 th
e b

us
ine

ss
 in

fra
str

uc
tur

e o
f th

e C
ou

nc
il  

- fo
r e

xa
mp

le 
the

 ac
co

mm
od

ati
on

 st
rat

eg
y, 

the
 IC

T/e
-G

ov
ern

me
nt 

pro
gra

mm
e, 

an
d m

an
ag

em
en

t o
f c

ha
ng

e. 
 Page 206



Str
ate

gic
 Pl

an
 20

08
/09

 
Ac

tio
n P

lan
  

 49
 

    Ea
ch

 of
 th

es
e r

isk
s i

s a
ss

es
se

d f
or 

like
lih

oo
d a

nd
 im

pa
ct 

an
d h

as
 a 

res
po

ns
ibl

e o
wn

er 
an

d p
rog

ram
me

 of
 m

itig
ati

ng
 ac

tio
ns

/co
ntr

ols
. T

he
 re

gis
ter

 is
 up

da
ted

 
thr

ou
gh

ou
t o

ut 
the

 ye
ar 

an
d r

ep
ort

ed
 qu

art
erl

y t
o t

he
 C

orp
ora

te 
Ma

na
ge

me
nt 

Te
am

. E
ac

h s
erv

ice
 m

ain
tai

ns
 its

 ow
n r

eg
ist

er 
of 

ris
ks

 th
at 

fee
ds

 in
to 

the
 

co
rpo

rat
e m

on
ito

rin
g a

nd
 ev

alu
ati

on
 pr

oc
es

s. 
In 

thi
s w

ay
 se

nio
r m

an
ag

ers
 as

se
ss

 ris
ks

, d
ev

elo
p m

itig
ati

ng
 ac

tio
ns

, a
nd

 m
on

ito
r p

rog
res

s i
n a

 sy
ste

ma
tic

 
ma

nn
er.

 Th
is 

ap
pro

ac
h i

s i
nte

nd
ed

 to
 st

ren
gth

en
 th

e o
ve

ral
l c

orp
ora

te 
go

ve
rna

nc
e e

nv
iro

nm
en

t. 
 Page 207



Str
ate

gic
 Pl

an
 20

08
/09

 
Ac

tio
n P

lan
  

 50
 

      Lis
t o
f C

on
tac

t O
ffic

ers
  

 Na
me

  
 

 
Di
rec

tor
ate

 
Co

nta
ct 
 

An
dre

w 
Ba

mb
er 

He
ad

 of
 C

om
mu

nit
y S

erv
ice

s 
Co

mm
un

itie
s, 

Lo
ca

litie
s a

nd
 C

ult
ure

 
02

0 7
36

4 0
76

4 
Ro

bin
  

Be
att

ie 
He

ad
 of

 St
rat

eg
y a

nd
 Pr

og
ram

me
s 

Co
mm

un
itie

s, 
Lo

ca
litie

s a
nd

 C
ult

ure
 

02
0 7

36
4 4

22
9 

He
ath

er 
Bo

nfi
eld

 
Int

eri
m 

He
ad

 of
 Pu

bli
c R

ea
lm

 
Co

mm
un

itie
s, 

Lo
ca

litie
s a

nd
 C

ult
ure

 
02

0 7
36

4 6
76

9 
Co

lin
  

Br
ad

ley
 

Int
eri

m 
He

ad
 of

 C
orp

ora
te 

Str
ate

gy
 

De
ve

lop
me

nt 
an

d R
en

ew
al 

 
02

0 7
36

4 5
39

0 
Iso

be
l 

Ca
tte

rm
ole

 
He

ad
 of

 R
es

ou
rce

s 
Ch

ild
ren

’s 
Se

rvi
ce

s  
02

0 7
36

4 4
81

1 
De

b 
Cla

rke
 

Jo
int

 D
ire

cto
r o

f H
R 

 
Re

so
urc

es
 

02
0 7

36
4 4

36
2 

De
bo

rah
 

Co
he

n  
He

ad
 of

 D
isa

bil
ity

 an
d H

ea
lth

  
Ad

ult
s, 

He
alt

h a
nd

 W
ell

 Be
ing

  
02

0 7
36

4 0
49

7 
Co

lin
  

Co
rm

ac
k 

He
ad

 of
 H

om
ele

ss
ne

ss
 an

d H
ou

sin
g A

dv
ice

 Se
rvi

ce
s 

Ad
ult

s, 
He

alt
h a

nd
 W

ell
 Be

ing
 

02
0 7

36
4 7

21
4 

Ma
ry 

Du
rki

n 
He

ad
 of

 Yo
uth

 an
d C

om
mu

nit
y L

ea
rni

ng
  

Ch
ild

ren
’s 

Se
rvi

ce
s 

02
0 7

36
4 4

37
3 

Ala
n 

Fin
ch

 
He

ad
 of

 C
orp

ora
te 

Fin
an

ce
 

Re
so

urc
es

 
02

0 7
36

4 4
91

5 
Su

e 
Hin

ds
 

Ac
ce

ss
 to

 Em
plo

ym
en

t M
an

ag
er 

De
ve

lop
me

nt 
an

d R
en

ew
al 

02
0 7

36
4 4

93
6 

Ch
ris

 
Ho

lm
e 

He
ad

 of
 R

es
ou

rce
s 

De
ve

lop
me

nt 
an

d R
en

ew
al 

02
0 7

36
4 4

98
7 

Sh
az

ia 
Hu

ss
ain

 
Int

eri
m 

To
we

r H
am

let
s P

art
ne

rsh
ip 

Dir
ec

tor
 

Co
mm

un
itie

s, 
Lo

ca
litie

s a
nd

 C
ult

ure
 

02
0 7

36
4 4

47
0 

He
len

 
Je

nn
er 

He
ad

 of
 Ea

rly
 Ye

ars
 C

hil
dre

n a
nd

 Le
arn

ing
  

Ch
ild

ren
’s 

Se
rvi

ce
s 

02
0 7

36
4 3

11
4 

Mi
ch

ae
l 

Ke
ati

ng
 

Int
eri

m 
As

sis
tan

t C
hie

f E
xe

cu
tiv

e 
Ch

ief
 Ex

ec
uti

ve
s 

02
0 7

36
4 3

18
3 

Ca
rm

el 
Lit

tle
ton

 
He

ad
 of

 Yo
un

g P
eo

ple
 an

d L
ea

rni
ng

  
Ch

ild
ren

’s 
Se

rvi
ce

s 
02

0 7
36

4 4
82

4 
Ja

ck
ie 

Od
un

oy
e 

He
ad

 of
 St

rat
eg

y a
nd

 D
ev

elo
pm

en
t  

De
ve

lop
me

nt 
an

d R
en

ew
al 

02
0 7

36
4 7

52
2 

Ja
mi

e  
Ou

na
n 

Str
ate

gy
 Pl

an
nin

g M
an

ag
er 

De
ve

lop
me

nt 
an

d R
en

ew
al 

02
0 7

36
4 5

41
4 

Pa
ul 

Ma
rtin

dil
l 

He
ad

 of
 C

ult
ura

l S
erv

ice
s 

Co
mm

un
itie

s, 
Lo

ca
litie

s a
nd

 C
ult

ure
 

02
0 7

36
4 3

15
7 

Na
tal

ie 
Pa

ris
h 

He
ad

 of
 St

rat
eg

y, 
Pa

rtn
ers

hip
 an

d P
erf

orm
an

ce
 

Ch
ild

ren
’s 

Se
rvi

ce
s 

02
0 7

36
4 4

18
7 

Ka
mi

ni 
Ra

mb
ell

as
 

He
ad

 of
 C

hil
dre

n’s
 So

cia
l C

are
 

Ch
ild

ren
’s 

Se
rvi

ce
s 

02
0 7

36
4 2

21
3 

Jim
 

Ro
be

rts
 

He
ad

 of
 IC

T 
Re

so
urc

es
 

02
0 7

36
4 4

90
1 

Ch
arl

es
  

Sk
inn

er 
He

ad
 of

 C
om

mu
nic

ati
on

s 
Ch

ief
 Ex

ec
uti

ve
s 

02
0 7

36
4 4

39
6 

Nic
k 

Sm
ale

s 
He

ad
 of

 O
lym

pic
 an

d P
ara

lym
pic

 G
am

es
 

De
ve

lop
me

nt 
an

d R
en

ew
al 

02
0 7

36
4 4

62
8 

Cla
ire

 
Sy

mo
nd

s 
He

ad
 of

 C
us

tom
er 

Ac
ce

ss
 

Re
so

urc
es

 
02

0 7
36

4 0
83

9 
He

len
  

Ta
ylo

r 
He

ad
 of

 C
om

mi
ss

ion
ing

 an
d S

tra
teg

y 
Ad

ult
s, 

He
alt

h a
nd

 W
ell

 Be
ing

 
02

0 7
37

7 7
00

0 
Ow

en
 

W
ha

lle
y 

He
ad

 of
 M

ajo
r P

roj
ec

t D
ev

elo
pm

en
t 

De
ve

lop
me

nt 
an

d R
en

ew
al 

02
0 7

36
4 5

31
4 

Jo
hn

 
W

illia
ms

 
He

ad
 of

 D
em

oc
rat

ic 
Se

rvi
ce

s  
Ch

ief
 Ex

ec
uti

ve
s 

02
0 7

36
4 4

20
4 

 Page 208



Annual Report: Strategic Plan 2007/08 

 
1 

Appendix 2 
 
 
 
 
 
 

ANNUAL REPORT FOR YEAR 2 
(2007 – 2008) 

 
DRAFT 

Page 209



Annual Report: Strategic Plan 2007/08 

 
2 

Contents 
 
Our Vision and Objectives ...............................................................................3 
Overall Performance: Comprehensive Performance Assessment ...................5 
Key Achievements in 2007/08 .........................................................................7 
Performance against Community Plan Themes and Key Priorities..................8 
1. Living Safely...............................................................................................10 
1.1 A safer Tower Hamlets ....................................................................10 
1.2 A cleaner, greener Tower Hamlets.......................................................12 

2. Living Well .................................................................................................14 
2.1 Decent homes in decent neighbourhoods ............................................14 
2.2 Healthier communities..........................................................................15 
2.3/ 2.4 Improved outcomes for vulnerable adults and children .................15 

3. Creating and Sharing Prosperity ................................................................17 
3.1 Securing sustainable communities .......................................................17 
3.2 Increased local employment.................................................................17 

4. Learning, Achievement and Leisure...........................................................20 
4.1 Increased educational attainment.........................................................20 
4.2 Increase participation in sporting, leisure and cultural activities ...........21 

5. Excellent Public Services...........................................................................23 
5.1 Efficient and effective services .............................................................23 
5.2 Locally focused services empowering local people ..............................24 
5.3 Stronger and more cohesive communities ...........................................25 
5.4 Improved equality of opportunity ..........................................................26 

 

Page 210



Annual Report: Strategic Plan 2007/08 

 
3 

Our Vision and Objectives 
 
The Council's vision is to improve the quality of life for everyone living and 
working in Tower Hamlets. This involves helping to create a thriving, 
achieving community in which people feel at ease with one another, learn and 
perform well and have positive employment prospects, experience a higher 
standard of living and good health, and enjoy a safe and an attractive 
environment together with a wide range of cultural and leisure opportunities. 
 
The strategy for delivering this vision was set out in the Council’s Strategic 
Plan 2006 – 2011, which takes from the borough’s Community Plan. These 
are:  
 
Living Safely – reducing crime, making people feel safer and creating a more 
secure and cleaner environment. 
 
Living Well – improving housing, health and social care and promoting healthy 
living. 
 
Creating and Sharing Prosperity – bringing investment into the borough and 
ensuring that all our residents and businesses are in a position to benefit 
from, and contribute to, growing economic prosperity. 
 
Learning, Achievement and Leisure – raising educational aspirations, 
expectations and achievement, providing the widest range of arts and leisure 
opportunities for all and celebrating the rich diversity of our communities. 
 
Excellent Public Services – improving public services for local people to make 
sure that they are of high quality, represent good value for money and are 
provided in ways that meet local needs. 
 
Within each of these areas we have set challenging but realistic targets for 
change, which focus on the critical areas that will make a lasting difference to 
people’s life chances. The Council identified 12 key priorities to deliver this: 
 
 
 

Page 211



Annual Report: Strategic Plan 2007/08 

 
4 

 
Community Plan Theme  Priority Outcomes for 2006 – 2011 
Living Safely  1.   A cleaner, greener, safer Tower Hamlets  
Living Well  2.   Decent homes in decent neighbourhoods  

3.   Healthier communities  
4.   Improved outcomes for vulnerable children 

and   adults  
Creating and sharing 
prosperity  

5.   Securing sustainable communities  
6.   Increased local employment  

Learning, Achievement 
and Leisure  

7.   Increased educational attainment  
8.   Increased participation in sporting, leisure 

and cultural activities 
Excellent Public Services  9.   Efficient and effective services  

10. Locally focused services empowering local 
people  

11. Stronger and more cohesive communities  
12. Improved equality of opportunity 

 
The Tower Hamlets Partnership has refreshed its Community Plan from 
2008/09 through to 2020 to take account of the many changes in the borough. 
Tied into this, the Council has reviewed its Strategic Plan for 2008/09 through 
to 2010/11. This takes account of the new three- year Local Area Agreement 
and budget settlement.  
 

Page 212



Annual Report: Strategic Plan 2007/08 

 
5 

Overall Performance: Comprehensive Performance 
Assessment 
Comprehensive Performance Assessment (CPA) was introduced by the 
government in 2002 as a way of supporting councils to deliver improvements 
in services to local people. CPA brought together existing information on 
service performance in each council with an assessment of its ability to 
improve. This was used by the Audit Commission to reach an annual overall 
judgement of whether a council was excellent, good, fair, weak, or poor. In 
December 2005 a new system of judgement was introduced. Tower Hamlets 
was rated as a 3-star authority (the star rating runs from 0- stars being the 
worst to 4-star being the best) and was given a direction of travel judgement 
as improving strongly. The annual qualitative assessment of the Audit 
Commission of our performance for 2007 stated: 
 
Tower Hamlets Council is improving strongly. Three-quarters of performance 
indicators show improvement which brings the Council into the top six 
improving councils in the country. Both children’s and adult services 
maintained excellent status and housing benefits provision has moved to 
excellent this year, but recycling rates require improvement. The Council has 
also made significant progress in reducing crime, with innovative work done to 
reduce re-offending. Key health indicators are improving; the healthy lifestyle 
team won a national award and the innovative mobile dental unit has been a 
success. The Council is working effectively to secure local benefits from the 
Olympic and Paralympic Games. Resident satisfaction has also risen. The 
Council has robust plans for improvement with agreed milestones and 
effective monitoring processes; also the efficiency board yielded improvement 
in value for money. A council-wide staff survey showed improved confidence 
in managerial leadership and innovative joint posts with the Primary Care 
Trust for human resources and public health have improved capacity and 
partnership working; all with potential for sustained improvement for the 
Council. 
 
Each major service area is scored on a scale of 1 to 4, where 1 is the lowest 
and 4 the highest. Overall, our services were scored 3 out of 4. 
 
Individual Service scores 
Service Rating 2005 Rating 2006 Rating 2007 
Children and Young People* 4 out of 4 4 out of 4 4 out of 4 
Social Care (Adults) 4 out of 4 4 out of 4 4 out of 4 
Environment 2 out of 4 2 out of 4 2 out of 4 
Housing  3 out of 4 3 out of 4 3 out of 4 
Culture** 2 out of 4 3 out of 4 3 out of 4 
Benefits 3 out of 4 3 out of 4 4 out of 4 
Use of Resources 3 out of 4 3 out of 4 3 out of 4 
 
*In 2005 Education and Social Care (Children’s) blocks were amalgamated to form a new 
block entitled Children and Young People 
** Previously Libraries and Leisure  
 

Page 213



Annual Report: Strategic Plan 2007/08 

 
6 

Corporate Assessment 
The Corporate Assessment looks at how the Council is performing and its 
capacity to improve. For Tower Hamlets this was last carried out in 2002. 
Independent inspectors spent two weeks inside the Council looking at all 
areas of its management and operation. Their report assessed Tower 
Hamlets as having a clear sense of direction, good political leadership, strong 
management and staff with a sense of clarity and purpose, and gave the 
Council a score of 3 out of 4. The report said: 
 
“...The Council’s objectives are clearly expressed and are widely owned … 
new methods of communication are helping to ensure that staff at all levels 
have a sense of clarity and purpose.” 
“Despite significant challenges, the Council is confident that its determination 
to work more closely with local people to accelerate improvement will enable it 
to become one of the best authorities in the country.” 
 
In March 2008, Tower Hamlets was subject to another Corporate 
Assessment. The results will be announced in July 2008.  
 

Page 214



Annual Report: Strategic Plan 2007/08 

 
7 

Key Achievements in 2007/08 
 
• Delivering outstanding Adults and Children’s Services with ‘excellent’ 

capacity for continuing improvement and the only Council to have both 
“top-rated” for the last two years. 

• One of only four councils to have achieved level 5 of the Local 
Government Equality Standard and the first to receive the Equality Mark. 

• One of the first councils to have achieved the new Investors in People 
Profile. 

• Continuing the long run of success in the Beacon scheme, the Council 
was pleased to be awarded its seventh Beacon award in 2008 in the 
theme of Reducing-Re-offending.   

• The council was also recognised for its achievements at this year’s Local 
Government Chronicle Awards, winning the Efficiency and Modernisation 
award for our office Accommodation Strategy and new flexible working 
practices which are delivering efficiency savings whilst improving customer 
service, accessibility and working environments. 

• Children's Services shone at the CIPFA Public Servant of the Year awards 
this year. The Independent Travel Trainers team won both the 'Changing 
Lives - Community Facing Services' category, and the Outstanding Public 
Services Team of the Year award.  

• In the most recent Annual Residents Survey, almost all questions 
concerning the image of the council have resulted in increased satisfaction 
ratings over the last year. Local residents are significantly more likely to 
agree that the council involves residents in decision making and that it is 
efficient and well run. Three quarters of residents agree that staff are 
friendly and polite (up 4 to 75%) while over two thirds agree that the 
council is doing a good job, keeping residents informed and that it makes 
the local area a better place to live.  

 

Page 215



Annual Report: Strategic Plan 2007/08 

 
8 

Performance against Community Plan Themes and 
Key Priorities 
 
Performance in each of the 12 key priorities is closely monitored throughout 
the year. A selection of indicators are used for each priority to allow us to 
accurately measure our performance. The Council sets robust and 
challenging targets each year. The tables below indicate the targets for each 
indicator for this year, our actual achievement for this year, for comparison our 
achievement in the past year, and whether success is determined by a higher 
or lower figure.  
 
The table below give an overall performance colour code and a direction of 
travel indicator. This gives a quick view for how we are doing for each 
indicator: 
 
Symbol Meaning 
GREEN A green background indicates that the target for 2007/08 was met or 

exceeded 
RED A red background indicates that the target for 2007/08 was not met 

+ This means performance has improved compared to 2006/07 

- This means performance has deteriorated compared to 2006/07 

= This means performance has stayed the same compared to 2006/07 

 
N/A in any cell means that either the information was not collected at that time 
or a comparison cannot be made.  
 
Overall Performance of Indicators 
 
Of the 101 performance indicators that have the 2007/08 information 
available, 47.5% met the 2007/08 target, while 52.5% did not.  The table 
below gives further details by theme.  
 
 Target Achieved 

(Green) 
Target Not Met 

(Red) 
Living Safely 17 (55%) 14 (45%) 
Living Well 10 (50%) 10 (50%) 
Creating and Sharing 
Prosperity 

6 (60%) 4 (40%) 
Learning, Achievement and 
Leisure 

4 (25%) 12 (75%) 
Excellent Public Services 11 (46%) 13 (54%) 
TOTAL 48 (47.5%) 53 (52.5%) 
 

Page 216



Annual Report: Strategic Plan 2007/08 

 
9 

Of the 94 performance indicators with information available, 66% showed an 
improvement since 2006/07, 29% showed a decline in performance, and 5% 
equalled the 2006/07 performance.  For seven of the reported indicators, 
2006/07 outturn information is not available meaning a comparison cannot be 
made. This is indicated by an N/A in the cell. The table below gives further 
details by theme.   
 
 Improved 

+ 
Maintained 

= 
Deteriorated 

- 
Living Safely 20 (65%) 1 (3%) 8 (26%) 
Living Well 10 (50%) 1 (5%) 6 (30%) 
Creating and Sharing Prosperity 9 (90%) 0 (0%) 1 (10%) 
Learning, Achievement and 
Leisure 

12 (75%) 1 (6%) 3 (19%) 
Excellent Public Services 11 (46%) 2 (8%) 9 (38%) 
TOTAL 62 (66%) 5 (5%) 27 (29%) 
 
Overall Performance of Activities and Milestones 
 
As well as performance indicators, the Strategic Plan contains 363 activities 
and 766 milestones that were due for completion by 31 March 2008.  
 
By the end of 2007/08, 76.6% of activities and 84.5% of milestones were 
completed. Further detail on activity and milestone performance is contained 
within each theme section.  
 

Page 217



Annual Report: Strategic Plan 2007/08 

 
Symbol Meaning 

GREEN Target met or exceeded 
RED Target not met 
+ Performance has improved 
- Performance has deteriorated 
= Performance has stayed the same 

 
10 

1. Living Safely 
 
Activity and Milestone Performance 
 
There were 72 activities and 184 milestones due for completion in the Living 
Well theme. Of these, 81.9% of activities and 88% of milestones were 
completed.  
 
1.1 A safer Tower Hamlets 
 

Performance Indicators Outturn 
2006/07 

Outturn 
2007/08 

Target 
2007/08 

Aiming Progress 
Overall crime rate (BCS comparator 
offences): percentage reduction 
since 2003/4 baseline (22,636 
incidents) 

17.9% 
reduction 
(18,585 

incidents) 

24.2% 
reduction 
(17,199 

incidents) 

20.0% 
reduction 
(18,109 

incidents) 
LOWER + 

Number of violent crimes (common 
assault plus ABH/GBH)  

46.7 per 
1000 

population 
20.9 per 

1000 
population 

41.3 per 
1000 

population 
LOWER + 

Youth-on-youth violent crime 
(number of incidents where victim is 
under 19 and accused is under 19 or 
suspect is thought to be under 19) 

605 394 570  LOWER + 
a)   49% 

 
a) 32.2% 

 
a) 27% 

 + 
b)   27% 

 
b) 23.7% 

 
b) 35% 

 + 
c)   47% 

 
c) 32.2% 

 
c) 41% 

 + 

Percentage of population who view 
as a “very big problem” the following 
issues:  
a) Youths hanging around on the 

streets 
b) Graffiti and other deliberate 

damage to property or vehicles 
c) People using or dealing drugs 
d) People being drunk or rowdy in 

public places d)   22% d) 15.3% d) 21% 

LOWER 

+ 
Number of young people under 18 
accessing drug treatment services 711 1034 732 HIGHER + 
Length of time domestic violence is 
experienced before it is initially 
reported to a specialist agency: 
percentage reduction since 2004/5 
baseline (4.7 years) 

31.9% 
reduction 

3.85% 
reduction 

6.4% 
reduction  LOWER - 

Number of adults and children killed 
or seriously injured on the roads  111 124 113 LOWER - 
Reduced recorded convictions of 
PPOs 30% 31% 30% HIGHER + 
Reduced percentage of Drug 
Intervention Programme clients 
reoffending 

28% 13% 20% LOWER + 

Page 218



Annual Report: Strategic Plan 2007/08 

 
Symbol Meaning 

GREEN Target met or exceeded 
RED Target not met 
+ Performance has improved 
- Performance has deteriorated 
= Performance has stayed the same 

 
11 

Performance Indicators Outturn 
2006/07 

Outturn 
2007/08 

Target 
2007/08 

Aiming Progress 
Increased proportion of offenders 
accessing housing or tenancy 
related support through key 
agencies 

29% 48% 45% HIGHER + 
Increased number of unemployed 
offenders obtaining and keeping 
employment for at least four weeks 

42 
offenders 

98 
offenders 52 

offenders HIGHER + 
a) 28.8% 

 
a) 23.3% 

 
a) 22.5% 

 + 
b) 46.9% 

 
b) 45.5% 

 
b) 49.6% 

 + 
c) 55.0% 

 
c) 66.7% 

 
c) 58.5% 

 - 

Youth Reoffending rate after 12 
months:  
a) pre-court decisions 
b) first tier penalties 
c) community penalties 
d) custodial penalties 

d) 44.4% d) 40.0% d) 71.3% 

LOWER 

+ 
Percentage of residents identifying 
crime as an area of concern 51% 55% 45% LOWER - 
Increase in percentage of people 
who feel informed about what is 
being done to tackle antisocial 
behaviour in their local area 

26% 27% 32% HIGHER + 
Percentage of people who feel that 
parents not taking responsibility for 
the behaviour of their children is a 
problem 

75% 81% 73% LOWER - 
Percentage who think that people 
not treating other people with 
respect and consideration is a 
problem 

58% 53.6% 56% LOWER + 
 
Key Achievements 
• We have achieved a considerable reduction in overall crime of 24.2% 

which exceeds our target of 20% and is an improvement on last year’s 
reduction of 17.9%.  

• We have achieved significant reductions in violent crime and youth on 
youth crime as a result of our work with the Violent Crime Action Group 
and our domestic violence awareness campaigns which include reducing 
the impact of domestic violence on children.  

• We continue to provide constructive and law abiding activities for young 
people at risk of offending such as providing over 900 volunteering and 
community action opportunities, the Youth Opportunity Fund which has 
provided funding for over 95 groups, and the Youth Intervention 
Programme which has supported over 150 young people.  

• Our focus on anti-social behaviour has resulted in a number of multi-
agency enforcement operations including six Special Operations with 

Page 219



Annual Report: Strategic Plan 2007/08 

 
Symbol Meaning 

GREEN Target met or exceeded 
RED Target not met 
+ Performance has improved 
- Performance has deteriorated 
= Performance has stayed the same 

 
12 

Police and Safer Neighbourhood Teams and support provided to 150 
victims and perpetrators of anti-social behaviour.  

• We are reducing substance misuse and related crime through effective 
treatment, prevention, enforcement and community engagement, for 
example we have delivered 12 Community Drug Education workshops, 
delivered substance misuse awareness training to 25% of youth workers, 
and carried out 30 drug supply closure operations.   

• Through the Race and Hate Crime Interagency Forum we have delivered 
five major projects that tackle hate crime and encourage community 
cohesion through arts and media, training and other community based 
initiatives such as the All Different, All Equal Youth Project and the Beat 
Hate Crime Campaign.  

• We have increased community safety on estates through a programme of 
estate lighting schemes and by carrying out security works on over 200 
homes.  

• Our focus on making streets, public areas, residential areas and open 
spaces safer has seen the introduction of 4 new safe routes to school 
schemes at schools with approved travel plans, the establishment of the 
Junior Road Safety Officer Scheme in 50% of schools as well as the 
delivery of Child Pedestrian Training volunteer programmes in 30 schools, 
2 Drink Drive Campaigns and 2 Junior Citizen Schemes for 2000 pupils.  

 

1.2 A cleaner, greener Tower Hamlets 
 

Performance Indicators Outturn 
2006/07 

Outturn 
2007/08 

Target 
2007/08 

Aiming Progress 
Proportion of relevant land and 
highways that is assessed as having 
combined deposits of litter and 
detritus that fall below an acceptable 
level 

22.0% 23.2% 12.0% LOWER - 
Improved perceptions of antisocial 
behaviour: reduced percentage of 
the population who view rubbish and 
litter lying around as “a very serious 
problem”  

32% 32.9% 23% LOWER - 
Percentage of people asked who 
think that parks, playgrounds and 
open spaces are good, very good or 
excellent 

50% 54% 52% HIGHER + 
Percentage of household waste 
which has been sent by the authority 
for recycling  

11.7% 13.6% 22.0% HIGHER + 
Percentage of people who think that 
street cleaning is good, very good or 
excellent  

54% 51% 63%  HIGHER - 
Quality of surroundings – Number of 
green flag award parks 5 5 5 HIGHER = 

Page 220



Annual Report: Strategic Plan 2007/08 

 
Symbol Meaning 

GREEN Target met or exceeded 
RED Target not met 
+ Performance has improved 
- Performance has deteriorated 
= Performance has stayed the same 

 
13 

Performance Indicators Outturn 
2006/07 

Outturn 
2007/08 

Target 
2007/08 

Aiming Progress 
Increase in the percentage of 
abandoned vehicles removed within 
24 hours from the point where the 
local authority is legally entitled to 
remove the vehicle 

95.8% 99.4% 96.0%  HIGHER + 
Percentage of municipal waste 
landfilled N/A 88.4% 81.0% LOWER N/A 
Percentage of municipal waste 
recycled N/A 10.3% 19.0% HIGHER N/A 

 
Key Achievements 
• To improve the cleanliness of the borough’s streets we have carried out 

‘spring clean’ treatment on over 65 blocks, increased prosecution for 
littering and dumping by 100%, assisted 60 properties with graffiti and fly 
posting removal, and signed up 20 ‘fast food’ outlets to a ‘keep your scene 
clean- responsible business commitment’.  

• To improve recycling in the borough we have undertaken a programme of 
awareness raising through door-knocking 15,000 low rise properties and 
65,000 high rise properties which has resulted in recycling rate increases 
from 11.72% in 2006/07 to 13.61% in 2007/08.  

• We have adopted and implemented a Staff Travel Plan, organised and 
advertised 12 local wildlife events, improved wildlife/ habitat sustainability 
at eight parks and green spaces and increased the membership of 
Freecycle from 1,260 to 2,800 which all contribute to protecting the 
environment in the borough.  

• We have improved the physical environment in the borough by introducing 
whole corridor improvements on three key streets including improvements 
for pedestrians and better street lighting and by increasing the percentage 
of abandoned vehicles removed within 24 hours to 99.41%, exceeding last 
year’s performance and our target.  

• We retained all existing Green Flag Awards for our parks.  
 
 

Page 221



Annual Report: Strategic Plan 2007/08 

 
Symbol Meaning 

GREEN Target met or exceeded 
RED Target not met 
+ Performance has improved 
- Performance has deteriorated 
= Performance has stayed the same 

 
14 

2. Living Well 
 
Activity and Milestone Performance 
 
There were 61 activities and 123 milestones due for completion in the Living 
Well theme. Of these, 75.4% of activities and 82.9% of milestones were 
completed.  
 
2.1 Decent homes in decent neighbourhoods 
 

Performance Indicators Outturn 
2006/07 

Outturn 
2007/08 

Target 
2007/08 

Aiming Progress 
Number of empty and unfit private-
sector dwellings brought back into 
use 

17 25 17 HIGHER + 
Percentage change in proportion of 
non-decent homes 15.1% 17.9% 17.9% HIGHER - 
Percentage of specified urgent 
repairs completed in government 
time limits 

96.8% 97.8% 97.2% HIGHER + 
Average re-let time for local authority 
dwellings (days) 34.3 33.8 31.0 LOWER + 
Percentage of residents satisfied 
with the Council's repairs service 90.2% 86.01 84.0% HIGHER - 
Proportion of LA homes which are 
non decent 61.7% 58.9% 58.9% LOWER + 
Percentage reduction of non-decent 
homes in homes transferred to RSLs 
in previous years 

N/A- data 
available 
2007/08 

3.2% 15% HIGHER N/A 
 
Key Achievements 
• To contribute to an increase in the supply of affordable homes, we helped 

RSLs to create 1,100 new affordable homes. 
• We have completed 97.83% of specified urgent repairs in government time 

limits which exceeded both last year’s performance and the 2007/08 
target.  

• As well as reducing the proportion of council homes which are non decent 
by exceeding both last year’s performance and the 2007/08 target, we 
brought back 25 empty and unfit private sector dwellings back into use and 
re-housed 230 over-crowded families.  

 

Page 222



Annual Report: Strategic Plan 2007/08 

 
Symbol Meaning 

GREEN Target met or exceeded 
RED Target not met 
+ Performance has improved 
- Performance has deteriorated 
= Performance has stayed the same 

 
15 

2.2 Healthier communities 
 

Performance Indicators Outturn 
2006/07 

Outturn 
2007/08 

Target 
2007/08 

Aiming Progress 
N/A- data 
available 
2007/08 

 
a) 22.9% 

  
a) 22% N/A Prevalence of  (a) obesity (b) 

overweight in sample of year 6 
children N/A- data 

available 
2007/08 

b) 37.1% b) 36% 
LOWER 

N/A 
a) N/A a) N/A a) N/A N/A Smoking status of (a) 8-12 year olds 

(b) 13-15 year olds b) N/A b) N/A b) N/A LOWER N/A 
Percentage of primary age pupils 
having 2 hours + PE per week 62% 93.1% 80% HIGHER + 
Teenage conceptions: percentage 
reduction 1998 baseline (57.8 
conception per 1000 females aged 
15-17) 

25.3% 24.2% 43.0% LOWER + 
 
Key Achievements 
• We established a Tobacco Control Unit to implement smoke free enclosed 

spaces, build a sustainable tobacco control partnership and promote 
smoking cessation to residents, visitors and workers in the borough.  

• We significantly exceeded last year’s performance and the 2007/08 target 
for the percentage of primary age pupils having 2 hours + PE per week (at 
93.1%) and we also provided three nine week weight management 
programme for obese children which is contributing to improving the health 
of children and young people.  

 

2.3/ 2.4 Improved outcomes for vulnerable adults and children 
 

Performance Indicators Outturn 
2006/07 

Outturn 
2007/08 

Target 
2007/08 

Aiming Progress 

Average length of stay in bed and 
breakfast accommodation  (weeks) 3.77 3.66 3.50  LOWER - 
Number of supported admissions of 
older people to permanent 
residential and nursing care per 
10,000 population aged 65 or over 

74.6 71.8 70.0 LOWER + 
Adult and older clients receiving a 
review as a percentage of those 
receiving a service  

84.9% 77.5% 86.0% HIGHER - 
Number of households receiving 
intensive home care per 1,000 
population aged 65 or over  

40.33 39.4 38.00 HIGHER - 
Percentage of child protection cases 
which should have been reviewed 
during the year that were reviewed 

100% 100% 100% HIGHER = 

Page 223



Annual Report: Strategic Plan 2007/08 

 
Symbol Meaning 

GREEN Target met or exceeded 
RED Target not met 
+ Performance has improved 
- Performance has deteriorated 
= Performance has stayed the same 

 
16 

Performance Indicators Outturn 
2006/07 

Outturn 
2007/08 

Target 
2007/08 

Aiming Progress 
Percentage of children looked after 
with three or more placements 
during the year (stability of children 
looked after)  

10.9% 10.9% 10.0% LOWER + 
Percentage of children looked after, 
leaving care aged 16 or over with at 
least 1 GCSE at grade A-G or a 
GNVQ1 

50.0% 48.0% 56.0% HIGHER - 
Average time for processing new 
housing benefit and Council Tax 
benefit claims (days)  

28.5 25.2 28.0  LOWER + 
Percentage of Adult Social Service 
users who rate services as good, 
very good or excellent 

61% 92.6% 63% HIGHER + 
 
Key Achievements 
• We have supported vulnerable adults in making a positive contribution to 

their community with over 30 people completing the ‘Way Ahead’ 
programme, over 50 people completing the ‘Life begins at…’ programme, 
120 people known to mental health services supported into or maintained 
in employment, voluntary work, education or training, and 35 people with 
physical disabilities supported into voluntary or paid employment.  

• We have rolled out our LinkAge Plus programme with 180 adults 
supported through outreach and rolled out the telecare programme to 200 
new service users.  

• We reduced the average time for processing new housing benefits and 
Council Tax claims to 25.13 days, exceeding our 2007/08 target and 
improving on last year’s performance.  

• Continuing to protect children from risk of harm and neglect, we worked 
proactively with schools to improve their practice for safeguarding children 
and delivered safeguarding children training to 20 schools.  

• We reviewed the current provision of respite care to improve consistency 
and accessibility of services and increased foster carer provision by six 
carers and increased child-minding provision by three carers.  

• We have achieved top performance for the percentage of child protection 
cases which should have been reviewed during the year that were 
reviewed, matching our target of 100% last year. 

 

Page 224



Annual Report: Strategic Plan 2007/08 

 
Symbol Meaning 

GREEN Target met or exceeded 
RED Target not met 
+ Performance has improved 
- Performance has deteriorated 
= Performance has stayed the same 

 
17 

3. Creating and Sharing Prosperity 
 
Activity and Milestone Performance 
 
There were 40 activities and 80 milestones due for completion in the Living 
Well theme. Of these, 90% of activities and 93.75% of milestones were 
completed.  
3.1 Securing sustainable communities 
 

Performance Indicators Outturn 
2006/07 

Outturn 
2007/08 

Target 
2007/08 

Aiming Progress 
Percentage of major planning 
applications determined within 13 
weeks 

38.3% 56.9% 60.0% HIGHER + 
Percentage of minor applications 
determined within 8 weeks 80.5% 84.4% 80.5% HIGHER + 
Percentage of other planning 
applications determined within 8 
weeks 

84.2% 86.7% 88.3% HIGHER - 
Number of SMEs assisted to be 
competitive through 
seminars/workshops  

43 N/A 75 HIGHER N/A 
Worth of contracts secured by local 
businesses through the Canary 
Wharf Local Business Liaison Office 
(private sector supply chain) 

£6 million £17,8 million £7 million HIGHER + 
 
Key Achievements 
• 84.40% of minor applications were determined within 8 weeks, exceeding 

both the 2007/08 target and last year’s performance while we improved on 
last year’s performance with 56.32% of major planning applications 
determined within 13 weeks, compared to 38.33% in 2006/07.  

• We worked to promote the borough to key stakeholders and promote key 
business sectors as reflected by a 15% improvement in the number of 
business tourism enquiries from the previous year.  

• To develop an enterprising Third Sector we supported the sustainability of 
23 social enterprises created through the NRF Programme.  

 

3.2 Increased local employment 
 

Performance Indicators Outturn 
2006/07 

Outturn 
2007/08 

Target 
2007/08 

Aiming Progress 
Percentage of young people in 
Tower Hamlets aged 16-18 not in 
education, employment or training 

9.8% 8.2% 8.2% LOWER + 

Page 225



Annual Report: Strategic Plan 2007/08 

 
Symbol Meaning 

GREEN Target met or exceeded 
RED Target not met 
+ Performance has improved 
- Performance has deteriorated 
= Performance has stayed the same 

 
18 

Performance Indicators Outturn 
2006/07 

Outturn 
2007/08 

Target 
2007/08 

Aiming Progress 
The number of people aged 24 and 
under in receipt of Jobseekers 
Allowance (and not on New Deal) 
helped into paid employment of over 
16 hours a week for 13 consecutive 
weeks or more  

139 220 250 HIGHER + 
Proportion of people under 25 
claiming unemployment-related 
benefits 

20.7% 18.2% 16.0% LOWER + 
Percentage of local residents 
claiming unemployment-related 
benefits  

8.6% 7.4% 8.5% LOWER + 
Overall benefits claim rate for those 
living in the Local Authority wards 
identified by DWP as having the 
worst initial labour market position 

22.6% N/A 21.6% HIGHER N/A 
Percentage of registered NEETs 
assisted into sustainable 
employment 

35.8% N/A 38.0% HIGHER N/A 

Develop and implement a work 
placement model for Incapacity 
Benefit clients and Lone Parents 

N/A- data 
available 
2007/08 

N/A 
10 work 

placements 
leading to 
secured 

employment 
HIGHER N/A 

Number of employer activities to 
increase aspiration and information 
about job opportunities in the labour 
market for young people. 

12 events 
with 

employers 
in key 
sectors 

13 events 
with 

employers 
in key 
sectors  

10 events 
with 

employers 
in key 
sectors 

HIGHER + 
Number of local job seekers 
assisted to secure employment 
through Earn to Learn programmes 

116 149 120 HIGHER + 
Increase in the percentage of young 
people on New Deal programme 
entering and sustaining employment 

26% N/A 32% HIGHER N/A 
 
Key Achievements 
• We reduced the number of young people not in education, employment or 

training from 9.8% in 2006/07 to 8.2% which met our 2007/08 target, and 
we also achieved a drop in the percentage of local residents claiming 
unemployment-related benefits to 7.4%, exceeding last year’s 
performance and the 2007/08 target.  

• To ensure young people benefit from economic growth, we expanded the 
New Start Programme which provides more opportunities for young people 
not in education, training and employment with 120 young people referred 
and engaged.  

• Through Skillsmatch, a cost effective job brokerage service, we assisted 
600 local residents into work and increased the capacity of local residents 
to compete for jobs.  

Page 226



Annual Report: Strategic Plan 2007/08 

 
Symbol Meaning 

GREEN Target met or exceeded 
RED Target not met 
+ Performance has improved 
- Performance has deteriorated 
= Performance has stayed the same 

 
19 

• 149 local job seekers were helped to secure employment through Earn to 
Learn programmes.  

• We increased the number of employer activities to increase aspiration and 
information about job opportunities in the labour market for young people 
to 13 events with employers in key sectors, exceeding the 2007/08 target 
and last year’s performance.  

Page 227



Annual Report: Strategic Plan 2007/08 

 
Symbol Meaning 

GREEN Target met or exceeded 
RED Target not met 
+ Performance has improved 
- Performance has deteriorated 
= Performance has stayed the same 

 
20 

4. Learning, Achievement and Leisure 
 
Activity and Milestone Performance 
 
There were 55 activities and 131 milestones due for completion in the Living 
Well theme. Of these, 81.8% of activities and 91.6% of milestones were 
completed.  
 
4.1 Increased educational attainment 
 

Performance Indicators Outturn 
2006/07 

Outturn 
2007/08 

Target 
2007/08 

Aiming Progress 
Percentage of pupils achieving 5 or 
more GCSEs at grade A*-C, 
including English and Maths 

33.5% 36.3% 39.0% HIGHER + 
Average A-Level points score per 
student in Tower Hamlets 219.5 621.5 635.0 HIGHER + 
Increase in the percentage of pupils 
achieving level 5 in both English and 
mathematics at Key Stage 3 

54% 57.6% 69% HIGHER + 
a) 93.4% a) 93% a) 95.50% - Improved overall attendance rates 

a) Primary  
b) Secondary 

b) 92.5% b) 92.6% b) 93.00% 
HIGHER 

+ 
a) 1.2% a) 1.2% a) 0.9% + Unauthorised absence rates 

a) Primary 
b) Secondary 

b) 2.1% b) 1.9% b) 1.9% 
LOWER 

+ 
Percentage of pupils achieving level 
4 or above in Key Stage 2 English 79.9% 81.0% 85.0% HIGHER + 

a) 36% a) N/A a) 44 N/A Satisfaction of users with  
a) Primary education 
b) Secondary education  b) 29% b) N/A b) 41 HIGHER N/A 
Percentage of schools in which at 
least 50% of pupils achieve level 5 or 
above in each of English, maths and 
science 

80% 80% 87% HIGHER = 
Percentage of schools with an 
approved school travel plan 50% 83.8% 85% HIGHER - 

 
Key Achievements 
• We have improved upon our 2006/07 performance in 2007/08 for the 

percentage of pupils achieving 5 or more GCSEs at grade A*-C, including 
English and Maths; the average A-Level points score per student in Tower 

Page 228



Annual Report: Strategic Plan 2007/08 

 
Symbol Meaning 

GREEN Target met or exceeded 
RED Target not met 
+ Performance has improved 
- Performance has deteriorated 
= Performance has stayed the same 

 
21 

Hamlets; the percentage of pupils achieving level 4 or above in Key Stage 
2 English; the percentage of pupils achieving level 5 in both English and 
mathematics at Key Stage 3; and the unauthorised absence rates in both 
primary and secondary schools.  

• We have increased the take up of bookstart to 87% and increased the 
registration at libraries which is contributing to an improvement in the 
standards of early years provision. 

• To support the development of arts education in schools we have assisted 
five schools in applying for Artsmark accreditation and increased the 
number of pupils in schools accessing instrumental provision and music 
making by 30%.  

• We have actively involved 150 young people in Council decision making 
through the Tower Hamlets Youth Partnership and provided two 
consultation groups and three events for children looked after, thereby 
increasing the participation of children and young people in decision 
making and community life.  

• We have increased opportunities for family engagement and opportunities 
to learn and play together by arranging four family fun days, running 
curriculum related workshops in 20 primary schools and six secondary 
schools, and organising for 200 families to visit museums and galleries.  

• To provide high quality places to go and exciting things to do for young 
people, we have redesigned service delivery through the new Youth 
Service contract which has resulted in an increase in the number of young 
people accessing youth work provision to 31% of the 13-19 population.  

 

4.2 Increase participation in sporting, leisure and cultural activities 
 

Performance Indicators Outturn 
2006/07 

Outturn 
2007/08 

Target 
2007/08 

Aiming Progress 
Number of under 16s who are active 
users of the Council’s Idea Stores 
and libraries 

13,473 12,158 19,272 HIGHER - 
Total number of library items issued 
to under 16s  266,303 333,319 317,000 HIGHER + 
Number of under 16s regularly 
attending study support sessions 750 1,252 765 HIGHER + 
Number of under 19s completing a 
course in Idea Stores, libraries and 
learning centres  

1,741 1778 1,760 HIGHER + 
Number of physical visits to public 
library premises per 1000 population 9,182 9710.70 9,386 HIGHER + 
Percentage of people asked who 
think that leisure and sports facilities 
are good, very good or excellent  

43% 46% 48% HIGHER + 
Cost per visit to libraries  £3.37 N/A £3.26 LOWER N/A 

 

Page 229



Annual Report: Strategic Plan 2007/08 

 
Symbol Meaning 

GREEN Target met or exceeded 
RED Target not met 
+ Performance has improved 
- Performance has deteriorated 
= Performance has stayed the same 

 
22 

Key Achievements 
• We are achieving an improvement in participation in Idea Store, library and 

lifelong learning activities which has led to increases that have exceeded 
both the 2007/08 target and last year’s performance in a number of areas, 
including: the total number of library items issued to under 16s; the 
number of under 16s regularly attending study support sessions; number 
of under 19s completing a course in Idea Stores, libraries and learning 
centres; and the number of physical visits to public library premises per 
1000 population.  

• We have increased community engagement and participation in cultural 
activities through a number of initiatives including holding 70 festivals with 
an audience of at least 100 and delivering a football development 
programme for 7-11s in schools and at the Football Development Centre 
from 25,000 in 2006/07 to 26,000 in 2007/08. 

• We have increased the usage of leisure centres by key target groups such 
as young people, older people, people with disabilities, BME and women. 

• We have trained 80 volunteers to support the delivery of sport in the 
borough, upgraded the qualifications of 40 sports coaches and entered 40 
teams in the London Youth Games including six teams in disability sports 
activities. 

• We have delivered a programme of arts activity at youth centres for 636 
young people with 381 young people taking part for an average of 10 
weeks.  

• We have increased the percentage of people who think that leisure and 
sports facilities in the borough are good, very good or excellent to 46% 
from 43% in 2006/07.  

Page 230



Annual Report: Strategic Plan 2007/08 

 
Symbol Meaning 

GREEN Target met or exceeded 
RED Target not met 
+ Performance has improved 
- Performance has deteriorated 
= Performance has stayed the same 

 
23 

5. Excellent Public Services 
 
Activity and Milestone Performance 
 
There were 135 activities and 248 milestones due for completion in the Living 
Well theme. Of these, 67.4% of activities and 76.6% of milestones were 
completed.  
 
5.1 Efficient and effective services 
 

Performance Indicators Outturn 
2006/07 

Outturn 
2007/08 

Target 
2007/08 

Aiming Progress 

Budget performance  
£2,536,000 

under-
spend 

£7,576,000 
under-
spend 

Nil - 
Balanced 
Budget 

LOWER + 
a)   3  a)    3 4  = CPA Use of Resources Indicator 

 (a) Overall score (b) VFM score 
b)   2 b)    3 3 

HIGHER 
+ 

Percentage of Gershon efficiency 
savings achieved 100% 100% 100% HIGHER = 
Percentage of residents agreeing 
that the Council “provides value for 
money for the Council Tax I pay” 

37% 41% 42% HIGHER + 
Number of working days / shifts lost 
due to sickness absence per 
employee 

7.9 8.75 7.8 LOWER - 
Percentage of undisputed invoices 
paid within 30 days  91.9% 91.0% 94.0% HIGHER - 

 
Key Achievements 
• We have invested in staff through new leadership programmes including 

programmes aimed at black and minority staff, put in place a number of 
coaching and mentoring schemes, and developed the role of the 
Corporate NVQ centre and extended NVQ provision to offer five new NVQ 
programmes.  

• As a reflection of our work to develop organisational performance across 
the Council, we received extremely positive results from the Staff Survey 
and achieved the Investors in People Profile following our assessment in 
2007/08.  

• To improve risk management in the Council, we have provided four 
training sessions during 2007/08 for staff and two training sessions for 
Members.  

Page 231



Annual Report: Strategic Plan 2007/08 

 
Symbol Meaning 

GREEN Target met or exceeded 
RED Target not met 
+ Performance has improved 
- Performance has deteriorated 
= Performance has stayed the same 

 
24 

• To contribute to an improvement in levels of attendance and the health 
and well being of employees, we delivered over 10 health screening 
events during 2007/08.  

• We completed the implementation of the Council’s Accommodation 
Strategy generating estimated savings of at least £50,000 on energy 
efficiency. 

• We have continued to provide support and assistance to frontline Third 
Sector organisations to enhance their ability to shape and deliver local 
priorities, for example, by giving capacity building support to 10 London 
Borough of Tower Hamlets funded organisations.  

• We have improved our performance from 2006/07 from 37% to 41% for 
the percentage of residents agreeing that the Council “provides value for 
money for the Council Tax I pay”.  

 

5.2 Locally focused services empowering local people 
 

Performance Indicators Outturn 
2006/07 

Outturn 
2007/08 

Target 
2007/08 

Aiming Progress 

a) 64% a) 68% a) 73% + Percentage of residents who agree 
that the Council is doing a good job: 

a) Borough average  
b) Gap between the overall 

borough average and the 
LAP area with the lowest 
performance 

b) Ave 
=64% 

Min = 60% 
(LAP 4) 

Gap = 4% 

b) 7% 
 

b) No LAP 
to fall 10% 
below the 
borough 
average 

HIGHER 
 

- 
Percentage of residents who feel 
that they can influence decisions 
affecting their local area  

41% 48% 65% HIGHER + 
Number of residents attending LAP 
events  5,202 5,513 5,250 HIGHER + 
Percentage of Council hotlines 
answered within the Customer 
Promise standard of 15 seconds 

69% 68% 77% HIGHER - 
Percentage of letters responded to 
within the Customer Promise 
Standard 

N/A 75.1 90% HIGHER N/A 
Percentage  of calls handled by 
Council Call Centres N/A 42.7% 45% HIGHER N/A 
Percentage  of complaints handled 
within target – Stage 1 65% 74% 80% HIGHER + 
An increase in the number of people 
recorded as or reporting that they 
have engaged in formal volunteering 
on an average of at least two hours 
per week over the past year 

14.5% 12% 15% HIGHER - 
Percentage of residents who are 
satisfied with their local area as a 
place to live 

N/A N/A N/A HIGHER N/A 

Page 232



Annual Report: Strategic Plan 2007/08 

 
Symbol Meaning 

GREEN Target met or exceeded 
RED Target not met 
+ Performance has improved 
- Performance has deteriorated 
= Performance has stayed the same 

 
25 

 
 
 
 
Key Achievements 
• The percentage of residents who agree that the Council is doing a good 

job has increased from 64% in 2006/07 to 68% in 2007/08 while the 
percentage of residents who feel that they can influence decisions 
affecting their local area has risen from 41% to 48% in 2007/08.  

• We have increased the number of THIS Borough registered users to 1,500 
to ensure the distribution of reliable information, research and analysis 
across the Council and the Borough.  

• We have improved our Members’ Enquiries process with new guidance, a 
Members’ Hotline, a cross-departmental Members’ Enquiry Quality Forum 
and improvements to the Siebel system.  

 

5.3 Stronger and more cohesive communities 
 

Performance Indicators Outturn 
2006/07 

Outturn 
2007/08 

Target 
2007/08 

Aiming Progress 

a) 70% a) 71% a) 77% a) HIGHER + 
Percentage of residents who feel 
that Tower Hamlets is a place 
where people from different 
backgrounds can get on well 
together:  
 
a) Borough average 
b) Gap between the overall 

borough average and the LAP 
area with the lowest 
performance 

b) Ave = 
70% 

Min = 53% 
(LAP 6) 

Gap = 17% 
 

b) 6% 
b) No LAP 
to fall 10% 
below the 
borough 
average 

b) LOWER + 

a) 54% a) 48% a) 48% - 
b) 39% b) 33% b) 33% - 
c) 5% c) 10% c) 5% + 

Percentage of attendants at LAP 
events who are from targeted 
communities: 
a) BME residents  
b) Bangladeshi residents  
c) Somali residents 
d) Young residents (16-25) 

d) 35% d) 21% d) 15% 

HIGHER 

- 
 
Key Achievements 
• The gap between the borough average and the LAP area with the lowest 

performance for the percentage of residents who feel that Tower Hamlets 
is a place where people from different backgrounds can get on well 
together has fallen significantly from 17% in 2006/07, to 6% which 
exceeded the 2007/08 target.  

Page 233



Annual Report: Strategic Plan 2007/08 

 
Symbol Meaning 

GREEN Target met or exceeded 
RED Target not met 
+ Performance has improved 
- Performance has deteriorated 
= Performance has stayed the same 

 
26 

• We met the target for the percentage of attendants at LAP events who are 
from targeted communities for BME residents, Bangladeshi residents, and 
young residents and for Somali residents we not only met the target but 
improved our performance by 100%.  

• To promote and support community cohesion across all communities we 
undertook a number of initiatives including: the completion of three cultural 
exchanges between young people in Tower Hamlets through schools, 
youth work and other settings; the devising and running of 10 diversity 
awareness and reporting of racist and other hate crimes training 
workshops for schools; and increasing the number of schools offering Key 
Stage 2 language opportunities as part of their mainstream curriculum by 
18%.  

 

5.4 Improved equality of opportunity 
 

Performance Indicators Outturn 
2006/07 

Outturn 
2007/08 

Target 
2007/08 

Aiming Progress 
A workforce to reflect the 
community: percentage of top 
5% earners that are from 
minority ethnic communities 

15.3% 17.4% 18.0% HIGHER - 
A workforce to reflect the 
community: percentage of top 
5% earners that are women 

53.2% 52.7% 50.0% HIGHER - 
 
Key Achievements 
• We continue to operate to the highest standards of equalities practice and 

have maintained Level 5 of the Local Government Equality Standard and 
are looking to extend this to the Tower Hamlets Partnership.  

• We have implemented recruitment and development initiatives to support 
the achievement of all Workforce to Reflect the Community strategy 
targets, both Council wide and within Directorates.  

• We have introduced the new Aspiring Leader Programme for targeted staff 
in middle-grade posts, especially BME and disabled staff that consists of 
an accredited management development programme, secondments, 
placements and projects with support from mentors and coaches.  

• As a result of our initiatives, 17.43% of the top 5% of earners in the 
Council are from ethnic minority communities and 52.71% are women.  

• To ensure a positive response to the new statutory requirement to promote 
disability equality, age discrimination legislation, and changes in 
employment legislation we have delivered training to staff through the 
Corporate Learning and Development Programme and provided briefings 
to managers.  

 

Page 234



 1 

Appendix 3a 
Strategic Plan 2007/08 End of Year Monitoring 

 
Completed Activities from the Strategic Plan 
 
1. LIVING SAFELY 
 
01.01.01 To reduce crime and the fear of crime 
• 01.01.01a Implement a comprehensive action plan, through Crimes Against Property 

Action Group (CAPAG) to reduce acquisitive crime 
• 01.01.01b Target hardening vulnerable properties and businesses 
• 01.01.01c Target the most prolific offenders for multi-agency action 
• 01.01.01e Improve street lighting levels in areas with high levels of fear of crime 
• 01.01.01f Undertake with the Police joint anti crime and enforcement initatives within 

Markets 
 
01.01.02 To reduce violent crime, with a focus on youth and domestic violence 
• 01.01.02a Implement an action plan, through the Violent Crime Action Group, to reduce 

violent crime, including GBH, ABH and common assault 
• 1.01.02b Raise awareness and reduce tolerance of domestic violence 
• 01.01.02c Improve service co-ordination to support victims of domestic violence 
• 01.01.02d Reduce the impact of domestic violence on children 
 
01.01.03 To extend engagement in constructive and law abiding activities 
• 01.01.03a Increase the number of opportunities for volunteering and community action by 

children and young people 
• 01.01.03b Continue to roll out the Youth Opportunity Fund 
• 01.01.03c Increase the provision of Positive Activities for Young People (PAYP) 
• 01.01.03d Develop the Youth Intervention Programme in two further LAPs, providing diversionary 

activities for young people at risk of falling into crime or anti-social behaviour by March 2008 
 
01.01.04 To reduce the level of anti-social behaviour and the impact which ASB has on 
the quality of life of our communities 
• 01.01.04a Implement a comprehensive action plan, through the ASB Action Group, to 

reduce ASB 
• 01.01.04c Support the delivery of the RSL Action Plan for reducing crime and ASB 
• 01.01.04d Strengthen actions against ASB through partnership operations to reduce 

criminal damage 
• 01.01.04f Use Partnership resources effectively to identify perpetrators of ASB and take 

appropriate enforcement action 
• 01.01.04i Effective use of Restorative Justice Conferences effectively to empower victims 

and address the impact of ASB on their lives 
• 01.01.04j Develop the use of CCTV to prevent crime and bring offenders to justice 
• 01.01.04k Provide appropriate support to victims, witnesses and vulnerable perpetrators 

of ASB 
• 01.01.04l Ensure that Parking Services' Abandoned Vehicle Team work with the Police, 

Safer Neighbourhood Teams and other Groups to provide a co-ordinated approach to 
tackling ASB and the impact on the community 

• 01.01.04m Undertake a review of the licensing policy 
 
01.01.05 To reduce substance misuse and related crime through effective treatment, 
prevention, enforcement and community engagement 
• 01.01.05a Continue to promote treatment uptake and increase retention 
• 01.01.05b Continue to develop drug treatment provision to meet local needs 

Page 235



 2 

• 01.01.05c Improve service user participation in the development of drug treatment 
services 

• 01.01.05d Deliver effective prevention and early intervention through training and 
development and a focus on treatment for young people 

• 01.01.05e Promote awareness and understanding in the community of drug and alcohol 
misuse 

• 01.01.05f Reduce rates of re-offending by drug misusing offenders 
• 01.01.05g Develop and implement an action plan with the Police to tackle drugs 

availability and dealing 
 
01.01.06 To reduce hate crime and promote community cohesion 
• 01.01.06a Implement a comprehensive and effective action plan, through the Race and 

Hate Crime Interagency Forum, to prevent and reduce hate crime and promote 
community cohesion 

• 01.01.06b Design and implement projects that change attitudes and behaviour and build 
cohesive communities 

• 01.01.06c Collate and disseminate good practice around race and hate crime to all within 
the service and the borough 

• 01.01.06d Support Hate Crime victims that report through 24 hour Hate Crime Line 
• 01.01.06e Development of a sub-group to the Gold Group to work at an operational level 
 
01.01.07 To reduce the fear of crime and anti-social behaviour and engage the 
community in the development of policy 
• 01.01.07a Ongoing management of Community Safety Service and Living Safety CPAG 

communications agenda 
• 01.01.07b Deliver effective, high profile campaigns 
• 01.01.07c To further involve the community in developing services 
 
01.01.08 To improve service delivery across the Community Safety Service 
• 01.01.08a Complete a review of customer feedback mechanisms in the Community 

Safety Service 
• 01.01.08b Further develop clear and productive relationships between Community Safety 

and housing providers 
• 01.01.08c Ensure that Community Safety is well placed to contribute to the CPA 

Corporate Assessment in 2008 
• 01.01.08d Utilise benchmarking to deliver business benefits 
 
01.01.09 To increase community safety on estates 
• 01.01.09a Agree a programme of security improvement works for communal areas, and 

estate lighting and horticulture 
• 01.01.09b Sign up to the Respect Standard of Housing Management for Tower Hamlets 
 
01.01.10 To make streets, public areas, residential areas and open spaces safer 
• 01.01.10b Improve the profile of the Park Community Ranger Service with community 
• 01.01.10d Introduce 3 local safety schemes targeting locations with the worst road 

accident casualty records 
• 01.01.10e Introduce 4 new safe schools with approved School Travel Plans 
• 01.01.10f Deliver targeted road safety education and awareness programmes to 

vulnerable groups to help them be safer on the roads 
 
01.02.01 To improve the cleanliness of the borough's streets including housing estates 
and parks 
• 01.02.01a Develop a programme of minor estate improvement works to communal areas 

on Council estates 
• 01.02.01b Improve the management of cleansing in parks 

Page 236



 3 

• 01.02.01d To work with fast food outlets to reduce the litter impact on the surrounding 
environment 

 
01.02.03 To protect the environment 
• 01.02.03a Consider a parking permit scheme linked to vehicle emissions 
• 01.02.03b Formal adoption and implementation of Staff Travel Plan 
• 01.02.03c Continue to raise awareness and stimulate interest in the protection and 

enhancement of biodiversity, local wildlife species and their (potential) habitats, among all 
people living and working in Tower Hamlets 

• 01.02.03d Develop a working relationship with local universities on environmental and 
sustainability issues 

• 01.02.03e Further develop membership of the Tower Hamlets Freecycle initiative that 
links up with unwanted items with new owners 

• 01.02.03f To develop an Environmental Strategy for the Council 
 
01.02.04 To improve the physical environment 
• 01.02.04a Prioritise the removal of abandoned vehicles from the public highway, estate 

and private land 
• 01.02.04b Whole corridor improvements introduced on 3 key streets, involving improved 

provision for pedestrians, revised waiting and loading, street lighting improvements, 
reduction in street clutter, highway maintenance, accessibility improvements particularly 
around bus stops and cycle facilities (Sites probably- Bethnal Green Road, Poplar High 
St, Roman Road or Westferry Road) 

 
01.02.05 To improve the provision and quality of public open space 
• 01.02.05b Progress quality improvements in parks and open spaces 
 
 
2. LIVING WELL 
 
02.01.01 To provide decent homes and decent neighbourhoods 
• 02.01.01a Deliver a programme of major repair and improvement works to Council homes 

and estates 
• 02.01.01b Develop a Tower Hamlets Housing Investment Strategy 
• 02.01.01c Local Area Agreement partnership with RSLs to develop shared standards/ 

strategic framework 
 
02.01.02 To increase the supply of affordable homes 
• 02.01.02a Secure new affordable housing through planning contribution process, Housing 

Corporation funding and Local Authority Grant 
• 02.01.02b Reduce the number of empty properties through the Private Sector Renewal 

and Empty Property Framework. Use grants to increase the number of non-decent vacant 
homes brought back into use as affordable rented homes 

 
02.01.03 To provide excellent housing services in consultation with the residents who 
use them 
• 02.01.03a Develop a resident involvement strategy for Housing Services 
• 02.01.03b Consult on and develop arrangements for the future delivery of landlord 

services by July 2007 
• 02.01.03c Implement a Landlord Service Improvement Programme to achieve a minimum 

two star rating at inspection 
 
02.02.01 To reduce the number of residents who smoke or are exposed to tobacco 
smoke of others 
• 02.02.01a In partnership with the PCT formulate a smoking cessation strategy 
• 02.02.01b Form a Tobacco Control unit whose main objectives are to:- To implement 

smoke free enclosed spaces within Tower Hamlets; To build a sustainable tobacco 
control partnership for Tower Hamlets; To promote smoking cessation to residents, 
visitors and workers in Tower Hamlets 

Page 237



 4 

 
02.02.02 To improve the health of children and young people 
• 02.02.02b Provide 3x9 weight management programmes for obese children (7-11 and 12-

16) 
• 02.02.02c Develop a service specification for provision of mainstream and specialist 

health services within Children's Centres, maximising efficiency and value for money 
• 02.02.02d Review and develop the core offer for school-based health services 
• 02.02.02f Promote good nutrition and physical activity for the under 5s through Children's 

Centres including support for breastfeeding and weaning, and providing active 'stay and 
play' sessions 

• 02.02.02g Ensure 80% of schools are delivering at least 2 hours of high quality PE every 
week in survey carried out- July 2007 

• 02.02.02h Support schools to ensure that the emotional wellbeing of pupils is addressed 
effectively through the curriculum, through training of school staff, bringing in specialist 
mental health workers, and implementing the SEAL strategy effectively 

 
02.03.01 To deliver accessible, responsive, timely and appropriate adult care services 
for a diverse community 
• 02.03.01a Maintaining top performance on all national performance indicators including 

unit costs and value for money indicators 
• 02.03.01b Full implementation of review of carers' services 
• 02.03.01c Deliver improvements in services for people with sensory impairments to 

enable increased access to the range of services provided by the Council  
• 02.03.01d Improve interpretation and translation facilities through building local voluntary 

sector capacity 
 
02.03.02 To promote independence and choice for vulnerable adults 
• 02.03.02c Develop strategy for implementation of individualised budgets, maximising 

efficiency by aligning resource allocation with individual choices 
• 02.03.02d Full roll out of telecare programme 
• 02.03.02e Develop electronic monitoring of home care services to deliver projected 

efficiency savings in 2008/09 
 
02.03.03 To ensure that care and support services are experienced by service users as 
'joined-up' across organisational boundaries 
• 02.03.03b Integrate commissioning function across Adults Health and Wellbeing and PCT 

to improve value for money 
 
02.03.04 To promote effective working between Adult Social Care and Children's 
Services 
• 02.03.04a Ensure robust arrangements for joint working in place 
• 02.03.04b Develop an integrated service approach to children whose parents are in 

receipt of adult mental health services 
 
02.03.05 To support vulnerable adults in making a positive contribution to their 
community 
• 02.03.05a To commission employment support services for people with disabilities and 

mental health problems 
 
02.03.06 To improve the links between targeted services for vulnerable adults and 
universal public and commercial services 
• 02.03.06a Roll out fully the LinkAge Plus programme 
• 02.03.06b Ensure full opportunities for older and disabled people within developing 

Olympics strategy 
 
02.03.07 To reduce homelessness and meet the needs of vulnerable residents 
• 02.03.07a Review and redevelop Homelessness Strategy for completion in March 2008 
 

Page 238



 5 

02.03.08 To maximise financial security and provide more effective financial advice to 
vulnerable groups 
• 02.03.08a Design and deliver a range of activities with key partners to: (i) improve levels 

of financial literacy, (ii) increase access to affordable banking and credit facilities and (iii) 
promote quality assured debt advice provision 

• 02.03.08b Support the development of a corporate approach to dealing with debt 
particularly when dealing with vulnerable clients 

• 02.03.08c Promote welfare benefit and tax credit take up in partnership with key Third 
Sector and statutory partners 

 
02.04.01 To continue to protect children from risk of harm and neglect 
• 02.04.01b Work proactively with schools to improve their practice in safeguarding children 
• 02.04.01c Pilot a child and adult mental health project (CHAMP) to address the needs of 

children living with adults with mental health issues by March 2008 
 
02.04.02 Improve access and quality of support to children and young people with 
disabilities and their families 
• 02.04.02a Commission new support to families caring for disabled children to help them 

establish routines to assist in achieving sustainable care and promote their child's 
independence in the home 

• 02.04.02b Review current provision of respite care, and improve consistency and 
accessibility of services 

• 02.04.02c Undertake a holistic review of all services commissioned for children with 
disabilities and recommission according to need in March 2008, stripping out duplication, 
identifying gaps in service provision and achieving better value for money 

• 02.04.02d Continue to develop an integrated approach to assessment of children with 
disabilities across the range of professionals and agencies providing support services 

• 02.04.02e Clarify and refine support thresholds for children with disabilities 
• 02.04.02f Implement the Lead Professional role 
• 02.04.02g Participation Officer to undertake consultation with looked after young people 

with a disability to inform how the service is developed 
 
02.04.03 Strengthen our approach to partnership working in Children's Services, 
building on our Children and Young People's Strategic Partnership to provide effective 
governance and ensure delivery of priority outcomes 
• 02.04.03a Strengthen the interface between the CYPSPG and integrated delivery 

arrangements to ensure accountability and performance management are embedded 
• 02.04.03b Maintain the Children and Young People's Plan (CYPP) as the key strategic 

document for guiding the partnership to deliver outcomes for children and young people 
 

02.04.04 To integrate assessment processes for children across the agencies and 
ensure that information is shared appropriately 
• 02.04.04a Use our Common Assessment Framework (CAF) evaluation framework to 

ensure our systems are embedded and effective in meeting children's needs 
 
02.04.05 Improve the database infrastructure in Children's Services, so that we can 
improve the ability of all children's services, including those in partner agencies, to 
offer a faster, more relevant and integrated service to vulnerable children 
• 02.04.05a Work towards improved tracking of vulnerable children through ContactPoint 

(previously known as the Information Sharing Index), by completing preparation for 
deployment by March 2008 

 
 
3. CREATING AND SHARING PROSPERITY 
 
03.01.01 To develop the strategic framework to promote sustainable and socially 
inclusive development 
• 03.01.01a Adopt a statement of community involvement 
• 03.01.01c Complete preferred options consultation on the central Area Action Plan 

Page 239



 6 

• 03.01.01d Complete consultation on issues and options for Waste Development Plan 
document 

• 03.01.01e Complete Annual Monitoring Return 
• 03.01.01f Develop effective relationships with key strategic stakeholders including the 

ODA, GLA, LTGDC, TfL and LDA and influence the development of their strategies 
• 03.01.01h Develop a carbon reduction strategy, engaging the development industry and 

other stakeholders 
• 03.01.01g Initiate a sustainable transport strategy 
• 03.01.01i Undertake a refresh of the Regeneration Strategy 
 
03.01.02 To implement the Local Development Framework based area initiatives and 
secure benefits for borough residents 
• 03.01.02a Determine priorities for local development framework delivery 
• 03.01.02b Preparing local development framework delivery documents 
• 03.01.02c Representing the borough's interests in the development of major public 

infrastructure projects 
• 03.01.02d Delivering high quality design and urban space which enhances built heritage 
• 03.01.02e Working with the ODA, GLA/ TfL and LTGDC on planning for the Olympics and 

developing legacy initiatives such as the Olympic Boulevard, the Greenway, and Victoria 
Park as a means to develop Olympic places 

 
03.01.03 To improve the effectiveness of development control and building control 
processes 
• 03.01.03a Improve the pre-application advice process, particularly for major 

developments to support delivery of a more efficient development control process 
• 03.01.03b Improve the process of negotiating and completing S106 legal agreements 
• 03.01.03c Improve performance in processing Land Charges searches by the digital 

capturing of all data in the Land Charges, Planning and Building Control Services to 
secure projected medium term effieciency savings 

 
03.01.04 To support business information and networking 
• 03.01.04a Develop the East London Business Place demand/ supply chain model for 

SMEs in partnership with Canary Wharf Group and the other 4 host Olympic boroughs 
• 03.01.04b Improve evidence based information on business community 
• 03.01.04c Develop a co-ordinated approach to enterprise and business which maximises 

utilisation of resources 
 
03.01.05 To promote the borough to key stakeholders and promote key business 
sectors 
• 03.01.05a Raise the profile of the borough through effective marketing 
 
03.01.06 To develop an enterprising Third Sector 
• 03.01.06a Support entrepreneurial activity amongst the local population 
 
03.01.07 To harness community benefits by securing and effectively managing external 
resources 
• 03.01.07a Maximise external funding opportunities in line with Community Plan priorities 
 
03.02.01 Ensure young people benefit from economic growth in Tower Hamlets 
• 03.02.01a Support the transition of young people post 16 into further education, training 

or employment by more effective tracking and follow up through Personal Advisors 
• 03.02.01c Improve career pathways through enhancing links between schools, other 

learning providers and employers in key growth sectors 
• 03.02.01d Expand the New Start project, to provide more opportunities for young people 

not in education, training and employment by March 2008 
• 03.02.01e Offer more employer-led career development programmes, including work 

experience and internship opportunities, in partnership with the Education Business 
Partnership by March 2008 

Page 240



 7 

• 03.02.01f Provide every young person with access to information about the range of 
employment, education and training opportunities 

• 03.02.01g Develop and adopt of Tower Hamlets NEET (not in employment, education or 
training) reduction strategy, coordinating the work of all key stakeholders by September 
2007 

 
03.02.02 To increase the capacity of local residents to compete for jobs 
• 03.02.02a Continue to deliver cost-effective Skillsmatch job brokerage service 
• 03.02.02b To develop joint partnership programme of employability interventions to 

augment/ improve mainstream provision through the Employment Task Group 
• 03.02.02c In conjunction with the other 4 host boroughs develop the business plan for the 

Local Employment and Training Framework (LETF) 
 
03.02.03 To increase access to employment for target groups 
• 03.02.03a Develop a pilot programme in partnership with PCT and Jobcentre Plus for 

clients on Incapacity Benefit seeking to return to work 
• 03.02.03b Increase the percentage of NEETs entering employment 
• 03.02.03c Number of under 25s (not on New Deal programme) assisted into employment 

by Skillsmatch 
 
03.02.04 To improve information and understanding of the complexity of worklessness 
and unemployment 
• 03.02.04a Continue to support the development of the City Strategy pilot 
• 03.02.04b Understanding worklessness document produced 
 
03.02.05 To support parents who wish to return to work 
• 03.02.05a Audit current childcare provision and full and part time places in nursery 

classes/ schools and revise plan for development of provision accordingly 
 
 
4. LEARNING, ACHIEVEMENT AND LEISURE 
 
04.01.01 To improve the standards of early years provision to give every child the best 
possible start in life 
• 04.01.01b Provide additional support to improve outcomes for language and 

communication and personal and emotional development in a range of settings including 
libraries 

 
04.01.02 Extend the opportunities for all children, including those with disabilities, to 
enjoy a range of activities outside of school including participation in play, culture, arts 
and school 
• 04.01.02a Provide a range of dedicated unsupervised outdoor play areas, skate parks, 

etc 
• 04.01.02b Integrate 1 O'Clock Club services into a combined model managed by 

Children's Services 
• 04.01.02c Develop with partners a play strategy for Tower Hamlets 
 
04.01.03 Through personalised learning accelerate improvements in attainment with a 
particular focus on Key Stage 1 and 3 and English and mathematics at GCSE 
• 04.01.03b Intervene more quickly to support children with special educational needs, 

reducing the need for statements and continue to support schools to develop inclusive 
teaching and learning programmes 

• 04.01.03d Develop a borough-wide strategy for the effective use of a managed learning 
environment to promote a personalised learning 

• 04.01.03f Ensure provision mapping links with prevention strategy, wider extended 
provision and common assessment and referral processes 

 
04.01.04 Maintaining a strong focus on securing the best possible outcomes for looked 
after children 

Page 241



 8 

• 04.01.04a Work with schools and personal tutors to make sure that children and young 
people who are looked after by the local authority are encouraged to maintain high 
aspirations and are actively involved in setting their own learning targets 

 
04.01.05 As part of our 14-19 learner entitlement, raise both aspirations and skills to 
lead to increased level 2 and level 3 achievement at 19 
• 04.01.05a Plan 14-19 provision in order to meet the range of needs for all learners and 

secure better progression 
 
04.01.06 Improve behaviour and attendance and reduce exclusions from school 
• 04.01.06a Support schools in developing a wide range of school improvement strategies 

to improve behaviour and reduce incidents which lead to exclusion, by focussing on 
teaching and learning to improve pupil engagement, implementing the DfES Social and 
Emotional Aspects of Learning (SEAL) programme as part of our school partnership 
arrangements and working with the police, youth workers and the Third Sector to 
generate innovative ways to reduce levels of violence in schools 

• 04.01.06b Establish secondary school partnership arrangements to support behaviour 
• 04.01.06c Review multi-agency Pastoral Support Programmes (PSP) for pupils at risk of 

permanent exclusion 
• 04.01.06d Extend work with faith groups, to increase attendance, particularly at primary 

level by addressing issues like term-time leave 
• 04.01.06e Reduce exclusions in schools and their impact, by supporting schools to 

develop a wide range of strategies to reduce incidents which lead to exclusion 
• 04.01.06g Increase training for governing bodies 
 
04.01.07 Enrich the curriculum offer, both within and beyond school, for all our 
children so that they enjoy learning, to offer a broad curriculum including creative and 
sporting activities 
• 04.01.07b Work through school sports partnerships and capitalise on the 2012 

Paralympic and Olympics to increase the extent and quality of sports provision in schools, 
particularly in primary schools; ensuring children with disabilities are fully included 

• 04.01.07c Develop the curriculum to address wider citizenship issues including violence 
and crime 

• 04.01.07d Deliver schools and community based projects to increase awareness of hate 
crime and promote community cohesion 

 
04.01.08 To increase the participation of children and young people in decision making 
and community life 
• 04.01.08b Develop improved opportunities for involvement for Looked After Children 
 
04.01.09 To improve information, advice and guidance to all young people aged 10-19 
• 04.01.09a Through schools provide better early information advice and guidance to all 

young people, aligned with the curriculum 
• 04.01.09b Personalise the advice and guidance available to young people at risk of 

becoming NEET 
• 04.01.09c Renegotiate the delivery and outputs within the careers company contract, 

continuing to improve quality of information, advice and guidance being offered in 
schools, by March 2008 

 
04.01.10 To increase parental engagement in children's learning 
• 04.01.10a Develop integrated family support and parental engagement strategy across 

Children's Services 
• 04.01.10b Increase the opportunities for family engagement and opportunities to learn 

and play together 
• 04.01.10c Improve information families and children so that they are aware of the range 

of activities available to them, and their responsibilities, and improve home/school liaison 
through ICT 

• 04.01.10d Consult with parents to develop services that support them and that ensure 
that their children achieve in an inclusive, effective education system 

Page 242



 9 

 
04.01.11 To provide high quality places to go and exciting things to do that meet the 
needs of young people 
• 04.01.11a Redesign service delivery through the new Youth Service contract to increase 

the number of young people accessing youth work provision 
• 04.01.11b Increase the number of schools that achieve local and national quality 

assurance awards for their extended services and out of hours learning 
 
04.02.01 To improve the quality of leisure provision and customer experience 
• 04.02.01a Establish a Leisure Centre Public Consultation Group 
• 04.02.01b Increase the proportion of residents within 20 minutes' walking distance of a 

quality accredited facility to over 90% of the borough's population by increasing quality 
'Quest' accredited leisure facilities from three to four by March 2008 

• 04.02.01c Complete stage 3 of York Hall redevelopment plan 
 
04.02.02 To increase community engagement and participation in cultural activities 
• 04.02.02a Support and deliver a borough-wide programme of festivals and events 

reflecting the diverse needs of the community 
• 04.02.02b Establish the Football Development partnership forum 
• 04.02.02c Deliver a football development programme for 7-11s in schools and at the 

Football Development Centre 
• 04.02.02e Increase usage of leisure centres of key target groups 
• 04.02.02f Train 80 volunteers to support the delivery of sport in the borough 
• 04.02.02g Utilise the Sport Search programme to improve young peoples' participation in 

sport 
• 04.02.02h Upgrade the qualifications of 40 sports coaches 
• 04.02.02i Enter 40 teams in the London Youth Games including 6 teams in disability 

sports activities 
• 04.02.02j Deliver a programme of arts activity for young people (13 to 19 years old) at 

youth centres across the borough 
 
04.02.03 To improve participation in Idea Store, library and lifelong learning activities 
• 04.02.03a Improve user access to books, DVDs, CDs, the library catalogue, on-line 

services and information in Idea Stores, libraries and learning centres to services and 
increase participation to assist achieving reduction in unit costs 

• 04.02.03b Undertake Idea Stores users' survey for people under 16 to improve 
knowledge and understanding of needs of under 16s 

• 04.02.03c Increase the use of libraries and Idea Stores as a resource for children and 
young people in the borough 

 
04.02.04 To increase participation in sport and physical activity for the community 
• 04.02.04a Improve fixed play equipment on a range of sites 
• 04.02.04b Increase visits to leisure centres by 15,000 in comparison to 2006/07 outturn 
 
 
5. EXCELLENT PUBLIC SERVICES 
 
05.01.01 To ensure that the Council's response to greater and flexible freedoms for 
local government maximises benefits to local people 
• 05.01.01a Implement reorganisation of Council Services 
• 05.01.01b Identify key elements of response and action to new local government 

legislation in terms of accountability arrangements 
 
05.01.03 To develop a high performance culture by investing in Council staff 
• 05.01.03a Implement new leadership programmes including programmes targeted at 

black and minority staff 
• 05.01.03b Put processes in place to support and track the progression of staff 
• 05.01.03c Develop the role of the Corporate NVQ centre and extend NVQ provision 
 

Page 243



 10 

05.01.04 To develop organisational performance across the Council 
• 05.01.04a Undertake the second Council-wide staff survey 
• 05.01.04b Co-ordinate the corporate IiP assessment 
 
05.01.05 To champion further improvements in performance management across the 
Council and Partnership 
• 05.01.05a Co-ordinate agreed programme of service review and improvement work, 

including Business Process Improvement reviews 
• 05.01.05b Further develop joint approaches to financial and performance management 

across the Council and Partnership 
• 05.01.05c Oversee the implementation of the Council's approach to data quality  
• 05.01.05d Develop and improve the Excelsis system to support consistent and embedded 

performance management across the Council 
• 05.01.05e Support preparation for the CPA Corporate Assessment 
 
05.01.06 To provide a dynamic, outward-facing Overview and Scrutiny function 
• 05.01.06b Further strengthen the Health Scrutiny function 
• 05.01.06d Raise the profile of Overview and Scrutiny with Members, partners and local 

communities 
 
05.01.07 Improve the quality of the Council's financial management 
• 05.01.07a Continue to integrate service and financial planning 
• 05.01.07e Implement changes to the Local Government Pension Scheme 
• 05.01.07f Continue to improve the Council's treasury management 
 
05.01.08 To ensure value for money in providing services 
• 05.01.08a Develop information on comparative value for money/ unit costs  
• 05.01.08b Develop a strategic response to efficiency targets  
• 05.01.08c Embed a culture of value for money in the organisation 
• 05.01.08d Support service managers to embed value for money and generating 

efficiencies in their on going planning and service evaluation in Children's Services 
• 05.01.08e Identify where unit costs are high in Children's Services and undertake more in 

depth benchmarking analysis to understand these better 
• 05.01.08f Within Children's Services strengthen the interface between our medium term 

financial planning and the development of our commissioning intentions in order to 
maximise the opportunities for efficiencies 

• 05.01.08g Maximise the potential for contracted work to deliver better value for money 
and efficiency in Children's Services 

• 05.01.08h Complete an efficiency review of the Community Safety service 
 
05.01.09 To enhance the delivery of excellent public services through improved 
procurement 
• 05.01.09a Deliver cashable efficiency savings of 0.5% by March 2008 
• 05.01.09b Introduce a whole life costing methodology to be utilised when planning 

projects and assessing tenders 
• 05.01.09d Develop and implement contract management methodologies for both 

corporate and directorate managed contracts 
• 05.01.09e Ensure that SMEs and the Third Sector are able to compete for Council 

business and that system changes cater for SME and Third Sector need 
• 05.01.09f Use spend analysis to more effectively manage Council expenditure through 

demand management 
• 05.01.09g Develop and implement sustainability policy for procurement 
• 05.01.09j Gateway Review all procurement in excess of £250k in value 
• 05.01.09m Further develop and embed the Children's Services commissioning unit to 

achieve better value for money and alignment across outsourced delivery 
 
05.01.10 To improve the quality of the Council's risk management 

Page 244



 11 

• 05.01.10a Continue integration of risk management into Personal Performance 
Management training and ensure it refers to guidance 

• 05.01.10b Continue to provide comprehensive up to date risk management training to 
Members and all third tier managers 

• 05.01.10c Review and update the intranet information 
• 05.01.10d Develop compliance checklist 
• 05.01.10e Undertaking Directorate level review of compliance 
• 05.01.10f Revise service planning guidance to ensure more explicit consideration about 

risk 
• 05.01.10h Implement recommendations of the Audit Commission review of Risk 

Management 
 
05.01.11 To improve levels of attendance and health and well-being of employees 
• 05.01.11b Deliver high quality Occupational Health services to support managers to 

increase levels of attendance at work and reduce levels of sickness absence 
• 05.01.11d Produce and deliver health promotions for 2007 which seek to improve the 

health and wellbeing of our staff 
• 05.01.11e Market Health Screening services 
 
05.01.12 To enhance workforce and HR capacity 
• 05.01.12a Use workforce planning to identify priority areas for LBTH to implement 

initiatives to 'grow its own' workforce of the future 
• 05.01.12c Develop joint working with Primary Care Trust and identify other possible joint 

initiatives with partner organisations to build capacity of human resources services 
 
05.01.13 To support the delivery of excellent public services through the appropriate 
use of technology 
• 05.01.13d Complete new ICT Working Environment in support of the Council's 

Accommodation and Flexible Working Strategies 
 
05.01.14 To develop internal communications that are targeted and purposeful 
• 05.01.14a Develop a refreshed internal communications strategy and action plan, 

including key messages 
• 05.01.14b Review Pulling Together, to reduce costs and encourage greater interactivity 

with readers 
 
05.01.15 To ensure the efficient and effective use of Council accommodation resources 
• 05.01.15a Continue the implementation of the Council's agreed Office Accommodation 

strategy 
• 05.01.15b Improve energy use in Council office buildings 
 
05.01.17 To increase the capacity of the Third Sector to participate in the planning and 
delivery of excellent public services 
• 05.01.17a Improve understanding of how resources are used with the Third Sector to 

ensure efficiency and value for money 
• 05.01.17b Monitor the methodology to measure the impact of Third Sector work on the 

outcomes for service users 
• 05.01.17c Develop Third Sector commissioning capacity within the Council 
• 05.01.17d Implement a refreshed strategic framework for the funding relationship by: - 

Improved co-ordination of mainstream grants round;- Introduction of commissioning 
approach to allocation of Third Sector advice funding;- Embedded understanding across 
Council, statutory partners and Third Sector 

• 05.01.17e Provision of support and assistance to frontline Third Sector organisations to 
enhance their ability to shape and deliver local priorities and increase participation and 
involvement of residents 

• 05.01.17g Develop a Joint Programme of environmental projects and capacity building 
with Muslim Women's groups (Subject to outcome of 2006/07 LAA faith group initiative 
and 2007/08 funding) 

 

Page 245



 12 

05.02.01 To improve the co-ordination and responsiveness of services to better reflect 
local people's needs 
• 05.02.01a Further develop the Partnership's approach to localisation, in the light of the 

Local Government White Paper and Bill 
• 05.02.01c Enabling greater participation of LAP Steering Groups in designing 

interventions to support LAP action plans 
• 05.02.01d Facilitating improved local coherence in service provision (e.g. through Better 

Tower Hamlets Teams, Associate Directors of Primary Care) 
 
05.02.02 To provide and co-ordinate the use of reliable information, research and 
analysis across the Council and the Partnership to inform effective decision making 
and evaluation 
• 05.02.02b Develop systems for more targeted information on performance and 

perceptions (communities and localities) and reporting to local people 
• 05.02.02c Improve understanding of demographic trends and the nature of our local 

population and their implications for service development and delivery 
 
05.02.03 To support effective Member contribution 
• 05.02.03a Develop new approach to role of ward councillors in view of Local Government 

White Paper and best practice 
• 05.02.03b To establish and ensure achievement of Service Standards for dealing with 

Members' enquiries 
 
05.02.05 To improve public understanding of Council services 
• 05.02.05a Implement Cabinet recommendations regarding East End Life to improve 

communications with local residents 
• 05.02.05b Review the Council's advertising policies and practices to ensure they continue 

to represent best value and best practice 
• 05.02.05d Develop a refreshed external communications strategy and action plan, 

including key messages and clear link to directorate priorities 
• 05.02.05e Implement the recommendations of the communications review 
 
05.02.06 To improve access to services 
• 05.02.06a Develop a Corporate Customer Access Strategy, based on user choice 

customer preferences and demands 
• 05.02.06d Develop and implement a strategic approach to the handling of face to face 

contact across the Authority 
• 05.02.06f Continue to develop the call centre approach to maxmise benefit from 

investment in Customer Relationship Management (CRM) technology 
• 05.02.06g Establish targets and monitoring/ measuring methodologies for customer 

satisfaction with service contacts 
 
05.03.01 To promote and support community cohesion across all communities 
• 05.03.01a Extend the role of the Bridging Communities project 
• 05.03.01b Implement agreed approach to more systematic tension monitoring 
• 05.03.01c Work with the Interfaith Forum to facilitate cohesion work with new 

communities 
• 05.03.01f Continue to strengthen partnerships between children and young people and 

faith institutions, developing children and young people's involvement in the Interfaith 
Forum by March 2008 

• 05.03.01g Roll out a programme of cultural exchanges between young people in Tower 
Hamlets, through schools, youth work and other settings by March 2008 

• 05.03.01h Continue to combat racism and all forms of discriminatory behaviour by 
continuing the roll out of all diversity awareness training and reporting of racist incidents 
and other hate crimes by March 2008 

• 05.03.01i Disseminate best practice in support for newly arrived young children and 
young people with English as an additional language (EAL) in schools 

• 05.03.01j Disability and gender equality schemes in place 
 

Page 246



 13 

05.03.02 To support the continued effective development of the Tower Hamlets 
Partnership, ensuring both strategic and operational integration with the work of the 
Council 
• 05.03.02a Implement a comprehensive review of the borough's Community Plan (Tower 

Hamlets 2020), using the Olympics and their legacy to stimulate engagement 
• 05.03.02c Implement robust systems for programme management, performance 

management and evaluation of the neighbourhood renewal programme 
 
05.03.03 To ensure a strategic approach across services to consultation with the public 
• 05.03.03b Build on good practice to maximise the impact of consultation and involvement 

exercises 
 
05.04.01 To ensure that the Council operates to the highest standards of equalities 
practice 
• 05.04.01a Maintain Level 5 of the Local Government Equality Standard and extend this to 

the Tower Hamlets Partnership 
• 05.04.01b Refresh the Equality Action Plan with specific links to Equality Schemes 

(Gender, Race and Disability) and age, faith, and sexuality regulations and guidelines 
• 05.04.01d Interpretation and Translation Guidance refreshed and agreed by Partnership 
 
05.04.02 To support the Tower Hamlets Partnership in ensuring that it engages 
effectively with all communities in the borough 
• 05.04.02a Work with Third Sector partners to implement Stronger Communities strand of 

Local Area Agreement 
• 05.04.03a Implement recruitment and development initiatives to support achievement of 

all Workforce to Reflect the Community Strategy targets; Council wide and within 
Directorates 

 
05.04.03 To improve the extent to which the workforce reflects the community 
• 05.04.03b Developing programmes to support career pathways through the organisation 

so that BME staff can progress more readily into senior management positions- market 
these opportunities to BME staff, and mentors and coaches to support the programmes 

• 05.04.03c Introduce new Aspiring Leader Programme for targeted staff in middle-grade 
posts (especially BME and disabled staff), to develop leadership skills through an 
accredited management development programme, secondments, placements and project 
work 

• 05.04.03d Underpinning supervisory/ management training with an option for professional 
qualification training where appropriate 

• 05.04.03e Positively respond to the new statutory requirement to promote the new 
statutory requirement to promote disability equality, age discrimination legislation, and 
changes in employment legislation 

Page 247



Page 248

This page is intentionally left blank



 1 

Appendix 3b 
Strategic Plan 2007/08 End of Year Monitoring 

 
Overdue Activities from the Strategic Plan 
 
1. LIVING SAFELY 
 

01.01.01 To reduce crime and the fear of crime 
Key Activity 
01.01.01d Provide support to offenders to reduce reoffending 
Progress Milestone Deadline Comments 
3. Effective multi-agency 
support provided to 100 
offenders by end March 2008 

31/03/2008 Due to delays with the commissioning of the Looking Out service we have 
not met our target of supporting 100 ex-offenders in 2007/08. To the end of 
March there have been 78 ex-offenders supported. When the Looking Out 
service has been running for a full year it is anticipated that the 100 ex-
offenders target will be significantly exceeded. 

01.01.02 To reduce violent crime, with a focus on youth and domestic violence 
Key Activity 
01.01.02e Work in partnership to ensure that children and families affected by domestic violence are offered appropriate 
support and protection 
Progress Milestone Deadline Comments 
3. Agree a clear monitoring 
framework to monitor the 
effectiveness of the revised 
protocol by March 2008 

31/03/2008 Monitoring framework for revised protocol on children and DV carried over to 
2008/09 plan as all-London procedures for Safeguarding Children Abused 
Through Domestic Violence was not published until March 2008. 

01.01.04 To reduce the level of anti-social behaviour and the impact which ASB has on the quality of life of our 
communities 
Key Activity 
01.01.04b Provide a joined- up local approach to preventing ASB through the rollout of multi-agency Better Tower Hamlets 
Teams 
Progress Milestone Deadline Comments 
2. LAP 7 and 8 and LAP 3 and 
4 Better Tower Hamlets Teams 
co-located and operational by 
September 2007 

30/09/2007 LAP 7&8 will co-locate from 1st of May 2008 due to slippage in securing new 
location for the team. The new site is located with Poplar Harca at Crisp 
Street and has been authorised. All MPS security checks have now been 
completed and refurbishment work on the site has started. 

3. Better Tower Hamlets Teams 
evaluation complete by March 
2008 

31/03/2008 It was agreed that an evaluation on the project at this stage is not 
appropriate as two of the four Better Tower Hamlets Teams have not yet co-
located. An evaluation will be completed once the two remaining teams co-
locate and are operational. 

Key Activity 
01.01.04e Investigate all reported cases of ASB and race and hate crime within the procedure adhering to set timescales with 
appropriate enforcement action taken 
Progress Milestone Deadline Comments 
3. Active enforcement actions 
maintain levels of ABCs and 
ASBOs and achieve 30 ASB 
injunctions and 30 Drug Access 
Closure Orders- March 2008 

31/03/2008 The specified number of ASBIs and drug address closures have not been 
obtained due to an alternative focus of our drug enforcement activities 

Key Activity 
01.01.04g Proactive work with the perpetrators of ASB and their families to address the offending behaviour 
Progress Milestone Deadline Comments 
1. 40 families identified through 
ASB investigations by March 
2008 

31/03/2008 30 Families have been referred to Parenting Practitioner to date. 26 Families 
have been assessed and another 4 to be assessed. 11 parents have been 
engaged in SFSC parenting programmes. 6 Families will be finishing their 
programmes in March 08 and the remaining parents will be finishing their 
programmes in June 08. This is due to the initial delay in appointing and 
training the parenting officer. As this was a completely new project it took 
time to encourage parents to take up the courses on offer to improve their 
parenting skills. 

2. 40 referrals made to 
Parenting Support Worker by 
March 2008 

31/03/2008 30 Families have been referred to Parenting Practitioner to date. This is due 
to the initial delay in appointing and training the parenting officer. As this was 
a completely new project it took time to encourage parents to take up the 
courses on offer to improve their parenting skills. 

Page 249



 2 

3. 20 successful referrals to 
family support services by 
March 2008 

31/03/2008 11 parents have been engaged in SFSC parenting programmes. 6 Families 
will be finishing their programmes in March 08 and the remaining parents will 
be finishing their programmes in June 08. This is due to the initial delay in 
appointing and training the parenting officer. As this was a completely new 
project it took time to encourage parents to take up the courses on offer to 
improve their parenting skills. 

Key Activity 
01.01.04h Use CCTV and Professional Witness to effectively monitor adherence to Acceptable Behaviour Contracts (ABCs) 
and Anti Social Behaviour Orders (ASBOs) and enforce all breaches 
Progress Milestone Deadline Comments 
2. All ASBO and ABC breaches 
reported to Investigation Officer 
with one working days and 
followed up through Partnership 
enforcement action- March 
2008 

31/03/2008 Monitored by ASBO certification group. On going work. 

01.01.10 To make streets, public areas, residential areas and open spaces safer 
Key Activity 
01.01.10a Continue to contribute towards ensuring the free flow of traffic and improving pedestrian and road-user safety by 
developing and implementing a new Parking Enforcement Plan 
Progress Milestone Deadline Comments 
2. Benchmark enforcement 
practices against other similar 
boroughs by October 2007 

31/10/2008 The delay in undertaking this is because preparation for the introduction of 
the Traffic Management Act 31 March 2008 demanded considerably more 
resource time than was originally envisaged. That said, initial work has been 
undertaken on benchmarking and a draft Parking & Traffic Enforcement 
Policy has been written. A review of the Enforcement protocol will be 
undertaken resulting in a revised enforcement plan & this will be included in 
the appendix of this policy document. 

3. Parking Enforcement Plan 
submitted for approval by 
December 2007 

31/12/2007 The delay in undertaking this is because preparation for the introduction of 
the Traffic Management Act 31 March 2008 demanded considerably more 
resource time than was originally envisaged. That said, initial work has been 
undertaken on benchmarking and a draft Parking & Traffic Enforcement 
Policy has been written. A review of the Enforcement protocol will be 
undertaken resulting in a revised enforcement plan & this will be included in 
the appendix of this policy document. 

4. Action Plan produced 
detailing schedule of 'works' by 
December 2007 

31/12/2007 The delay in undertaking this is because preparation for the introduction of 
the Traffic Management Act 31 March 2008 demanded considerably more 
resource time than was originally envisaged. That said, initial work has been 
undertaken on benchmarking and a draft Parking & Traffic Enforcement 
Policy has been written. A review of the Enforcement protocol will be 
undertaken resulting in a revised enforcement plan & this will be included in 
the appendix of this policy document. 

Key Activity 
01.01.10c Develop and implement a wider programme to reduce crime and anti social behaviour in parks and open spaces in 
consultation with the LAPs 
Progress Milestone Deadline Comments 
2. Improvement in number of 
people feeling unsafe or very 
unsafe in parks from 19% 
(2006/07) to 16%( 2007/08) as 
measured by the Parks KPMC 
survey- March 2008 

31/03/2008 The consultation results indicate that the proportion of residents that feel 
unsafe or very unsafe has increased from 19% to 26%. It is believed that 
high profile media reports may have had a negative affect on this indicator. 
More research is required to understand the specific issues underlying this 
result. 

Key Activity 
01.01.10g Introduce new 20 mph zones to reduce the speed of traffic in residential areas 
Progress Milestone Deadline Comments 
1. Complete consultation on Isle 
of Dogs 20 mph zones by June 
2007 

30/06/2007 All work on 20 mph zones has been delayed due to completion of 2006/07 
works and statutory work plans affecting the programming of work, 
particularly on the Isle of Dogs. New deadlines for the work on the Isle of 
Dogs are under discussion. 

3. Construction of Isle of Dogs 
zones complete by October 
2007 

31/10/2007 Due to extensive programme of utilities works in the area, this work is 
postponed to 2008/9 

4. Construction on Bethnal 
Green (27N) zone complete by 
December 2007 

31/12/2007 Work is progressing slowly but will not complete until August 2008. 

5. Construction of Bethnal 31/03/2008 Same target as above - work will complete by August 2008. 

Page 250



 3 

Green (27N) zone complete by 
March 2008 
01.02.01 To improve the cleanliness of the borough's streets including housing estates and parks 
Key Activity 
01.02.01c Implement enforcement activities to tackle enviro crime 
Progress Milestone Deadline Comments 
1. Number of fixed penalty 
notices for littering and dumping 
increased by 20% from 1,500 to 
1,800 by March 2008 

31/03/2008 Fixed Penalty Notices issued in 2007/08 totalled 706 well below the target of 
1800. An action plan to boost numbers of FPNs was implemented in October 
2007 but whilst an improved rate was recorded the total was not achieved. 
Factors that contributed are: Virement of funds to support the change to 
recycling contractors and inability to fill vacancies, two secondments and one 
long term sick person led to staff shortages amounting to about 7 FTEs 
(approx 20% reduction) which impacted on the number of investigations that 
could be carried out and hence FPNs issued. Implemented in 2007/08 was a 
decision to remove coloured trade waste bags from service and their 
replacement by, in effect, black bin bags. This had an adverse impact on the 
level of effective enforcement in the Borough. LETs Officers found it very 
difficult to identify legitimate trade waste deposited in the public realm and so 
in enforcement terms many Officer hours were spent examining waste they 
would normally not have to look at. The FPN return rate per officer hour of 
such enforcement activity was reduced. A wider range of general 
enforcement activities were undertaken and in real terms the absolute 
number of enforcement activities (FPNs, prosecutions, issue of statutory 
notices etc) was slightly greater in 2007/08 than the previous year. 

01.02.02 To improve recycling activity and performance and reduce waste in the borough 
Key Activity 
01.02.02a To reduce municipal waste, improve recycling activity and increase efficiency in managing waste 
Progress Milestone Deadline Comments 
1. Re-let integrated recycling 
contract by March 2008 to 
increase recycling levels and to 
reduce the average cost of 
collection per tonne (all 
recycling) by 14% in 2008/09 

31/03/2008 We will continue to implement the Recycling and Waste Prevention 
Improvement Plan. The integrated recycling contract is on target to be let by 
March 08. High rise canvassing began in September and will continue until 
February, 75,000 properties are due to be visited. It is proposed to convert 
118 blocks per month from October 07 giving a total of 708 blocks up to 
March 08. This will exceed the target of 1500 properties. 

4. Implement the provisions of 
the Recycling and Waste 
Prevention Improvement Action 
Plan 2007/08 by March 2008 

31/03/2008 We will continue to implement the Recycling and Waste Prevention 
Improvement Plan. The integrated recycling contract is on target to be let by 
March 08. High rise canvassing began in September and will continue until 
February, 75,000 properties are due to be visited. It is proposed to convert 
118 blocks per month from October 07 giving a total of 708 blocks up to 
March 08. This will exceed the target of 1500 properties. 

01.02.04 To improve the physical environment 
Key Activity 
01.02.04c Continued investigation of potentially contaminated land in the borough, as required by the LBTH Contaminated 
Land Strategy 
Progress Milestone Deadline Comments 
1. Following re-issue of DEFRA 
guidance, recommendations for 
all 5 intrusive investigations 
undertaken in 2006/07 will be 
formulated with partners by 
March 2008 

31/03/2008 Still awaiting re-issue of DEFRA guidance.  

01.02.05 To improve the provision and quality of public open space 
Key Activity 
01.02.05a Construction of Meath Gardens pedestrian and cycle bridge to increase accessibility to Mile End Park 
Progress Milestone Deadline Comments 
3. Construction complete by 
March 2008 

31/03/2008 Stage 2 (construction enabling works) started March 08 - final completion 
target Mar 09. 

 
 
2. LIVING WELL 
 

02.01.01 To provide decent homes and decent neighbourhoods 
Key Activity 
02.01.01d To improve the thermal comfort of Council homes 

Page 251



 4 

Progress Milestone Deadline Comments 
1. To improve the SAP rating of 
Council homes to 65.41 by 
March 2008 

31/03/2008 Information on all the completed programmes in respect to energy efficiency 
and thermal insulation is still being collected and will be available for 
reporting early May. 

02.01.02 To increase the supply of affordable homes 
Key Activity 
02.01.02c Assist in the reduction of overcrowding through targeted initiatives to tackle under-occupation and enable access to 
home ownership options for existing tenants  
Progress Milestone Deadline Comments 
1. 110 lettings to under-
occupied dwellings by March 
2008 

31/03/2008 65 lettings to under-occupying households were made during the year. 
Priority was given to dealing with overcrowding where the rehousing target 
was exceeded. 

02.01.03 To provide excellent housing services in consultation with the residents who use them 
Key Activity 
02.01.03d Deliver VFM improvements through the implementation of the value for money Improvement Plan 
Progress Milestone Deadline Comments 
3. Housing Procurement 
Strategy developed by 
December 2007 

31/12/2007 Procurement Strategy is now due to be completed by May 2008.  

02.02.02 To improve the health of children and young people 
Key Activity 
02.02.02a Support the Third Sector to deliver an active play in parks scheme 
Progress Milestone Deadline Comments 
1. Develop programme with 
Third Sector and LAP Directors 
by April 2007 

30/04/2007 The programme was not delivered as the Third Sector were unable to get the 
necessary funding. 

2. Provide a programme on a 
minimum of 4 sites between 
July- September 2007 

30/09/2007 The programme was not delivered as the Third Sector were unable to get the 
necessary funding. 

Key Activity 
02.02.02e Ensure 75% of schools and Pupil Referral Units have achieved National Healthy Schools Status by March 2008 
Progress Milestone Deadline Comments 
3. By March 2008 75% of 
schools to have achieved 
Healthy Schools Status 

31/03/2008 A target of 75% was agreed at start of year, however due to change in 
definition, this targets has now been revised down to 62%. We have narrowly 
missed target this year with 61% of schools achieving healthy schools status. 

02.02.03 To improve the health of adults at risk of coronary heart disease 
Key Activity 
02.02.03a Deliver six 10-week GP exercise referral programmes at 3 leisure centres 
Progress Milestone Deadline Comments 
2. Increase Cardiac 
Rehabilitation Programme 
Phases 3 and 4 from 1 leisure 
centre (Whitechapel) to 2 
leisure centres (Mile End Park 
LC) 

31/03/2008 This has not happened due to Barts & London recruitment process and their 
SLA being rewritten with the PCT. Therefore no funding at present. This 
target was always subject to funding. 

02.03.02 To promote independence and choice for vulnerable adults 
Key Activity 
02.03.02a Further expand of Direct Payments to enable people to manage their own care 
Progress Milestone Deadline Comments 
1. 250 people receiving Direct 
Payments by March 2008 

31/03/2008 The performance indicator for Direct Payments is based, not on raw 
numbers of people, but on numbers per 10,000 population, weighted by age. 
It is not possible, therefore, to directly compare performance on the 
performance indicator against the strategic plan target of 160, as 
performance at the end of September was 144. Performance above 150 per 
10,000 will place us in the top band of performance nationally. 

Key Activity 
02.03.02b Progressing development of Centre for Independent Living 
Progress Milestone Deadline Comments 
1. Agree the contract for 
development of the new 
facilities by January 2008 

31/01/2008 The approval of the PFI Credits by the Department of Health has taken 
longer than anticipated and it is not envisaged that agreement will be 
reached with East London and the City LIFT Co until after March 2008. 

02.03.03 To ensure that care and support services are experienced by service users as 'joined-up' across 
organisational boundaries 
Key Activity 
02.03.03a Integrate services for older people and people with long term conditions to improve value for money and customer 

Page 252



 5 

experience 
Progress Milestone Deadline Comments 
1. Agree the design of the new 
service for older people and 
people with long term conditions 
by December 2007 

31/12/2007 The PCT have indicated that timescales for this piece of work will need to be 
revised due to a number of service development issues within their services. 

2. Integrated service in place by 
May 2008 

31/05/2008 The PCT have indicated that timescales for this piece of work will need to be 
revised due to a number of service development issues within their services. 

02.03.05 To support vulnerable adults in making a positive contribution to their community 
Key Activity 
02.03.05b Expansion of volunteering opportunities 
Progress Milestone Deadline Comments 
1. Steering group established 
by September 2007 

30/09/2007 Strategic decision to focus on supporting corporate initiative. 
2. Volunteering protocol agreed 
by January 2008 

31/01/2008 Strategic decision to focus on supporting corporate initiative. 
3. 25 volunteers engaged with 
adult social care by March 2008 

31/03/2008 Strategic decision to focus on supporting corporate initiative. 
02.04.01 To continue to protect children from risk of harm and neglect 
Key Activity 
02.04.01a Continue to safeguard and promote the welfare of children through the work of the Local Safeguarding Children 
Board (LSCB) 
Progress Milestone Deadline Comments 
2. Review and relaunch 
procedures on forced marriage- 
September 2007 

30/09/2007 The plan was for the forced marriages procedures to be revised by 
September 2007, and to be launched within children’s social care and its 
partners by the end of the 2007. However, there was a delay in the 
publication in the Pan London Child Protection Procedures which did not 
happen until the start of 2008. This will now take place in 2008 -09. 

5. Written information on 
services (including 
safeguarding) for parents to be 
distributed through schools, 
children's centres and 
community organisations by 
September 2007 

30/09/2007 This was due to be completed by Sept 2007 but did not happen due to on 
going discussions as to the nature of the publication. 

6. Recruit project team of 
midwives and health visitors to 
offer intensive parenting support 
to 100 teenage parents by April 
2007 

30/04/2007 The project managed to recruit 100 young mothers who signed up to the 
programme. The local project consists of family nurses, who have a 
background in midwifery or health visiting. There are four family nurses that 
undertake intensive home visits with young first time parents. These visits 
start early pregnancy, through until the child is 2 years of age. Intensive 
home visits are either weekly or every 2 weeks. The services delivered 
through Children Centers are an integral part of the work with these families. 
The sustainable plan is still be negotiated locally. The evaluation of the 
intensive home visiting programme is being undertaken nationally by 
Birbeck. Monthly each of the ten pilot sites must submit a collection of data. 

Key Activity 
02.04.01d Increase the number of 16-17 year olds accessing supported housing 
Progress Milestone Deadline Comments 
1. Develop a new initiative to 
accommodate homeless 16-17 
year olds in appropriate 
supported housing by 
November 2007 

30/11/2007 The work programme to complete this activity has been reviewed and should 
now be completed by March 2008. The target to develop new initiatives to 
accommodate homeless 16-17 year olds in appropriate supported housing 
by November 2007 has not been met because the process is turning out to 
be more complicated and long-term than initially expected. The plans have 
been revised to establish support needs profile of annual cohort of 16-17 
year olds accepted as homeless, by March 2008 and establish referral 
processes based on assessment of housing and support needs, by March 
2008. 

Key Activity 
02.04.01e Improve on placement stability for children looked after through more effective care planning and reviewing through 
active tracking and provision of support packages to those children at risk of multiple placements 
Progress Milestone Deadline Comments 
1. Pilot the use of family 
conferencing as a means of 
gathering information and 
materials regarding the wider 
family network for children who 

30/04/2007 The pilot started within time (April 2007) The pilot has not been reviewed 
because this was expected to take place on completion of the first 10 FGCs 
for this group. However, to date, there have only been 2 such conferences. 
This is because getting the referral routes and appropriate case selection for 
these meetings proved quite complex and they seem to be taking longer to 

Page 253



 6 

are leaving their birth parents 
permanently, in 10 family 
conferences- to  
April 2007 

arrange than normal FGCs. 

Key Activity 
02.04.01f Continue to produce appropriate publicity to make it easier for people to raise concerns they might have about a 
child 
Progress Milestone Deadline Comments 
3. Publish and launch 'safe 
parenting/ your teenager' 
handbook by September 2007 

31/03/2008 None of the planned milestones have been completed on target. The 
structure and support for the LSCB has been reviewed and enhanced, and 
workplans put in place to ensure this work should now be completed by 
March 2008. 

02.04.05 Improve the database infrastructure in Children's Services, so that we can improve the ability of all 
children's services, including those in partner agencies, to offer a faster, more relevant and integrated service to 
vulnerable children 
Key Activity 
02.04.05b Implement the next phase of the Integrated Children's System (ICS) to further improve the quality of record keeping 
Progress Milestone Deadline Comments 
1. Implement the Child 
Protection Plan element of ICS, 
the replace the Child Protection 
Register by March 2008 

31/03/2008 Phase 1b of ICS will now be rolled out during Summer 2008. 

 
 
3. CREATING AND SHARING PROSPERITY 
 

03.01.01 To develop the strategic framework to promote sustainable and socially inclusive development 
Key Activity 
03.01.01b Adopt core strategy and development control document and initial 3 Area Action Plans 
Progress Milestone Deadline Comments 
1. Core Strategy independent 
examination August 2007- 
adoption March 2008 (timetable 
subject to approval of PINS) 

31/03/2008 Council has withdrawn plans following GOLs comments. A new delivery 
timetable (Local Development Scheme) has been agreed by Cabinet. A 
detailed delivery timetable has been agreed by CMT. 

2. Area Action Plans 
independent examination 
January 2008 (timetable subject 
to approval of PINS) 

31/03/2008 Council has withdrawn plans following GOLs comments. A new delivery 
timetable (Local Development Scheme) has been agreed by Cabinet. A 
detailed delivery timetable has been agreed by CMT. 

Key Activity 
03.01.01h Develop a carbon reduction strategy, engaging the development industry and other stakeholders 
Progress Milestone Deadline Comments 
1. Strategy scoping document 
to Cabinet- September 2007 

30/09/2007 This can be taken to Cabinet when CMP is completed. 
03.01.05 To promote the borough to key stakeholders and promote key business sectors 
Key Activity 
03.01.05b Promote the borough and East London's offer for business tourism and the meetings, incentives, conferences and 
exhibitions (MICE) market 
Progress Milestone Deadline Comments 
1. Evaluation report on the cost-
effectiveness of local marketing 
produced by August 2007 

31/08/2007 Awaiting further evaluation from 'Gateway To London' and LDA. 

03.02.01 Ensure young people benefit from economic growth in Tower Hamlets 
Key Activity 
03.02.01b Develop, deliver and commission programmes with key employers for school leavers and young job seekers 
Progress Milestone Deadline Comments 
1. Commission at least 10 entry 
level activity programmes for 
young people by May 2008 

31/05/2008 5 done, the other 5 on track for late 2008 

 
 
4. LEARNING, ACHIEVEMENT AND LEISURE 
 

04.01.01 To improve the standards of early years provision to give every child the best possible start in life 

Page 254



 7 

Key Activity 
04.01.01a Ensure all children have the opportunity to attend high quality early education provision 
Progress Milestone Deadline Comments 
2. 92% of 3 year olds in early 
years provision by January 
2008 

31/01/2008 Although more places are available cohort size has increased. New target 
needs to be set. 

Key Activity 
04.01.01c Provide opportunities for all young children to play and express themselves, including those with disabilities and 
complex needs by March 2008 
Progress Milestone Deadline Comments 
1. At least 75% occupancy of 
Stay and Play Sessions by 
March 2008 

31/03/2008 Commissioning of the service to be reconsidered during 2008. Delays in 
establishing programmes due to building works. 

04.01.03 Through personalised learning accelerate improvements in attainment with a particular focus on Key Stage 
1 and 3 and English and mathematics at GCSE 
Key Activity 
04.01.03a Identify those at risk of not achieving at all Key Stages and put in place early intervention programmes, working 
across agencies to reduce underachievement and more expensive interventions at a later date, thereby achieving better 
outcomes and value for money. This includes continuing to support newly arrived pupils and those with English as an 
additional language and continuing to address boys' under achievement 
Progress Milestone Deadline Comments 
4. All schools trained on use of 
RAISE online to evaluate 
interventions- December 2007 

31/12/2007 All secondary schools trained however, training for primary schools not 
completed. Expected completion date is this summer term 2008. 

Key Activity 
04.01.03c Target pupils disaffected with school pre-16, EBD (Emotional and Behaviour Disorder), post-16 and those 
recognised as ASD (Autistic Spectrum Disorder) as well as those achieving 4 A*-C but not English and maths at C+ 
Progress Milestone Deadline Comments 
1. Electronic Common 
assessment framework training 
for schools completed- 
December 2007 

31/12/2007 This activity not been completed due to delay in National decision. The local 
eCAF system is now live and CAF cases are being uploaded. It is to be 
piloted first with two lead teams: Attendance Welfare Advisory Service and 
Behaviour Support Team. The training of these two teams will be undertaken 
in the Autumn term. Following the pilot the training will be rolled out to 
schools from the Summer term 2008. Some delay in activity due to 
deferment of national decision making. A national eCAF is now planned but 
unlikely to be fully operational for some years. 

Key Activity 
04.01.03e Work with schools to ensure our Building Schools for the Future vision and implementation enables a 
transformation in learning opportunities and environment across the borough 
Progress Milestone Deadline Comments 
2. Secure sign off to 'Strategy 
for Change' for wave 5 schools 
by September 2007 

30/09/2007 Overdue due to change of programme date by DCSF. New date set by 
DCSF is 30 June 2008.  

3. Agree 'Outline Business 
Case' for wave 5 schools by 
December 2007 

31/12/2007 Overdue due to change of programme date by DCSF. New date set by 
DCSF is 30 June 2008. 

04.01.06 Improve behaviour and attendance and reduce exclusions from school 
Key Activity 
04.01.06f Help pupils who have been excluded from school to reintegrate 
Progress Milestone Deadline Comments 
2. Re-integration protocol 
reviewed with feedback on 
progress through BEHAVE 
monthly newsletter- December 
2007 

31/12/2007 Completing this work required a decision from the secondary B&A 
partnership. The secondary head teachers deferred the review of the FAP 
until the end of March 2008. Further work is now required based on the 
outcome of that review before the FAP can be completed and feedback 
provided through BEHAVE monthly newsletter. 

04.01.07 Enrich the curriculum offer, both within and beyond school, for all our children so that they enjoy learning, 
to offer a broad curriculum including creative and sporting activities 
Key Activity 
04.01.07a Support the development of arts education in schools by using the Artsmark framework and increase the number of 
pupils and schools accessing instrumental provision and music making 
Progress Milestone Deadline Comments 
4. Meet Idea Stores targets for 
youth engagement by March 
2008 

31/03/2008 CYPSPG to consider future strategy. 

04.01.08 To increase the participation of children and young people in decision making and community life 

Page 255



 8 

Key Activity 
04.01.08a Strengthen and update the Tower Hamlets Strategy for Children and Young People's participation, reflecting the 
development of Children's Services by June 2007 
Progress Milestone Deadline Comments 
4. Monitor the quality of children 
and young people's 
involvement, undertaking Hear 
By Right assessment within 5 
services across the partnership 
by March 2008 

31/03/2008 Hear By Right assessments have been completed with 1 primary school, 
Youth and Community Services and the Development and Renewal Strategy 
Team. We have yet to complete the assessments with the secondary school, 
the Police or the PCT. Other service areas and teams have expressed 
interest in assessments, including Lifeline London and we plan to undertake 
further assessments in 2008/09. Self-assessment against the Hear By Right 
framework is a key element of the revised Children and Young People's 
Participation Strategy and we are planning for how best to ensure these take 
place in the associated implementation plan. 

04.02.02 To increase community engagement and participation in cultural activities 
Key Activity 
04.02.02d Deliver a Learn to Swim programme for schools 
Progress Milestone Deadline Comments 
1. Increase numbers of children 
achieving 25m standard to 
1,000 by July 2007, with an 
additional 1,000 by December 
2007 and a further 1,000 by 
March 2008 

31/03/2008 Final figures for this will not be available until end of April due to the 
academic year. On receipt of the updated figures this milestone will be 
amended if necessary. 

04.02.03 To improve participation in Idea Store, library and lifelong learning activities 
Key Activity 
04.02.03d Develop activities to increase and widen the number of older people participating in the Idea Store service 
Progress Milestone Deadline Comments 
1. Increase the active members 
who are aged 60 and over from 
4.8% to 7.0% of total active 
membership by March 2008 

31/03/2008 Active members over 60 are 2594 out of a total membership of 42555. This 
is 6% of active membership. The service is currently carrying out an 
Equalities Impact Assessment (EQIA) which will be used to help target and 
focus activities for older people. Following the EQIA, an action Plan to 
increase active members will be implemented in early in 2008. It is unclear 
how quickly this will increase the numbers of active members who are aged 
over 60 although improvement is expected by March 2008. This will continue 
to be a priority in 2008-09.  

 
 
5. EXCELLENT PUBLIC SERVICES 
 

05.01.02 To support the Council's performance in delivering the Strategic Plan, Community Plan and Local Area 
Agreement 
Key Activity 
05.01.02a Co-ordinate development and delivery of Year 2 of the borough's Local Area Agreement 
Progress Milestone Deadline Comments 
4. Negotiation and agreement 
of 'new style' LAA by March 
2008 

31/03/2008 Timescales slipped due to continuing negotiations with Central Government. 

05.01.04 To develop organisational performance across the Council 
Key Activity 
05.01.04c Produce a corporate workforce development plan 
Progress Milestone Deadline Comments 
2. Delivery of milestones and 
progress against targets 
monitored on a 6-monthly basis 
from March 2008 

31/03/2008 A draft plan for the Council was completed in August 2007. Finalising the 
document was subject to the expected publication of the updated Local 
Government Workforce Strategy in November 2007 and the move to develop 
joint HR strategies with the PCT whose future workforce needs will be 
dependent of the outcome of NHS London's consultation on Healthcare for 
London launched in July 2007. Further work has been undertaken on the 
strategy to reflect these developments and will be finalised in during April 
and May 2008. 

Key Activity 
05.01.04d Implement our corporate approach to the Charter Mark 
Progress Milestone Deadline Comments 
1. Provide corporate evidence 
for all assessment criteria by 

30/11/2007 Deferred until after IiP profile assessment and subject to revision of Charter 
Mark assessment criteria. 

Page 256



 9 

November 2007 
05.01.06 To provide a dynamic, outward-facing Overview and Scrutiny function 
Key Activity 
05.01.06a Implement a Scrutiny work programme that contributes to the corporate improvement agenda and includes 
proposals from White Paper (on community call for action and external scrutiny) 
Progress Milestone Deadline Comments 
2. Pilot proposals for community 
call for action by December 
2007 with agreement for roll out 
including publicity by April 2008 

30/04/2008 The pilot has been developed, however we are currently awaiting additional 
guidance from Central Government prior to roll out. Discussions are currently 
underway between the Council and partner agencies. 

Key Activity 
05.01.06c Develop Scrutiny constructive challenge role in Local Area Agreement by using evaluation of year 1 to review to 
community leadership of frontline councillors 
Progress Milestone Deadline Comments 
1. Review completed by 
October 2007 and action plan 
agreed by January 2008 

31/12/2008 Progress has been made and Members receive bi-monthly monitoring 
reports on the Tower Hamlets Index at OSC. Work needs to be developed 
around further monitoring of Local Area Agreement targets. 

05.01.07 Improve the quality of the Council's financial management 
Key Activity 
05.01.07b Improve reporting of the Council's financial results 
Progress Milestone Deadline Comments 
3. Produce draft Statement of 
Accounts by end of June 2007 
with full working papers and 
without material error by June 
2007 

30/06/2007 Deadline achieved, but audit revealed material error. Now subject to 
separate Action Plan. 

Key Activity 
05.01.07c Improve the knowledge of financial management throughout the organisation 
Progress Milestone Deadline Comments 
1. Develop learning and 
development programmes for 
Financial and non- Financial 
staff by September 2007 

30/09/2007 This work was de-prioritised pending the appointment of the new Director of 
Resources, which resulted in a temporarily reduced senior management 
capacity in finance. The work is now in hand subject to review of financial 
management arrangements by Summer 2008. 

Key Activity 
05.01.07d Improve the Council's financial systems and processes 
Progress Milestone Deadline Comments 
1. Develop and begin to 
implement a programme for the 
upgrade and replacement of 
financial systems across the 
Council by March 2008 

31/03/2008 In hand- subject to review of financial management arrangements by 
Summer 2008. 

Key Activity 
05.01.07g Business management 
Progress Milestone Deadline Comments 
1. Implement business 
management arrangements for 
the new Resources Directorate 
(Subject to implementation 
timetable for the new 
management structure- March 
2008 at the latest) 

31/03/2008 Subject to review by Corporate Director for Resources 

05.01.09 To enhance the delivery of excellent public services through improved procurement 
Key Activity 
05.01.09c Identification and exploitation of opportunities for joint leverage with other public sector organisations 
Progress Milestone Deadline Comments 
2. Develop a joint sourcing 
approach with Tower Hamlets 
Primary Care Trust by April 
2007 

30/04/2007 Discussions taking place with PCT and LCSG, and LCE. Opportunities of a 
high level identified. This is an ongoing activity and will never be considered 
completed. 

Key Activity 
05.01.09h Put in place measures to improve local employment opportunity through Procurement 
Progress Milestone Deadline Comments 
1. Liaise with Skillsmatch and 
top 100 suppliers by spend- 
April 2007 

30/04/2007 Positive response from some suppliers - e.g. Comensura. Further work to 
embed during 2008/09. 

Page 257



 10 

Key Activity 
05.01.09i Provide consistent Requisition to Pay (R2P) processes 
Progress Milestone Deadline Comments 
1. Increase the usage of 
procurement cards to 56000 
transactions and £7 million by 
March 2008 

31/03/2008 Actual achievement 41,000 transactions / £6million. 

2. Deliver eProcurement 
project- March 2008 

31/03/2008 The position is that e-procurement is not on target. Although a business case 
was produced in 2006/7, it was not approved, and therefore the funding was 
not granted, so the project could not proceed. The business case is now 
being reviewed, with a view to taking it to Corporate ICT / Transformation 
Board as an invest-to-save project. It is hoped approval will be granted in the 
Autumn, followed by a 12-18 month implementation. 

Key Activity 
05.01.09k Put in place and report on the London Centre of Excellence procurement performance indicators and engage with 
benchmarking exercises 
Progress Milestone Deadline Comments 
1. Quarterly review of 
Performance Indicators 
commencing April 2007 

30/04/2007 LCE performance indicators not progressed. Further work required on 
procurement PIs as part of wider procurement review. 

Key Activity 
05.01.09l Embedding of vendor managed service for agency staff 
Progress Milestone Deadline Comments 
1. Savings realisation and 
process improvement to deliver 
£600k in 2007/08 rising to 
£700k in 2008/09 and £800k in 
2009/10- report to Procurement 
Board May 2007 

31/05/2007 Actual savings achievement £359,900 in 2007/08. 

05.01.10 To improve the quality of the Council's risk management 
Key Activity 
05.01.10g Evaluate and implement automated risk management tool if this is deemed desirable 
Progress Milestone Deadline Comments 
2. Automated tool implemented 
by January 2008 

31/01/2008 The system we need to buy has been identified but a report for CMT is 
required to take this further. Visited LB Redbridge to get a fuller 
understanding of Grace, a risk management tool. Although this tool could be 
used at TH, it lacks sophistication, and is basically a recording tool of all risk 
registers. Jcad will be presenting their option shortly. 

05.01.11 To improve levels of attendance and health and well-being of employees 
Key Activity 
05.01.11a To work with managers to ensure that the current improvement in sickness absence management is maintained 
and improved upon and that the procedure is applied robustly 
Progress Milestone Deadline Comments 
1. To achieve target of 7.75 
days as the average days lost 
due to sickness absence for 
2007/08 and for the Council to 
achieve the top quartile position 
in London compared to other 
London Councils 

31/03/2008 9.04 days in the year ending February 2008 (end of year figure not available 
until May 2008). Action plan to achieve reduction below target levels agreed 
with PRG. 

Key Activity 
05.01.11c Identify system requirements that support delivery of Occupational Health service and measures performance 
against Occupational Health standards 
Progress Milestone Deadline Comments 
1. Revised School Occupational 
Health Contracts from May 
2007- new OPAS system 
upgrade in 2007 

31/04/2007 Part completed- new contract in place with schools but OPAS upgrade not 
going to take place until 2008/09 following OH review. 

05.01.12 To enhance workforce and HR capacity 
Key Activity 
05.01.12b Develop and update a children's workforce plan for LBTH 
Progress Milestone Deadline Comments 
1. Conclude consultation with 
partners and develop new 
children's workforce strategy- 

30/04/2007 Part completed. Draft to be finalised in time for Children's Workforce 
Conference. The fuller story is that the strategy and plan was adopted by 
CYPSPG (Children and Young People's Strategic Partnership Group) in 

Page 258



 11 

recommendations to Corporate 
Equalities Steering Group and 
CMT April 2007 

January. Since then, other things have come to light, which we have decided 
to include in the Strategic Plan, so it has been agreed to have the formal 
completion date in line with the Children's Workforce Conference in July.  

05.01.13 To support the delivery of excellent public services through the appropriate use of technology 
Key Activity 
05.01.13a Enable the transformation of Council services in a way that ensures value for money and cost efficiency 
Progress Milestone Deadline Comments 
1. Establish a standard process 
for the development of ICT 
solutions by September 2007 
and publicise across the 
Council by October 2007 

31/10/2007 Due to the restructuring in ICT and changes in priorities. 

Key Activity 
05.01.13b Develop a viable ICT capital programme of corporate projects in line with stated budgetary planning process 
Progress Milestone Deadline Comments 
1. The Return on Investment 
(ROI) model in support of this 
process is fully implemented by 
December 2007 

31/12/2007 The updated version of the ROI Model was not received until mid March 
2008. A full ROI Model will be completed on each Project so implementation 
will commence in April 2008. As the model is to be adopted Corporately a full 
training programme is being developed which will be complete by 1st July 
2008. 

Key Activity 
05.01.13c Work with strategic partners on initiatives to empower the community and bridge the digital divide 
Progress Milestone Deadline Comments 
3. Network strategy for the 
community developed by 
September 2007- strategy to 
include plans for Idea Stores, 
CCTV and support for SMEs 

30/09/2007 This is now called the Connected Borough Strategy. At present the 
completion of the draft is still on target for Jun 2008'. 

4. Business case to be agreed 
by December 2007 

31/12/2007 Dependent on the above. Revised date of Sept 2008. 
Key Activity 
05.01.13e Ensure that ICT services are managed according to industry best practice by seeking accreditation to the 
appropriate international standards 
Progress Milestone Deadline Comments 
1. Compliance Audit undertaken 
by December 2007 

31/12/2007 The deadline date has been revised to October 2008. This is due to a 
restructuring in ICT & changes to priorities. The 2008/09 Audit forward plan 
will be developed following risk assessment in April/May 2008. 

2. Accreditation to ISO 20000 
standard achieved by May 2008 

31/05/2008 The deadline date has been revised to March 2009. This is due to 
restructuring in ICT & changes in priorities. 

3. Accreditation to ISO 27001 
standard achieved by June 
2008 

30/06/2008 The deadline date has been revised to March 2009. This is due to 
restructuring in ICT & changes in priorities. 

05.01.15 To ensure the efficient and effective use of Council accommodation resources 
Key Activity 
05.01.15c Ensure the Council's commitment and compliance with the Disabilities Discrimination Act (DDA) is reviewed and an 
action plan developed to respond to any requirements 
Progress Milestone Deadline Comments 
2. Programme of works 
developed and implemented by 
October 2007 

31/10/2007 Some works now implemented, full plan of works is now supported by capital 
funding bid and due for implementation in 2008/09. 

05.01.16 To improve the use of the Council's property portfolio 
Key Activity 
05.01.16a Continue the implementation of the Council's agreed Office Accommodation Strategy to utilise current facilities and 
generate planned efficiency savings 
Progress Milestone Deadline Comments 
3. First tranche of disposals 
programme completed by 
December 2007 

31/12/2008 No comments received.  

Key Activity 
05.01.16b Improve environmental sustainability and energy use in Council office buildings 
Progress Milestone Deadline Comments 
2. Implement Air Quality 
Programme by March 2008 

31/03/2008 No comments received.  
05.01.16 To improve the use of the Council's property portfolio 
Key Activity 

Page 259



 12 

05.01.16c Develop the utilisation of the Community Buildings Portfolio 
Progress Milestone Deadline Comments 
1. Establish usage, 
requirements and identify 
redundant buildings with 
potential for disposal by July 
2007 

31/07/2007 Information to inform the utilisation of Community assets is currently being 
collected. Bids to support the Quirk Review agenda are being prepared for 
submission. 

2. Bring forward refreshed 
policy by September 2007 

30/09/2007 It is projected that a refreshed policy can be made available in April 2008. 
Key Activity 
05.01.16d Develop the IT enabled Corporate Asset Management Plan database 
Progress Milestone Deadline Comments 
1. System selection confirmed 
May 2007 

31/05/2007 Project management of the IT enabled Corporate Asset Management Plan 
database commenced in Sept 2007 and will continue to implementation in 
March 2008. 

2. Database preparation 
completed by August 2007 

31/08/2007 Project management of the IT enabled Corporate Asset Management Plan 
database commenced in Sept 2007 and will continue to implementation in 
March 2008. 

3. System operational from 
September 2007 

30/09/2007 Project management of the IT enabled Corporate Asset Management Plan 
database commenced in Sept 2007 and will continue to implementation in 
March 2008. 

05.01.17 To increase the capacity of the Third Sector to participate in the planning and delivery of excellent public 
services 
Key Activity 
05.01.17f Draft a Compact for Park Friends' and similar environmental groups 
Progress Milestone Deadline Comments 
3. Publicity programme and 
sign-up of groups by October 
2007 

31/10/2007 Draft compact has been completed following consultation with the groups. 
An event to mark the establishment and sign up of the compact has not yet 
taken place. 

05.02.01 To improve the co-ordination and responsiveness of services to better reflect local people's needs 
Key Activity 
05.02.01b Agreeing a partnership-wide approach to service standards 
Progress Milestone Deadline Comments 
1. By March 2008 31/03/2008 Overdue because of the Community Plan refresh. Meetings have been held 

with partners (March 2008). A framework is to be developed by September 
2008.  

05.02.02 To provide and co-ordinate the use of reliable information, research and analysis across the Council and the 
Partnership to inform effective decision making and evaluation 
Key Activity 
05.02.02a Further develop THIS Borough functionality and reporting 
Progress Milestone Deadline Comments 
3. Evaluate use and user 
feedback and develop Forward 
Plan by July 2007 

31/07/2007 Forward Plan will be completed early 2008/09. 

4. Develop sustainability 
strategy for post March 2008 by 
January 2008 

31/01/2008 Sustainability strategy will now be developed by September 2008. 

05.02.04 To increase public participation in the decision-making process 
Key Activity 
05.02.04a Review public involvement processes in view of Local Government Bill 
Progress Milestone Deadline Comments 
1. Implement relevant actions 
identified from User Voice, 
Choice and Co-Production 
improvement plan by March 
2008 

31/03/2008 We are currently in the process of full redeveloping our consultation and 
involvement framework, embedding the User Voice, Choice and Co-
Production in all our work. This is due to be completed by Summer 2008. 

05.02.05 To improve public understanding of Council services 
Key Activity 
05.02.05c Further explore the possibility of shared communications services, joint commissioning and closer partnership 
working with other public agencies 
Progress Milestone Deadline Comments 
1. Ongoing discussions through 
the Borough Wide 
Communications Group- some 
arrangements to be piloted by 

31/03/2008 The possibility of shared communications services and joint commissioning 
has been explored, but no arrangements have been put in place yet. Closer 
working relationships with other public bodies have been established, an 
example of this is the Tobacco Alliance. 

Page 260



 13 

March 2008 
05.02.06 To improve access to services 
Key Activity 
05.02.06b Monitor and improve the delivery of the Council's Customer Promise 
Progress Milestone Deadline Comments 
1. Contact Centre to reach 77% 
of calls answered within target 
by March 2008 

31/03/2008 Performance has dipped since the New Year, leaving the final year's outturn 
short of target. Key contributory factors are; - current vacancies in the Call 
Centre of 8 posts (staff joined the Call Centre on 31/03/08 and will now begin 
training.) - the need to brief or train existing staff on new Hotlines and for 
them to attend refresher training sessions on services e.g Pest Control, 
ALMO, Parking, Electoral Services. - Short Term and Long Term sickness 
which is being managed through the sickness procedure. 

Key Activity 
05.02.06c Establish targets and measures to encourage greater take-up of e-enabled channels of service delivery 
Progress Milestone Deadline Comments 
1. Target and robust 
measurement mechanisms in 
place by July 2007 

31/07/2007 Dependant on EASy Project and relaunch of web site which has been 
delayed to spring 2008 due to technical issues. 

2. Take-up action plan 
implemented by July 2007 

31/07/2007 Dependant on EASy Project and relaunch of web site which has been 
delayed to spring 2008 due to technical issues. 

Key Activity 
05.02.06e Continue to develop the Council's website and intranet to develop their use as prime access channels for both 
internal and external customers 
Progress Milestone Deadline Comments 
4. Internet enhancements 
implemented by December 
2007 

31/12/2007 Internet enhancements now planned for summer 2008 due to technical 
issues on EASy project. SMS capability delayed by Global 
Crossing/Siemens corporate contract renewal issues. Web site relaunch now 
spring 2008 due to delays in EASy project. SMS project to be initiated, 
product suppliers currently being identified. 

5. Short Message Service 
(SMS) capability implemented 
by September 2007 

30/09/2007 SMS capability to be progressed once new telephony contract is in place. 

05.03.01 To promote and support community cohesion across all communities 
Key Activity 
05.03.01d Commission further research to understand extent of demand for support for English language learning 
Progress Milestone Deadline Comments 
1. Brief agreed by end of April 
2007 

 This work has been delayed due to a range of other developments including 
research on the nature of new communities locally, the report from the 
Commission on Integration and Cohesion and the government's response to 
it as well as the refresh of the Community Plan. Within the Overview and 
Scrutiny work programme the Scrutiny Lead for Excellent Public Services will 
be undertaking a piece of work possibility with a neighbouring borough to 
explore provision of English language learning. No new target date has 
therefore yet been set although this will remain a key issue within the broad 
community cohesion agenda. 

2. Commissioned by June 2007  This work has been delayed due to a range of other developments including 
research on the nature of new communities locally, the report from the 
Commission on Integration and Cohesion and the government's response to 
it as well as the refresh of the Community Plan. Within the Overview and 
Scrutiny work programme the Scrutiny Lead for Excellent Public Services will 
be undertaking a piece of work possibility with a neighbouring borough to 
explore provision of English language learning. No new target date has 
therefore yet been set although this will remain a key issue within the broad 
community cohesion agenda. 

3. Report by September 2007  This work has been delayed due to a range of other developments including 
research on the nature of new communities locally, the report from the 
Commission on Integration and Cohesion and the government's response to 
it as well as the refresh of the Community Plan. Within the Overview and 
Scrutiny work programme the Scrutiny Lead for Excellent Public Services will 
be undertaking a piece of work possibility with a neighbouring borough to 
explore provision of English language learning. No new target date has 
therefore yet been set although this will remain a key issue within the broad 
community cohesion agenda. 

Key Activity 
05.03.01e Work with Third Sector partners to increase volunteering as a means of building social capital and community 
participation  

Page 261



 14 

Progress Milestone Deadline Comments 
1. LAA volunteering targets met 
(6 monthly LAA reporting) 

31/03/2008 Volunteer Centre Tower Hamlets has provided a volunteer brokerage service 
to 719 people and supported 286 third sector organisations to retain or 
increase volunteer involvement. Age Concern Tower Hamlets has recruited 
over 100 new volunteers 

05.03.02 To support the continued effective development of the Tower Hamlets Partnership, ensuring both strategic 
and operational integration with the work of the Council 
Key Activity 
05.03.02b Review the structure and role of the Partnership in the context of the new Community Plan and the approach to 
LAP governance in the light of the Local Government White Paper 
Progress Milestone Deadline Comments 
1. Partnership review 
completed Spring 2008 

31/03/2008 This is still being developed. Again some delays due to the Community Plan 
refresh and want to ensure the two are aligned. 

Key Activity 
05.03.02d Develop and implement a revised Communications Strategy for the Partnership 
Progress Milestone Deadline Comments 
1. Interactive Partnership 
website launched Spring 2008 

31/03/2008 Work on a new website is underway and will be launched in autumn 2008. It 
will be in place in line with the Community Plan refresh. 

05.03.03 To ensure a strategic approach across services to consultation with the public 
Key Activity 
05.03.03a Revise the partnership consultation framework in light of the User Voice, Choice and Co-Production review 
Progress Milestone Deadline Comments 
1. Revised framework by July 
2007 

31/07/2007 Team relocated to Partnership, which is refreshing its governance structures 
to enhance joint working. 

2. Roll out through workshops 
and outreach sessions with 
service providers by Autumn 
2007 

31/10/2007 The Framework will be launched with the new structure, reflecting all 
partners’ strategies of involvement (July 2008). 

05.04.01 To ensure that the Council operates to the highest standards of equalities practice 
Key Activity 
05.04.01c Ensure that local equalities practice and policies match that of the new Commission for Equality and Human Rights 
Progress Milestone Deadline Comments 
1. Assessment of local 
implications by December 2007 
and resulting actions agreed by 
March 2008 

31/03/2008 Due to be completed in June 2008. Delays due to a delay in the publication 
of guidance for local authorities from the CEHR. 

05.04.03 To improve the extent to which the workforce reflects the community 
Key Activity 
05.04.03f Implement the Disability Action Plan that has a range of employment focused initiatives including a training 
programme for managers on supporting disabled staff and ensuring that all development and training programmes are 
accessible 
Progress Milestone Deadline Comments 
1. Increase the percentage of 
disabled staff as a percentage 
of the top 5% of earners from 4 
to 4.5% in 2007/08 

31/03/2008 Not achieved. End of year performance 3.51%. New strategy in place to 
focus recruitment and development activities on improving. Priority allocated 
to disabled staff for places on accredited management training programmes. 

Key Activity 
05.04.03g Develop and implement a package of initiatives targeting under-represented groups in the school workforce 
Progress Milestone Deadline Comments 
1. Package of incentives 
publicised (July 2007) and 
taken up by 5 Somali young 
people wishing to train as 
teachers by September 2007 

30/09/2007 We have set a target of a 1% increase year on year for recruiting BME 
teachers. We are undertaking a Training Needs Analysis across Children's 
Services. We are also employing a Workforce Development Officer to take 
on part of that work to build a better picture across the service. A range of 
routes in to teaching have been publicised and currently there are 3 people 
of Somali heritage who are benefiting from this. 

Key Activity 
05.04.03h Increase the percentage of black and minority teachers moving into leadership positions through residential and 
twilight training programmes, together with individual coaching sessions, to enable 24 teachers to prepare for successful 
career moves 
Progress Milestone Deadline Comments 
1. 6 month follow up shows that 
50% of participants have 
applied for Leadership positions 

30/09/2008 22 BME teachers undertook the residential weekend. The follow up work to 
see whether participants have achieved promotion is yet to take place, but 
will be undertaken before the end of the summer term. 

2. 12 month follow up shows 
that 40% of participants have 

31/03/2008 22 BME teachers undertook the residential weekend. The follow up work to 
see whether participants have achieved promotion is yet to take place, but 

Page 262



 15 

achieved promotion will be undertaken before the end of the summer term. 
 

Page 263



Page 264

This page is intentionally left blank



BVPP Appendix 4 Outturns against Targets 07/08

PI Ref No PI Description Meas. In Actual 
06/07

Actual 
07/08

Target 
07/08

Top 
Quartile 
06/07

Pref'd 
Outcm

Traffic 
Light

Actual 
Directio

n
Adults Health & Well-Being
BV053, 
PAFC28, 
SP213

Number of households receiving intensive home care 
per 1000 population aged 65 or over.

number 40.33 39.4 38 23.15 Higher GREEN �
BV054, 
PAFC32

Number of older people aged 65 or over helped to live 
at home per 1000 population aged 65 or over.

number 119.62 97.4 180 107.21 Higher RED �
BV056, 
PAFD54

Percentage of items of equipment and adaptations 
delivered within 7 working days.

% 97.6 95.9 95 95.5 Higher GREEN �
BV183b, 
CPAH15

The average length of stay in hostel accommodation of 
households that are unintentionally homeless and in 
priority need.

weeks 0 0 0 0 Lower GREEN �
BV195, 
PAFD55

Acceptable waiting times for assessment % 86.2 91.2 94 91.7 Higher RED �
BV196, 
PAFD56

For new older clients, the percentage for whom the 
time from completion of assessment to provision of all 
services in the care package is less than or equal to 
four weeks.

% 93.5 94.3 94 92.75 Higher GREEN �
BV201, 
PAFC51

Number of adults and older people receiving direct 
payments per 100,000 population aged 18 years or 
over.

number 123 160.4 160 137.66 Higher GREEN �
BV202 Number of people sleeping rough on a single night 

within the area of the authority.
number 13 7 <5 1 Lower RED �

BV213, 
XCPAH72
8

The number of households who considered themselves 
as homeless, who approached the local authority’s 
housing advice service(s), and for whom housing advice 
casework intervention resolved their situation.

number 5 7 8 8 Higher RED �

CPAH14, 
SP210, 
XBV183a

Average length of stay in bed and breakfast 
accommodation of households which include dependent 
children or a pregnant woman and which are 
unintentionally homeless and in priority need.

weeks 3.77 3.66 3.5 0 Lower RED �
PAF C72, 
SP211, 
THI010

Number of supported admissions of older people to 
permanent residential and nursing care per 10,000 
population aged 65 or over (formerly C26).

number 74.6 71.77 70 Lower RED �
PAF D40, 
SP212, 
THI011

Adult and older clients receiving a review as a 
percentage of those receiving a service.

% 84.9 77.5 86 Higher RED �
SP219 Percentage of Adult Social Service users who rate 

services as good, very good or excellent
% 61 92.6 63 Higher GREEN �

PI Ref No PI Description Meas. In Actual 
06/07

Actual 
07/08

Target 
07/08

Top 
Quartile 
06/07

Pref'd 
Outcm

Traffic 
Light

Actual 
Directio

n
Chief Executive's
BV002a Level of the Equality Standard for Local Government to 

which the authority conforms.
Level 5 5 5 4 Higher GREEN �

BV002b Duty to Promote Race Equality % 100 100 100 89 Higher GREEN �
BV016b Percentage of economically active disabled people in 

the authority area.
% 16.2 16.2 N/R Higher x �

LAA201, 
SP508

Percentage of residents who feel that they can influence 
decisions affecting their local area

% 41 48 53 43 Higher RED �
LAA202 Percentage of residents who feel their local area is a 

place where people from different backgrounds can get 
on well together (proxy for LAA 116)

% 70 71 73 84 Higher RED �
LAA203 Percentage increase of local residents who engage in 

volunteering (including e.g. formal civic roles)
% 13 12 15 Higher RED �

LAA204 Percentage increase in the number of third sector 
organisations that meet agreed quality standards

% N/A 28 28 Higher GREEN
x

LAA205 Proportion of services in selected public service areas 
delivered by third sector organisations on behalf of 
partner organisations

% 27 Jul-08 40 Higher x
x

LAA206 An increase in the number of people recorded as or 
reporting that they have engaged in formal 
volunteering on an average of at least two hours per 
week over the past year. (New mandatory for 2007/08)

number N/A 12 N/A Lower x
x

LAA207 Percentage of residents reporting an increase in 
satisfaction with their neighbourhoods: percentage of 
residents who are satisfied with their local area as a 
place to live

% 78 73 50 Higher GREEN �
LAAP201 Number of people using volunteer brokerage service 

(proxy for LAA 203)
number 1,322 1,503 1,500 Higher GREEN �

LAAP202 Number of organisations completing self-assessment 
process for accreditation (proxy for LAA 204)

number 0 73 70 Higher GREEN �
LAAP203 Number of organisations that are commission-ready 

(proxy for LAA 205)
number N/A 28 28 Higher GREEN

x
LAAP501 JSA claimants aged 16-24 as percentage of people that 

are economically active (proxy for LAA 501)
% 20.7 7.9 Lower x

x
LAAS201a, 
SP509, 
XCE021

Increased attendance at Local Area Partnership events number 5,202 5,513 5,250 Higher GREEN �
LAAS201b Number of residents contributing to LAP events number 525 955 475 Higher GREEN �

1 of 11Page 265



PI Ref No PI Description Meas. In Actual 
06/07

Actual 
07/08

Target 
07/08

Top 
Quartile 
06/07

Pref'd 
Outcm

Traffic 
Light

Actual 
Directio

n
LAAS202a Percentage increase in the number of residents from 

communities sometimes defined as hard to reach (to be 
defined for each LAP area) attending LAP events

number N/A 5 Higher x
x

LAAS202b Percentage increase in the number of residents from 
communities sometimes defined as hard to reach (to be 
defined for each LAP area) contributing to LAP events

number N/A 172 5 Higher GREEN
x

LAAS203 LAP steering groups that are more reflective of their 
communities in terms of diversity

number N/A Higher x
x

LAAS204 Percentage of residents who think that this is a place 
where people respect ethnic differences (proxy for LAA 
116)

% 74 75 79 Higher RED �
LAAS205 Number of third sector organisations that have retained 

and / or increased local volunteer involvement
number 268 307 300 Higher GREEN �

LAAS205a Increase the number of people recorded as or reporting 
that they have engaged in formal volunteering on an 
average of at least two hours per week over the past 
year

number N/A 12 N/A Lower x
x

LAAS206 Number of young (16 - 24) volunteers number 696 1242 1000 Higher GREEN �
LAAS207 Number of third sector groups and organisations 

accessing capacity building help in the past year
number 111 325 280 Higher GREEN �

LAAS208 Number of organisations engaged in Voluntary Sector 
Networks

number 310 390 350 Higher GREEN �
LAAS209 Number of emerging groups - that have been 

established for under a year - that apply for and receive 
community chest funding

number 95 106 100 Higher GREEN �
LAAS210 Number of people taking part in leadership training and 

community development opportunities
number 200 250 250 Higher GREEN �

LAAS211 Number of public services delivery contracts held by the 
third sector during the last full financial year

number 69 Jul-08 75 Higher x
x

LAAS212 Value of public service delivery contracts held by the 
third sector during the last full financial year

£ 3,400,000 Jul-08 4,500,000 Higher x
x

SP502a CPA use of resources indicator - overall score number N/A 3 4 Higher RED
x

SP502b CPA use of resources indicator - VFM score number N/A 3 3 Higher GREEN
x

SP507a Percentage of residents who agree that the Council is 
doing a good job: borough average

% N/A 68 73 Higher RED
x

SP507b Percentage of residents who agree that the Council is 
doing a good job: gap between the overall borough 
average and the LAP area with the lowest performance

% N/A 7 10 Higher RED
x

SP514a Percentage of residents who feel that Tower Hamlets is 
a place where people from different backgrounds can 
get on well together: borough average

% N/A 71 77 Higher RED
x

SP514b Percentage of residents who feel that Tower Hamlets is 
a place where people from different backgrounds can 
get on well together: gap between the overall borough 
average and the LAP area with the lowest performance

% N/A 6 10 Lower GREEN
x

SP515a, 
XCE023a

Percentage of attendees at LAP events who are from 
targeted communities: BME residents

% 54 46 48 Higher RED �
SP515b, 
XCE023b

Percentage of attendees at LAP events who are from 
targeted communities: Bangladeshi residents

% 39 26 33 Higher RED �
SP515c, 
XCE023c

Percentage of attendees at LAP events who are from 
targeted communities: Somali residents

% 5 7 5 Higher GREEN �
SP515d, 
XCE023d

Percentage of attendees at LAP events who are from 
targeted communities: Young residents (16 - 25)

% 35 19 15 Higher GREEN �

PI Ref No PI Description Meas. In Actual 
06/07

Actual 
07/08

Target 
07/08

Top 
Quartile 
06/07

Pref'd 
Outcm

Traffic 
Light

Actual 
Directio

n
Childrens Services
BV038, 
PSA004

Percentage of 15 year old pupils in schools maintained 
by the LEA achieving 5 or more GCSEs at grades A*- C 
or equivalent.

% 55.7 59.2 59 63.2 Higher GREEN �
BV039 Percentage of 15 year old pupils in schools maintained 

by the local education authority achieving 5 GCSEs or 
equivalent at grades A*- to G including English and 
Maths.

% 88.3 88.7 93.5 92 Higher RED �
BV040 Percentage of pupils in schools maintained by the LEA 

achieving Level 4 or above in the Key Stage 2 
Mathematics test.

% 78.1 78 85 78.4 Higher RED �
BV041, 
SP406

Percentage of pupils in schools maintained by the LEA 
achieving Level 4 or above in the Key Stage 2 English 
test.

% 79.9 81 85 83.5 Higher RED �
BV043a Percentage of statements of special educational need 

prepared within 18 weeks excluding those affected by" 
exceptions to the rule" under the SEN Code of Practice.

% 100 98.34 100 100 Higher RED �
BV043b Percentage of statements of special educational need 

prepared within 18 weeks including those affected by" 
exceptions to the rule" under the SEN Code of Practice.

% 97.5 90.82 100 99.2 Higher RED �
BV045, 
THI023b

Percentage of half days missed due to total absence in 
secondary schools maintained by the local education 
authority.

% 7.52 6.99 7 7.04 Lower GREEN �
BV046, 
THI023a

Percentage of half days missed due to total absence in 
primary schools maintained by the local education 
authority.

% 6.61 5.41 5 5.92 Lower RED �

2 of 11Page 266



PI Ref No PI Description Meas. In Actual 
06/07

Actual 
07/08

Target 
07/08

Top 
Quartile 
06/07

Pref'd 
Outcm

Traffic 
Light

Actual 
Directio

n
BV049, 
PAFA1, 
PSA007, 
SP215, 
THI013

Percentage of children looked after at 31 March with 
three or more placements during the year

% 10.95 11.61 10 Lower RED �

BV050, 
PAFA2, 
PSA006, 
SP216

Percentage of children looked after,leaving care aged 
16 or over with at least 1 GCSE at grade A-G or a 
GNVQ.

% 50 60.98 57 Higher GREEN �

BV161, 
LPSA3a, 
PAFA04

Ratio of the percentage of those young people who 
were looked after on 1 April in their 17th year (aged 
16) who were engaged in education, training or 
employment at the age of 19, to the percentage of all 
19 year olds who were engaged in education, training 
or employmen.

% 0.92 0.91 0.9 Higher GREEN �

BV162, 
PAFC20, 
SP214, 
THI012

Percentage of child protection cases which should have 
been reviewed during the year that were reviewed.

% 100 100 100 Higher GREEN �

BV163, 
PAFC23, 
XTH015

Percentage of children looked after that were adopted 
during the year.

% 16.5 10.5 9 Higher GREEN �
BV181a, 
LPSA1a

Percentage of 14-year old pupils in schools maintained 
by the local education authority achieving Level 5 or 
above in the Key Stage 3 test in English.

% 64.68 67 73 79.75 Higher RED �
BV181b, 
LPSA1b

Percentage of 14-year old pupils in schools maintained 
by the local education authority achieving Level 5 or 
above in the Key Stage 3 test in Mathematics.

% 67.72 67 73 80.49 Higher RED �
BV181c, 
LPSA001c

Percentage of 14-year old pupils in schools maintained 
by the local education authority achieving Level 5 or 
above in the Key Stage 3 test in Science.

% 57.32 59 71 74 Higher RED �
BV181d, 
LPSA001d

Percentage of 14-year old pupils in schools maintained 
by the local education authority achieving Level 5 or 
above in the Key Stage 3 test in ICT assessment.

% 61.55 65.3 71 72.5 Higher RED �
BV194a Percentage of pupils in schools maintained by the local 

education authority achieving level 5 or above in Key 
Stage 2 in English.

% 25 29 33 36 Higher RED �
BV194b Percentage of pupils in schools maintained by the local 

education authority achieving level 5 or above in Key 
Stage 2 in Mathematics.

% 29 29 33 36 Higher RED �
BV221a Percentage of young people aged 13-19 gaining a 

recorded outcome compared to the percentage of young 
people in the local authority area.

% 57 66 60 63 Higher GREEN �
BV221b Percentage of young people aged 13-19 gaining an 

accredited outcome compared to the percentage of 
young people in the local authority area.

% 30 44 26 30 Higher GREEN �
BV222a Percentage of integrated early education and childcare 

settings funded or part-funded by the local authority 
with a qualification at Level 4 or above.

% 64 58 25 45 Higher GREEN �
BV222b Percentage of integrated early education and childcare 

settings funded or part-funded by the local authority 
which have input from staff with graduate or post 
graduate training in teaching or child development.

% 62 52 50 100 Higher GREEN �

LAA112a Reduce the proportion of adult and young offenders and 
prolific and other priority offenders who reoffend: 
reduce the level of youth reoffending (by 5% in 
2008/09 compared to baseline) (a) pre-court decisions

% 28.8 23.33 23.03 Lower RED �

LAA112b Reduce the proportion of adult and young offenders and 
prolific and other prority offenders who reoffend: 
reduce the level of youth reoffending (by 5% in 
2008/09 compared to baseline) (b) first tier penalties

% 46.9 45.45 49.57 Lower GREEN �

LAA112c Reduce the proportion of adult and young offenders and 
prolific and other priority offenders who reoffend: 
reduce the level of youth reoffending (by 5% compared 
to baseline) (c) community penalties

% 55 66.67 58.46 Lower RED �
LAA112d Reduce the proportion of adult and young offenders and 

prolific and other priority offenders who reoffend: 
reduce the level of youth reoffending (by 5% in 
2008/09 compared to baseline) (d) custodial penalties

% 44.4 40 71.25 Lower GREEN �

LAA115 Percentage of people who feel that parents not taking 
responsibility for the behaviour of their children is a 
very big or a fairly big problem

% 75 81 73 Lower RED �
LAA503, 
LPSA008, 
SP306, 
THI020

Percentage of young people in Tower Hamlets aged 16-
18 not in education, employment or training

% 10.8 8.2 8.2 Lower GREEN �

LAA601, 
SP403

Increase in the percentage of pupils achieving level 5 in 
both English and mathematics at KS3

% 54 57.6 69 Higher RED �
LAA602, 
LPSA011, 
SP401

The % of pupils in Tower Hamlets earning 5 or more 
GCSEs at grades A*-C, including English and 
Mathematics.

% 33.5 36.3 39 Higher RED �
LAA603, 
LPSA012, 
SP402

*Improving A Level attainment - A Level Average Points 
Score per student in Tower Hamlets.

number 219.5 621.5 635 Higher RED �
LAA604a, 
SP404a, 
THI024a

Improved overall attendance rates at primary school 
(proxy for LAA 601 & 602)

% 93.39 94.59 95.5 94.07 Higher RED �
LAA605a, 
SP405a, 
THI025a

Unauthorised absence rates - primary (proxy for 601, 
602 & 603)

% 1.24 1.23 0.95 0.53 Lower RED �

3 of 11Page 267



PI Ref No PI Description Meas. In Actual 
06/07

Actual 
07/08

Target 
07/08

Top 
Quartile 
06/07

Pref'd 
Outcm

Traffic 
Light

Actual 
Directio

n
LAA605b, 
SP405b, 
THI025b

Unauthorised absence rates - secondary % 2.05 1.98 1.9 Lower RED �
LAA606 Number of parents participating in Family Learning 

programmes
number 1,406 1,030 1,750 Higher RED �

LAA607, 
SP208

Percentage of primary school pupils having 2 hours+ PE 
per week

% 62 93.1 80 Higher GREEN �
LAA611 By 2008 all schools to ensure at least 50% of pupils 

achieve level 5 or above in each of English, maths and 
science

% 80 80 87 Higher RED �
LAAP103a Take up of youth work a) number of 13 -19 year olds 

contacted
number 5,542 6,493 5,929 Higher GREEN �

LAAP103b Take up of youth work (b) number of 13-19 year olds 
regularly participating (related to BVPI 221 b and a 
proxy for LAA 103 a,b,c & d)

number 2,897 4,000 3,558 Higher GREEN �
LAAS608 Percentage of parent governor vacancies % 8.7 17.94 7 Lower RED �
LAAS609a Percentage achieving 6+ end of FS in dispositions and 

attitudes (DA)
% 83 83 86 Higher RED �

LAAS609b Percentage achieving 6+ end of FS in emotional 
development (ED)

% 69 66 74 Higher RED �
LAAS609c Percentage achieving 6+ end of FS in language for 

communication (LCT)
% 67 69 70 Higher RED �

LAAS611 Percentage of schools achieving level 3 of the Healthy 
Schools status

% 52 63 61 Higher GREEN �
LAAS613 *Proportion of 19 year olds who achieve at least level 2 

(replaces LAAS 601, 6002 and 603)
% 58 62 59 Higher GREEN �

SP404b Improved overall attendance rates at secondary school 
(proxy for LAA 601, 602 & 603)

% 92.48 92.6 93 92.98 Higher RED �

PI Ref No PI Description Meas. In Actual 
06/07

Actual 
07/08

Target 
07/08

Top 
Quartile 
06/07

Pref'd 
Outcm

Traffic 
Light

Actual 
Directio

n
Communities Localities & Culture
BV082a(i), 
CPAE06a, 
LAA106, 
SP111, 
THI005

Percentage of household waste which has been sent by 
the authority for recycling.

% 11.72 13.61 22 21.77 Higher RED �

BV082a(ii) Total tonnage of household waste arisings which have 
been sent by the Authority for recycling.

number 9,865.52 11,146.98 18,889.10 21,177.69 Higher RED �
BV082b(i), 
CPAE06b

The percentage of household waste sent by the 
Authority for composting or treatment by anaerobic 
digestion.

% 0.18 0.12 0.3 9.19 Higher RED �
BV082b(ii) The tonnage of household waste sent by the authority 

for composting or treatment by anaerobic digestion.
number 153.52 99.75 257.58 8,673.51 Higher RED �

BV082c(i) Percentage of the total tonnage of household waste 
arisings which have been used to recover heat, power 
and other energy sources.

% 9.16 0 0 53.09 Higher GREEN �
BV082c(ii) Tonnage of household waste arisings which have been 

used to recover heat, power and other energy sources.
number 7,712.48 0 0 49,620.68 Higher GREEN �

BV082d(i) Percentage of household waste arisings which have 
been landfilled.

% 78.94 85.62 77.7 28 Lower RED �
BV082d(ii) The tonnage of household waste arisings which have 

been landfilled.
number 66,444.51 70,145.53 66,712.87 12,291.99 Lower RED �

BV084a, 
CPAE26

Number of kilograms of household waste collected per 
head of the population

number 394.82 385.01 378.19 390.6 Lower RED �
BV084b Percentage change from the previous financial year in 

the number of kilograms of household waste collected 
per head of the population.

number 4.51 -2.92 -4.21 -1.52 Lower RED �
BV086 Cost of waste collection per household. £ 60.89 63.73 61.16 45.87 Lower RED �
BV087 Cost of waste disposal per tonne for municipal waste £ 70.45 69.11 74.65 45.89 Lower GREEN �
BV091a, 
CPAE45

Percentage of households resident in the authority’s 
area served by kerbside collection of recyclables

% 93.2 94.84 100 100 Higher RED �
BV091b, 
CPAE077

Percentage of households resident in the authority’s 
area served by kerbside collection of at least two 
recyclables.

% 93.2 94.84 100 100 Higher RED �
BV099ai, 
CPAE12, 
LAA107, 
LPSA004, 
SP103

Number of people killed or seriously injured (KSI) in 
road traffic collisions.

number 111 124 105 85 Lower RED �

BV099aii Percentage change in the number of people killed or 
seriously injured (KSI) in road traffic collisions since the 
previous year.

% -16.54 11.71 -5.41 -20.2 Lower RED �
BV099aiii Percentage change in the number of people killed or 

seriously injured (KSI) in road traffic collisions since the 
1994-98 average.

% -40.51 -33.55 -43.73 -50.4 Lower RED �
BV099bi Number of children (aged under 16 years) killed or 

seriously injured (KSI) in road traffic collision
number 8 9 8 8 Lower RED �

BV099bii Percentage change in the number of children (aged 
under 16 years) killed or seriously injured (KSI) in road 
traffic collisions since the previous year.

% -52.94 12.5 0 -47.3 Lower RED �
BV099biii Percentage change in the number of children killed or 

seriously injured (KSI) in road traffic collisions since the 
1994-98 average.

% -70.8 -67.15 -70.8 -73.1 Lower RED �

4 of 11Page 268



PI Ref No PI Description Meas. In Actual 
06/07

Actual 
07/08

Target 
07/08

Top 
Quartile 
06/07

Pref'd 
Outcm

Traffic 
Light

Actual 
Directio

n
BV099ci, 
CPA023b, 
PSA012

Number of people slightly injured in road traffic 
collisions.

number 893 792 880 671 Lower GREEN �
BV099cii Percentage change in the number of people slightly 

injured in road traffic collisions since the previous year.
% 4 -11.31 -1.46 -14.3 Lower GREEN �

BV099ciii Percentage change in the number of people slightly 
injured in road traffic collisions since the 1994-98 
average.

% -12.67 -22.55 -12.67 -34.1 Lower GREEN �
BV100 Number of days of temporary traffic controls or road 

closure on traffic sensitive streets per km of traffic 
sensitive streets.

days 0.56 0.42 0.3 0 Lower RED �
BV126, 
THI002

Number of domestic burglaries per 1,000 households. number 16.95 15.98 18.5 14.1 Lower GREEN �
BV127a Violent crime per year, 1,000 population in the Local 

Authority area.
number 46.7 39.58 43.3 22 Lower GREEN �

BV127b, 
LPSA001a, 
XCE016, 
XTH006

Robberies per year, per 1,000 population in the Local 
Authority area.

number 8.97 6.42 6.5 3.7 Lower GREEN �

BV128, 
THI007

Number of vehicle crimes per 1,000 population. number 19.95 19.57 18.3 14 Lower RED �
BV165, 
CPAE16

Percentage of pedestrian crossings with facilities for 
disabled people.

% 36 71.43 100 100 Higher RED �
BV166a, 
CPAE27

Score against a checklist of enforcement best practice 
for environmental health.

% 100 100 100 100 Higher GREEN �
BV166b, 
CPAE21

Score against a checklist of enforcement best practice 
for trading standards.

% 100 100 100 100 Higher GREEN �
BV174, 
XCE013, 
XTH004

Number of racial incidents recorded by the authority 
per 100,000 population.

number 227.48 146.61 285 Higher RED �
BV175, 
CPAH19, 
XCE014

Percentage of racial incidents that resulted in further 
action.

% 100 100 100 100 Higher GREEN �
BV187, 
CPAE18

Percentage length of category 1, 1a and 2 footway 
network needing treatment.

% 19.07 21.5 9.8 16 Lower RED �
BV199a, 
CPAE04, 
LAA105, 
LPSA003, 
SP108, 
THI004

The proportion of relevant land and highways 
(expressed as a percentage) that is assessed as having 
combined deposits of litter and detritus that fall below 
an acceptable level.

% 22 23.2 12 14.6 Lower RED �

BV199b, 
CPAE071b

The proportion of relevant land and highways 
(expressed as a percentage) from which unacceptable 
levels of graffiti are visible.

% 13 19 9 4 Lower RED �
BV199c, 
CPAE071c

The proportion of relevant land and highways 
(expressed as a percentage) from which unacceptable 
levels of fly-posting are visible.

% 6 8 5 1 Lower RED �
BV199d, 
CPAE071d

The year-on-year reduction in total number of incidents 
and increase in total number of enforcement actions 
taken to deal with ‘fly-tipping’.

grade 4 to come 
from Defra

1 2 Lower x
x

BV215a The average number of days taken to repair a street 
lighting fault, which is under the control of the local 
authority - non DNO -

days 3.55 2.26 1.9 2.13 Lower RED �
BV215b The average time taken to repair a street lighting fault, 

where response time is under the control of a DNO
days 15.71 17.6 15 15.21 Lower RED �

BV216a Number of ‘sites of potential concern’ (within the local 
authority area), with respect to land contamination.

number 511 850 479 None x
x

BV216b Number of sites for which sufficient detailed information 
is available to decide whether remediation of the land is 
necessary, as a percentage of all ‘sites of potential 
concern’.

% 8.59 11 8.98 39 Higher GREEN �
BV217 Percentage of pollution control improvements to 

existing installations completed on time
% 100 100 90 100 Higher GREEN �

BV218a, 
XTH009a

Percentage of new reports of abandoned vehicles 
investigated within 24hrs of notification

% 98.8 99.46 98 98.78 Higher GREEN �
BV218b, 
LAA122, 
XTH009b

Percentage of abandoned vehicles removed within 24 
hours from the point at which the Authority is legally 
entitled to remove the vehicle

% 95.8 99.12 96 97.3 Higher GREEN �
BV220 Compliance against the Public Library Service 

Standards
grade 12.5 12 17 Higher RED �

BV223 Percentage of the local authority principal road network 
where structural maintenance should be considered.

% 22 8.7 16 8 Lower GREEN �
BV224a Percentage of the non-principal classified road network 

where maintenance should be considered.
% 32.17 12 24 10 Lower GREEN �

BV224b, 
CPAE11

Percentage of the unclassified road network where 
structural maintenance should be considered.

% 7.97 8.85 7.75 9 Lower RED �
BV225, 
CPAH731

Actions Against Domestic Violence. % 100 100 100 Higher GREEN �
LAA101, 
SP105, 
THI003

Reduction in overall crime rate (BCS Comparator 
Offences)

number 18,592 17,199 18,109 Lower GREEN �

5 of 11Page 269



PI Ref No PI Description Meas. In Actual 
06/07

Actual 
07/08

Target 
07/08

Top 
Quartile 
06/07

Pref'd 
Outcm

Traffic 
Light

Actual 
Directio

n
LAA102, 
LPSA001b, 
SP101, 
THI001, 
XCE012

Wounding: number of violent crimes (common assault 
plus ABH/GHB) per 1000 population

number 22.9 20.9 20.15 Lower RED �

LAA103a, 
LPSA002b
(i), SP102a

Perceptions of antisocial behaviour: percentage of 
population who view as a “very big problem” the 
following issue: - Youths hanging around on the streets

% 46 32.2 38 Lower GREEN �

LAA103b, 
LPSA002b
(ii), 
SP102b

Perceptions of antisocial behaviour: percentage of 
population who view as a “very big problem” the 
following issue: - Graffiti and other deliberate damage 
to property or vehicles

% 24 23.7 35 Lower GREEN �

LAA103c, 
LPSA002b
(iii), 
SP102c

Perceptions of antisocial behaviour: percentage of 
population who view as a “very big problem” the 
following issue: - people using or dealing drugs

% 43 32.2 41 Lower GREEN �

LAA103d, 
LPSA002b
(v), 
SP102d

Perceptions of antisocial behaviour: percentage of 
population who view as a “very big problem” the 
following issue: - people being drunk or rowdy in public 
places

% 19 15.3 23 Lower GREEN �

LAA104, 
LPSA010a, 
SP104, 
THI002, 
XCE017

Increased number of under 18s accessing drug 
treatment

number 711 1,034 732 Higher GREEN �

LAA108 Reduce the proportion of adult and young offenders and 
prolific and other priority offenders who reoffend: 
reduced recorded convictions of PPOs, excluding 
prisoners and those on the list under one year

% 30 31 30 Higher GREEN �

LAA109 Reduce the proportion of adult and young offenders and 
prolific and other priority offenders who reoffend: 
reduced percentage of Drug Intervention Programme 
clients reoffending

% 28 13 20 Lower GREEN �
LAA110 Reduce the proportion of adult and young offenders and 

prolific and other priority offenders who reoffend: 
increase the proportion of offenders accessing housing 
or other tenancy related support

29 48 45 Higher GREEN �
LAA111 Reduce the proportion of adult and young offenders and 

prolific and other priority offenders who reoffend: 
increased number of unemployed offenders obtaining 
and keeping employment for at least four weeks

number 42 98 10 Higher GREEN �

LAA113 Percentage of residents identifying crime within their 
top three concerns (ARS)

% N/A 55 45 Lower RED
x

LAA114 Increase in percentage of people who feel informed 
about what is being done to tackle antisocial behaviour 
in their local area

% 24 27 32 Higher RED �
LAA116 Percentage who think that people not treating other 

people with respect and consideration is a very big or 
fairly big problem

% 59 53.6 53 Lower RED �
LAA121 Quality of surroundings - increase in number of green 

flag awards
number N/A 5 5 Higher GREEN

x
LAA123 Reduction in the percentage of municipal waste 

landfilled
% N/A 88.4 81 Lower RED

x
LAA124 Increase in the percentage of municipal waste recycled % N/A 10.36 19 Higher RED

x
LAA125 Reduction in aggregated score for perception of 7 

strands of ASB as measured in Best Value General 
Survey

% 44 49.2 41 Higher GREEN �
LAA612 The percentage annual increase in the number of 

schools with an approved travel plan (STP) required to 
achieve 100% STP coverage by March 2010

% N/A 83.78 85 Higher RED
x

LAAP101 Incidents of criminal damage (proxy for LAA 103 
a,b,c,d)

number 17.05 15.63 15.83 Lower GREEN �
LAAP104 Percentage of people who think that street cleaning is 

good, very good or excellent (ARS) (proxy for LAA 119)
% N/A 51 63 Higher RED

x
LAAP605 Recorded users of leisure centres under the age of 19 number 16,263 26,987 16,426 Higher GREEN �
LAAS101, 
SP106

Reduced youth-on-youth violent crime (where victim is 
under 19 and accused is under 19 or suspect is thought 
to be under 19)

number 644 542 570 Lower GREEN �
LAAS102 Domestic violence sanctioned detection rate % 45.1 47 37 Higher GREEN �
LAAS103, 
SP107

Reduced length of time domestic violence is 
experienced before it is initially reported to a specialist 
agency

% 3.2 3.85 -6 Lower RED �
LAAS104 Non-accidental secondary fires (excluding vehicles) 

(BV206iii)
number 2.99 3.65 2.99 Lower RED �

LAAS105 Non-accidental secondary vehicle fires (BV206iv) number 0.23 0.2 0.23 Lower GREEN �
LAAS106, 
SP110

Percentage of people asked who think that parks, 
playgrounds and open spaces are good, very good or 
excellent (proxy for LAA 120)

% 50 54 52 Higher GREEN �
LAAS107, 
SP109a

Improved perceptions of antisocial behaviour: reduced 
percentage of the population who view rubbish and 
litter lying around as "a very serious problem"

% 32 32.9 23 Lower RED �
LAAS604, 
LPSA010b, 
SP408, 
THI026

Number of under 16s who are active users of the Idea 
Stores and libraries

number 13,473 16,008 19,272 Higher RED �

6 of 11Page 270



PI Ref No PI Description Meas. In Actual 
06/07

Actual 
07/08

Target 
07/08

Top 
Quartile 
06/07

Pref'd 
Outcm

Traffic 
Light

Actual 
Directio

n
LAAS605, 
LPSA010c, 
SP409, 
THI027

Total number of library items issued to under 16s - 
Enhancing young people

number 266,303 335,680 317,000 Higher GREEN �

LAAS606, 
LPSA010d, 
SP410, 
THI028

Number of young people under 16 attending study 
support sessions - enhancing young people

number 750 1,115 765 Higher GREEN �

LAAS607, 
LPSA010e, 
SP411, 
THI029

Total number of under 19s completing a course in Idea 
Stores, libraries and learning centres - enhancing 
young people

number 1,741 1,778 1,760 Higher GREEN �

LPSA002a Reducing antisocial behaviour: - a. non-accidental 
secondary fires (per 1,000 residents)

number N/A 3.59 9.17 Lower GREEN
x

LPSA002b
(iv)

Perceptions of antisocial behaviour: percentage of 
population who view as a “very big problem” the 
following issue: - rubbish and litter lying around

% 32 32.9 28 Lower RED �
LPSA002c Reducing antisocial behaviour: - % of residents who say 

that antisocial behaviour has got worse or not changed 
in the past 3 years

% N/A 78.7 69 Lower RED
x

SP109b Improved perceptions of antisocial behaviour: reduced 
percentage of the population who view abandoned or 
burnt out cars as a "very serious problem"

% 8 6.5 18 Lower GREEN �
SP413 Percentage of people asked who think that leisure and 

sports facilities are good, very good or excellent
% N/A 46 N/A Higher x

x

PI Ref No PI Description Meas. In Actual 
06/07

Actual 
07/08

Target 
07/08

Top 
Quartile 
06/07

Pref'd 
Outcm

Traffic 
Light

Actual 
Directio

n
Development and Renewal
BV106, 
CPAE23

Percentage of new homes built on previously developed 
land.

% 100 100 100 100 Higher GREEN �
BV109a, 
CPAE02a, 
SP301, 
THI017

Percentage of major planning applications determined 
within 13 weeks.

% 38.33 56.92 60 82.56 Higher RED �

BV109b, 
CPAE02b, 
SP302, 
THI018

Percentage of minor planning applications determined 
in 8 weeks.

% 80.49 84.4 80.5 85.15 Higher GREEN �

BV109c, 
CPAE02c, 
SP303, 
THI019

Percentage of other planning applications determined in 
8 weeks.

% 84.18 86.66 88.3 92.86 Higher RED �

BV156 Percentage of Authority buildings in which all public 
areas are suitable for and accessible to disabled people

% 54.39 63 70 Higher RED �
BV200a Did the local planning authority submit the Local 

Development Scheme (LDS) by 28th March 2005 and 
thereafter maintain a 3-year rolling programme?

Yes/No Yes Yes Yes None x
x

BV200b, 
CPAE44

Has the local planning authority met the milestones 
which the current Local Development Scheme (LDS) 
sets out?

Yes/No No Yes Yes None x
x

BV204, 
CPAE44

Percentage of appeals allowed against the authority’s 
decision to refuse planning applications.

% 15 34.78 20 28.5 Lower RED �
BV205, 
CPAE43

Score against a planning service quality checklist. % 100 100 100 100 Higher GREEN �
BV219b Percentage of conservation areas in the local authority 

area with an up-to date character appraisal
% 70 100 80 65 Higher GREEN �

BV226a Total amount spent by the Local Authority on Advice 
and Guidance services provided by external 
organisations.

£ 1,027,612 1,131,412 1,048,164 Higher GREEN �
BV226b Percentage of monies spent on advice and guidance 

services provision which was given to organisations 
holding the CLS Quality Mark at ‘General Help’ level and 
above.

% 90.85 91.42 93 Higher RED �
BV226c Total amount spent on Advice and Guidance in the 

areas of housing, welfare benefits and consumer 
matters which is provided directly by the authority to 
the public.

£ 717,696 632,773 702,900 Higher RED �
LAA502, 
LPSA009, 
SP307, 
THI021

Number of people aged 24 and under in receipt of 
Jobseekers Allowance (and not on New Deal) helped 
into paid employment of over 16 hours a week for at 
least 13 consecutive weeks or more

number 139 220 250 Higher RED �

LAA506, 
SP305

Worth of contracts secured by local businesses through 
the Canary Wharf Local Business Liaison Office (private 
sector supply chain)

£ 6,000,000 17,800,000 6,000,000 Higher GREEN �
LAA507, 
SP304, 
THI016

Number of businesses / social enterprises assisted to 
improve their performance

number 43 136 40 Higher GREEN �
LAA508 Number of social enterprises created - expired 2007/08 number 4 0 0 Higher GREEN �
LAA511 Registered NEETs assisted into sustainable employment number N/A 108 100 Higher GREEN

x
LAA512 Develop and implement a work placement model for IB 

clients and Lone Parents
number N/A 20 10 Higher GREEN

x

7 of 11Page 271



PI Ref No PI Description Meas. In Actual 
06/07

Actual 
07/08

Target 
07/08

Top 
Quartile 
06/07

Pref'd 
Outcm

Traffic 
Light

Actual 
Directio

n
LAA513 Number of employer activities to increase aspiration 

and information about job opportunities in the labour 
market for young people

number 12 13 10 Higher GREEN �
LAA514 Number of local job seekers assisted to secure 

employment through Earn to Learn programmes
number 116 149 120 Higher GREEN �

SP308, 
THI022

Percentage of young people in Tower Hamlets aged 18 - 
25 claiming unemployment-related benefits

% 20.7 18.2 16.0 Lower RED �
SP309, 
THI023

Percentage of local residents claiming unemployment-
related benefits

% 8.6 7.4 8.0 Lower GREEN �
SP310 Increased supply of employment opportunities in key 

growth sectors prompted directly through the 
Employment Consortium

number 1,354 1,254 1,400 Higher RED �

PI Ref No PI Description Meas. In Actual 
06/07

Actual 
07/08

Target 
07/08

Top 
Quartile 
06/07

Pref'd 
Outcm

Traffic 
Light

Actual 
Directio

n
Housing
BV063, 
CPAE24, 
CPAH11

Energy Efficiency the average SAP rating of local 
authority owned dwellings.

number 63.97 65.41 65 70 Higher GREEN �
BV064, 
CPAH23

Number of private sector vacant dwellings that are 
returned into occupation or demolished as a direct 
result of action by the local authority

number 337 275 302 396 Higher RED �
BV066a, 
CPAH06

Local authority rent collection and arrears: proportion of 
rent collected.

% 97.06 98.1 97.4 97.6 Higher GREEN �
BV066b The number of local authority tenants with more than 

seven weeks of (gross) rent arrears as a percentage of 
the total number of council tenants.

% 6.8 6.68 6.5 6.58 Lower RED �
BV066c Percentage of local authority tenants in arrears who 

have had Notices Seeking Possession served.
% 29.1 35.75 27 16.96 Lower RED �

BV066d Percentage of local authority tenants evicted as a result 
of rent arrears.

% 0.35 0.36 0 0.21 Lower RED �
BV074a, 
CPAH12

Satisfaction of tenants of council housing with the 
overall service provided by their landlord a: all tenants

% 56.32 56.32 63 72.5 Higher RED �
BV074b Satisfaction of tenants of council housing with the 

overall service provided by their landlord: with results 
further broken down by b) black and minority ethnic 
tenants.

% 51.58 51.58 63 70.5 Higher RED �
BV074c Satisfaction of non-ethnic minority local authority 

tenants with the overall service provided by their 
landlord.

% 59.04 59.04 63 77 Higher RED �
BV075a, 
CPAH13

Satisfaction of council housing tenants with 
opportunities for participation in management and 
decision making in relation to housing services provided 
by their landlord. a: All tenants

% 45.42 45.42 51 62 Higher RED �
BV075b Tenant Satisfaction with Participation - Ethnic Minority 

Tenants
% 49.2 49.2 51 64.3 Higher RED �

BV075c Satisfaction of tenants of council housing with 
opportunities for participation in management anf 
decision making in relation to housing services provided 
by their landlord: b) non-black and minority ethnic 
tenants.

% 42.63 42.63 51 Higher RED �

BV076b Number of benefit fraud investigators employed, per 
1,000 caseload.

number 0.3 0.29 0.396 None x
x

BV076c The number of Housing Benefit and Council Tax Benefit 
(HB/CTB) fraud investigations carried out by the Local 
Authority per year, per 1,000 caseload.

number 22.97 26.02 29 None x
x

BV076d The number of Housing Benefit and Council Tax Benefit 
(HB/CTB) prosecutions and sanctions, per year, per 
1,000 caseload, in the Local Authority area.

number 4.9 5 4 None x
x

BV078a, 
SP218

Average time for processing new housing benefit and 
council tax benefit claims (days).

days 28.49 24.63 28 27.5 Lower GREEN �
BV078b, 
XTH031

Average time for processing notifications of changes of 
circumstance,relating to housing benefit and council tax 
benefit claims (days).

days 13.3 11.42 7.5 12 Lower RED �
BV079a Percentage of housing benefit and council tax benefit 

cases for which the calculation of the amount of benefit 
due was correct.

% 98.6 99.2 98.65 99.3 Higher GREEN �
BV079b(i) The amount of Housing Benefit overpayments (HB) 

recovered as a percentage of all HB overpayments.
% 60.89 70.33 64.2 70.37 Higher GREEN �

BV079b(ii) HB overpayments recovered as a percentage of the 
total amount of HB overpayment debt outstanding at 
the start of the year, plus amount of HB overpayments 
identified during the year.

% 23.54 23.03 39.6 28.35 Higher RED �
BV079b(iii) Housing Benefit (HB) overpayments written off as a 

percentage of the total amount of HB overpayment debt 
outstanding at the start of the year, plus amount of HB 
overpayments identified during the year.

% 2.64 2.52 15.5 None x
x

BV184a, 
CPAH01, 
LAA405a

The percentage of local authority dwellings which were 
non-decent at the start of the financial year.

% 61.74 58.95 58.95 23 Lower GREEN �
BV184b, 
CPAH02, 
LAA405b, 
SP202

The percentage change in the proportion of non-decent 
dwellings between the start and the end of the financial 
year.

% 15.05 17.9 17.9 18.2 Higher GREEN �

BV212, 
CPAH08, 
SP204, 
THI007

Average time taken to re-let local authority housing. days 34.3 33.8 31 26 Lower RED �

CPAH04, 
SP203, 
THI006

Percentage of urgent repairs completed in government 
time limits

% 96.59 97.67 97.2 Higher GREEN �

8 of 11Page 272



PI Ref No PI Description Meas. In Actual 
06/07

Actual 
07/08

Target 
07/08

Top 
Quartile 
06/07

Pref'd 
Outcm

Traffic 
Light

Actual 
Directio

n
LAA401 Development of a common 'quality framework' for key 

management standards (% complete)
% 30 70 70 Higher GREEN �

LAA402a Increasing resident satisfaction with key services linked 
into the framework minimum standard in 2006/07: 
local authority stock

% N/A Tbc Higher x
x

LAA402b Increasing resident satisfaction with key services linked 
into the framework minimum standard is baseline 
satisfaction in 2006/07: RSL stock

% N/A Tbc Higher x
x

LAA403, 
LPSA005, 
SP201

Increased supply of affordable homes - Number of 
empty homes brought back into use

number 17 25 17 Higher GREEN �
LAA404a Number of additional affordable family homes 

developed in line with the emerging low-cost home 
ownership model

number N/A Higher x
x

LAA404b Development of demonstration sites (no. of units) number N/A 36 Higher x
x

LAA404c Implement alternative models of home ownership (% 
completed)

% N/A N/A Higher x
x

LAA405c Percentage reduction of non-decent homes in homes 
transferred to RSLs in previous years

% N/A 3 15 Higher RED
x

LAA405d Non-decency across RSL homes, as reported in RSL RSR 
(TBC)

% N/A 19 20 Lower GREEN
x

LAAS401 Establish stock ownership audit and mapping (% 
complete)

% 90 100 100 Higher GREEN �
LAAS402 Establish information sharing website (% complete) % 30 50 100 Higher RED �
LAAS403 Identify 'Primary' landlord per LAP (or paired LAP) area 

based on size or lead specialism and establish the 
relevant working groups (%complete)

% N/A 100 100 Higher GREEN
x

LAAS404 establish common framework for key issues (% 
complete)

% N/A 70 70 Higher GREEN
x

LAAS405 Implementation of Quality Frameworks (% complete) % N/A 70 30 Higher GREEN
x

SP205 Percentage of residents satisfied with the Council's 
repairs service

% 90.22 86.01 91 Higher RED �

PI Ref No PI Description Meas. In Actual 
06/07

Actual 
07/08

Target 
07/08

Top 
Quartile 
06/07

Pref'd 
Outcm

Traffic 
Light

Actual 
Directio

n
Primary Care Trust
BV197, 
LAA610, 
SP209

Percentage change in the number of conceptions to 
females aged under 18, resident in an area, per 
thousand females aged 15-17 resident in the area, 
compared with the baseline year of 1998.

% -25.3 -24.2 -43 -22.18 Lower RED �
LAA301a Increased life expectancy, with a 10% reduction in the 

gap between Tower Hamlets and the average for 
England and Wales by 2010 - men (data monitored 
annually, but available two years in arrears)

% 74.9 75.2 74.8 Higher GREEN �

LAA301b Increased life expectancy, with a 10% reduction in the 
gap between Tower Hamlets and the England and 
Wales average by 2010 - women (data monitored 
annually, but available two years in arrears)

number 79.9 80.2 79.8 Higher GREEN �

LAA302 The number of deaths under the age of 75 from 
cardiovascular disease, measured in standardised rates 
per 100,000 people (performance monitored annually, 
but two years in arrears)

number 141.5 131.8 144 Lower GREEN �
LAA303 the number of deaths under the age of 75 from cancer, 

measured in standardised rates per 100,000 people 
(performance monitored annually, but data available 
two years in arrears)

number 121 148.3 122 Lower RED �
LAA304 Number of new or redeveloped primary care facilities number N/A 11 10 Higher GREEN

x
LAA305 Total number of people quitting smoking per year number 2,105 1,400 2,025 Higher RED �
LAA306a Reduce health inequalities between the local authority 

area and the England population by narrowing the gap 
in all-age, all-cause mortality: male

number 894.8 872.73 862 Lower RED �
LAA306b Reduce health inequalities between the local authority 

area and the England population by narrowing the gap 
in all-age, all-cause mortality: female

number 598.8 585.93 577 Lower RED �
LAA307 26% of the 4 week quits will come from the 20% most 

deprived Super Output Areas
% N/A TBC Higher x

x
LAA604b Percentage of children in Year 8 eating 5 portions of 

fruit/vegetables a day (Proxy for LAA 610) [New 
definition]

% N/A Higher x
x

LAA608a, 
LPSA006/7
a, SP206a

Prevalence of OBESITY among primary school children 
in year 7 (ACTUAL Year 6)

% N/A 22.93 22 Lower RED
x

LAA608b, 
LPSA006/7
b, SP206b

Prevalence of children OVERWEIGHT and OBESITY 
combined among primary school children in year 7.( 
ACTUAL YEAR 6)

% N/A 37.11 36 Lower RED
x

LAA608c Prevalence of OVERWEIGHT among primary school 
children in Year 7 (ACTUAL Year 6)

N/A 14.18 13 Lower RED
x

LAA609a, 
SP207

Proportion of children who have ever smoked a 
cigarette as reported in the TellUS Survey (Year 6, 8 
and 10)

% N/A 21 N/A Lower x
x

LAA609b Reduction in percentage of children who smoke 
regularly: (Tell us)Year 10

% N/A N/A Lower x
x

9 of 11Page 273



PI Ref No PI Description Meas. In Actual 
06/07

Actual 
07/08

Target 
07/08

Top 
Quartile 
06/07

Pref'd 
Outcm

Traffic 
Light

Actual 
Directio

n
LAAP301 Patients with cornonary heart disease with blood 

pressure measured within last 15 months of 150 / 90 or 
less (proxy for LAA 302)

% 84 85 88 Higher RED �
LAAP302 Patients with coronary heart disease with cholesterol 

measured within last 15 months of 5 mmol/l or less 
(proxy for LAA 302)

% 75 79 78 Higher GREEN �
LAAP303 Breast cancer screening coverage for women aged 50 - 

70 years (proxy for LAA 303)
% 52 60 Higher x

x
LAAP304 Cervical screening coverage for women aged 25 - 64 

years (proxy for LAA 303)
% 72.3 71 80 Higher RED �

LAAP601 Annual weight monitoring for Year 6 pupils (from Sept. 
2006) (proxy for LAA 608 a,b)

% N/A 14.05 Lower x
x

LAAP602 Percentage of young people smoking in secondary 
schools targeted by Peer Education Project (proxy for 
LAA 609)

% N/A Lower x
x

LAAP603a Smoking status of 8 - 12 year olds (proxy for LAA 609) number N/A Lower x
x

LAAP603b Smoking status of 13-15 year olds (proxy for LAA 609) number N/A Lower x
x

LAAP604a Percentage of 8-12 year old children eating 5 portions 
of fruit / vegetables a day (proxy for LAA 610)

% N/A Higher x
x

LAAP604b Percentage of 13-15 year old children eating 5 portions 
of fruit / vegetables a day (proxy for LAA 610)

% N/A Higher x
x

LAAS301 Total number of people undertaking self-management 
courses per year (proxy for LAA 301)

number 700 841 795 Higher GREEN �
LAAS302, 
LPSA006/7
c

The number of patients diagnosed with diabetes 
receiving an annual review of their condition

number 9,093 8,228 7,700 Higher GREEN �
LAAS610a Percentage of children eating 5 portions of fruit / 

vegetables a day (Tellus): Year 6, 8, and 10.
% N/A 15 N/A Higher x

x
LAAS610b Percentage of children eating 5 portions of fruit 

/vegetables a day (Tell us): Year 10
% N/A N/A Higher x

x
LAAS612 Percentage of families visited within 8 weeks of birth of 

child
% 100 100 Higher x

x

PI Ref No PI Description Meas. In Actual 
06/07

Actual 
07/08

Target 
07/08

Top 
Quartile 
06/07

Pref'd 
Outcm

Traffic 
Light

Actual 
Directio

n
Resources
BV008, 
CE038, 
SP506, 
THI033

Percentage of Undisputed Invoices Paid on Time % 89.82 87.87 96 93 Higher RED �

BV009, 
CE034

Percentage of council tax collected. % 94.6 94.71 96.25 96.1 Higher RED �
BV010, 
CE035

Percentage of Non-domestic Rates Collected % 99.54 99.7 99.5 99.19 Higher GREEN �
BV011a, 
CE045a, 
SP517, 
THI041

Percentage of top 5% of earners of Local Authority staff 
that are women.

% 53.21 52.71 50 48.36 Higher GREEN �

BV011b, 
CE044a, 
SP516, 
THI040

The percentage of the top 5% of Local Authority staff 
who are from an ethnic minority.

% 15.26 17.43 18 18.12 Higher RED �

BV011c Percentage of the top paid 5% of staff who have a 
disability (excluding those in maintained schools.)

% 4.62 3.51 5 5.39 Higher RED �
BV012, 
CE046a, 
SP505

Number of working days/shifts lost to sickness absence 
per employee.

days 7.92 8.75 7.75 7.59 Lower RED �
BV014 Percentage of early retirements (excluding ill-health 

retirements) as a percentage of the total workforce.
% 0.39 0.66 0.18 0.3 Lower RED �

BV015 Percentage of employees retiring on grounds of ill 
health as a percentage of the total workforce.

% 0.25 0.14 0.1 0.13 Lower RED �
BV016a Percentage of staff declaring that they meet the 

Disability Discrimination Act disability definition,
% 5.12 4.7 5.5 4.33 Higher RED �

BV017a Percentage of authority employees from minority ethnic 
communities as a percentage of the total workforce.

% 43.53 46.79 45 37.8 Higher GREEN �
CE047, 
SP510, 
THI035

% of telephones answered within the customer promise 
standard

% 69 68 77 Higher RED �
CE048, 
SP511, 
THI036

% of letters responded to within customer promise 
standard

% N/A 75.1 90 Higher RED
x

CE050, 
SP512, 
THI037

% of calls handled by the customer contact centre % N/A 42.7 45 Higher RED
x

CE053a, 
SP513, 
THI038

Percentage of complaints completed in time - Council as 
a whole - Stage 1

% 65 74 80 Higher RED �
SP501, 
THI031

Budget Performance £ -2,536,000 -7,576,000 0 Lower GREEN �

10 of 11Page 274



PI Ref No PI Description Meas. In Actual 
06/07

Actual 
07/08

Target 
07/08

Top 
Quartile 
06/07

Pref'd 
Outcm

Traffic 
Light

Actual 
Directio

n
SP503 Percentage of Gershon efficiency savings achieved % N/A 100 100 Higher GREEN

x
SP504 Percentage of residents agreeing that the Council 

"provides value for money for the council tax/pay"
% 37 41 42 Higher RED �

11 of 11Page 275



Page 276

This page is intentionally left blank



BV
PP

 A
pp

en
di

x 
5a

 - 
Va

ria
nc

e 
Ex

ce
ed

ed
 

 
PI

 R
ef

 N
o 

PI
 D

es
cr

ip
tio

n 
Ai

m
in

g 
Re

sp
on

sib
le

 
Of

fic
er

 
Ta

rg
et

 
07

/0
8 

Ac
tu

al
 

07
/0

8 
Va

ria
nc

e 
10

.1
0%

 
BV

07
8a

, 
SP

21
8 

Av
er
ag
e t

im
e f
or
 pr

oc
es
sin

g n
ew

 ho
us
ing

 be
ne
fit
 an

d c
ou
nc
il 

ta
x b

en
efi
t c
lai
ms

 (d
ay
s).

 
Lo
we

r 
Ma

ur
ee
n 
Mc

Ele
ne
y 

28
 

25
.1
8 

Ex
ce

ed
ed

 
An

nu
al 
Pe
rfo

rm
an
ce
:  
  T

he
 m

ea
su
re
s p

ut
 in
 p
lac

e l
as
t y

ea
r h

av
e c

on
tin
ue
d 
to
 im

pa
ct 
on
 im

pr
ov
em

en
t i
n p

er
for

ma
nc
e. 

10
.0

0%
 

BV
09

9c
i, 

CP
A0

23
b, 

PS
A0

12
 

Nu
mb

er
 of

 p
eo
ple

 sl
igh

tly
 in
jur

ed
 in
 ro

ad
 tr
aff

ic 
co
llis

ion
s. 

Lo
we

r 
He

at
he
r B

on
fie
ld 

88
0 

79
2 

Ex
ce

ed
ed

 

An
nu
al 
Pe
rfo

rm
an
ce
:  
  I
mp

ro
ve
me

nt
 be

tte
r t
ha
n 
ta
rg
et
 

67
4.

70
%

 
BV

09
9c

ii 
Pe
rce

nt
ag
e c

ha
ng
e i
n 
th
e n

um
be
r o

f p
eo
ple

 sl
igh

tly
 in
jur

ed
 in
 

ro
ad
 tr
aff

ic 
co
llis

ion
s s

inc
e t

he
 pr

ev
iou

s y
ea
r. 

Lo
we

r 
He

at
he
r B

on
fie
ld 

-1
.4
6 

-1
1.
31
 

Ex
ce

ed
ed

 
An

nu
al 
Pe
rfo

rm
an
ce
:  
  I
mp

ro
ve
me

nt
 be

tte
r t
ha
n 
ta
rg
et
 

78
.0

0%
 

BV
09

9c
iii 

Pe
rce

nt
ag
e c

ha
ng
e i
n 
th
e n

um
be
r o

f p
eo
ple

 sl
igh

tly
 in
jur

ed
 in
 

ro
ad
 tr
aff

ic 
co
llis

ion
s s

inc
e t

he
 1
99
4-
98
 av

er
ag
e. 

Lo
we

r 
He

at
he
r B

on
fie
ld 

-1
2.
67
 

-2
2.
55
 

Ex
ce

ed
ed

 
An

nu
al 
Pe
rfo

rm
an
ce
:  
  I
mp

ro
ve
me

nt
 be

tte
r t
ha
n 
ta
rg
et
 

13
.6

0%
 

BV
12

6, 
TH

I00
2 

Nu
mb

er
 of

 do
me

sti
c b

ur
gla

rie
s p

er
 1
,0
00
 ho

us
eh
old

s. 
Lo
we

r 
An

dy
 B
am

be
r 

18
.5
 

15
.9
8 

Ex
ce

ed
ed

 
An

nu
al 
Pe
rfo

rm
an
ce
:  
  T

he
 pa

rtn
er
sh
ip 
ha
s m

et
 an

d e
xc
ee
de
d i
ts 
Bu

rg
lar

y t
ar
ge
t. 
Th
e o

ut
tu
rn
 of

 1
5.
98
 pe

r 1
00
0 
ho
us
eh
old

 ag
ain

st 
ou
r t
ar
ge
t o

f 1
8.
5 
(1
3.
6%

 re
du
cti
on
) i
s a

 
sig

nif
ica

nt
 ac

hie
ve
me

nt
. F

ur
th
er
mo

re
, t
his

 ye
ar
's 
pe
rfo

rm
an
ce
 re

pr
es
en
t 5

.7
%
 re

du
cti
on
 fr
om

 la
st 
ye
ar
's 
ou
ttu

rn
. T

he
 Pa

rtn
er
sh
ip 
ha
ve
 w
or
ke
d 
ex
tre

me
ly 
ha
rd
 an

d d
ep
loy

ed
 an

 
ar
ra
y o

f t
ac
tic
s i
nc
lud

ing
 in
ve
sti
ng
 m

on
ey
 to

 ta
rg
et
 h
ar
de
n a

re
as
 w
hic

h 
ar
e i
de
nt
ifie

d a
s l
on
g 
te
rm

 cr
im
e h

ot
sp
ot
s, 
in 
pa
rti
cu
lar

 b
ur
gla

ry
 ho

tsp
ot
s a

nd
 pr

ov
idi
ng
 n
ec
es
sa
ry
 

se
cu
rit
y t

o v
uln

er
ab
le 
pr
op
er
tie
s. 
Th
e n

ew
 ac

tio
n p

lan
 w
ill 
co
nt
inu

e t
o b

uil
d 
up
on
 th

is 
ye
ar
's 
su
cc
es
s. 

18
.0

0%
 

BV
16

3, 
PA

FC
23

, 
XT

H0
15

 

Pe
rce

nt
ag
e o

f c
hil
dr
en
 lo
ok
ed
 af

te
r t
ha
t w

er
e a

do
pt
ed
 d
ur
ing

 
th
e y

ea
r. 

Hi
gh
er
 

Ka
mi
ni 
Ra

mb
ell
as
 

9 
10

.6
2 

Ex
ce

ed
ed

 

An
nu
al 
Pe
rfo

rm
an
ce
:  
  W

e h
av
e a

ch
iev

ed
 a 

pr
ov
isi
on
al 
pe
rfo

rm
an
ce
 of

 1
0.
62
%
 in
 th

e 0
7/
08
 re

po
rti
ng
 ye

ar
, w

hic
h 
ma

int
ain

s t
he
 tr
en
d o

f y
ea
r o

n y
ea
r i
mp

ro
ve
d p

er
for

ma
nc
e i
n 

th
is 
ar
ea
 fo

r t
he
 p
as
t t
hr
ee
 ye

ar
s, 
we

 h
av
e o

nc
e a

ga
in 
ex
ce
ed
ed
 ou

r s
et
 ta

rg
et 

of 
9.
0 
pe
rce

nt
. I
t s
ho
uld

 be
 n
ot
ed
 th

at
 th

e C
ou
nc
il h

as
 lim

ite
d c

on
tro

l o
ve
r t
he
 va

lue
 of

 th
is 

ind
ica

to
r f
or
 2 

re
as
on
s: 

fir
stl
y, 

th
e n

um
be
r o

f c
hil
dr
en
 in
 th

e c
oh
or
t i
s r

ela
tiv
ely

 sm
all
 so

 a 
sm

all
 ch

an
ge
 in
 th

e n
um

be
r o

f a
do
pt
ion

s h
as
 a 

sig
nif
ica

nt
 ef

fec
t o

n 
th
e p

er
ce
nt
ag
e;
 

se
co
nd
ly 
th
e n

um
be
r o

f a
do
pt
ion

s i
n 
an
y o

ne
 ye

ar
 de

pe
nd
s o

n 
th
e n

at
ur
e o

f c
hil
dr
en
 in
 th

e c
oh
or
t a

nd
 th

e n
um

be
r s

uit
ab
le 
for

 ad
op
tio
n,
 as

 w
ell
 as

 th
e s

up
ply

 of
 su

ita
ble

 
ad
op
ter

s. 
W
e w

ill 
alw

ay
s p

ur
su
e a

do
pt
ion

 w
he
re
 th

is 
is 
in 
th
e b

es
t i
nt
er
es
ts 
of 

th
e c

hil
d 
an
d 
aim

 to
 m

ax
im
ise

 th
e s

up
ply

 of
 su

ita
ble

 ad
op
te
rs 

th
ro
ug
h o

ur
 su

cc
es
sfu

l r
ec
ru
itm

en
t 

an
d 
su
pp
or
t s
tra

te
gy
. 

22
.5

0%
 

BV
21

6b
 

Nu
mb

er
 of

 si
te
s f
or
 w
hic

h 
su
ffic

ien
t d

et
ail
ed
 in
for

ma
tio
n 
is 

av
ail
ab
le 
to
 d
ec
ide

 w
he
th
er
 re

me
dia

tio
n 
of 

th
e l
an
d 
is 

ne
ce
ss
ar
y, 

as
 a 

pe
rce

nt
ag
e o

f a
ll ‘
sit
es
 of

 po
te
nt
ial
 co

nc
er
n’.
 

Hi
gh
er
 

Br
ya
n J

on
es
 

8.
98
 

11
 

Ex
ce

ed
ed

 

An
nu
al 
Pe
rfo

rm
an
ce
:  
  T

his
 si
mp

ly 
re
fle
cts

 th
e v

olu
me

 of
 pl
an
nin

g 
ap
pli
ca
tio
ns
 re

ce
ive

d,
 re

vie
we

d 
an
d f

ou
nd
 in
 n
ee
d o

f r
em

ed
iat
ion

. T
he
 to

ta
l in

clu
de
s t
he
 n
um

be
r o

f s
ite
s 

dis
ch
ar
ge
d.
 

Page 277



PI
 R

ef
 N

o 
PI

 D
es

cr
ip

tio
n 

Ai
m

in
g 

Re
sp

on
sib

le
 

Of
fic

er
 

Ta
rg

et
 

07
/0

8 
Ac

tu
al

 
07

/0
8 

Va
ria

nc
e 

11
.1

0%
 

BV
21

7 
Pe
rce

nt
ag
e o

f p
oll
ut
ion

 co
nt
ro
l im

pr
ov
em

en
ts 
to
 ex

ist
ing

 
ins

ta
lla
tio

ns
 co

mp
let
ed
 on

 ti
me

 
Hi
gh
er
 

Br
ya
n J

on
es
 

90
 

10
0 

Ex
ce

ed
ed

 
An

nu
al 
Pe
rfo

rm
an
ce
:  
   
Th
is 
is 
a n

ew
 B
VP
I i
nt
ro
du
ce
d f

or
 2
00
5/
06
. I
n 
ad
dit
ion

 to
 ch

an
ge
s i
n 
re
gu
lat
ion

 an
d g

uid
an
ce
 w
hic

h 
ha
s e

xc
lud

ed
 ce

rta
in 
sit
es
 (t
ha
t w

er
e o

rig
ina

lly
 

inc
lud

ed
 in
 th

e E
nv
iro

nm
en
ta
l H

ea
lth
 te

am
's 
wo

rk
 pr

og
ra
mm

e)
, t
he
 C
ou
nc
il h

as
 pr

oa
cti
ve
ly 
ma

na
ge
d t

he
 po

llu
tio
n 
co
nt
ro
l im

pr
ov
em

en
ts 
(P
PC

) c
om

pli
an
cy
 w
or
k -

 co
mb

ini
ng
 

ins
pe
cti
on
 an

d e
nfo

rce
me

nt
 by

 of
fic
er
s w

ith
 th

e u
se
 of

 co
ns
ult
an
ts 
to
 en

su
re
 al
l s
ite
s h

av
e h

ad
 PP

C 
ins

ta
lla
tio
ns
 ca

rri
ed
 ou

t o
n 
tim

e. 

25
.0

0%
 

BV
21

9b
 

Pe
rce

nt
ag
e o

f c
on
se
rv
at
ion

 ar
ea
s i
n 
th
e l
oc
al 
au
th
or
ity
 ar

ea
 

wi
th
 an

 u
p-
to
 da

te
 ch

ar
ac
ter

 ap
pr
ais

al 
Hi
gh
er
 

Em
ma

 Pe
te
rs 

80
 

10
0 

Ex
ce

ed
ed

 
An

nu
al 
Pe
rfo

rm
an
ce
:  
  U

p-
to
 da

te
 ch

ar
ac
te
r a

pp
ra
isa

ls 
ha
ve
 n
ow

 be
en
 w
rit
te
n 
for

 al
l e
xis

tin
g 
Co

ns
er
va
tio
n 
Ar
ea
s. 
Th
e p

ro
gr
am

me
 h
as
 be

en
 co

mp
let
ed
 ah

ea
d o

f t
im
e t

o f
ac
ilit
at
e 

pr
op
os
als

 fo
r a

 n
um

be
r o

f n
ew

 C
on
se
rv
at
ion

 A
re
as
 an

d e
xte

ns
ion

s t
o e

xis
tin
g b

ou
nd
ar
ies

. 

26
.9

0%
 

BV
22

1b
 

Pe
rce

nt
ag
e o

f y
ou
ng
 pe

op
le 
ag
ed
 1
3-
19
 g
ain

ing
 an

 
ac
cre

dit
ed
 ou

tco
me

 co
mp

ar
ed
 to

 th
e p

er
ce
nt
ag
e o

f y
ou
ng
 

pe
op
le 
in 
th
e l
oc
al 
au
th
or
ity
 ar

ea
. 

Hi
gh
er
 

Ma
ry
 D
ur
kin

 
26

 
33

 
Ex

ce
ed

ed
 

An
nu
al 
Pe
rfo

rm
an
ce
:  
  2

00
7/
08

: T
he
 re

po
rte

d 
am

ou
nt
 of

 3
3%

 of
 th

e n
um

be
r o

f p
ar
tic
ipa

nt
s e

xc
ee
ds
 th

e t
ar
ge
t f
or
 0
7/
08
 (2

6%
) 2

00
6/
07
: F

oll
ow

ing
 ou

r s
am

pli
ng
 an

d 
th
e 

re
po
rte

d p
ro
ble

ms
 w
ith
 th

e Y
ou
th
Ba
se
 M
IS
 sy

ste
m,

 w
e h

av
e s

om
e c

on
ce
rn
s a

bo
ut
 th

e d
at
a q

ua
lity

 an
d a

s a
gr
ee
d w

e w
ill 
be
 se

ek
ing

 to
 ad

dr
es
s t
his

 ov
er
 th

e n
ex
t t
hr
ee
 w
ee
ks
 

pr
ior

 to
 th

e p
rin

tin
g 
of 

th
e B

VP
P r

ep
or
t. 

13
2.

00
%

 
BV

22
2a

 
Pe
rce

nt
ag
e o

f in
te
gr
at
ed
 ea

rly
 ed

uc
at
ion

 an
d c

hil
dc
ar
e 

se
tti
ng
s f
un
de
d o

r p
ar
t-f
un
de
d 
by
 th

e l
oc
al 
au
th
or
ity
 w
ith
 a 

qu
ali
fic
at
ion

 at
 Le

ve
l 4
 or

 ab
ov
e. 

Hi
gh
er
 

He
len

 Je
nn
er
 

25
 

58
 

Ex
ce

ed
ed

 

An
nu
al 
Pe
rfo

rm
an
ce
:  
  W

e a
ch
iev

ed
 5
8%

 w
ith
 re

ga
rd
s t
o d

eli
ve
ry
 of

 im
pr
ov
ed
 ou

tco
me

s f
or
 ch

ild
re
n 
th
ro
ug
h s

kil
led

 an
d 
we

ll-
qu
ali
fie
d 
lea

de
rsh

ip 
of 

hig
h 
qu
ali
ty
 in
te
gr
at
ed
 ea

rly
 

ed
uc
at
ion

 an
d c

hil
dc
ar
e. 

We
 ha

ve
 ex

ce
ed
ed
 ou

r t
ar
ge
t o

f 2
5%

. 
43

.8
0%

 
BV

22
3 

Pe
rce

nt
ag
e o

f t
he
 lo
ca
l a
ut
ho
rit
y p

rin
cip

al 
ro
ad
 n
et
wo

rk
 

wh
er
e s

tru
ctu

ra
l m

ain
te
na
nc
e s

ho
uld

 b
e c

on
sid

er
ed
. 

Lo
we

r 
He

at
he
r B

on
fie
ld 

16
 

9 
Ex

ce
ed

ed
 

An
nu
al 
Pe
rfo

rm
an
ce
:  
  T

he
 20

07
/0
8 
fig
ur
es
 h
av
e r

ec
en
tly
 be

en
 re

lea
se
d b

y L
B 
of 

Ha
mm

er
sm

ith
 &
 Fu

lha
m 

- a
t o

nly
 1
 de

cim
al 
pla

ce
. T

he
 S
er
vic

e i
s c

ur
re
nt
ly 
pr
ep
ar
ing

 th
e B

VP
I 

re
tu
rn
s p

ap
er
wo

rk
. 

50
.0

0%
 

BV
22

4a
 

Pe
rce

nt
ag
e o

f t
he
 n
on
-p
rin

cip
al 
cla

ss
ifie

d r
oa
d n

et
wo

rk
 

wh
er
e m

ain
te
na
nc
e s

ho
uld

 be
 co

ns
ide

re
d.
 

Lo
we

r 
He

at
he
r B

on
fie
ld 

24
 

12
 

Ex
ce

ed
ed

 
An

nu
al 
Pe
rfo

rm
an
ce
:  
  T

he
 20

07
/0
8 
fig
ur
es
 h
av
e r

ec
en
tly
 be

en
 re

lea
se
d b

y L
B 
of 

Ha
mm

er
sm

ith
 &
 Fu

lha
m 

- a
t o

nly
 1
 de

cim
al 
pla

ce
. T

he
 S
er
vic

e i
s c

ur
re
nt
ly 
pr
ep
ar
ing

 th
e B

VP
I 

re
tu
rn
s p

ap
er
wo

rk
. 

66
.8

0%
 

CP
AC

03
b 

To
ta
l n
um

be
r o

f e
lec

tro
nic

 w
or
ks
ta
tio
ns
 av

ail
ab
le 
to
 u
se
rs 

pe
r 1

0,
00
0 
po
pu
lat
ion

 
Hi
gh
er
 

Ju
dit
h 
St
 Jo

hn
 

10
 

16
.6
8 

Ex
ce

ed
ed

 
An

nu
al 
Pe
rfo

rm
an
ce
:  
  T

he
 C
ou
nc
il h

as
 ex

ce
ed
ed
 th

e s
ta
nd
ar
d i
n 
20
05
/0
6,
 in
cre

as
ing

 by
 tw

o t
o a

 to
ta
l o
f 1

0 
co
mp

ut
er
s p

er
 10

,0
00
 re

sid
en
ts 
wi
th
 th

e o
pe
nin

g o
f t
he
 

W
hit
ec
ha
pe
l a
nd
 C
an
ar
y W

ha
rf 
Id
ea
 S
to
re
s i
n 
20
05

/0
6.
 

55
.3

0%
 

CP
AC

11
b 

Pu
bli
c l
ibr

ar
y s

er
vic

e s
ta
nd
ar
d o

n s
to
ck
 - 
An

nu
al 
ite
ms

 ad
de
d 

th
ro
ug
h p

ur
ch
as
es
 pe

r 1
,0
00
 po

pu
lat
ion

 
Hi
gh
er
 

Ju
dit
h 
St
 Jo

hn
 

23
3 

36
1.
77
 

Ex
ce

ed
ed

 
An

nu
al 
Pe
rfo

rm
an
ce
:  
   
Th
e C

ou
nc
il h

as
 ac

hie
ve
d a

nd
 ex

ce
ed
ed
 it
s 2

00
5/
06
 ta

rg
et
. 

Page 278



PI
 R

ef
 N

o 
PI

 D
es

cr
ip

tio
n 

Ai
m

in
g 

Re
sp

on
sib

le
 

Of
fic

er
 

Ta
rg

et
 

07
/0

8 
Ac

tu
al

 
07

/0
8 

Va
ria

nc
e 

21
.1

0%
 

CP
AC

11
c 

Tim
e t

ak
en
 to

 re
ple

nis
h 
th
e l
en
din

g 
sto

ck
 on

 op
en
 ac

ce
ss
 or

 
av
ail
ab
le 
loa

n 
Lo
we

r 
Ju
dit
h 
St
 Jo

hn
 

6.
1 

4.
81
 

Ex
ce

ed
ed

 
An

nu
al 
Pe
rfo

rm
an
ce
:  
  T

his
 el
em

en
t o

f t
he
 PL

SS
9 
is 
aff

ec
ted

 by
 im

pr
ov
em

en
ts 
to
 bo

ok
 st
oc
k o

ve
r a

cq
uis

itio
ns
. T

he
 h
igh

er
 pr

op
or
tio
n o

f r
em

ov
al 
of 

old
 st
oc
k t

o i
mp

ro
ve
 th

e 
sto

ck
 on

 sh
elv

es
, a

ga
ins

t a
 h
igh

 le
ve
l o
f s
to
ck
 ac

qu
isi
tio
ns
 fo

r t
he
 n
ew

 Id
ea
 S
to
re
s l
au
nc
he
d 
in 
th
e y

ea
r, 
ha
s m

ea
nt
 th

at 
th
e C

ou
nc
il f
ail
ed
 to

 ac
hie

ve
 th

e s
ta
nd
ar
d 
th
is 
ye
ar
, 

de
sp
ite
 m

ee
tin
g i
t i
n 
20
04

/0
5.
 

15
.3

0%
 

LA
A1

03
a, 

LP
SA

00
2b

(i),
 

SP
10

2a
 

Pe
rce

pt
ion

s o
f a

nt
iso

cia
l b
eh
av
iou

r: 
pe
rce

nt
ag
e o

f p
op
ula

tio
n 

wh
o v

iew
 as

 a 
“v
er
y b

ig 
pr
ob
lem

” t
he
 fo

llo
wi
ng
 is
su
e:
 - 

Yo
ut
hs
 h
an
gin

g 
ar
ou
nd
 on

 th
e s

tre
et
s 

Lo
we

r 
An

dy
 B
am

be
r 

38
 

32
.2
 

Ex
ce

ed
ed

 

An
nu
al 
Pe
rfo

rm
an
ce
:  
  W

e h
av
e m

et
 an

d e
xc
ee
de
d 
th
e t

ar
ge
t. 

32
.3

0%
 

LA
A1

03
b, 

LP
SA

00
2b

(ii)
, 

SP
10

2b
 

Pe
rce

pt
ion

s o
f a

nt
iso

cia
l b
eh
av
iou

r: 
pe
rce

nt
ag
e o

f p
op
ula

tio
n 

wh
o v

iew
 as

 a 
“v
er
y b

ig 
pr
ob
lem

” t
he
 fo

llo
wi
ng
 is
su
e:
 - 

Gr
aff

iti 
an
d o

th
er
 de

lib
er
at
e d

am
ag
e t

o p
ro
pe
rty

 or
 ve

hic
les

 
Lo
we

r 
An

dy
 B
am

be
r 

35
 

23
.7
 

Ex
ce

ed
ed

 

An
nu
al 
Pe
rfo

rm
an
ce
:  
  W

e h
av
e m

et
 an

d e
xc
ee
de
d 
th
e t

ar
ge
t. 

21
.5

0%
 

LA
A1

03
c, 

LP
SA

00
2b

(iii
), 

SP
10

2c
 

Pe
rce

pt
ion

s o
f a

nt
iso

cia
l b
eh
av
iou

r: 
pe
rce

nt
ag
e o

f p
op
ula

tio
n 

wh
o v

iew
 as

 a 
“v
er
y b

ig 
pr
ob
lem

” t
he
 fo

llo
wi
ng
 is
su
e:
 - 

pe
op
le 
us
ing

 or
 d
ea
lin
g d

ru
gs
 

Lo
we

r 
An

dy
 B
am

be
r 

41
 

32
.2
 

Ex
ce

ed
ed

 

An
nu
al 
Pe
rfo

rm
an
ce
:  
  W

e h
av
e m

et
 th

e t
ar
ge
t. 

33
.5

0%
 

LA
A1

03
d, 

LP
SA

00
2b

(v)
, 

SP
10

2d
 

Pe
rce

pt
ion

s o
f a

nt
iso

cia
l b
eh
av
iou

r: 
pe
rce

nt
ag
e o

f p
op
ula

tio
n 

wh
o v

iew
 as

 a 
“v
er
y b

ig 
pr
ob
lem

” t
he
 fo

llo
wi
ng
 is
su
e:
 - 

pe
op
le 
be
ing

 dr
un
k o

r r
ow

dy
 in
 p
ub
lic
 pl
ac
es
 

Lo
we

r 
An

dy
 B
am

be
r 

23
 

15
.3
 

Ex
ce

ed
ed

 

An
nu
al 
Pe
rfo

rm
an
ce
:  
  W

e h
av
e m

et
 an

d e
xc
ee
d t

he
 ta

rg
et
. 

41
.3

0%
 

LA
A1

04
, 

LP
SA

01
0a

, 
SP

10
4, 

TH
I00

2, 
XC

E0
17

 

In
cre

as
ed
 n
um

be
r o

f u
nd
er
 18

s a
cc
es
sin

g d
ru
g 
tre

at
me

nt
 

Hi
gh
er
 

An
dy
 B
am

be
r 

73
2 

10
34

 
Ex

ce
ed

ed
 

An
nu
al 
Pe
rfo

rm
an
ce
:  
  H

av
ing

 ex
ce
ed
ed
 it
s t
ar
ge
ts 
for

 20
06
/0
7 
th
e D

AA
T h

as
 se

t n
ew

, c
ha
lle
ng
ing

 ye
t a

ch
iev

ab
le 
ta
rg
et
s w

hic
h d

em
on
str

at
e a

 cl
ea
r y

ea
r o

n y
ea
r i
mp

ro
ve
me

nt
. 

Th
is 
ex
ce
ss
 ca

n b
e e

xp
lai
ne
d b

y:
 • 
Ro

bu
st 
pe
rfo

rm
an
ce
 m

an
ag
em

en
t f
ro
m 

th
e D

AA
T w

hic
h 
re
qu
ire

s a
ge
nc
ies

 to
 pr

ov
ide

 Ti
er
 2
 in
for

ma
tio
n o

n a
 m

on
th
ly 
ba
sis

 an
d 
Tie

r 3
 an

d 4
 

on
 a 

qu
ar
ter

ly 
ba
sis

. •
 Im

pr
ov
ed
 m

an
ag
em

en
t i
n L

ife
lin
e a

nd
 be

tte
r i
nt
eg
ra
tio
n o

f L
ife
lin
e i
nt
o t

he
 w
ide

r C
hil
dr
en
 an

d 
Yo
un
g 
Pe
op
le'
s s

er
vic

es
 • 
In
cre

as
ed
 em

ph
as
is 
on
 ou

tre
ac
h.
 

LA
A1

09
 

Re
du
ce
 th

e p
ro
po
rti
on
 of

 ad
ult
 an

d y
ou
ng
 of

fen
de
rs 

an
d 

pr
oli
fic
 an

d o
th
er
 pr

ior
ity
 of

fen
de
rs 

wh
o r

eo
ffe

nd
: r
ed
uc
ed
 

pe
rce

nt
ag
e o

f D
ru
g I

nt
er
ve
nt
ion

 Pr
og
ra
mm

e c
lie
nt
s 

re
off

en
din

g 

Lo
we

r 
An

dy
 B
am

be
r 

20
 

13
 

35
.0

0%
 

Ex
ce

ed
ed

 

An
nu
al 
Pe
rfo

rm
an
ce
: T

he
 ta

rg
et
 fo

r t
his

 in
dic

at
or
 h
as
 b
ee
n m

et
.  

 

Page 279



PI
 R

ef
 N

o 
PI

 D
es

cr
ip

tio
n 

Ai
m

in
g 

Re
sp

on
sib

le
 

Of
fic

er
 

Ta
rg

et
 

07
/0

8 
Ac

tu
al

 
07

/0
8 

Va
ria

nc
e 

LA
A1

11
 

Re
du
ce
 th

e p
ro
po
rti
on
 of

 ad
ult
 an

d y
ou
ng
 of

fen
de
rs 

an
d 

pr
oli
fic
 an

d o
th
er
 pr

ior
ity
 of

fen
de
rs 

wh
o r

eo
ffe

nd
: i
nc
re
as
ed
 

nu
mb

er
 of

 u
ne
mp

loy
ed
 of

fen
de
rs 

ob
ta
ini
ng
 an

d k
ee
pin

g 
em

plo
ym

en
t f
or
 at

 le
as
t f
ou
r w

ee
ks
 

Hi
gh
er
 

An
dy
 B
am

be
r 

10
 

98
 

88
0.

00
%

 
Ex

ce
ed

ed
 

An
nu
al 
Pe
rfo

rm
an
ce
: N

o C
om

me
nt

 
43

.9
0%

 
LA

A1
12

d 
Re

du
ce
 th

e p
ro
po
rti
on
 of

 ad
ult
 an

d y
ou
ng
 of

fen
de
rs 

an
d 

pr
oli
fic
 an

d o
th
er
 pr

ior
ity
 of

fen
de
rs 

wh
o r

eo
ffe

nd
: r
ed
uc
e t

he
 

lev
el 
of 

yo
ut
h 
re
off

en
din

g 
(b
y 5

%
 in
 20

08
/0
9 
co
mp

ar
ed
 to

 
ba
se
lin
e)
 (d

) c
us
to
dia

l p
en
alt
ies

 

Lo
we

r 
Ma

ry
 D
ur
kin

 
71

.2
5 

40
 

Ex
ce

ed
ed

 

An
nu
al 
Pe
rfo

rm
an
ce
:  
  T

he
 re

cid
ivi
sm

 fig
ur
es
 (c

us
to
dia

l s
en
te
nc
es
) f
or
 th

e y
ea
r e

nd
ing

 20
07

/0
8 
ex
ce
ed
ed
 th

e s
et
 ta

rg
et 

of 
71

.2
5 
pe
rce

nt
 fo

r t
he
 sa

me
 pe

rio
d.
 

20
.0

0%
 

LA
A1

25
 

Re
du
cti
on
 in
 ag

gr
eg
at
ed
 sc

or
e f
or
 pe

rce
pt
ion

 of
 7
 st
ra
nd
s o

f 
AS

B 
as
 m

ea
su
re
d i
n 
Be
st 
Va
lue

 G
en
er
al 
Su

rv
ey
 

Hi
gh
er
 

An
dy
 B
am

be
r 

41
 

49
.2
 

Ex
ce

ed
ed

 
An

nu
al 
Pe
rfo

rm
an
ce
:  
  B

as
ed
 on

 a 
re
ce
nt
 su

rv
ey
 w
e h

av
e m

iss
ed
 th

e t
ar
ge
t o

n 
th
is 
ind

ica
to
r h

ow
ev
er
, w

e h
av
e m

et
 ta

rg
et
s f
or
 th

e m
ajo

rit
y o

f A
SB

 in
dic

at
or
s. 

10
20

.0
0%

 
LA

A2
04

 
Pe
rce

nt
ag
e i
nc
re
as
e i
n 
th
e n

um
be
r o

f t
hir

d s
ec
to
r 

or
ga
nis

at
ion

s t
ha
t m

ee
t a

gr
ee
d 
qu
ali
ty
 st
an
da
rd
s 

Hi
gh
er
 

Sh
az
ia 
Hu

ss
ain

 
50

 
56
0 

Ex
ce

ed
ed

 
An

nu
al 
Pe
rfo

rm
an
ce
:  
  T

he
 %

 in
cre

as
e i
s m

uc
h 
hig

he
r t
ha
n 
an
tic
ipa

te
d 
be
ca
us
e t

he
 b
as
eli
ne
 fi
gu
re
 w
as
 lo
we

r t
ha
n 
ex
pe
cte

d.
 

10
.0

0%
 

LA
A3

04
 

Nu
mb

er
 of

 n
ew

 or
 re

de
ve
lop

ed
 pr

im
ar
y c

ar
e f

ac
ilit
ies

 
Hi
gh
er
 

Alw
en
 W

illi
am

s (
PC

T)
 

10
 

11
 

Ex
ce

ed
ed

 

An
nu
al 
Pe
rfo

rm
an
ce
:  
  N

o c
om

me
nt
 pr

ov
ide

d 
47

.1
0%

 
LA

A4
03

, 
LP

SA
00

5, 
SP

20
1 

In
cre

as
ed
 su

pp
ly 
of 

aff
or
da
ble

 h
om

es
 - 
Nu

mb
er
 of

 em
pt
y 

ho
me

s b
ro
ug
ht
 b
ac
k i
nt
o u

se
 

Hi
gh
er
 

Ma
ur
ee
n 
Mc

Ele
ne
y 

17
 

25
 

Ex
ce

ed
ed

 

An
nu
al 
Pe
rfo

rm
an
ce
:  
  I
nc
re
as
ed
 fo

cu
s a

nd
 ex

tra
 re

so
ur
ce
s h

av
e r

es
ult
ed
 in
 th

is 
ind

ica
to
r e

xc
ee
din

g 
ta
rg
et
. 

33
.3

0%
 

LA
A5

06
, 

SP
30

5 
W
or
th
 of

 co
nt
ra
cts

 se
cu
re
d b

y l
oc
al 
bu
sin

es
se
s t
hr
ou
gh
 th

e 
Ca

na
ry
 W

ha
rf 
Lo
ca
l B

us
ine

ss
 Li
ais

on
 O
ffi
ce
 (p

riv
at
e s

ec
to
r 

su
pp
ly 
ch
ain

) 
Hi
gh
er
 

Em
ma

 Pe
te
rs 

6,
00
0,
00
0 

8,
00
0,
00
0 

Ex
ce

ed
ed

 

An
nu
al 
Pe
rfo

rm
an
ce
:  
  £

8m
 w
or
th
 of

 co
nt
ra
cts

 h
av
e b

ee
n s

ec
ur
ed
 by

 TH
 co

mp
an
ies

 th
ro
ug
h 
th
is 
ini
tia
tiv
e 

36
0.

00
%

 
LA

A5
07

, 
SP

30
4, 

TH
I01

6 

Nu
mb

er
 of

 b
us
ine

ss
es
 / 
so
cia

l e
nt
er
pr
ise

s a
ss
ist
ed
 to

 
im
pr
ov
e t

he
ir 
pe
rfo

rm
an
ce
 

Hi
gh
er
 

Ja
ck
ie 
Od

un
oy
e 

40
 

18
4 

Ex
ce

ed
ed

 

An
nu
al 
Pe
rfo

rm
an
ce
:  
  A

t t
he
 en

d o
f t
his

 18
 m

on
th
 pr

og
ra
mm

e 1
36
 co

mp
an
ies

 in
 th

e W
es
t o

f t
he
 B
or
ou
gh
 h
av
e b

ee
n r

eg
ist
er
ed
 on

 th
e d

at
ab
as
e. 

11
22
 co

mp
an
ies

 h
av
e b

ee
n 

co
nt
ac
te
d.
 32

6 
co
mp

an
ies

 h
av
e b

ee
n r

ec
om

me
nd
ed
 to

 bu
ye
rs,

 16
 as

sis
te
d w

ith
 m

ar
ke
tin
g,
 3
94
 pr

ov
ide

d w
ith

 tr
ain

ing
 op

po
rtu

nit
ies

. T
he
 p
ro
gr
am

me
 h
as
 no

w 
be
en
 ab

so
rb
ed
 in
to
 

th
e E

as
t L

on
do
n B

us
ine

ss
 Pl
ac
e s

up
ply

 ch
ain

 
10

0.
00

%
 

LA
A5

12
 

De
ve
lop

 an
d i
mp

lem
en
t a

 w
or
k p

lac
em

en
t m

od
el 
for

 IB
 

cli
en
ts 
an
d 
Lo
ne
 Pa

re
nt
s 

Hi
gh
er
 

Em
ma

 Pe
te
rs 

10
 

20
 

Ex
ce

ed
ed

 

An
nu
al 
Pe
rfo

rm
an
ce
:  
  N

o c
om

me
nt
 pr

ov
ide

d 

Page 280



PI
 R

ef
 N

o 
PI

 D
es

cr
ip

tio
n 

Ai
m

in
g 

Re
sp

on
sib

le
 

Of
fic

er
 

Ta
rg

et
 

07
/0

8 
Ac

tu
al

 
07

/0
8 

Va
ria

nc
e 

30
.0

0%
 

LA
A5

13
 

Nu
mb

er
 of

 em
plo

ye
r a

cti
vit
ies

 to
 in
cre

as
e a

sp
ira

tio
n 
an
d 

inf
or
ma

tio
n a

bo
ut
 jo

b o
pp
or
tu
nit
ies

 in
 th

e l
ab
ou
r m

ar
ke
t f
or
 

yo
un
g p

eo
ple

 
Hi
gh
er
 

Em
ma

 Pe
te
rs 

10
 

13
 

Ex
ce

ed
ed

 

An
nu
al 
Pe
rfo

rm
an
ce
:  
  F
ur
th
er
 te

ac
hin

g a
ss
ist
an
t p

ro
gr
am

me
 co

mp
let
ed
, 2

 pr
og
ra
mm

es
 fo

r y
ou
ng
 pe

op
le 
wi
th
 C
re
dit
 S
uis

se
 an

d o
pe
n d

ay
s f
or
 w
om

en
 in
 co

ns
tru

cti
on
 as

 w
ell
 as

 
co
nt
inu

ed
 co

ns
tru

cti
on
 op

en
 da

ys
 to

 pr
om

ot
e O

lym
pic

 re
lat
ed
 em

plo
ym

en
t 

24
.2

0%
 

LA
A5

14
 

Nu
mb

er
 of

 lo
ca
l jo

b s
ee
ke
rs 

as
sis

te
d t

o s
ec
ur
e e

mp
loy

me
nt
 

th
ro
ug
h 
Ea
rn
 to

 Le
ar
n p

ro
gr
am

me
s 

Hi
gh
er
 

Em
ma

 Pe
te
rs 

12
0 

14
9 

Ex
ce

ed
ed

 
An

nu
al 
Pe
rfo

rm
an
ce
:  
  A

t e
nd
 of

 ye
ar
 1
49
 re

sid
en
ts 
ha
ve
 be

en
 as

sis
ted

 in
to
 su

sta
ina

ble
 em

plo
ym

en
t t
hr
ou
gh
 th

e E
ar
n a

s Y
ou
 Le

ar
n p

ro
gr
am

me
, o

ne
 of

 th
e t

ra
ns
itio

na
l 

pr
og
ra
mm

es
 of

fer
ed
 by

 S
kil
lsm

at
ch
. 

16
.4

0%
 

LA
A6

07
, 

SP
20

8 
Pe
rce

nt
ag
e o

f p
rim

ar
y s

ch
oo
l p
up
ils
 h
av
ing

 2
 h
ou
rs+

 PE
 pe

r 
we

ek
 

Hi
gh
er
 

He
len

 S
pe
dd
ing

 
80

 
93

.1
 

Ex
ce

ed
ed

 
An

nu
al 
Pe
rfo

rm
an
ce
:  
  9

3.
1%

 of
 pr

im
ar
y s

ch
oo
l p
up
ils
 ac

hie
ve
d 2

 ho
ur
s+

 PE
 pe

r w
ee
k. 

W
e a

ch
iev

ed
 th

is 
ta
rg
et
 of

 8
0%

. 
12

.4
0%

 
LA

AP
10

3b
 

Ta
ke
 up

 of
 yo

ut
h 
wo

rk
 (b

) n
um

be
r o

f 1
3-
19
 ye

ar
 ol
ds
 

re
gu
lar

ly 
pa
rti
cip

at
ing

 (r
ela

te
d 
to
 B
VP
I 2

21
 b 

an
d 
a p

ro
xy
 fo

r 
LA
A 
10
3 
a,b

,c 
& 
d)
 

Hi
gh
er
 

Ma
ry
 D
ur
kin

 
35
58

 
40
00

 
Ex

ce
ed

ed
 

An
nu
al 
Pe
rfo

rm
an
ce
:  
  P

ro
vis

ion
al 
da
ta
 of

 4
00
0 
ha
s b

ee
n 
re
co
rd
ed
 fo

r t
he
 ye

ar
 en

din
g 0

7/
08

; t
he
 fi
na
l o
ut
 tu

rn
 re

su
lts
 w
ou
ld 
be
 co

nf
irm

ed
 by

 th
e e

nd
 of

 A
pr
il 0

8 
on
ce
 th

e o
th
er
 

re
lat
ed
 PI

s h
av
e b

ee
n u

pd
at
ed
 (i
.e.

 B
VP
I 2

21
a a

nd
 B
VP
I 2

21
b)
. T

his
 re

su
lt 
ex
ce
ed
s t
he
 an

nu
al 
ta
rg
et
 of

 6
0%

 of
 C
on
ta
cts

. 

63
.8

0%
 

LA
AP

60
5 

Re
co
rd
ed
 u
se
rs 

of 
lei
su
re
 ce

nt
re
s u

nd
er
 th

e a
ge
 of

 19
 

Hi
gh
er
 

Pa
ul 
Ma

rti
nd
ill 

16
42
6 

26
,9
08
 

Ex
ce

ed
ed

 

An
nu
al 
Pe
rfo

rm
an
ce
:  
  N

o c
om

me
nt
 pr

ov
ide

d 
27

.0
0%

 
LA

AS
10

2 
Do

me
sti
c v

iol
en
ce
 sa

nc
tio
ne
d d

et
ec
tio
n r

at
e 

Hi
gh
er
 

An
dy
 B
am

be
r 

37
 

47
 

Ex
ce

ed
ed

 
An

nu
al 
Pe
rfo

rm
an
ce
:  
  T

he
 fin

al 
ou
t t
ur
n r

es
ult
s f
or
 th

is 
ind

ica
to
r w

ill 
be
 av

ail
ab
le 
at
 th

e e
nd
 of

 M
ay
. H

ow
ev
er
, t
he
 pe

rio
d e

nd
ing

 m
ar
ch
 0
8 
fig
ur
e h

as
 be

en
 u
se
d a

s a
 pr

ov
isi
on
al 

ou
t t
ur
n f

igu
re
 u
nt
il t
he
 fi
na
l fi
gu
re
s a

re
 re

ad
y. 

It 
is 
no
t p

os
sib

le 
to
 w
or
k o

ut
 an

 av
er
ag
e a

s i
nf
or
ma

tio
n 
is 
mi
ss
ing

 fo
r t
he
 p
er
iod

 en
din

g 
No

v 0
7.
 

13
.0

0%
 

LA
AS

10
5 

No
n-
ac
cid

en
ta
l s
ec
on
da
ry
 ve

hic
le 
fir
es
 (B

V2
06
iv)

 
Lo
we

r 
An

dy
 B
am

be
r 

0.
23
 

0.
2 

Ex
ce

ed
ed

 
An

nu
al 
Pe
rfo

rm
an
ce
:  
  W

e h
av
e s

uc
ce
ss
fu
lly
 ex

ce
ed
ed
 th

e t
ar
ge
t f
or
 th

is 
ye
ar
. T

he
 p
ar
tn
er
sh
ip 
ha
ve
 se

t a
 st
re
tch

ing
 ta

rg
et
 on

 th
is 
ind

ica
to
r a

nd
 h
av
e d

eli
ve
re
d 
. T

he
 w
or
k h

as
 

be
en
 le
d b

y t
he
 B
or
ou
gh
's 
Fir
e S

er
vic

e i
n p

ar
tn
er
sh
ip 
wi
th
 a 

ra
ng
e o

f o
th
er
 ag

en
cie

s. 
Th
e p

ar
tn
er
sh
ip 
is 
co
mm

itt
ed
 is
 m

ain
ta
ini
ng
 th

is 
ac
hie

ve
me

nt
 an

d 
ha
ve
 ad

jus
ted

 fu
tu
re
 

ta
rg
et
s a

cc
or
din

gly
. 

10
1.

10
%

 
LA

AS
20

1b
 

Nu
mb

er
 of

 re
sid

en
ts 
co
nt
rib

ut
ing

 to
 LA

P e
ve
nt
s 

Hi
gh
er
 

Sh
az
ia 
Hu

ss
ain

 
47
5 

95
5 

Ex
ce

ed
ed

 

An
nu
al 
Pe
rfo

rm
an
ce
:  
  N

o c
om

me
nt
 pr

ov
ide

d 
LA

AS
20

2b
 

Pe
rce

nt
ag
e i
nc
re
as
e i
n 
th
e n

um
be
r o

f r
es
ide

nt
s f
ro
m 

Hi
gh
er
 

Sh
az
ia 
Hu

ss
ain

 
5 

17
2 

33
40

.0
0%

 

Page 281



PI
 R

ef
 N

o 
PI

 D
es

cr
ip

tio
n 

Ai
m

in
g 

Re
sp

on
sib

le
 

Of
fic

er
 

Ta
rg

et
 

07
/0

8 
Ac

tu
al

 
07

/0
8 

Va
ria

nc
e 

 
co
mm

un
itie

s s
om

et
im
es
 de

fin
ed
 as

 h
ar
d 
to
 re

ac
h (

to
 be

 
de
fin
ed
 fo

r e
ac
h 
LA
P a

re
a)
 co

nt
rib

ut
ing

 to
 LA

P e
ve
nt
s 

 
 

 
 

Ex
ce

ed
ed

 

An
nu
al 
Pe
rfo

rm
an
ce
:  
  1

72
%
 is
 th

e a
ve
ra
ge
 p
er
ce
nt
ag
e i
nc
re
as
e. 

Th
e b

re
ak
do
wn

 is
 as

 fo
llo
ws

: a
) B

ME
 - 
14
2%

 b)
 B
an
gla

de
sh
i -
 15

2%
 c)

 S
om

ali
 - 
24
%
 d
) Y

ou
ng
 p
eo
ple

 - 
37
0%

 

24
.2

0%
 

LA
AS

20
6 

Nu
mb

er
 of

 yo
un
g 
(1
6 
- 2

4)
 vo

lun
te
er
s 

Hi
gh
er
 

Sh
az
ia 
Hu

ss
ain

 
10
00

 
12
42

 
Ex

ce
ed

ed
 

An
nu
al 
Pe
rfo

rm
an
ce
:  
  I
n 
th
e y

ea
r e

nd
ing

 0
7/
08
, 1

24
2 o

pp
or
tu
nit
ies

 fo
r v

olu
nt
ee
rin

g w
er
e b

ein
g 
ta
ke
n 
up
 by

 ch
ild
re
n a

nd
 yo

un
g p

eo
ple

. T
his

 in
clu

de
d 
th
ro
ug
h 
Mi
lle
nn
ium

 
Vo

lun
te
er
s a

t t
he
 V
olu

nt
ee
r C

en
tre

 an
d G

eo
rg
e G

re
en
 S
ch
oo
l, 
th
e v

te
am

 at
 To

yn
be
e H

all
 an

d 
th
e Y

ou
th
 an

d C
om

mu
nit
y S

er
vic

e. 
It 
als

o i
nc
lud

es
 2
5 
ne
w 
yo
un
g p

eo
ple

 en
ga
ge
d 

th
ro
ug
h o

ur
 n
ew

 O
lym

pic
 Pr

e-
Vo

lun
te
er
 Pr

og
ra
mm

e. 
Ho

we
ve
r, 
th
is 
PI
 re

lie
s o

n d
at
a r

ep
or
te
d 
by
 ou

r T
hir

d S
ec
to
r p

ar
tn
er
s, 
wh

ich
 w
e b

eli
ev
e i
s c

ur
re
nt
ly 
be
ing

 u
nd
er
-re

po
rte

d.
 

W
e h

av
e i
nt
ro
du
ce
d 
an
 im

pr
ov
ed
 m

et
ho
d o

f r
ep
or
tin
g w

hic
h 
ha
s h

ad
 an

 im
pa
ct 
on
 th

e f
ina

l o
ut
 tu

rn
 re

su
lts
. 

16
.1

0%
 

LA
AS

20
7 

Nu
mb

er
 of

 th
ird

 se
cto

r g
ro
up
s a

nd
 or

ga
nis

at
ion

s a
cc
es
sin

g 
ca
pa
cit
y b

uil
din

g 
he
lp 
in 
th
e p

as
t y

ea
r 

Hi
gh
er
 

Sh
az
ia 
Hu

ss
ain

 
28
0 

32
5 

Ex
ce

ed
ed

 

An
nu
al 
Pe
rfo

rm
an
ce
:  
  N

o c
om

me
nt
 pr

ov
ide

d 
11

.4
0%

 
LA

AS
20

8 
Nu

mb
er
 of

 or
ga
nis

at
ion

s e
ng
ag
ed
 in
 V
olu

nt
ar
y S

ec
to
r 

Ne
tw
or
ks
 

Hi
gh
er
 

Sh
az
ia 
Hu

ss
ain

 
35
0 

39
0 

Ex
ce

ed
ed

 

An
nu
al 
Pe
rfo

rm
an
ce
:  
  N

o c
om

me
nt
 pr

ov
ide

d 
63

.7
0%

 
LA

AS
60

6, 
LP

SA
01

0d
, 

SP
41

0, 
TH

I02
8 

Nu
mb

er
 of

 yo
un
g p

eo
ple

 u
nd
er
 1
6 
at
te
nd
ing

 st
ud
y s

up
po
rt 

se
ss
ion

s -
 en

ha
nc
ing

 yo
un
g p

eo
ple

 
Hi
gh
er
 

Ju
dit
h 
St
 Jo

hn
 

76
5 

1,
25
2 

Ex
ce

ed
ed

 

An
nu
al 
Pe
rfo

rm
an
ce
:  
  T

his
 is
 th

e f
irs
t y

ea
r o

f m
on
ito
rin

g o
f t
he
 C
ou
nc
il's

 Lo
ca
l P
ub
lic
 S
er
vic

e A
gr
ee
me

nt
 w
ith
 th

e G
ov
er
nm

en
t. 
W
ith
 th

e c
on
tin
ue
d 
int
ro
du
cti
on
 of

 n
ew

 Id
ea
 

St
or
es
 (W

hit
ec
ha
pe
l a
nd
 C
an
ar
y W

ha
rf)
 in
 2
00
5/
06

, a
nd
 th

e s
er
vic

e's
 co

nt
inu

ed
 en

co
ur
ag
em

en
t o

f l
ea
rn
ing

 ac
tiv
itie

s a
nd
 st
ud
y s

es
sio

ns
 on

-si
te
 (i
nc
lud

ing
 th

e p
op
ula

r 
'Pr

em
ier

sh
ip 
Clu

b')
, t
he
 C
ou
nc
il h

as
 se

en
 a 

su
bs
ta
nt
ial
 in
cre

as
e i
n 
th
is 
ind

ica
to
r t
ha
t h

as
 ex

ce
ed
ed
 th

e L
PS
A 
ta
rg
et
s. 

63
.9

0%
 

SP
10

9b
 

Im
pr
ov
ed
 pe

rce
pt
ion

s o
f a

nt
iso

cia
l b
eh
av
iou

r: 
re
du
ce
d 

pe
rce

nt
ag
e o

f t
he
 po

pu
lat
ion

 w
ho
 vi
ew

 ab
an
do
ne
d o

r b
ur
nt
 

ou
t c
ar
s a

s a
 "v

er
y s

er
iou

s p
ro
ble

m"
 

Lo
we

r 
An

dy
 B
am

be
r 

18
 

6.
5 

Ex
ce

ed
ed

 

An
nu
al 
Pe
rfo

rm
an
ce
:  
  T

he
 ta

rg
et 

ha
s b

ee
n m

et
. 

40
.0

0%
 

SP
51

4b
 

Pe
rce

nt
ag
e o

f r
es
ide

nt
s w

ho
 fe

el 
th
at
 To

we
r H

am
let
s i
s a

 
pla

ce
 w
he
re
 pe

op
le 
fro

m 
dif
fer

en
t b

ac
kg
ro
un
ds
 ca

n g
et
 on

 
we

ll t
og
et
he
r: 
ga
p b

et
we

en
 th

e o
ve
ra
ll b

or
ou
gh
 av

er
ag
e a

nd
 

th
e L

AP
 ar

ea
 w
ith
 th

e l
ow

es
t p

er
for

ma
nc
e 

Lo
we

r 
Mi
ch
ae
l K

ea
tin
g 

10
 

6 
Ex

ce
ed

ed
 

An
nu
al 
Pe
rfo

rm
an
ce
:  
  N

o c
om

me
nt
 pr

ov
ide

d 

10
0.

00
%

 
SP

51
5c

, 
XC

E0
23

c 
Pe
rce

nt
ag
e o

f a
tte

nd
ee
s a

t L
AP
 ev

en
ts 
wh

o a
re
 fr
om

 ta
rg
ete

d 
co
mm

un
itie

s: 
So

ma
li r

es
ide

nt
s 

Hi
gh
er
 

Sh
az
ia 
Hu

ss
ain

 
5 

10
 

Ex
ce

ed
ed

 

An
nu
al 
Pe
rfo

rm
an
ce
:  
  N

o c
om

me
nt
 pr

ov
ide

d 

Page 282



PI
 R

ef
 N

o 
PI

 D
es

cr
ip

tio
n 

Ai
m

in
g 

Re
sp

on
sib

le
 

Of
fic

er
 

Ta
rg

et
 

07
/0

8 
Ac

tu
al

 
07

/0
8 

Va
ria

nc
e 

40
.0

0%
 

SP
51

5d
, 

XC
E0

23
d 

Pe
rce

nt
ag
e o

f a
tte

nd
ee
s a

t L
AP
 ev

en
ts 
wh

o a
re
 fr
om

 ta
rg
ete

d 
co
mm

un
itie

s: 
Yo
un
g r

es
ide

nt
s (

16
 - 
25
) 

Hi
gh
er
 

Sh
az
ia 
Hu

ss
ain

 
15

 
21

 
Ex

ce
ed

ed
 

 

Page 283



Page 284

This page is intentionally left blank



BV
PP

 A
pp

en
di

x 
5b

 - 
Va

ria
nc

e 
No

t M
et

 
 PI
 R
ef
 N
o 

PI
 D
es
cr
ip
tio

n 
Ai
m
in
g 

Re
sp

on
sib

le
 

Of
fic

er
 

Ta
rg
et
 

07
/0

8 
Ac

tu
al
 

06
/0

7 
Ac

tu
al
 

07
/0

8 
Va

ria
nc

e 
Tr
af
fic

 
Lig

ht
 

-2
9.

80
%

 
BV

01
1c
 

Pe
rce

nt
ag
e o

f t
he
 to
p p

aid
 5%

 of
 st
aff
 w
ho
 

ha
ve
 a 
dis

ab
ilit
y (
ex
clu

din
g t
ho
se
 in
 

ma
int
ain

ed
 sc
ho
ols
.) 

Hi
gh
er
 

De
b C

lar
ke
 

5 
4.
62
 

3.
51
 

N
ot

 M
et

 
�
 

An
nu
al 
Pe
rfo
rm
an
ce
:  
  P
os
itiv

e a
cti
on
 is
 in
 p
lac
e t
hr
ou
gh
 th
e A

sp
irin

g L
ea
de
rs 
Pr
og
ra
mm

e a
nd
 th
e g

ua
ra
nt
ee
d i
nt
er
vie

w 
sc
he
me

.  
Ho
we
ve
r, 
we
 w
ill 
re
vis
it 
bo
th
 th
e o

pp
or
tu
nit
ies
 fo
r 

lea
rn
ing

 an
d d

ev
elo

pm
en
t a
nd
 th
e r
ec
ru
itm

en
t p
ro
ce
du
re
s t
o i
de
nt
ify
 w
ha
t e
lse
 ca

n b
e d

on
e t
o s

up
po
rt 
fu
tu
re
 ta
rg
et
 ac

hie
ve
me

nt
 

-1
2.

90
%

 
BV

01
2, 

CE
04
6a
, 

SP
50
5 

Nu
mb

er
 of
 w
or
kin

g d
ay
s/s

hif
ts 
los
t t
o 

sic
kn
es
s a

bs
en
ce
 pe

r e
mp

loy
ee
. 

Lo
we
r 

De
b C

lar
ke
 

7.
75
 

7.
92
 

8.
75
 

N
ot

 M
et

 
�

 

An
nu
al 
Pe
rfo
rm
an
ce
:  
  A
n o

ut
br
ea
k o

f t
he
 no

vo
 vi
ru
s a

ffe
cte

d 
all
 or
ga
nis

at
ion

s t
hr
ou
gh
ou
t t
he
 U
K 
wh

ich
 w
ou
ld 
ha
ve
 co

nt
rib
ut
ed
 to
 th
e y

ea
r o
n y

ea
r i
nc
re
as
e. 
  

Re
po
rti
ng
 pr
oc
ed
ur
es
 fo
r a
bs
en
te
es
 w
ill 
be
 re
vis
ite
d 
to
 as

se
ss
 th
e i
mp

ac
t o
n 
ab
se
nc
e l
ev
els
 w
hil
st 
at
te
nd
an
ce
 m
an
ag
em

en
t r
em

ain
s a

s h
igh

 pr
ior
ity
 w
ith
 p
oli
cy
 an

d p
ro
ce
du
re
s u

nd
er
 

re
gu
lar
 re
vie

w 
an
d H

R 
as
sis
ta
nc
e f
or
 ab

se
nc
e m

an
ag
em

en
t r
ea
dil
y a

va
ila
ble

.   
-2

66
.7

0%
 

BV
01
4 

Pe
rce

nt
ag
e o

f e
ar
ly 
re
tir
em

en
ts 
(e
xc
lud

ing
 

ill-
he
alt
h 
re
tir
em

en
ts)
 as

 a 
pe
rce

nt
ag
e o

f t
he
 

to
ta
l w

or
kfo

rce
. 

Lo
we
r 

De
b C

lar
ke
 

0.
18
 

0.
39
 

0.
66
 

N
ot

 M
et

 
�

 
An
nu
al 
Pe
rfo
rm
an
ce
:  
  T
he
 va

st 
ma

jor
ity
 of
 th
is 
ye
ar
’s 
ea
rly
 re
tir
em

en
ts 
ar
e l
ink

ed
 to
 re
du
nd
an
cie
s, 
ne
ce
ss
ar
y t
o f
ac
ilit
at
e s

er
vic
e i
mp

ro
ve
me

nt
s a

nd
 ef
fic
ien

cie
s. 
Th
e h

ou
sin

g 
re
str
uc
tu
re
 ac

co
un
ts 
for
 ap

pr
ox
im
at
ely

 h
alf
 of
 th
e t
ot
al 
wi
th
 C
us
to
me

r A
cc
es
s a

cc
ou
nt
ing

 fo
r a
pp
ro
xim

at
ely

 a 
qu
ar
ter
 (l
ink

ed
 to
 A
cc
om

mo
da
tio
n S

tra
teg

y)
 Fo

cu
s f
or
 th
e f
or
th
co
mi
ng
 ye

ar
 

wi
ll b

e t
o i
nc
re
as
e r
et
en
tio
n 
of 
po
te
nt
ial
ly 
re
du
nd
an
t s
ta
ff 
th
ro
ug
h i
mp

ro
ve
d m

an
ag
em

en
t o
f r
ed
ep
loy

me
nt
 op

po
rtu

nit
ies
 an

d 
th
e i
nt
ro
du
cti
on
 of
 a 
fle
xib

le 
re
tir
em

en
t p
oli
cy
 

(im
ple

me
nt
at
ion

 d
ue
 Ju

ly 
20
08
). 

-4
0.

00
%

 
BV

01
5 

Pe
rce

nt
ag
e o

f e
mp

loy
ee
s r
et
irin

g 
on
 gr
ou
nd
s 

of 
ill 
he
alt
h 
as
 a 
pe
rce

nt
ag
e o

f t
he
 to
ta
l 

wo
rk
for
ce
. 

Lo
we
r 

De
b C

lar
ke
 

0.
1 

0.
25
 

0.
14
 

N
ot

 M
et

 
�
 

An
nu
al 
Pe
rfo
rm
an
ce
:  
  T
he
 nu

mb
er
s w

ith
in 
th
e p

op
ula

tio
n 
ar
e v

er
y s

ma
ll i
n 
th
at
 th
e t
ot
al 
co
ve
rs 
jus

t 1
6 
ill 
he
alt
h r
et
ire
me

nt
s i
n y

ea
r. 
 (T

ar
ge
t w

as
 un

de
r 1

0 
ill 
he
alt
h 
re
tir
em

en
ts)
. 

Ch
an
ge
s t
o t
he
 LG

PS
 sc
he
me

 in
clu

de
 a 
ne
w 
th
re
e t
ier
 ill
 h
ea
lth
 re
tir
em

en
t a
ss
es
sm

en
t w

hic
h 
inc

lud
e a

n o
pt
ion

 to
 ill
 h
ea
lth
 re
tir
e a

n 
em

plo
ye
e w

ith
 on

go
ing

 re
vie

ws
 an

d t
his

 m
ay
 im

pa
ct 

on
 bo

th
 fu
tu
re
 ill
 h
ea
lth
 re
tir
em

en
ts 
an
d o

n 
th
e r
es
ult
ing

 B
VP
I r
es
ult
s. 

-1
4.

50
%

 
BV

01
6a
 

Pe
rce

nt
ag
e o

f s
ta
ff 
de
cla
rin
g t
ha
t t
he
y m

ee
t 

th
e D

isa
bil
ity
 D
isc
rim

ina
tio
n 
Ac
t d
isa
bil
ity
 

de
fin
itio

n,
 

Hi
gh
er
 

De
b C

lar
ke
 

5.
5 

5.
12
 

4.
7 

N
ot

 M
et

 
�

 
An
nu
al 
Pe
rfo
rm
an
ce
:  
  P
os
itiv

e a
cti
on
 is
 in
 p
lac
e t
hr
ou
gh
 th
e A

sp
irin

g L
ea
de
rs 
Pr
og
ra
mm

e a
nd
 a 
gu
ar
an
te
ed
 in
te
rv
iew

 sc
he
me

.  
 H
ow

ev
er
, l
ink

ed
 to
 th
e r
ec
en
t T
rib
al 
re
cru

itm
en
t r
ev
iew

, 
re
cru

itm
en
t p
ra
cti
ce
 an

d p
ro
ce
du
re
s w

ill 
be
 re
vis
ite
d t
o i
de
nt
ify
 an

y a
re
as
 fo
r i
mp

ro
ve
me

nt
.  
Re
vie

w 
of 
da
ta
 co

lle
cti
on
 w
ill 
als
o b

e c
ar
rie
d o

ut
  
  
 

-1
0.

00
%

 
BV

04
9, 

PA
FA

1, 
PS

A0
07
, 

SP
21
5, 
TH

I01
3 

Pe
rce

nt
ag
e o

f c
hil
dr
en
 lo
ok
ed
 af
te
r a
t 3
1 

Ma
rch

 w
ith
 th
re
e o

r m
or
e p

lac
em

en
ts 
du
rin
g 

th
e y

ea
r 

Lo
we
r 

Ka
mi
ni 
Ra
mb

ell
as
 

10
 

10
.9
5 

11
 

N
ot

 M
et

 
�

 

An
nu
al 
Pe
rfo
rm
an
ce
:  
  O

ur
 pe

rfo
rm
an
ce
 re
ma

ins
 in
 th
e v

er
y g

oo
d t
hr
es
ho
ld 
ba
nd
ing

. I
t i
s b

et
te
r t
ha
n s

ta
tis
tic
al 
ne
igh

bo
ur
 an

d n
at
ion

al 
av
er
ag
es
 an

d 
co
nt
inu

ing
 ac

tio
n 
in 
th
is 
ar
ea
 

en
su
re
s t
ha
t p
er
for
ma

nc
e i
s m

ax
im
ise
d. 
Th
e r
ep
or
ted

 fi
gu
re
 of
 11

 w
ou
ld 
me

an
 th
at
 th
e t
ar
ge
t o
f 1
0 
ha
s b

ee
n 
na
rro

wl
y m

iss
ed
 ho

we
ve
r t
his

 is
 a 
pr
ov
isi
on
al 
fig
ur
e, 
th
e f
ina

l fi
gu
re
 w
ill 
be
 

av
ail
ab
le 
fro
m 
31
st 
Ma

y. 
-4

5.
90

%
 

BV
05
4, 

PA
FC

32
 

Nu
mb

er
 of
 ol
de
r p
eo
ple

 ag
ed
 6
5 
or
 ov

er
 

he
lpe

d t
o l
ive

 at
 ho

me
 pe

r 1
00
0 
po
pu
lat
ion

 
ag
ed
 6
5 
or
 ov

er
. 

Hi
gh
er
 

Jo
hn
 G
old

up
 

18
0 

11
9.
62
 

97
.4
 

N
ot

 M
et

 
�

 

Page 285



PI
 R
ef
 N
o 

PI
 D
es
cr
ip
tio

n 
Ai
m
in
g 

Re
sp

on
sib

le
 

Of
fic

er
 

Ta
rg
et
 

07
/0

8 
Ac

tu
al
 

06
/0

7 
Ac

tu
al
 

07
/0

8 
Va

ria
nc

e 
Tr
af
fic

 
Lig

ht
 

An
nu
al 
Pe
rfo
rm
an
ce
:  
  T
he
re
 w
as
 a 
te
ch
nic

al 
iss
ue
 w
ith
 ou

r r
ep
or
tin
g 
sy
ste

m 
las
t y
ea
r w

hic
h 
re
su
lte
d i
n 
an
 ov

er
 re
po
rti
ng
 of
 in
for
ma

tio
n o

n t
his

 pe
rfo
rm
an
ce
 in
dic

at
or
. O

ur
 re
su
lt 
for
 th
is 

ye
ar
 h
as
 be

en
 th
or
ou
gh
ly 
inv

es
tig
at
ed
 be

ca
us
e o

f t
he
 h
igh

 va
ria
nc
e a

nd
 w
e a

re
 co

nfi
de
nt
 it
 is
 co

rre
ct.
 W
e a

re
 st
ill 
pe
rfo
rm
ing

 ve
ry
 w
ell
 co

mp
ar
ed
 to
 co

mp
ar
at
or
s. 

-3
2.

40
%

 
BV

06
6c
 

Pe
rce

nt
ag
e o

f lo
ca
l a
ut
ho
rit
y t
en
an
ts 
in 

ar
re
ar
s w

ho
 h
av
e h

ad
 N
ot
ice
s S

ee
kin

g 
Po
ss
es
sio
n s

er
ve
d.
 

Lo
we
r 

Ma
ur
ee
n 
Mc
Ele

ne
y 

27
 

29
.1
 

35
.7
5 

N
ot

 M
et

 
�

 

An
nu
al 
Pe
rfo
rm
an
ce
:  
  W

hil
st 
ev
er
y e

ffo
rt 
is 
ma

de
 to
 re
du
ce
 th
e n

um
be
rs 
of 
No
tic
es
 S
ee
kin

g 
Po
ss
es
sio
n s

er
ve
d,
 th
e p

rio
rit
y r
em

ain
s r
en
t c
oll
ec
tio
n (

BV
66
a)
 an

d N
SP
s a

s o
ne
 of
 th
e e

ar
ly 

ar
re
ar
s a

cti
on
s w

ill 
co
nt
inu

e t
o b

e u
se
d a

s o
ne
 of
 th
e m

et
ho
ds
 of
 co

lle
cti
ng
 m
on
ies
 ow

ed
 to
 th
e C

ou
nc
il. 

-1
0.

60
%

 
BV

07
4a
, 

CP
AH

12
 

Sa
tis
fac

tio
n o

f t
en
an
ts 
of 
co
un
cil
 h
ou
sin

g 
wi
th
 th
e o

ve
ra
ll s

er
vic
e p

ro
vid

ed
 by

 th
eir
 

lan
dlo

rd
 a:
 al
l t
en
an
ts 

Hi
gh
er
 

Ma
ur
ee
n 
Mc
Ele

ne
y 

63
 

56
.3
2 

56
.3
2 

N
ot

 M
et

 
�
 

An
nu
al 
Pe
rfo
rm
an
ce
:  
  U

nd
er
 th
e B

es
t V

alu
e r
eg
im
e s

at
isf
ac
tio
n 
su
rv
ey
s h

ad
 to
 be

 ca
rri
ed
 ou

t e
ve
ry
 th
re
e y

ea
rs.
 Th

is 
su
rv
ey
 w
as
 ca

rri
ed
 ou

t i
n 
20
06
/0
7 
an
d w

hil
st 
an
 im

pr
ov
em

en
t i
n 

sa
tis
fac

tio
n 
wa
s a

ch
iev

ed
 as

 co
mp

ar
ed
 to
 th
e p

re
vio

us
 on

e, 
im
pr
ov
em

en
t w

as
 n
ot
 as

 m
uc
h 
as
 or
igi
na
lly
 ex

pe
cte

d.
 Th

is 
ind

ica
to
r i
s a

dju
ste

d w
ith
in 
th
e C

PA
 fo
r d
ep
riv
at
ion

 fa
cto

rs.
 A
 n
ew
 

su
rv
ey
 is
 ab

ou
t t
o b

e c
om

mi
ss
ion

ed
 as

 te
na
nt
 su

rv
ey
s m

us
t n
ow

 b
e c

ar
rie
d o

ut
 ev

er
y t
wo

 ye
ar
s. 

-1
8.

10
%

 
BV

07
4b
 

Sa
tis
fac

tio
n o

f t
en
an
ts 
of 
co
un
cil
 h
ou
sin

g 
wi
th
 th
e o

ve
ra
ll s

er
vic
e p

ro
vid

ed
 by

 th
eir
 

lan
dlo

rd
: w

ith
 re
su
lts
 fu
rth

er
 br
ok
en
 do

wn
 

by
 b
) b

lac
k a

nd
 m
ino

rit
y e

th
nic

 te
na
nt
s. 

Hi
gh
er
 

Ma
ur
ee
n 
Mc
Ele

ne
y 

63
 

51
.5
8 

51
.5
8 

N
ot

 M
et

 
�

 

An
nu
al 
Pe
rfo
rm
an
ce
:  
   
Un
de
r t
he
 B
es
t V

alu
e r
eg
im
e s

at
isf
ac
tio
n 
su
rv
ey
s h

ad
 to
 be

 ca
rri
ed
 ou

t e
ve
ry
 th
re
e y

ea
rs.
 Th

is 
su
rv
ey
 w
as
 ca

rri
ed
 ou

t i
n 2

00
6/
07
 an

d w
hil
st 
an
 im

pr
ov
em

en
t i
n 

sa
tis
fac

tio
n 
wa
s a

ch
iev

ed
 as

 co
mp

ar
ed
 to
 th
e p

re
vio

us
 on

e, 
im
pr
ov
em

en
t w

as
 n
ot
 as

 m
uc
h 
as
 or
igi
na
lly
 ex

pe
cte

d.
 Th

is 
ind

ica
to
r i
s a

dju
ste

d w
ith
in 
th
e C

PA
 fo
r d
ep
riv
at
ion

 fa
cto

rs.
 A
 n
ew
 

su
rv
ey
 is
 ab

ou
t t
o b

e c
om

mi
ss
ion

ed
 as

 te
na
nt
 su

rv
ey
s m

us
t n
ow

 b
e c

ar
rie
d o

ut
 ev

er
y t
wo

 ye
ar
s. 

-1
0.

90
%

 
BV

07
5a
, 

CP
AH

13
 

Sa
tis
fac

tio
n o

f c
ou
nc
il h

ou
sin

g t
en
an
ts 
wi
th
 

op
po
rtu

nit
ies
 fo
r p
ar
tic
ipa

tio
n i
n 

ma
na
ge
me

nt
 an

d d
ec
isi
on
 m
ak
ing

 in
 re
lat
ion

 
to
 h
ou
sin

g s
er
vic
es
 pr
ov
ide

d b
y t
he
ir 

lan
dlo

rd
. a
: A

ll t
en
an
ts 

Hi
gh
er
 

Ma
ur
ee
n 
Mc
Ele

ne
y 

51
 

45
.4
2 

45
.4
2 

N
ot

 M
et

 
�

 

An
nu
al 
Pe
rfo
rm
an
ce
:  
  U

nd
er
 th
e B

es
t V

alu
e r
eg
im
e s

at
isf
ac
tio
n 
su
rv
ey
s h

ad
 to
 be

 ca
rri
ed
 ou

t e
ve
ry
 th
re
e y

ea
rs.
 Th

is 
su
rv
ey
 w
as
 ca

rri
ed
 ou

t i
n 
20
06
/0
7 
an
d w

hil
st 
an
 im

pr
ov
em

en
t i
n 

sa
tis
fac

tio
n 
wa
s a

ch
iev

ed
 as

 co
mp

ar
ed
 to
 th
e p

re
vio

us
 on

e, 
im
pr
ov
em

en
t w

as
 n
ot
 as

 m
uc
h 
as
 or
igi
na
lly
 ex

pe
cte

d.
 Th

is 
ind

ica
to
r i
s a

dju
ste

d w
ith
in 
th
e C

PA
 fo
r d
ep
riv
at
ion

 fa
cto

rs.
 A
 n
ew
 

su
rv
ey
 is
 ab

ou
t t
o b

e c
om

mi
ss
ion

ed
 as

 te
na
nt
 su

rv
ey
s m

us
t n
ow

 b
e c

ar
rie
d o

ut
 ev

er
y t
wo

 ye
ar
s. 

-1
6.

40
%

 
BV

07
5c
 

Sa
tis
fac

tio
n o

f t
en
an
ts 
of 
co
un
cil
 h
ou
sin

g 
wi
th
 op

po
rtu

nit
ies
 fo
r p
ar
tic
ipa

tio
n 
in 

ma
na
ge
me

nt
 an

d d
ec
isi
on
 m
ak
ing

 in
 re
lat
ion

 
to
 h
ou
sin

g s
er
vic
es
 pr
ov
ide

d b
y t
he
ir 

lan
dlo

rd
: b

) n
on
-b
lac
k a

nd
 m
ino

rit
y e

th
nic

 
te
na
nt
s. 

Hi
gh
er
 

Ma
ur
ee
n 
Mc
Ele

ne
y 

51
 

42
.6
3 

42
.6
3 

N
ot

 M
et

 
�

 

An
nu
al 
Pe
rfo
rm
an
ce
:  
  U

nd
er
 th
e B

es
t V

alu
e r
eg
im
e s

at
isf
ac
tio
n 
su
rv
ey
s h

ad
 to
 be

 ca
rri
ed
 ou

t e
ve
ry
 th
re
e y

ea
rs.
 Th

is 
su
rv
ey
 w
as
 ca

rri
ed
 ou

t i
n 
20
06
/0
7 
an
d w

hil
st 
an
 im

pr
ov
em

en
t i
n 

sa
tis
fac

tio
n 
wa
s a

ch
iev

ed
 as

 co
mp

ar
ed
 to
 th
e p

re
vio

us
 on

e, 
im
pr
ov
em

en
t w

as
 n
ot
 as

 m
uc
h 
as
 or
igi
na
lly
 ex

pe
cte

d.
 Th

is 
ind

ica
to
r i
s a

dju
ste

d w
ith
in 
th
e C

PA
 fo
r d
ep
riv
at
ion

 fa
cto

rs.
 A
 n
ew
 

su
rv
ey
 is
 ab

ou
t t
o b

e c
om

mi
ss
ion

ed
 as

 te
na
nt
 su

rv
ey
s m

us
t n
ow

 b
e c

ar
rie
d o

ut
 ev

er
y t
wo

 ye
ar
s. 

-7
3.

70
%

 
BV

07
8b
, 

XT
H0

31
 

Av
er
ag
e t
im
e f
or
 pr
oc
es
sin

g n
ot
ific

at
ion

s o
f 

ch
an
ge
s o

f c
irc
um

sta
nc
e, 
re
lat
ing

 to
 h
ou
sin

g 
be
ne
fit
 an

d 
co
un
cil
 ta
x b

en
efi
t c
lai
ms

 (d
ay
s).
 

Lo
we
r 

Ma
ur
ee
n 
Mc
Ele

ne
y 

7.
5 

13
.3
 

13
.0
3 

N
ot

 M
et

 
�

 

Page 286



PI
 R
ef
 N
o 

PI
 D
es
cr
ip
tio

n 
Ai
m
in
g 

Re
sp

on
sib

le
 

Of
fic

er
 

Ta
rg
et
 

07
/0

8 
Ac

tu
al
 

06
/0

7 
Ac

tu
al
 

07
/0

8 
Va

ria
nc

e 
Tr
af
fic

 
Lig

ht
 

An
nu
al 
Pe
rfo
rm
an
ce
:  
  T
his

 in
dic

at
or
 sh

ow
s a

n 
im
pr
ov
ed
 pe

rfo
rm
an
ce
 on

 th
e p

re
vio

us
 ye

ar
's 
alt
ho
ug
h i
t h
as
 no

t m
et 
th
e t
ar
ge
t. 
Th
e P

Is 
on
 n
ew
 cl
aim

s a
nd
 ch

an
ge
s o

f c
irc
um

sta
nc
es
 

pr
oc
es
sin

g 
ar
e a

ma
lga

ma
te
d i
n 
th
e n

ew
 N
at
ion

al 
In
dic

at
or
 re
gim

e. 
Pe
rfo
rm
an
ce
 on

 n
ew
 cl
aim

s (
BV
78
a)
 is
 go

od
, a
nd
 to
ge
th
er
 w
ith
 th
e m

ea
su
re
s b

ein
g 
pu
t i
n p

lac
e n

ow
 on

 ch
an
ge
s o

f 
cir
cu
ms

ta
nc
es
 sh

ou
ld 
en
su
re
 st
ro
ng
 pe

rfo
rm
an
ce
s i
n f
ut
ur
e y

ea
rs.
 

-3
1.

70
%

 
BV

07
9b
(ii)
 

HB
 ov

er
pa
ym

en
ts 
re
co
ve
re
d a

s a
 pe

rce
nt
ag
e 

of 
th
e t
ot
al 
am

ou
nt
 of
 H
B 
ov
er
pa
ym

en
t d
eb
t 

ou
tst
an
din

g 
at
 th
e s

ta
rt 
of 
th
e y

ea
r, 
plu

s 
am

ou
nt
 of
 H
B 
ov
er
pa
ym

en
ts 
ide

nt
ifie

d 
du
rin
g 
th
e y

ea
r. 

Hi
gh
er
 

Ma
ur
ee
n 
Mc
Ele

ne
y 

39
.6
 

23
.5
4 

27
.0
6 

N
ot

 M
et

 
�

 

An
nu
al 
Pe
rfo
rm
an
ce
:  
  T
o a

ch
iev

e t
he
 am

bit
iou

s t
ar
ge
t s
et 
for
 th
is 
ind

ica
to
r w

ou
ld 
re
qu
ire
 a 
mo

re
 ov

er
pa
ym

en
ts 
to
 b
e w

rit
te
n 
off
 as

 u
nr
ec
ov
er
ab
le 
th
an
 is
 cu

rre
nt
ly 
th
e c

as
e. 
Th
is 

ind
ica
to
r d
oe
s n

ot
 fo
rm
 pa

rt 
of 
th
e n

ew
 N
at
ion

al 
In
dic

at
or
 su

ite
 b
ut
 p
er
for
ma

nc
e o

n i
t w

ill 
co
nt
inu

e t
o b

e r
ep
or
te
d q

ua
rte
rly
 to
 th
e D

W
P. 

-3
8.

10
%

 
BV

08
2a
(i),

 
CP

AE
06
a, 

LA
A1

06
, 

SP
11
1, 
TH

I00
5 

Pe
rce

nt
ag
e o

f h
ou
se
ho
ld 
wa

ste
 w
hic

h 
ha
s 

be
en
 se

nt
 by

 th
e a

ut
ho
rit
y f
or
 re
cy
cli
ng
. 

Hi
gh
er
 

He
at
he
r B

on
fie
ld 

22
 

11
.7
2 

13
.6
1 

N
ot

 M
et

 
�

 

An
nu
al 
Pe
rfo
rm
an
ce
:  
  A
cti
on
s w

ith
in 
th
e R

ec
yc
lin
g I
mp

ro
ve
me

nt
 Pl
an
 2
00
7/
08
 h
av
e r
ais
ed
 pe

rfo
rm
an
ce
 bu

t n
ot
 by

 en
ou
gh
 to
 m
ee
t t
he
 st
re
tch

 ta
rg
et
. O

ur
 re
cy
cli
ng
 is
 al
mo

st 
10
0%

 dr
y 

re
cy
cla
ble

s. 
W
hil
st 
we
 ar
e d

riv
ing

 u
p r
ec
yc
lin
g p

er
for
ma

nc
e i
nc
re
me

nt
all
y, 
ste

p c
ha
ng
e w

ill 
on
ly 
be
 po

ss
ibl
e w

he
n w

e i
nt
ro
du
ce
 fo
od
 w
as
te 
co
lle
cti
on
 w
hic

h 
ar
e p

lan
ne
d f
or
 la
te
r i
n 2

00
8.
 

-4
1.

00
%

 
BV

08
2a
(ii)
 

To
ta
l t
on
na
ge
 of
 ho

us
eh
old

 w
as
te
 ar
isi
ng
s 

wh
ich

 h
av
e b

ee
n 
se
nt
 by

 th
e A

ut
ho
rit
y f
or
 

re
cy
cli
ng
. 

Hi
gh
er
 

He
at
he
r B

on
fie
ld 

18
88
9.
1 

98
65
.5
2 

11
,1
50
.4
7 

N
ot

 M
et

 
�

 

An
nu
al 
Pe
rfo
rm
an
ce
:  
  A
cti
on
s w

ith
in 
th
e R

ec
yc
lin
g I
mp

ro
ve
me

nt
 Pl
an
 2
00
7/
08
 h
av
e r
ais
ed
 pe

rfo
rm
an
ce
 bu

t n
ot
 by

 en
ou
gh
 to
 m
ee
t t
he
 st
re
tch

 ta
rg
et
. W

hil
st 
we

 ar
e d

riv
ing

 th
is 
up
 

inc
re
me

nt
all
y, 
ste

p 
ch
an
ge
 w
ill 
on
ly 
be
 po

ss
ibl
e w

he
n w

e i
nt
ro
du
ce
 fo
od
 w
as
te
 co

lle
cti
on
s w

hic
h 
ar
e p

lan
ne
d f
or
 la
te
r i
n 2

00
8.
  W

hil
e t
he
 pe

rce
nt
ag
e o

f w
as
te
 re
cy
cle
d 
is 
low

er
 th
an
 th
e 

na
tio
na
l a
ve
ra
ge
, t
he
 ac

tu
al 
to
nn
ag
e r
ec
yc
led

 in
 th
e b

or
ou
gh
 is
 gr
ea
ter
 th
an
 th
e n

at
ion

al 
me

dia
n.
   

-6
0.

00
%

 
BV

08
2b
(i),

 
CP

AE
06
b 

Th
e p

er
ce
nt
ag
e o

f h
ou
se
ho
ld 
wa

ste
 se

nt
 by

 
th
e A

ut
ho
rit
y f
or
 co

mp
os
tin
g o

r t
re
at
me

nt
 

by
 an

ae
ro
bic
 d
ige

sti
on
. 

Hi
gh
er
 

He
at
he
r B

on
fie
ld 

0.
3 

0.
18
 

0.
12
 

N
ot

 M
et

 
�

 
An
nu
al 
Pe
rfo
rm
an
ce
:  
  T
his

 PI
 is
 en

tir
ely

 de
pe
nd
en
t o
n r
es
ide

nt
s b

rin
gin

g g
re
en
 w
as
te 
to
 N
or
th
um

be
rla
nd
 W
ha
rf.
  A
s g

ar
de
n w

as
te 
is 
ac
ce
pt
ed
 in
 g
en
er
al 
re
fu
se
 co

lle
cti
on
s; 
ca
r 

ow
ne
rsh

ip 
in 
th
e B

or
ou
gh
 is
 ve

ry
 lo
w,
 an

d N
or
th
um

be
rla
nd
 W
ha
rf 
is 
re
lat
ive

ly 
ina

cc
es
ibl
e, 
th
er
e i
s l
itt
le 
inc

en
tiv
e f
or
 re
sid
en
ts 
to
 do

 so
.  
Eit
he
r r
es
ide

nt
s h

av
e b

ee
n 
br
ing

ing
 le
ss
 ga

rd
en
 

wa
ste

, o
r f
ew
 re
sid

en
ts 
ha
ve
 be

en
 m
ak
ing

 th
e j
ou
rn
ey
, o
r c
lim

ac
tic
 fa
cto

rs 
me

an
 le
ss
 ga

rd
en
 w
as
 h
as
 be

en
 ge

ne
ra
te
d. 

-6
1.

30
%

 
BV

08
2b
(ii)
 

Th
e t
on
na
ge
 of
 ho

us
eh
old

 w
as
te
 se

nt
 by

 th
e 

au
th
or
ity
 fo
r c
om

po
sti
ng
 or
 tr
ea
tm
en
t b
y 

an
ae
ro
bic

 di
ge
sti
on
. 

Hi
gh
er
 

He
at
he
r B

on
fie
ld 

25
7.
58
 

15
3.
52
 

99
.7
5 

N
ot

 M
et

 
�

 

An
nu
al 
Pe
rfo
rm
an
ce
:  
  S
ee
 co

mm
en
t a
s a

bo
ve
 B
V8
2b
(i)
. 

-1
1.

00
%

 
BV

08
2d
(i) 

Pe
rce

nt
ag
e o

f h
ou
se
ho
ld 
wa

ste
 ar
isi
ng
s 

wh
ich

 h
av
e b

ee
n 
lan

dfi
lle
d.
 

Lo
we
r 

He
at
he
r B

on
fie
ld 

77
.7
 

78
.9
4 

86
.2
7 

N
ot

 M
et

 
�

 

An
nu
al 
Pe
rfo
rm
an
ce
:  
  T
he
 in
cre

as
e o

n 
th
e p

re
vio

us
 ye

ar
 (7

8.
94
) i
s p

ar
tia
lly
 d
ue
 to
 th
e d

ive
rsi
on
 to
 in
cin

er
at
ion

 w
hic

h t
oo
k p

lac
e i
n 
20
06
/0
7.
 In
 ad

dit
ion

, w
hil
st 
th
e m

ea
su
re
s c
on
ta
ine

d 
wi
th
in 
th
e R

ec
yc
lin
g I
mp

ro
ve
me

nt
 Pl
an
 re
su
lte
d i
n 
a 1

7.
5%

 in
cre

as
e i
n r
ec
yc
lin
g t
he
y w

er
e n

ot
 su

ffic
ien

t t
o m

ee
t t
he
 C
ou
nc
il's
 st
re
tch

 ta
rg
et
 of
 22

%
 an

d 
th
e s

ub
se
qu
en
t p
ro
po
rti
on
 of
 

wa
ste

 la
nd
fill
ed
 is
 h
igh

er
 th
an
 ta
rg
et
ed
. 

BV
08
4b
 

Pe
rce

nt
ag
e c

ha
ng
e f
ro
m 
th
e p

re
vio

us
 

Lo
we
r 

He
at
he
r B

on
fie
ld 

-4
.2
1 

4.
51
 

-2
.9
2 

-3
0.

60
%

 

Page 287



PI
 R
ef
 N
o 

PI
 D
es
cr
ip
tio

n 
Ai
m
in
g 

Re
sp

on
sib

le
 

Of
fic

er
 

Ta
rg
et
 

07
/0

8 
Ac

tu
al
 

06
/0

7 
Ac

tu
al
 

07
/0

8 
Va

ria
nc

e 
Tr
af
fic

 
Lig

ht
 

 
fin
an
cia
l y
ea
r i
n 
th
e n

um
be
r o
f k
ilo
gr
am

s o
f 

ho
us
eh
old

 w
as
te 
co
lle
cte

d p
er
 h
ea
d o

f t
he
 

po
pu
lat
ion

. 
 

 
 

 
 

N
ot

 M
et

 
�

 
An
nu
al 
Pe
rfo
rm
an
ce
:  
  T
he
 la
te
st 
fig
ur
es
 fr
om

 D
efr
a s

ho
w 
th
at
 n
at
ion

all
y, 
to
ta
l h
ou
se
ho
ld 
wa

ste
 is
 de

cre
as
ing

 by
 -0

.3
9%

. T
he
 ta
rg
et
 se

t b
y t
he
 C
ou
nc
il o

f -
4.
21
%
 w
as
 ex

tre
me

ly 
am

bit
iou

s. 
 In
 To

we
r H

am
let
s, 
to
ta
l h
ou
se
ho
ld 
wa

ste
 pe

r c
ap
ita
 d
ec
re
as
ed
 by

 2
.9
2%

, a
 ve

ry
 po

sit
ive

 ou
ttu
rn
. T
his

 is
 a 
dif
fic
ult
 PI
 fo
r t
he
 C
ou
nc
il t
o i
nf
lue

nc
e a

s t
ot
al 
ho
us
eh
old

 w
as
te
 is
 

co
nt
ro
lle
d b

y s
oc
io-
ec
on
om

ic 
fac

to
rs 
an
d l
ife
sty

le 
tre

nd
s, 
alt
ho
ug
h 
wa
ste

 ed
uc
at
ion

 pr
oje

cts
 an

d w
as
te 
mi
nim

isa
tio
n 
ac
tiv
itie

s a
re
 u
nd
er
ta
ke
n 
by
 th
e s

er
vic
e w

hic
h 
ap
pe
ar
 to
 h
av
e h

ad
 a 

po
sit
ive

 ou
tco

me
. 

-1
8.

10
%

 
BV

09
9a
i, 

CP
AE

12
, 

LA
A1

07
, 

LP
SA

00
4, 

SP
10
3 

Nu
mb

er
 of
 p
eo
ple

 ki
lle
d o

r s
er
iou

sly
 in
jur
ed
 

(K
SI
) i
n r
oa
d 
tra
ffic

 co
llis
ion

s. 
Lo
we
r 

He
at
he
r B

on
fie
ld 

10
5 

11
1 

12
4 

N
ot

 M
et

 
�

 

An
nu
al 
Pe
rfo
rm
an
ce
:  
  N

um
be
r o
f h
igh

 pr
ofi
le 
lat
e n

igh
t f
at
al 
co
llis
ion

s i
nv
olv

ing
 ca

rs 
wi
th
 se

ve
ra
l p
as
se
ng
er
s h

as
 af
fec

te
d 
th
is 
re
su
lt.
 Th

e m
ajo

rit
y o

f t
he
se
 ac

cid
en
ts 
oc
cu
rre

d o
n 
TfL

 
ro
ad
s. 

-3
16

.5
0%

 
BV

09
9a
ii 

Pe
rce

nt
ag
e c

ha
ng
e i
n 
th
e n

um
be
r o
f p
eo
ple

 
kil
led

 or
 se

rio
us
ly 
inj
ur
ed
 (K

SI
) i
n 
ro
ad
 

tra
ffi
c c
oll
isi
on
s s
inc

e t
he
 pr
ev
iou

s y
ea
r. 

Lo
we
r 

He
at
he
r B

on
fie
ld 

-5
.4
1 

-1
6.
54
 

11
.7
1 

N
ot

 M
et

 
�

 

An
nu
al 
Pe
rfo
rm
an
ce
:  
  S
ee
 co

mm
en
ts 
as
 ab

ov
e B

V9
9a
i. 

-2
3.

30
%

 
BV

09
9a
iii 

Pe
rce

nt
ag
e c

ha
ng
e i
n 
th
e n

um
be
r o
f p
eo
ple

 
kil
led

 or
 se

rio
us
ly 
inj
ur
ed
 (K

SI
) i
n 
ro
ad
 

tra
ffi
c c
oll
isi
on
s s
inc

e t
he
 1
99
4-
98
 av

er
ag
e. 

Lo
we
r 

He
at
he
r B

on
fie
ld 

-4
3.
73
 

-4
0.
51
 

-3
3.
55
 

N
ot

 M
et

 
�

 

An
nu
al 
Pe
rfo
rm
an
ce
:  
  S
ee
 co

mm
en
ts 
as
 ab

ov
e B

V9
9a
i. 

-1
2.

50
%

 
BV

09
9b
i 

Nu
mb

er
 of
 ch

ild
re
n (

ag
ed
 u
nd
er
 16

 ye
ar
s) 

kil
led

 or
 se

rio
us
ly 
inj
ur
ed
 (K

SI
) i
n 
ro
ad
 

tra
ffi
c c
oll
isi
on
 

Lo
we
r 

He
at
he
r B

on
fie
ld 

8 
8 

9 
N

ot
 M

et
 

�
 

An
nu
al 
Pe
rfo
rm
an
ce
:  
  S
ee
 co

mm
en
ts 
in 
ab
ov
e B

V9
9a
i. 
Ho
we

ve
r, 
ne
 ad

dit
ion

al 
ch
ild
 w
as
 in
vo
lve

d i
n 
an
 ac

cid
en
t. 

-4
0.

00
%

 
BV

10
0 

Nu
mb

er
 of
 d
ay
s o

f t
em

po
ra
ry
 tr
aff
ic 
co
nt
ro
ls 

or
 ro
ad
 cl
os
ur
e o

n t
ra
ffic

 se
ns
itiv

e s
tre
et
s 

pe
r k
m 
of 
tra
ffi
c s
en
sit
ive

 st
re
et
s. 

Lo
we
r 

He
at
he
r B

on
fie
ld 

0.
3 

0.
56
 

0.
42
 

N
ot

 M
et

 
�

 
An
nu
al 
Pe
rfo
rm
an
ce
: A

lth
ou
gh
 w
e h

av
e i
mp

ro
ve
d o

n 
th
e p

re
vio

us
 ye

ar
’s 
re
su
lt,
 it
 w
as
 st
ill 
ne
ce
ss
ar
y t
o u

se
 te
mp

or
ar
y t
ra
ffi
c s
ign

als
 at
 ro
ad
wo

rk
 in
 tw

o p
ar
tic
ula

rly
 se

ns
itiv

e l
oc
at
ion

s f
or
 

ro
ad
 sa

fet
y s

ch
em

es
 u
nd
er
ta
ke
n 
du
rin
g t
he
 ye

ar
.  
A 
re
du
cti
on
 in
 fu
tu
re
 ye

ar
s i
s a

nt
ici
pa
te
d 
as
 al
te
rn
at
ive

 sa
fe 
wo

rk
ing

 m
et
ho
ds
 w
ill 
be
 u
se
d w

he
re
ve
r p
os
sib

le 
to
 co

nt
inu

e t
o i
mp

lem
en
t 

th
e p

ro
gr
am

me
 to
 im

pr
ov
e r
oa
d 
sa
fet
y, 
ma

int
ain

 re
as
on
ab
le 
tra
ffi
c c
alm

ing
 in
itia

tiv
es
 to
 en

su
re
 th
at
 ta
rg
et
s f
or
 ot
he
r P
Is 
as
so
cia
te
d w

ith
 pe

de
str
ian

 sa
fet
y a

re
 m
ain

ta
ine

d 
or
 im

pr
ov
ed
 

an
d 
co
nt
inu

e t
o i
nv
es
t i
n 
th
e c

on
dit
ion

 of
 th
e B

or
ou
gh
’s 
ro
ad
s. 

-2
8.

60
%

 
BV

16
5, 

CP
AE

16
 

Pe
rce

nt
ag
e o

f p
ed
es
tri
an
 cr
os
sin

gs
 w
ith
 

fac
ilit
ies
 fo
r d
isa
ble

d p
eo
ple

. 
Hi
gh
er
 

He
at
he
r B

on
fie
ld 

10
0 

36
 

71
.4
3 

N
ot

 M
et

 
�

 
An
nu
al 
Pe
rfo
rm
an
ce
:  
 Th

is 
ind

ica
to
r i
nc
lud

es
 bo

th
 LB

TH
 an

d 
TfL

’s 
pe
de
str
ian

 cr
os
sin

gs
. L
BT
H 
cro

ss
ing

s w
er
e 1

00
%
 co

mp
lia
nt
, w

hil
e j
us
t o
ve
r h

alf
 of
 Tf
L’s
 cr
os
sin

gs
 w
er
e c

om
pli
an
t 

(5
6%

), 
wi
th
 a 
to
ta
l fi
gu
re
 of
 7
1.
43
%
.  
W
hil
e d

isc
us
sio
ns
 to
ok
 pl
ac
e w

ith
 Tf
L d

ur
ing

 th
e y

ea
r r
eg
ar
din

g t
he
ir 
im
pr
ov
em

en
t p
ro
gr
am

me
, t
his
 h
as
 no

t b
ee
n 
co
mp

let
ed
 by

 Tf
L. 

BV
17
4, 

Nu
mb

er
 of
 ra
cia
l in

cid
en
ts 
re
co
rd
ed
 by

 th
e 

Hi
gh
er
 

An
dy
 B
am

be
r 

28
5 

22
7.
48
 

14
6.
34
 

-4
8.

70
%

 

Page 288



PI
 R
ef
 N
o 

PI
 D
es
cr
ip
tio

n 
Ai
m
in
g 

Re
sp

on
sib

le
 

Of
fic

er
 

Ta
rg
et
 

07
/0

8 
Ac

tu
al
 

06
/0

7 
Ac

tu
al
 

07
/0

8 
Va

ria
nc

e 
Tr
af
fic

 
Lig

ht
 

XC
E0

13
, 

XT
H0

04
 

au
th
or
ity
 pe

r 1
00
,0
00
 po

pu
lat
ion

. 
 

 
 

 
 

N
ot

 M
et

 
�

 
An
nu
al 
Pe
rfo
rm
an
ce
:  
  T
he
 fin

al 
ou
ttu
rn
 fo
r 2
00
7/
08
 w
as
 14

6.
34
 w
hic

h d
id 
no
t m

ee
t t
he
 or
igi
na
l s
et
 ta
rg
et
 of
 2
85
. R
ec
en
t a
na
lys
is 
of 
ha
te
 cr
im
e d

ata
 re
ve
ale

d 
th
at
 re
po
rts
 of
 h
at
e c

rim
e 

re
po
rte
d 
to
 th
e C

ou
nc
il h

av
e d

ec
re
as
ed
 in
 lin

e w
ith
 a 
re
du
cti
on
 in
 lo
ca
l P
oli
ce
 re
po
rts
 of
 ra
cia
lly
 ag

gr
av
at
ed
 cr
im
es
. T
his

 re
du
cti
on
 in
 ra
ce
 h
at
e i
s r
efl
ec
te
d a

cro
ss
 Lo

nd
on
. T
his
 in
dic

at
es
 

th
at
 th
er
e h

as
 b
ee
n 
a f
all
 in
 re
po
rts
 bo

ro
ug
h-
wi
de
 an

d 
no
t n
ec
es
sa
rily

 an
 is
su
e a

bo
ut
 vi
cti
m 
co
nf
ide

nc
e i
n 
th
e l
oc
al 
au
th
or
ity
. A
lth
ou
gh
 th
e t
ar
ge
t o
f 2
85
 w
as
 n
ot
 m
et
, w

e b
eli
ev
e t
ha
t t
his

 
re
du
cti
on
 is
 a 
su
cc
es
s a

nd
 th
e a

im
 of
 th
e C

rim
e a

nd
 D
ru
gs
 R
ed
uc
tio
ns
 S
tra
te
gy
 20

05
-0
8 
- t
o r
ed
uc
e t
he
 in
cid

en
ce
 of
 ha

te
 cr
im
e i
n 
th
e b

or
ou
gh
, h
as
 be

en
 ac

hie
ve
d 

-1
6.

90
%

 
BV

18
1c
, 

LP
SA

00
1c
 

Pe
rce

nt
ag
e o

f 1
4-
ye
ar
 ol
d p

up
ils
 in
 sc
ho
ols
 

ma
int
ain

ed
 b
y t
he
 lo
ca
l e
du
ca
tio
n 
au
th
or
ity
 

ac
hie

vin
g 
Le
ve
l 5
 or
 ab

ov
e i
n t
he
 K
ey
 S
ta
ge
 

3 
te
st 
in 
Sc
ien

ce
. 

Hi
gh
er
 

Ca
rm
el 
Lit
tle
to
n 

71
 

57
.3
2 

59
 

N
ot

 M
et

 
�

 

An
nu
al 
Pe
rfo
rm
an
ce
:  
  W

e d
id 
no
t m

ee
t o
ur
 ta
rg
et
 bu

t p
er
for
ma

nc
e i
n 
sc
ien

ce
 im

pr
ov
ed
 at
 K
S3
 le
ve
l b
y 2

%
, m

irr
or
ing

 th
e n

at
ion

al 
inc

re
as
e. 
Sp
ec
ific
 su

pp
or
t h
as
 be

en
 in
te
ns
ifie

d f
or
 th
e 

th
re
e s

ch
oo
ls 
ac
hie

vin
g b

elo
w 
th
e f
loo

r t
ar
ge
t i
n 
sc
ien

ce
, w

hic
h 
ha
s a

 si
gn
ific

an
t e
ffe
ct 
on
 th
e b

or
ou
gh
 av

er
ag
e. 

-1
19

.4
0%

 
BV

18
7, 

CP
AE

18
 

Pe
rce

nt
ag
e l
en
gt
h o

f c
at
eg
or
y 1

, 1
a a

nd
 2 

foo
tw
ay
 n
et
wo

rk
 n
ee
din

g t
re
atm

en
t. 

Lo
we
r 

He
at
he
r B

on
fie
ld 

9.
8 

19
.0
7 

21
.5
 

N
ot

 M
et

 
�

 
An
nu
al 
Pe
rfo
rm
an
ce
:  
  T
his

 PI
 is
 b
as
ed
 on

 a 
sa
mp

le 
of 
25
%
 of
 LB

TH
 ro
ad
s. 
Th
e 2

00
7/
08
 sa

mp
le 
pic
ke
d u

p n
ew
 ar
ea
s w

hic
h 
ha
ve
 de

ter
ior
at
ed
 to
 re
ac
h 
pr
ior
ity
 m
ain

te
na
nc
e s

ta
tu
s 

wh
er
ea
s f
un
din

g w
as
 al
loc
at
ed
 to
 pr
ior
itie

s p
re
vio

us
ly 
ide

nt
ifie

d 
in 
dif
fer
en
t s
am

ple
. 

-1
2.

10
%

 
BV

19
4a
 

Pe
rce

nt
ag
e o

f p
up
ils
 in
 sc
ho
ols
 m
ain

ta
ine

d 
by
 th
e l
oc
al 
ed
uc
at
ion

 au
th
or
ity
 ac

hie
vin

g 
lev

el 
5 
or
 ab

ov
e i
n 
Ke
y S

ta
ge
 2
 in
 E
ng
lis
h.
 

Hi
gh
er
 

He
len

 Je
nn
er
 

33
 

25
 

29
 

N
ot

 M
et

 
�

 
An
nu
al 
Pe
rfo
rm
an
ce
:  
  2
9%

 of
 pu

pil
s i
n 
sc
ho
ols
 m
ain

ta
ine

d b
y t
he
 lo
ca
l e
du
ca
tio
n a

ut
ho
rit
y a

ch
iev

ed
 le
ve
l 5
 or
 ab

ov
e i
n 
Ke
y S

ta
ge
 2
 in
 E
ng
lis
h.
 W
e h

av
e s

et
 an

 am
bit
iou

s t
ar
ge
t w

hic
h 
is 

re
fle
cti
ve
 of
 ou

r a
sp
ira
tio
ns
 fo
r o
ur
 p
up
ils
. W

e h
av
en
't 
me

t t
he
 an

nu
al 
ta
rg
et 
of 
33
 pe

rce
nt
 (4

 pe
rce

nt
 do

wn
 on

 ta
rg
et
); 
ho
we
ve
r c
ur
re
nt
 p
er
for
ma

nc
e i
nd
ica
te
s a

n 
im
pr
ov
em

en
t i
n 
lin
e 

wi
th
 ye

ar
 on

 ye
ar
 tr
en
ds
 si
nc
e 0

5/
06
. T
his

 im
pr
ov
em

en
t i
s a

lso
 re
fle
cti
ve
 of
 th
e m

ea
su
re
s w

e h
av
e p

ut
 in
 pl
ac
e i
n 
th
is 
ar
ea
 to
 im

pr
ov
e p

er
for
ma

nc
e, 
so
me

 of
 w
hic

h 
ar
e:
 • 
A 
pr
ov
isi
on
 

ma
p 
ha
s b

ee
n d

ra
wn

 u
p f
or
 ta
rg
et
ed
 co

ns
ult
an
t a
nd
 S
ch
oo
l D
ev
elo

pm
en
t A

dv
iso
r (
SD

A)
 su

pp
or
t t
o s

ch
oo
ls 
ba
se
d o

n o
ut
co
me

s o
f n
ee
ds
 an

aly
sis
. •
 H
alf
 te
rm
ly 
me

et
ing

s a
re
 in
 p
lac
e t
o 

tra
ck
 im

pr
ov
em

en
t o
f s
ch
oo
ls,
 w
ith
 cl
os
e t
ra
ck
ing

 of
 th
e p

ro
gr
es
s o

f p
up
ils
 in
 ta
rg
et
ed
 sc
ho
ols
 • 
Ta
rg
et
 se

tti
ng
 m
ee
tin
gs
 an

d r
ev
iew

 of
 st
an
da
rd
s a

nd
 sc
ho
ol 
se
lf e

va
lua

tio
n 
pr
oc
es
se
s a

re
 

be
ing

 h
eld

 w
ith
 ea

ch
 sc
ho
ol 
th
is 
te
rm
, w

ith
 a 
foc

us
 on

 im
pr
ov
ing

 th
e p

er
ce
nt
ag
e o

f p
up
ils
 ac

hie
vin

g 
lev

el 
4 
or
 m
or
e a

cro
ss
 re
ad
ing

, w
rit
ing

 an
d m

at
he
ma

tic
s a

nd
 ta
rg
et 
ge
tti
ng
 ac

tiv
itie

s •
 

In
te
ns
ify
ing

 S
up
po
rt 
Pr
og
ra
mm

e (
IS
P)
 ar
e n

ow
 in
 1
1 
sc
ho
ols
, i
nc
lud

ing
 6
 sc
ho
ols
 w
hic

h a
re
 n
ew
 to
 IS

P t
his

 ye
ar
. •
 1
8 
sc
ho
ols
 h
av
e b

ee
n 
hig

hli
gh
te
d t
his

 ye
ar
 fo
r i
nt
en
siv
e l
ite
ra
cy
 

su
pp
or
t (
no
t i
nc
lud

ing
 IS

P s
ch
oo
ls)
 • 
Tw

ilig
ht
 se

ss
ion

s o
n p

up
il p

ro
gr
es
s m

ee
tin
gs
 ar
e b

ein
g 
he
ld 
to
 di
ss
em

ina
te
 th
is 
eff
ec
tiv
e I
SP
 to
ol 
to
 al
l s
ch
oo
ls.
 • 
10
 sc
ho
ols
 ar
e i
n 
th
e T

ow
er
 

Ha
ml
et
s E

ng
lis
h 
as
 an

 A
dd
itio

na
l L
an
gu
ag
e (
EA
L)
 pr
og
ra
mm

e. 
5 
sc
ho
ols
 ar
e n

ew
 to
 th
e p

ro
gr
am

me
 th
is 
ye
ar
 an

d 5
 sc
ho
ols
 ar
e i
n 
th
eir
 2
nd
 ye

ar
 of
 th
e p

ro
gr
am

me
. •
 R
en
ew
ed
 

Fr
am

ew
or
k t
ra
ini
ng
 h
as
 ta
rg
ete

d s
tra

nd
s a

nd
 sc
ho
ols
 w
ith
 lo
w 
KS
2 
ou
tco

me
s a

re
 be

ing
 ta
rg
et
ed
 to
 at
te
nd
 th
e s

pe
cif
ic 
tra
ini
ng
 ta
ilo
re
d 
to
 th
eir
 n
ee
ds
 in
 lit
er
ac
y (
an
d 
nu
me

ra
cy
). 
• L

ea
d 

te
ac
he
rs 
an
d A

ST
s a

re
 be

ing
 us

ed
 to
 su

pp
or
t t
he
 te
ac
hin

g o
f li
te
ra
cy
 • 
A 
ra
ng
e o

f t
ra
ini
ng
 an

d s
up
po
rt 
by
 pr

im
ar
y c

on
su
lta
nt
s h

as
 b
ee
n p

lan
ne
d t
his

 ye
ar
 to
 su

pp
or
t i
mp

ro
ve
me

nt
s i
n 

sta
nd
ar
ds
. T
he
 en

d o
f y
ea
r t
ar
ge
ts 
ar
e s

till
 am

bit
iou

s. 
Gi
ve
n 
a t
re
nd
 of
 2
 - 
3%

 im
pr
ov
em

en
t i
n 
En
gli
sh
 at
 Le

ve
l 5
 w
e c

ou
ld 
be
 po

ss
ibl
y o

n t
ra
ck
 fo
r 3
3%

 by
 2
01
0.
 

-1
2.

10
%

 
BV

19
4b
 

Pe
rce

nt
ag
e o

f p
up
ils
 in
 sc
ho
ols
 m
ain

ta
ine

d 
by
 th
e l
oc
al 
ed
uc
at
ion

 au
th
or
ity
 ac

hie
vin

g 
lev

el 
5 
or
 ab

ov
e i
n 
Ke
y S

ta
ge
 2
 in
 

Ma
th
em

at
ics
. 

Hi
gh
er
 

He
len

 Je
nn
er
 

33
 

29
 

29
 

N
ot

 M
et

 
�

 

An
nu
al 
Pe
rfo
rm
an
ce
:  
  2
9%

 of
 pu

pil
s i
n 
sc
ho
ols
 m
ain

ta
ine

d b
y t
he
 lo
ca
l e
du
ca
tio
n a

ut
ho
rit
y a

ch
iev

ed
 le
ve
l 5
 or
 ab

ov
e i
n 
Ke
y S

ta
ge
 2
 in
 M
at
he
ma

tic
s. 
W
e h

av
e s

et
 an

 am
bit
iou

s t
ar
ge
t 

wh
ich

 is
 re
fle
cti
ve
 of
 ou

r a
sp
ira
tio
ns
 fo
r o
ur
 pu

pil
s. 
W
e h

av
en
't 
me

t t
he
 an

nu
al 
ta
rg
et
 of
 3
3 
pe
rce

nt
(4
 pe

rce
nt
 do

wn
 on

 ta
rg
et
); 
ho
we
ve
r c
ur
re
nt
 pe

rfo
rm
an
ce
 in
dic

at
es
 an

 im
pr
ov
em

en
t i
n 

lin
e w

ith
 ye

ar
 on

 ye
ar
 tr
en
ds
 si
nc
e 0

5/
06
. T
his
 im

pr
ov
em

en
t i
s a

lso
 re
fle
cti
ve
 of
 th
e m

ea
su
re
s w

e h
av
e p

ut
 in
 p
lac
e i
n 
th
is 
ar
ea
 to
 im

pr
ov
e p

er
for
ma

nc
e, 
so
me

 of
 w
hic

h 
ar
e:
 • 
A 
pr
ov
isi
on
 

ma
p 
ha
s b

ee
n d

ra
wn

 u
p f
or
 ta
rg
et
ed
 co

ns
ult
an
t a
nd
 S
ch
oo
l D
ev
elo

pm
en
t A

dv
iso
r (
SD

A)
 su

pp
or
t t
o s

ch
oo
ls 
ba
se
d o

n o
ut
co
me

s o
f n
ee
ds
 an

aly
sis
. •
 H
alf
 te
rm
ly 
me

et
ing

s a
re
 in
 p
lac
e t
o 

tra
ck
 im

pr
ov
em

en
t o
f s
ch
oo
ls,
 w
ith
 cl
os
e t
ra
ck
ing

 of
 th
e p

ro
gr
es
s o

f p
up
ils
 in
 ta
rg
et
ed
 sc
ho
ols
 • 
Ta
rg
et
 se

tti
ng
 m
ee
tin
gs
 an

d r
ev
iew

 of
 st
an
da
rd
s a

nd
 sc
ho
ol 
se
lf e

va
lua

tio
n 
pr
oc
es
se
s a

re
 

be
ing

 h
eld

 w
ith
 ea

ch
 sc
ho
ol 
th
is 
te
rm
, w

ith
 a 
foc

us
 on

 im
pr
ov
ing

 th
e p

er
ce
nt
ag
e o

f p
up
ils
 ac

hie
vin

g 
lev

el 
4 
or
 m
or
e a

cro
ss
 re
ad
ing

, w
rit
ing

 an
d m

at
he
ma

tic
s a

nd
 ta
rg
et 
ge
tti
ng
 ac

tiv
itie

s •
 

In
te
ns
ify
ing

 S
up
po
rt 
Pr
og
ra
mm

e (
IS
P)
 ar
e n

ow
 in
 1
1 
sc
ho
ols
, i
nc
lud

ing
 6
 sc
ho
ols
 w
hic

h a
re
 n
ew
 to
 IS

P t
his

 ye
ar
. •
  T
wi
lig
ht
 se

ss
ion

s o
n p

up
il p

ro
gr
es
s m

ee
tin
gs
 ar
e b

ein
g h

eld
 to
 

dis
se
mi
na
te
 th
is 
eff
ec
tiv
e I
SP
 to
ol 
to
 al
l s
ch
oo
ls.
 • 
Re
ne
we
d F

ra
me

wo
rk
 tr
ain

ing
 h
as
 ta
rg
ete

d s
tra

nd
s a

nd
 sc
ho
ols
 w
ith
 lo
w 
KS
2 
ou
tco

me
s a

re
 be

ing
 ta
rg
et
ed
 to
 at
te
nd
 th
e s

pe
cif
ic 

tra
ini
ng
 ta
ilo
re
d t
o t
he
ir 
ne
ed
s i
n 
lite

ra
cy
 (a
nd
 n
um

er
ac
y)
. •
 A
 ra
ng
e o

f t
ra
ini
ng
 an

d s
up
po
rt 
by
 pr
im
ar
y c

on
su
lta
nt
s h

as
 be

en
 pl
an
ne
d 
th
is 
ye
ar
 to
 su

pp
or
t i
mp

ro
ve
me

nt
s i
n s

ta
nd
ar
ds
. 

Page 289



PI
 R
ef
 N
o 

PI
 D
es
cr
ip
tio

n 
Ai
m
in
g 

Re
sp

on
sib

le
 

Of
fic

er
 

Ta
rg
et
 

07
/0

8 
Ac

tu
al
 

06
/0

7 
Ac

tu
al
 

07
/0

8 
Va

ria
nc

e 
Tr
af
fic

 
Lig

ht
 

-4
3.

70
%

 
BV

19
7, 

LA
A6

10
, 

SP
20
9 

Pe
rce

nt
ag
e c

ha
ng
e i
n 
th
e n

um
be
r o
f 

co
nc
ep
tio
ns
 to
 fe
ma

les
 ag

ed
 u
nd
er
 1
8,
 

re
sid
en
t i
n 
an
 ar
ea
, p
er
 th
ou
sa
nd
 fe
ma

les
 

ag
ed
 1
5-
17
 re
sid

en
t i
n 
th
e a

re
a, 
co
mp

ar
ed
 

wi
th
 th
e b

as
eli
ne
 ye

ar
 of
 1
99
8.
 

Lo
we
r 

Es
th
er
 Tr
en
ch
ar
d-

Ma
be
re
 (P
CT
) 

-4
3 

-2
5.
3 

-2
4.
2 

N
ot

 M
et

 
�

 

An
nu
al 
Pe
rfo
rm
an
ce
:  
  A
 te
en
ag
e c

on
ce
pt
ion

 ra
te
 of
 4
3.
9 
is 
re
po
rte

d f
or
 2
00
6,
 a 
re
du
cti
on
 fr
om

 4
4.
9 
in 
20
05
. H

ow
ev
er
 a 
re
du
cti
on
 in
 th
e p

op
ula

tio
n f
or
 1
5-
17
 ye

ar
 ol
d f
em

ale
s h

as
 

ad
ve
rse

ly 
aff
ec
te
d t
he
 re
du
cti
on
 ra
te 
an
d s

ho
ws
 th
e r
ed
uc
tio
n 
at
 2
4.
25
 co

mp
ar
ed
 to
 th
e 1

99
8 
ba
se
lin
e y

ea
r. 

-7
3.

90
%

 
BV

20
4, 

CP
AE

44
 

Pe
rce

nt
ag
e o

f a
pp
ea
ls 
all
ow

ed
 ag

ain
st 
th
e 

au
th
or
ity
’s 
de
cis
ion

 to
 re
fu
se
 pl
an
nin

g 
ap
pli
ca
tio
ns
. 

Lo
we
r 

Em
ma

 Pe
te
rs 

20
 

15
 

34
.7
8 

N
ot

 M
et

 
�

 

An
nu
al 
Pe
rfo
rm
an
ce
:  
  S
ign

ific
an
t d
ela

ys
 in
 ad

op
tin
g 
ne
w 
pla

nn
ing

 p
oli
cie
s t
hr
ou
gh
 th
e L

DF
 pr
oc
es
s h

av
e s

er
iou

sly
 w
ea
ke
ne
d t
he
 C
ou
nc
il's
 po

sit
ion

 in
 d
efe

nd
ing

 p
lan

nin
g 
de
cis
ion

s o
n 

ap
pe
al.
 Th

is 
is 
ex
pe
cte

d t
o i
mp

ro
ve
 as

 th
e L

DF
 ad

op
tio
n p

ro
ce
ss
 re
co
mm

en
ce
s d

ur
ing

 20
08
/9
. T
he
 C
ou
nc
il s

till
 re
ma

ins
 ho

we
ve
r w

ith
in 
th
e G

ov
er
nm

en
t's
 6
0%

 pe
rfo
rm
an
ce
 th
re
sh
old

. 
-1

8.
40

%
 

BV
21
5a
 

Th
e a

ve
ra
ge
 n
um

be
r o
f d
ay
s t
ak
en
 to
 re
pa
ir 

a s
tre
et
 lig

ht
ing

 fa
ult
, w

hic
h i
s u

nd
er
 th
e 

co
nt
ro
l o
f t
he
 lo
ca
l a
ut
ho
rit
y -
 n
on
 D
NO

 - 
Lo
we
r 

He
at
he
r B

on
fie
ld 

1.
9 

3.
55
 

2.
25
 

N
ot

 M
et

 
�

 
An
nu
al 
Pe
rfo
rm
an
ce
:  
  T
his

 is
 a 
joi
nt
 B
VP
I s
ha
re
d b

et
we

en
 H
ou
sin

g 
an
d C

LC
 in
tro

du
ce
d f
or
 2
00
5/
06
. A
 n
ew
 pr
oc
ed
ur
e f
or
 re
po
rti
ng
 h
igh

wa
y f
au
lts
 ha

ve
 sh

ow
n a

 m
ar
ke
d i
mp

ro
ve
me

nt
 in
 

pe
rfo
rm
an
ce
 in
 th
is 
ye
ar
’s 
fig
ur
es
, r
es
ult
ing

 in
 th
e m

ajo
rit
y o

f C
LC
 st
re
et
 lig

ht
ing

 re
pa
irs
 be

ing
 co

mp
let
ed
 w
ith
in 
1 
da
y. 
In
 2
00
7/
08
, C
LC
 ac

hie
ve
d 0

.2
1 
da
ys
 an

d 
Ho
us
ing

 av
er
ag
ed
 5
.8
7 

da
ys
. T
he
 ag

gr
eg
at
ed
 to
ta
l fo

r t
he
 C
ou
nc
il i
s 2

.2
5 
da
ys
. 

-1
7.

30
%

 
BV

21
5b
 

Th
e a

ve
ra
ge
 ti
me

 ta
ke
n 
to
 re
pa
ir 
a s

tre
et 

lig
ht
ing

 fa
ult
, w

he
re
 re
sp
on
se
 ti
me

 is
 u
nd
er
 

th
e c

on
tro

l o
f a
 D
NO

 
Lo
we
r 

He
at
he
r B

on
fie
ld 

15
 

15
.7
1 

17
.6
 

N
ot

 M
et

 
�

 
An
nu
al 
Pe
rfo
rm
an
ce
:  
  T
he
 C
ou
nc
il h

as
 on

ly 
a v

er
y m

ar
gin

al 
inf
lue

nc
e o

n D
NO

 p
er
for
ma

nc
e a

nd
 ou

r a
bil
ity
 to
 re
po
rt 
ag
ain

st 
th
is 
ind

ica
to
r i
s e

nt
ire
ly 
re
lia
nt
 on

 th
e v

olu
nt
ar
y c

oo
pe
ra
tio
n 

of 
th
e D

NO
 w
hic

h c
an
no
t b
e g

ua
ra
nt
ee
d.
 D
ue
 to
 on

e s
ch
em

e f
or
 w
hic

h t
he
 D
NO

 en
er
gy
 su

pp
lie
r (
ED
F)
 w
as
 re
sp
on
sib

le 
ta
kin

g 1
69
 d
ay
s t
o r
ep
air
, t
he
 2
00
7/
08
 ou

ttu
rn
 h
as
 in
cre

as
ed
 to
 

17
.6
0 
da
ys
.  
W
ith
ou
t t
his

 p
ar
tic
ula

r s
ch
em

e t
he
 en

d o
f y
ea
r o
ut
tu
rn
 w
ou
ld 
ha
ve
 be

en
 1
1.
28
 da

ys
. 

-2
9.

40
%

 
BV

22
0 

Co
mp

lia
nc
e a

ga
ins

t t
he
 Pu

bli
c L

ibr
ar
y 

Se
rv
ice
 S
ta
nd
ar
ds
 

Hi
gh
er
 

Ju
dit
h 
St
 Jo

hn
 

17
 

12
.5
 

12
 

N
ot

 M
et

 
�

 
An
nu
al 
Pe
rfo
rm
an
ce
:  
  T
his

 is
 a 
co
mp

os
ite
 in
dic

at
or
 m
ad
e u

p o
f a
 n
um

be
r o
f i
nd
ica
to
rs 
dr
aw

n 
fro
m 
th
e P

ub
lic
 Li
br
ar
ies
 S
er
vic
e S

ta
nd
ar
d.
  I
n 2

00
6/
07
 th
er
e w

er
e 9

 va
lid
 in
dic

at
or
s, 
of 

wh
ich

 6
 w
er
e m

et 
in 
fu
ll, 
an
d t
wo

 w
er
e w

ith
in 
5%

 of
 ta
rg
et
, a
llo
wi
ng
 fo
r a
n 
ad
dit
ion

al 
ha
lf-
po
int
. 

In
 20

07
/0
8,
 an

 ad
dit
ion

al 
ind

ica
to
r (
PL
SS
 8 
sa
tis
fac

tio
n o

f u
nd
er
-1
6s
) w

as
 in
clu

de
d i
n 
th
e c

om
po
sit
e -
 w
hic

h 
wa
s n

ot
 m
et
.  
Th
is 
ye
ar
, t
he
 Id
ea
 S
to
re
s s
er
vic
e o

nly
 m
et
 6
 in
dic

at
or
s i
n 
fu
ll, 

at
 2
 po

int
s e

ac
h 
an
d d

id 
no
t s
co
re
 an

y a
dd
itio

na
l p
oin

ts.
  

Th
e f
ail
ed
 PL

SS
' w

er
e:
  

• 
CP
A 
C0
2b
 (P
LS
S 
2)
 A
gg
re
ga
te 
lib
ra
ry
 op

en
ing

 ho
ur
s p

er
 1
00
0 
po
pu
lat
ion

 fo
r a
ll s

ta
tic
 si
te
s -
 D
es
pit
e t
he
 lo
ng
er
 op

en
ing

 ho
ur
s d

eli
ve
re
d 
th
ro
ug
h t
he
 fo
ur
 Id
ea
 S
to
re
s c
om

pa
re
d 

to
 tr
ad
itio

na
l li
br
ar
ies
, a
ga
ins

t a
 po

pu
lat
ion

 in
cre

as
e, 
th
is 
ind

ica
to
r w

ill 
de
cli
ne
 fr
om

 pr
ev
iou

s y
ea
rs 
as
 to
ta
l o
pe
nin

g 
ho
ur
s i
n I
de
a S

to
re
s a

nd
 lib

ra
rie
s a

re
 no

w 
un
ch
an
ge
d.
 It
 

wo
uld

 re
qu
ire
 fu
rth

er
 in
ve
stm

en
t i
n 
inf
ra
str
uc
tu
re
 to
 m
ee
t t
he
 st
an
da
rd
, g
ive

n t
he
 co

nt
inu

ed
 pr
oje

cte
d p

op
ula

tio
n 
gr
ow

th
 in
 th
e b

or
ou
gh
. 

• 
CP
A 
C1
1a
-c 
(P
LS
S 
5)
 Pe

rce
nt
ag
e o

f b
oo
k r
eq
ue
sts

 su
pp
lie
d w

ith
in 
(a
) 7

 da
ys
, (
b)
 15

 da
ys
, a
nd
 (c
) 3

0 
da
ys
 - 
W
e a

re
 st
ill 
at
 C
PA
 m
idd

le 
th
re
sh
old

 fo
r r
eq
ue
st 
su
pp
ly 
tim

es
. 

Ho
we
ve
r, 
we
 h
av
e n

ot
 m
et 
ou
r t
ar
ge
ts 
for
 th
is 
ye
ar
 an

d p
er
for
ma

nc
e h

as
 de

ter
ior
at
ed
 si
nc
e 2

00
6-
07
.In
ve
sti
ga
tio
n c

ur
re
nt
ly 
un
de
r w

ay
 on

 co
ns
ist
en
t f
ail
ur
e t
o m

ee
t t
his

 
sta

nd
ar
d a

nd
 pr
oc
ed
ur
es
 ar
e c

ur
re
nt
ly 
be
ing

 re
vis
ed
 an

d a
 pr
ior
ity
 w
ill 
be
 p
lac
ed
 on

 tr
ain

ing
 al
l s
ta
ff 
in 
all
 fa
cto

rs 
co
nt
rib
ut
ing

 to
 an

 ef
fic
ien

t r
eq
ue
sts

 se
rv
ice
. 

• 
CP
A 
C1
4a
 (P
LS
S 
7)
 O
ve
ra
ll s

ati
sfa

cti
on
 of
 ov

er
-1
6s
 - 
las
t s
ur
ve
ye
d 
in 
20
06
/0
7.
  N

o I
nn
er
 Lo

nd
on
 au

th
or
itie

s m
et
 th
is 
sta

nd
ar
d;
 on

ly 
2,
 W
es
tm
ins

te
r a
nd
 W
an
ds
wo

rth
 sc
or
ed
 

hig
he
r t
ha
n 
To
we
r H

am
let
s. 
In
 th
is 
su
rv
ey
 (c
ar
rie
d o

ut
 in
 2
00
6)
, I
de
a S

to
re
s s
co
re
d 
hig

he
r t
ha
n o

lde
r l
ibr
ar
ies
, w

hil
e I
de
a S

to
re
 C
an
ar
y W

ha
rf 
ex
ce
ed
ed
 th
e s

ta
nd
ar
d.
 A
du
lts
’ 

co
mm

en
ts,
 in
 lin

e w
ith
 an

 8
8%

 sa
tis
fac

tio
n 
lev

el,
 ar
e o

ve
rw
he
lm
ing

ly 
po
sit
ive

. R
es
po
ns
es
 to
 al
l q
ue
sti
on
s i
n 
th
is 
su
rv
ey
, w

hic
h 
we
re
 co

mp
let
ed
 by

 ov
er
 30

00
 ad

ult
s, 
ar
e b

ein
g 

us
ed
 to
 im

pr
ov
e p

er
for
ma

nc
e. 

• 
PL
SS
 8
 O
ve
ra
ll s

at
isf
ac
tio
n o

f u
nd
er
-1
6s
 - 
Th
e n

at
ion

al 
re
su
lts
 of
 th
e C

hil
dr
en
’s 
PL
US
 h
av
e n

ot
 ye

t b
ee
n p

ub
lis
he
d 
so
 it
 is
 n
ot
 ye

t k
no
wn

 ho
w 
To
we

r H
am

let
s c
om

pa
re
s w

ith
 ot
he
r 

au
th
or
itie

s. 
Th
e r
es
po
ns
e ‘
OK

’ h
as
 be

en
 in
te
rp
re
te
d t
o i
nd
ica
te
 d
iss
at
isf
ac
tio
n;
 th
is 
is 
so
me

th
ing

 w
ith
 w
hic

h 
To
we
r H

am
let
s a

nd
 m
an
y o

th
er
 au

th
or
itie

s d
isa
gr
ee
.  
Re
sp
on
se
s 

wi
th
in 
To
we

r H
am

let
s w

er
e v

er
y m

ixe
d.
 Id
ea
 S
to
re
 C
an
ar
y W

ha
rf 
ex
ce
ed
ed
 th
e t
ar
ge
t, 
sc
or
ing

 9
3.
3%

 an
d C

ub
itt
 To

wn
 Li
br
ar
y a

lso
 m
et
 th
e s

ta
nd
ar
d.
 Th

e b
es
t r
es
po
ns
es
 w
er
e i
n 

sit
es
 w
he
re
 a 
hig

h p
ro
po
rti
on
 of
 re
sp
on
de
nt
s w

er
e u

nd
er
 5
. R
es
po
ns
es
 to
 al
l q
ue
sti
on
s i
n 
th
is 
su
rv
ey
, t
og
et
he
r w

ith
 ch

ild
re
n’s
 co

mm
en
ts,
 ar
e b

ein
g u

se
d 
to
 in
for
m 
pla

nn
ing

 of
 

Page 290



PI
 R
ef
 N
o 

PI
 D
es
cr
ip
tio

n 
Ai
m
in
g 

Re
sp

on
sib

le
 

Of
fic

er
 

Ta
rg
et
 

07
/0

8 
Ac

tu
al
 

06
/0

7 
Ac

tu
al
 

07
/0

8 
Va

ria
nc

e 
Tr
af
fic

 
Lig

ht
 

ch
ild
re
n’s
 se

rv
ice
s. 

-1
8.

30
%

 
BV

22
1a
 

Pe
rce

nt
ag
e o

f y
ou
ng
 pe

op
le 
ag
ed
 1
3-
19
 

ga
ini
ng
 a 
re
co
rd
ed
 ou

tco
me

 co
mp

ar
ed
 to
 th
e 

pe
rce

nt
ag
e o

f y
ou
ng
 pe

op
le 
in 
th
e l
oc
al 

au
th
or
ity
 ar
ea
. 

Hi
gh
er
 

Ma
ry
 D
ur
kin

 
60
 

57
 

49
 

N
ot

 M
et

 
�

 

An
nu
al 
Pe
rfo
rm
an
ce
:  
  T
he
 re
po
rte

d t
ot
al 
of 
49
%
 of
 th
e n

um
be
r o
f p
ar
tic
ipa

nt
s a

nd
 is
 cu

rre
nt
ly 
be
low

 th
e t
ar
ge
t o
f 6
0%

. H
ow

ev
er
, t
his

 is
 on

ly 
ba
se
d o

n 
da
ta 
fro
m 
th
e m

ain
 M
an
ag
em

en
t 

In
for
ma

tio
n 
Sy
ste

m 
(M
IS
) w

e u
se
, e
-Y
S.
 W
e a

re
 aw

ait
ing

 da
ta
 fr
om

 a 
su
bs
idi
ar
y M

IS
, C
or
e+

. W
e a

nt
ici
pa
te 
be
ing

 n
ea
r t
ar
ge
t b
y t
he
 ti
me

 al
l d
at
a i
s r
ep
or
ted

. -1
4.

20
%

 
BV

22
4b
, 

CP
AE

11
 

Pe
rce

nt
ag
e o

f t
he
 u
nc
las
sif
ied

 ro
ad
 n
et
wo

rk
 

wh
er
e s

tru
ctu

ra
l m

ain
te
na
nc
e s

ho
uld

 b
e 

co
ns
ide

re
d.
 

Lo
we
r 

He
at
he
r B

on
fie
ld 

7.
75
 

7.
97
 

8.
85
 

N
ot

 M
et

 
�

 
An
nu
al 
Pe
rfo
rm
an
ce
:  
  T
he
 25

%
 sa

mp
le 
of 
LB
TH
 ro
ad
s s
ele

cte
d i
n 
20
07
/0
8 
pic
ke
d u

p n
ew

 ar
ea
s w

hic
h 
ha
ve
 d
et
er
ior
at
ed
, a
nd
 h
av
e n

ow
 re
ac
he
d p

rio
rit
y s

ta
tu
s f
or
 m
ain

te
na
nc
e, 

wh
er
ea
s f
un
din

g w
as
 al
loc
at
ed
 to
 pr
ior
itie

s p
re
vio

us
ly 
ide

nt
ifie

d 
in 
dif
fer
en
t s
am

ple
 in
 20

06
/0
7.
 

-1
1.

70
%

 
CE

04
7, 
SP

51
0, 

TH
I03

5 
%
 of
 te
lep

ho
ne
s a

ns
we

re
d w

ith
in 
th
e 

cu
sto

me
r p
ro
mi
se
 st
an
da
rd
 

Hi
gh
er
 

Cla
ire
 S
ym

on
ds
 

77
 

69
 

68
 

N
ot

 M
et

 
�

 
An
nu
al 
Pe
rfo
rm
an
ce
:  
  P
er
for
ma

nc
e h

as
 d
ipp

ed
 si
nc
e t
he
 N
ew

 Ye
ar
, l
ea
vin

g 
th
e f
ina

l y
ea
r's
 ou

ttu
rn
 sh

or
t o
f t
ar
ge
t. 
Ke
y c

on
tri
bu
to
ry
 fa
cto

rs 
ar
e:
  

- c
ur
re
nt
 va

ca
nc
ies
 in
 th
e C

all
 C
en
tre
 of
 8
 po

sts
 (s
ta
ff 
joi
ne
d 
th
e C

all
 C
en
tre

 on
 31

/0
3/
08
 an

d w
ill 
no
w 
be
gin

 tr
ain

ing
.) 

- t
he
 n
ee
d 
to
 br
ief
 or
 tr
ain

 ex
ist
ing

 st
aff
 on

 n
ew
 H
ot
lin
es
 an

d f
or
 th
em

 to
 at
te
nd
 re
fre
sh
er
 tr
ain

ing
 se

ss
ion

s o
n s

er
vic
es
 e.
g.
 Pe

st 
Co
nt
ro
l, 
AL
MO

, P
ar
kin

g,
 E
lec
to
ra
l S
er
vic
es
. 

- S
ho
rt 
Te
rm
 an

d 
Lo
ng
 Te

rm
 si
ck
ne
ss
 w
hic

h 
is 
be
ing

 m
an
ag
ed
 th
ro
ug
h t
he
 si
ck
ne
ss
 pr
oc
ed
ur
e.
 

-1
6.

60
%

 
CE

04
8, 
SP

51
1, 

TH
I03

6 
%
 of
 le
tte
rs 
re
sp
on
de
d 
to
 w
ith
in 
cu
sto

me
r 

pr
om

ise
 st
an
da
rd
 

Hi
gh
er
 

Cla
ire
 S
ym

on
ds
 

90
 

N/
A 

75
.1
 

N
ot

 M
et

 
  

An
nu
al 
Pe
rfo
rm
an
ce
:  
  T
he
 co

lla
tio
n 
of 
co
ns
ist
en
t a
nd
 ac

cu
ra
te
 d
at
a f
or
 th
is 
In
dic

at
or
 ac

ro
ss
 th
e A

ut
ho
rit
y r
em

ain
s p

ro
ble

ma
tic
 an

d t
he
 cu

rre
nt
 fi
gu
re
 is
 ba

se
d o

nly
 on

 re
tu
rn
s r
ec
eiv

ed
 

fro
m 
D&

R 
(e
xc
lud

ing
 H
ou
sin

g)
 an

d C
us
to
me

r A
cc
es
s. 
Fir
stl
y, 
th
er
e i
s n

o s
ing

le 
po
int
 of
 co

nt
ac
t f
or
 co

rre
sp
on
de
nc
e w

ith
in 
te
am

s o
r D

ire
cto

ra
tes

; u
nli
ke
 te
lep

ho
ne
 ca

lls
 or
 e-
ma

ils
, l
ett
er
s 

ar
e n

ot
 be

ing
 ro
ut
ed
 in
 a 
wa
y t
ha
t w

ill 
en
su
re
 th
ey
 ar
e r
ec
or
de
d a

nd
 m
on
ito
re
d. 
Se
co
nd
ly,
 w
hil
e D

ire
cto

ra
tes

 h
av
e b

ee
n a

pp
ro
ac
he
d 
to
 es

ta
bli
sh
 a 
po
int
 of
 co

nt
ac
t f
or
 co

rre
sp
on
de
nc
e 

sa
mp

lin
g,
 th
e r
es
po
ns
e h

as
 be

en
 po

or
 an

d s
om

e D
ire
cto

ra
tes

 h
av
e s

tre
ss
ed
 is
su
es
 ar
ou
nd
 id
en
tif
yin

g 
th
os
e l
et
te
rs 
wh

ich
 re
qu
ire
 a 
re
ply

, a
ga
ins

t t
ho
se
 w
hic

h 
giv

e i
nfo

rm
at
ion

 an
d d

o n
ot
 

re
qu
ire
 a 
re
sp
on
se
. T
hir
dly

, t
he
re
 is
 no

 do
ub
t t
ha
t t
he
 vo

lum
e o

f w
rit
te
n 
co
rre

sp
on
de
nc
e f
ro
m 
th
e p

ub
lic
 is
 lo
w,
 ca

us
ing

 flu
ctu

at
ion

s i
n 
pe
rfo
rm
an
ce
 ba

se
d o

n 
ve
ry
 sm

all
 n
um

be
rs 
of 

tra
ns
ac
tio
ns
. 

-2
5.

20
%

 
CP

AC
04

 
Ac
tiv
e b

or
ro
we

rs 
as
 a 
pe
rce

nt
ag
e o

f 
po
pu
lat
ion

 
Hi
gh
er
 

Ju
dit
h 
St
 Jo

hn
 

26
.7
5 

25
.9
 

20
 

N
ot

 M
et

 
�

 
An
nu
al 
Pe
rfo
rm
an
ce
:  
  T
he
 ta
rg
et 
wa

s o
rig
ina

lly
 b
as
ed
 on

 a 
be
nc
hm

ar
k w

hic
h w

as
 in
co
rre

ct.
 Th

is 
wa

s d
isc
ov
er
ed
 w
he
n t
he
 lib

ra
ry
 M
IS
 w
as
 up

gr
ad
ed
 in
 D
ec
em

be
r 2

00
7.
 W
or
k i
s b

ein
g 

un
de
rta

ke
n t
o d

et
er
mi
ne
 th
e t
ru
e b

en
ch
ma

rk
 fo
r t
his

 in
dic

at
or
. 

-1
3.

10
%

 
CP

AC
11
a(i
) 

Pu
bli
c l
ibr
ar
y s

er
vic
e s

ta
nd
ar
d o

n s
to
ck
 - 

re
qu
es
t s
up
ply

 ti
me

 (7
da
ys
) 

Hi
gh
er
 

Ju
dit
h 
St
 Jo

hn
 

63
.5
 

57
 

55
.2
1 

N
ot

 M
et

 
�

 
An
nu
al 
Pe
rfo
rm
an
ce
:  
  W

e a
re
 st
ill 
at
 C
PA
 m
idd

le 
th
re
sh
old

 fo
r r
eq
ue
st 
su
pp
ly 
tim

es
. H

ow
ev
er
, w

e h
av
e n

ot
 m
et
 ou

r t
ar
ge
ts 
for
 th
is 
ye
ar
 an

d p
er
for
ma

nc
e h

as
 d
et
er
ior
at
ed
 si
nc
e 2

00
6-

07
. A
ll 3

 el
em

en
ts 
ne
ed
 to
 be

 ac
hie

ve
d f
or
 th
is 
sta

nd
ar
d t
o b

e m
et
; T

ow
er
 H
am

let
s a

ch
iev

es
 on

ly 
1/
3.
 In
ve
sti
ga
tio
n 
cu
rre

nt
ly 
un
de
r w

ay
 on

 co
ns
ist
en
t f
ail
ur
e t
o m

ee
t t
his

 st
an
da
rd
 an

d 
pr
oc
ed
ur
es
 ar
e c

ur
re
nt
ly 
be
ing

 re
vis
ed
 an

d 
a p

rio
rit
y w

ill 
be
 p
lac
ed
 on

 tr
ain

ing
 al
l s
ta
ff 
in 
all
 fa
cto

rs 
co
nt
rib
ut
ing

 to
 an

 ef
fic
ien

t r
eq
ue
sts

 se
rv
ice
. C
on
tri
bu
tin
g 
fac

to
rs 
to
 po

or
 p
er
for
ma

nc
e 

ar
e:
 • 

Re
lat
ive

ly 
low

 bo
ok
 ex

pe
nd
itu
re
: T
ow

er
 H
am

let
s i
s b

elo
w 
In
ne
r L
on
do
n, 
Ou

te
r L
on
do
n a

nd
 U
K 
av
er
ag
e o

n b
oo
k e

xp
en
dit
ur
e p

er
 10

00
 p
op
ula

tio
n.
 

• 
Po
or
 le
ve
l o
f u
nd
er
sta

nd
ing

 am
on
g s

ta
ff 
of 
pr
oc
ed
ur
es
 an

d o
f b
es
t p
ra
cti
ce
 in
 th
is 
ar
ea
. 

Jo
ini
ng
 Lo

nd
on
 Li
br
ar
y C

on
so
rti
um

 in
 D
ec
em

be
r 2
00
7 
an
d,
 at
 th
e s

am
e t
im
e, 
up
gr
ad
ing

 to
 O
pe
n G

ala
xy
, a
n 
im
pr
ov
ed
 m
an
ag
em

en
t i
nfo

rm
at
ion

 sy
ste

m 
for
 lib

ra
rie
s, 
me

an
 th
at
 th
e 

pr
os
pe
ct 
for
 im

pr
ov
ing

 pe
rfo
rm
an
ce
 ag

ain
st 
th
is 
ind

ica
to
r a
re
 go

od
. 

CP
AH

05
 

Av
er
ag
e t
im
e f
or
 n
on
-u
rg
en
t r
ep
air
s 

Lo
we
r 

Ma
ur
ee
n 
Mc
Ele

ne
y 

5.
5 

5.
97
 

8.
72
 

-5
8.

50
%

 

Page 291



PI
 R
ef
 N
o 

PI
 D
es
cr
ip
tio

n 
Ai
m
in
g 

Re
sp

on
sib

le
 

Of
fic

er
 

Ta
rg
et
 

07
/0

8 
Ac

tu
al
 

06
/0

7 
Ac

tu
al
 

07
/0

8 
Va

ria
nc

e 
Tr
af
fic

 
Lig

ht
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
N

ot
 M

et
 

�
 

An
nu
al 
Pe
rfo
rm
an
ce
:  
  D

es
pit
e n

ot
 m
ee
tin
g 
tar
ge
t, 
pe
rfo
rm
an
ce
 fo
r t
his

 in
dic

at
or
 re
ma

ins
 si
gn
ific

an
tly
 w
ith
in 
th
e u

pp
er
 th
re
sh
old

 of
 th
e C

PA
. 

-1
4.

00
%

 
LA

A1
12
c 

Re
du
ce
 th
e p

ro
po
rti
on
 of
 ad

ult
 an

d y
ou
ng
 

off
en
de
rs 
an
d p

ro
lifi
c a

nd
 ot
he
r p
rio
rit
y 

off
en
de
rs 
wh

o r
eo
ffe
nd
: r
ed
uc
e t
he
 le
ve
l o
f 

yo
ut
h r
eo
ffe
nd
ing

 (b
y 5

%
 co

mp
ar
ed
 to
 

ba
se
lin
e)
 (c
) c
om

mu
nit
y p

en
alt
ies
 

Lo
we
r 

Ma
ry
 D
ur
kin

 
58
.4
6 

55
 

66
.6
7 

N
ot

 M
et

 
�

 

An
nu
al 
Pe
rfo
rm
an
ce
:  
  P
er
for
ma

nc
e i
n 
th
is 
ar
ea
 fo
r t
he
 ye

ar
 en

din
g 2

00
7/
8 
ha
s f
all
en
 sh

or
t o
f t
he
 se

t t
ar
ge
t o
f 5
8.
46
 an

d 
les
s f
av
ou
ra
ble

 w
he
n c

om
pa
re
d 
to
 th
e 2

00
6/
7 
ou
t t
ur
n 
fig
ur
e. 

Th
is 
th
er
efo

re
 in
dic

at
e t
ha
t o
f a
ll y

ou
ng
 p
eo
ple

 w
ho
 co

mm
itt
ed
 of
fen

ce
s l
ea
din

g 
to
 a 
co
mm

un
ity
 p
en
alt
y s

uc
h 
as
 ac

tio
n p

lan
, a
tte
nd
an
ce
 ce

nt
re
 or
de
r, 
su
pe
rv
isi
on
 or
de
r, 
co
mm

un
ity
 

re
ha
bil
ita
tio
n 
or
de
r, 
co
mm

un
ity
 p
un
ish

me
nt
 or
de
r, 
dr
ug
 tr
ea
tm
en
t a
nd
 te
sti
ng
 or
de
r, 
cu
rfe
w 
or
de
r, 
66
.6
7 
pe
rce

nt
 of
 th
em

 w
en
t o
n t
o r
eo
ffe
nd
. T
he
se
 fig

ur
es
 ar
e h

ow
ev
er
 pr
ov
isi
on
al 
as
 

we
 ar
e i
n 
th
e p

ro
ce
ss
 of
 cl
ar
ify
ing

 so
me

 as
pe
ct 
of 
th
e d

at
a a

s w
ell
 as

 ta
rg
et
s. 

-2
2.

20
%

 
LA

A1
13
 

Pe
rce

nt
ag
e o

f r
es
ide

nt
s i
de
nt
ify
ing

 cr
im
e 

wi
th
in 
th
eir
 to
p t
hr
ee
 co

nc
er
ns
 (A

RS
) 

Lo
we
r 

An
dy
 B
am

be
r 

45
 

  
55
 

N
ot

 M
et

 
  

An
nu
al 
Pe
rfo
rm
an
ce
:  
  W

e h
av
e m

iss
ed
 ou

r t
ar
ge
t i
n 
th
is 
ar
ea
 an

d h
av
e s

ee
n 
an
 in
cre

as
e i
n 
re
sid
en
ts 
ide

nt
ify
ing

 cr
im
e w

ith
in 
th
eir
 to
p t
hr
ee
 co

nc
er
ns
. I
nv
es
tig
at
ion

 in
to
 th
is 
is 
on
go
ing

 
bu
t i
nit
ial
 fi
nd
ing

s s
ho
w 
th
at
 w
he
re
 re
sid

en
ts 
ar
e a

sk
ed
 ab

ou
t s
pe
cif
ic 
ty
pe
s o

f a
nt
i s
oc
ial
 b
eh
av
iou

r (
e.g

. d
ru
g m

isu
se
 an

d 
de
ali
ng
, y
ou
th
 h
an
gin

g 
ar
ou
nd
 et
c.)
 th
er
e h

as
 be

en
 a 

sig
nif
ica
nt
 im

pr
ov
em

en
t i
n p

er
ce
pt
ion

. H
ow

ev
er
 w
he
re
 q
ue
sti
on
s c
on
ce
rn
 ov

er
all
 cr
im
e o

r a
nt
i s
oc
ial
 b
eh
av
iou

r t
he
re
 h
as
 be

en
 a 
wo

rse
nin

g 
in 
pe
rce

pt
ion

 (A
RS
 an

d C
lea

ne
r, 
Sa
fer
 

Su
rv
ey
). 

W
e w

ill 
co
nt
inu

e t
o i
nv
es
tig
ate

 th
is 
an
d e

xa
mi
ne
 ou

r c
ur
re
nt
 h
yp
ot
he
sis
 th
at
 ov

er
all
 pe

rce
pt
ion

 is
 m
or
e a

ffe
cte

d b
y n

at
ion

al 
me

dia
 an

d 
tre
nd
s a

nd
 sp

ec
ific

 is
su
es
 ar
e m

or
e a

ffe
cte

d b
y 

pe
rso

na
l e
xp
er
ien

ce
 of
 th
e b

or
ou
gh
. 

-1
5.

60
%

 
LA

A1
14
 

In
cre

as
e i
n 
pe
rce

nt
ag
e o

f p
eo
ple

 w
ho
 fe
el 

inf
or
me

d a
bo
ut
 w
ha
t i
s b

ein
g d

on
e t
o t
ac
kle

 
an
tis
oc
ial
 b
eh
av
iou

r i
n 
th
eir
 lo
ca
l a
re
a 

Hi
gh
er
 

An
dy
 B
am

be
r 

32
 

24
 

27
 

N
ot

 M
et

 
�

 
An
nu
al 
Pe
rfo
rm
an
ce
:  
  T
ho
ug
h 
we
 h
av
e n

ot
 m
et
 ou

r t
ar
ge
t w

e h
av
e i
mp

ro
ve
d p

er
for
ma

nc
e i
n 
th
is 
ind

ica
to
r b
y 3

%
 fr
om

 2
00
6/
07
 to
 2
00
7/
08
. I
t i
s a

nt
ici
pa
te
d 
th
at
 th
e o

ng
oin

g f
oc
us
 of
 

th
e C

om
mu

nit
y S

afe
ty 
En
ga
ge
me

nt
 Te

am
 in
 im

pr
ov
ing

 en
ga
ge
me

nt
 an

d c
om

mu
nic

at
ion

s i
n 
th
is 
ar
ea
 w
ill 
sh
ow

 fu
rth

er
 im

pr
ov
em

en
ts 
in 
th
is 
fin
an
cia
l y
ea
r. 

-1
1.

00
%

 
LA

A1
15
 

Pe
rce

nt
ag
e o

f p
eo
ple

 w
ho
 fe
el 
th
at
 p
ar
en
ts 

no
t t
ak
ing

 re
sp
on
sib

ilit
y f
or
 th
e b

eh
av
iou

r o
f 

th
eir
 ch

ild
re
n i
s a

 ve
ry
 bi
g o

r a
 fa
irly

 bi
g 

pr
ob
lem

 

Lo
we
r 

Ke
va
n 
Co
llin

s 
73
 

75
 

81
 

N
ot

 M
et

 
�

 

An
nu
al 
Pe
rfo
rm
an
ce
:  
  I
t w

as
 to
o e

ar
ly 
for
 th
e p

ar
en
tin
g p

ro
gr
am

me
 ro
ll o

ut
 ac

ro
ss
 th
e b

or
ou
gh
 to
 h
av
e h

ad
 an

 im
pa
ct 
on
 th
is 
ind

ica
to
r. 
No
ne
th
ele

ss
, t
he
re
 w
er
e 5

3 
co
ur
se
s o

ffe
re
d 

ac
ro
ss
 th
e l
oc
al 
au
th
or
ity
 an

d t
he
ir 
im
pa
ct 
on
 pa

re
nt
s a

re
 be

ing
 m
on
ito
re
d a

nd
 ev

alu
at
ed
. 

-4
5.

90
%

 
LA

A1
24
 

In
cre

as
e i
n 
th
e p

er
ce
nt
ag
e o

f m
un
ici
pa
l 

wa
ste

 re
cy
cle
d 

Hi
gh
er
 

He
at
he
r B

on
fie
ld 

19
 

  
10
.2
8 

N
ot

 M
et

 
  

An
nu
al 
Pe
rfo
rm
an
ce
:  
  A
cti
on
s w

ith
in 
th
e R

ec
yc
lin
g I
mp

ro
ve
me

nt
 Pl
an
 2
00
7/
08
 h
av
e r
ais
ed
 pe

rfo
rm
an
ce
 bu

t n
ot
 by

 en
ou
gh
 to
 m
ee
t t
he
 st
re
tch

 ta
rg
et
. O

ur
 re
cy
cli
ng
 is
 al
mo

st 
10
0%

 dr
y 

re
cy
cla
ble

s. 
W
hil
st 
we
 ar
e d

riv
ing

 u
p r
ec
yc
lin
g p

er
for
ma

nc
e i
nc
re
me

nt
all
y, 
ste

p c
ha
ng
e w

ill 
on
ly 
be
 po

ss
ibl
e w

he
n w

e i
nt
ro
du
ce
 fo
od
 w
as
te 
co
lle
cti
on
 w
hic

h 
ar
e p

lan
ne
d f
or
 la
te
r i
n 2

00
8.
 

Th
e r
ed
uc
ed
 ch

ar
ge
s f
or
 co

mm
er
cia
l r
ec
yc
lab

les
 an

d t
he
 m
ar
ke
t r
ec
yc
lin
g 
ini
tia
tiv
es
 w
ill 
als
o c

on
tri
bu
te
 to
 an

 im
pr
ov
ed
 ou

ttu
rn
 fo
r 2
00
8/
09
. 

-2
0.

00
%

 
LA

A2
03
 

Pe
rce

nt
ag
e i
nc
re
as
e o

f lo
ca
l r
es
ide

nt
s w

ho
 

en
ga
ge
 in
 vo

lun
te
er
ing

 (i
nc
lud

ing
 e.
g.
 fo
rm
al 

civ
ic 
ro
les
) 

Hi
gh
er
 

Sh
az
ia 
Hu
ss
ain

 
15
 

13
 

12
 

N
ot

 M
et

 
�

 
An
nu
al 
Pe
rfo
rm
an
ce
:  
  T
his

 fig
ur
e i
s t
ak
en
 fr
om

 th
e A

nn
ua
l R
es
ide

nt
s S

ur
ve
y a

nd
 re
fle
cts

 th
os
e t
ha
t h
av
e v

olu
nt
ee
re
d f
or
 on

 av
er
ag
e t
wo

 ho
ur
s a

 w
ee
k. 
Mu

ch
 of
 th
e f
oc
us
 of
 ou

r w
or
k 

on
 vo

lun
te
er
ing

 h
as
 be

en
 ta
rg
et
ing

 yo
un
g p

eo
ple

. Y
ou
ng
 pe

op
le 
oft
en
 vo

lun
te
er
 on

 a 
se
as
on
al 
ba
sis
, c
on
tri
bu
tin
g 
a l
ar
ge
 n
um

be
r o
f v
olu

nt
ee
rin
g h

ou
rs 
du
rin
g h

oli
da
ys
 an

d s
o t
he
ir 

co
nt
rib
ut
ion

 is
 n
ot
 re
fle
cte

d i
n t
his

 re
su
lt.
 Th

e s
ur
ve
y u

se
d t
o m

ea
su
re
 th
is 
ind

ica
to
r h

as
 a 
5%

 ri
sk
 le
ve
l. 

LA
A3

03
 

th
e n

um
be
r o
f d
ea
th
s u

nd
er
 th
e a

ge
 of
 7
5 

Lo
we
r 

Es
th
er
 Tr
en
ch
ar
d-

12
2 

12
1 

14
8.
3 

-2
1.

60
%

 

Page 292



PI
 R
ef
 N
o 

PI
 D
es
cr
ip
tio

n 
Ai
m
in
g 

Re
sp

on
sib

le
 

Of
fic

er
 

Ta
rg
et
 

07
/0

8 
Ac

tu
al
 

06
/0

7 
Ac

tu
al
 

07
/0

8 
Va

ria
nc

e 
Tr
af
fic

 
Lig

ht
 

 
fro
m 
ca
nc
er
, m

ea
su
re
d 
in 
sta

nd
ar
dis

ed
 ra
te
s 

pe
r 1
00
,0
00
 pe

op
le 
(p
er
for
ma

nc
e m

on
ito
re
d 

an
nu
all
y, 
bu
t d
at
a a

va
ila
ble

 tw
o y

ea
rs 
in 

ar
re
ar
s) 

 
Ma

be
re
 (P
CT
) 

 
 

 
N

ot
 M

et
 

�
 

An
nu
al 
Pe
rfo
rm
an
ce
:  
  N

o c
om

me
nt
 pr
ov
ide

d 
-3

0.
90

%
 

LA
A3

05
 

To
ta
l n
um

be
r o
f p
eo
ple

 q
uit
tin
g 
sm

ok
ing

 pe
r 

ye
ar
 

Hi
gh
er
 

So
me

n B
an
er
jee

 
(P
CT
) 

20
25
 

21
05
 

14
00
 

N
ot

 M
et

 
�

 

An
nu
al 
Pe
rfo
rm
an
ce
:  
  N

o c
om

me
nt
 pr
ov
ide

d 
-1

2.
00

%
 

LA
A5

02
, 

LP
SA

00
9, 

SP
30
7, 
TH

I02
1 

Nu
mb

er
 of
 p
eo
ple

 ag
ed
 2
4 
an
d 
un
de
r i
n 

re
ce
ipt
 of
 Jo
bs
ee
ke
rs 
All
ow

an
ce
 (a
nd
 n
ot
 on

 
Ne
w 
De
al)
 h
elp

ed
 in
to
 pa

id 
em

plo
ym

en
t o
f 

ov
er
 16

 ho
ur
s a

 w
ee
k f
or
 at
 le
as
t 1
3 

co
ns
ec
ut
ive

 w
ee
ks
 or
 m
or
e 

Hi
gh
er
 

Ja
ck
ie 
Od

un
oy
e 

25
0 

13
9 

22
0 

N
ot

 M
et

 
�

 

An
nu
al 
Pe
rfo
rm
an
ce
:  
  T
he
 fin

al 
fig
ur
e f
or
 0
7/
08
 is
 22

0 
int
o s

us
ta
ina

ble
 em

plo
ym

en
t, 
br
ing

ing
 th
e t
ot
al 
LP
SA
 fig

ur
e t
o 4

59
. T
his

 is
 sh

or
t o
f t
he
 es

tim
at
ed
 to
ta
l o
f 5
50
 w
ith
in 
th
e 6

0%
 to
 

ac
hie

ve
 so

me
 re
wa
rd
 gr
an
t. 
Di
ffi
cu
ltie

s w
ith
 th
is 
fig
ur
e w

er
e c

au
se
d b

y c
ha
ng
es
 to
 th
e N

ew
 D
ea
l p
ro
gr
am

me
s. 
Ch
an
ge
s t
o t
he
 pr
og
ra
mm

e a
nd
 lia

iso
n w

ith
 th
e J

CP
 co

nt
ra
cto

r a
re
 on

go
ing

 
as
 p
ar
t o
f t
he
 w
ide

r C
ity
 S
tra
te
gy
 in
itia

tiv
e. 

-1
6.

50
%

 
LA

A6
01
, 

SP
40
3 

In
cre

as
e i
n 
th
e p

er
ce
nt
ag
e o

f p
up
ils
 

ac
hie

vin
g 
lev

el 
5 
in 
bo
th
 E
ng
lis
h 
an
d 

ma
th
em

at
ics
 at
 K
S3
 

Hi
gh
er
 

Ca
rm
el 
Lit
tle
to
n 

69
 

54
 

57
.6
 

N
ot

 M
et

 
�

 
An
nu
al 
Pe
rfo
rm
an
ce
:  
  T
he
 ta
rg
et 
of 
69
%
 w
as
 no

t m
et
 th
is 
ye
ar
, h
ow

ev
er
 p
er
for
ma

nc
e c

on
tin
ue
s t
o i
mp

ro
ve
 ye

ar
 on

 ye
ar
 w
ith
 a 
3.
6 
pe
rce

nt
ag
e p

oin
t i
nc
re
as
e o

n l
as
t y
ea
r. 
W
e w

ill 
co
nt
inu

e t
o s

et
 am

bit
iou

s t
ar
ge
ts 
an
d r
ep
or
t o
ur
 ex

ce
lle
nt
 ra
te
s o

f p
ro
gr
es
s. 
Th
is 
ye
ar
 w
e a

ch
iev

ed
 57

.6
%
 co

mp
ar
ed
 to
 th
e n

at
ion

al 
re
su
lt 
wh

ich
 is
 6
8%

. 
-2

9.
50

%
 

LA
A6

05
a, 

SP
40
5a
, 

TH
I02

5a
 

Un
au
th
or
ise
d a

bs
en
ce
 ra
te
s -
 pr
im
ar
y (
pr
ox
y 

for
 6
01
, 6
02
 &
 6
03
) 

Lo
we
r 

He
len

 Je
nn
er
 

0.
95
 

1.
24
 

1.
23
 

N
ot

 M
et

 
�

 

An
nu
al 
Pe
rfo
rm
an
ce
:  
  W

e h
av
e n

ot
 m
et 
ou
r t
ar
ge
t o
f 0
.9
5%

. W
e h

av
e r
ec
or
de
d a

n 
im
pr
ov
em

en
t o
ve
r t
he
 p
as
t y
ea
r h
ow

ev
er
, t
his

 re
ma

ins
 an

 am
bit
iou

s t
ar
ge
t. 
W
e h

av
e p

ut
 in
 p
lac
e 

rig
or
ou
s m

on
ito
rin
g o

f p
er
sis
te
nt
 ab

se
nc
es
 w
hic

h 
ha
s i
mp

ac
te
d 
po
sit
ive

ly 
on
 pe

rfo
rm
an
ce
 in
 th
is 
ar
ea
. I
t i
s w

or
th
 n
ot
ing

 th
at
 th
e L

oc
al 
au
th
or
ity
 do

es
 n
ot
 au

th
or
ise
 h
oli
da
ys
 du

rin
g 
ter
m 

tim
e, 
th
is 
ho
we
ve
r d
oe
s n

ot
 pr
ev
en
t p
ar
en
ts 
fro
m 
bo
ok
ing

 te
rm
 ti
me

 h
oli
da
ys
; w

hic
h 
ob
vio

us
ly 
im
pa
cts

 on
 pe

rfo
rm
an
ce
 in
 th
is 
ar
ea
. H

ow
ev
er
, w

e e
nv
isa
ge
 th
at
 th
is 
wi
ll c
on
tin
ue
 to
 

im
pr
ov
e. 

-4
1.

10
%

 
LA

A6
06
 

Nu
mb

er
 of
 p
ar
en
ts 
pa
rti
cip

at
ing

 in
 Fa

mi
ly 

Le
ar
nin

g 
pr
og
ra
mm

es
 

Hi
gh
er
 

He
len

 Je
nn
er
 

17
50
 

14
06
 

10
30
 

N
ot

 M
et

 
�

 
An
nu
al 
Pe
rfo
rm
an
ce
:  
  1
03
0 p

ar
en
ts 
pa
rti
cip

at
e i
n f
am

ily
 le
ar
nin

g p
ro
gr
am

me
s. 
Ou
r t
ar
ge
t o
f 1
75
0 
wa

s n
ot
 m
et
. T
he
re
 h
as
 be

en
 a 
los
s o

f 2
 co

mm
un
ity
 p
ar
tn
er
sh
ip 
gr
ou
ps
 an

d l
os
s o

f 
ma

na
ge
me

nt
 fo
r t
his

 ar
ea
 fo
r t
he
 p
as
t 8
 m
on
th
s. 
Ne
w 
he
ad
 of
 A
CL
 an

d n
ew
 S
kil
ls 
for
 Li
fe 
an
d 
Fa
mi
lie
s m

an
ag
er
 to
 be

 ap
po
int
ed
. O

n c
ur
re
nt
 fu
nd
ing

 fr
om

 th
e L

SC
 fo
r F
am

ily
 Le

ar
nin

g,
 it
 

is 
un
lik
ely

 th
at
 th
e 0

8/
09
 ta
rg
et
 of
 2
00
0 
wi
ll b

e a
ch
iev

ed
. W

e a
re
 lo
ok
ing

 at
 ho

w 
th
e f
am

ily
 le
ar
nin

g 
cu
rri
cu
lum

 is
 or
ga
nis
ed
 an

d d
eli
ve
re
d.
 O
ne
 op

tio
n i
s t
o r
un
 m
or
e t
as
te
r t
yp
e s

es
sio
ns
, 

ho
we
ve
r, 
th
er
e n

ee
ds
 to
 be

 a 
ba
lan

ce
 of
 pr
ov
isi
on
 so

 th
at
 fa
mi
ly 
lea

rn
ing

 ob
jec

tiv
es
 ar
e a

ch
iev

ed
. 

-1
9.

00
%

 
LA

AP
10
4 

Pe
rce

nt
ag
e o

f p
eo
ple

 w
ho
 th
ink

 th
at
 st
re
et
 

cle
an
ing

 is
 go

od
, v
er
y g

oo
d o

r e
xc
ell
en
t 

(A
RS
) (
pr
ox
y f
or
 LA

A 
11
9)
 

Hi
gh
er
 

He
at
he
r B

on
fie
ld 

63
 

  
51
 

N
ot

 M
et

 
  

An
nu
al 
Pe
rfo
rm
an
ce
:  
  N

o c
om

me
nt
 pr
ov
ide

d 
-1

1.
30

%
 

LA
AP

30
4 

Ce
rv
ica
l s
cre

en
ing

 co
ve
ra
ge
 fo
r w

om
en
 ag

ed
 

25
 - 
64
 ye

ar
s (
pr
ox
y f
or
 LA

A 
30
3)
 

Hi
gh
er
 

Es
th
er
 Tr
en
ch
ar
d-

Ma
be
re
 (P
CT
) 

80
 

72
.3
 

71
 

N
ot

 M
et

 
�

 

Page 293



PI
 R
ef
 N
o 

PI
 D
es
cr
ip
tio

n 
Ai
m
in
g 

Re
sp

on
sib

le
 

Of
fic

er
 

Ta
rg
et
 

07
/0

8 
Ac

tu
al
 

06
/0

7 
Ac

tu
al
 

07
/0

8 
Va

ria
nc

e 
Tr
af
fic

 
Lig

ht
 

An
nu
al 
Pe
rfo
rm
an
ce
:  
  N

o c
om

me
nt
 pr
ov
ide

d 
-1

64
.2

0%
 

LA
AS

10
3, 

SP
10
7 

Re
du
ce
d l
en
gt
h o

f t
im
e d

om
es
tic
 vi
ole

nc
e i
s 

ex
pe
rie
nc
ed
 be

for
e i
t i
s i
nit
ial
ly 
re
po
rte
d t
o a

 
sp
ec
ial
ist
 ag

en
cy
 

Lo
we
r 

Ph
ilip

pa
 C
hip

pin
g 

-6
 

3.
2 

3.
85
 

N
ot

 M
et

 
�

 

An
nu
al 
Pe
rfo
rm
an
ce
:  
  N

o c
om

me
nt
 pr
ov
ide

d 
-2

2.
10

%
 

LA
AS

10
4 

No
n-
ac
cid

en
ta
l s
ec
on
da
ry
 fir
es
 (e
xc
lud

ing
 

ve
hic

les
) (
BV
20
6ii
i) 

Lo
we
r 

An
dy
 B
am

be
r 

2.
99
 

2.
99
 

3.
65
 

N
ot

 M
et

 
�

 
An
nu
al 
Pe
rfo
rm
an
ce
:  
  N

on
-a
cc
ide

nt
al 
fir
es
 h
av
e f
ail
ed
 to
 st
ay
 be

low
 th
e 2

.9
9 
tar
ge
t. 
Th
is 
wa

s d
ue
 to
 th
e i
nc
re
as
e i
n 
se
as
on
al 
fir
es
 (3

rd
 Q
ua
rte

r) 
su
ch
 as

 N
ov
 5
 an

d 
Ha
llo
we
en
. I
t w

as
 

sti
ll t
he
 lo
we

st 
ra
te 
for
 th
at
 qu

ar
te
r w

he
n c

om
pa
re
d t
o t
he
 la
st 
3 
ye
ar
s, 
wh

ich
 in
dic

at
es
 a 
sig

nif
ica
nt
 im

pr
ov
em

en
t. 

-4
3.

00
%

 
LA

AS
10
7, 

SP
10
9a
 

Im
pr
ov
ed
 pe

rce
pt
ion

s o
f a
nt
iso
cia
l 

be
ha
vio

ur
: r
ed
uc
ed
 p
er
ce
nt
ag
e o

f t
he
 

po
pu
lat
ion

 w
ho
 vi
ew
 ru
bb
ish
 an

d 
litt
er
 ly
ing

 
ar
ou
nd
 as

 "a
 ve

ry
 se

rio
us
 pr
ob
lem

" 

Lo
we
r 

He
at
he
r B

on
fie
ld 

23
 

32
 

32
.9
 

N
ot

 M
et

 
�

 

An
nu
al 
Pe
rfo
rm
an
ce
:  
  P
ub
lic
 pe

rce
pt
ion

s h
av
e s

lip
pe
d, 
mi
rro

rin
g a

 re
du
cti
on
 in
 ou

r p
er
for
ma

nc
e i
n 
ma

na
gin

g l
itt
er
.  
To
 ad

dr
es
s t
his

 ac
tio
n 
is 
be
ing

 ta
ke
n o

n 
tw
o f
ro
nt
s. 
 Fi
rst
 a 

Cle
an
sin

g I
mp

ro
ve
me

nt
 B
oa
rd
 h
as
 be

en
 se

t u
p w

hic
h 
inv

olv
es
 a 
ra
ng
e o

f s
ta
ke
ho
lde

rs,
 in
clu

din
g 
ou
r c
on
tra

cto
rs 
an
d a

 th
re
e y

ea
r c
on
tin
uo
us
 im

pr
ov
em

en
t p
lan

 h
as
 be

en
 ag

re
ed
.  

Se
co
nd
 a 
Pu
bli
c R

ea
lm
 ca

mp
aig

n 
to
 ra
ise
 p
ub
lic
 aw

ar
en
es
s i
s b

ein
g d

ev
elo

pe
d.
  A
lth
ou
gh
 th
is 
wi
ll i
nit
ial
ly 
co
nc
en
tra
te
 on

 re
cy
cli
ng
 p
er
for
ma

nc
e i
t w

ill 
be
 ex

pa
nd
ed
 to
 co

ve
r t
he
 m
or
e 

ge
ne
ra
l p
ub
lic
 re
alm

. 
-1

6.
9 

LA
AS

60
4, 

LP
SA

01
0b
, 

SP
40
8, 
TH

I02
6 

Nu
mb

er
 of
 u
nd
er
 1
6s
 w
ho
 ar
e a

cti
ve
 u
se
rs 

of 
th
e I
de
a S

to
re
s a

nd
 lib

ra
rie
s 

Hi
gh
er
 

Ju
dit
h 
St
 Jo

hn
 

19
27
2 

13
47
3 

16
00
8 

N
ot

 M
et

 
�

 

An
nu
al 
Pe
rfo
rm
an
ce
:  
  A
t t
he
 en

d o
f t
he
 ye

ar
 u
nd
er
 1
6s
 m
em

be
rsh

ip 
of 
Id
ea
 S
to
re
s r
os
e t
o 1

4,
26
2,
 w
hic

h r
ep
re
se
nt
s a

 1
9%

 in
cre

as
e o

ve
r 2
00
6-
07
. T
he
re
 w
er
e a

n 
ad
dit
ion

al 
17
46
 

ch
ild
re
n w

ho
 w
er
e m

em
be
rs 
of 
th
eir
 sc
ho
ol 
lib
ra
ry
 bu

t n
ot
 Id
ea
 S
to
re
 m
em

be
rs.
 Th

er
e h

as
 be

en
 a 
co
nc
er
ted

 ef
for
t m

ad
e t
o i
nc
re
as
e m

em
be
rsh

ip 
in 
th
is 
ag
e g

ro
up
. A
ll s

ite
s h

av
e b

ee
n 

giv
en
 in
div

idu
al 
ta
rg
et
s f
or
 n
um

be
rs 
of 
ne
w 
me

mb
er
s t
o b

e a
dd
ed
.  
Pr
ac
tic
e o

n c
las
s v

isi
ts 
ha
s b

ee
n r
e-
mo

de
lle
d,
 w
ith
 an

 em
ph
as
is 
on
 in
tro

du
cin

g 
ne
w 
me

mb
er
s. 
Pla

ns
 to
 re
fu
rb
ish
 

ch
ild
re
n’s
 lib

ra
rie
s a

t I
de
a S

to
re
 W
hit
ec
ha
pe
l a
nd
 Id
ea
 S
to
re
 C
hr
isp
 S
tre
et
 ar
e w

ell
 ad

va
nc
ed
.  
Sp
ac
e a

llo
ca
te
d t
o c

hil
dr
en
 at
 W
at
ne
y M

ar
ke
t L
ibr
ar
y h

as
 do

ub
led

, a
nd
 th
e s

ite
 h
as
 be

en
 

giv
en
 a 
de
dic

at
ed
 ch

ild
re
n’s
 of
fic
er
. 

-1
42

.9
0%

 
LA

AS
60
8 

Pe
rce

nt
ag
e o

f p
ar
en
t g
ov
er
no
r v
ac
an
cie
s 

Lo
we
r 

He
len

 Je
nn
er
 

7 
8.
7 

17
 

N
ot

 M
et

 
�

 
An
nu
al 
Pe
rfo
rm
an
ce
:  
  T
he
 pa

re
nt
 go

ve
rn
or
 va

ca
nc
y i
s c

ur
re
nt
ly 
at
 17

%
 w
e h

av
e n

ot
 ac

hie
ve
d o

ur
 ta
rg
et
. T
his

 is
 d
ue
 to
 re
sig

na
tio
ns
 of
 pa

re
nt
 go

ve
rn
or
s a

nd
 th
e i
na
bil
ity
 to
 fil
l t
he
se
 

va
ca
nc
ies
. T
he
 tr
ain

ing
 &
 co

mm
un
ica
tio
n 
po
st 
is 
als
o i
n 
th
e p

ro
ce
ss
 of
 co

mi
ng
 up

 w
ith
 n
ew

 id
ea
s o

f f
illi
ng
 th
e p

ar
en
t g
ov
er
no
r v
ac
an
cie
s m

or
e a

de
qu
at
ely

 .C
ur
re
nt
ly 
th
e p

ar
en
t g
ov
er
no
r 

lea
fle
ts 
ar
e b

ein
g r
ev
ise
d 
an
d a

lso
 th
e t
ra
ini
ng
 an

d c
om

mu
nic

at
ion

 p
os
t h
as
 co

nt
ac
te
d s

ch
oo
ls 
to
 as

sis
t w

ith
 is
su
es
 to
 do

 w
ith
 th
e p

ar
en
t g
ov
er
no
r v
ac
an
cie
s. 
It 
is 
pla

nn
ed
 th
at
 a 
re
se
ar
ch
 

pr
oje

ct 
wi
ll b

e c
on
du
cte

d t
o i
nv
es
tig
at
e w

hy
 p
ar
en
ts 
go
ve
rn
or
 va

ca
nc
ies
 ar
e n

ot
 be

ing
 fi
lle
d.
 

-1
0.

80
%

 
LA

AS
60
9b
 

Pe
rce

nt
ag
e a

ch
iev

ing
 6
+ 
en
d o

f F
S 
in 

em
ot
ion

al 
de
ve
lop

me
nt
 (E

D)
 

Hi
gh
er
 

He
len

 Je
nn
er
 

74
 

69
 

66
 

N
ot

 M
et

 
�

 
An
nu
al 
Pe
rfo
rm
an
ce
:  
  A
lth
ou
gh
 si
gn
ific

an
t p
ro
gr
es
s w

as
 m
ad
e i
n f
ou
nd
at
ion

 st
ag
e a

ch
iev

em
en
t o
ve
ra
ll t
he
re
 w
as
 a 
dip

 in
 th
is 
ar
ea
. A
 ra
ng
e o

f t
ra
ini
ng
 h
as
 be

en
 p
ut
 in
 pl
ac
e a

s t
his

 is
 

an
 as

pe
ct 
of 
lea

rn
ing

 w
he
re
 m
od
er
at
ion

 is
 p
ar
tic
ula

rly
 ch

all
en
gin

g.
 S
ign

ific
an
t i
nv
es
tm
en
t i
n 
fou

nd
at
ion

 st
ag
e t
ra
ini
ng
, a
nd
 pr
og
ra
mm

es
 su

ch
 as

 Pa
re
nt
s a

s P
ar
tn
er
s i
n 
Ea
rly
 Le

ar
nin

g 
sh
ou
ld 
im
pa
ct 
on
 n
ex
t y
ea
r’s
 re
su
lts
 fo
r t
his

 in
dic

at
or
. 

-1
7.

50
%

 
LP

SA
00
2b
(iv
) 

Pe
rce

pt
ion

s o
f a
nt
iso
cia
l b
eh
av
iou

r: 
pe
rce

nt
ag
e o

f p
op
ula

tio
n 
wh

o v
iew

 as
 a 

“v
er
y b

ig 
pr
ob
lem

” t
he
 fo
llo
wi
ng
 is
su
e:
 - 

ru
bb
ish
 an

d 
litt
er
 ly
ing

 ar
ou
nd
 

Lo
we
r 

He
at
he
r B

on
fie
ld 

28
 

32
 

32
.9
 

N
ot

 M
et

 
�

 

Page 294



PI
 R
ef
 N
o 

PI
 D
es
cr
ip
tio

n 
Ai
m
in
g 

Re
sp

on
sib

le
 

Of
fic

er
 

Ta
rg
et
 

07
/0

8 
Ac

tu
al
 

06
/0

7 
Ac

tu
al
 

07
/0

8 
Va

ria
nc

e 
Tr
af
fic

 
Lig

ht
 

An
nu
al 
Pe
rfo
rm
an
ce
:  
  A
s p

er
 LA

AS
10
7 
/ S

P1
09
a c

om
me

nt
. 

-1
1.

60
%

 
LP

SA
00
2c
 

Re
du
cin

g a
nt
iso
cia
l b
eh
av
iou

r: 
- %

 of
 

re
sid
en
ts 
wh

o s
ay
 th
at
 an

tis
oc
ial
 b
eh
av
iou

r 
ha
s g

ot
 w
or
se
 or
 n
ot
 ch

an
ge
d i
n 
th
e p

as
t 3
 

ye
ar
s 

Lo
we
r 

An
dy
 B
am

be
r 

69
 

  
77
 

N
ot

 M
et

 
  

An
nu
al 
Pe
rfo
rm
an
ce
:  
  W

e h
av
e m

iss
ed
 ou

r t
ar
ge
t i
n 
th
is 
ar
ea
 an

d h
av
e s

ee
n 
an
 in
cre

as
e i
n 
re
sid
en
ts 
sa
yin

g 
th
at
 an

ti 
so
cia
l b
eh
av
iou

r i
s g

et
tin
g w

or
se
 or
 h
as
 no

t c
ha
ng
ed
. I
nv
es
tig
at
ion

 
int
o t
his

 is
 on

go
ing

 b
ut
 in
itia

l f
ind

ing
s s
ho
w 
th
at
 w
he
re
 re
sid

en
ts 
ar
e a

sk
ed
 ab

ou
t s
pe
cif
ic 
ty
pe
s o

f a
nt
i s
oc
ial
 be

ha
vio

ur
 (e
.g
. d
ru
g m

isu
se
 an

d d
ea
lin
g,
 yo

ut
h 
ha
ng
ing

 ar
ou
nd
 et
c.)
 th
er
e 

ha
s b

ee
n 
a s

ign
ific

an
t i
mp

ro
ve
me

nt
 in
 pe

rce
pt
ion

. H
ow

ev
er
 w
he
re
 qu

es
tio
ns
 co

nc
er
n o

ve
ra
ll c

rim
e o

r a
nt
i s
oc
ial
 be

ha
vio

ur
 th
er
e h

as
 be

en
 a 
wo

rse
nin

g 
in 
pe
rce

pt
ion

 (A
RS
 an

d C
lea

ne
r, 

Sa
fer
 S
ur
ve
y)
. 

W
e w

ill 
co
nt
inu

e t
o i
nv
es
tig
ate

 th
is 
an
d e

xa
mi
ne
 ou

r c
ur
re
nt
 h
yp
ot
he
sis
 th
at
 ov

er
all
 pe

rce
pt
ion

 is
 m
or
e a

ffe
cte

d b
y n

at
ion

al 
me

dia
 an

d 
tre
nd
s a

nd
 sp

ec
ific

 is
su
es
 ar
e m

or
e a

ffe
cte

d b
y 

pe
rso

na
l e
xp
er
ien

ce
 of
 th
e b

or
ou
gh
. 

-1
3.

80
%

 
SP

30
8, 
TH

I02
2 

Pe
rce

nt
ag
e o

f y
ou
ng
 pe

op
le 
in 
To
we
r 

Ha
ml
et
s a

ge
d 1

8 
- 2

5 
cla
im
ing

 
un
em

plo
ym

en
t-r
ela

te
d b

en
efi
ts 

Lo
we
r 

Ja
ck
ie 
Od

un
oy
e 

16
 

20
.7
 

18
.2
 

N
ot

 M
et

 
�

 
An
nu
al 
Pe
rfo
rm
an
ce
:  
  T
he
 07

/0
8 
ou
t t
ur
n 
as
 of
 th
e e

nd
 of
 M
ar
ch
 2
00
8 
wa

s 1
8.
2 
pe
rce

nt
. T
his

 fi
gu
re
 co

nt
inu

es
 to
 im

pr
ov
e s

lig
ht
ly 
an
d w

or
k w

ith
 pa

rtn
er
s i
s c
on
tin
uin

g 
to
 h
av
e a

n 
im
pa
ct 
loc
all
y. 
Ho
we
ve
r, 
th
er
e r
em

ain
 fa
cto

rs 
wh

ich
 co

nt
inu

e t
o i
mp

ac
t o
n p

ro
gr
es
s: 
W
hil
st 
se
rv
ice
s s
uc
h 
as
 S
kil
lsm

at
ch
, T
ow

er
 H
am

let
s C

oll
eg
e a

nd
 th
e C

om
mu

nit
y H

ub
s c
on
tin
ue
 to
 

off
er
 so

lut
ion

s a
nd
 cr
ea
te
 ef
fec

tiv
e p

at
hw

ay
s i
nt
o s

us
ta
ina

ble
 em

plo
ym

en
t f
or
 yo

un
g p

eo
ple

 th
is 
is 
sm

all
 sc
ale

 co
mp

ar
ed
 to
 m
ain

str
ea
m 
fu
nd
ing

. M
ain

str
ea
m 
fu
nd
ing

 is
 st
ill 
lin
ke
d t
o 

na
tio
na
l t
ar
ge
ts 
an
d 
no
t t
o a

dd
re
ss
ing

 sp
ec
ific

 lo
ca
l is

su
es
. 

-1
0.

40
%

 
SP

31
0 

In
cre

as
ed
 su

pp
ly 
of 
em

plo
ym

en
t 

op
po
rtu

nit
ies
 in
 ke

y g
ro
wt
h 
se
cto

rs 
pr
om

pt
ed
 di
re
ctl
y t
hr
ou
gh
 th
e E

mp
loy

me
nt
 

Co
ns
or
tiu
m 

Hi
gh
er
 

Ja
ck
ie 
Od

un
oy
e 

14
00
 

13
54
 

12
54
 

N
ot

 M
et

 
�

 

An
nu
al 
Pe
rfo
rm
an
ce
:  
  T
his

 m
ea
su
re
s t
he
 jo
bs
 id
en
tif
ied

 th
ro
ug
h S

kil
lsm

at
ch
 bu

t d
ue
 to
 th
e m

or
e i
nt
en
siv
e s

cre
en
ing

 an
d 
ma

tch
ing

 to
 in
cre

as
e s

us
tai
na
bil
ity
 fe
we
r j
ob
s a

re
 se

cu
re
d b

ut
 

hig
he
r s
us
ta
ina

bil
ity
 ra
te
s a

re
 ac

hie
ve
d.
 

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

 

Page 295



Page 296

This page is intentionally left blank



 
Workforce Matters in Local Authority Service Contracts 

On 13th March 2003, the Office of the Deputy Prime Minister issued a statement on Staff 
Transfers in the Public Sector along with a Code of Practice. The Code referred 
specifically to workforce matters in public sector service contracts which involve a 
transfer of staff from the public sector organisation to the service provider, or in which 
staff originally transferred out from the public sector organisation as a result of an 
outsourcing are TUPE transferred to a new provider under a retender of a contract. That 
is, they refer only to those contracts which were previously performed by the public 
sector organisation, and have been outsourced. Tower Hamlets has embraced this and 
reviewed its contract letting procedures to ensure full compliance with the requirements 
under the Code of Practice. 

The Code recognises that there is no conflict between good employment practice, value 
for money and quality of service. On the contrary, quality and good value will not be 
provided by organisations who do not manage workforce issues well. Service providers 
who intend to cut costs by driving down the terms and conditions for staff, whether for 
transferees or for new joiners taken on to work beside them, should therefore not be 
selected. 
 
The Code requires public sector organisations to apply the principles set out in the 
Cabinet Office Statement of Practice on Staff Transfers in the Public Sector and the 
annex to it, A Fair Deal for Staff Pensions. The intention of the Statement is that staff will 
transfer and that TUPE should apply, and that in circumstances where TUPE does not 
apply in strict legal terms, the principles of TUPE should be followed and the staff 
involved should be treated no less favourably than had the Regulations applied. The 
annex to the Statement requires the terms of a business transfer specifically to protect 
the pensions of transferees, in that transferring staff should be offered membership of a 
pension scheme which is broadly comparable to the public service pension scheme 
which they are leaving.  
 
Where the service provider recruits new staff to work on a public service contract 
alongside staff transferred from the public sector organisation, it will offer employment on 
fair and reasonable terms and conditions which are, overall, no less favourable than 
those of transferred employees. The service provider will also offer reasonable pension 
arrangements. 
 
As part of its tollgate procurement project assurance process, the Council now checks 
the applicability of the Code to all major projects. The implications for services and costs 
will henceforth be monitored on a case-by-case basis.  
 
Whilst the Council has adopted the principles of the Code in its contract letting 
procedures, no applicable contracts were awarded during the 2007/08 financial year. 
 
 

Page 297



Page 298

This page is intentionally left blank


	Agenda
	2 DECLARATIONS OF INTEREST
	3 MINUTES
	Minutes 080521 Appendices A and B
	Minutes 080521 Appendix C
	Minutes 080521 Appendix D

	5 TO RECEIVE ANY DEPUTATIONS OR PETITIONS
	6 TO RECEIVE WRITTEN QUESTIONS FROM MEMBERS OF THE PUBLIC
	7 TO RECEIVE QUESTIONS FROM MEMBERS OF THE COUNCIL
	8.1 Annual Report of the Overview and Scrutiny Committee 2007/08
	Item 8.1 O and S Annual report

	8.2 Report of the Cabinet Meeting of 7th May 2008
	Item 8.2 Mail Forwarding Cabinet Report

	8.3 Report of the Cabinet Meeting of 11th June 2008
	Item 8.3 Appx A Community Plan and LAA Cabinet Report
	Item 8.3 Appx A Appx 1 Community Plan
	Item 8.3 Appx A Appx 2 LAA
	Item 8.3 Appx A Appx 3 LAA targets
	Item 8.3 Appx B Strat Plan BVPP Cabinet Report
	Item 8.3 Appx B Appx 1 Strat Plan
	Item 8.3 Appx B Appx 2 Strat Plan Ann Rep
	Item 8.3 Appx B Appx 3a Strat Plan Completed
	Item 8.3 Appx B Appx 3b Strat Plan Overdue
	Item 8.3 Appx B Appx 4 BVPP Outcomes
	Item 8.3 Appx B Appx 5a BVPP Variance Exceeded
	Item 8.3 Appx B Appx 5b BVPP Variance Not Met
	Item 8.3 Appx B Appx 6 Workforce Matters


